COMPUTER APPLICATIONS FOR MANAGERS

Ş



Book: Computer Applications for Managers (Lumen)

This text is disseminated via the Open Education Resource (OER) LibreTexts Project (https://LibreTexts.org) and like the hundreds of other texts available within this powerful platform, it is freely available for reading, printing and "consuming." Most, but not all, pages in the library have licenses that may allow individuals to make changes, save, and print this book. Carefully consult the applicable license(s) before pursuing such effects.

Instructors can adopt existing LibreTexts texts or Remix them to quickly build course-specific resources to meet the needs of their students. Unlike traditional textbooks, LibreTexts' web based origins allow powerful integration of advanced features and new technologies to support learning.



The LibreTexts mission is to unite students, faculty and scholars in a cooperative effort to develop an easy-to-use online platform for the construction, customization, and dissemination of OER content to reduce the burdens of unreasonable textbook costs to our students and society. The LibreTexts project is a multi-institutional collaborative venture to develop the next generation of openaccess texts to improve postsecondary education at all levels of higher learning by developing an Open Access Resource environment. The project currently consists of 14 independently operating and interconnected libraries that are constantly being optimized by students, faculty, and outside experts to supplant conventional paper-based books. These free textbook alternatives are organized within a central environment that is both vertically (from advance to basic level) and horizontally (across different fields) integrated.

The LibreTexts libraries are Powered by NICE CXOne and are supported by the Department of Education Open Textbook Pilot Project, the UC Davis Office of the Provost, the UC Davis Library, the California State University Affordable Learning Solutions Program, and Merlot. This material is based upon work supported by the National Science Foundation under Grant No. 1246120, 1525057, and 1413739.

Any opinions, findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this material are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the National Science Foundation nor the US Department of Education.

Have questions or comments? For information about adoptions or adaptions contact info@LibreTexts.org. More information on our activities can be found via Facebook (https://facebook.com/Libretexts), Twitter (https://twitter.com/libretexts), or our blog (http://Blog.Libretexts.org).

This text was compiled on 03/07/2025



TABLE OF CONTENTS

2.1: About This Course

Licensing

2.2: Course Contents at a Glance

3: Faculty Resources

- 1.1: Faculty Resources Overview
- 1.2: Pacing
- 1.3: Offline Content Access
- 1.5: Assignments

1: Introduction to Computers

- 1.1: Why It Matters- Introduction to Computers
- 1.2: Introduction to Computer Concepts
- 1.3: Hardware
- 1.4: Software
- 1.5: Security
- 1.6: Privacy
- 1.7: Introduction to Operating Systems
- 1.8: Identifying Your Operating System (OS)
- 1.9: Introduction to Navigate Programs
- 1.10: Managing Windows
- 1.11: Keyboard Shortcuts
- 1.12: Introduction to Finding Programs and Files
- 1.13: Start Menu
- 1.14: Creating Files and Folders
- 1.15: Organizing Files and Folders
- 1.16: Deleting Files and Folders
- 1.17: Introduction to File Management
- 1.18: Local Files
- 1.19: Network Files
- 1.20: Online Files
- 1.21: Introduction to Snips and Screenshots
- 1.22: Snips and Screenshots
- 1.23: Putting It Together- Intro to Computers
- o 1.24: Assignment- Download Files
- 1.25: Assignment- Identify Your OS
- 1.26: Assignment- Empty the Recycle Bin
- 1.27: Discussion- Computers vs. Smartphones

2: Internet Research

- 2.1: Why It Matters- Internet Research
- 2.2: Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet
- 2.3: Internet Browsers
- 2.4: Basic Browser Tools
- 2.5: Introduction to Ethical Business Research



- 2.6: Ethical Research
- 2.7: Data and Customer Rights
- 2.8: Introduction to Basic Searches
- 2.9: Web Searching
- 2.10: Identifying Search Results
- 2.11: Opening Search Results
- 2.12: Introduction to Advanced Searches
- 2.13: Adjusting Search Parameters
- 2.14: Image Searches
- 2.15: Putting It Together- Internet Research
- 2.16: Assignment- Search the Internet
- 2.17: Discussion- Search Results
- o 2.18: Discussion- Personal Data and Ethical Business Use

3: Microsoft Word Basic Skills

- o 3.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Basic Skills
- 3.2: Introduction to Using Word
- 3.3: Creating a New Blank Document and Finding Your Way Around
- 3.4: Saving Files
- 3.5: File Extensions
- 3.6: Introduction to Basic Text Formatting
- 3.7: Selecting and Moving Text
- 3.8: Bold, Italics, Underline
- o 3.9: Fonts
- o 3.10: Alignment, Justification, and Indentation
- 3.11: Line and Paragraph Spacing
- 3.12: Introduction to Workspace Tools
- 3.13: Spell Check and Dictionaries
- 3.14: Find and Replace
- 3.15: Introduction to Lists
- o 3.16: Lists
- 3.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Basic Skills
- 3.18: Assignment- Create Basic Document
- 3.19: Discussion- Paragraph Styles

4: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills

- o 4.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills
- 4.2: Introduction to Page Layout
- 4.3: Tab Stops
- 4.4: Columns
- 4.5: Headers and Footers
- 4.6: Introduction to Text Boxes
- 4.7: Text Boxes
- 4.8: Introduction to Tables
- 4.9: Creating Tables
- 4.10: Converting Text to a Table
- 4.11: Formatting Tables
- 4.12: Introduction to Images
- 4.13: Adding Images
- 4.14: Text Wrap
- 4.15: Introduction to Hyperlinks



- 4.16: Hyperlinks
- 4.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills
- 4.18: Assignment- Create Document with Tables and Images
- 4.19: Discussion- Cover Pages

5: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

- o 5.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills
- 5.2: Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting
- 5.3: Creating a New Document from a Template
- 5.4: Text Effects
- 5.5: Introduction to Watermarks and Icons
- 5.6: Watermarks
- 5.7: Icons in Word
- 5.8: Introduction to Citations
- 5.9: Citations
- 5.10: Introduction to Mail Merge
- 5.11: Mail Merge
- 5.12: Introduction to Internet and Word
- 5.13: Internet and Word
- 5.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills
- 5.15: Assignment- Edit a Newsletter
- 5.16: Discussion- Advanced Shortcuts

6: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

- 6.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills
- 6.2: Introduction to Using Excel
- 6.3: Creating a New Workbook
- 6.4: Entering Data
- 6.5: Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout
- 6.6: Table Styles
- 6.7: Cell Styles
- 6.8: Cell Format
- 6.9: Comma Styles
- 6.10: Rearranging Tables
- 6.11: Changing Width of Columns and Rows
- 6.12: Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets
- 6.13: Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets
- 6.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills
- 6.15: Assignment- Organize Sales Data
- 6.16: Discussion- Merging and Centering Cells

7: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

- 7.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills
- 7.2: Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis
- 7.3: Sorting Data
- 7.4: Filtering Data
- 7.5: Functions
- 7.6: Introduction to Automating Data Entry
- 7.7: Flash Fill
- 7.8: SUM Data
- 7.9: Simple Math



- 7.10: Introduction to Graphics
- 7.11: Graphics
- 7.12: Modify Graphics
- 7.13: Format Graphics
- 7.14: Introduction to Charts
- 7.15: Charts
- 7.16: Clustered Column Charts
- 7.17: Chart Styles
- 7.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills
- 7.19: Assignment- Analyze Yearly Trends
- 7.20: Discussion- Hard Return within a Cell

8: Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

- 8.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills
- 8.2: Introduction to Sparklines
- 8.3: Sparklines
- 8.4: Introduction to More Formatting and Layout
- 8.5: Conditional Formatting
- 8.6: Viewing a Worksheet
- 8.7: Introduction to Pivot Tables
- 8.8: Pivot Tables
- 8.9: Introduction to Macros
- 8.10: Macros
- 8.11: Recording a Macro
- 8.12: Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas
- 8.13: What is a Function?
- 8.14: Lookup Functions and Formulas
- 8.15: Logical Functions and Formulas
- 8.16: Financial Functions and Formulas
- 8.17: Introduction to Add-Ins
- 8.18: Add-Ins
- 8.19: Introduction to Internet and Excel
- 8.20: Internet and Excel
- 8.21: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills
- 8.22: Assignment- Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet
- 8.23: Discussion- Excel Worksheet as a Webpage

9: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

- 9.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills
- 9.2: Introduction to Creating Presentations
- 9.3: New Presentations
- 9.4: Themes
- 9.5: Introduction to Using PowerPoint
- 9.6: Editing a Presentation
- 9.7: Organizing Slides
- o 9.8: Views
- 9.9: Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint
- 9.10: Text Boxes
- 9.11: Images and Clip Art
- 9.12: SmartArt
- 9.13: Arranging Objects



- 9.14: Grouping Objects
- 9.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills
- 9.16: Assignment- Present Sales Information
- 9.17: Discussion- Infographics and Custom Shapes

10: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

- 10.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills
- 10.2: Introduction to Transition Effects
- 10.3: Transition Effects
- 10.4: Introduction to Headers and Footers
- 10.5: Headers and Footers
- 10.6: Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.7: Inserting Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.8: Embedding Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.9: Uploading Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.10: Introduction to Lists
- 10.11: Creating Lists
- 10.12: Modifying Lists
- 10.13: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills
- 10.14: Assignment- Create a New Presentation
- 10.15: Discussion- Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video

11: Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

- 11.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills
- 11.2: Introduction to Colors
- 11.3: Color Themes
- 11.4: Custom Color Themes
- 11.5: Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint
- 11.6: Create Tables
- 11.7: Format Tables
- 11.8: Modify Tables
- 11.9: Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint
- 11.10: Animations in PowerPoint
- 11.11: Introduction to Charts in PowerPoint
- 11.12: Create Charts
- 11.13: Format Charts
- 11.14: Modify Charts
- 11.15: Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template
- 11.16: Customized PowerPoint Templates
- 11.17: Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint
- 11.18: Internet and PowerPoint
- 11.19: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills
- 11.20: Assignment- Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations
- 11.21: Discussion- Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint

12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills

- o 12.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Basic Skills
- 12.2: Introduction to Creating Database Tables
- 12.3: Creating a Database
- 12.4: Naming Databases
- 12.5: Creating an Access Table



- 12.6: Introduction to Fields in Access
- 12.7: Field Properties
- o 12.8: Field Names and Data Types
- 12.9: Introduction to Table Primary Key
- 12.10: Primary Key
- 12.11: Set a Primary Key
- 12.12: Introduction to Indexes
- 12.13: What is an Index?
- 12.14: To Index or Not to Index?
- 12.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Basic Skills
- 12.16: Assignment- Create New Access Database
- 12.17: Discussion- Selecting Primary Key Tips

13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

- o 13.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills
- 13.2: Introduction to Table Relationships
- 13.3: Database Principles
- o 13.4: Flat File vs Normalized Data
- 13.5: Types of Table Relationships
- 13.6: Introduction to Working with Tables
- 13.7: Datasheets
- 13.8: Entering Data
- 13.9: Changing Values
- 13.10: Introduction to Working with Datasheets
- o 13.11: Adding Values and Records in Datasheets
- o 13.12: Deleting Records in Datasheets
- 13.13: Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data
- 13.14: Displaying Records in Datasheets
- 13.15: Sorting Data
- 13.16: Aggregating Data
- 13.17: Printing Records
- 13.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills
- 13.19: Assignment- Modify Access Database
- o 13.20: Discussion- Moving Columns and Fields

14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

- 14.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills
- 14.2: Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data
- 14.3: External Data
- 14.4: Import and Export Options
- 14.5: Introduction to Queries
- 14.6: What Are Queries?
- 14.7: Adding Criteria to a Query
- 14.8: Saving Queries
- 14.9: Introduction to Forms and Reports
- 14.10: Understanding Forms
- 14.11: Creating Basic Forms
- 14.12: Form Controls and Views
- 14.13: Presenting Data on Reports
- 14.14: Introduction to Analyzing Data
- 14.15: Transforming Data



- 14.16: Understanding Calculations
- 14.17: Using Conditional Analysis
- 14.18: Using Subqueries
- 14.19: Understanding Domain Aggregation
- 14.20: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills
- 14.21: Assignment- Create Queries for Access Database
- 14.22: Discussion- Ways to Manage Access Tables

15: Integration

- 15.1: Why It Matters- Integration
- 15.2: Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint
- 15.3: Customized Word Templates
- o 15.4: Excel Table in Word Document
- o 15.5: Excel Chart in Word Document
- 15.6: PowerPoint in Word Document
- 15.7: Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel
- 15.8: Excel Table in PowerPoint
- 15.9: Excel Chart in PowerPoint
- 15.10: Introduction to Integrating Access
- 15.11: Access and Mail Merge
- 15.12: Excel Table from Access Data
- 15.13: Access Data from Excel Table
- 15.14: Putting It Together- Integration
- 15.15: Assignment- Create Mail Merge Letters
- 15.16: Discussion- Audio Integration

16: Resources- Capstone Assignment

• 16.1: Assignment- Create Capstone Presentation

17: Ancillary Materials

• 17.1: PowerPoint Presentations

Index

Glossary

Detailed Licensing



2.1: About This Course

This course is aimed at beginning to intermediate computer users. It teaches a range of computer skills from the basics of using Windows, to basic internet literacy, to creating projects using Microsoft Office. Assignments show step-by-step visuals to help students complete projects, and include integration across Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Access.

This course was developed by Lumen Learning in conjunction with Cerritos College, with contributing work from Sherri Pendelton, Shelli Carter, and Robert Danielson, as well as videos from multiple sources.

Course Improvements

This new edition of Computer Applications for Managers includes improvements and enhancements including:

- New learning outcomes in Module 2: Internet Research discussing ethical business research
- Expanded and resequenced Microsoft Word modules
- One new Microsoft Excel module and resequenced pre-existing Excel modules
- One new Microsoft PowerPoint module and resequenced pre-existing PowerPoint modules
- Three new Microsoft Access modules
 - Module 12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills
 - Module 13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills
 - Module 14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills
- Expansion of Module 15: Integration to include Microsoft Access

We believe in making continuous improvements to our courses in order to enhance and facilitate student learning. This newest version of the course includes data-driven improvements to assessment questions and text content in order to better illustrate, clarify, and evaluate concepts.

About Lumen

Lumen Learning's mission is to make great learning opportunities available to all students, regardless of socioeconomic background.

We do this by using open educational resources (OER) to create well-designed and low-cost course materials that replace expensive textbooks. Because learning is about more than affordability and access, we also apply learning science insights and efficacy research to develop learning activities that are engineered to improve subject mastery, course completion and retention.

If you'd like to connect with us to learn more about adopting this course, please Contact Us.

You can also make an appointment for OER Office Hours to connect virtually with a live Lumen expert about any question you may have.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• About This Course. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



Licensing

A detailed breakdown of this resource's licensing can be found in **Back Matter/Detailed Licensing**.



2.2: Course Contents at a Glance



The following list shows a summary of the topics covered in this course. To see all of the course pages, visit the Table of Contents.

Module 1: Introduction to Computers

- Computer Concepts
- Operating Systems
- Navigate Programs
- Finding Programs and Files
- File Management
- Snips and Screenshots

Module 2: Internet Research

- Using and Searching the Internet
- Ethical Business Research
- Basic Searches
- Advanced Searches

Module 3: Microsoft Word Basic Skills

- Using Word
- Basic Text Formatting
- Workspace Tools
- Lists

Module 4: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills

- Page Layout
- Text Boxes
- Tables
- Images
- Hyperlinks

Module 5: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

- Advanced File Creation
- Watermarks and Icons
- Citations
- Mail Merge
- Internet and Word

Module 6: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

- Using Excel
- Basic Formatting and Layout
- Using Multiple Worksheets

Module 7: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

- Using Excel for Data Analysis
- Automating Data Entry
- Graphics





• Charts

Module 8: Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

- Sparklines
- More Formatting and Layout
- Pivot Tables
- Macros
- Statistical Functions and Formulas
- Add-Ins
- Internet and Excel

Module 9: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

- Creating Presentations
- Using PowerPoint
- Objects in PowerPoint

Module 10: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

- Transition Effects
- Headers and Footers
- Videos and Arranged Objects
- Lists

Module 11: Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

- Colors
- Tables in PowerPoint
- Animations in PowerPoint
- Charts in PowerPoint
- Customized PowerPoint Template
- Internet and PowerPoint

Module 12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills

- Creating Database Tables
- Fields in Access
- Table Primary Key
- Indexes

Module 13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

- Table Relationships
- Working with Tables
- Working with Datasheets
- Sorting and Filtering Data

Module 14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

- Importing and Exporting Data
- Queries
- Forms and Reports
- Analyzing Data

Module 15: Integration

- Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint
- Using PowerPoint with Excel
- Integrating Access





Module 16: Capstone Assignment

• Create Capstone Presentation

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Course Contents at a Glance. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- CC licensed content, Shared previously
- Binoculars Icon. Authored by: Musmellow. Provided by: Noun Project. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/search/? q=binoculars&i=1234056. License: *CC BY: Attribution*



SECTION OVERVIEW

3: Faculty Resources





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

1: Introduction to Computers

Learning Objectives

- Discuss basic computer concepts and definitions
- Determine what operating system you have
- Navigate programs
- Locate and manage files and folders
- Discuss proper file and folder management techniques in a variety of environments
- Take a screenshot

1.1: Why It Matters- Introduction to Computers

- 1.2: Introduction to Computer Concepts
- 1.3: Hardware
- 1.4: Software
- 1.5: Security
- 1.6: Privacy
- 1.7: Introduction to Operating Systems
- 1.8: Identifying Your Operating System (OS)
- 1.9: Introduction to Navigate Programs
- 1.10: Managing Windows
- 1.11: Keyboard Shortcuts
- 1.12: Introduction to Finding Programs and Files
- 1.13: Start Menu
- 1.14: Creating Files and Folders
- 1.15: Organizing Files and Folders
- 1.16: Deleting Files and Folders
- 1.17: Introduction to File Management
- 1.18: Local Files
- 1.19: Network Files
- 1.20: Online Files
- 1.21: Introduction to Snips and Screenshots
- 1.22: Snips and Screenshots
- 1.23: Putting It Together- Intro to Computers
- 1.24: Assignment- Download Files
- 1.25: Assignment- Identify Your OS
- 1.26: Assignment- Empty the Recycle Bin
- 1.27: Discussion- Computers vs. Smartphones

1: Introduction to Computers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.1: Why It Matters- Introduction to Computers

Why learn how to use computers?

Almost every job in management uses computers in some capacity. Your ability to effectively use computers in day-to-day tasks can be the difference between getting work done on time or being overwhelmed with your workload. Computers make many tasks much more efficient. You may have to invest a little time up front to learn the skills, but once you gain some computer literacy you will find many tasks much easier and faster to accomplish.

Here are just a few of the tasks in business management that use computers and the programs we will cover in this course:

- keeping track of inventory
- organizing and accessing databases of customer information
- managing budgets
- writing internal communication to other employees
- designing presentations to shareholders, coworkers, or bosses
- representing the company in communication to customers
- coordinating multiple people's schedules
- searching the internet for useful information

In order to accomplish these tasks, you will first need to develop a foundation in basic computer literacy.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Why It Matters: Introduction to Computers. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.1: Why It Matters- Introduction to Computers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



1.2: Introduction to Computer Concepts

What you'll learn to do: Discuss basic computer concepts and definitions

In this section we will explore the components that make up the personal computer. Of course, computer hardware alone is not sufficient to power computers—software is required. We will break down the software necessary to support computing and learn the difference between system software and application software.

We are all familiar with the power and convenience of connecting individual computers and mobile devices. We will discuss the downside of being connected—information security and personal privacy. Finally, we will learn best practices in file management and organization in three environments: local, network and online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Computer Concepts. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

1.2: Introduction to Computer Concepts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.3: Hardware

Learning Objectives

• Discuss the role hardware plays in computing

Computer hardware (usually simply called hardware when a computing context is concerned) is the collection of physical elements that constitutes a computer system. Computer hardware is the physical parts or components of a computer, such as the monitor, mouse, keyboard, computer data storage, hard disk drive (HDD), graphic cards, sound cards, memory, motherboard, and so on, all of which are physical objects that are tangible.

Mainboard

The motherboard is the main component of a computer. It is a large rectangular board with integrated circuitry that connects the other parts of the computer including the CPU, the RAM, the disk drives (CD, DVD, hard disk, or any others) as well as any peripherals connected via the ports or the expansion slots.

Components directly attached to or part of the motherboard include:

- The **CPU** (Central Processing Unit) performs most of the calculations which enable a computer to function, and is sometimes referred to as the "brain" of the computer. It is usually cooled by a heat sink and fan. Most newer CPUs include an on-die Graphics Processing Unit (GPU).
- The **Chipset**, which includes the north bridge, mediates communication between the CPU and the other components of the system, including main memory.
- The Random-Access Memory (RAM) stores the code and data that are being actively accessed by the CPU.
- The **Read-Only Memory** (ROM) stores the BIOS that runs when the computer is powered on or otherwise begins execution, a process known as Bootstrapping, or "booting" or "booting up."
- The **BIOS** (Basic Input Output System) includes boot firmware and power management firmware. Newer motherboards use Unified Extensible Firmware Interface (UEFI) instead of BIOS.
- Buses connect the CPU to various internal components and to expand cards for graphics and sound.
- The CMOS battery is also attached to the motherboard. This battery is the same as a watch battery or a battery for a remote to a car's central locking system. Most batteries are CR2032, which powers the memory for date and time in the BIOS chip.

Storage

Computer data storage, often called storage, refers to computer components and recording media that retain digital data. Data storage is a core function and fundamental component of computers. The price of solid-state drives (SSD), which store data on flash memory, has dropped a lot in recent years, making them a better choice than ever to add to a computer to make booting up and accessing files faster.

Fixed media

Data is stored by a computer using a variety of media. Hard disk drives are found in virtually all older computers, due to their high capacity and low cost, but solid-state drives are faster and more power efficient, although currently more expensive than hard drives, so are often found in more expensive computers. Some systems may use a disk array controller for greater performance or reliability.

Removable media

To transfer data between computers, a USB flash drive or Optical disc may be used. Their usefulness depends on being readable by other systems; the majority of machines have an optical disk drive, and virtually all have a USB port.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18540





Input and output devices are typically housed externally to the main computer chassis. The following are either standard or very common to many computer systems.

Input

Input devices allow the user to enter information into the system, or control its operation. Most personal computers have a mouse and keyboard, but laptop systems typically use a touchpad instead of a mouse. Other input devices include webcams, microphones, joysticks, and image scanners.

Output device

Output devices display information in a human readable form. Such devices could include printers, speakers, monitors or a Braille embosser.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

 Modification of Computer Hardware. Provided by: Northern Virginia Community Collegeu2019s Extended Learning Institute. Located at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/zeliite115/chapter/reading-hardware-2/. License: CC BY-SA: Attribution-ShareAlike

CC licensed content, Specific attribution

• Untitled. Authored by: Editors Keys. Provided by: Unsplash. Located at: https://unsplash.com/photos/CtDrd7mWW6M. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*. License Terms: Unsplash License

1.3: Hardware is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



1.4: Software

Learning Objectives

• Discuss the role software plays in computing

System Software

System software is computer software designed to operate and control the computer hardware and to provide a platform for running application software. System software can be separated into two different categories, operating systems and utility software.

- The operating system (prominent examples being Microsoft Windows, Mac OS X, Chrome OS, and Linux), allows the parts of a computer to work together by performing tasks like transferring data between memory and disks or rendering output onto a display device. It also provides a platform to run high-level system software and application software.
 - A kernel is the core part of the operating system that defines an API for applications programs (including some system software) and an interface to device drivers.
 - Device drivers such as computer BIOS and device firmware provide basic functionality to operate and control the hardware connected to or built into the computer.
 - A user interface "allows users to interact with a computer." Since the 1980s, the graphical user interface (GUI) has been perhaps the most common user interface technology. The command-line interface is still a commonly used alternative.
- Utility software helps to analyze, configure, optimize and maintain the computer, such as virus protection.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18541

Additional Software

In contrast to system software, software that allows users to do things like create text documents, play games, listen to music, or web browsers to surf the web are called application software. The line where the distinction should be drawn is not always clear. Most operating systems bundle such software. Such software is not considered system software when it can be uninstalled without affecting the functioning of other software.

Exceptions could be web browsers such as Internet Explorer, where Microsoft argued in court that it was system software that could not be uninstalled. Later examples are Chrome OS and Firefox OS where the browser functions as the only user interface and the only way to run programs (and other web browser cannot be installed in their place), then they can well be argued to be (part of) the operating system and then system software.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Modification of System Software. **Provided by**: Northern Virginia Community College Extended Learning Institute. **Located** at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/zeliite115/chapter/reading-system-software/. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*

1.4: Software is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.5: Security

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss the importance of security in the business computing environment

A computer being secure depends on a number of technologies working properly. A modern operating system provides access to a number of resources, which are available to software running on the system, and to external devices like networks via the kernel.



The operating system must be capable of distinguishing between requests which

should be allowed to be processed, and others which should not be processed. While some systems may simply distinguish between "privileged" and "non-privileged," systems commonly have a form of requester identity, such as a username. To establish identity there may be a process of authentication. Often a username must be quoted, and each username may have a password. Other methods of authentication, such as magnetic cards or biometric data, might be used instead. In some cases, especially connections from the network, resources may be accessed with no authentication at all (such as reading files over a network share). Also covered by the concept or equester identity is authorization; the particular services and resources accessible by the requester once logged into a system are tied to either the requester's user account or to the variously configured groups of users to which the requester belongs.

In addition to the allow or disallow model of security, a system with a high level of security also offers auditing options. These would allow tracking of requests for access to resources (such as, "who has been reading this file?"). Internal security, or security from an already running program is only possible if all possibly harmful requests must be carried out through interrupts to the operating system kernel. If programs can directly access hardware and resources, they cannot be secured.

External security involves a request from outside the computer, such as a login at a connected console or some kind of network connection. External requests are often passed through device drivers to the operating system's kernel, where they can be passed onto applications, or carried out directly.

Why Does Security MatteR?

Security of operating systems has long been a concern because of highly sensitive data held on computers, both of a commercial and military nature. The United States Government Department of Defense (DoD) created the *Trusted Computer System Evaluation Criteria* (TCSEC) which is a standard that sets basic requirements for assessing the effectiveness of security. This became of vital importance to operating system makers, because the TCSEC was used to evaluate, classify and select trusted operating systems being considered for the processing, storage and retrieval of sensitive or classified information.

Network services include offerings such as file sharing, print services, email, web sites, and file transfer protocols (FTP), most of which can have compromised security. At the front line of security are hardware devices known as firewalls or intrusion detection/prevention systems. At the operating system level, there are a number of software firewalls available, as well as intrusion detection/prevention systems. Most modern operating systems include a software firewall, which is enabled by default. A software firewall can be configured to allow or deny network traffic to or from a service or application running on the operating system. Therefore, one can install and be running an insecure service, such as Telnet or FTP, and not have to be threatened by a security breach because the firewall would deny all traffic trying to connect to the service on that port.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18542



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Modification of Utility Software. **Provided by**: Northern Virginia Community College Extended Learning Institute. **Located** at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/zeliite115/chapter/reading-utility-software/. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*

CC licensed content, Specific attribution

 Untitled. Authored by: Pete Linforth. Provided by: Pixabay. Located at: pixabay.com/illustrations/cyber-security-technologynetwork-3374252/. License: CCO: No Rights Reserved. License Terms: Pixabay License

1.5: Security is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.6: Privacy

Learning Objectives

• Discuss the challenges to privacy in the business computing environment

Information privacy, or **data privacy**, is the relationship between collection and dissemination of data, technology, the public expectation of privacy, and the legal and political issues surrounding them.

Privacy concerns exist wherever personally identifiable information or other sensitive information is collected and stored—in digital form or otherwise. Improper or non-existent disclosure control can be the root cause for privacy issues. Data privacy issues can arise in response to information from a wide range of sources, such as:

- Healthcare records
- Criminal justice investigations and proceedings
- Financial institutions and transactions
- Biological traits, such as genetic material
- Residence and geographic records
- Ethnicity
- Privacy breach
- Location-based service and geolocation

The challenge in data privacy is to share data while protecting personally identifiable information. The fields of data security and information security design and utility software, hardware and human resources exist to address this issue. As the laws and regulations related to Data Protection are constantly changing, it is important to keep abreast of any changes in the law and continually reassess your compliance with data privacy and security regulations.

The Internet and Security

The ability to control the information one reveals about oneself over the Internet, and who can access that information, has become a growing concern. These concerns include whether email can be stored or read by third parties without consent, or whether third parties can continue to track the web sites someone has visited. Another concern is web sites which are visited collect, store, and possibly share personally identifiable information about users.

The advent of various search engines and the use of data mining created a capability for data about individuals to be collected and combined from a wide variety of sources very easily. The FTC has provided a set of guidelines that represent widely accepted concepts concerning fair information practices in an electronic marketplace called the Fair Information Practice Principles.

Everything is accessible over the Internet nowadays. A major issue with privacy relates back to social networking. For example, there are millions of users on Facebook, Twitter, and other social media platforms, and regulations have changed. People may be tagged in photos or have valuable information exposed about themselves either by choice or most of the time unexpectedly by others.

It is important to be cautious of what is being said over the Internet and what information is being displayed as well as photos because this all can searched across the web and used to access private databases making it easy for anyone to quickly go online and profile a person.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18543

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Modification of Information Privacy. **Provided by**: Northern Virginia Community College Extended Learning Institute. **Located at**: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/zeliite115/chapter/reading-information-privacy/. **License**: *CC BY-SA*:



Attribution-ShareAlike

1.6: Privacy is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.7: Introduction to Operating Systems

What you'll learn to do: determine what operating system you have.

Every computer has an operating system: put simply, this is the system that allows your computer to operate. It is important to know which operating system your computer has because the steps to accomplish various tasks varies between operating systems. Reading directions on how to change the desktop background in Windows 10 may not help you if you are running Windows XP, and those directions will be useless if you are using a Mac. However, nearly all versions of Windows and macOS are capable of doing the same things.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Operating Systems. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.7: Introduction to Operating Systems is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.8: Identifying Your Operating System (OS)

Learning Objectives

• Determine what operating system you have.

An operating system (OS) is system software that manages computer hardware and software resources and provides common services for computer programs. Nearly every computer program requires an operating system to function. The two most common operating systems are Microsoft Windows and Apple's macOS. This course's main focus will be Windows 10 and 7.

Although this class will be focusing on Windows 10 and 7, the things you will learn in this module can be done by any version of Windows or macOS. If you are not running Windows 10 or 7, you can find directions online by searching for the task you are trying to do and the name of your operating system. (For example, you might search for "create folder windows vista.")

Windows vs. Mac



Apple logo

To identify your operating system, start by narrowing down which brand of OS you have. Often you can determine whether you are running Windows or macOS without even turning on your computer:

- Is there an Apple logo somewhere on your computer?
- Does your computer have a Command key (**#**) on the keyboard?
- Was your computer purchased at an Apple store?

If the answer to any of those questions is yes, then you most likely have a computer that runs macOS.

Another good way to see whether you are running Windows or Mac is simply to turn the computer on. As the operating system boots up, it will display a logo. A Windows logo means you are running Windows, while an Apple logo means you are running macOS.

If you have determined that you are running Windows, there are many methods to determine your specific operating system, not all of which are listed here. **It doesn't matter which method you use**; what's important is figuring out which operating system you have. If one method doesn't work, try another.

Method 1

Press the Windows key (at the bottom of the keyboard, looks like four squares) and R key at the same time to open the Run dialog box. Type in "winver."



Click OK. A window should open called About Windows that tells you which operating system you are using.

| out Windows | |
|--------------------------------------|--|
| | Windows10 |
| Microsoft Window | 'S |
| Version 1607 (OS © 2016 Microsoft | Build 14393.0) Corporation, All rights reserved. |
| The Windows 10 H | Home operating system and its user interface are |
| rights in the Unite | enan and other pending of existing intelectual property d States and other countries/regions. |
| This product is lice | ensed under the <u>Microsoft Software License</u> |
| Mindows Lloor | |

This computer is using Windows 10.

Method 2

Open the Start menu by clicking the bottom left-hand corner of your screen. If you see a search text box, select it and then type "about" or "about your pc." If you do not see a search text box, then just start typing "about" or "about your pc." Select About your PC. If you do not see About your PC, try a different method.





| Settings | | – 0 × | |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------|--|--|
| Home Find a setting P | | Windows 10 | |
| System | PC name | DESKTOP-I2VA0GF | |
| 🖵 Display | Rename PC | | |
| E Apps & features | Organization | WORKGROUP | |
| ⊡ Default apps | Connect to work or school | | |
| | Edition | Windows 10 Home | |
| Notifications & actions | Version | 1607 | |
| (¹) Power & sleep | OS Build | 14393.0 | |
| | Product ID | 00326-10000-00000-AA064 | |
| □ Battery | Processor | Intel(R) Core(TM) i7-4650U CPU @ 1.70GHz 2.30 GHz | |
| 📼 Storage | Installed RAM | 2.00 GB | |
| 🖽 Offline maps | System type | 64-bit operating system, x64-based processor | |

This computer is running Windows 10 Home Version 1607 with a 64-bit operating system.

Method 3

Open the Start menu by clicking the bottom left-hand corner of your screen. Right-click on Computer, then select Properties.







This computer is running Windows 7 Professional with a 64-bit operating system.

Method 4

Open the Start menu by clicking the bottom left-hand corner of your screen. If you see a search text box, select it and then type "System Information" in the search box. If you do not see a search text box, then just start typing "system" or "system information." Select System Information under Programs. If you do not see System Information, try a different method.





| 💐 System Information | | |
|--|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| File Edit View Help | | |
| System Summary Hardware Resources Components Software Environment | Itom | Value |
| | OS Name | Microsoft Windows 7 Professional |
| | Version | 6.1.7601 Service Pack 1 Build 7601 |
| | Other OS Description | Not Available |
| | OS Manufacturer | Microsoft Corporation |
| | System Name | WIN-FQNH1A8QPLV |
| | System Manufacturer | VMware, Inc. |
| | System Model | VMware Virtual Platform |
| | System Type | x64-based PC |
| | Processor | Intel(R) Core(TM) i7-4650U CPU @ 1.70 |
| | BIOS Version/Date | Phoenix Technologies LTD 6.00, 7/2/20 |
| | SMBIOS Version | 2.7 |
| | Windows Directory | C:\Windows |
| | System Directory | C:\Windows\system32 |
| | Boot Device | \Device\HarddiskVolume1 - |
| | | • |
| Find what: | | Find Close Find |
| Search selected category only | Search category names on | ly |

This computer is running Windows 7 Professional with a 64-bit operating system.

Methods 2–4 also provide additional information on your computer that is useful for troubleshooting and determining what programs you will be able to run. For example, many software programs have a version for a x32-based processor and another for a x64-based processor. For the purposes of this course, you only need to know which edition of Windows you have.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18544

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• definition of OS. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Operating_system. License: CC BY-SA: Attribution-ShareAlike

Public domain content

Apple logo. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Apple_logo_black.svg. License: Public Domain: No Known
Copyright

Lumen Learning authored content

• Identifying Your Operating System (OS). Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.8: Identifying Your Operating System (OS) is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.9: Introduction to Navigate Programs

What you'll learn to do: navigate programs

This section will help you interact with the programs on your computer. Knowing how to control windows and programs is essential for multitasking and improving your workflow. We will also cover some terminology so you can better understand instructions, both in this course and elsewhere.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Navigate Programs. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.9: Introduction to Navigate Programs is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.10: Managing Windows

Learning Objectives

Manage multiple windows

There are several terms that are commonly used in discussions about and instructions for computer use. This guide will define these common terms to help you read instructions.

Desktop

Desktop refers to the main screen of the computer. It is the first screen you see after logging in. The desktop's appearance can vary widely because it is highly customizable, but generally desktops will feature a large image, icons, and a **taskbar** (covered later on this page).





Note that the word *desktop* is also used to refer to a desktop computer. A desktop computer is not portable (it stays on the desk) while a laptop computer is portable.

Window

A window is a viewing area that graphically displays a program so that the user can interact with it. A window is adjustable, so it can take up the entire screen or just part of the screen. Note that this is a different term from the Windows operating system—Macs also have windows.



The look of windows varies by operating system and program. Not every program's window will function the same. For example, many programs open in full screen by default, so you will not see any of the window's toolbars or buttons. Most windows have the same features, which we will cover here.







Diagram of a Windows 10 window.

- 1. **Menu bar.** This toolbar contains various commands that often lead to **dialog menus** (covered later on this page). Windows computers have this bar at the top of windows; Macs have this bar at the top of the screen instead. The options contained in this toolbar vary greatly from program to program.
- 2. Title bar. This shows the title of the program (in this case, Notepad) and has the minimize, maximize/resize, and close buttons. If the window is not maximized, you can click and drag the title bar to move the window.
- 3. Minimize. Minimizing a program means making the program "collapse" into the taskbar. A minimized window is no longer visible but still running.
- Maximize/resize. Clicking this button will maximize the window so it takes up the whole screen. If the window is already maximized, clicking this button will resize the window to be smaller.
- 5. Close. This button closes the window.
- 6. Resize corner. Clicking and dragging this button will change the size of the window.

Working with Multiple Windows: Resizing

Resizing windows can help you see multiple windows at once, as shown below.



PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18545

Menu Bar and Dialog Menus

Clicking an option on the menu bar, such as File, opens a dialog menu that gives you more options to interact with the program.



A window with a dialog menu.





Instructions in this course—and elsewhere—will often use shorthand to indicate how to get to a particular command through dialog menus. This shorthand separates phrases that should be clicked with a > symbol. For example, the instructions for the screenshot above would be "File>Save."

Taskbar

The taskbar runs at one edge of the screen, almost always the bottom. The taskbar is used to access the Start menu and currently running programs. Like the desktop, it is very customizable.



Windows 10 taskbar

- 1. Start menu button. The appearance of the Start button varies between versions, but it is always the left-most button of the taskbar. The Start menu can also be opened by pressing the Windows key (2) on the keyboard.
- 2. **Pinned programs**. Programs can be pinned to the taskbar so that they are quicker to get to: you can open a pinned program simply by clicking on it. You can customize which programs are pinned to the taskbar by opening a program, then right-clicking on the program's taskbar icon and selecting "Pin to Taskbar." You can also unpin pinned programs by right-clicking the program's icon and selecting "Unpin from Taskbar."
- 3. **Open (minimized) program**. The icons of open programs will appear to the right of the pinned programs. In Windows 10, the blue line beneath the icon indicates the program is minimized.
- 4. System tray. The system tray is on the right side of the taskbar. It displays the date and time and has icons that show helpful information related to computer and program functions. The icons in the system tray vary widely from computer to computer depending on what programs are installed and what version of Windows you have, so do not worry if your system tray does not match the screenshots in this course or your classmates' system trays. In the screenshot above, from left to right in the system tray:
 - Arrow. When clicked expands to show more system tray icons
 - *Battery*. This is a feature of laptop computers. Hover over the battery icon to see how much charge is left.
 - *Network*. This icon shows the status of your internet connection. In the screenshot above, the computer is connected to the internet with a cable; wireless connection icons often look like a fan or a bar chart.
 - Sound. Clicking on the sound icon in the system tray allows you to change the volume or mute your computer.
 - Date/time.
 - Notification center. When your computer needs updates or has security notifications, those messages can be accessed here.
 - *Show desktop*. At the very far right side of the taskbar is a thin line. Clicking the sliver of the taskbar between that line and the edge of your screen will minimize all programs. Hovering the mouse over that sliver of screen will allow you to "peek" at the desktop.

Note that Macs do not have a taskbar, but they do have a similar feature called the Dock.

Working with Multiple Windows: Taskbar

The taskbar can be very useful for multitasking. By clicking between the icons of two open windows on the taskbar, you can work in two different documents or programs at once. Move your mouse over an icon to have a preview of the other window, then click on it to switch.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Managing Windows. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.10: Managing Windows is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.


1.11: Keyboard Shortcuts

Learning Objectives

• Use keyboard shortcuts to perform tasks

A keyboard shortcut is a series of keys you can press to complete a computer command. As a common convention, keys that are meant to be pressed at the same time are joined by a + in written text. For example, Ctrl+S means you should press the Ctrl and S keys at the same time.

There are many, *many* keyboard shortcuts. However, you will probably only need to use a few. We will use many of these shortcuts throughout the course.

Most Commonly Used Shortcuts

These are a few of the most common shortcuts that you'll use as you navigate your computer. There are both Windows and Mac shortcuts listed. Note that Ctrl stands for the control key, and Cmnd stands for the command key.

| | Table 1. Common | Keyboard Shortcuts | |
|-------------------------|------------------|--------------------|--|
| Command | Windows Shortcut | Mac Shortcut | Explanation |
| Cut | Ctrl+X | Cmnd+X | Copies and removes an item or text; used with Paste |
| Сору | Ctrl+C | Cmnd+C | Copies an item or text; used with Paste |
| Paste | Ctrl+V | Cmnd+V | Inserts the last cut or copied item or text |
| Select All | Ctrl+A | Cmnd+A | Selects all text or items |
| Undo | Ctrl+Z | Cmnd+Z | Undoes the last action |
| Redo | Ctrl+Y | Cmnd+Y | Redoes the last thing undone |
| Task Manager/Force Quit | Ctrl+Alt+Delete | Cmnd+Opt+Esc | Opens Task Manager (see note) |
| Close window | Alt+F4 | Cmnd+W | Closes window; (in Windows, this command shuts down computer if all windows are closed) |
| New | Ctrl+N | Cmnd+N | Opens a new window, tab, or document |
| Open | Ctrl+O | Cmnd+O | Opens a file or document |
| Save | Ctrl+S | Cmnd+S | Saves a file |
| Find | Ctrl+F | Cmnd+F | Opens search tools; in most programs, opens a search box to find specific words on a page |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18546



Note: Cut vs. Copy



Cutting and copying can be used on files, folders, and text. Both are followed by the Paste command. So what's the difference between cutting and copying?

The **cut** command removes the selected data from its original position, while the **copy** command creates a duplicate; in both cases the selected data is kept in a temporary storage tool called the **clipboard**. The data in the clipboard is later inserted in the position where the **paste** command is issued. The data is available to any application supporting the feature, thus allowing easy data transfer between applications.

Think of using scissors to cut out a line of text on a printed sheet of paper and pasting it onto another sheet of paper. The line is no longer part of the original piece of paper when you cut it out. Now think of using a copy machine to copy the sheet of paper. The line of text is still on the original sheet of paper.

Note: Task Manager/Force Quit

Task Manager/Force Quit (**Ctrl+Alt+Delete** or **Command+Option+Esc**) is a useful tool for terminating crashed programs or shutting down a frozen computer. Task Manager interrupts whatever your computer is doing and allows you to shut down your computer or access the Task Manager. The Task Manager shows every program currently being used and allows you to close unresponsive programs or background tasks.

| | | | 😰 Task Manager | – 🗆 × | |
|-------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------------|--|-------------------|--------------|
| | | | Calculator.exe | | |
| | | | C Microsoft Edge | | |
| | | | Microsoft Word (32 bit) | | |
| | Lock Switch user | | 😪 Snipping Tool | | |
| | Sign out | | | | |
| | Change a password Task Manager | | | | |
| | Cancel | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | ₽ & O | | | | |
| The Windows | s 10 Ctrl+Alt+Delete sc | reen. (Click the image to | | | |
| enlarge.) | | | ⊘ More details | End task | |
| | | | Windows 10 Task Manager. T program then click End task. | o close a program | , select the |



Overview of Keys

Below is a diagram of the keyboard with some keys labeled. Do not be worried if your keyboard does not match the diagram or does not have exactly the same keys.



Control Key

The **control key**, or Ctrl key, is essential to many common shortcuts. It does not do anything when pressed by itself, but when pressed at the same time as other keys, it can modify the other key's function.

Note: The Command Key

If you're using a computer with Mac OS, you'll most likely have a Command (Cmnd) key instead of a Ctrl key. In most keyboard shortcuts, command will replace Ctrl (for example, on a Windows machine **Ctrl+C** copies, and on a Mac machine, Cmnd+C copies).

There is also a control key on some Mac machines, but its function is entirely different. For now, you won't need to worry about it.

Alt Key

The **alt key**, or alternate key, triggers an alternate use for keys. For example, many special characters (characters not commonly found on the keyboard, such as ¿ or ¢) are available when pressing Alt and the right series of numbers. Like the control key, the alt key is also essential to many common shortcuts.

Note: The Option Key

If you're using a computer with Mac OS, you'll most likely have an Option (Opt) key instead of a Alt key. In some keyboard shortcuts, Opt will replace Alt, but the two are less directly related.

Windows Key

The **Windows key** (also known as Win key, start key, or home) causes the start menu to open. The logo may vary slightly from the design in the diagram above. If the Windows key is missing, Ctrl+Esc can serve the same function.

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$



| This logo was | |
|-----------------|-----------------|
| used from 2012 | This logo was |
| to the present. | used 2002–2012. |

Menu Key

The **menu key**, or application key, is usually represented by a small icon depicting a pointer hovering above a menu. It is typically found on the right side of the keyboard between the right Windows logo key and the right control key (or between the right alt key and the right control key). The menu key is frequently omitted in the interest of space, particularly on portable and laptop keyboards. The key's primary function is to launch a context menu with the keyboard rather than with the usual right-mouse button. It can be used when the right-mouse button is not present on a mouse.

Escape Key

The **escape key**, or Esc, is at the top-left corner of the keyboard. It can be used as a shortcut in dialog boxes to close programs.

Print Screen Key

The **print screen key**, or **Prt Sc** key, is used for taking screenshots. Pressing Prt Sc will take a snapshot of the entire screen, and pressing Prt Sc+Alt will take a snapshot of just the currently selected window. The default save location of screenshots taken is C:\Users\<user name>\Pictures\Screenshots.

Note: Print Screen on a Mac

If you're using a computer with Mac OS, you most likely won't have a print screen key. Instead, you can use one of the following shortcuts:

- Cmnd+Shift+3 will take a screenshot of your full screen
- Cmnd+Shift+4 will bring up a crosshair and let you drag to select a portion of your screen to screenshot

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18547

More Shortcuts (If You Really Want Them)

For a full list of Windows shortcuts, consult Microsoft's list of shortcuts.

For a full list of Mac shortcuts, consult Apple's list of shortcuts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Menu Key section. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Menu_key. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*
- Keyboard shortcut definition. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Keyboard_shortcut. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*
- Cut, copy, and paste. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Cut,_copy,_and_paste. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*
- Authored by: Becris. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/Becris/collection/activities/?i=975711. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- Copy. **Authored by**: Arthur Shlain. **Located at**: https://thenounproject.com/search/?q=copy&i=992654. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*
- Cut Paste. Authored by: Karthik Srinivas, IN. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/aathis/collection/random-collection-10/? i=789467. License: *CC BY: Attribution*





• Scissors. Authored by: Aleksandr Vector. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/Aleksandr_Vector/collection/scissors/? i=1013261. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

Public domain content

- Windows logo 2012. Authored by: Microsoft and Fry1989. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Windows_logo_-_2012.svg. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'
- Windows logo 2002u20132012. Authored by: Microsoft and Codename Lisa. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Windows_logo_-_2002%E2%80%932012_(Black).svg. License: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'

Lumen Learning authored content

• Keyboard. Authored by: Lumen Learning. Located at: pixabay.com/en/keyboard-layout-keys-computer-156077/. License: *CC BY: Attribution*. License Terms: Original image without modifications by OpenClipart-Vectors

1.11: Keyboard Shortcuts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.12: Introduction to Finding Programs and Files

What you'll learn to do: locate and manage files and folders.

As you use your computer to create and download files, it's easy to become buried in a sea of tiny icons with vague names. Just as it is important to organize papers so that you can find them later, it is important to organize your computer files by creating folders and putting files inside of them.



Failing to organizing your files makes it harder to find them later.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Finding Programs and Files. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.12: Introduction to Finding Programs and Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.13: Start Menu

Learning Objectives

• Navigate the Start menu to locate programs, files, and settings.

The Start menu provides access to every program installed on the computer. To open the Start menu, click the the Start menu button at the bottom-left corner of the screen or press the Windows key on the keyboard.



Frequently Used Programs

In Windows 7 and older operating systems, the most frequently used programs are listed in the left section of the Start menu, with the folder All Programs near the bottom-left corner. The All Programs folder leads to every program installed on the computer. Windows 10 does not have the All Programs folder, but instead lists all programs on the left section of the start menu, with the most used at the top.



Control Panel

The Start menu also provides access to Control Panel, a settings program that allows you to change the computer's settings. In Windows 7 and older, Control Panel is labeled Control Panel on the right section of the Start menu, while in Windows 10 it is represented by a gear icon on the left above the Start button.







The Start menu also provides a search text box or search button. Press the search button or type a word in the search box to search the computer for a program or file. (In Windows 10, the search box is not visible, but typing will trigger a search for what is being typed.)



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18548

Open a Program

Like dialog menus, the Start menu also can use the > shorthand in instructions for navigating. For example, in Windows 7, the snipping tool is at Start>All Programs>Accessories.





| | | | | Accessories | |
|---------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|
| | | | | Bluetooth File Transfer | |
| | | A Minute On Drive | | Calculator | user |
| Snipping Tool | | OpeDrive for Business | | Command Prompt | |
| | user | OneDrive for business | urar | Connect to a Network Projector | Documents |
| Getting Started | | Outlook 2016 | USCI | Connect to a Projector | |
| Connect to a Projector | Documents | PowerPoint 2016 | Documents | Getting Started | Pictures |
| 3 | | Publisher 2016 | | A Math Input Panel | |
| Calculator | Pictures | Skype for Business 2016 | Pictures | Netenad | Music |
| | Music | Sector Windows Anytime Upgrade | Music | Notepad | |
| Sticky Notes | | Windows DVD Maker | | Paint | Computer |
| | Computer | Windows Fax and Scan | Computer | Remote Desktop Connection | computer |
| Paint Paint | | Windows Media Player | | 🖅 Run 🧑 | Control Docul |
| VDC Viewer | Control Panel | Windows Update | Control Panel | 🗣 Snipping Tool 🛛 🔁 | Control Panel |
| APS Viewer | Devices and Brinters | Word 2016 | Devices and Drinkers | Cound Recorder | |
| Windows Fax and Scan | bevices and minters | A XPS Viewer | Devices and Printers | Sticky Notes | Devices and Printers |
| | Default Programs | Accessories 🛛 🔼 | Default Programs | Sync Center | |
| System Information | | Games | | Windows Evaluator | Default Programs |
| | Help and Support | Maintenance | Help and Support | | |
| Remote Desktop Connection | | Startup | | windows Mobility Center | Help and Support |
| | | | | WordPad | |
| All Programs | | Back | | Ease of Access | • |
| Search programs and files | Shut down | Search programs and files | Shut down | 4 Back | |
| | | | | | |
| 😰 🖉 📋 🖸 | | 👩 🖉 🚞 🔘 | | Search programs and files | Shut down 🕨 |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Shutting Down

You can also use the Start menu to turn your computer off. In Windows 7 and older, the power button is usually marked Shut Down near the right corner of the Start menu. In Windows 7, clicking the arrow to the right of the Shut Down button gives you additional options. In Windows 10, the power button is a power icon located on the left directly above the Start menu button. Clicking it will also provide additional options.



A Look at Some Shut Down Options

Not every shut down option is available on every version of Windows, but here are some common shut down options and what they mean.

- Switch user: Switch between user accounts.
- Log off: Logs you out of the computer. The computer is still on, but programs are closed and you must enter your password to use the computer again.
- Lock: Locks the computer. You will not be logged out, and programs will still be running, but you must enter your password to use the computer again.
- **Restart:** Logs you out of the computer, closes all programs, shuts down Windows, turns the computer off, then turns the computer back on and restarts Windows. You will have to enter your password to use the computer again.
- Shut down: Logs you out of the computer, closes all programs, shuts down Windows, and turns the computer off.
- Sleep: This is sort of like pausing the computer. The screen will go dark, and you will be unable to use the computer until you wake it up by shaking the mouse or pressing a key on the keyboard. The computer will appear to be off. However, what is actually happening is that the computer will go into a low-power state. It will still be on, and programs will still be running, but the computer will use considerably less power. This is useful because waking the computer from sleep is much quicker than waiting for the computer to turn on and boot up Windows. By default, shutting your laptop lid will put the computer to sleep, and reopening the lid will wake the computer up.

Note about Windows 8

Windows 8 has a Start screen rather than a Start menu because Windows 8 was designed primarily for tablets. You can find instructions on navigating the Windows 8 start screen here.

 \odot



Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Start Menu. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.13: Start Menu is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



1.14: Creating Files and Folders

Learning Objectives

Create files and folders.

File Explorer

In Windows, the primary way of interacting with files and folders is through the File Explorer application. (In older versions of Windows, this may be called Windows Explorer. In Macs, the equivalent would be Finder.)

There are a couple of ways to open File Explorer. The shortcut Win+E will open File Explorer. It can also be opened by clicking the Start button and typing "File Explorer" or by right-clicking any folder and selecting Open. By default, File Explorer is pinned to the task bar (see below), and it can be opened from there.



Some folders already exist in File Explorer, such as Documents, Desktop, and Downloads. (Documents may be called "My Documents" in older versions of Windows). You can create more folders or folders within folders to allow for better organization.

To create a folder, right-click, then select New>Folder.



Right-click in File Explorer, then select New>Folder.

In Windows 7, there is a New folder button near the top of the window. In Windows 10, you can also click the Home tab, then the New Folder button.









Renaming Files

To rename a file or folder, right-click the file or folder, then select Rename.



You can also click the name of the file or folder once, wait one second, then click the name of the file or folder again.

Note that in Windows, a file cannot contain any of the following characters: $\langle \cdot \rangle$: *? " <> | . This is because those characters have special meaning in Windows. (For example \ is included in file paths.) If Windows encounters a file or folder with those symbols, it could potentially misread the file or folder name and cause problems. As a precaution, Windows will not let you save files or folders with those characters, so don't worry about saving a file with those characters in the name by mistake.

Macs are less stringent about what characters can be included in a file or folder's name; only the colon (:) cannot be used. However, it is a good practice to avoid using the Windows-prohibited characters in file names because the file name will be automatically changed when moved to a Windows computer.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18549

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- The messiest desk in the world. Authored by: Joseph Novak. Located at: https://www.flickr.com/photos/josephleenovak/4681249016/. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Matrioshka. Authored by: Nikita Kozin. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/matrioshka/330268/. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Matrioshka. Authored by: Nikita Kozin. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/kozinn/collection/welcome-to-russia/?i=330264. License: CC BY: Attribution

Lumen Learning authored content

• Creating Files and Folders. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.14: Creating Files and Folders is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.15: Organizing Files and Folders

Learning Objectives

• Organize files and folders.

Finding a Specific Folder or File: File Paths

When looking for a specific folder or file, it is helpful to follow the **file path**. The file path tells you what folders to click on to get to the file. Read it left to right to show what folders to click on to get to the file; read it right to left to show which folders are nested in each folder.

For example:

C:\Users\Sierra Rowan\Documents\Projects\suppliers

This file path means that the file is in the suppliers folder, which is in the Projects folder, which is in the Documents folder, which is in the Sierra Rowan username folder, which is in the Users folder, which is on the C drive of the computer.



Note that the backslash is another shorthand format you might see in instructions to indicate which folder is being discussed. (For example, "Go to the Documents\Office Templates folder")

Traveling the File Path

Rather than remembering the file path for a specific file, you can use the toolbar at the top of File Explorer or the Properties window.

Toolbar Method

For example, the screenshot below shows a folder in Windows 7 called New folder. The file path for this folder is C:\Users\user\Documents\New folder. In the screenshot below, the user could click Documents to go up one folder to the Documents folder, and the small double-arrow on the left to go up to higher folders such as user.



The screenshot shows a folder in Windows 7 called New folder. The file path for this folder is C:\Users\user\Documents\New folder. The user could click Documents to go up one folder to the Documents folder, and the small double-arrow on the left to go up to higher folders such as user.

Clicking the blank space to the right of the folder name will reveal the entire file path, which can be copied and pasted elsewhere.



| | \user\Documents\New folder | ✓ 4y Search New folder | |
|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------------------|----------|
| Organize 🔻 Share | with 🔻 New folde | 8== - | |
| ☆ Favorites ■ Desktop | Documents In ary | Arrange by: | Folder 🔻 |
| Downloads ConeDrive Recent Places | Name ^ | Date modified This Nider is empty. | Туре |
| 词 Libraries | | | |
| Documents | | | |
| J Music | | | |
| Pictures | | | |

Properties Method

Right-click the file or anywhere in the folder and select Properties. A window will pop up displaying the file path of the file or folder. (Note that it does not include New folder itself.)



https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18550

Selecting and Moving Files

There are several ways to move files:

- Click and drag the file into a folder.
- Click a file, cut using Ctrl+X, then paste into the new folder using Ctrl+V
- Click a file, copy using Ctrl+C, then paste into the new folder using Ctrl+V (leaves the original file where it is)
 - Note that the copies are not connected; edits made to one copy will not be reflected in the other copy.
- Right-click a file, select either Copy or Cut in the dialog menu, then right-click in the folder and select Paste.

Moving Multiple Files

There are a few different ways to select multiple files (which we'll discuss below). Once you've selected multiple files, anything you do to a single file will be done to all selected files. (For example, clicking and dragging will move all selected files, hitting Ctrl+C will copy all selected files, etc.)

You can select multiple files at once using the following shortcuts: Hold down Ctrl while clicking to select multiple files. Hold down Shift while clicking to select two files and all the files between them. Press Ctrl+A to select all files. (Note that when using Ctrl+A, you can use Ctrl+Click to deselect files. You'll want to deselect the destination folder, since a folder cannot be in itself.)



| | | | | | | 🗮 🕑 📙 🖵 Do | ocumer | nts | _ ' |
|---------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|--|---|---------|------------------------|------------------|
| | | | | | | File Home | Share | View | |
| | | | | | | \leftrightarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow |] > Th | is > Docum > マ さ | Search Documents |
| 🖹 🕑 📙 🖛 Doc | uments | - 🗆 X | 🖹 🕑 📴 🖛 Docume | nts | - 🗆 X | | | Name | Date modi |
| File Home S | ihare View | ~ 🙂 | File Home Shar | View | ~ 😧 | 📌 Quick access | | 📲 34 nellis | 5/9/2017 1 |
| ← → ~ ↑ 🖹 | > This > Docum > v ⊗ | Search Documents ,P | ← → * ↑ | nis > Docum > V Ö Se | erch Documents ,P | Desktop | * | 188 sales draft | 5/9/2017 1 |
| 🖈 Quick access | Name | Date modified | 🖈 Quick access | Name ^ | Date modified | Downloads | * | april sales numbers | 5/9/2017 1 |
| Desktop | A B new-veg | 5/9/2017 11:43 AM | Desktop 🖈 | 0 draft | 5/9/2017 11:54 AM | Documents | * | 💼 Big MT | 5/9/2017 1 |
| Downloads | Presentation1 | 3/7/2017 3:07 PM 5/9/2017 11:56 AM | Downloads | hoover final house draft | 5/9/2017 11:59 AM 5/9/2017 11:47 AM | Pictures | | Book1 | 5/9/2017 1 |
| E Pictures | 🖈 🔛 primm order | 4/21/2017 11:23 AM | Pictures 📌 | img_344592018593480013 | 4/20/2017 11:21 AM | | <i></i> | Book2 | 5/9/2017 1 |
| 🗠 OneDrive | test | 4/24/2017 2:29 PM | 🗠 OneDrive | incoming shipments | 5/9/2017 3:35 PM | Projects | R | Book3 | 5/9/2017 1 |
| This PC | 📕 tops & o | 5/1/2017 10:31 AM | This PC | i july forecast | 5/9/2017 11:43 AM | ConeDrive | | Courier potes | 5/9/2017 1 |
| - Network | tuesday numbers | 4/21/2017 10:48 AM | A Natural | khan project | 5/9/2017 11:42 AM | a OneDrive | | Courier notes | 5/5/2017 1 |
| - Manual | untitled | 5/9/2017 11:56 AM | - Herrore | Merchandising | 5/9/2017 11:57 AM | T T : D | | 🚛 Doc1 | 5/9/2017 1 |
| | 0 untitled | 5/9/2017 11:52 AM | | initial missing shipment notes | 5/9/2017 11:43 AM | This PC | | draft goodsprings | 5/9/2017 1 |
| | untitled2 | 5/9/2017 11:49 AM | | ncr supplies | 5/9/2017 11:47 AM | | | Substances | 5/0/2017 1 |
| | westside co-op | 5/9/2017 11:52 AM | | an new-veg | 5/9/2017 11:43 AM | Network | | a july forecast | 3/9/2017 1 |
| | e wgs | 5/1/2017 10:31 AM | | Presentation1 | 5/9/2017 11:56 AM | | | 📫 khan project | 5/9/2017 1 |
| | < Projects | 5/22/2017 4:13 PM | | (iii) primm order | 4/21/2017 11:23 AM | | | Merchandising | 5/9/2017 1 |
| 40 items 5 items se | lected 190 KB | ():: W | 35 items 6 items selecte | d 403 KB | (11) H | | | | 5/5/20171 |
| | | | | | | | | mick ralph supply | 5/9/20171 |
| Ctrl+Cli | ck | | Click+Sh | ift+Click | | | | missing shipment notes | 5/9/2017 1 |
| | | | | | | | | ncr supplies | 5/9/2017 1 |
| | | | | | | | | < | |
| | | | | | | 20 it | | | |
| | | | | | | 29 items 29 items | select | ea | |
| | | | | | | Ctrl+A | | | |

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Organizing Files and Folders. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Matrioshka. Authored by: Nikita Kozin. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/matrioshka/330268/. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Matrioshka. Authored by: Nikita Kozin. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/kozinn/collection/welcome-to-russia/?i=330264. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

1.15: Organizing Files and Folders is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.16: Deleting Files and Folders

Learning Outcomes

• Delete and restore files and folders using the Recycle Bin.

To delete a file or folder (or multiple selected files), right-click on the file and select Delete. You can also select the file and hit the Delete key on the keyboard. Deleting a folder deletes all its contents as well.

| 📙 🛃 📑 🖛 suppliers | | | | | - | × |
|--|--|---|--|---|---------------------------------|-----|
| File Home Share | View | | | | | ~ 🕐 |
| $\leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow $ err | ojects > suppliers | ~ | Ō | Search supp | liers | P |
| Quick access Desktop Downloads Documents Projects suppliers OneDrive This PC Network 4 items 1 item selected | Name Big MT incoming shipme primm order sloan Kalana Sloan | | Open New Print Scan v Open Share 1 Restor Cut Cut Copy Create Renam Proper | vith Windows with with e previous ve o : shortcut : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : | Date mo 5/9/2017 Defender | |

You may get a dialog prompt that asks if you want to move the file to the recycling bin. If that happens, say yes. If you didn't get a dialog prompt, the file was still sent to the Recycle Bin. (The Mac equivalent is called Trash.) **Deleted files are not gone forever**; they are sent to the Recycle Bin.

Recycling Bin



An empty and occupied Recycle Bin

Deleted files are not gone forever. When a file is deleted, it is sent to the Recycle Bin. The Recycle Bin can be found on the Desktop. Its icon resembles a recycle bin or trash can, and the icon changes depending on whether the Recycle Bin contains any files.

The recycle bin is a holding place for deleted files. To permanently delete a file, you can delete it again from the Recycle Bin, or you can empty the Recycle Bin. It is recommended you empty the Recycle Bin every once in a while to free up space.

If you delete something by accident, or if you change your mind about a deleted file, you can un-delete it by restoring the file from the Recycle Bin.

To restore or permanently delete a file, right-click on the file and select either Restore or Delete. Deleted files are permanently deleted; restored files are restored to their original location before being deleted.



| 📓 🛃 🔚 🗢 Recycle Bin | Recycle Bin Tools | - 🗆 | \times |
|--|--|--------------------|----------|
| File Home Share View | Manage | | ~ 🕐 |
| \leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \Uparrow 🚺 \rightarrow Recycle Bin | ٽ ~ | Search Recycle Bin | P |
| A Quick access | incoming shipments Microsoft Excel Worksheet 7.65 KB | Restore | 1 |
| Downloads | untitled2 Microsoft Word Document 11.4 KB | Cut Delete | |
| 📰 Pictures 🖈 | | Properties | |
| Grafts | | | |
| 2 items 1 item selected 7.65 KB | | I | : 📧 |

Right-clicking a file

You can restore or permanently delete individual files or multiple files at once using the Manage option on the toolbar.



In the toolbar in the screenshot above, from left to right:

- Empty Recycle Bin: Permanently deletes everything in the Recycle Bin.
- **Recycle Bin properties:** Allows you to choose how much space to allot to the Recycle Bin. When the Recycle Bin reaches capacity, it will automatically delete its oldest files. The Recycle Bin properties also has an option to automatically delete files permanently. (Unless you know what you are doing, it is recommended you leave Recycle Bin properties alone.)
- Restore all items: Restores everything in the Recycle Bin to its former location.
- Restore the selected items: Restores only the file or files you have selected.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18551

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Deleting Files. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.16: Deleting Files and Folders is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



1.17: Introduction to File Management

What you'll learn to do: Discuss proper file and folder management techniques in a variety of environments

Now that we've discussed the basics of file management, let's dive into the unique needs and strategies for local files, network files, and online files.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to File Management. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

1.17: Introduction to File Management is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.18: Local Files

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss proper file management techniques for local files

File management includes folder structures and naming conventions, plus the choice of appropriate formats. Before we begin our discussion, take a moment to think about how you name files that you create.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18552

With regards to folder structures, a good way to go about organizing your data is to create a hierarchy of folders. As an example, you could use a folder for each project, with two subfolders:

- "Data," to store your research data, including images, databases, media, etc.
- "Documentation," to store all relevant project documents, including, e.g. methodology and consent forms.

The more complex the project, the more detailed your folder structure can be. If you are working alone or in a small team, you might wish to use just a handful of subfolders. However, if you work on a large project you could create a range of subfolders to suit the team's needs. As an example, under "Data," you might create a subfolder for each data type, such as "Databases," "Images," and "Sounds." Similarly, under "Documentation" you might create a subfolder for each category of document, such as "Methodology," "Consent forms," and "Information sheets."

When it comes to file naming, we recommend using simple but meaningful names. Best practice includes the following:

- Capital letters should be used to delimit words in the place of spaces or underscores
- File names and paths should avoid unnecessary repetition and redundancy
- Numbers should always include at least two digits (i.e. 01 to 09 instead of 1 to 9)

Naming will follow a convention chosen by you and other project members. For instance, you may decide that "InterviewTra07JD20180214" means "Interview Transcript 7, written by John Doe, on 14/02/2018." You will need to describe such conventions as part of your study metadata.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18553

Finally, choosing appropriate file formats is key to ensuring data is reusable, as some formats become obsolete in time and may make your research inaccessible. You can use whatever software or format is convenient during your work, but when sharing the data you should follow best practice and ensure future reusability of your work. The US Library of Congress maintains a recommended formats statement, which we invite you to consult. This lists a series of file formats in order of preference by output type, including recommended metadata fields.

When saving data for sharing, you might need to convert your working files. If you do so, always ensure that the conversion was successful and that no errors appear (e.g. missing values, wrong characters, text formatting, resolution, etc.).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Local Files. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Practice Questions. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• File management and formats. **Provided by**: Research Data Management Toolkit. **Located at**: https://rdmtoolkit.jisc.ac.uk/collect-and-capture/file-management-and-formats/. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

1.18: Local Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.19: Network Files

Learning Objectives

• Discuss proper file management techniques for network files

There is a saying about file management storage that goes "lots of copies keeps stuff safe." The idea behind the principle is that even if your main storage system fails, you still have access to your data.

If you have very important data, you may want to keep many copies, but most people should follow the 3-2-1 Rule and keep three copies of their files. This rule states that you should have 3 copies of your data in 2 locations on more than 1 type of storage media.

The offsite copy is particularly critical. Many people keep their data and a backup copy on-site, but this doesn't factor in scenarios where the building floods or burns down (as can happen in a chemistry building) or a natural disaster occurs. Storing a copy of your data off-site can make the recovery process easier if everything local is lost.

While the 3-2-1 Rule mainly concerns redundancy, it's also a recommendation for variety in that data should not all be stored on one type of hardware. Computer hard drives fail, cloud storage can be disrupted, and CDs will go bad over time; each storage type has its own strengths and weakness so using several types of storage spreads your risk around. So if the first copy your data is on your computer, look for other options for your backups like external hard drives, cloud storage, local server, CDs/DVDs, tape backup, etc. Finally, always keep a local copy of your data if its main storage is in the cloud. Accidents happen, even with well-run cloud storage, so it's always best to have a copy of your data in your direct control, just in case.

Here's an example of following the 3-2-1 Rule using resources a research has locally available:

- a copy on my computer (onsite)
- a copy backed up weekly to the office shared drive (onsite)
- a copy backed up automatically to the cloud

The 3-2-1 Rule is simply an interpretation of the old expression, 'don't put all of your eggs in one basket.' This applies not only to the number of copies of your data but also the technology upon which they are stored. With a little bit of planning, it is very easy to ensure that your data are backed up in way that dramatically reduces the risk of total loss.

Backups

Part of following the 3-2-1 Rule means having backups in place. When looking for good backup options, consider the following:

- Any backup is better than none
- Automatic backup is better than manual
- Your work is only as safe as your backup plan
- Check your backups periodically

You should check your backups for two reasons. First, you need to know that they are working properly. A backup that is not working is not a backup at all. You should test your backups once or twice a year and any time you make changes to your backup system. If your data are particularly complex to back up or particularly valuable, considering testing your backups more frequently.

The second reason to test your backups is to know how to restore from backup. You don't want to be learning how to restore from backup when you're already in a panic over losing the main copy of your data. Knowing how to restore from backup ahead of time will make the data recovery process go much more smoothly.

It's a small thing to periodically test restore from backup, but it will give you peace of mind that your data are being properly backed up and that you will be able to recover everything if something happens to your main copy.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18554

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Network Files. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



• Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Rule of 3. Authored by: Kristin Briney. Provided by: Data Ab Initio. Located at: http://dataabinitio.com/?p=320. License: CC BY: Attribution
- 3 Data Management Best Practices. Authored by: Robert Belford, Kristin Briney, Ye Li, Leah McEwen. Provided by: LibreTexts. Located at: https://chem.libretexts.org/Courses/University_of_Arkansas_Little_Rock/ChemInformatics_(2015)%3A_Chem_4399%2F%2F

5399/Text/3_Data_Management_Best_Practices. License: CC BY-NC-SA: Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike

1.19: Network Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.20: Online Files

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss proper file management techniques for online files

When we talk about file management for online files, we are talking about **cloud technology**.

Cloud file sharing, also called cloud-based file sharing or online file sharing, is a system in which a user is allotted storage space on a server and reads and writes are carried out over the Internet.

Cloud storage involves stashing data on hardware in a remote physical location, which can be accessed from any device via the internet. Clients send files to a data server maintained by a cloud provider instead of (or as well as) storing it on their own hard drives.

To keep data secure, the front line of defense for any cloud system is encryption. Yes, the only way to keep your data safe for certain is to lock it up in a safe beneath the ground. That being said, your cloud-stored data is generally safer than your locally stored data.

There are several very good commercial cloud sharing services. File sharing services provide two key capabilities:

- They allow you to share files between your own devices including Macs, iPhones, iPads and Windows-based PCs. This makes it easy to access your data wherever you are and on whatever device you're using.
- They let you share files or folders with others sometimes with permissions or date-based restrictions. Such capabilities are incredibly effective for workgroup collaboration.

Numerous cloud-based file sharing services exist but the most popular are Box, Dropbox, Google Drive, iCloud Drive, and Microsoft's OneDrive. All offer free plans with limited amounts of storage.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18555

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Online Files. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Choosing a Cloud-Based File Sharing Service. **Authored by**: Michelle Charles. **Provided by**: Forget Computers. **Located at**: https://support.forgetcomputers.com/hc/en-us/articles/360027698932-Choosing-a-Cloud-Based-File-Sharing-Service. License: *CC BY-SA: Attribution-ShareAlike*

1.20: Online Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.21: Introduction to Snips and Screenshots

What you'll learn to do: take a screenshot.

A screenshot is a saved image of what is displayed on a computer screen. It is useful for showing others what is on your screen, and it is how you will submit some assignments in this course.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Snips and Screenshots. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.21: Introduction to Snips and Screenshots is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.22: Snips and Screenshots

Learning Objectives

• Take a screenshot.

You can take a **snip**, or a screenshot that is of only part of the screen, with the Snipping Tool, or you can take a screenshot of the entire screen with the Print Screen button.

Snipping Tool

In Windows 10, you can open the snipping tool by going to Start>Windows Accessories>Snipping Tool, or by opening the Start menu and typing "Snipping Tool." In Windows 7, you can open the snipping tool by going to Start>All Programs>Accessories>Snipping Tool. Older versions of Windows might have the snipping tool in a similar location; however they may not have the snipping tool at all, in which case the Print Screen button should be used to take screenshots.

| 육 Snippii | ng Tool | _ | |
|------------------------|---------------------|--------------------|-----------|
| 🧟 New | • 🕑 Delay 🔹 | • 🗙 <u>C</u> ancel | Options 0 |
| Select a sn button. | ip type from the me | enu or click the | New 🕡 |

The Windows 10 snipping tool

The snipping tool will open a small window with New, Cancel, and Options buttons. You can take rectangular, freeform, window, or full-screen snapshots. Windows 10's snipping tool also has a Delay button, which can be helpful for capturing menus or dialog boxes.

Take a Rectangular Screenshot with the Snipping Tool

Click New, then click and drag over the portion of the screen you want to screenshot. The snipping tool window will disappear as soon as you start clicking and dragging to take your screenshot. (If you hit New by mistake you can cancel the snip by clicking the cancel button before you click and drag.)

| rite nome sh | ire view | | | | | |
|----------------|--|--|---|--|---|---|
| | | | | | | |
| ← → × ↑ ★ י | Quick access | | | ~ Ö | Search Quick access | P |
| 📌 Quick access | ~ Freque | nt folde | rs (4) – | | | ^ |
| Desktop | e 👘 | Deskt | ор | _ | | |
| tepad | | - | | × | | |
| nat View Help | | | | | | |
| | | | | ~ | | |
| | | | | | | |
| reenshot. | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | ~ |
| | | | | | | 8: 📼 |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | \sim | | |
| | Cuick access Desktop zepad nat View Help reenshot. | the set of the s | top for the folder of the | the sector of the sector | Courte create Courter folders (4) Courter folders Courter folders (4) Courter folders (4) Courter fol | Constances C |

Once you've captured the screenshot, the snipping tool window will reappear with some new options available.



Save. Copy. Send to. Pen. Highlighter. Eraser.

- 1. **Save.** Saves the current screenshot. If you do not save the screenshot, it will be automatically deleted when you take a new screenshot or close the snipping tool.
- 2. Copy. Copies the current screenshot so you can paste it into an image editing program, like Paint, GIMP, or Photoshop.
- 3. **Send to.** Opens Microsoft Outlook so you can email the screenshot to someone. Clicking the dropdown arrow to the right of the button allows you to choose whether to send the screenshot in the email or as an attachment.





- 4. **Pen.** Allows you to draw on and mark the screenshot. Clicking the dropdown arrow to the right of the button allows you to change the color of the pen.
- 5. **Highlighter.** Allows you to highlight anything on the screenshot.
- 6. **Eraser.** Erases the effects of the pen and highlighter tools. (Note that Ctrl+Z does not work on the pen or highlighter tool; you must use the eraser to correct mistakes.)

Don't forget to save your screenshot!

Other Screenshots with the Snipping Tool

By default, the snipping tool is set to take rectangular screenshots. You can change this by clicking the dropdown arrow to the right of the New button and choosing between free-form, rectangular, window, and full-screen snips.



Timed Screenshots with the Snipping Tool

Some things, such as dialog menus, are hard to take a screenshot of. Timed screenshots are especially useful for taking screenshots of these dialog menus or other click-triggered items, since the delay gives you enough time to open those items.



To take a timed screenshot, click the arrow to the right of the Delay button, then select how many seconds you want the snipping tool to wait before taking the screenshot. The default setting is 0.

After setting the number of seconds to delay, click New to start the timer. For example, if you selected a 5-second delay, once you click the New button you have five seconds to get your screen ready for a screenshot. At the five-second mark, the screen will freeze in place and the snipping tool will reappear. You can then take a screenshot using whichever shape (free-form, rectangular, window, full-screen) you previously selected with the New dropdown menu.

Getting the timing right can be tricky, but don't worry—you can always try again by taking a new screenshot. Only the screenshots you save using the Save button are kept.





Taking a delayed screenshot

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18556

NOTE

If you are running Windows 8 or older and do not have the Delay button, you can still take a screenshot of dialog menus or click-triggered items with the Print Screen button.

Print Screen

As previously mentioned in Keyboard Shortcuts, another way to take a screenshot is to use the Print Screen button (Prt Scn). Pressing just the Print Screen button will take a picture of everything visible on your computer screen; Pressing Prt Scn+Alt will take a picture of the currently active window (the window you last interacted with). Screenshots taken with the print screen button must be pasted (with Ctrl+V) into an image editing software such as Paint, GIMP, or Photoshop.

Screenshots on a Mac

On Mac computers, pushing Command+Shift+3 will take a full-screen screenshot. Pushing Command+Shift+4 then clicking and dragging will create a rectangular screenshot. Hitting Command+Shift+4+Space and then clicking a window will create a window screenshot. Mac users can also use the Grab tool, found in the Applications/Utilities folder. By default, Mac screenshots are saved to the desktop.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Snips and Screenshots. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.22: Snips and Screenshots is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.23: Putting It Together- Intro to Computers

Now that you know some of the basic terminology and have some basic organization principles down, you are one step closer to computer literacy. In the rest of this course, you learn about the internet and some essential software programs commonly used in business.

Remember if you get stuck or can't remember how to do something from this module, you can always come back and review.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Putting It Together: Intro to Computers. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.23: Putting It Together- Intro to Computers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.24: Assignment- Download Files

At the end of this course, you will submit a capstone assignment that will use everything you have learned and involve creating several documents.

For this portion of the assignment, you will download the files you will use in your final assignment.

Instructions

- 1. Create a folder on your desktop called Rowan. This is where you will save all of your assignments. To keep your computer better organized, you may want to move previous assignments into this folder.
- 2. Download this Word template. Save the file in the Rowan folder.
- 3. Download this Excel workbook. Save the file in the Rowan folder.
- 4. Download this PowerPoint presentation. Save the file in the Rowan folder.
- 5. Take a screenshot of the three files in the Rowan folder on your desktop. Save the snip as **BA132_LastName_RecycleBin.png**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_RecycleBin.png)

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Capstone Assignment: Download Templates. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.24: Assignment- Download Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.25: Assignment- Identify Your OS

For this assignment, you will take and save a screenshot of the window that identifies your operating system. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

Instructions

- 1. Open the window that identifies your operating system using any of the methods discussed on the Identifying Your OS page.
- 2. Open the Snipping tool by using one of the methods discussed in the Snips and Screenshots page.
- 3. Take a rectangular or a window snip of the window displaying your operating system.
- 4. Save the snip as **BA132_LastName_OperatingSystem.png**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_OperatingSystem.png)
- 5. Submit your image in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Assignment: Identify Your OS. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.25: Assignment- Identify Your OS is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





1.26: Assignment- Empty the Recycle Bin

For this assignment, you will empty your Recycle Bin. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

If you have a Mac, substitute "Trash" for "Recycle Bin" in the instructions (except for naming your screenshot).

Instructions

- 1. Open the Recycle Bin (or equivalent) by double-clicking the icon on the desktop (or using any other method discussed in the Deleting Files section of Organizing Files and Folders).
- 2. Check the Recycle Bin to see if there are any files you wish to keep. If so, restore those files.
- 3. Empty the Recycle Bin using the methods discussed in Organizing Files and Folders.
- 4. Open the Snipping tool by using one of the methods discussed in the Snips and Screenshots page.
- 5. Take a rectangular or a window snip of the Recycle Bin window.
- 6. Save the snip as **BA132_LastName_RecycleBin.png**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_RecycleBin.png)
- 7. Submit your image in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

- CC licensed content, Shared previously
- Assignment: Empty the Recycle Bin. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

1.26: Assignment- Empty the Recycle Bin is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



1.27: Discussion- Computers vs. Smartphones

Many tasks that used to be accomplished by using a desktop or laptop computer are now possible to do on smartphones. The newest smartphone models for example, have the computing power of workstations from a few years ago. Although smartphones are getting faster, smarter and are increasing number of useful applications, many businesses are slow to utilize these new features. Let's explore some of the pros and cons of using a smartphone as the main productive technology source.

Watch this video about a student's experiment from 2018 to use his smartphone exclusively for five days as his computer. After watching the video consider a few questions to discuss.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view the transcript for the video "I Tried Making a Phone My Only Computer" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Are there good reasons for businesses to still use computers to accomplish tasks instead of smartphones? What are they?
- Do you think the future office environment will eliminate computers use in favor of smartphones?
- What skills from using smartphones can be transferred to a work environment?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Computers vs. Smartphones. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

All rights reserved content

• I Tried Making a Phone My Only Computer -- Experiments Ep. 3. Authored by: Ho Young Won. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XE-t30Zo7q4. License: *All Rights Reserved*. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

1.27: Discussion- Computers vs. Smartphones is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

2: Internet Research

Learning Objectives

- Access and navigate the internet
- Discuss the importance and qualities of ethical business research
- Perform basic web searches
- Narrow a search to find more useful results
- 2.1: Why It Matters- Internet Research
- 2.2: Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet
- 2.3: Internet Browsers
- 2.4: Basic Browser Tools
- 2.5: Introduction to Ethical Business Research
- 2.6: Ethical Research
- 2.7: Data and Customer Rights
- 2.8: Introduction to Basic Searches
- 2.9: Web Searching
- 2.10: Identifying Search Results
- 2.11: Opening Search Results
- 2.12: Introduction to Advanced Searches
- 2.13: Adjusting Search Parameters
- 2.14: Image Searches
- 2.15: Putting It Together- Internet Research
- 2.16: Assignment- Search the Internet
- 2.17: Discussion- Search Results
- 2.18: Discussion- Personal Data and Ethical Business Use

2: Internet Research is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.1: Why It Matters- Internet Research

Why learn how to run an internet search?

In today's world, businesses depend heavily on computer technology and its connection to the World Wide Web to access vast amounts of information, to conduct research, and to communicate quickly with other business and customers. Understanding how to access and use that information is vital to both small and large business.

Managers frequently create reports and presentations to communicate company and competitive landscape information to a variety of audiences. The ability to understand web browsers and to effectively search for needed data, images, articles, and other information has become a critical skill to have in the global business world of today.

This module focuses on the basic skills needed to conduct meaningful and useful searches with the internet for business. The lessons to learn in this module include:

- Identifying and understanding web browser basics.
- Conducting searches in the web.
- Searching for images.
- Understanding a variety of tools to modify and narrow searches.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Internet Research. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

2.1: Why It Matters- Internet Research is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.2: Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet

What you'll learn to do: access and navigate the internet.

The ability to identify and operate a web browser is a crucial skill in today's business environment. In addition to browser identification, a basic understanding of general browser navigation assist you in searches, presentations, and beyond. While different browsers have different features, there are a lot of similarities among them.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

2.2: Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.3: Internet Browsers

Learning Objectives

• Identify three main browsers used to access the internet.

A web browser (commonly referred to as a browser) is a software application for retrieving, presenting, and traversing information resources on the World Wide Web (also known as the internet or the Net). The most popular web browsers are Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge (formerly Internet Explorer), Mozilla Firefox, and Apple's Safari. If you have a Windows computer, Microsoft Edge (or its older counterpart, Internet Explorer) are already installed on your computer. If you are running an Apple computer, you already have Safari installed on your computer. You may also have other browsers installed on your computer. If the browser you want to use is not installed on your computer, download links for Chrome and Firefox are in their respective sections below.

This course will focus first on the three primary browsers (Chrome, Firefox, and Edge) and then walk through a set of tools and skills which can be used in any browser.

Identifying Browsers

There are three primary browsers that are used to access the internet that you need to be able to identify and use. Each of these browsers is made by a separate company, and has a different look, but there are many tools and shortcuts that can generally be used on any of the browsers.

Microsoft Edge

You have most likely heard the name of one or more of these browsers, but let's first identify the Microsoft Edge browser.



Unlike other browsers, which must be downloaded, Microsoft Edge (or Internet Explorer) comes with Windows. That means if you have a Windows computer, Edge (or Explorer) is already on your computer. The Edge icon on a Windows 10 computer system can be found either on the bottom taskbar or along the side. Click on the icon with the mouse and it will open the browser. The icon might be in slightly different places on your desktop, but look for the icon and double click on it to open the browser. Regardless of which version of Windows you have, you can also open the browser from the start menu. Select the start button, and when you see the icon for Edge, select it and it will open.







After clicking with the mouse on the Edge icon, a window will open up and will look like this window if new (#1), or may have a news page displayed (#2), or it will open to the business default page that has already been established by the company's Information Technology (IT) department.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18557

Google Chrome



One of the most popular web browsers is Google Chrome (often simply referred to as Chrome). This icon is associated with the Chrome browser. This browser will be used as an example in this course in order to learn basic browser navigation skills and perform the other assignments and tasks associated with this module.

If Chrome is on your computer, the Chrome browser icon can be found on the Windows 10 desktop in the bottom task bar or along the side. Regardless of which version of Windows you have, you can also open the browser from the start menu. Select the start button and type in *Chrome*. If the Chrome browser is on your computer, it will be displayed in the menu, where you can now see the icon and select it to open.

If you wish to use this browser but do not have it on your computer, it can be downloaded and added by going to this website https://www.google.com/chrome/ and selecting the *Download* option from the top menu.






After clicking on the Chrome icon, a window will open up and look like this window, or it will open to the business default page that has already been established by the company's IT department. You may already notice that some of the features have similarities between the browser windows. Now to the final browser identification.



Mozilla Firefox



Mozilla Firefox (often simply referred to as Firefox) is a browser created by the company Mozilla and is another browser frequently used to "surf" or search the World Wide Web. This is the icon associated with the Firefox browser.

If Firefox is on your computer, the Firefox icon on your Windows 10 computer system can be found either on the bottom taskbar or along the side. The icon might be in slightly different places on your desktop, but look for the icon and click on it to open the browser. Just like the other two browsers, it may also be opened in the Start menu box by typing *Firefox*, then selecting the option to open it.

If you wish to use this browser but do not have it on your computer, you can open a browser that you do have and use this address to download the Firefox browser https://www.mozilla.org/en-US/firefox/ onto your computer.







After clicking on the Firefox icon, a window will open and look similar to this window, or will be on a default page that has been set up by the company.

| Eile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew Higtory <u>B</u> ookmarks <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp | | | | х |
|---|-----------|-------|------------|----|
| G Google × + | | | | |
| 📀 🛈 🖨 https://www.google.com/webhp?hl=en&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwj330_7497UAhUU0mMKHct 🛛 🦉 🔍 Search | ☆ 自 | ÷ | ☆ ♡ | ≡ |
| Gma | il Images | | Sign in | |
| Google | | | | |
| Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky | | | | |
| Advertising Business About | Privacy | Terms | Settin | gs |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18558

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Internet Browsers. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Definition of web browser. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Web_browser. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*

Public domain content

- Mozilla Firefox logo. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Firefox. **License**: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*
- Microsoft Edge logo. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Microsoft_Edge. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright



Google Chrome logo. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Google_Chrome. **License**: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*

2.3: Internet Browsers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



2.4: Basic Browser Tools

- Learning Objectives
- Identify basic navigation tools used in a browser.

Now that you are familiar with what the three main browsers look like, where to locate them, and how to open them, it's time to learn a few of the basic tools to navigate and use a browser window. Even though we are the Chrome browser as an example to show these tools, they can be used in almost any browser.



- 1. Arrow Buttons. These two arrows navigate the browser back (the left arrow) to a previously viewed webpage or forward (the right arrow) to more currently viewed webpages. These buttons can be pushed more than once to cause the browser to go back or forward further to web pages rendered in a browser session's history.
- 2. Refresh Button. This button reloads a webpage. Refreshing will update the information on a webpage if it has changed. If a webpage has not completely loaded, refreshing will reload the page so that it completely renders on the screen.
- 3. New Tab Button. Opens a new page in the same window when selected. This option allows for many websites to be open but contained within one main window frame. This keeps the desktop from being cluttered with too many open windows.

| | 5 1 | | |
|--------------------|---|--------|----------|
| Computer Applicati | ans (x) [. Identifying Your Operation x] Common Terminology x G Google x | | |
| ← → C 🔒 Secu | re https://courses.lumenlearning.com/wm-compapp/chapter/identifying-your-operating-system-os/ | | ☆ : |
| L | Imen Computer Applications for Managers | | <u>~</u> |
| Mo | dule: Intro to Computers | Search | |
| Id | entifying Your Operating System (OS) | | |

- A browser with many tabs open will look to this.
- 4. Address Bar. This text field on a browser that identifies the webpage currently being viewed in a browser window. All address bars are located at the top of the browser window. A user can type in a new address to navigate to a new webpage. Each website on the internet is reached by a web address known as a URL (Uniform Resource Locator) that references a specific location on the internet. Type a URL into the address bar of a browser, then press the Enter (Return) key on the keyboard to make the browser load the webpage associated with the URL. As browsers have gotten more sophisticated, most do not require for http:// or even the www to be typed in order for the webpage to be discovered.
- 5. Resizing and Closing Buttons. As covered in Common Terminology, these buttons allow a user to change the size of a browser window.



a. Minimize Button. Represented by an underscore in the upper right corner of the window. When minimized, the browser will remain on the taskbar but not be visibly open on the desktop.



| b. Maximize Button. Represented by a square in the upper right corner of the window. When maximized, a browser window will enlarge a window, typically filling the entire computer screen | 1. |
|---|----|
| | |

| G Google | × | | | |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|-------------|---|
| $\leftrightarrow \ \ni \ {\tt G}$ | Secure https://www.google.com | | | ÷ |
| | | Gmail Images | Sign in | |

c. Close Browser Button. The button in the upper right corner which is an X will terminate a browser session. This button allows a user to quickly close a browser window when they are finished surf the internet. Note: If there are multiple tab windows open a browser it will usually ask if you want to close all of the tabs before shutting down the browser.

6. Menu Button. In Chrome, the menu is indicated by three vertical dots in the upper right corner of the browser window (Edge uses three horizontal dots; Firefox uses three stacked horizontal lines). Once the menu button is selected a dropdown menu will appear.



| | New tab C New window C New incognito window Ctrl+Sh | trl+T trl+N ft+N |
|------------------------------------|---|------------------------|
| | History Downloads (Bookmarks | trl+J |
| | Zoom - 100% + | 2 |
| Google | Print C Cest Find C More tools | trl+P trl+F |
| | Edit Cut Copy | Past |
| 1 | Settings Help | |
| Georgia Search I'm Fealling Lucing | Exit Ctrl+Sh | ft+Q |
| 2 | | |

Dropdown Menu. Once the menu button (#1) is clicked, it will display a dropdown menu (#2) with a variety of choices.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18559

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18560

Hyperlinks

A hyperlink (also called a link) is a section of text, an image, graphic or icon that is linked to a specific webpage, image, file or object. This is commonly seen in a browser as text, often a blue color. Once the link is selected, the webpage automatically navigates to the linked webpage, icon, image, graphic or file. This is one of the main tools used when conducting a search on the web.



https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18561

Bonus Tool

If you are ever asked by a support technician for the version of your browser, a quick way to discover your version is to go to this website http://www.whatsmybrowser.org/. It will tell you the browser type and additional information (like the operating system you are working with on your computer) so you know how your browser is configured.



Browsers and the World Wide Web

Now that you are more familiar with web browsers and their navigation, here is an explanation of the bigger picture about how they work. Watch this video to understand how browsers link you to the World Wide Web.









A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=106

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Browser Browser Tools. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• World Wide Web in Plain English. Authored by: Common Craft. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=It6tT2yxpsQ. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.4: Basic Browser Tools is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



2.5: Introduction to Ethical Business Research

What you'll learn to do: Discuss the importance and qualities of ethical business research

As our lives become more and more virtual, the amount of personal data we create dramatically increases. While this personal data can be an incredible tool for businesses, it's essential to remember that each data point is actually a person or a person's choice. When doing business research, you must do so in an ethical manner.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Ethical Business Research. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

2.5: Introduction to Ethical Business Research is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.6: Ethical Research

Learning Objectives

• Discuss the importance of ethical research

Today's advances in technology allow for collection of data, information and analysis of that information to depths and breadths like never before. As the technological world has changed, the business world has too. Business research and the ethical considerations in the collection, research and use of the results are now more important than ever. As the market calls for business to be conducted with more transparency and social responsibility, customers expect business research to be conducted ethically. This also means that if unethical research is used, technology makes it easier to discover and expose online which in turn diminishes social trust and may even decrease customer sales and retention for that business.

The world is now more connected than ever and even though a business may be in the United States, many customers or business partners may reside in countries all over the world. This increases the need to conduct ethical business research with this wider world connection in mind. Ethical research is one of the foundational components of business ethics to be aware of and to practice in order to create a competitive and sustainable business in today's world.

Ethical Research Principles

As a manager, part of your responsibility to a company and its employees is to ensure ethical research principles are understood and used when conducting research. It's important to know if those principles are clearly defined and stated within the company. If not, there are many resources to assist in defining ethical business research for you and your team.

Over time, various organizations have developed research principles as research guidelines for social, scientific, educational, and business research. Ethical research is important for fostering a trusting, relational connection between all parties connected with the research. So, what is the essence of these business research principles?

Ethical research principles include:

- Respect for Persons and Their Autonomy. A person's rights and decisions are respected.
- Beneficence and Nonmaleficence. Everyone involved is safe, considered and research ethically conducted.
- Fidelity and Integrity. Research is well designed, planned, process, outcomes, clear to everyone.
- Justice. Making sure the research is fair and inclusive.

Try It

Watch this video explaining the meaning of these principles. This video is regarding international development, but it is just as relevant for ethical business research.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Principles and Guidelines for Ethical Research and Evaluation in Development" here (opens in new window).

You still may be asking yourself why the need to conduct ethical business research? What is so important about following ethical standards? To answer those questions read through these next points and think through your own specific business scenario and how it benefits from conducting ethical business research.

It's important to follow ethical business research guidelines because they:

- Promote research to be truthful, inclusive, and minimize error or misrepresentation.
- Promote guiding standards of conduct for all people involved in the research.
- Promote accountability to businesses, customers, clients, and parties connected to the research.
- Promote public trust which can lead to public support of business.
- Promote compliance to laws, social responsibility, moral and ethical values, public health, etc.

What are ways to conduct ethical business research? Let's look at an example.



Example: Ethical Online Research

In today's world, billions of pieces of information are easily searched for online, but search engines do not determine what information is correct, useful, accurate, valuable, etc. Online searches return organized online data and information when search terms match the information, but search engines do not qualify that information. It is up to the researcher to validate and reference the source of the information being used.

How does a business researcher conduct ethical online research?

- Double checks information and sources used in business to account for its accuracy.
- Correctly attributes and sites data sources, reports, information, etc.
- Understands the copyright and fair use of images, content, audio, etc.
- · Avoids plagiarism and taking credit for someone else's ideas

With all of the information available on the internet, it is especially important for business to maintain their ethical standards and not rely on incorrect information or misuse another business or person's work without the correct siting or payment for using images, ideas, audio, etc.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18562

But what potentially happens to a business if ethical methods aren't used? Let's look briefly at a different example.

Non-Ethical Research Consequences

What if a business fostered an environment where its research was not conducted with guiding ethical standards? Can you think of a few examples? Here are a few ways businesses use unethical activities with research:

- misrepresent research results;
- break respondent confidentiality;
- violate non-disclosure agreements;
- avoid legal liability;
- plagiarism;
- manipulate research data or participants for favorable outcomes.

Example: Tobacco Research

One very public and famous example of research manipulation occurred over decades in tobacco and cigarette companies. Even though the scientific research proved smoking caused lung cancer and did harm to those who used it and people who were around it, tobacco companies' manipulated the research results and denied the scientific facts thus endangering people's health in the pursuit of profit. Now millions of dollars have be spent in lawsuits and the true results have been exposed to the public.

Additional consequences for unethical business research mean faster exposure and customer reaction happen now because of the rise of the internet, citizen reporters, whistleblower laws, and informed customers, when shady research practices are discovered.

Try It

Technology and strengthened whistleblower laws have made it safer for customers or employees to expose unethical practices when discovered. Check out this article about one such instance: Duke University Agrees To Pay U.S. \$112.5 Million To Settle False Claims Act Allegations Related To Scientific Research Misconduct.

The United States Department Of Labor also has a Whistleblower Protection Program, put in place to protect those who report.

As the world and business becomes more transparent, customers, clients and business partners can more easily find out if research has not been conducted ethically and the business backlash can be expensive and even cripple a company's revenue and public image. Yet one more reason it is important for a business to conduct its research ethically.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18563

Setting up ethical business research practices from the beginning and creating a company which adheres to those practices not only help a company to avoid social backlash for unethical practices, but continually foster customer trust and in turn can lead to better relations between business, customers and society.

Sources

Bryman, Alan, and Emma Bell. "Ethics in Business Research." In *Business Research Methods*, 3rd ed., 122–46. Oxford University Press, 2011.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Ethical Research. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.6: Ethical Research is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.7: Data and Customer Rights

Learning Objectives

• Discuss customer rights regarding their personal data

As more mobile devices, social media, applications and ecommerce websites weave themselves ever tighter into customer's lives, more information is collected, and personal information shared to improve the consumer experience. This deeper infiltration into people's privacy and lives raises concerns about privacy and the potential for data leaks, unauthorized use of data and even malicious cyberattacks all which increase the likelihood of identity theft.

With the ever-increasing risks involved as the economy and world move forward with technology, we'll ask three questions: What constitutes personal data when it comes to customers? What is the current state of customer rights with regards to personal data? What is being done to have more protection and customer rights in the future?

Personal Data

Personal data means any information that can identify an individual person or customer. Sometimes it is called personal information or personally identifiable information (PII). In the U.S. according to the National Institute of Standards and Technology, which is a part of the U.S. Department of Commerce, personal data has been defined as:

any information about an individual maintained by an agency, including (1) any information that can be used to distinguish or trace an individual's identity, such as name, social security number, date and place of birth, mother's maiden name, or biometric records; and (2) any other information that is linked or linkable to an individual, such as medical, educational, financial, and employment information.^[1]

Additional specific examples of PII include:

- Bank account numbers
- Passport numbers
- Credit Card numbers
- Driver's license number

This information also have the potential to be PPI because when combined they have the potential to disclose the identity of an individual.

- Full Name
- Home Address, City, State, Postcode, Country
- Telephone/Mobile number
- Age, birthdate, Gender or race
- Web cookies (cookies record actions taken on individual computers and repot back to cookie website)

As you can see, much of this type of information about individuals is disclosed daily when searching, shopping and working online. So, what kind of protections and rights do customers have when it comes to their own data? First, we'll look at the laws surrounding protection.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18564

Consumer Data Privacy Legislation and Laws

As of the start of 2020, there are no overreaching data specific federal law enacted in the U.S., but in 2018, legislation was enacted in a few U.S. states (California & Vermont) to give new rights to customers about the collection of their personal information. Those law are as follows:^[2]

• California's Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 went into effect Jan. 1, 2020 and has one of the most extensive online privacy laws in the U.S. which not only effects companies within the state's borders, but also with any company doing business with CA residents. These consumer rights include the right to:





- Know what personal information is being collected about them.
- Know whether their personal information is sold or disclosed and to whom.
- Say no to the sale of personal information.
- Access their personal information.
- Equal service and price, even if they exercise their privacy rights.
- Vermont's law which requires that data brokers disclose what data is being collected about individuals and allow them to opt out of data collection.

In 2019, some states introduced privacy and consumer data protection acts to the legislature and they are in various states of discussion. Those states included Maine, Nevada, Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, Hawaii, New York, and Maryland. It is important for a business to know the current laws surrounding consumer data protection as this is in constant flux and new laws may be passed in the future.

Try It

To read a comprehensive list of each state's legislation related to privacy and consumer data protection, follow this link to the National Conference of State Legislatures website.

European Union

Europe is taking the lead when it comes to consumer data privacy rights. In 2018, the E.U. enacted a more comprehensive consumer data privacy law called the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) law. The GDPR law clearly states how companies must protect personal data collected about E.U. citizens and extends its reach beyond the European boarders and encompasses any global business selling to or having EU customers. It also dictates the terms for violations of this law as fines that could cost 4 percent of a company's global profits. A steep penality that has companies taking this law very seriously. Watch this video to gain a more comprehensive understanding of GDPR.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "What is GDPR?" here (opens in new window).

What rights is the GDPR enforcing for E.U. customers and consumers? It requires that:

- Simple language be used to explain how collected data is going to be handled by a company.
- Customers must give explicit consent to a company before it can do anything with the data.
- Customers must be given the opportunity to request copies of data held by the company.
- Customers must be given the opportunity to delete their company stored data entirely.
- Companies must report data breaches to consumers within 72 hours.

This type of overarching data rights law is being considered around the world as to what does seem to work, and how can it be improved or modified to fit specific countries or states.

Future of Customer Data Rights

Could something like the GDPR work if enacted in the U.S.? Many would like to adopt these standards but there is a long road to travel to make this fit with the U.S. economy.

Try It

The US wants to copy Europe's strict data privacy law—but only some of it. This video walks through exploring the possibility of having GDPR go global and some of the difficulties involved with doing so.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18565

What is apparent for the future, is that customer data rights are an ever-evolving issue that will need to be updated and new laws considered as new technology emerges and the consumer landscape continues to evolve.





Try It

Understand more how your personal data is being used by businesses and what the future may look like when it comes to your own data by watching this 17-minute TEDxBermuda talk given in 2015.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "The Future of Your Personal Data" here (opens in new window).

- 1. McCallister, Erika, Grance, Tim, Scarfone, Karen. *Guide to Protecting the Confidentiality of Personal Identifiable Information* (*PII*). Special Publication 800–122. Gaithersbueg, MD: U.S. Department of Commerce, 2010. ←
- 2. Nicastro, Dom. "Examining Where 8 US States Stand on Consumer Data Privacy Laws." CMSWire.com, August 30, 2019.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Data and Customer Rights. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

- What is GDPR? Explained in 3 minutes. **Authored by**: Corporate Valley. **Located at**: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=GXIbbkNwBHA. License: *All Rights Reserved*. License Terms: Standard YouTube License
- The Future of Your Personal Data u2013 Privacy vs. Monetization. Authored by: Stuart Lacey. Provided by: TEDx. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JIo-V0beaBw. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

Public domain content

 An act to add Title 1.81.5 (commencing with section 1798.100) to Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, relating to privacy.
 Provided by: California Legislature Assembly Bill No. 375. Located at: https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB375. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright

2.7: Data and Customer Rights is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.8: Introduction to Basic Searches

What you'll learn to do: perform basic web searches.

Being able to conduct an effective web search can help you enhance your business presentations, class reports, or personal information gathering and problem-solving. The basic tools for search can be used on any web browser.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Basic Searches. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.8: Introduction to Basic Searches is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.9: Web Searching

Learning Objectives

• Perform a web search using two different search engines.

The most productive way to conduct a search on the internet is through a search engine. A web search engine is a software system designed to search for information on the World Wide Web. The search results are generally presented in a line of results often referred to as search engine results pages (SEROs). The information may be a mix of web pages, images, and other types of files. Some search engines also mine data available in databases or open directories.

There are a number of various search engines available and some of them may seem familiar to you. The top web search engines are Google, Bing, Yahoo, Ask.com, and AOL.com. For the purpose of this course, we will be searching using the Google Chrome web browser, and search first with the Google search engine and then Microsoft's Bing search engine.



Searching on Chrome

Your supervisor at Rowan Retail asked you to find out what the most popular kids toys are this year. He wants to have those toys stocked in the store for the upcoming holiday season. In order for you to find out that information, you turn on a computer and get ready to conduct a search on the internet.

The first step is to open a Chrome browser by clicking on the desktop icon or the icon on the computer desktop's taskbar. Once the browser window is open, type www.google.com into the address bar on the top of the browser window and press the Enter (or Return) key on the keyboard.



The browser now displays the large Google search bar. As you begin to enter the phrase *most popular toys of 2017* into the search bar, notice how the search bar moves to the top of the screen as the words are typed. This movement is normal; continue to type the phrase.





| G Google | × | | | -0-0 | RO-5- | 585- | O- | | e | | x |
|-------------|-----------------|------------|--------------|---------------|-------------------|------|-------|---------|-------|----------|---|
| ← ⇒ G | Secure https: | //www.goog | le.com | | | | @☆ | | | | : |
| | | | | | | | Gmail | Images | | Sign in | |
| | | | | Go | ogle | | | | | | |
| | | | most popular | oys 2017 | | Ļ | | | | | |
| | | | | Google Search | I'm Feeling Lucky | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Advertising | Business A | About | | | | | F | Privacy | Terms | Settings | |

As the words are typed, the search engine will display a dropdown list of suggested search options. At this point either continue typing the phrase or select the option of *most popular toys 2017*. Selecting a suggestion option is done in two ways; either by using the mouse to click on the desired option, or by using the down arrow key on the keyboard to select an option, then pushing the Enter (or Return) key.



The search is now entered and the webpage displays the results of your search. Notice how the results are displayed. Box #1 is the first page of the search results. Box #2 is an advertisement targeted to be relevant to the search. The search results in the list are titled by hyperlinks in a larger font and in a blue color. These links direct you to a website with information about the search. The advertisements on the right side are linked to something to buy. When conducting a search for information, the primary focus is on the list of search results, not the advertisements.





Read through the search results title and select the one most closely matching the information you are searching for to give your boss. Click on the results which seem most relevant to the search. Using these results, you can tell your boss what the top toys are for the season.



Microsoft Bing Search

Now search in a different search engine—Bing.

The general manager of the Rowen Retail asks you for ideas to improve the store's customer service experiences. She wants to be able to hear about customers' experiences in a timely manner and address any service issues that are discovered. She would also like to generate ideas for creating delightful experiences for the store customers. You decide to try searching for ideas on the Bing search engine, so you turn on a computer and get ready to conduct search on the internet.

The first step is to open a Chrome browser by clicking on the desktop icon or the icon on the computer desktop's taskbar. With the browser window now open, type www.bing.com in the browser's address bar and press the Enter (or Return) key. Notice that with Bing, the main web page is always a photograph or picture.







Now that the Bing search page is open, type in your key words, *retail customer service improvement*, into the search bar. You see suggestions begin to appear, but none of them are what you are searching for so keep typing.



Now that you have typed in your full search phrase, push the Enter (or Return) button or click on the blue magnifying glass to the right of the search box. The search results will look like this:





This search displays similarity to the Google search display, with one difference. To the right on the page are suggestions for related searches which you can click on to search with similar yet different keywords and phrases. Like the Google search, the first few search results are ads for companies or software related to your search. These are indicated by the "Ad" label placed before the web address. In order to discover more results, pull the scroll bar down the page.



If you select the top result it links to an article from Inc. Magazine about improving the customer service experience. Reading through this article will give you information and ideas which you can research further and present to your boss. Scan through the





other results on this page. There are many additional articles, ideas, and search results to discover as you continue to research more ideas.

Practice Questions https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18566 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18567

You have now seen two different search engines, two different searches, and a few different ways to begin searching. Keep reading through the next sections to learn additional ways to become more effective when searching on the web.

For more information about URLs and the information within web addresses, watch the video below.

.net .com .web

information, products, and

services to purchase

A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=116

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Web Searching. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Definition of search engine. . **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Web_search_engine. License: *CC BY-SA: Attribution-ShareAlike*
- Internet Domains: what Web addresses mean. **Authored by**: The Vermont Council on Rural Development. **Located at**: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cg6-EPcNAoI. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

Public domain content

- AOL logo. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/AOL. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright
- Ask.com . Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Ask.com. License: Public Domain: No Known
 Copyright
- Google logo. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Google. License: Public Domain: No Known
 Copyright
- Microsoft Bing logo. Provided by: Wikipedia. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Bing. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright
- Yahoo search logo. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Yahoo!_Search. **License**: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*

2.9: Web Searching is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



2.10: Identifying Search Results

Learning Objectives

• Identify number of results from each search.

Number of Search Results

In the previous section, you learned how to conduct a web search in a search engine. How do you know how many results from a search you received? Let's go take a look.

First, open the Chrome browser; make sure you use the Google search box and type in a search for *accounting terminology*. The results will look similar to this page:



Look just above the definition box to see a large number: 32,800,000. This is the total number of accessible webpages and images about accounting terminology. It also took the search engine only 0.37 seconds to find all of this information. Amazing!





Change the search key words just a bit to see how the number of results changes. Type in accounting terms and see how many results are displayed.



The small change in keywords decreased the results to 247,000,000. Any keyword search conducted will return a number of results which you can see displayed like these examples. Often when there are so many search results it may become more difficult to conduct effective research on a topic. There are ways to narrow down the results and conduct a more focused search which we will go over a little later. Before we leave this subject however, there is one more way in Google search to visually see the size of the search results. Scroll down to the bottom of the search results page.

| examples and contextual demittor | is necessary to not only |
|--|--|
| Accounting Terms - A-Sys | stems 🔹 |
| www.a-systems.net/accounting- Learn basic accounting terms from | -terms.htm 🔻 |
| | ······································ |
| Searches related to acco | unting terms |
| accounting terms pdf | financial accounting terminology |
| accounting words dictionary | accounting terms for dummies |
| accounting terms for interview | bookkeeping terms |
| accounting 101 terms | accounting terms quizlet |
| | |

The larger the number of *O*s in the Google logo, the more results from the search you just created.

Now you know how to discover the number of your search results. This number changes for each search result. Have some fun and play around with searches to see the numbers change.





- 1. Under the Google logo there are numbers. If the number 3 is selected, the third search result page will be displayed. If the number 6, then the sixth search result page is displayed, and so on.
- 2. Selecting the right arrow button takes the browser window to the very next search result page (page 2) and continues to go page by page (3, 4, 5, etc.) as long as you click the arrow button.
- 3. Clicking on the *Next* word navigates the browser window to the very next search result page (page 2) and continues to go page by page (3, 4, 5, etc.) as long as you click the arrow button.
- 4. Once past the first results page a *left arrow* and *Previous* option appear. Use either of these to navigate to previous search result pages.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Identifying Search Results. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.10: Identifying Search Results is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



2.11: Opening Search Results

Learning Objectives

• Open the first web search engine result.

Identifying Search Engine Categories

Each search result is categorized into a variety of subjects. Being able to navigate to the different types of search results is an important skill to have when searching the internet. A browser has a small menu above the search results indicating these categories.

Lets say that you are put in charge of creating a sales flyer for Rowan Retail store. It is suggested you use graphic design to make the flyer stand out. This is the first time you have heard of graphic design and you wish to learn a little more about it. Using the Google search engine, you can conduct a search on graphic design.

First open a browser window by clicking on the desktop icon or the icon on the computer desktop's taskbar, then type in www.google.com in the address bar and press the Enter (or Return) key on the keyboard.



In the Google search bar, type *graphic design definition* and press the Enter (or Return) key. The webpage displays the results of your search. Above the displayed search results there is a small menu bar with six choices.



Search results are defaulted to *All* which means that every type of category (i.e. images, news, videos, shopping, etc.) is listed in the search results displayed on the page. This menu is used when choosing to narrow a search by different categories. The **More** option when selected drops down a small menu with additional category options. Now let's explore how these categories work.

| Google | graphic design definition | | e |
|--------|---|---------------|----------|
| | All Images News Videos Shopping | More Settings | Tools |
| | About 29,500,000 results (0.49 seconds) | Maps Books | |
| | araph∙ic de∙sian | Flights | |



Open First Web Search for All

With a browser window open and the Google search bar ready, type in *retail development*. Notice how the menu defaults to the **All** option. The page displays maps of retail stores, a book about retail development, and various other websites. Locate the first search result with an article or website and open the result by clicking on the left mouse button.



This opens the link to a webpage about the 2017 Global Retail Development Index which lists countries indicating their standing in the retail development business. If this fits the search you are looking for, you can continue to read through this article. Nice job!



Open First Web Search for News

Now we'll to try a different category for search results by returning to the previous screen with search results for *retail development*. Click on the back button at the top of the browser. When the page returns to the results, click on **News** in the search category menu. The page will now refresh and appear with the latest news articles about *retail development*. Notice the blue bar under the word **News**. This is used to visually indicate which category is currently being displayed.





| ← → C 🗎 Secure | https://www.go | oogle.com/#q=retail+ | developmer | t&safe=active&tb | bm=nws | | | |
|----------------|--|--|--|---|---|-----------------|------------|--|
| Google | retail developn | n ent Images Maps | Videos | More | Setti | Ų ngs | Q Tools | |
| | About 5,030,000 m Industrial, retail Examiner Enterpri Industrial and reta Bartlesville Develo | esuits (0.32 seconds) development stron se - 2 hours ago all development was or opment Authority | g, Wood sai | d 🜒 | ar that ended Jur | ne 30, ar | rd | |
| | | Public comment so News-Herald.com - Ji sought on Mentor n invited to weigh in on | ought on Me ul 3, 2017 oad vacation 1 a procedure n | entor road vacation for City Market retail . equired for a retail . | on for City Mar il development | ket . The pu | blic is | |
| | Investing com UK | After Brexit Vote, S New York Times - 13 I After Brexit Vote, St. N into new retail develop | t. Modwen B hours ago Modwen Back: pment at this | Backs Away From s Away From Retail point," Allan told Re | n Retail Proper Property looki suters. | ty < | vest | |
| | | New details release WSAZ-TV - Jun 30, 20 (WSAZ) A new retail retail center open for l | ed in plans f 117 I developmen business by th | or retail develop t site in Cabell Cour te end of 2017, | ment site 🛛 🗐 |) Fis to ha | we the | |
| | | Apartments propos Asbury Park Press - 1 The 34-acre site when a childcare center, res | sed for Rout 5 hours ago e the develop taurants and | e 9 in Toms River ment is proposed is other retail stores. | r 😗 | It inc | ludes | |

Now identify the first news search result and click with the left mouse button to open that news article.



The hyperlinked article webpage will now be displayed. In this case, the link opened an article in the Bartlesville Examiner-Enterprise news about the strong industrial and retail development this last year. You are now on your way to finding more news items that fit the search.





Open First Web Search for Video

Once again we'll return to the previous screen with search results for *retail development* by clicking on the back button at the top of the browser. When the page returns to the results, click on **Video** in the search category menu. The page will now refresh and appear with the latest videos about *retail development*. Notice the blue bar is now under the word **Video**.



One more time, identify the first search result at the top of the list and click on the first link to open this video on the webpage.





This link navigates the webpage to a Huntington, West Virginia news channel website containing a video about plans for a retail development site. Some videos begin to play as soon as the webpage is loaded, but others like this video, will have a circle with an arrow in the center of the video. This play button must be clicked to start the video playing.



Often with videos there are commercials that play before the video content. Be sure to wait through the commercial (or click on a skip button if that appears) and then watch the content video.



Review

There are different ways that search results are categorized. Decide which type may be most relevant to the search you are conducting. If you are unsure which might be most effective, select a few different types and click on additional results to explore and learn. Take some time to experiment and become comfortable with finding results and exploring the focused categories on a search engine.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Opening Search Results. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.11: Opening Search Results is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.12: Introduction to Advanced Searches

What you'll learn to do: narrow a search to find more useful results.

Conducting searches in the Google search engine can lead to literally millions of results. In order to make searches more effective, search results can be narrowed down through a few simple changes.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Advanced Searches. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

2.12: Introduction to Advanced Searches is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.13: Adjusting Search Parameters

Learning Objectives

- Add additional parameters to the web search.
- Identify changes in the search results.

Adding Boolean Operators

There are three terms used to modify a search using a Boolean operator. These terms are AND, OR, and NOT. In order to use these terms they must be typed using all capital letters to work. Here is a video introducing how these three operators work in searches.



A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=124

Now let's walk through a search using each of these operators.

AND

First we'll start with **AND**. After a browser is open and the Google search bar is available, type in the search you want. For this example, the search will be *marketing* **AND** *services*. Look at the page from the search and note the amount of search results. There are over 785 million search results! What happens if the OR operator is used next for the same search? Does it increase or decrease the results amount? Let's find out.







OR

Next is the **OR** operator. In the Google search bar, type in the next search using OR. For this example, the search will be *marketing* **OR** *services*. This results page has even more results with over 7 billion possibilities! That's far too many to search effectively. Time to try another Boolean operator to narrow those results further.

÷



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18573

NOT

Last is the **NOT** operator. With the browser window open, type the same search using the operator NOT in the Google search bar. For this example, the search will be *marketing NOT* services. The results page now has fewer results with 679 million. That is still a huge number of results. The search results still may not be narrow enough so other methods can be used to reduce the number to a more reasonable amount. Now let's explore other ways to narrow a search.





Adding Boolean Modifiers

What is a Boolean Modifier? It is a character that can be used in a search phrase to modify search results to a desired effect. The three focused on in this course are: quotation marks "", an asterisk *, and parenthesis (). This video gives an overview of how to use each in a search.

| Carl | | | | | | |
|------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Google | "brain death" Japan" jotnw 19902000 | | | | | |
| Search | About 117 results (0.16 seconds) | | | | | |
| Exerything | Japan Organ Transplant Network The Enactment of the Organ | | | | | |
| Imagés | In 1990, the Provisional Commission for the Study on Brain Death and Organ | | | | | |
| Maps. | Transplantation The draft of the Organ Transplantation Law was proposed in 1994 Finally, on October 16, 1997, the Organ Transplant Law took effect, That day, JKTNV | | | | | |
| Videos | was reorganized into the Japan Organ Transplant Network (JOTNW), | | | | | |
| News | Japan Organ Transplant Network Homepage | | | | | |
| Shopping | www.jetnw.or.jp/english/index.html was enforced in Jacob on October 15, 1997, Jacobing the transplantation of basit, joint | | | | | |
| | the produced in and an extense let that the provident providence in them, but | | | | | |

A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=124

Now let's walk through a search using each of these modifiers.

Quotation Marks

The first modifier to try is quotation marks. After a browser is open and the Google search bar is available, type in the search you want using quotation marks. This time the search finds results for the specific phrase in the exact order *retail store display shelves*. In order to see the difference quotation marks make, first run a search without using quotation marks. How many search results are incurred from this first search?







The results for the first search are over 1.2 million! That number is far too many to tackle for this search. A smaller number would be more effective. It's time to narrow the search results. This can be accomplished by enclosing the search between quotation marks. Type *"retail store display shelves"* into the Google search box and notice the amount of search results with that exact phrase. The search results are now 385,000. That is far fewer than the original one million plus!



Asterisk

You may not know the exact wording you wish to use for a search. Maybe there is a song in your head and you can't remember the exact phrase to sing. Possibly your search needs to include a few different word prospects. By using an asterisk in a search, more results will be included in that search.

What if your employee at Rowan Retail needs to conduct a search for pet supplies, pet supply stores, pet suppliers and more? The asterisk is the Boolean modifier to use. Try the search *pet suppl** in the Google search bar. The search results include all of the various aspects of the search the employee needed.





https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18574

Parentheses

Parentheses (also sometime called Brackets) can be used to enclose certain search terms in order to specify the order in which the search engine should interpret them. Like in a math equation, the information within parenthesis is read first, then the information outside of the parentheses is read next by the search engine. Often parentheses are used in conjunction with other Boolean search terms. This may seem a little tricky, but we'll walk through an example.

There has been a recent outbreak in the local community of mice and rats. Customers have purchased all the traps and poison from your store and are asking you about other solutions and products you recommend. Your first stop is a Google search to research possible options.

On your computer web browser, you type (*rat OR mouse*) *AND trap* into the search box. Google now retrieves its results which contain the word mouse or rat together with the word trap.



Now you have potential solution for customers to use while the store is waiting to be resupplied. The customers are pleased with the extra step you've taken with customer service.





Minus Sign Elimination

What if you need to eliminate search results that do not fit a search query? The minus sign is used exactly for this reason. The video shows a few examples about how this works.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can view the transcript for "Google Search – Minus Sign" here (opens in new window).

Let's look at another example. Let's say you realize you need a more organized method for scheduling employee shifts. There are thousands of ways to organize this task on Google, but you don't want to see them all. In a Google search bar, type in *monthly employee schedule template* and press the Enter key.



The search results include everything, Word templates, Excel templates, PDF format, etc. Now you realize that and Excel template is what you need and not the other options. Modify your search terms to now read *monthly employee schedule template -word - PDF* and press the Enter key. The search results will now eliminate any result containing Word or PDF in them. Make sure there is no space between the minus sign and the word you want to eliminate from the results.







There are plenty of Excel and spreadsheet templates from which you can choose to match your need. Neat! If you decide the template works better as a Word document, simply replace the *-word* with *-Excel -spreadsheet* and those options will now disappear from the results. This tool is one of the best to narrow down results to a more manageable size for your searches.

Practice Question https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18575

Common Search Mistakes

Before leaving this section there are a few common mistakes to identify to make searches more effective. Here is the short list:

1. A misspelled or mistyped search word. If you type *website* instead of *websight* or you type *internet* instead of *intermet*, search results can be a bit off because of the misspellings. Sometimes there will be no results at all. Be sure to check your spelling when running a search. Google tries to help by making suggestions like this one:



- 2. Extra Space. Leaving a space between the minus sign and the word (e.g. *hummingbird*) so what you want eliminated is not removed from the search results.
- 3. **Not Clearing Previous Search**. If a search is copied and pasted into the search bar, sometimes the previous search phrase remains and the search is muddled. Make sure the old search words are cleared off.
- 4. Extra Words. If search terms are copied and pasted into the search bar, occasionally extra words are copied along with the desired terms. Double \-check and eliminate extra words before searching.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18576

Bonus Information

If you are wondering about the origin of the term Boolean, run an internet search for "George Boole" to learn more about him.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Adjusting Search Parameters. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Using Boolean Operators. Authored by: PfauLibrary. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Yw9Djl_0vK4. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- George Bolle. **Provided by**: Wikipedia. **Located at**: https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/George_Boole. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*
- Optimizing Your Google Search. Authored by: University of Michigan Library. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=2zQ5iHvpnNc. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

2.13: Adjusting Search Parameters is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.


2.14: Image Searches

Learning Objectives

• Perform a web search for an image.

In the last section, you learned about the search menu, which organizes a search into various categories. One search category that is often used is the **Images** option. This section will teach a variety of ways to find images and how to use them.

Identify Image Search Engine Tools

To get started, let's start with a simple, fun search of strawberry pie images. As before, first open a browser window by clicking on the desktop icon or the icon on the computer desktop's taskbar. Type in www.google.com in the address bar and press the Enter (or Return) key on the keyboard.



In the Google search bar, type *strawberry pie* and press the Enter (or Return) key. The webpage displays the results of your search. Above the displayed search results look at the menu with six choices. As with all searches, the search results are defaulted to the **All** category.



To find just the images for a strawberry pie, click on the **Images** category in the menu bar and look at the results.





What a delicious-looking webpage! Besides the delectable images, there are a few tools to understand and be able to use on an image search results page.

- 1. **Image Category Buttons**. This bar is an additional menu of categories that narrow down or focus in on a particular type of image. You many only want to see an ice cream strawberry pie or pie with ice cream scoops. For example, look over the options and notice the one for ice cream. You can click that to focus on images that feature ice cream. Hooray!
- 2. Additional Category Button Arrow. If a narrower category is desired and the first options don't fit what you are looking for, click on the right arrow. This arrow moves the category menu bar to the right to display more options for narrowing down the images. Once this moves, an additional arrow appears on the left side. Clicking on the left arrow moves the button menu back to the previous buttons.
- 3. **Scroll Bar.** As in many other webpages, the scroll bar on the right is moved downward by clicking on the gray bar and dragging it down. This action moves the main page downward to display additional images.
- 4. **Safe Search**. The default setting for images is set to be a safe search for images. This default filters out any explicit images that may be associated with a particular search. It is important in a work setting to have this filter turned on. If you begin to search for images and discover this setting has been turned off, select the SafeSearch button and make sure the *Filter explicit results* option has a check mark on it. If it does not, click on the option to turn the filtering on for searches.



Search by Image

Google search has an option to search by a picture or image instead of words. To search using an image, click on the camera icon in the main search bar.



Two options will appear after the camera icon is selected: type or paste an image's URL, or upload an image file from the saved files on your computer.



| Search by Image | Google Search by Image Search doogle with an image instead of text. Try dragging an image here |
|--|--|
| Search Cogle with an mage initiad of text. Try dragging an image here. | Paste image URL Upload an Image IZ |
| Standorty cram | Standorny cream Choose File, No file chosen occluite |

To get a better sense of how to use these two options we'll stick with strawberry pie images. Our first search is with a hyperlinked image.

Search by Image Address

Open a tab for a webpage with an image of a strawberry pie. Remember the button to open a new tab is the small gray button next to the currently open tab. Type in a webpage address. In the screenshot below, the webpage address is browneyedbaker.com and once the page loads, search for the strawberry pie picture.

| G strawberry pie - Google | 🔷 Strawberry Pie Brown Ej 🗙 |
|--|--|
| \leftarrow \rightarrow C \bigcirc http://www.b | rowneyedbaker.com/fresh-strawberry-pie |
| APRIL 1, 2017 // 115 comments | |
| SKIP TO RECIPE 🔸 🛛 PRINT | RECIPE 🔶 |

Scroll down to the image on the webpage and use the mouse to right-click on the image and open a menu. In the menu is an option to *Copy image address*. Navigate down the menu to that option and then click the left mouse button to select this option. The image URL is now copied.



Click back on the first tab with the main Google search box and make sure the Search by image box is displayed. In the Paste image URL section, make sure the curser is in the text field before you use Ctrl+V to paste in the address and select the blue Search by image button to begin the search.



Another option to paste in the address is to use the mouse buttons again. After making sure the cursor is in the address box, click on the right mouse button to make a menu appear. Select the Paste as plain text option by clicking on the left mouse button. The image's hyperlinked address is now in the address box and to start the search, click on the blue Search by image button.



| oogle Search | by image | ad of text. Try dragging an i | image here | |
|--|------------------|-------------------------------|--|-------|
| Paste | image URL 🛛 Uplo | ad an image | inage nere. | |
| | | | | |
| rawberry cream | Undo | Ctrl+Z | Sea | ch by |
| IIIV AND | Redo | Ctrl+Shift+Z | | ~ |
| White Africe and | Cut | Ctrl+X | | |
| | Сору | Ctrl+C | A State A State | |
| | | | A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY. | |
| | Paste | Ctrl+V | A AND AND A | |

The Google search engine does its best to identify the image and return results that match the image to which it was linked. It keeps the image in the upper address bar and instead of defaulting to the All option keeps the search in the Images category. Notice Google considers this its "best guess" for the image. Sometimes Google might not identify the image correctly, but that is okay. You can find a different image of the same thing and try again.



Search by Uploaded Image File

Google search has an option to search for a picture file uploaded from a computer. Now we'll use a different type of strawberry pie image for Google to search with once uploaded. Return back to the search bar.

To search using an uploaded image, click on the camera icon in the main search bar.



Two options will appear after the camera icon is selected. Select the Upload an image tab. A button to Choose File will be displayed.





| Google | Search by image Search Google with an image instead of text. Try drag | ging an image here. | |
|------------------|--|---------------------|---------|
| | Paste image URL Upload an image 🛛 | | |
| strawberry cream | Choose File No file chosen | | ocolate |
| 211111/10/10 | | | |

Click on Choose File to bring up a window for selecting an image file on the computer.



- 1. This is the window displaying the current files, folders, and network drives on the computer.
- 2. The left scrolling menu lists folders and directories on a computer.
- 3. This displays the current location shown by the window. Clicking this field will show you the file path for this location.
- 4. The search box can let you search for files, images, and text in the currently displayed window.
- 5. This is the file folder containing the image to be uploaded. To select this folder double-click on it or select it and click on the Open button in the window's bottom right corner.

The folder with the image file is now open. Scroll down until the image you find the image you want. To select the image either double-click on the file or select it and click on the Open button in the window's bottom right corner. Another method to find an image on the computer is by file name. Type the file name into the search bar area of the computer window and click the small magnifying glass or hit the Enter (or Return) key to search for and find the file.



Once the file is selected, Google will upload the image and automatically search for that image file. The results page is displayed once the file is uploaded with the chocolate strawberry pie image.





| G Google Search | × | |
|-----------------|---|------------------------------|
| ← → C ■ Sec | cure https://www.google.com/search?tbs=sbi:AMhZZiuDMwBY/V_1NirSpSRsVQj18Gi2YLg | gaqrPE8Eo-zyZhK0yDADelphhbzl |
| Google | straw_00x900.jpg × bake chocolate strawberry cake | ۹ |
| | All Images Maps Shopping More Settings | Tools |
| | About 20,500,000 results (1.14 seconds) | |
| | Image size: 600 × 900 | |
| | Find other sizes of this image: All sizes - Small - Medium - Large | |
| | Best guess for this image: bake chocolate strawberry cake | |
| | Chocolate Strawberry Cake - Liv for Cake https://inforcake.com/chocolate-strawberry-cake/ * ****** Rating. 4 - 14 vutes - 2 hr Feb 5, 217 - The 6 Javas its a great rate in my opinion! The cake is my usual chocolate cake the strawberry butterceam is my favourte Swits | recipe and |
| | Chocolate-Strawberry Celebration Cake Recipe Taste of Home www.tasteethome.com / Recipes * ★★★★★ Resign 45 - 129 vises - 1hr -917 cal Athough Thave some great "from-scratch" recipes, this one uses a boxed mix with plenty of do has become a popular groot's cale that gets more | ectoring. It |

Like the URL search, a picture of the image file is in the main search box, the search results are in the *Images* category, and Google has taken its best guess as to what the image represents. Notice in this case it is searching not just for a pie, but also a chocolate strawberry cake. Uploaded images are a little trickier to work with, but Google still usually brings back relevant results. However, you may need to scroll through the choices a bit more to find those that are a close match.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18578

Image Search

To run an image search for business, use the same methods as described in the above sections. Let's identify an image to use in a presentation for the office products team.

You and your team must present the newest office products you suggest be stocked in the store. The presentation will be to the other managers so they can inform their teams of the latest trends customers may ask about. Your team has identified ten new products to put in the presentation. Finding images for a presentation is quick using a Google image search. Start by searching for an image of one of the most popular products: the Adjustable Sit-Stand Workstation.

Open a browser window, go to the Google search bar and enter the phrase *adjustable sit-stand workstation*. Select the Images category and you will see a page of images for different products fitting that description. The upper images will be sponsored or advertised products that fit the search and will have an arrow on the far right to look at more of the sponsored products. Look for an image for the presentation and locate the one that looks exactly like the product that will be in the store.



Click on the image and a box will appear showing a variety of ways to navigate to the image selected.







Below the title of the image are three buttons showing different actions you can take. Also notice there are additional suggested smaller images related to the image which was selected. These can be navigated to by clicking on any of the images under the Related Images headline.

If the image needs to be seen in a different setting, the Visit Page button opens a new tab or window with the website containing the image. If the View Image button is selected, a new tab or window will open with only the image displayed.

If the Share button is selected, a small menu will appear giving a selection of social media apps that can be used to share the image (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, Google+, and Email). This is an easy way to share possible images for presentations if you need to collaborate on using specific images with your team.



Image searches can be run for all of the products for the team's presentation. This is one of the quickest ways to find images for almost anything you need.



i inding Nonooniniorolal intageo

Watch this video to learn how to find images licensed for reuse and/or commercial use.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Image Searches. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

• Creative Commons Image Searching in Google. **Authored by**: Jurupa IT. **Located at**: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=nfclIuS5LzA. License: *All Rights Reserved*. License Terms: Standard YouTube license

2.14: Image Searches is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



2.15: Putting It Together- Internet Research

After learning about different ways to conduct research on the internet, you can now more confidently try searching for business information and even information to satisfy personal curiosity. The world is now open in a much larger way for you to discover ways to improve business management reports, presentations, conduct competitive analysis, and experience the variety of business information out on the web.

This module has covered quite a few methods for searching. As a quick refresher, watch this video that reiterates most of the aspects from this module.



A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=128

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Internet Research. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Searching the Web. **Authored by**: The Vermont Council on Rural Development. **Located at**: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=SkKC1BnuQsE. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

2.15: Putting It Together-Internet Research is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.16: Assignment- Search the Internet

For this assignment, you will search using the Google search engine and take a screenshot of your search results screen. Follow the directions and then submit your assignment. If you find a step that trips you up, review the module or ask for help from your classmates in the discussion forum.

Instructions

- 1. Open a web browser (Chrome, Firefox, or Edge) by double-clicking the icon on the desktop (or using any other method covered in Internet Browsers.)
- 2. Make sure the page is on the Google search page. Type in www.google.com in the address bar and press the Enter (or Return) key.
- 3. In the google search bar, type in a search for one of the following terms:
 - cash flow
 - company culture
 - income statement
 - business metrics

Then hit the Enter (or Return) key.

4. Look at the search results Google returned for your search, then take a screenshot by using the following steps:

- 1. Open the Snipping tool by using one of the methods discussed in the Snips and Screenshots page.
- 2. Take a rectangular or a window snip of the search results.
- 3. Save the snip as **BA132_LastName_SearchInternet.png**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_SearchInternet.png)

5. Submit your image in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Search the Internet. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

2.16: Assignment- Search the Internet is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.17: Discussion- Search Results

Use two different search engines to conduct the same search. Pick one of the following phrases to search:

- big-box store
- largest supermarket chain
- brick and mortar store
- computers in business

Search for your chosen phrase using Google. Next, use the same phrase to search on Microsoft Bing. Once you've run the same search on the two different engines, compare the results.

Discussion Questions

- Which search engine provided the most results?
- Which search engine provided the most relevant results?
- How could you make the search return even more relevant results regardless of search engine used?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion Forum: Search Results. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*

2.17: Discussion- Search Results is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





2.18: Discussion- Personal Data and Ethical Business Use

In this module the importance of ethical business research and personal data rights have been discussed. The rise of technology increases the ease at which businesses mine data to research personal interests, demographics, shopping habits, geographical locations, etc. in order to personalize their sales pitch to you as well as populations of larger groups.

Watch this video talking about the ethical difficulties at these cross-roads of privacy, technology and business research. After watching the video consider a few questions to discuss.



A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=134 You can view the transcript for "The Ethics of Data – Personal Data & Privacy" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- What negative experience have you had with a company using your personal data?
- What positive benefits does personal data sharing have for you in this sharing economy?
- How would you like to have more control over what company's do with personal information?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Personal Data and Ethical Business Use. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY: Attribution*

All rights reserved content

• The Ethics of Data - Personal Data & Privacy. **Authored by**: BBC Research & Development. **Located at**: https://youtu.be/naaDBNSx610. **License**: *All Rights Reserved*. **License Terms**: Standard YouTube License

2.18: Discussion- Personal Data and Ethical Business Use is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



CHAPTER OVERVIEW

3: Microsoft Word Basic Skills

Learning Objectives

- Create and save files in Microsoft Word
- Format text in Microsoft Word clarity
- Use spell check and find and replace tools
- Create and format numbered and unnumbered lists

3.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Basic Skills

- 3.2: Introduction to Using Word
- 3.3: Creating a New Blank Document and Finding Your Way Around
- 3.4: Saving Files
- 3.5: File Extensions
- 3.6: Introduction to Basic Text Formatting
- 3.7: Selecting and Moving Text
- 3.8: Bold, Italics, Underline
- 3.9: Fonts
- 3.10: Alignment, Justification, and Indentation
- 3.11: Line and Paragraph Spacing
- 3.12: Introduction to Workspace Tools
- 3.13: Spell Check and Dictionaries
- 3.14: Find and Replace
- 3.15: Introduction to Lists
- 3.16: Lists
- 3.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Basic Skills
- 3.18: Assignment- Create Basic Document
- 3.19: Discussion- Paragraph Styles

3: Microsoft Word Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Basic Skills



Why learn to complete basic skills in Microsoft Word?

Communication in the workplace is very important. Whether you run a one-person freelance business or work for a company with thousands of employees, reading and writing documents on a computer is a vital skill.

Microsoft Word is the most popular word processing program and is considered the standard word processor for most businesses. Word can help you create documents, save them, print them, and share them with others.

Reports, brochures, flyers, and memos are all examples of documents you can create in Microsoft Word.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Annual Report Book Brochure. **Authored by**: HypnoArt. **Located at**: pixabay.com/en/annual-report-book-brochure-686343/. **License**: *CCO*: *No Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Word Basic Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.2: Introduction to Using Word

What you'll learn to do: create and save files in Microsoft Word.

Learning to use Microsoft Word is one of the most helpful and versatile workplace skills you can acquire, and creating and saving files is the first step. Many of the skills you will learn for Microsoft Word can also be applied to Microsoft Excel and PowerPoint.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using Word. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.2: Introduction to Using Word is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.3: Creating a New Blank Document and Finding Your Way Around

Learning Objectives

• Create a new Word document.

Opening a New Document

You can open Word from the Start menu (or the Applications folder on a Mac) by clicking on the Word icon. The Word icon comes in a variety of forms depending on your OS and version of Word, but it always features the color blue and the letter W.



Note: Microsoft Office Versions

While this course is based on Office 2019, it's important to note that while Microsoft offers the purchase of Office 2019, that version is constantly updating to match the latest updates in Office 365. If Tom purchases and downloads a copy of "Office 2019" on Friday, and Sally purchases and downloads a copy of "Office 2019" on Monday, they may have different versions because there was a point release over the weekend.

Because of this model, Microsoft is more incremental in their updates to the products. While there was a fairly noticeable difference between Office 2007 and Office 2010, Office 2016 and Office 2019 are comparably similar.

When you open Word, some versions of Word may take you straight to a new blank document. Newer versions such as Word 2019 will take you to a menu called **backstage view** to choose to open a new blank document or open a new document from a template. If you already have a file open in Word, you can create a new document by clicking File>New. You can also use the shortcut Ctrl+N (Command+N for Mac).



To open a blank document, double-click the blank document option.





| 🗄 গ | • (5 = | | | | Documen | t1 - W | ord | | Sign i | n 🖻 | — | ٥ | × |
|-----------------|--------------------------------|--|--|----------|------------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------------|--------|---------------------|--------|---------|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Maili | ngs Revi | ew V | /iew | ♀ Tell m | e > | ≩ Share | \square |
| Paste | Calibri (Bo B I L A - ab | ody) <u>I</u> - abc - <u>A</u> - | ▼ 12 x₂ x² Aa - A[*] | | ┋═╶╴┶╦╌╷╵ ═╶═╴═╎┇═╺ ┉╶╷╽┇┙╵¶ | ∎ > ≣ , | AaBbCcDc 1 Normal | AaBbC ၢ No Sp | CcDc | AaBbC(Heading 1 | ▲ Edit | ing | |
| Clipboard 5 | <u>.</u> | Font | | Fai | Paragraph | Fa | | Style | es | | E. | | ^ |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 0 words | œ | | | | | | | | R - | | + | 90% |
| Praction https: | ce Que | stion ments | S .lumeni | learning | g.coessm | ents/ | 18579 | | | | | | |
| https: | //assess | ments | .lumen | learning | g.coessm | ents/ | 18580 | | | | | | |

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18581

Overview of Word Controls

We will cover what many of these buttons and toolbars do in the pages to come. In the meantime, here is a general overview of what you can see in the program. Many of these features are also in other Office products like Excel and PowerPoint, so it's a good idea to get a handle of the terminology.

The Word window has three main sections: the ribbon, the document, and the status bar.







Ribbon

The ribbon is at the top of the Word window and includes the window title bar. The ribbon below is for Word 2019. If you have a different version, your ribbon may not look exactly the same. However, most features will look similar and be near a similar area. **If you have a different version of Word and you cannot find the feature you need, run a web search for** *where is feature/button wordversion*, replacing *feature/button* with the feature or button you are trying to find and *version* with your version number. For example, if you are using Word 2010 and can't find the controls for adding a column, run a web search for *where is column word 2010*.



- 1. **Quick access toolbar.** The quick access toolbar shows commonly used commands so that you can execute those commands with one button instead of a couple. By default, the quick access toolbar has (from left to right) Save, Undo, and Redo. You can customize which commands are available in the quick access toolbar by clicking the arrow to the right of the Redo button.
- 2. **Tabs.** The tabs on the ribbon are a way of organizing the many tools and options Word has. Clicking each tab provides a whole new set of options. The tabs you will most frequently use are the File tab and the Home tab.
- 3. **Currently selected tab.** The Home tab is selected by default when you open Word. The currently selected tab is white, while the other tabs are blue.
- 4. **Group names.** Within each tab, commands are grouped according to type. Those type names are near the bottom of the ribbon. For example, the Font group contains all the font tools and options.
- 5. **Dialog box.** Clicking the small, boxed-in arrow at the bottom right-hand corner of each group opens a dialog box with more options for each group.
- 6. **Hide ribbon.** If you find the array of buttons too distracting, you can hide the ribbon by pushing the arrow at the bottom-right corner of the ribbon. You can reopen the ribbon with the ribbon display options.
- 7. Ribbon display options. The ribbon display options allow you to hide or reveal all or parts of the ribbon.

Status Bar

The status bar is at the bottom of the Word window. Again, your status bar may look different or not even be visible, but here is an explanation of what many icons on the status bar mean.



- 1. **Page count.** The page count shows the total number of pages in the document and which page is currently visible in the window.
- 2. Word count. The word count displays the total number of words in the document.
- 3. **Spelling/grammar check.** A tiny checkmark on the book icon indicates that there are no spelling or grammar errors. When there are spelling or grammar errors, the checkmark becomes an X. Clicking the icon then will show options for correcting each mistake.
- 4. **View options.** From left to right: Read Mode, Print Layout, and Web Layout. By default, the document is in Print Layout. This changes how the document appears in the Word window; it does not affect how the document appears when sent to others, viewed on a different computer, or printed. (Click each image to enlarge.)





| | | - ∰ - 5 • 0 = | Document1 - Word | Sign in 🖽 | - Ø |
|--|--|--|--|---|----------------------------|
| | | File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings Review | w View 🖓 Tell me | 유 Share |
| fa hak Kar Basert Had X - Ø K | B fyrit + Spennertithed Spen 20 − 0 X. 200 Nove have beep layed Relevant Manlage Review Ves Öffers Ribers D | B I · | · Ì = · N; · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | AaBbCcDr AaBbCr 1 No Spac Heading 1 | Editing |
| Road Mande | No. Contraction Contraction Contraction Contraction Contraction Pierror | Web Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web Lay Web Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web Lay Web Layout Web La | yout Web Layout Web Layout Web L yout Web Layout Web Layout Web L yout Web Layout Web Layout Web L | Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web Layout Web | Layout Layout Layout |
| | Instruged. Inits Layers Inits Layer Inits Layer Inits Layer Inits Layer Inits Layers Inits Layer | | | | |
| Def ef issues 🕷 | | | | | |
| Sourid! 📓 🗄 🖏 | λημ1 (1) - Ωποπό (2) | | | | |
| Read Mode | Print Layout | | | | |
| | | 54 words [][2 | | op 📰 🐻 | + |
| | | Web Layout | | | |

5. **Zoom.** By moving the bar to the left or right, you can zoom in and out of the document. This allows you to see the entire page at once or to magnify a small part of the document.

To customize the status bar, right-click on it to see a dialog menu that allows you to check and uncheck tools you want displayed.

Contributors and Attributions

Public domain content

- Microsoft Word Logo. Authored by: Microsoft. Located at: https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Microsoft_Word_logo.png.
 License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'
- Wordmac. Authored by: Microsoft. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/File:Wordmac.jpg. License: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'
- Microsoft Word logo (2000-2003). Authored by: Microsoft. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Microsoft_Word. License: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'
- Microsoft Word logo (2007-2010). Authored by: Microsoft. Located at: http://logos.wikia.com/wiki/Microsoft_Word. License: *Public Domain: No Known Copyright*. License Terms: According to Microsoft Trademark & Brand Guidelines, this logo may be used 'in text solely to refer to and/or link to Microsoft's products and services.'

Lumen Learning authored content

• Creating and Saving a File. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.3: Creating a New Blank Document and Finding Your Way Around is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.4: Saving Files

Learning Objectives

• Save a file in Word.

Saving a file is critical for editing, preserving, and sharing your work. If the program closes or your computer shuts down unexpectedly while you are using Word, don't worry. By default, Word automatically saves your work every 10 minutes and will reload that save upon reopening the program. However, it is still a good idea to save every once in a while.



To save a file, you can click the Save icon in the top-left corner, click File>Save, or use the shortcut Ctrl+S (Command+S for Macs).



Click the save icon (above) or File>New (below).

Whichever method you choose, you will see the backstage view with some option about where to save your file. (Pre-2016 versions of Word will skip straight to the dialog box—If this applies to you, skip ahead to the Save dialog box.) First, you must choose where you want to save your file.

- **OneDrive**—This is Microsoft's cloud computing storage system. If you have a Microsoft account and sign in, you can use OneDrive for free to store your documents.
- **This PC**—This lets you save your file directly to your computer. By default, the save folder is called Documents with the file path This PC/Documents.
- Add a Place—If you save a lot of documents to a particular folder, you can add that folder as a Save As option here.
- **Browse**—To save a different folder not listed above, click Browse. This will take you to a dialog box that lets you search your computer for the folder you want to store your document in.





| Æ | | Document1 - Word | Sign in | ? | - 0 | × |
|----------|---------------|------------------|-----------------------------|---|-----|----------|
| Info | Save As | | | | | ^ |
| New | | | You have no recent folders. | | | |
| Open | L Recent | | | | | |
| Save | | | | | | |
| Save As | | | | | | |
| Print | This PC | | | | | |
| Share | 🛉 Add a Place | | | | | |
| Export | Browse | | | | | |
| Close | biowse | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Account | | | | | | |
| Feedback | | | | | | |
| Options | | | | | | v |

Once in the Save dialog box, you can choose the folder you want to save your file in. Select that folder, then type a name for your file in the File name field.

| 🛯 Save As | × | ? – 🗇 🗙 |
|---|-----------------------------|----------|
| \leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \bigstar This PC \rightarrow Documents \rightarrow \checkmark \eth Se | arch Documents 🔎 | |
| Organize 🔻 New folder | ::: - ? | |
| 🗄 Documents 🖈 ^ Name | Date modified Type | |
| Pictures Custom Office Templates | 4/12/2017 1:35 PM File fold | en F. |
| Videos | | |
| 🕎 Microsoft Word | | |
| 💪 OneDrive | | |
| This PC | | |
| 💣 Network 🗸 < | 3 | |
| File name: Sales Plan | ~ | |
| Save as type: Word Document | ~ | |
| Authors: user Tags: Add a | tag | |
| Save Thumbnail | | |
| ∧ Hide Folders Tools ▼ | Save Cancel | |
| Options | | |
| [4] | | • |

Ensure that you are saving the document as the correct file type. There are a variety of options to choose, but you will almost always choose Word Document (which is the default).

Click Save in the bottom-left corner next to the Cancel button. Congratulations! Your file is saved! As you continue to edit your file, you can click the save icon, select File>Save, or use the shortcut Ctrl+S (Cmnd+S for Macs) to save the file again.



| Save As | | | | × | | Ø | |
|--|---------|------------------|--------|----|--|---|--|
| $\leftarrow \rightarrow$ \checkmark \bigstar This PC \Rightarrow Documents | 5 V | Search Documents | | ρ | | | |
| Organize 🔻 New folder | | | | ? | | | |
| | | | | н; | | | |
| Authors: user | Tags: 🖌 | Add a tag | | | | | |
| Hide Folders Isoupeux | Tools 🔻 | Save | Cancel | | | | |
| Ontions | | | | | | | |

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18582

Save As

If you have already saved a file, you can save another copy of it in a different location or with a different name or file extension. Click File>Save As and the Save dialog box will once again appear.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18583

Contributors and Attributions

All rights reserved content

• Word 2016: Saving and Sharing Documents. **Authored by**: GCFLearnFree.org. **Located at**: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=Az-i8sZHwcE. **License**: *All Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Saving Files. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.4: Saving Files is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.5: File Extensions

Learning Outcomes

• Distinguish different file types in Word and when to use them.

Let's start by taking a look at the following scenario:

Roy is working on a report that needs to be done before noon so his coworker Salomé can present the data to some prospective customers. Roy just barely manages to finish formatting the final draft. Quickly he saves the file in Microsoft Word, emails the file to Salomé, and leaves to have a well-deserved lunch. When he gets back, Salomé tells him she couldn't open his file, and as a result she didn't have the data the customers wanted and lost the sale.

Roy tries to figure out what went wrong and learns that Salomé is running a different version of Microsoft Word than he is, but he's not sure how that caused the problem.

What can cause this kind of problem? Using the wrong file extension.

A file extension is a shortened form of the file type at the end of a file name. These extensions determine your document's file type, and the file type determines what programs can open the file. While most programs can read most file types, not every program can read every file type.

The default file type is **.docx** (Word Document). This file extension works in most Microsoft Word programs. However, there may be times when you want to save a different file type. For example, older versions of Microsoft Word and computers without Microsoft Word installed cannot read .docx file types. If you create a .docx file and send it to someone who has an old version of Word or no Word at all, that person probably won't be able to read your file. If you have an old version of Word (2003 or older), you can open .docx files if you download Microsoft's compatibility package.

Because of the variation in file type compatibility, it's important to be mindful of what file types are readable by the programs other people have.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18585

Below the field for the file name is the Save as type field, which has a dropdown menu with file extensions.

Common File Extensions in Word Processing

- .docx (Word Document)—default Microsoft Word file, works with Microsoft Word 2007 and later. Improved scripts, macros, and other features from the older .doc.
- .doc (Word 97–2003 Document)—default Microsoft Word file from Microsoft Word 2003 and older.
- .txt (Plain Text)—also known as plain text format. This file type saves only the words you type—no images, no formatting, just raw text.
- .rtf (Rich Text Format)—Like plain text, RTF saves only words, but it does save some basic formatting (like bold and italics)
- .pdf (PDF)—PDF files are readable with Microsoft Edge (which comes with Windows 10), the free program Adobe Acrobat, and other image-viewing programs. Viewers cannot edit PDF files, but they will be able to view them regardless of their operating system or what programs they have.

3.5: File Extensions is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.6: Introduction to Basic Text Formatting

What you'll learn to do: format text in Microsoft Word for clarity.

Knowing how to use Word's formatting tools can help you do your work faster and make your documents more attractive and easy to read.

Compare the documents below. Which one communicates more clearly?

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Basic Text Formatting. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.6: Introduction to Basic Text Formatting is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.7: Selecting and Moving Text

Learning Objectives

• Reorganize text within a paragraph.

To select text, click and drag your cursor across the text.

| Subject: New Shelves | Subject: New Shelves |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| I Some of you may have noticed | Some of you may have noticed |
| beginning to sag. We will be rep | beginning to sag. We will be rep |
| week. The shelves will be replac | week. The shelves will be replace |
| limits to customers during that | limits to customers during that |

The text that is highlighted in gray is selected text. Selected text can be copied, cut, or pasted. Many features and settings in Microsoft Office are applied only to text that is selected.

Moving Text

Like files and folders, there are many ways to move text once it is selected:

- Cut using Ctrl+X (Cmnd+X), move your cursor to the new location of text, then paste to the new location with Ctrl+V (Cmnd+V)
- Copy using Ctrl+C (Cmnd+C), move your cursor to the new location of text, then paste to the new location with Ctrl+V (Cmnd+V)
- Right-click selected text, select either Copy or Cut, then right-click the new location of text and select Paste

You can move text between pages, between paragraphs, or even between programs or windows. For example, you can cut text you typed in a Word document and paste it into an email, or you can copy text from the internet and paste it into a PowerPoint presentation.

In many programs, you can also drag text to a new location within the same program. For example, in Microsoft Word, you can select text, then click and drag it to a new location within the Word document.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18586

Review

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Selecting and Moving Text. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

• Word 2016 - Move, Copy, and Delete Text. **Authored by**: Professor Adam Morgan. **Located at**: https://youtu.be/f8jBx5_dz7w. **License**: *All Rights Reserved*

3.7: Selecting and Moving Text is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.8: Bold, Italics, Underline

Learning Outcomes

• Make text italic, bold, or underlined.

When formatting a document, you may need to emphasize or distinguish words. You can do this with **bold**, *italics*, <u>underline</u>, or <u>*all*</u> <u>*three*</u>.

To bold, italicize, or underline, select the text you want to change. Then, select the Bold, Italics, or Underline button in the Home tab as shown below.

| ⊟ 5- | - O = | | | | Document | 1 - Word | | Sign in | n 🖭 | | 7 | × |
|-------------|--|---|--|--|--|---|--|---|--|----------|------|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ∕£ si | nare | \square |
| Paste | BI | ⊔ • abe L • A • | | | ┋═╶╴┶╤╌╷╺═ ═╶═╶═╎┇═╺ ═╶╴╽ᢓ↓│¶ | → AaE | BbCcDc AaBb Iormal 1 No | b CcDc / | AaBbC(Heading 1 | Editing | | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | Fai | Paragraph | E. | Stj | yles | | 6 | | ~ |
| | To: Fro Dat Sub Sor beg wer limi The | All Emplo m: Sierra e: Septen nject: New ne of you inning to ek. The sh its to cust following Kitch Kitch Kitch Hom ase direct | yees Rowan, Store boer 1, 2019 I Shelves may have no sag. We will le elves will be omers during g aisles will be nen storage ne goods clea customers lo | e Manager ticed in rec be replacin replaced 1 g that time e affected: es furniture irance pooking for i | cent weeks that th g those shelves w :00–4:00 a.m., du as a safety precau tems in the affect | te shelves in ith new, reir ring our leas titon. ed aisles to t | the home good forced metal s t busy hours. Si he Outdoor Fu | ds section helves sta everal aisl rniture ar | are arting next les will be off- nd Patio | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 1 of 112 | words [| P | | | | I | | lo - | - | + | 90% |

You can also select the text, then use a shortcut:

| Bold | Ctrl+B (Command+B for Macs) |
|-----------|-----------------------------|
| Italics | Ctrl+I (Command+I for Macs) |
| Underline | Ctrl+U (Command+U for Macs) |

Applying the formatting twice removes the formatting. For example, selecting bolded text and then clicking the Bold button will remove the bold formatting.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18587

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18588

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Bold, Italics, Underline. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.8: Bold, Italics, Underline is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.9: Fonts

Learning Objectives

• Change the size, font, and color of text.

Changing the font and adding color can make your document much more attractive—and more likely to attract people to your message. The font options can all be found in the Home tab on the left.

| H 5 | - U - | | | | Document | :1 - W | ord | | Sign | in 🗹 | | - 0 | |
|-------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|--------|---------------------------------------|--------|---------------|----------------------|---------|---------------------|---|---|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mail | ings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | | $eta_{\!$ | \square |
| Paste | Calibri (B I A - a | Body) <u>U</u> - aba∈ x Z - A A | + 11 ¹ 2 x ² & Na + A [*] A | | ╴┋═╶╴┶╤╴╵╺═ ═╶═╘═│┇═╺ ╴╝╺╵╽┇↓│¶ | ÷ | AaBb 1 Nor | CcDc Aa rmal 11 N | aBbCcDc | AaBbC(Heading 1 | E | C diting | |
| Clipboard 5 | | Font | | 5 | Paragraph | 5 | | | Styles | | 5 | | ~ |

Older versions of Word may have font options in the top-left corner or in the Format menu. If you have an older version of Word, search the internet for where to find the font options in your specific version.

Font Size

The font size is a number that indicates how many points are in the height of the text, or high tall the text is in points. A point is 1/72 of an inch, so a 12-point font would be 12/72 of an inch. Most people are comfortable reading 10-point fonts or higher, so a 10- or 12-point font is a good choice for writing a paragraph of text. However, many situations call for larger or smaller text.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18589

To change the font size in Word, go to the Home tab and click on the dropdown menu for the number in the font ribbon. You can pick a number and then start typing in that size. For a preview, select the text you want to change, then open the font size dropdown menu and hover your cursor over each number to see the text change. Finalize that size change by clicking the size number.



You can also choose a custom size by typing a number and hitting enter.







You can also increase or decrease the font size by clicking the Increase Font Size and Decrease Font Size buttons.



Practice Question https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18590

Font

The font changes the styling of letters in your text. The menu for changing the font is in the Home tab near the top-left corner. Like the font size menu, hovering your mouse over each font option will change selected text so you can see a preview of what each font looks like.





| ⊟ 5- | - ⁽⁷) - | | | | Document | t1 - Word | | Sign | in 🖭 | | 0 | × |
|-------------|---|---------------------|---|--------|--|------------|------------|--------|--------------------|----|-------------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell | | ∕⊊ Share | \Box |
| Paste | Franklin (B I ! A + ^a | Gothic Hea U_ → | avy • 48 x ₂ x ² & Aa • A | | ┋═╶╴ [┶] ╤╺╴│ € ═╶═╴╞╎┇═╺ ╩╶╴│ Ѯ↓ │ ¶ | → AaE | BbCcDc AaE | BbCcDc | AaBbC Heading 1 | | o diting | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | G. | Paragraph | 5 | S | tyles | | G. | | ~ |
| | | I | Bu | y 1 | notebooks an | d planners | . Fr | 'e(| e | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 8 words | 02 | | | | | | | R | | + | 90% |

If you already know what font you want, you can start typing the name to skip to it in the menu.



Font Color

What's life without a little color? Select the text you want to change, then click the font color dropdown menu, which will give you a wide array of colors to choose from.



| ₽ 5 | - O - | | | | Document | 1 - Word | | Sign | in 🖻 | | ٥ | × |
|-------------|---|---------------------------------------|--|-------------|------------------------------|--------------|-------------------------|--------------------|---------------------|------------|---------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell me | - A | . Share | \Box |
| Paste | Franklin (B I A + ^{aly} | Gothic Hea <u>U</u> → abe → A → | $x = \frac{1}{2}$ | | ⊇┽ѷ҉ӷѵ│҈ ══│╬╕ ฃҡ│Ѯ↓│¶ | | aBbCcDc Aa Normal TN | aBbCcDc No Spac | AaBbC(Heading 1 | ▲ P Editir | ng | |
| Clipboard 🕞 | | | Automatic | | ^o aragraph | G. | | Styles | | 5 | | ^ |
| | | Stan | dard Colors dard Colors More Colors. Gradient | , ntepol | Ge oks an | e t : | 1 F lanne f | ** C |) | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 5 of 8 wo | ords []2 | | | | | Ĩ | | | | + | 90% |

If you want a different color, you can choose More Colors... (below Standard Colors in the dropdown menu) to bring up a dialog box with even more options.





| 🗄 5- | | | | | Document | I - Word | | Sign | in 🖭 | | Ð | × |
|-------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|-------------------|--|-------------|---------------------------|------------------------|---------------------|---|-------------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell n | | ∕⊊ Share | \Box |
| Paste | Freestyle S B I U A + 4 | cript • abc • <u>A</u> • . | ▼ 48 x₂ x² Aa ▼ A[*] | | ┋═╺╴ [┶] ╤╺╴│╺═ ═══│┇═╺ ╩╺╴│Ѯ↓│ ¶ | ■ ■ ■ | BbCcDc AaE lormal 1 No | B bCcDc Spac | AaBbCo Heading 1 | E | o diting | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | rs. | Paragraph | 15 | S | tyles | | 5 | | ~ |
| | | B | uy ni | 1 otebo | Ge ooks an | t : d pl | L F | re |)e | | | 4 |
| Page 1 of 1 | 8 words | 02 | | | | | I | | | | + | 90% |

Case

Case controls how much of your text is capitalized, or whether your text is upper*case* or lower*case*. This is a useful feature if you want to change the case of your text without having to type it again.



Case Definitions

- sentence case: text starts with a capital letter, like a sentence
- **lowercase:** text is all lowercase, with no capital letters
- uppercase: text is all uppercase, with all capital letters
- capitalize each word: each word is capitalized
- toggle case: reverses the case of whatever is selected (uppercase letters become lowercase and vice versa)



| <i>Notebooks and plänners</i> Sentence case. | notebooks and planners lowercase |
|---|-------------------------------------|
| NOTEBOOKS AND PLANNERS | Notebooks And Planners |
| UPPERCASE | Capitalize Each Word |
| | |

3.9: Fonts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



3.10: Alignment, Justification, and Indentation

Learning Objectives

• Change alignment of text.

Alignment

To align or justify text, move your cursor into the paragraph you want to change, then click the left-align, right-align, centered, or justify buttons.

| . 5 | - U - | Ŧ | | | Documer | nt1 - W | ord | | Sign | in l | Ŧ | - | ð | × |
|-------------|---------------------------|--|-------------------------------|--------|--|--------------------------|--------------------|-------|------------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|------|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Maili | ngs R | eview | View | © Te | ll me | R₄ s | hare | \square |
| Paste | Calibri (B I A - a | (Body) <u>U</u> - ab∈ 3 V - <u>A</u> - / | • 11 • ĸ₂ x² 🎸 Aa • A A | | ±= + *= + € ≡ = ≡ □ • 2↓ ¶ | ≣ ∋ ≣ ▼ Γ | AaBbCcl 1 Norma | Dc Aa | BbCcDc o Spac | AaBb Heading | C(∓ ⊒ 1 ∓ | P Editing | | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | 1 | G I | Paragraph | - G | | | Styles | | G | | | ~ |

Alignment is how text flows in relation to the rest of the page (or column, table cell, text box, etc.). There are four main alignments: left, right, center, and justified.

- Left-aligned text is text that is aligned with a left edge. You can also left-align your text with the shortcut Ctrl+L (Cmnd+L).
- **Right-aligned text** is text that is aligned with a right edge. You can also right-align your text with the shortcut **Ctrl+R** (**Cmnd+R**).
- **Centered text** is text that is centered between two edges. You can also center-align your text with the shortcut **Ctrl+E** (**Cmnd+E**).

| Left-aligned | Centered | Right-aligned | | | |
|---|---|---|--|--|--|
| Buy 1 Get 1 Free Notebooks and planners While supplies last Sale ends September 25 | Buy 1 Get 1 Free Notebooks and planners While surplies last Sale ends September 25 | Buy 1 Get 1 Free Notebooks and planners While supplies last Sale ends September 25 | | | |
| | ≣ | | | | |

Justification controls the spacing between words. A justified text increases the space between words to fill the entire line so that it is aligned with both the left and right edges. You can also center-align your text with the shortcut **Ctrl+J** (**Cmnd+J**).

| Some of non-may have noticed in neuron weeks that the shakes in the home goods access on a property of the system | Some of neurone have noticed in recent weeks that the always in the large good rection are beginning to age. We will be replacing those advices with new, readrocal metal shows agood rection are beginning to begin the regulation of the start of the start of the results of the start of the results of the start of the results of the start of |
|---|---|
| | |





You can also change the alignment and justification settings in the paragraph dialog box.

Practice Question
https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18591
Paragraph Dialog Box: Justification and Alignment
Open the paragraph dialog box by clicking the small arrow icon in the bottom-right corner of the Paragraph group.

L S · O = Document1 - Word Sign in ⊡ − □ X



The dropdown menu to change the alignment is near the top of the dialog box.

| Paragraph | ? | × |
|--|--------------|---|
| Indents and Spacing Line and Page Breaks | | |
| Alignment: Justified | | |
| Outline level: Body Text | | |
| Indentation Left: 0° 🔶 Special: | B <u>y</u> : | |

Indentation

In many documents, indenting is a good way to distinguish the start of a new paragraph, especially when there is no paragraph spacing.

To indent, hit the Tab key once on your keyboard at the start of a paragraph.

Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00-4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be offlimits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: kitchen appliances, kitchen & dining furniture, kitchen storage, and home goods clearance. Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas.

One tab at the beginning of the first line of a paragraph.

For more control over indentation settings, use the paragraph dialog box.

Paragraph Dialog Box: Indentation

Open the paragraph dialog box by clicking the small arrow icon in the bottom-right corner of the Paragraph group.

| | | | ÷ | | | Document | 1 - Word | | Sign | in 🗹 | - 0 | × |
|---------|---------|-------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------|--------|---------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------|--------|---------------------|--------------|-----------|
| File | Г | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ∕4 Share | \square |
| Paste | ∦ ≣∎ | Calibri B I A - a | (Body) <u>U</u> - abc V - A - | | | ┋═╶╴┶╤╌╷╺═ ═╶═╶═│┇═╺ ╚╝╺╷│ᢓ↓│ ¶ | → Aa | Dc AaE Normal 1 No | BbCcDc | AaBbC(Heading 1 | P Editing | |
| Clipboa | rd 🗔 | | Font | | G. | Paragraph | 5 | S | Styles | 5 | | ~ |

The indentation section is toward the middle of the dialog box.



| Paragraph | ? | \times | | |
|--|--------------|----------|--|--|
| Indents and Spacing Line and Page Breaks | | | | |
| General | | | | |
| Alignment: Justified V | | | | |
| Outline level: Body Text Collapsed by default | | | | |
| Indentation | 1 | | | |
| Left: 0° 🔶 Special: | B <u>y</u> : | | | |
| Right: 0" 🔹 (none) 🗸 | | * | | |
| Spacing <u>B</u> efore: 0 pt Line spacing: | <u>A</u> t: | | | |
| After Ret Multiple | h 07 | - | | |
| Don't add spa <u>c</u> e between paragraphs of the same style Preview | | | | |
| Protocol: Peragraph Peragraph Protocol: Peragraph Peragr | | | | |
| Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paratrash Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph | | | | |
| Tabs Set As Default OK | Ca | ncel | | |

The Left and Right settings indent the entire paragraph to the left and right.

| Indentation Comparison | | |
|--|--|--|
| Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00-4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aidles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: kitchen appliances, kitchen & dining furniture, kitchen storage, and home goods clearance. Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas. | | |
| Without indentation | | |
| Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00-4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: kitchen appliances, kitchen & dining furniture, kitchen storage, and home goods clearance. Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas. | | |
| With 1-inch indentation on left and right sides | | |

The Special dropdown menu allows you to choose to indent the first line of the paragraph or to create a hanging indent. Upon choosing First or Hanging, another field will appear to let you choose how big the first line or hanging indent will be.





Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replaying those shelves with new, reinforced matal shelves starting new week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00–4:00 a.m., during our least tury hour. Several sites will be offensive site will be and the shelves will be replaced 1:00–4:00 a.m., during our least tury hour. Several sites will be offensive. The following alides will be affected: kitchen applances, kitchen & ßüning furniture, kitchen storage, and home goods clearance. Please direct customers looking for items in the affected ailes to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas.

Hanging indent

Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00-4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: kitchen appliances, kitchen & dining furniture, kitchen storage, and home goods clearance. Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas.

First line indent

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18592

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Align Left. Authored by: Arthur Shlain. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/align-left/60845/. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- Align Center. Authored by: Arthur Shlain. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/align-center/60844/. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*
- Align Right. Authored by: Arthur Shlain. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/align-right/60847/. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*
- Justify Text. Authored by: Arthur Shlain. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/justify-text/60846/. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Alignment and Line Spacing. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.10: Alignment, Justification, and Indentation is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.


3.11: Line and Paragraph Spacing

Learning Objectives

• Change line spacing of text.

Line Spacing

Line spacing is the distance between lines of text. Loose line spacing can make text much more readable, while tight line spacing can fit more text in a space.

To change the line spacing, select the lines you want to change. Then go to the Home tab and find the line spacing button in the Paragraph section. The line spacing button triggers a dropdown menu from which you can select a line spacing.



The numbers in the line spacing dropdown menu reflect how much the line spacing will increase relative to the size of the line. For example, a line spacing of 1 means the line spacing will be as large as one line, a line spacing of 2 means the line spacing will be the size of two lines, and so on.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18593

Paragraph Dialog Box: Line Spacing

Open the paragraph dialog box by clicking the small arrow icon in the bottom-right corner of the Paragraph group.





| - 🖬 🔊 | - U = | | | Document1 - Word | | | | | in 🖻 | | ٥ | |
|-------------|------------------|------------------------------------|--------|------------------|---|------------------|-------------------|-----------------------|---------------------|-------------|-------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layou | t References | Mailin | igs Revie | v View | ♀ Tell me | <u>م</u> | Share | \Box |
| Paste | Calibri (B I | Body) <u>U</u> - abe V - A - | | × | - \$≡ - \$ <u></u> , - € ≡ = ≡ \$≡ - ⊞ - 2↓ 9 | ≣ •≡ • ⊺ | Aa Do Xavormal | AaBbCcDເ ୩ No Spac | AaBbC(Heading 1 | <pre></pre> | 9 | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | Es . | Paragraph | 5 | | Styles | | G. | | ~ |

You can use the Line spacing dropdown menu to choose Single, 1.5, or Double line spacing. The At least option lets you set a minimum point value for the spacing, and Exactly lets you set an exact point value. Finally, the Multiple option lets you set a line spacing greater than Double (for example, 3 for triple spacing).

| <u>B</u> efore: | 0 pt ≑ | Li <u>n</u> e spacing: | <u>A</u> t: |
|-----------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|
| After: | 8 pt 🌲 | Double | ✓ |
| 🗌 Don't a | dd spa <u>c</u> e between p | Single | |
| | | Double | |
| Draviau | | At least | |
| FIEVIEW | | Exactly | |
| | | Multiple | |

Paragraph Spacing

You may have noticed that by default, Word adds a space between each paragraph. You can change the size of that space or eliminate it completely by changing the paragraph spacing. There is an option to Add Space Before Paragraph or Remove Space After Paragraph in the line spacing menu.



For more control over the paragraph spacing, go to the paragraph dialog box.

Paragraph Dialog Box: Paragraph Spacing

Open the paragraph dialog box by clicking the small arrow icon in the bottom-right corner of the Paragraph group.

| 1 5 | | | | | Document | t1 - Word | | Sign | in 🖻 | - 0 | × |
|-------------|-----------------------------|---|--|--------|--------------------------------|-----------|--------|--------|---------------------|--------------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ∕4 Share | \Box |
| Paste | Calibri (B B I A + ab | ody) <u>U</u> = abc > '= <u>A</u> = A | ▼ 11 (2 x² (2 x² (4 x²) | | ·┋╴·╠╴╵┋ ╕══╎┇╸ ·⊞╶╎ᢓ↓╎¶ | Aa 1 M | Dr AaE | BbCcDc | AaBbC(Heading 1 | P Editing | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | G. | Paragraph | 5 | 2 | tyles | 5 | | ~ |

The Spacing section controls how much space comes before and after a paragraph. Here, you can increase or decrease the amount of points that come before and after the paragraph you have selected.





| Indents and Spacing Line and Page Breaks General Alignment: Quttine level: Body Text Quttine level: Body Text Indentation | | |
|--|--------------|------|
| General Alignment: Ustified Outline level: Body Text Collapsed by defau Indentation Left: O Special: Bight: O Special: Bight: O Special: Bight: D Special: Bight: Bight: D Special: Bight: | | |
| Alignment: Justified Qutline level: Body Text Body Text Collapsed by default Indentation | | |
| Quttine level: Body Text Collapsed by defau Indentation | | |
| Uttime rever: Body Text Indentation Left: 0° Bight: 0° Mirror indents Spacing Before: Optime Line spacing: After: 8 pt Prove ded cases between arragraphs of the same style Preview Preview Praces Prograph Periods Prograph Parists Pari | | |
| Indentation Left: 0 Special: Bight: 0 N Particle Special: Bight: 0 N Particle Special: Spacing Before: 0 pt P Particle Special: Line spacing: After: 8 pt P Particle Multiple Particle Special specia | π | |
| Left: 0° • Special: Bight: 0° • View (none) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | |
| Bight: 0* Image: I | B <u>y</u> : | |
| Mirror indents Spacing Before: Opt | - | * |
| Spacing Before: Opt Une spacing: Line spacing: Line spacing: Multiple Preview | | |
| Before: 0 pt Image: Sector Se | | |
| After: B pt After | <u>A</u> t: | |
| Preview P | - 1.07 | - |
| Preview Previe | e | |
| Previous | | |
| Produce Dragish Privation Program Network Previous Pragramh Produces Tragish Privation Pragmach Produces Tragish Privation Pragmach Privation Pragmach Privation Pragmach Privations Private Privations Private Privations Private Privations Private Priv | | |
| Please direct construers looking for thems in the effected airles to the Outdoor Furnitu Accessories areas. Following Paragnaph following Paragnap | paph paph | |
| Following Pangnaph Following Pangnaph Following Pangnaph Following Pangnaph Following Fangnaph Following Pangnaph Following Pan | re and Patio | |
| Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following Paragraph Following | g Paragraph | |
| | a Paramath | |
| Tabs Set As Default OK | Car | ncel |
| | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18594

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Line and Paragraph Spacing. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.11: Line and Paragraph Spacing is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.12: Introduction to Workspace Tools

What you'll learn to do: use spell check and find and replace tools.

The tools covered in this section are not necessary for creating a good document. However, they will make creating and editing documents much easier and save you time in the long run.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Workspace Tools. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.12: Introduction to Workspace Tools is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.13: Spell Check and Dictionaries

Learning Objectives

• Correct spelling and grammar errors.

| All the world's a stage, And all the men and women merel | y players. |
|---|------------------------------|
| They have their exits and their entr | Fragment (consider revising) |
| His acts being seven ages. | Ignore |
| Shakespeare, Hamlet act 2, scene 7, lines | 😨 Grammar |
| | About this Sentence |

As the screenshot above demonstrates, Spell Check and Grammar Check are potentially useful tools, but very fallible ones.

You've probably seen the angry red wavy lines indicating a misspelled word as you type a document. Sometimes, those red lines may have been helpful, saving you from making an embarrassing typo. Other times, those red lines are just annoying and distracting. In this section, we will cover how Spellcheck works and how you can best use it to your advantage.

How Spell Checker Works

Look at this color. Look at this colour.

I synced my iPad with iTunes.

At top, the American English dictionary won't recognize correctly spelled British English words. At bottom, Word's dictionary may highlight correct words not included in its dictionary.

The spell checker tool compares every word you type against its dictionary, or database of words. If a word isn't in its dictionary, the word is marked misspelled with a red underline. This means words that are correctly spelled may be marked as misspelled, especially brand names, specialized industry or scientific terms, and words in another language. With a little tweaking, you can teach Microsoft Word (and other Office programs) how to spell uncommon words and names you use regularly. That way, genuine mistakes are not lost in a sea of red underlines.



Adding Words to the Dictionary

The simplest method to add words to the dictionary is to right-click the marked word and select Add. If you do not wish to add the word but do not want to see the red line, you can select Ignore or Ignore All. (Ignore ignores that word once; Ignore All ignores the word through the entire document.)

I only eat <u>SuperMegaGood</u> granola bars.

| (No Spelling Suggestions) | |
|---------------------------|--|
| Ignore Ignore All | |
| Add | |
| Spelling | |

Keep in mind that adding a word to the dictionary will not necessarily add all versions of that word. For example, after adding *iPad* to the dictionary, the dictionary will still not recognize *iPads*.

The good news is that adding a word to the Microsoft Word dictionary will also add it to the dictionary for other Office products such as Excel and PowerPoint.





The dictionary is case-sensitive. Adding *iPad* will not add *ipad* (a good thing, since *ipad* is incorrect). Keep this in mind if the word you want to add to the dictionary is capitalized because it is at the beginning of a sentence.

Googling yourself can turn up interesting results. He was googling the street name.

Googling vourself can turn up interesting results. He was googling the street name.



Googling yourself can turn up interesting results. He was googling the street name.

Adding the capitalized form of the word will not add the lowercase form of the word. To get around this, add the lowercase word to the dictionary first.

Keep in mind that adding a word adds it to whichever language dictionary you are using. For example, adding "c'est la vie" to the dictionary tells Microsoft Word that "c'est la vie" is an English word. That may be nice for the occasional borrowed term, but it will get overwhelming if you find yourself using a lot of foreign words not typically used in English vernacular. We will cover other language dictionaries later in this section.

Bonus: Switching Language Dictionaries

You can switch your dictionary to a different language. Go to Tools > Dictionary, Dictionary, and choose a different language.

| | Before answering the test questions, carefully read the instructions. Antes de responder el examen, lee detenidamente las instrucciones. |
|---|---|
| Before answering the test questions, carefully read the instructions. Antes de responder el <mark>examen, le edetenidamente las instrucciones.</mark> I have given instructions to my staff to pay close attention to this issue. He <u>dado instrucciones</u> a mi personal de <u>que preste</u> gran a <u>tención a este tema</u> . | l <u>have given instructions to my staff to pay close attention to this issue</u> . He dado instrucciones a mi personal de que preste gran atención a este tema. |
| Please fill out the following form to submit to our website. Por favor de llenar la sigulente form a para someter a nuestro sitio web. Fill out the fields below and send your résumé to our HR department. Relene el siguiente formulario y enviar su curriculum a nuestro departamento de recursos humanos. A passage of bilingual text using the American English dictionary. | Please fill out the following form to submit to our website. Por favor de llenar la siguiente forma para someter a nuestro sitio web. Fill out the fields below and send your résumé to our HR department. Rellene el siguiente formulario y enviar su currículum a nuestro departamento de recursos humanos. |
| | A passage of bilingual text using the Spanish dictionary. |

Grammar Check

Grammar check works much like spell check, searching through your document for grammatical and style errors rather than spelling errors. Grammar check underlines words or phrases in blue or green, depending on your version of Word.

| It will <u>effect</u> the outcome. | It will <u>effect</u> the outcome. |
|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|
|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|

Right-click on the underlined word or phrase to see suggested corrections. You can also choose Ignore, Ignore Once, or Ignore All if the "error" is actually correct. Like spell check, grammar check is prone to errors. In some versions of Word, you may see an Ignore Rule or "Don't check for this issue" option. Clicking Ignore Rule will make Grammar check ignore that specific grammar rule in your document while still looking for other grammar errors.





Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18595

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Word the critic. **Authored by**: Anders Sandberg. **Located at**: https://www.flickr.com/photos/arenamontanus/2753162618. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Spellcheck and Dictionaries. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.13: Spell Check and Dictionaries is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.14: Find and Replace

Learning Objectives

• Find and replace text.

Find and Replace helps you to find words or formats in a document and can let you replace all instances of a word or format. This is particularly handy in long documents.

To use Find and Replace, use the shortcut Ctrl+H or navigate to Editing in the Home tab of the ribbon, then choose Replace. To just quickly find something, use the shortcut Ctrl+F (Cmnd+F) or navigate to Home>Editing>Find.



Replace

Use the shortcut Ctrl+H or navigate to Home>Editing>Replace to reach the Find and Replace dialog box.

| Find and Replace | ? | × |
|---|-------|--------|
| Fin <u>d</u> Re <u>p</u> lace <u>G</u> o To | | |
| Find what: | | \sim |
| | | |
| Replace with: | | \sim |
| | | |
| More >> Replace Replace All Find Next | Cance | el |

Type what you want to find in the Find what field, and the replacement in the Replace with field. (Note that you can move the Find and Replace dialog box by clicking the title bar and dragging it elsewhere so you can see what was behind it.)

Find Next highlights the first occurrence of the Find word. Clicking Find Next again will highlight the second occurrence, clicking Find Next again will highlight the next occurrence, and so on.

| 🗄 5×0 ∓ | | Documer | nt1 - Word | | Sign | in l | Ŧ | - | ٥ | × |
|---|-------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|-----------------------|---------------------|---------------|---------|--------|------|
| File Home Insert Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Ø Te | ll me | Я, s | hare | |
| Find and | Replace | | | | | | | ? | × | |
| Paste B I U - abe X ₂ Find | Re <u>p</u> lace | <u>G</u> o To | | | | | | | | |
| \rightarrow $A \rightarrow ab \rightarrow A$ \rightarrow Aa Find wh | at: Rov | vango | | | | | | | \sim | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Font | | | | | | | | | | ^ |
| Replace | with: Rov | vanGo | | | | | | | ~ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| More | >> | | Replace | Renla | e All | Find Ne | vt | Cancel | | |
| | | | Керлисе | nepiai | ас <u>А</u> п | | <u>.</u> | curreer | | |
| New Rowango App | | | | | | | | | | |
| Want great savings on the go? The r | new Rowa | ngo app is fre | e and availab | le on iOS ai | nd Andr | oid. First | t- | | | |
| time users who download the app g using the Rowango app to shop get | et a coup a 2% disco | on for 20% of ount on all fut | ure Rowan p | irchase. In a urchases. Li | addition og in usi | , custom ng vour | iers | | | |
| Rowango credentials and watch the | savings p | ile up. | | | 0 | 0, | | | | |
| Rowango also offers a new long-ask | ed-for fea | ture: mobile | oayment. Rov | vango digiti | izes and | replace | s the | | | |
| credit or debit magnetic stripe card cards credit cards gift cards lovalty | transactio | on at credit ca | rd terminals l les as well as | by allowing | users to sales n | o store d | ebit ns on | | | |
| their smartphone. | y curus, ur | ia coupon cot | ics, us well u. | reaccining | , sures p | ronnotio | 115 011 | | | |
| Mahila Commarca | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 1 of 729 words | | | | <pre>Image: Image: Imag</pre> | | - 18 | | 1 | + | 1009 |
| Find Next The first Powange | ic bigh | lighted | | | | | | | | |

Find Next. The first Rowango is highlighted.

Clicking Replace replaces only the highlighted occurrence of the Find word.



| 🗒 S- O 🔻 | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------|------|---------|------|
| File Home Insert D | Design Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Ø Tell me | R | . Share | |
| <u>م</u> ا | Find and Replace | | | | | | ? | × | |
| B I U → abe X ₂ | Fin <u>d</u> Replace | <u>G</u> o To | | | | | | | |
| - Aa | Find what: Rov | wango | | | | | | \sim | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Font | | | | | | | | | ^ |
| | Replace with: Row | wanGo | | | | | | ~ | 1 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | More >> | | Replace | Repla | ce All | Find Next | Clos | e | |
| Now PowanCo | morett | | Teblace | Repro | | | | | |
| New Rowando |) Ahh | | | | | | | | |
| Want great savings on the | go? The new Rowa | ango app is fre | e and availab | ole on iOS a | nd Androi | d. First- | | | |
| time users who download using the Rowango app to | the app get a coup shop get a 2% disc | on for 20% off ount on all fut | their first pu ure Rowan p | irchase. In urchases. L | addition, c .og in using | sustomers g your | | | |
| Rowango credentials and | watch the savings p | oile up. | | | - | | | | |
| Rowango also offers a nev | v long-asked-for fea | ature: mobile j | payment. Ro | wango digit | izes and re | eplaces the | | | |
| credit or debit magnetic si cards, credit cards, gift car | tripe card transaction rds, loyalty cards, ai | on at credit ca nd coupon coc | rd terminals des, as well a: | by allowing s redeemin | gusers to s g sales pro | tore debit motions on | | | |
| their smartphone. | | | | | | | | | |
| Mobile Comm | erce | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 1 of 729 words | | | | | | Fo | - | + | 100% |

Replace. The first Rowango is replaced with RowanGo. The other Rowango words remain the same.

Replace All replaces every instance of the Find word with the Replace word. A small dialog box will appear to tell you how many replacements were made.

| 🗄 S- O = | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|---------------------------------------|--|--|------|-------|------|
| File Home Insert D | Design Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ∑ Tell me | 2 | Share | |
| Paste A Paste | Find and Replace Find Replace Find what: Rov | <u>G</u> o To vango | | | | | ? | × | ~ |
| New RowanGo Want great savings on the time users who download using the RowanGo app to RowanGo credentials and | More >> More >> ADD go? The new the app get a shop get a 250 orac watch the savings p | All done. | We made 6 rep OK | × placements. | te <u>A</u> II nd Andr iddition, cog in usi | Find Next oid. First- customers ng your | Clos | e | |
| RowanGo also offers a new credit or debit magnetic st cards, credit cards, gift car their smartphone. Mobile Comme | v long-asked-for fea tripe card transactio ds, loyalty cards, ar ETCE | ature: mobile on at credit ca nd coupon coo | payment. Ro rd terminals des, as well a | wanGo dig by allowin s redeemir | gitizes and g users to ng sales pi | l replaces the store debit romotions on | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 1 of 729 words | | | | | | R - | - | + | 1009 |

Replace All. Notice that every instance of Rowango has been replaced with RowanGo. (highlighting added for this course and not part of the document)

The Pitfalls of Replace All

Be careful when you use Replace All. It will replace *every* occurrence of the Find phrase, including occurrences you hadn't intended to replace. For example, replacing every "kg" with "kilogram" could result in the word *backilogramround* instead of *background*. Use spaces in the Find field to avoid this: replacing "kg" with "kilogram" will leave *background* the way it is. Some versions of Word also have a Whole Words checkbox option; this will ignore when a search term appears in the middle of a word.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

Replace: More Options

Click the More>>> button in the bottom-left corner of the Find and Replace dialog box to find more options. There are many options here, but we will focus on three.



| Find and Replac | e | ? × | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Fin <u>d</u> Rep | lace <u>G</u> o To | | | | | | | | | | |
| Find what: | RowanGo | \sim | | | | | | | | | |
| Options: | Search Down | | | | | | | | | | |
| Replace w <u>i</u> th: | Replace with: RowanGo | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| << <u>L</u> ess | <u>R</u> eplace R | place <u>A</u> ll <u>F</u> ind Next Cancel | | | | | | | | | |
| Search Option | s ———— | | | | | | | | | | |
| Search: Do | wn 🗸 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 🗌 Match ca | e | Match prefix | | | | | | | | | |
| Find who | le words only | Match suffix | | | | | | | | | |
| Use wildo | ards | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sounds li | <u>k</u> e (English) | Ignore punctuation characters | | | | | | | | | |
| Find all <u>w</u> | ord forms (English) | Ignore white-space characters | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| Replace 名 | 8 | | | | | | | | | | |
| F <u>o</u> rmat ▼ | Sp <u>e</u> cial • No Formatting | | | | | | | | | | |

- 1. **Match case.** Case is whether a letter is uppercase or lowercase. If the Match case box is checked, then Find and Replace becomes case-sensitive. For example, checking the Match case button and then searching for "Fishing Goods" will find "Fishing Goods" but NOT "fishing goods" or "Fishing goods." If the Match case box is unchecked, then searching for "Fishing Goods" will find "Fishing Goods" and "fishing goods" and "Fishing goods" and so on.
- 2. **Format.** Click the Format button to select from a variety of formatting options such as Font, Paragraph, and so on. When a formatting style is selected for Find, the Find term must have that formatting to be found. (Leave the Find field blank and choose a formatting style to find all occurrences of that formatting.) Similarly, choosing a formatting style for the Replace field will replace the Find term with whatever is in the Replace field with the Replace formatting. For example, this search finds all instances of the word *mobile* and applies bold and green formatting:



3. **Special**. Special refers to special characters, or characters that are not on the typical keyboard. In Find and Replace, some of these characters can also be things like "any digit" or "any letter."

Find Function

You can also find words with the Find function. Simply finding where a word is used in a document is faster with the Find function.

To open the Find function, use the shortcut Ctrl+F or navigate to Home>Editing>Find. This will open a Navigation menu to the left.







Type in the Navigation text field that says "Search document" for the term you want to find. The term will be highlighted throughout the document. You can scroll through the document to see the highlighted occurrences, or you can scroll down through the Navigation pane to see where each word occurs in the text.



https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18597

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- How to use REPLACE FUNCTION | MICROSOFT WORD 2016. Authored by: Burn to Learn. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?
 v=ZAMLYuFblXw. License: CC BY: Attribution
- How to use FIND | MICROSOFT WORD 2016. Authored by: Burn to Learn. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uBbtLy8R1oI.
 License: CC BY: Attribution

Lumen Learning authored content

• Find and Replace. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.14: Find and Replace is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.15: Introduction to Lists

What you'll learn to do: create and format numbered and unnumbered lists.

Using lists can help you provide emphasis or visual clarity to your ideas.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction: Lists. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.15: Introduction to Lists is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.16: Lists

Learning Objectives

• Create and format numbered and bulleted lists.

There are two kinds of lists: bulleted and numbered lists. The buttons for both are found in the Paragraph group, as seen in the screenshot below. (Bulleted to the left, numbered to the right)

| H 5 | - U - | ; | | | | Documer | nt1 - W | ord | | Sign | in 🗄 | 1 | - 6 | × |
|-------------|------------------|---|--------|----|----------|----------|---------------------------|---------------------|-------|--------|--------------------|-------------|--------------|-------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | La | ayout Re | ferences | Mail | ings Re | view | View | Q Tell | | ∕q. Shi | are 🖵 |
| Paste | Calibri (B I | Body) <u>U</u> - abc V - <u>A</u> - | | Ă | | | ≣ > ≣ ▼ T | AaBbCcD 1 Normal | C AaB | BbCcDc | AaBbC Heading 1 | (+ + | P Editing | |
| Clipboard 🕞 | | Font | | G. | Para | agraph | Es. | | S | tyles | | G. | | ~ |

To start, select the text you want to change, then click either the bulleted or numbered list button. Alternatively, you can click the bulleted or numbered list button and then start typing.



If you click and hold either of the list buttons, more options will appear.





Bulleted Options

| Recently Used Bullets | |
|-------------------------------------|-----|
| • | |
| Bullet Library | |
| None • 0 • • | |
| \succ | |
| Document Bullets | L Í |
| • 0 • | |
| <u> ←</u> <u>C</u> hange List Level | + |
| Define New Bullet | |

In the bulleted options, you can select a new bullet from the bullet library. At the bottom, the Define New Bullet... option will let you pick any symbol or even a picture from your computer to be the bullets.

| The following aisles will be affected: | The following aisles will be affected: | The following aisles will be affected: |
|---|---|---|
| kitchen appliances kitchen & dining furniture kitchen storage home goods clearance | kitchen appliances kitchen & dining furniture kitchen storage home goods clearance | kitchen appliances kitchen & dining furniture kitchen storage home goods clearance |

Numbered Options



In the numbered options, you can choose what kind of numbering to give your numbered list. For example, you can use letters or Roman numerals. At the bottom, the Define New Number Format... opens a dialog box that will let you further customize how your numbered lists appear.

| The following aisles will be affected: | The following aisles will be affected: | The following aisles will be affected: | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|--|
| kitchen appliances kitchen & dining furniture kitchen storage home goods clearance | I. kitchen appliances II. kitchen & dining furniture III. kitchen storage IV. home goods clearance | a) kitchen appliances b) kitchen & dining furniture c) kitchen storage d) home goods clearance | | | |
| | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18598

List Levels

The quickest way to increase the list level of a single line is to hit the Tab key once. To increase and decrease multiple lines, select the text you want to change, then click the increase or decrease list level button as shown in the screenshot below.





| ⊟ ୩ ପ ÷ | | Document1 - \ | Vord | Sign in | Ŧ | - 0 | × |
|---|---|--|---------------------------------|---------------------|-----------|--------------|--------|
| File Home Insert | Design Layout | References Ma | lings Review | View (| 🛛 Tell me | ∕2, Share | \Box |
| Calibri (Body) B I U - at Paste - * * A Clipboard 5 | $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c } \hline \bullet & 11 & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{x}_{2} & \mathbf{x}^{2} & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & \mathbf{A}^{*} & & & \bullet \\ \hline \bullet & \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{A}^{*} & A$ | == - * == - = = == = = = + = + = = - 2↓ = + = + = Paragraph | AaBbCcDc AaB 11 Normal 11 No | bCcDc Aa Spac He | ading 1 | P Editing | ~ |
| Please direction | istomers during that time ing aisles will be affected: kitchen appliances o coffee makers o microwaves blenders kitchen & dining formitur o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables dining tables o dining tables o dining tables distribution o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables o dining tables o distribution o distribution sideboards kitchen storage o drawer organize o spice racks o cookie jars o food containers home goods clearance | e enches rs | les to the Outdoor Fi | urniture and | Patio | | |
| Page 1 of 1 17 of 136 words | 02 | | | | | + | 90% |

You can also use the Change List Level option at the bottom of the numbered options.

To customize how the list levels look, go to the list level options as shown in the screenshot below.

| 🖬 5-0 | | | Document | 1 - Word | Sign | in 🖭 | - 0 | |
|--|---|---|---|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------|-----------|---|
| File Home | Insert D |)esign Lay | out References | Mailings Re | view View | 🛛 Tell me | ∕2, Share | ς |
| Paste | ri (Body) [<u>U</u> - abe x, ab <mark>y</mark> - <u>A</u> - Aa Font | | E + ≟E + ¹ F + E = = = ↓ + 2 + □ + 2↓ ¶ Paragraph | 1 Norma | AcaBbCcDc 11 No Spac Styles | AaBbC(Heading 1 | Editing | |
| Current List | 2↓¶ µ | AaBbCcDc Aa | aBbCcDc AaBbCc | AaBbCcC + Heading 2 + | al C | | | |
| at tırr 'fecte 25 akers ves List Library | 1) | 1 | Styles | | | | | |
| rrgani | a) i) Article I. Head Section 1.01 I (a) Heading 3- | 1.1 1.1.1 1.1 Heading 1 1.1 Heading 2 1.1.1 Heading : | | | | | | |
| rs taine rance | Chapter 1 Hea Heading 2 Heading 3 | | • | | | | | |
| ing fo <u>€</u> <u>C</u> hange I <u>D</u> efine N Define N | .ist Level ew Multilevel List ew <u>L</u> ist Style | | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | | | | |
| | | | · · · | • | | | | |

You can choose one of the different multilevel list styles available in the menu, or you can customize your own by choosing Define New List Style... or Define New Multilevel List...

You can also change the list level of a line here by selecting Change List Level, then selecting a new level in the menu as pictured above.

Review





A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=168

Contributors and Attributions

All rights reserved content

• Word: Lists. Authored by: GCFLearnFree.org. Located at: https://youtu.be/tyXahko-tX8. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

Lumen Learning authored content

• Lists. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.16: Lists is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Basic Skills



Now that you have some of the basic Word principles down, you can move on to more complicated formatting.

Remember if you get stuck or can't remember how to do something from this module, you can always come back and review.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Word Basic Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Energy Certificate Document. Authored by: jarmoluk. Located at: pixabay.com/en/energy-certificate-document-428300/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

3.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.18: Assignment- Create Basic Document

For this assignment, you will create and format a business memo. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

Memo Text

To: All Employees From: Sierra Rowan, Store Manager Date: September 1, 2019 Subject: New Shelves Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00–4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: Kitchen appliances Kitchen & dining furniture Kitchen storage Home goods clearance Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas.

Memo Directions

- 1. Create a new blank document in Microsoft Word.
- 2. Copy and paste the Memo Text (see above) into your Word document.
 - Memo Text

| To: All Employees |
|---|
| From: Sierra Rowan, Store Manager |
| Date: September 1, 2019 |
| Subject: New Shelves |
| Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing |
| those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00-4:00 a.m., during our least busy |
| hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. |
| The following aisles will be affected: |
| Kitchen appliances |
| Kitchen & dining furniture |
| Kitchen storage |
| Home goods clearance |
| Please direct customers looking for items in the affected aisles to the Outdoor Furniture and Patio Accessories areas. |

3. Save the document to the Rowan folder on your desktop as **BA132_LastName_Memo.docx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.





| H | ১ - ত - | | | BA132_Hywater_Memo - Word | | | | | Sign ir | n 🖻 | - | ٥ | × |
|---|------------------------------------|-----------|----------|---------------------------|------|---------|---------|----------|---------|---------------------|------------------|-------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | Ref | erences | Mailing | ; Review | View | ♀ Tell me | R | Share | \Box |
| Read Mode | Print Web Layout Layou Views | 🔄 Outline | Vertical | Gide to Side | Show | Zoom | 100% | Rew Wind | ow | Switch Windows * | Macros Macros | | ~ |
| Nead Print Verb South Wards Mode Layout Page Movement Zoom Windows* Windows* Views Page Movement Zoom Window Macros To: All Employees From: Sierra Rowan, Store Manager Date: September 1, 2019 Subject: New Shelves Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replaced 1:00–4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: Kitchen appliances Kitchen & dining furniture Kitchen & dining furniture | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 o | of 1 112 wor | ds LP | | | | | | | | - 0 | | + | 90% |

4. Change the font of all the text to Arial, size 14.

| ਜ਼ৢ৾৾৸৾৾৾৾৾ | BA132_Hywater_Memo - Wo | rd Sign in | <u></u> - | - 0 | × |
|--|--|---|----------------------------|--|--------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings | Review View | ♀ Tell me | R₄ Share | \Box |
| $\begin{array}{c c} & & \\ \hline & \\ \hline & \\ Paste \\ \hline & \\ Paste \\ \hline & \\ \hline \\ \hline$ | = = - + *= - + = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = | oCcDc AaBbCcDc A | aBbC(eading 1 | Contraction of the second seco | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Font 🖼 | Paragraph 🕞 | Styles | 5 | | ^ |
| To: All Employees From: Sierra Rowan, Store M Date: September 1, 2019 Subject: New Shelves Some of you may have notic goods section are beginning reinforced metal shelves sta 4:00 a.m., during our least b customers during that time a The following aisles will be a | fanager ed in recent weeks that t to sag. We will be replac rting next week. The shel usy hours. Several aisles as a safety precaution. ffected: | he shelves in the h ing those shelves w ves will be replaced will be off-limits to | ome ith new, J 1:00– | | |
| Page 1 of 1 112 words | | | - J | + | 90% |

5. Select the first three lines of the memo (To through Date lines). Remove the spacing after the paragraphs **or** set the After paragraph spacing to 0.



| .⊟ •5• | J. C | ÷ | | | BA132_Hywater_ | Memo - | Word | Sign | in E | ₫ – | ٥ | × |
|--|-------------------------|---|--|--------|---|---------|------------------------|---------------------|------------------|-------|----------|----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailing | s Review | View | © Tel | Ime 🎖 | 2 Share | \Box |
| Paste | Calibri B I A - a | Body) <u>U</u> - abe V - <u>A</u> - Font | $\begin{array}{c c} \bullet & 14 \\ \hline \mathbf{x}_2 & \mathbf{x}^2 & \mathbf{a} \\ Aa \bullet & A^* \end{array}$ | | - 3 = + 1 = + • = = = = = 1 = + - = + 2↓ ¶ Paragraph | ▲ | aBbCcDc A TNormal 1 | AaBbCcDc No Spac | AaBb(Heading | | D ing | <u>^</u> |
| Clipboard 15 Font 16 Paragraph 15 Styles 15 To: All Employees From: Sierra Rowan, Store Manager Date: September 1, 2019 Subject: New Shelves Some of you may have noticed in recent weeks that the shelves in the home goods section are beginning to sag. We will be replacing those shelves with new, reinforced metal shelves starting next week. The shelves will be replaced 1:00– 4:00 a.m., during our least busy hours. Several aisles will be off-limits to customers during that time as a safety precaution. The following aisles will be affected: Kitchen appliances | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 112 wo | rds 段 | | | | | [| | R - | | + | 90% |

6. Select the Subject line. Set the After paragraph spacing to 30 pts.







7. Bold "To:", "From:", "Date:", and "Subject:" in the first four lines.



| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Maili | ngs Revie | ew View | y ♀ ♀ Tell me | ♀ ♀ Share | \Box |
|-------------|---|---|---|---|---|------------------------------------|---|--|---|----------------------|--------|
| Paste | Calibri (B I A - al | Body) <u>U</u> - ab∈ ⊻ - A - | $\begin{array}{c c} \bullet & 14 \\ \mathbf{x}_2 & \mathbf{x}^2 \\ Aa \bullet & A^* \end{array}$ | | · ┋═ · ⁵╤ · │ 雪 ═ ╼ ═ ═ │ ┇═ · · · │ ᢓ↓│ ¶ | → | AaBbCcDc 1 Normal | AaBbCcD 11 No Spac. | AaBbC(Heading 1 | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🕞 | | Font | | Gi . | Paragraph | E. | | Styles | | rs l | ^ |
| | Ti Fi D Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si Si | o: All Em rom: Sier sate: Sep ubject: N ome of y ection ar einforcec .m., duri uring tha he follow | ployees ra Rowan tember 1, lew Shelvo ou may ha re beginn I metal sh ng our le t time as ving aisles | , Store N 2019 es ave notic ing to s elves star ast busy a safety will be a | Manager ed in recent w sag. We will rting next wee hours. Sever precaution. iffected: | veeks be re k. The al ais | that the she placing th shelves wi les will be | elves in th ose shelv ill be repla off-limits | e home good res with nev iced 1:00–4:0 to customer | ds v,)0 rs | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 112 wo | rds L¦≌ | | | | | | | | + | 90% |



9. Select the four lines "Kitchen appliances" through "Home goods clearance" and make them a bulleted list.



10. Indent to 0.5 inches the first line of the "Some of you" paragraph and the "Please direct customers" paragraph.

| H | ب م | G | | | | | BA132_Hywate | r_Memo | - Word | Sigr | n in | Ŧ | — | ٥ | × |
|----------|------------------|-----------------------|--|--|--|---|---|--|--|---|---|--|--------|-------|--------|
| File | ŀ | lome | Ins | sert | Design | Layout | References | Mailin | gs Review | w View | Q | Tell me | R | Share | \Box |
| Paste | X [111 * | Calibri B I A - | (Body |) • abc : A • A | ▼ 14 x₂ x² Aa - A[*] | | ╡ | ≣ € • ⊓ | AaBbCcDເ ୩ Normal | AaBbCcDc ¶ No Spac | AaE Head | BbC(≠ ding 1 | Editin | g | |
| Clipboar | d 🖬 | | | Font | c | Es . | Paragraph | E. | | Styles | | г | ā. | | ^ |
| | | | goods reinfc a.m., durin, The fo • • • • | Som s sect orced durir g that ollow Kitch Kitch Kitch Hom Plea oor Fi | e of you r ion are b metal she ng our lea t time as a ing aisles nen applia nen storag ne goods o se direct o urniture a | nay have eginning elves star ast busy a safety j will be a ances ing furni ge clearance custome nd Patio | e noticed in re to sag. We we tring next we hours. Seve precaution. ffected: ture e rs looking for Accessories | ecent w will be r ek. The : ral aisle ral aisle items i areas. | eeks that t eplacing tl shelves wil s will be e | the shelves hose shelv I be replace off-limits off-limits | s in th ves wi ced 1: to cu: to the | e home ith new, 00–4:00 stomers | | | |
| Page 1 o | of 1 | 112 w | ords | œ | | | | | | | R | - | - | + | 90% |



11. In the first four lines of the memo, hit the Tab key twice after **To:**, **From:**, and **Date:**. Hit the Tab key once after **Subject:**.

| ⊟ চ ∙ ৫ | 5 - | | BA132_Hywater_ | _Memo - Wor | d | Sign | in 🖭 | — | ٥ | × |
|----------------|--|---|---|---|--|---|--|-------------|-------|--------|
| File Hon | ne Insert | Design Lay | out References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell me | <u>ج</u> | Share | \Box |
| Paste V A | libri (Body) I <u>U</u> - abe x - ^a b∕ - A - A | $\begin{array}{c c} \bullet & 14 \bullet \bullet \\ \hline \mathbf{x}_2 & \mathbf{x}^2 & \mathbf{x}^2 \\ \hline \mathbf{x}_3 \bullet & \mathbf{A}^* & \mathbf{A}^* \end{array}$ | ∷ · ∷ · ≒ · | Styles | P Editing | Office Add-ins | | | | |
| lipboard 🕞 | Font | F2 | Paragraph | r⊒ Styles r | 5 I I | Add-ins | | | | ^ |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | To: | All Employe | es | | | | | | | |
| | From: | Sierra Rowa | n, Store Manager | | | | | | | |
| | Date: | September | 1, 2019 | | | | | | | |
| | Subject: | New Shelve | S | | | | | | | |
| | Som goods sect reinforced a.m., durin during that The followi | e of you may l ion are begini metal shelves ag our least b time as a safo ing aisles will l | have noticed in rea ning to sag. We w starting next weel ousy hours. Severa ety precaution. be affected: | cent weeks iill be replac k. The shelv al aisles wil | that the cing tho es will b Il be off | e shelves se shelve e replace f-limits t | in the home es with new, ed 1:00–4:00 o customers | ; ; ; | | |
| Page 1 of 1 11 | 2 words D2 | ing dioles with | be uncoted. | | 6 | | B | | | 9/196 |
| age for 1 | 2 WORDS LLS | | | | | | EØ - | | - + | 5576 |
| ave your v | work and s | ubmit the c | locument in yo | our course | e onlin | ie. | | | | |

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.18: Assignment- Create Basic Document is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





3.19: Discussion- Paragraph Styles

Watch the five-minute video below. While the video shows an older version of Word (Microsoft Word 2010), the same features and many of the same buttons are also found in other versions of Word, including 2019 and 365.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view the transcript for the video "Word 2010: Paragraph Styles" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- In what situations would the Styles feature be useful?
- Would you ever use this feature?
- Why or why not?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Word 2010: Paragraph Styles. Authored by: Chris Walker. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7pw9RtCET0w. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Discussion: Paragraph Styles. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

3.19: Discussion- Paragraph Styles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

4: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills

Learning Objectives

- Change page layout
- Create and modify text boxes
- Create tables to organize information in a Word document
- Place images in a Word document
- Add a hyperlink

4.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills

- 4.2: Introduction to Page Layout
- 4.3: Tab Stops
- 4.4: Columns
- 4.5: Headers and Footers
- 4.6: Introduction to Text Boxes
- 4.7: Text Boxes
- 4.8: Introduction to Tables
- 4.9: Creating Tables
- 4.10: Converting Text to a Table
- **4.11: Formatting Tables**
- 4.12: Introduction to Images
- 4.13: Adding Images
- 4.14: Text Wrap
- 4.15: Introduction to Hyperlinks
- 4.16: Hyperlinks
- 4.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills
- 4.18: Assignment- Create Document with Tables and Images
- 4.19: Discussion- Cover Pages

4: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



4.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills

Why learn to complete intermediate skills in Microsoft Word?

We have already learned to make documents clear and readable; however, there are other ways to make your document stand out and creatively engage readers, such as changing the basic layout of a page. In this module, we will cover some layout techniques and a few tools that will make documents easier to create and edit so you can really take control of Word.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• ads-advertisement-website-layout. Authored by: JuralMin. Located at: pixabay.com/en/ads-advertisement-website-layout-1663031/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CCO: No Rights Reserved

4.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.2: Introduction to Page Layout

What you'll learn to do: change page layout.

There is more to a document than the text it contains. How that text is arranged can contribute to how a document is read or perceived. In this section, you will learn a few page layout tools that can help you fit more information on a page or arrange information so that it is communicated clearly.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Page Layout. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.2: Introduction to Page Layout is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.3: Tab Stops

Learning Objectives

• Set tab stops.

You may recall from Alignment, Justification, and Indentation that hitting the Tab key indents a paragraph. Each hit of the Tab key inserted a **tab space**. By default, a tab space stretches to fit the next 1/2 inch interval on the page. Tab stops control the width of a tab space so that it can be greater or less than 1/2 an inch.

By changing the width of tab spaces, you can align text with tab stops rather than the edge of a column, page, or margin. This can be useful for aligning text different ways in the same line.



There are several kinds of tab stops, but the ones we will focus on in this course are the left tab, the center tab, and the right tab.

| Left tab | Center tab | Right tab |
|---|---|---|
| Aligns text left along the tab stop line | Aligns text centrally to the tab stop line | Aligns text right along the tab stop line |
| Γ ₂ ι Paragraph Γ ₂ ι 1 · · · ι · · · 2 ₂ · · · ι · · · 3 · · · ι · · · 4 · · · ι | Fill Paragraph Fill · · 1 · · · 1 · · · 2 · · · · · · · 3 · · · · 1 · · · · 4 · · · · 1 · · · · 4 · | nt rs Paragraph rs . 1 |
| Example | Example | Example |
| Example text | Example text | Example text |
| Example | Example | Example |
| Example text | Example text | Example text |

There are two main methods for setting tab stops: the ruler and the tab dialog box.

Tab Stops Using the Ruler

First, make the ruler visible (if it isn't visible already). Go to View>Show and check the Ruler box.





| H | \$ • ত ় | | | | Docume | nt1 - Word | | Sign in | Ŧ | | ٥ | × |
|---|-------------------------------------|--|---------------------------|---------------------------------|---|----------------------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|--------------------------------|------------------|-------|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert D |)esign | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ۶ <u>4</u> | Share | \square |
| Read Mode | Print Web Layout Layout Views | Outline Draft | Vertical Page Mo | ←→ Side to Side vement | Ca Show Ruler | | New Windo Arrange All Split | w CC | Switch Windows • | Macros Macros | | ^ |
| | | | | | Gridlines Gridlines | ane | | | | | | |
| H | ক- ত | | | | Docum | ent1 - Word | | Sign ir | n E | | ٥ | × |
| File | e Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | Я | Share | \square |
| Read Mode | Print Web Layout Layou Views | Uutline | Vertical Page M | Side to Side | Show Show | 100% | Rew Winde Arrange Al Split | w C | Switch Windows v | Macros Macros | . 7 | · |
| Upcoming Sales | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | iig (| 5ales | | | | | | | |
| | | Suit Up S | Sale | June | 5ales | 7 6 | 12 | | | | | |
| . 2 1 | | Suit Up S | Sale t All-St | June | Sales 1–14 June 20–2 | 7, 5pm- | 12am | | | | | |
| 2 1 1 | | Suit Up S All-Nigh Indepen | Sale t All-St dence | June tars | Sales 1–14 June 20–2 Gale July 2 | 7, 5pm– | 12am | | | | | |
| • • • • • • 2 • • • 1 • • • 1 • • • 1 • | | Suit Up S All-Nigh Indepen | Sale t All-St dence | June tars | Sales 1–14 June 20–2 Sale July 2 | 7, 5pm– –5 school Sa | 12am Je July | <u>ı 31–5</u> , | ent 1 | | | |

The rulers display the width of the page in inches. The shaded-in gray spaces on the ruler represent the margins. This screenshot shows margins of one inch.

To add a tab stop, select the paragraph or paragraphs the tab stop will be added to. Select the type of tab stop by clicking the tab selector icon in the top-left corner until it shows the appropriate icon (**L**, **L**, **J**). The tab selector button is located at the top of the vertical ruler and to the left of the horizontal ruler.



Right now the Left Tab is selected. Clicking the icon will switch to a different Tab type.

(Note: there are more tab options, such as decimal tab, bar tab, first-line indent, and hanging indent. Feel free to experiment with these later.)

Once the type of tab stop you want is selected, click anywhere along the horizontal ruler to place the tab stop.



| 🖬 ጛ・ぴ ෫ | Document1 - Word | Sign in | 囨 | - 6 |) × |
|--------------------------------|---|--|-----------------------|---------|---------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings Review | View C | 7 Tell me | ∕⊊ Shi | are 🖵 |
| Image: Calibri (Body) | E + ¹ → E → AaBbCcDc A 1 → 2 ↓ → N Paragraph 1 → 1 → 3 → 1 → 1 → 1 → 1 → 1 → 1 → 1 → | aBbCcDc Aa lo Spacing Hea Styles | BbC(ading 1 FS | Editing | • • • • |
| Upcoming S | ales | | | | |
| Suit Up Sale | June 1–14 | | | | |
| All-Night All-Stars | June 20–27, 5pm–12am | | | | |
| Independence Day Sa | ile July 2–5 | | | | |
| Notebooks/Planners | Back to School SaleJuly 3 | 1–Sept 1 | | | |

The tab stop is represented by the icon in the ruler. In the screenshot above, the right tab is marked with a green circle. Notice that the lines below are right-aligned with the tab stop, with the exception of the last line. The last line is not aligned because the line is too long for the text to fit with the right-align.

To move the tab stop, click and drag the tab icon along the ruler.

| 🗄 🔊 | ୟ ÷ | | | Documen | t1 - Word | | Sign | in 🖭 | | ٥ | × |
|-------------|---|-----------|-------------|---|------------|----------------------|-------------------|---------------------|----------|-------|--------|
| File H | lome Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell m | ie A | Share | \Box |
| Paste | Calibri (Body) B I U - abc A - a ^b - A - Font | | | \$= - *:; € : = = \$≡ - ⊞ - \$↓ ¶ | AaB 1 N | bCcDc Aa ormal No | BbCcDc Spacing | AaBbC(Heading 1 | ► Editir | ng | |
| 1 1 · · · · | | 1 | 1 + + + 2 + | 3 . | 4 | | Styles | ►Ω | | . 7 | |
| | Upo | omii | ng S | ales | | | | Ĭ | | | |
| - | Suit Up | o Sale | | | | | June 1 | 1–14 | | | |
| | All-Nig | ht All-St | ars | | June 2 | 0–27, 5 | 5pm–1 | 2am | | | |
| - | Indepe | endence | Day Sa | le | | | July | · 2–5 | | | |
| | Noteb | ooks/Pla | Inners | Back to Sc | hool Sale | e July | 31–Se | ept 1 | | | |

The selected paragraphs moved with the tab stop. (And notice that the last line is aligned now that there is enough space for the text.)

To remove a tab stop, click the icon and drag it off of the ruler.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18599

Tab Stops Using the Tab Dialog Box

You can also add and move tab stops using the tab dialog box. To reach it, go to the Paragraph dialog box in the Home tab.



| - ک ا | ୍ ଦ୍ର = | | | | Documen | t1 - Wo | ord | Sign | in 🖭 | - 0 | × |
|-------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------|--------|--------|---|----------|-----------------|----------------------|---------------------|---|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailir | ngs Revie | w View | ♀ Tell me | $eta_{\!$ | \square |
| Paste | Calibri (I B I A + ab | Body) U - abc - A - | | | · ┋═ · ⁵╤ · │ 雪 ═ ═ ═ │ ┇═ · · · │ ᢓ↓│ ¶ | → | Aa Do Normal | AaBbCcDc ¶No Spac | AaBbC(Heading 1 | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | G. | Paragraph | 5 | | Styles | 1 | al I | ~ |

Then click the Tabs button at the bottom-left corner of the Paragraph dialog box.

| Paragraph | | | ? | × |
|---|--|--|---|--------|
| Indents and Spacing | Line and <u>P</u> a | age Breaks | | |
| General Ali <u>o</u> nment: Jus <u>O</u> utline level: Bo | tified 🗸 dy Text 🗸 | Collapsed by defa | ult | |
| Indentation | | Special | Byr | |
| Right: 0" | ÷ | (none) | ~ | ÷ |
| <u>M</u> irror indents | | 7 | | |
| Spacing | | | | |
| <u>B</u> efore: 0 p | t 🖨 | Li <u>n</u> e spacing: | <u>A</u> t: | |
| A <u>f</u> ter: 8 p | t 🖨 🖊 | Multiple | ✓ [1.0] | 7 ≑ |
| Don't add space | e betwein par | agraphs of the same st angraph Profous Paragraph Profous Pa- angraph Profous Paragraph Profous Pa- at the shakes in the home goods section one, winforced meal shakes starting or | ragraph ragraph n are beginning next week. The | |
| Following Partition Fol | owing Paragraph Followi owing Paragraph Followi | ng Panagraphi Pollowing Panagraph Pollov ne Panaeraphi Followine Panaeraphi Follov | ang Paragraph áng Paragraph | |
| <u>T</u> abs | Set As <u>D</u> efaul | tОК | (| Cancel |

You have now reached the Tab dialog box.

| Tabs | | | ? | × |
|-------------------------------|----------------|--|------------------------|-------------|
| Tab stop position: | × | De <u>f</u> ault ta 0.5° Tab stops | ib stops: to be cle | tared: |
| left | | 0 | Pight | |
| O Decimal | () <u>B</u> ar | 0 | Kight | |
| Leader | | | | |
| ● <u>1</u> None ○ <u>4</u> | <u>○ 2</u> | 0 | 3 | |
| Set | C | ear | Clear / | <u>A</u> II |
| | (| ОК | Cance | el |

Choose which type of tab stop you want in the Alignment area (Left, Center, Right, Decimal, or Bar). Type the distance of the tab stop in inches, then click Set or OK to apply that tab stop to whichever lines are selected.



| Tabs ? × | Document1 - Word | Sign in 📧 I |
|---|--|-----------------|
| Tab stop position: Default tab stops: | File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review | v View Q⊺ellme |
| 5.8 0.5' 🔄 Tab stops to be cleared: | ABbCCD Calibri (Body) 18 E | AaBbCcDc AaBbC(|
| Alignment | Upcoming Sales | •••• |
| Leader | Suit Up Sale | June 1–14 |
| ● <u>1</u> None ○ <u>2</u> ○ <u>3</u> | All-Night All-Stars June 20–27, | 5pm–12am |
|) <u>4</u> | Independence Day Sale | July 2–5 |
| <u>></u> et Cl <u>e</u> ar Clear <u>A</u> ll | Notebooks/Planners Back to School Sale Jul | y 31–Sept 1 |
| OK Cancel | | |

Use Clear to remove tab stops. You can also still click and drag the tab stop along the ruler to change its location or drag the tab stop off the ruler to delete it.

Leader

The leader is a filler for the tab space. Instead of leaving the tab space blank, you can fill it with periods or other characters. This is particularly useful for a table of contents, but it can have other applications too. To choose a leader, select one of the options under the Leader section of the Tab dialog box.

| solition: Default tab stops: Default tab sto | Default tab stops: O.5° Image: Stops to be cleared: Normal Stops to be cleared: O_Senter ● Bight ● 2 ● 3 | tion: Default tab stops: 0.5° 🚖 Tab stops to be cleared: | File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review View |
|--|---|--|--|
| 0.5° Tab stops to be cleared: Center B gight B gight Center Ce | 0.5" Image: Second analytic of the second an | Tab stops to be cleared: | |
| Center O Genter O Genter O Bight al O Bar O 3 O 3 | © <u>C</u> enter Bar © <u>E</u> ar © <u>E</u> ar ○ <u>3</u> 0 <u>3</u> June 1-12 All-Night All-StarsJune 20-27, 5pm-12ar Independence Day SaleJuly 2-5 | | B I </td |
| al O gar Suit Up SaleJune 1–1- e O 2 June 20–27, 5pm–12an All-Night All-Stars | ○ Bar Suit Up SaleJune 1–1/2 ◎ 2 ○ 3 Independence Day SaleJung 20–27, 5pm–12an | ○ <u>C</u> enter | Upcoming Sales |
| e 💿 🔄 Suit op sale | Image: Suit Op Sale Suit Op Sale Image: Suit Op Sale Sale | ○ <u>B</u> ar | si . Suit le Sala luna 1-14 |
| | Independence Day Sale | | All-Night All-Stars |

Optional: Bar and Decimal Tabs

Two of the other tab stop types are the bar and decimal tabs.

The bar tab icon is a straight vertical line (|). Bar tabs do not align text. Instead, a bar tab adds a straight vertical line at the point of the bar tab. The line will be the length of the selected lines.



| 🖬 🖘 🖉 🕫 | Document1 - Word | Sign in | ħ | - 0 | |
|---|---|-------------------------------------|------------------|---------------|-----------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings | Review View | ♀ Tell me | A Share | \square |
| Image: Second state state Calibri (Body) $18 \cdot 1$ Image: Second state Paste Image: Second state Image: Second state Image: Second state Image: Second state Paste Image: Second state Image: Second state | $ \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \end{array} \\ $ | AaBbCcDc Aa lormal No Spacing He | aBbC(ading 1 | P Editing | ~ |
| | Sales | ŧ, 5 , | · | <u>ک</u> ۰۰۰۰ | |
| Suit Up Sale | | June 1–3 | 14 | | |
| All-Night All-Stars | June 2 | 20–27, 5pm–12a | m | | |
| Independence Day S | ale | July 2- | -5 | | |
| Back to School Sale | | July 31–Sept | :1 | | |

The decimal tab icon is **L**. Decimal tabs align text based on the placement of periods (or rather, decimal points). This is useful when lining up numbers, especially dollar amounts.

| Side-by-Side Comparison of Decimal Tab Alignment | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------|---------------------|--|-----------|---------------------|-------------------|-----------|--|--|
| Clipboard 5 | Font | Paragraph | | Clipboard | d 13 Font | ы 1911 г. – 19 | Paragraph | | |
| - | Item 1 | \$1.99 \$8.99 | | 4 | Item 1 | \$1 \$8 | 99 | | |
| | Item 3 | \$15.99 \$189.99 | | - | Item 3 | \$15 \$189 | 99 99 | | |
| | Item 5 | \$2,399.99 | | | item 5 | \$2,399 | 99 | | |
| - | Percent Satisfactio | n 99.9999999% | | - | Percent Satisfactio | on 99 | 9999998% | | |

Notice that when a decimal tab is applied, the decimal points will line up regardless of what is on either side of the decimal point.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Tab Stops. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- CC licensed content, Shared previously
- Lower Right. Authored by: Travis Avery. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/lower-right/546558/. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- Lower Left. Authored by: Travis Avery. Located at: thenounproject.com/term/lower-left/546557/. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Vertical Line. Authored by: Hector. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/cstudent11235/collection/vertical-line/?i=656405. License: *CC BY: Attribution*. License Terms: Used in modifying Travis Avery's work to make new icon

4.3: Tab Stops is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.4: Columns

Learning Outcomes

• Create columns.



Reference books, magazines, and newspapers commonly use a layout with two or more columns.

Columns can help you fit more text on a page or provide better readability. Some documents, such as a newsletter or newspaper, are customarily formatted with columns. Columns are typically used for shorter pieces of text (like dictionary definitions or short articles) rather than longer readings.

To add columns, either select the text you want to arrange into columns or place your cursor where you want columns to start. Then, go to Layout>Columns and select the number of columns. (For more than three columns, select **More Columns...** at the bottom of the menu.)







| H | 5 - 0 | ÷ | | | Document | 1 - Word | | | Sign in | • | | ٥ | × |
|--------------|---|---|--|-----------------------------------|---|--|----------|---|---|--|-----------------------|---------------------------|-----------|
| File | Home | Inser | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Revie | w V | /iew (| 🛛 Tell me | R | . Share | \square |
| Margins * | C Orient I Size ▼ III Colum Pa | ation ▼ | d Breaks ▼ Line Numbers Hyphenation ▼ | Indent | Spacing Spacin | g ot + ot + Fa | Position | Wrap Text • | Bring □ Send I □ Select Arra | Forward 👻 Backward 👻 ion Pane nge | F Ali C Gr A Ro | ign ▼ oup ~ otate ~ | ~ |
| Page 1 d | of 2 729 | New App Want gree go? The n free and a Android. I who down coupon for purchase. customer RowanGo 2% discou Rowan pu using you words | RowanGo at savings on the ew RowanGo ap vvailable on IOS First-time users first-time users load the app ge r 20% off their fi In addition, s using the app to shop get int on all future rchases. Log in r RowanGo 8 | D pp is and first t a | via wireless tech Many think of m commerce as "a in your custome: US\$230 billion ai Asia representin of the market, ai expected to read- billion in 2017. A BI Intelligence, in 2013, 29 percent users have now i yurchase with th Walmart estimat percent of all vis | nology." obile retail outle r's pocket." ce is worth nnually, wit g almost ha di t's ch U\$\$700 cccording to D January t of mobile made a leir phones ted that 40 its to their | t If | based ci long his has the support become Mobile adopted differen combine types of was pro than \$66 2013, w the figu 2011. Ti market | urrency sy tory, only technolog such syst widely av payment i d all over t t ways. In ed market f mobile p jected to 00 billion which would hich wobile for goods | stems has a recently ty to ems vailable. s being the world in 2008, the for all ayments reach more globally by d be double bbruary, payment and | | + | 90% |

You can also end a column with a column break. Place the cursor where you want to end a column, then select Layout>Breaks>Column Break.



Adding a column break will end the column and send text to the next column. Note that a column break is tied to the location within the text, not the location on the page. Putting a column break before the Mobile Commerce headline will put a column break before the Mobile Commerce headline, regardless of how much text comes before or after the Mobile Commerce headline.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18600



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Columns. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Letter R dictionary. Authored by: Gabrielle_RRI. Located at: pixabay.com/en/letter-r-dictionary-bezel-2351442/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

4.4: Columns is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.


4.5: Headers and Footers

Learning Objectives

• Insert text into header and footer.

Headers and footers are the top and bottom sections of the document respectively. They are separate sections from the main document, and are often used to hold footnotes, page numbers, titles, and other information.

The header and footer controls are in the Header & Footer group of the Insert tab. (Insert>Header & Footer)

| ₽ | 5 - 0 | ÷ | | | Do | ocument | - Word | | Sign in | Ŧ | - 1 | - 0 | × |
|-------|--------------|----------------|-------------|---------------|-----------|---------|-----------|----------|-------------|--------|------------------|---|--------|
| File | Hom | ne Insert | Design | Layout | Refere | nces | Mailings | : Review | View | Q Tell | me | $egin{smallmatrix} P_{\!$ | \Box |
| Pages | Table | Picturer Oplin | | | s Add- | | (Charles) | ţ. | 🛅 Header 🕶 | | 4 Text | Ω Symbols | |
| * | * | Picture | es 🔻 | icons ₫+ * | ins * | Video | * | Comment | 🖃 Page Num | nber * | * | * | |
| | Tables | | lustrations | | | Media | | Comments | Header & Fo | oter | | | ~ |

The Header and Footer options each contain a dropdown menu. Click one of the Built-in options to insert it, or select Edit Header (or Edit Footer) to edit the header (or footer).

| ₽ | 5 • 0 | i . | | | Docume | ent1 - Word | | Sign in | Æ | - 0 | × |
|--------|-------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------|----------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|----------|
| File | Hom | ne Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ∕⊊ Shar | • 🖓 |
| Pages | Table Tables | Pictures Onlin Pictu | ne Shapes res • | | Add- ins Vid Me | Built-in Blank | • • |] Header ▼ | | 1 Ω | |
| | | | | X | | Blank (Three | Columns) | [Type here] | 1 | [Type here] | |
| | New | Rowan | Go Ap | р | | | | | | | |
| | Want gre | at savings on | the go? Th | ne new Rov | nGo app is f | Austin | | | | | |
| | using the RowanGo | RowanGo ap credentials a | p to shop g and watch | get a 2% disc the savings p | ou it on all f iile u | Doorrest | side] | | | | |
| | RowanGo credit or | o also offers a debit magnet | new long- ic stripe ca | asked-for fea Ird transactio | ature: on at crea. | More He | aders from Off | ïce.com | | | <u> </u> |
| | cards, cre their sma | edit cards, gift Irtphone. | cards, loy | alty cards, ar | nd coupon co | Edit Head | der Hander | | ו | | |
| | Mobi | le Com | merce | <u></u> | | Save Sele | ection to Head | er Gallery | | | |
| Page 1 | of 2 72 | 9 words []¥ | | | | | | | r | | ► 100% |

The header/footer will be represented by a dotted line. While in header/footer mode (when the dotted lines are visible), you cannot edit the main text. You can go back to editing the main text by selecting the Close Header and Footer option on the right side of the ribbon.

| 🗄 🖘 🖱 | Ŧ | | Document1 - | Word | | | Hea | Sign in | Æ | - | ٥ | × |
|---|--|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------|------------|-----------------------------|---|----------------------|--------------------|---------------|---|-----|
| File Home | Insert Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | v View | | Design | ç | Tell me | Я | |
| Header * Footer * Page Number * | Date & Docum Time Info | ent Incert | ck Parts + tures ine Pictures | Go to Go Header Foo | to | Options | ↓ 0.5 ↓ 0.5 ↓ 0.5 | " + | Close He and Fo | eader oter | | • |
| Header | New Row Want great saving time users who d | anGo A gs on the go ownload the | App ? The new Ro e app get a co | wanGo app is upon for 20% | s free and | d available r first pure | e on iOS chase. In | and Andr addition | oid. First- | 5 | | |
| Header time users who download the app get a coupon for 20% off their first purchase. In addition, customers Header technological innovation and tocus on interoperability emerging as prominent trends by 2018. In developing countries, mobile payment solutions have been deployed as a means of extending financial services to communities known as the "unbanked" or "underbanked," which are estimated to | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 729 | words 🏛 | | | | | | Į. | | | - | + | 90% |



The information in the header or footer is repeated in every header or footer in the document.

| | | Rowan Monthly |
|---|------------|---|
| · | Header | New RowanGo App |
| | | Want great savings on the go? The new RowanGo app is free and available on IOS and Android. First- time users who download the app get a coupon for 20% off their first purchase. In addition, customers |
| F | First page | |
| | | Rowan Monthly |
| | Header | represent as much as 50 percent of the world's adult population, according to Financial Access's 2009 Report "Half the World is Unbanked." |
| | | Forms of Mobile Payment |
| 5 | Second pa | ıge |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18601

Page Numbers

You can number the pages in your document automatically in the header/footer options with the Page Number option.



Bottom of Page, Page Margins, or Current Position options and selecting an alignment. (Current Position refers to where the cursor is located.)



The page number will be repeated on every page in the header or footer, but the number will change to reflect the appropriate page number. You can also change the way the pages are numbered by going to the Format Page Numbers option.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Headers and Footers. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





4.5: Headers and Footers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.6: Introduction to Text Boxes

What you'll learn to do: create and modify text boxes.

Things in a Microsoft Word document that are not text are called "objects." The first object we will cover is a text box. Many of the controls and features of text boxes are also applicable to images, another important object in Microsoft Word.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Text Boxes. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.6: Introduction to Text Boxes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.7: Text Boxes

Learning Objectives

• Create and modify text boxes.

Text boxes are containers for text that can be customized and moved around. They are useful for emphasizing or decorating text.

| [GRAB YOUR READER'S ATTENTION WITH A GREAT QUOTE FROM THE DOCUMENT OR USE THIS SPACE TO EMPHASIZE A KEY POINT. TO PLACE THIS TEXT BOX ANYWHERE ON THE PAGE, JUST DRAG IT.] | [Sidebar Title] |
|--|-----------------|
| and the second sec | |
| [Grab your reader's attention with a great quote from the document or use this space to emphasize a key point. To place this text box anywhere on the page, just drag it.] | |
| [Gite your source here.] | |

Some examples of text boxes.

To add a textbox, go to Insert>Text>Text Box. There are a few pre-created Built-in options to choose from. Click one of the Built-ins to add it to the document. You can also draw your own by choosing Draw Text Box, then clicking and dragging where you want the text box to be.



Text Box menu



| H | • 5 • ¢ | ≯ ∓ | | | | | Do | cument1 | - Word | | Sig | n in | T | | ٥ | × |
|--------|----------------|------------|----------------------|--------|------------|--------------|---------------|-----------------|----------|----------|---|------------------------------------|------------|-------|-----------|--------|
| File | Ho | ne l | nsert | Design | Lay | out | Refere | nces | Mailings | Review | View | Q. | Tell me | A | Share | \Box |
| Pages | Table | Picture | s Online Pictures | Shapes | G Icons | 70 | Add- ins * | Online Video | Einks | Comments | Head Foote Page Header | er * er * Number & Footer | Teo Teo | t Sym | 2 bols | |
| | | | | | | | | | + | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 | of 1 8 | words | <u>N</u> | | | | | | | [| | R | - | - | + | 80% |

Drawing a text box

Once created, you can type in the text box, change the size of the text box, move the text box around, and even rotate the text box.



- 1. Anchor point. The anchor is the point at which the text box intertwines with the rest of the document. Click the anchor icon to select the entire text box.
- 2. Rotation control. Click the circular arrow and then drag to rotate the text box.
- 3. Wrap text. This controls how content in the rest of the document interacts with the text box. Text can go around the text box, in front of the text box, or skip over the text box. Text wrap is covered in more detail in the Images section.
- 4. **Resize points.** The white dots on the border of the text box control the width and height of the text box. Click and drag any of the white dots to move that side or corner.

To move the text box, hover your cursor near the edges of the box. When you see four arrows behind the cursor, you can click and drag the box wherever you want it.



Formatting Text Boxes

When you create a text box, a new tab will appear on the ribbon called Format. There are a lot of different tools in the Format tab, some of which may look familiar.

| 🗄 ቴ-ሮ ፣ | | Document1 - Word | | Sign i | n [| ⊡ – | ٥ | × |
|------------------|---------------|---------------------|--|----------|------|------------|---|--------|
| File Home Insert | Design Layout | References Ma | ilings Review 1 | view For | rmat | ♀ Tell me | Я | \Box |
| Shapes | Abc Abc Z | Quick Styles * A | HAlign Text Direction ↓ Align Text → Create Link | Arrange | ŝize | | | |
| Insert Shapes SI | hape Styles | ₩ WordArt Styles | Ta Text | | | | | ~ |

1. Shapes

The Shapes group (at the far left) allows you to change the shape of the text box. Click the Change Shape button in the Shapes group and then Change Shape to see a dropdown menu with many shape options. Click an option to apply it to the text box.







You can also create a custom shape using the Edit Points option (just below Change Shape). The points of the text box will be outlined. Click and drag the black dots to alter the shape of the text box.



2. Styles

Click the dropdown arrow to open a dropdown menu with a variety of styles for your text box. Some styles may have a gray checkered pattern. The gray checkered pattern indicates transparency. Hover over each effect to preview the results; click to apply the effect.







3. Text

The Text group of the Format tab gives you additional control of the text in the text box.

Text Direction

By default, text runs horizontal in the text box. But you can choose to rotate the text so that it runs vertically by choosing Rotate all text 90° or Rotate all text 270°.



Text Alignment

Text alignment of text boxes works much like text alignment in the main document. Instead of the margin or border of the page, the text aligns with the border of the text box.



| gs Revi | ew | Viev | v | Fo | ormat |
|-------------------------|-------------|------|----|-------|----------|
| ∐ <mark>A</mark> Text D | irectio | n - | | ۰. | . |
| 🕄 Align | Text • | | Ar | range | Size |
| | <u>R</u> ig | ht | | * | * |
| | | nter | | | |
| | Lef | t | | | |

Create Link

Create Link lets you create a link between two or more text boxes so that text can flow, or continue, from one text box to the next.

| gs | Review | View | F | ormat |
|----|------------------------------|------|--------|-------|
| | Text Directi Align Text + | on • | rrange | Size |
| ශ | Create Link | | * | - |
| | Text | | | |

Select a text box, then click Create Link. The cursor will change into a paint bucket. Click on the second text box to link them. Once linked, anything typed in the first text box will flow over to the second. (Note that the second text box must be empty before you link to it.)



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18602

4. Arrange

The arrange option controls the order of text boxes and other elements on a page. Although a Word document is a two-dimensional file, arranging elements requires a bit of three-dimensional thinking.

The main document, where the main text is, is the bottom layer of the document. When you create a text box, the text box is on top of the rest of the document. Adding another text box puts the new text box on top of the first one.

| Congratulations to our emplo | yee of the | e month, Shanice Jo | nes! Sha |
|--------------------------------|--------------|-----------------------|------------|
| working on a subject David | - in Mar 9 | 015. Within six mor | nths, her |
| work Here is a text | | otional leadership sl | kills prop |
| bein | | | ing for |
| Shar box. And the | anot | her text | every (|
| COWOLKELS as a good menu. | how | | icet, bi |
| is an absolute asset to the te | DOX. | | target |
| and she's a great person to b | | | e arou |
| free time, Shanice enjoys run | | | ing!), r |
| books, and spending time wit | | | ersona |
| always seems impossible unti | il it's done | " Way to go, Shani | ce! |

With the Arrange option, the text box order can be rearranged.



- Bring forward brings the text box forward one spot.
- Send backward sends the text box backward one spot.

These options are also available when right-clicking on a text box:







- Bring to front brings the text box to the very front so that it is on top of everything else.
- Send to Back sends the text box to the very back so that everything else is on top of it.

Congratulations to our employee of the month, Shanice Jonesi Shanice start work there is a text bein Shanice at the Shanice start working for Rowan, Shan box, And there is a heat shanice shane share a share

The yellow text box has been brought to the front, while the blue text box has been sent to the back.

Shapes

Sometimes you may want just a shape with no text, or you may want to figure out what shape you want a text box to be before you add text.

To insert a shape, go to Insert>Shape and select a shape from the menu.



Once you select a shape, click and drag to draw the shape. You can then apply a text wrap, rotate the shape, or send the shape in front of or behind text.

| Affordable products Impeccable customer service High customer satisfaction Excellent benefits H | Affordable products Impeccable customer service High customer satisfaction Excellent benefits |
|---|--|
| | Square text wrap |

You can change the color or add other effects to the shape from the Format tab, which appears when you click on the shape.





If you decide you do want to add text to the shape, double-click on the shape and start typing to make the shape a text box.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Cursor-Move. Authored by: iconsmind.com, GB. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/cursor-move/72154/. License: CC BY: Attribution

Lumen Learning authored content

• Text Boxes. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.7: Text Boxes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.8: Introduction to Tables

What you'll learn to do: create tables to organize information in a Word document.

Inserting tables into your Word document can help organize and display data.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Tables. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.8: Introduction to Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.9: Creating Tables

Learning Outcomes

• Create and edit a table.

Inserting tables into your Word document can help organize and display data.

To create a table, click Insert>Table. A small menu will open with a grid that represents table cells. Mouse over and select how many rows and columns you would like in your table.



You can also choose the Insert Table... option below the grid instead. This will take you to a dialog box where you can choose how many rows or columns you want, as well as the column width. Using the Insert Table... option is also a good choice if you need more cells than the grid provides.



If you ever want to change the dimensions of your table, you can right-click in the table and choose to insert more columns and rows, as shown below.



| ⊟ 5° ৫ ÷ | Document1 - Word | | Tab Sign | nin 🖭 | — | ٥ | × |
|--|--|---|---|--------------------------------------|--------------|-------------------|--------|
| File Home Insert Design Layo | ut References Mailings | Review View | Design | Layout | 2 Tell me | <u>A</u> | \Box |
| ✓ Header Row ✓ First Column ☐ Total Row ☐ Last Column ☑ Banded Rows ☐ Banded Columns Table Style Options | Calibri (B \cdot 11 \cdot A [*] A [*] B $I \equiv a^{*} \cdot A \cdot a^{*}$ | · | • Delete | 1⁄2 pt ——— Pen Color ▼ Borders | • Borders | Border Painter | ^ |
| | Cut Copy Paste Options: A Smart Lookup Synonyms Tranglate Joset Cells Border Styles Border Styles Table Properties Hyperlink | Insert Columns Insert Columns Insert Columns Insert Rows ∆b Insert Rows <u>B</u> el Insert Cells | ; to the Left ; to the Right ove low | t | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 0 words | New Comment | | | B - | - | + | 90% |

You can select multiple cells or even entire rows or columns by clicking and dragging your mouse across the cells. Right-click on selected cells for more options to insert or delete cells.



To enter data into the table, simply select a cell and start typing.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18603

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Creating Tables. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



4.9: Creating Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



4.10: Converting Text to a Table

Learning Outcomes

• Convert existing text into a table.

Let's say you already have some data, but it's not in a table yet. Is there an easy way to put the data in a table without having to type everything again? Yes, there is! Let's look at the example below.

| H | 5 • ৫ | 5 - | | | Document | 1 - Word | | Sign i | n E | 3 | - 0 | × |
|------------|------------------|--|-------------------------------|----------------|------------------------------|----------|----------|---|-------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|-----------|
| File | Hon | ne Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell | | ∕⊊ Share | \square |
| Pages * | Table Tables | Pictures Online Pictures Illu | Shapes | Icons | Add- ins • Video Media | Links | Comments | Header Footer Page Nu Header & | imber • Footer | ₄ Text ▼ | Ω Symbols * | ~ |
| | | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana | Numbe 35 38 42 27 | r of Employees | : I | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 | of 1 15 | words []2 | | | | | | | R | | ⊧ + | 90% |

Here, information is separated by tabs. Select the information, then go to the Table menu and choose Convert Text to Table to turn this data into a table.

| | 5 | - 0 | | | | Documen | t1 - Word | | Sign | in 🗹 | | ٥ | × |
|---------|---------------|---------------|---|--|--------------|--|-----------|------------|--------|---------------------|--------|-------|--------|
| File | | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell n | ne A | Share | \Box |
| Paste | % ⊡ | Calibr B I | i (Body) ⊡abe ⊅ ab <mark>/</mark> A | ▼ 11 x₂ x² Aa - A[*] | | ┋═╶╴ [┶] ╦╌╷│ ═╶═╴═│╏═╺ ╚─╶╎ <u>⋛</u> ↓│¶ | Aal | BbCcDt AaE | BbCcDc | AaBbCo Heading 1 | Editio | ng | |
| Clipboa | rd 🗔 | | Font | | G. | Paragraph | G. | S | tyles | | 5 | - | ^ |
| 1 | | | 8 | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| : | | | | | (| _ | | | | | | | |
| - | | | Store Locati | ion Numbe | er of Employ | /ees | | | | | | | |
| - | | | Cerritos | 38 | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | Long Beach | 42 | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | Santa Ana | 27 | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ÷ | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 | of 1 | 15 of | 15 words | <u>x</u> | | | | | | R - | | + | 90% |





| 日 | ৲੶৺ - | | | Document1 | - Word | | Sign in | Ŧ | - 0 | × |
|---|---|----------------|----------|---------------------|----------|----------|--|-----------|----------------|--------|
| File | Home Insert | Design La | iyout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Tell me | ₽4 Share | \Box |
| Pages | Table Pictures Online Picture | e Shapes Icons | | Add- ins • Video | Links | Comment | Header * Footer * Page Num | Mer • • | Ω t Symbols | |
| | Insert Table | | nployees | Media | | Comments | Header & F | ooter | | ~ |
| Page 1 | of 1 15 of 15 words | ß | | | | | | - | + | 90% |
| Conver Table si Numb AutoFit O Au O Au Separat O Pa O Tal | rt Text to Table ? ze ze 2 ze 2 ze 5 ze of golumns: 2 z behavior ze behavior ze behavior ze do colum width: Auto stoEit to contents stoFit to wingow te text at ragraphs O commas bs O gther: - | X \$ | | | | | | | | |

Notice that you can use other things to separate your text and still get a clean table, such as paragraphs (the Enter key) or commas. You can also enter your own character in the Other box.

When you've finished choosing settings, hit OK to convert the text to a table.





| ⊟ 5- | | | | | Docume | nt1 - Word | | Sign | in I | Ŧ | | ٥ | \times |
|-------------|----------------|-------------------------------------|--|--------|-------------------------------|-----------------------|------------|------------------|-----------------|------------------|--------------|-------|-----------------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Q Te | ell me | ۶ <u>4</u> | Share | \square |
| Paste | Calibri B I | (Body) <u>U</u> - abc abc - A | ▼ 11 x₂ x² Aa ▼ A[*] | | ┋╴╴╦╴╷┋ ═╶═╺╎┇ ╩╶╴╎ᢓ╷╎╹ | a ∎ ∎ ∎ ∎ | BbCcDc Aal | BbCcDc o Spac | AaBb Heading | C(y g 1 ↓ | P Editing | | |
| Clipboard 🗔 | | Font | | Es. | Paragraph | F2 | 5 | Styles | | 5 | | | * |
| | r | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Store Locat | ion | | | Number of E | mployees | | | | | | |
| | | Cerritos | | | | 38 | | | | | | | |
| | | Long Beach | | | | 42 | | | | | | | |
| | ļ | Santa Ana | | | | 27 | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | | I= | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 15 wo | rds [] | 2 | | | | I | | | | - II: | + | ▼ 90% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18604

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Converting Text to a Table. License: Public Domain: No Known Copyright

4.10: Converting Text to a Table is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.11: Formatting Tables

Learning Outcomes

• Apply table styles and formatting.

Once the table is created, you can make the table more interesting to look at and easier to read by applying formatting such as colors, spacing, and borders. Click somewhere in your table, and some new menu options will appear in the top menu, Design and Layout.

| 日 | ১ - ত | ÷ | | l | Document1 - | Word | | _ | Tab S | ian in 🛛 🕅 | - | ð | × |
|--|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|--------------|--------------|----------|--------|--------------------|------------|-----------|-------------------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | Viev | Design | Layout | 2 Tell me | Я | \Box |
| ✓ Head✓ Tota✓ Band | der Row [Row [ded Rows [| ✓ First Co Last Co Bandeo | olumn olumn I Columns | | | | | hading | Border Styles ▼ | ½ pt ── | Borders | Border Painter | |
| | Table Sty | le Options | | | 1 | Table Styles | | | | Border | s | Fa | ~ |
| | 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Store Lo | cation | 1 | Number of Em | ployees | Sales/sq | ft | | | | | |
| | | Anaheir | n | 3 | 35 | | \$36 | | | | | | |
| | | Cerritos | | 3 | 38 | | \$54 | | | | | | |
| | | Long Be | ach | 4 | 12 | | \$67 | | | | | | |
| | | Santa A | na | 2 | 27 | | \$37 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

There are many options in the Design menu. A table style will do a lot of formatting for you. Click on the Table Styles dropdown menu (circled in the screenshot above) and hover over each style to see a preview of it. Click on a style to apply it to the table.

| 🗄 হিন্ত | | Docum | nent1 - Word | | | Tab Sig | nin 🖻 | | ٥ | |
|---|--|---|--------------------------|-----------|--------|---------|----------|---------|----|-----|
| File Home | Insert Design | Layout Refe | rences Maili | ngs Revie | w View | Design | Layout 🤇 | Tell me | 8 | Ģ |
| ✓ Header Row ☐ Total Row ☑ Banded Rows ☐ Table Sty | First Column Last Column Banded Columns le Options | Plain Tables | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Store Location Anaheim | | | | | | | | | |
| | Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana | | | | | | | | | |
| | lotal | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Modify Image: Description Image: Description Image: Description Image: Description Image: Description | Table Style ble Style | | | | | | .: | |
| Page 1 of 1 24 w | ords 🗘 | | | | | | Ro - | | + | 90% |

You can add borders to individual cells, rows, or columns. Select the cells, then go to the Borders area of the menu in the top-right corner to customize the border settings. In the screenshot below:

- 1. This changes the type of border. There are solid, dotted, and dashed borders to choose from.
- 2. This changes the width or thickness of the border. The smaller the point, the thinner the line.
- 3. This controls which side or sides of the cell the border appears on. From here, you could make only vertical borders appear, only outside borders appear, and so on.





| | | Document1 - | Word | Tab | Sign in | 团 — | đ | |
|--|--|--|---|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|--|-------------------------|--------|
| File Home | Insert Design | Layout References | Mailings Review | View Des | ign Layou | ıt ♀ Tell me | Я | \Box |
| ✓ Header Row ☐ Total Row ✓ Banded Rows | First Column Last Column Banded Columns | | | Shading Bor | rder les v Pen C | Borders | Border Painter | |
| Table Sty | /le Options | | Table Styles | 1 | B | orders | 5 | ~ |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | + Store Location | Number of Em | anlowoor Salor <i>Ir</i> | . 6 | | | | |
| | Store Location | Number of En | ipioyees sales/so | 4 m | | | | |
| | Ananeim | 35 | \$360 | | | | | |
| | Cerritos | 38 | \$540 | | | | | |
| | Long Beach | 42 | \$670 | | | | | |
| | Santa Ana | 27 | \$370 | | | | | |
| | Total | 142 | \$1940 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 🗄 🖘 🔍 | | Document1 - | Word | Tab | Sign in | 西 — | ٥ | |
| File Home | Incert Decian | Lavout References | Mailings Review | | ian Lavor | t O Tell me | 0 | |
| File Home | insere Design | Layout References | Mainings Review | VIEW Des | ign Layot | it greatine | C 1 | ~ |
| ✓ Header Row | First Column | | A | A | | - • | | |
| Tatal David | Let Column | | | <u></u> = | - | | | |
| Iotal Kow | I Last Lolumn | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Shading Bo | rder | Borders | Border | |
| ✓ Banded Rows | Banded Columns | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Shading Bo | rder les v 🔽 Pen C | Borders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Bo + Styl | rder les + Pen C | Borders | Border Painter | ~ |
| ✓ Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Boo * Styl | les ▼ Pen C | Borders | Border Painter | ~ |
| ✓ Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Boo | les * Pen C | Borders | Border Painter | ~ |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Bo | rder les ∗ Pen C B | olor • • | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Boi | a pt − rder les + Pen C Bi | olor • • | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns | | Table Styles | Shading Boo | der rder les ↓ Pen C Bi | Borders | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns I Coptions | | Table Styles | Shading Boo | rder rder ₽ Pen C Bi | Borders | Border Painter | * |
| ✓ Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location | Number of Em | Table Styles Sales/st | Shading Boo * Styl | der der es v ∠ Pen C Bi | olor | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table St | Banded Columns Je Options Store Location Anaheim | Number of Em | Table Styles | Shading Bo * Styl | rder les + ■ I | olor • • | Border Painter | * |
| ☑ Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns le Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos | Number of Em 35 38 | Table Styles | Shading Bo | rder les v | olor v v | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns I/e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach | Number of Em 35 38 42 | Table Styles Sales/so S360 \$540 \$540 \$670 | Shading Bo Styl | rder les v ■ Pen C Bi | Borders | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns I/e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 | table Styles table Styles sales/ss \$360 \$540 \$670 \$370 \$370 \$370 \$370 \$370 \$370 \$370 \$3 | Shading Bo * Styl | rder Pen C les * Pen C Br | olor • Gorders | Border Painter | * |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns //e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | aployees Sales/st \$360 \$540 \$570 \$370 \$1940 | shading Bo Styl | rder les v Pen C Br | olor v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns I/e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | Table Styles Sales/ss Sa | Shading Bo Styl | rder les + Pen C Br | Golor Y Gorders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | Table Styles | Shading Bo Styl | rder les + Pen C Br | Golor Y Gorders | Border Painter rs | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | Image: style Sales/style sployees Sales/style \$360 \$540 \$670 \$370 \$1940 \$1940 | Shading Bo Styl | rder les * Pen C Br Br | olor • Gorders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | aployees Sales/st | Shading Bo Styl | rder ≥ pen C les × 2 Pen C Br | olor v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | aployees Sales/so \$360 \$540 \$570 \$370 \$1940 | Shading Bo Styl | rder les + Pen C Br | olor + Grders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns I/e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a | Shading Bo Styl | rder Spt - les * Pen C Br | olor • Gorders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns Coptions Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of En 35 38 42 27 142 | aployees Sales/st Sales | Shading Bo Styl | rder Spt = rder Pen C Br | olor v Borders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | aployees Sales/so \$360 \$5540 \$670 \$370 \$1940 | Shading Bo Styl | rder Spt - rder Pen C Br | Borders | Border Painter Is | |
| Banded Rows Table St | Banded Columns Banded Columns Coptions Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | Table Styles | Shading Bo Styl | rder Spt - les + Pen C Br | olor v Borders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Sty | Banded Columns Banded Columns //e Options Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of En 35 38 42 27 142 | Table Styles | Shading Bo Styl | rder les * Pen C Br | olor • Borders | Border Painter | |
| Banded Rows Table Str | Banded Columns Banded Columns Store Location Anaheim Cerritos Long Beach Santa Ana Total | Number of Em 35 38 42 27 142 | Table Styles | Shading Bo Styl | rder ≥ pen C les × 2 Pen C Br | olor + Borders | Border Painter rs | |

It's a good idea to create a table in Microsoft Word and fiddle with the table design settings yourself. Remember, you can always hit Ctrl+Z (Command+Z on Mac) to undo a previous action.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18605

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Formatting Tables. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.11: Formatting Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.12: Introduction to Images

What you'll learn to do: place images in a Word document.

Images are a huge asset for certain documents. A brightly colored image can draw customers in to look at a flyer, or a graph can explain a concept better than a paragraph. Placing images into your document can really make it pop.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Images. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.12: Introduction to Images is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.13: Adding Images

Learning Outcomes

• Insert images.

To add an image, put your cursor where you want the image to appear (at the beginning of a paragraph is a good place). Then go to Insert>Pictures.

| H | ∽ - ୯ | 5 - | | | | Do | ocument1 | - Word | I | Sign ir | n 0 | 5 - | - 0 | × |
|------------|--------------|----------------|-------------------|------------|--------|---------------|-----------------|------------|----------|------------|--------|-----------|--------------|-----------|
| File | Hon | ne Ir | nsert | Design | Layout | Refere | nces | Mailings | s Review | View | Q Tell | | ∕⊊ Share | \square |
| | | | | | | | | æ | * | Header | , | 4 | Ω | |
| Pages * | Table • | Pictures | Online Picture | Shapes | lcons | Add- ins ▼ | Online Video | Links * | Comment | Pooter • | mber * | Text * | Symbols * | |
| | Tables | | IIIu | ustrations | | | Media | | Comments | Header & F | ooter | | | ~ |

A window will pop up to let you choose a picture saved on your computer.



The image will appear where you placed your cursor. You can click and drag the image to anywhere within the text.





You may recognize a lot of these controls from the Text Boxes section, such as the resize dots at each side and corner that you can use to increase or decrease the size of the image. To maintain the proportions of the image, hold down the Shift key while clicking and dragging a corner. You can also rotate the image by clicking and dragging the circular arrow at the top of the image.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18606

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Kingfisher [used in screenshots]. Authored by: tpsdave. Located at: pixabay.com/en/kingfisher-bird-wildlife-macro-2046453/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Adding Images. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CCO: No Rights Reserved

4.13: Adding Images is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.14: Text Wrap

Learning Objectives

• Change image layout options.

Notice that wherever the image is placed, the line spacing dramatically increases to fit the size of the picture. This is because images are treated as an inline text character. In other words, Word treats the image like it would treat any word or letter of text. You can change this by applying a **text wrap**. Text wrap causes all of the text to wrap around the image so that the image does not interfere with line spacing.



Text wrap

There are a couple of ways to get to the text wrap options and apply a text wrap.

Method 1: Quick Apply

Click the box to the right of the image with a rainbow-shaped icon.



Method 2: Format Tab

When you click on the image, the Format tab will appear in the ribbon. From the Format tab, you can choose Warp Text.



| ا ک 🗄 | - () = | | Doci | ument1 | - Word | | | Sign in | 3 | - 1 | ٥ | × |
|----------------------|---------------|-------------|-----------------------|----------|--|---------|--------------------|----------------------|--------|----------------|------------|----------|
| File | Home Insert | Design | Layout F | Referenc | es Mailings | Review | View | Form | nat | ♀ Tell me | Я | \Box |
| Remove Background | Corrections * |]=] ;- * | Quick Styles * 🛱 * | | Position ▼ Wrap Text ▼ In Line with Te | Send Ba | ackward on Pane | • 通• 2 \ • | Crop | 2.42" 3.63" | * * * * | <u>^</u> |
| | Aujust | | C | | Square Tight Through | | | | | 3120 | (a) | ~ |
| | 0 | | | | Top and Botto Behind Text | m | | | | | | |
| | | | G | a | I <u>n</u> Front of Tex | t | | | | | | |
| | | | 1 | <u>e</u> | Edit Wrap Poin | its | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Move with Tex | t | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Fix Position on | Page | | | | | | |
| | | | | 1 | More <u>L</u> ayout C | ptions | | | | | | |
| | 0 | | 0 | 122 | Set as Def <u>a</u> ult I | Layout | el of com | nunication | relies | | | |

Method 3: Position

Go to Format>Position for options that not only apply text wrap but also position the image on the page.



Position in Top Center with Square Text Wrapping

Text Wrap Options

Regardless of which method you use, the text wrap options are the same. The text wrap you will probably use the most is the square text wrap, but there are other text wraps too.

- Square—Text wraps around the image in a square shape
- Tight/Through—Text wraps around image, regardless of what shape the image is. This text wrap works best with images that have no background.
- Top and Bottom—Text stops when it hits the top of the image and continues at the bottom of the image; no text is to the left or right of the image
- **Behind text**—Image is behind text. Text will cover image.
- In front of text—Image is in front of text. Text behind the image is not visible.





After the text wrap is applied, you can click and drag the image to anywhere in the document, and the text will wrap around it accordingly.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18607

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Text Wrap. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Kingfisher [used in screenshots]. Authored by: tpsdave. Located at: pixabay.com/en/kingfisher-bird-wildlife-macro-2046453/. License: CCO: No Rights Reserved

4.14: Text Wrap is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.15: Introduction to Hyperlinks

What you'll learn to do: add a hyperlink.

Hyperlinks allow you to send your audience to the internet to see background information or a reference source. Hyperlinks can also provide a shortcut for the audience if after reading the document they need to visit a particular website or send an email to a specific address.

Hyperlinks only work when a document is viewed on a computer, not when a document is printed.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Hyperlinks. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.15: Introduction to Hyperlinks is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.16: Hyperlinks

Learning Objectives

• Add a hyperlink.

A hyperlink is a piece of text that when clicked takes the user to a webpage. Hyperlinks can also link to email addresses; when clicked, these hyperlinks will open an email program (likely Microsoft Outlook) to send an email to that address. Hyperlinks are formatted with a different color (blue, by default) and an underline.

Inserting a Hyperlink

To add a hyperlink to a Word document, select the text to be changed into a hyperlink.

This is a hyperlink.

There are three options to add a hyperlink:

- 1. Use the shortcut Ctrl+K.
- 2. Right-click the selected text and select Hyperlink...



3. Insert>Links>Hyperlink.



Any of these options will open up the Hyperlink dialog box.



| Insert Hyperlin | k | | ? | \times |
|------------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------|----------|
| Link to: | Text to displ | ay: hyperlink | ScreenTi | <u>p</u> |
| E <u>x</u> isting File | <u>L</u> ook in: | Class Projects 🗸 🔁 | | |
| or Web Page | C <u>u</u> rrent | | B <u>o</u> okma | rk |
| 1 | Folder | | Tar <u>g</u> et Fra | me |
| Pl <u>a</u> ce in This Document | <u>B</u> rowsed Pages | | | |
| Create <u>N</u> ew Document | Re <u>c</u> ent Files | | | |
| E-mail | Addr <u>e</u> ss: | \\Documents\Class Projects | | |
| Address | | ОК | Can | cel |

The Text to display textbox at the top contains the text that will be formatted as a hyperlink. It can be changed from this window.

The Address textbox at the bottom is where the hyperlink will send users. Type a webpage URL or email address in the Address textbox.

Note that in the screenshot above, the Address textbox contains a file path. You can type in a file path to link to files stored on your computer or in a shared database. Be aware that a hyperlink is only a path to a file, not the file itself—if a user does not have the file on his or her computer, they will not be able to open whatever file you have linked.



When the hyperlink is inserted, the text will change to the hyperlink style. By default, this is blue and underlined, but this is customizable in the Color Theme options. (Design>Colors>Customize Colors...)

This is a hyperlink.

Visiting a Hyperlink

Hover over the hyperlink to see a preview of where the link will take you. Be careful when following hyperlinks to unfamiliar websites.



This is a <u>hyperlink</u>.

Hold down the Ctrl key while clicking on the hyperlink to open the webpage or email (on a Mac, you don't have to hold any key just click). If the link was to a webpage, Microsoft Edge (or Internet Explorer) will open and load the hyperlinked page. If the link was to an email address, Microsoft Outlook will open and create a new message with that email address in the To field.



| W Hyperlink - Wikipedia | × + | | | - 0 | × |
|---|---|--|--|--|-----------|
| \leftarrow \rightarrow O | en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hyperlink | □ ☆ | = 1 | / Å | |
| WIKIPEDIA The Free Encyclopedia | Article Talk Hyperlink From Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia | Not logged in Talk Cont Read Edit View history | ributions Creat | edia | g in Q |
| Main page Contents Featured content Current events Random article Donate to Wikipedia Wikipedia store Interaction Help About Wikipedia Community portal Recent changes | For help creating links in Wikipedia, s In computing, a hyperlink , or simply a lin reference to data that the reader can dire either by clicking, tapping, or hovering. ^[1] hyperlink points to a whole document or t specific element within a document. Hype text with hyperlinks. The text that is linker called anchor text. A software system that for viewing and creating hypertext is a <i>hy</i> <i>system</i> , and to create a hyperlink is <i>to hy</i> simply <i>to link</i>). A user following hyperlink | ee Help:Contents/Links. hk, is a ctly follow A to a ertext is d from is it is used pertext perlink (or is is said to navigate or brow nown as its source docume | a hyperlink with g above it rse the hyperter | dia n a mouse f ext. ple, in an | - |
| Contact page | The document containing a hyperink is k | | | | |

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18608

After the hyperlink has been clicked, the color will change to indicate you have already been to that link. By default, the color changes to purple.

This is a hyperlink.

Тір

If you prefer a different browser such as Firefox or Chrome, set that program as your default browser and Word will open hyperlinks in that browser instead.

Editing Hyperlinks

To edit a hyperlink, right-click the hyperlink and select Edit Hyperlink.







The hyperlink options on the dialog menu are as follows:

- Edit Hyperlink... Takes you to the same dialog box for inserting a hyperlink, allowing you to change what the hyperlink links to.
- **Open Hyperlink.** Performs the same function as Ctrl+click. Opens the hyperlink in Microsoft Edge or Internet Explorer (or default browser).
- Copy Hyperlink. Copies the hyperlink (not the text that changes color).
- **Remove Hyperlink.** Removes the hyperlink, restoring the text to plain text.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Hyperlinks. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.16: Hyperlinks is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills



Now that you have some of the basic layout techniques down, you are ready to move on to adding more elements to your document.

Remember if you get stuck or can't remember how to do something from this module, you can always come back and review.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• text-editor-microsoft-word. Authored by: JuralMin. Located at: pixabay.com/en/text-editor-microsoft-word-writing-1794110/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.18: Assignment- Create Document with Tables and Images

For this assignment, you will format a document with a table and an image. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module or previous modules and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Download the report document and open it in Microsoft Word.
- 2. Save the document as **BA132_LastName_Report.docx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example:
- BA132_Hywater_Newsletter). It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 3. Convert the text after "The top ten are listed in the table below" and before "The Retail Industry" heading into a table. Separate text at Tabs.

| 🗄 🕈 " 🗇 🔻 🛛 | 3A132_Hywater_Report - W | ord | Tabl Sign in 📧 | - 0 | × |
|--|--|--------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|-----|
| File Home Insert Design Lay | out References Mailin | igs Review View | Design Layout Q | Tell me 🛛 🎗 | |
| ✓ Header Row ✓ First Column □ Total Row □ Last Column ✓ Banded Rows □ Banded Columns Table Style Options | Table Sty | shading | Border Styles + Pen Color - Borders | Borders Border + Painter | ~ |
| Who are these retailers The top ten are listed in | ? The NRF posts an annual li the table below. | st of the top one hundr | ed retailers by retail sales. | | - |
| Rank | Retailer | U.S. Headquarters | 2014 Retail Sales | 1 | |
| 1 | Walmart Stores | Bentonville, Arkansas | \$\$343,624,000 |] | |
| 2 | The Kroger Co. | Cincinnati, Ohio | \$103,033,000 | | |
| 3 | Costco | Issaquah, Washingto | n \$79,694,000 | | |
| 4 | The Home Depot | Atlanta, Georgia | \$74,203,000 | | |
| 5 | Walgreen | Deerfield, Illinois | \$72,671,000 | | |
| 6 | Target | Minneapolis, Minnesota | \$72,618,000 | | |
| 7 | CVS Caremark | Woonsocket, Rhode Island | \$67,974,000 | | |
| 8 | Lowe's Companies | Mooresville, North Carolina | \$54,805,000 | | |
| 9 | Amazon.com | Seattle, Washington | \$49,353,000 | | |
| 10 | Safeway | Pleasanton, California | a \$36,330,000 | | |
| The Retail Indust The retail industry cove | ГУ rs an enormous range of cor | nsumer needs. The reta | il industry is designed to | | T |
| Page 1 of 2 564 words | -allowing shoppers to hus | r what they want efficie | ntly with a smaller number of | + | 90% |
| | | | | | |

4. Apply any table style.

| File Ho | ome Insert Desi | ign Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Design | Layout | ΤQ | ell me | 2 | <u>-</u> |
|---|---|----------------------------|----------------|----------------|------------------------|------------|-----------------|----------------------------------|--------|---------|-------------------|----------|
| Header Rov Total Row Banded Rov Tabl | w 🗹 First Column Last Column ws E Banded Colu le Style Options | imns | | Table Styles | | Shading | Borde Styles | ¹ / ₂ pt – | olor * | Borders | Border Painter | , |
| | Who are these | retailers? Th | NRF posts an a | annual list of | the top o | ne hundre | ed retaile | rs by retail s | ales. | | | |
| | The top ten are | e listed in the | table below. | | | | | | | | | |
| | Rank | I | Retailer | U | S. Heado | Jarters | 2014 | Retail Sale | 5 | | | |
| | 1 | 1 | Valmart Stores | Be | entonville | Arkansas | \$343 | 624,000 | | | | |
| | 2 | 1 | 'he Kroger Co. | Ci | ncinnati, (| Dhio | \$103 | ,033,000 | | | | |
| | 3 | (| Costco | ls | saquah, W | ashingtor | \$79, | 694,000 | | | | |
| | 4 | 1 | he Home Depo | t Af | lanta, Ge | orgia | \$74, | 203,000 | | | | |
| | 5 | ١ | Valgreen | D | erfield, Il | linois | \$72, | 671,000 | | | | |
| | 6 | ٦ | arget | M | inneapoli: innesota | 5, | \$72, | 618,000 | | | | |
| | 7 | (| CVS Caremark | W | oonsocke and | t, Rhode | \$67, | 974,000 | | | | |
| | 8 | l | owe's Compan | ies M Ca | ooresville Irolina | , North | \$54, | 805,000 | | | | |
| | 9 | ļ | Amazon.com | Se | attle, Wa | shington | \$49, | 353,000 | | | | |
| | 10 | 5 | afeway | Pl | easanton, | California | \$36, | 330,000 | | | | |
| | The Retail The retail indu | Industry stry covers an | enormous ran | ge of consun | ner needs | The retai | l industry | is designed | to | | | |





5. Download this image to your computer.



6. Insert the shopping cart image into the document at the beginning of the first paragraph (It starts with "Retailing is important to understand").





7. Apply a square text wrap and move the image so it is aligned with the right side of the document.



8. Optional: Resize the image. (Remember, hold down the Shift key while dragging a corner to keep the image proportional.)





9. Download this graph image to your computer.





- 10. Insert the graph image into your document after "creating greater contact efficiency for consumers."
- 11. Add a top and bottom text wrap to the graph image.



12. Look for the phrase "You can view the number of jobs and retail presence in your state at the National Retail Federation (NRF)" in your document. Add a hyperlink to "National Retail Federation (NRF)" that leads to this website:


https://nrf.com/advocacy/retails-impact

| ₽ | 5 - 0 |) - | | | | BA132 | _Hywater | _Report | - Word | | Sign | in | Ŧ | - | ٥ | × |
|--------|---|-------------------|--------------------|---|---------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------|-----------|----------------|---------|--------------------------------|----------|---------|------------|-------|-----------|
| File | Hor | ne Ins | ert | Design | Layout | Refe | rences | Mailin | gs Revie | w | View | Q | Tell me | R | Share | \square |
| Pages | Table | Pictures | Online Pictures | Shapes ⇔ Icons Tations | 5* ∦-* | a Add- ins ▼ | Online Video | Links | Comments | Fi | leader * ooter * age Nur | nber • | Text | Ω Symbo | ols | • |
| | labies | to the l | J.S. gro | ss domestic | product. | | Wie und | 10- | | | | outer | | | | |
| | One of the reasons the retail industry is so large and powerful is its diversity. For example, stores vary in size, in the kinds of services that are provided, in the assortment of merchandise they carry, and in their ownership and management structures. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | The U.S. Census Bureau indicates that 94.5 percent of retail companies have only one location or store. More than one million retail businesses in the U.S. have fewer than one hundred employees. Most retail outlets are small and have weekly sales of just a few hundred dollars. A few are extremely large, having sales of \$500,000 or more on a single day. In fact, on special sale days, some stores exceed \$1 million in sales. You can view the number of jobs and retail presence in your state at the <u>National Retail Federation</u> | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Who ar The top | e these ten ar | e retailers? ⁻ e listed in th | The NRF pe he table be | osts an a low. | nnual list | of the to | op one hundr | ed reta | ailers by | retail | sales. | | | |
| | | Rank | | | Retailer | | | U.S. Hea | dquarters | 2 | 014 Ret | ail Sale | es | | | |
| | | 1 | | | Walmart | Stores | | Bentonv | ille, Arkansas | ; \$ | 343,624 | ,000, | | | | |
| | | 2 | | | The Krog | er Co. | | Cincinna | ti, Ohio | \$ | 103,033 | ,000 | | | | |
| | | 3 | | | Costco | | | Issaquah | i, Washingtoi | n \$ | 79,694,0 | 000 | | | | |
| | | 4 | | | The Horr | ie Depot | | Atlanta, | Georgia | \$ | 74,203,0 | 000 | | | | |
| | | 5 | | | Walgree | n | | Deerfiel | d, Illinois | \$ | 72,671,0 | 000 | | | | - |
| Page 1 | of 2 56 | 4 words | <u>D</u> ¥ | | | | | | | | | R | | - | + | 90% |

13. Save your document again and submit your work in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- shopping-business-retail [used in report document]. Authored by: Alexas_Fotos. Located at: pixabay.com/en/shoppingbusiness-retail-1165437/. License: CCO: No Rights Reserved
- Reading: Types of Retailers. Authored by: Lumen Learning. Located at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/marketingspring2016/chapter/reading-types-of-retailers/. License: CC BY: Attribution

Lumen Learning authored content

- Assignment: Report. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- The Retail Industry [used in report document]. Authored by: Lumen Learning. Located at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/marketing-spring2016/chapter/reading-define-retailing/. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- Outcome: Retailers As Channels of Distribution. Authored by: Lumen Learning. Located at: https://courses.lumenlearning.com/marketing-spring2016/chapter/outcome-retailers-as-channels-of-distribution/. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.18: Assignment- Create Document with Tables and Images is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





4.19: Discussion- Cover Pages

The techniques we learned in this module can be applied in many different ways. The video below uses many techniques you have learned and some you haven't. Watch the video below, looking for ways that some of the tools you have learned are used to create a cover page.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view the transcript for the video "How to create a CUSTOM COVER PAGE" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- What tools that we've previously covered were used in the video?
- What other applications could these tools have?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• How to create a CUSTOM COVER PAGE | MICROSOFT WORD 2016. Authored by: Burn to Learn. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LPXLPSWNkog. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Discussion: Cover Pages. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

4.19: Discussion- Cover Pages is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

5: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

Learning Objectives

- Use templates and text effects
- Insert watermarks and icons
- Insert citations
- Perform a mail merge
- Use internet tools to enhance Word documents

5.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

5.2: Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting

- 5.3: Creating a New Document from a Template
- 5.4: Text Effects
- 5.5: Introduction to Watermarks and Icons
- 5.6: Watermarks
- 5.7: Icons in Word
- 5.8: Introduction to Citations
- 5.9: Citations
- 5.10: Introduction to Mail Merge
- 5.11: Mail Merge
- 5.12: Introduction to Internet and Word
- 5.13: Internet and Word
- 5.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills
- 5.15: Assignment- Edit a Newsletter
- 5.16: Discussion- Advanced Shortcuts

5: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

Why learn to complete advanced skills in Microsoft Word?



We have previously covered the basics of creating a document, but there is more to business

communication than just text.

Using the tools covered in this module will add variety to your document and help convey more information.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Phone-samsung-galaxy. Authored by: FirmBee. Located at: pixabay.com/en/phone-samsung-samsung-galaxy-galaxy-793044/. License: *CCO: No Rights Reserved*

Lumen Learning authored content

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.2: Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting

What you'll learn to do: use templates and text effects.

We have now learned how to create a document and how to format text. We will now build upon that knowledge to use templates and text effects. Both serve as a formatting shortcut by applying existing styles and layout. This means that you can save a little time and effort in return for a little less personalization.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.2: Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.3: Creating a New Document from a Template

Learning Objectives

• Create document from template.

A template is a pre-created document that already has some formatting. Rather than starting from scratch to format a document, you can use the formatting of a template to save yourself a lot of time. You can use a template that comes with Word, download one from the internet, or create your own. For now, we'll focus on creating a document from a template that comes with Word.

From the backstage view (File tab), you can scroll down and see what templates are available.



Near the top of the screen is a search box and some suggested searches. You can type a word or click on one of the suggested searches to help find a suitable template for your project. For example, clicking the suggested search "Business" will take you to templates related to business, with further subcategories on the right. (See below.)



| Æ | Word | Sign in ? — | o × |
|------------|---|-------------------------|--------|
| \bigcirc | | | |
| | New | | |
| New | | | |
| Open | 🟠 Home Business | م | |
| | | Category | |
| | PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES | Business | 237 |
| | Torus and a set of the forget and a set of general of the forget and a set of the forget and a se | Industry Design Sets | 89 |
| | excel controls is query for grantees that excelses and the second of the second o | Marketing | 55 |
| | La SP month La SP mon | Presentations | 55 |
| | Annual approximation of the constraints and the constraints of th | Cards | 41 |
| | | Business Plans | 38 |
| | Services proposal (Busi | Sales | 36 |
| Account | | Business Cards | 34 |
| Account | | Financial Management | 31 |
| Feedback | | Personal | 29 |
| 0-1 | Contemport C | Projects | 29 |
| Options | 3. Projek lange ■ Province and instant in the first track a strategy built of province the | ▼ Paper | 27 💌 👻 |

Select a template, then click Create. You may have to wait a moment for the template to download.

| | | Documen | t1 - Word | Sign in | ? | - | ٥ | × |
|----------|--|--|--|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|-----|----------------|
| Info | New | | | | | | | <u>^</u> |
| New | | | | | | | × | |
| Open | | PROJECT SCORE | Project sco | pe repoi | rt | | -12 | |
| Save | | Constant Constan | (BUSINESS E Provided by: <u>Mic</u> | IUE CORNER | gn) _{tion} | | | |
| Save As | | A finite from end of the of end of the off the of | This project scope | template inclu | des instru | uctions | | 37 |
| Print | | Contraction Contracti | document, as well of the Business Blu | as tips on how a tips on how | t scope to use W his temp | /ord. Part late has a | i j | 56 |
| Share | | A second s | matching services other professional | proposal temp templates to g | late, invo ive your | ice and | | 55 |
| Export | | • | documents an edg | e. | | | | 41 |
| Close | | | * | | | | | 38 36 34 |
| Account | | | Create | | | | | 31 |
| Feedback | 3. Raj can Anarov B. Santanana Na adamata k | n and a state of the state of t | | Persona | I | | 4 | 29 |
| Options | Marcada (1997) Marcada | | | Projects - | | | | 29 |

Once the template is open, you can replace the placeholder text with your own text.



| 🗄 5-0 = | Document | 1 - Word | Sign in | ন | - 0 | |
|--|---|---|--------------------------------|------------------|----------|-----------|
| File Home Insert Design L | ayout References | Mailings Review | w View | ♀ Tell me | ∕⊊ Share | \square |
| $\begin{array}{c c} & & \\ \hline \\ Paste \\ \bullet \\ $ | II + III + IIII + III + IIII + III + II | ▲ AaBbCcDd 1 Normal | • AaBbCcI 🗛 ¶List Bullet He | ABB(eading 1 | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Font 🕠 | Paragraph | Gi i | Styles | Fa | | ~ |
| [YOUR COMI PROJECT SC [Select Date] OVERVIEW 1. Project Background | PANY] COPE | | | Ι | | |
| [Describe how this project of Note: To delete any tip (succilick a tip and press space) | ame about, who is involved, and i h as this) just click it and start typ ar to remove it. | the purpose.] ing. If you're not yet ready | to add your own text, | , just | | |
| 0. Project Ocean | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 388 words | | | | - ® | ++ | 90% |
| Practice Question https://assessments.lumenlea | rning.coessme | ents/18609 | | | | |

Creating a Document from a Downloaded Template

First, download the template. You may download a template from this course or from Microsoft's template page. Note that the file extension for a template is **.dotx**, which is different than the file extension for a normal Word document. In fact, if you save any document with the file extension .dotx, that document will become a template.

Double-click on the downloaded template in File Explorer to open Word and create a new document based on the template. Any changes you make to this new document will not affect the original template; the new document is merely a copy.

To edit the template itself, open Word and go to File>Open>Browse, then select the downloaded template. Opening the template file this way opens the actual template, so any changes will be reflected in future documents you create from this template.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating a New Document from a Template. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.3: Creating a New Document from a Template is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



5.4: Text Effects

Learning Objectives

• Change text using text effects.



In addition to formatting changes we previously discussed in Fonts, you can also apply effects to text with the Text Effects option. This was known as WordArt in previous versions of Word. You can add shadows, bevels, reflections, and much more.



The Text Effects button is in the Font group of the ribbon.^{ard}

The top options in the Text Effects menu have some pre-created styles to choose from.



The Text Effects menu also has the options **Outline**, **Shadow**, **Reflection**, and **Glow**.

Outline

Outline applies a border around the letters of the text.





Hover over each color to preview what the outline will look like. Click on the color to apply it. If you want to change the outline to a color not in the menu, pick **More Outline Colors...** for more options.



Text with a black outline

Use the weight option to change the thickness of the outline.



Text with a 3-pt outline

The Dashes option lets you make a dashed or dotted outline. There are many different kinds of dashes and dots to choose from.



Text with a dashed 3-pt outline

Shadow

Shadow applies a shadow to the letters of the text. Hover over one of the A icons to preview the effects. Click on the A to apply that shadow style.

| A • | 🗛 • 🏧 • 🗛 • Aa • 🛛 A * 🕺 🖄 • 🖽 • | | | | No Shadow | | | |
|------|----------------------------------|---|---|----|-----------|------------|----|---|
| ŀ | A A | A | A | Α | A | | | |
| | <u>۸</u> | | | Λ | Outer | | | |
| ŀ | A A | A | A | A | | | | |
| , | • • | ~ | | | <u></u> | A | La | |
| ŀ | A A | A | A | A | | | | |
| A | <u>O</u> utline | | | ÷ | A | A | La | |
| A | <u>S</u> hadow | | | ×. | 1 | | | |
| A | <u>R</u> eflection | | | ÷ | | | | |
| A | Glow | | | + | Inner | | | |
| 123 | Number Styles | | | ×. | | | | |
| fi | Ligatures | | | ÷ | A | A | A | |
| abc | Stylistic Sets | | | ×. | _ | _ | | |
| | | | | | A | A | Α. | • |
| 5 of | 5 words DQ | | | | Shad | low Option | 5 | |
| 5.01 | D WORDS LTZ | | | | | | | |

There are a lot of different shadow options.





Buy 1 Get 1 Free

Text with outside shadow

Buy 1 Get 1 Free

Text with inside shadow

Buy 1 Get 1 Free

Text with perspective shadow

The **Shadow Options...** option at the bottom of the menu allows you to customize the shadows even further by changing the color, transparency, blur, angle, and distance of the shadows.

- Color: The default shadow is black, but you can change the color to anything you want.
- Transparency: The higher the transparency, the lighter the shadow.
- Blur: An increased blur makes the borders of the shadow more fuzzy, while a decreased blur makes the borders of the shadow more concrete.
- Angle: In real life, the direction of a shadow is determined by the angle of the light. The Angle option in the Shadow Options lets you change the direction of that imaginary light to alter the path of the shadow.
- Distance: The shadow can be very close, almost behind the letters, or it can be far away.

Reflection

Reflection reflects the letters of the text as if held up to a mirror. Hover over each option to preview, and click the option to apply it.



There are a couple variations of reflections to choose from. You can also select Reflection Options... to customize the transparency, size, blur, and distance of the reflection.





Glow

Glow applies a fuzzy colored shape around the letters of the text that makes the letters appear to be glowing. Hover over each option to preview, and click the option to apply it.



A glow can be any color. Go to More Glow Colors to choose a color not already visible in the menu. You can also select Glow Options... to customize the size and transparency.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18610

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Text Effects. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.4: Text Effects is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.5: Introduction to Watermarks and Icons

What you'll learn to do: Insert watermarks and icons

A watermark is an identifying image, shape, or piece of text that overlays the document. Watermarks are usually very light so that they don't interfere with reading the text.

Icons are small images, usually embedded within a line of text. They're typically used to add visual interest.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Watermarks and Icons. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.5: Introduction to Watermarks and Icons is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.6: Watermarks

Learning Objectives

• Insert a watermark.

Text Watermark

You can add a watermark to documents in Word by going to Design>Watermark. (In older versions of Word, it is often found in the Page Layout tab rather than the Design tab.)

| 🖬 🕤 ד 🔿 🔻 Doc | ıment1 - Word | Sign in 🛛 🗖 |) – Ø | |
|--|-------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout Reference | es Mailings Review | View ♀ Tell | me 🖓 Share | \square |
| The The State Stat | olors Fonts Set as D | pacing • 🕞 Watermar | k Page Page Color ▼ Borders | |
| Document Formatting | Confidential | | | - |
| The simplest model of communication relies on More complex models add a fourth elementary about channels later in this module out for now of the message. Channels on take verbal, non- conferences, televition ads, and Web site public channels, thousiness, the sender and receiver ro the organization: For example, a manager (send discuss the employee's performance. The marke announcement to reach potential customers (re | CONFIDENTIAL 1 | CONFIDENTIAL | DO NOT COPY 1 | |
| There is also an enormous range in the kinds of an organization. For example, business commur organization, relay information within a busines variety of topics including consumer behavior, a corporate communication, research and measu communication may also refer to internal comm director may be in charge of managing internal employees. From an HR point of view, effective trust and job satisfaction among employees. The simplest model of communication relies on | DO NOT COPY | Office.com | | • |
| More complex models add a fourth element: the Page 1 of 2 992 words | ave Selection to Watern | mark Gallery | | |

Choosing a watermark from the menu will apply it to every page in the document.

To change the text of the watermark, click **Custom Watermark..** at the bottom of the Watermark menu to open the Printed Watermark dialog box.

| PI | inted Waterr | nark | ? | × | | | |
|-----|--|---|-------|--------|--|--|--|
| 000 | <u>N</u> o waterma P <u>i</u> cture wate Select Pict | rk •rmark ure | | | | | |
| | Scale: | Auto 🗸 🗸 Washout | | | | | |
| ۲ | Te <u>x</u> t waterm | ark | | | | | |
| | Language: | English (United States) | | | | | |
| | | CONFIDENTIAL | | | | | |
| | lext: | CONFIDENTIAL | | \sim | | | |
| | <u>I</u> ext: <u>F</u> ont: | Calibri | | ~ | | | |
| | <u>I</u> ext: <u>F</u> ont: <u>S</u> ize: | Calibri Auto | | ~ | | | |
| | <u>I</u> ext: <u>F</u> ont: <u>S</u> ize: <u>C</u> olor: | Calibri Auto | arent | ~ | | | |
| | <u>I</u> ext: <u>F</u> ont: <u>S</u> ize: <u>C</u> olor: Layout: | Calibri Auto Semitransp © Diagonal O Horizontal | arent | ~ | | | |

Here, you can customize the text and appearance of the watermark. Unchecking the semitransparent box will make the watermark more visible (although the watermark will still not obscure the text).



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18611

Picture Watermark

To add an image as a watermark, go to Design>Watermark>Custom watermark... and select the Picture watermark in the Printed Watermark dialog box.

| Pr | Printed Watermark ? X | | | | | | | | |
|----|--|----------------------------|-------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
| 0 | <u>N</u> o waterma Picture wate Select <u>P</u> icto | rk rmark ure | | | | | | | |
| | Scale: | Auto 🗸 🗹 <u>W</u> ashout | | | | | | | |
| 0 | ◯ Te <u>x</u> t watermark | | | | | | | | |
| | Language: | English (United States) | | \sim | | | | | |
| | Text: | ASAP | | \sim | | | | | |
| | Font: | Calibri | | | | | | | |
| | Size: | Auto 🗸 | | | | | | | |
| | Color: | Automatic 🗸 🗹 Semitranspar | rent | | | | | | |
| | Layout: | Diagonal O Horizontal | | | | | | | |
| | | Apply OK | Cance | el | | | | | |

Click Select Picture... and then Browse to choose an image on your computer. Uncheck the Washout box if you want a darker, more visible watermark. Then click OK in the Printed Watermark dialog box.

| ⊟ 5°0 ፣ | Document1 - Word | | Sign | in 🖪 | - 0 | × | | |
|--|------------------|----------|--|---------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------|--|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | ♀ Tell me | ∕4 Share | \Box | |
| The Transformed Strategies and the Strategies and t | Colors | Fonts | Paragraph Sp Effects - Set as Default | acing * | Watermark Pag - Colo Page Backg | ge Page or + Borders round | ~ | |
| an organization. For example, business communication is used to promote products, services, or an | | | | | | | | |
| organization; relay information within a business; or deal with legal and similar issues. It encompasses a variety of topics including consumer behavior, advertising, public relations, event management, corporate communication, research and measurement, and reputation management. Business communication may also refer to internal communication: In a large company, a communications director may be in charge of managing internal communication and crafting the messages sent to employees. From an HR point of view, effective communication within an organization is vital to building trust and job satisfaction among employees. | | | | | | | | |
| The simplest model of communication relies on three distinct parts: sender, message, and receiver. More complex models add a fourth element: the channel used to send the message. We'll talk more about channels later in this module, but for now, you can think of the channel as the medium, or form, of the message. Channels can take verbal, nonverbal, and written forms. Emails, conversations, video conferences, television ads, and Web site publications are all examples of specific communication channels. In business, the sender and receiver roles can be filled by many people within and outside of the organization: For example, a manager (sender) holds a meeting with an employee (receiver) to discuss the employee's performance. The marketing department (sender) publishes a product launch announcement to reach potential customers (receivers). | | | | | | | | |
| There is also an enormous range in the kinds of communication that take place within and to and from an organization. For example, business communication is used to promote products, services, or an organization; relay information within a business; or deal with legal and similar issues. It encompasses a variety of topics including consumer behavior, advertising, public relations, event management, | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 2 992 words | 1 | | | | | ++ | 90% | |

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Tree [used in watermark]. Authored by: Edward Boatman. Located at: https://thenounproject.com/term/tree/459/. License: CC BY: Attribution

Lumen Learning authored content

• Watermarks. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.6: Watermarks is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



5.7: Icons in Word

Learning Outcomes

• Create a Word document with inserted icon.

There is one more thing Rosamine wishes to incorporate into her document—a final icon.

Rosamine's GM has a good sense of humor, so Rosamine chooses a different icon to end with in each of her reports. This time she wants a little piggy bank icon. To do this, she puts her cursor where she wants the icon to go, clicks on the **Insert** tab, and selects the **Icon** button. After scrolling down, she finds the piggy bank icon, selects it, and clicks the **Insert** button.



The little piggy is now in the document but needs a bit of adjusting. Like she can with the table and chart, Rosamine can drag the little image circle boarder to make the icon smaller. She also selects the button to have the icon move behind the text.





Store 1 2 \$45,589 2 \$48.293 Store 2 Store 3 2 \$53,948 \$147.830 This guarter the top sales figures are from Store 3

and we congratulate them. Store 3 ran continuous smaller sales promotions throughout the second guarter which boosted their sales figures. In comparison, Store 1 and 2 ran one main sale promotion in the guarter. With further research, the suggestion from the sales figures is that running multiple smaller campaigns brings in

shoppers more frequently and boosts the sale of additional products in addition to sales products.

This year is on track to be the highest grossing sales year in comparison to the last three years. Most of the sales occur in the fourth quarter and typically equal 80% of total sales for the year. This year the combine total for the first two quarters is \$340,921 which is 25% ahead of the sales figures from in 2016.

Suggested Sales Improvements

There are five smaller sales promotion campaigns rolling out in quarter three to capitalize on lessons learned from Store 3's success this year. To see the details for these campaigns, please refer to the marketing departments PowerPoint presentation Q3 Sales Promotions.pptx.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18808

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18809

Now the little piggy bank is in place, and Rosamine has finished her report. She makes sure to save her file where she can easily find it again and emails it to her General Manager. Well done, Rosamine!

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Icons in Word. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.7: Icons in Word is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.8: Introduction to Citations

What you'll learn to do: Insert citations

Certain formatting and style conventions must be followed when writing a research paper or manuscript, especially when identifying sources. Instead of footnotes, in-text citations can be inserted to acknowledge sources of quotations or borrowed ideas rather than plagiarizing information. Word supports three popular styles for citing references: the APA (American Psychological Association), the CMS (Chicago Manual of Style), and the MLA (Modern Language Association).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Citations. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.8: Introduction to Citations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.9: Citations

Learning Outcomes

• Insert citations

To enter in-text citations, Word provides a dialog box to capture the pertinent information.

- 1. Click References.
- 2. Click Insert Citation.
- 3. Click Add New Source in drop down.
- 4. Type necessary information into the fields provided.

After filling in the dialog box, click **OK** and Word automatically places the citation at the insertion point.

| Create Source | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------|---------------------------------|-----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Type of Source | Document From Web site 💲 | | | | | | | |
| Bibliography Field | is for APA | | | | | | | |
| / | Author: | Edit | | | | | | |
| | Corporate Author: | | | | | | | |
| Name of Web | page: | | | | | | | |
| Name of We | eb site: | | | | | | | |
| | URL: | | | | | | | |
| | Year: | | | | | | | |
| 1 | Month: | | | | | | | |
| | Day: | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Example: Dick | ens, Charles; Hemingway, Ernest | | | | | | | |
| Show all bibli | ography fields | | | | | | | |
| Type of Source: | Placeholder1 | Cancel OK | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18614

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Citations. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.9: Citations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



5.10: Introduction to Mail Merge

What you'll learn to do: Perform a mail merge

Most Word users only use a small fraction of the features available to them. One of the most powerful features of Word is merging documents. Mail merge is very helpful when you want to send the same letter to a number of people. Word will even create an addressed envelope for each letter.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Mail Merge. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.10: Introduction to Mail Merge is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.11: Mail Merge

Learning Outcomes

• Perform a mail merge

The Mail Merge feature creates letters, labels, envelopes, and emails all with personalized data. A merge usually requires two documents—the data source file that contains the variable information to be inserted, and a main document with the text and fields that identify where the variable data is to be inserted.

Word has a handy wizard to guide you through the mail merge process.

- 1. Click Mailings > Start Mail Merge > Step by Step Mail Merge Wizard.
- 2. Click **Select Document Type** and then click Next: Starting document hyperlink.
- 3. At the second Mail Merge task pane, click **Start from existing document**.
- 4. Click the **Open** button. At the Open dialog box, browse to the data file containing the information to be inserted, and doubleclick it.
- 5. At the third task pane, click on the Use an existing list and then Browse.
- 6. At the Select Data Source dialog box, navigate to your storage file and then double-click it.
- 7. At the Mail Merge Recipients dialog box, click **OK**.
- 8. Click the Write your Letter hyperlink.

Continue to follow the instructions provided by the wizard to complete your document.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18615

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Mail Merge. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution
- Practice Question. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.11: Mail Merge is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



5.12: Introduction to Internet and Word

What you'll learn to do: Use internet tools to enhance Word documents

There are several features that can help you take advantage of the internet and its capabilities in your Word documents.

5.12: Introduction to Internet and Word is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.13: Internet and Word

Learning Outcomes

• Use internet tools to enhance Word documents.

Rowan Retail Store #1 is using Word to present their plan for the Q3 sales campaign. The campaign for this store will be through social media and the focus on selling more sporting goods in the store. Shanda Bates is creating the Word document.

First, Shanda opens Word on her computer and decides she will use a report template. She searches for business reports. Word's search bar uses the internet to find thousands of report templates for Shanda to use. This is one way the internet is integrated into a Word document.



After Shanda selects and downloads the report template, she types in the titles and other information on the first page.



| æ | | Word | | Sign in ? — | - x |
|----------|--|--|--------------------------------|--------------------------|-----|
| \sim | | | | | |
| Info | New | | | | |
| New | | | | | |
| Öpen | Home Business report | Q | | | |
| Save | and the second se | | | Category | |
| Saveda | (TYPE THE | | | Business | |
| | тпц | TYPE THE | | Papers and Reports | 98 |
| Print | and the second se | DOCUMENT | | Industry | 60 |
| Share | States and | TITLE] | Downloading your template | Logs | |
| Export | ALL DE CONTRACTOR DE CONTRACTO | | Business report (Median theme) | Financial Management | |
| Com. | | | | | |
| | Business report (Media- | | | Lists | |
| | | Performer Trace for Experience profiles | Cancel | Projects. | |
| Account | 2000 | Ran Karaken et en sterner den Brader von Brader von inspiration Karaken und Karaken et er einer den die zwei karaken sterne Vonderster der Karaken von gesterne der Karaken et die | | Analysis | |
| Feedback | | 101751000 | | Education | |
| Options | the second second | | | Database | |
| | | | | Nurketing Design Sate | |
| | 10 10 10 10 10 10 | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | TAXABLE PROPERTY. | | | Personal | |
| | | | | Annual | |
| | | | | | |

Next, Shanda begins to compose the plan and wants pictures and icons to add where appropriate, so she opens a web browser and searches for images. To find usable images she selects the Tools>Images for reuse option, which sorts the images to fit this parameter. Shanda finds a little shop icon, copies (Ctrl+C or Cmd+C) and pastes (Ctrl+V or Cmd+V) it into the report. She then drags it and resizes it to fit.





| 🗑 🖬 ७ - ७ 🗋 🧉 | 2.2 | Store 1 Report - Microsoft Word non-commercia | luse Picture Tools | No. of Street or other Dist. | No. of Concession, Name | - 0 -×- |
|--|-----------------------------------|---|--|------------------------------|-------------------------|------------|
| File Home Ins | ert Page Layout | References Mailings Review View | PDF Avery Format | | | ۵ 😧 |
| ABC Spelling & Research Thesar Grammar Proofing | ABC 123 Word Trans Count | state Language | Pinat: Show Markup Track hanges • Reviewing Pane * Tracking | Accept Reject | Compare Compare Protect | |
| L | | | | | | 1 |
| Finaling | | SOCIAL MEDIA CAMPA | IGN - STORE 1 | I ICATI | | ہ چھڑچھ |
| n | | | | | e- | 10% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18617

She continues to search for images, but this time she uses the **Online Pictures** button within Word to find a usable Facebook icon.



She searches and finds an appropriate icon and clicks to insert it in her document.





| ₿ | 5.0 | | | | | | ocx [Com | | | | | | | | |
|--------|---------|---------------------|----------------------------|---------------------|---------------|-----------------|------------|--------------|---|------------|---------------|-------------------------|--------------|-------|--------|
| File | Hor | ne Insert | Design | Layout | Refe | erences | Mailing | gs Revie | w View | Q | Tell me | | Ľ | Share | \Box |
| Pages | Table | Pictures Or Pict | ● Icons line tures ■ | es * 💼 | Add- ins * | Online Video | Einks | Comment | Header • Footer • Page Nu | mber * | Text Box * | ■ • 2 4 • ® 4 • ■ | ΥΩ Symbol | s | |
| | Tables | | Insert | Pictur | es | | | | | | | | × 9 9 | | ^ |
| | | | Bing Search | Image Se the web | earch | | | | facebook, crea | tive con | nmons | ×P | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Sign in with | your Micro: | soft acco | ount to ins | ert photos | s and videos | from OneDriv | ve, Flickr | r, and othe | er sites. | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 2 | of 2 71 | words []2 | | | | | | | | | | | | + | 100% |

After resizing the icon, Shanda wraps the text by the icon so that it fits on the page with the text.

| 🖶 🖘 - 🗇 📼 Store 1 | 1 Report.docx [Compatibility | Mode] - Word | Picture Tool | 5 | Sign in 🖽 — 🗗 🗙 |
|---|--|--|-----------------------------------|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design L | Layout References M | Mailings Review Vie | w Format | Q Tell me what you want to do | 년 Share 🖵 |
| Ab Cut Paste ♥ Format Painter Clipboard rs | 36 • A° A° Aa - & x, x² @ - ⊻ - ▲ • Font | ::: - :::: - ::::: •::: • ::: - :::: - :::::::::::::::::::::::: | ≣ \$4 ¶ ©-⊞• o | Antholician Antholician Antholician Antholician Antholician Antholician Antholician Theoter I. Theoter O., Theoder., Theoder., Theoremail Thiosp Styles | xD AABBC AnBbCr → Araber kiL Heading 1. Heading 2 → below c below → |
| | ↓ Q3 SOCIAL FACEBOO INSTAGR PINTERES | Sales Co MED @CARENT DK | wout Options In Line with Text | er Stehe Comprise Stands | |
| Page 2 of 2 71 words DR | | | See.n | NOTE | 01 00 05 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |

Shanda thinks that including a link to the social media strategy video she watched to create this plan is a good idea. She searches and finds the video in YouTube, then copies the link and pastes it into the plan. Alternatively, she could click the share button and share the video on various social media platforms.





She continues to fill in the text of the plan and finish this report off. Let's have a quick recap of the integration actions she took.



1. **Store icon.** Shanda searched the internet for an appropriate icon, copied it, pasted it, resized it, chose a layout, and dragged the icon to the place in the document she liked.





- 2. **Hyperlinked YouTube page.** Shanda included a link to the video by finding the video on YouTube, then copying and pasting the link into the report. The link can now be clicked to take the reader to watch the video.
- 3. **Graphic chart.** Shanda searched with Word's **Online Picture** button and found a chart to display her social media campaign plan's purpose. Like before, she copied the chart, pasted it, resized it, chose a layout, and centered the chart.
- 4. **Facebook icon.** Shanda searched with Word's **Online Picture** button to find the Facebook icon to put next to the Facebook section in her report. She copied it, pasted it, resized it, and picked the appropriate layout option, then dragged the icon to the appropriate place in the document.

These same processes of search, find, copy, paste, resize, and so on are going to be the same in Excel and PowerPoint.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18616

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Internet and Word. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.13: Internet and Word is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills

We have now explored Microsoft Word. After careful reading and a bit of practice, you can now create a great variety of documents that will suit your business needs.

Remember that Microsoft Word still has many more features and tools to offer. If you are interested in learning more, Microsoft's website is a good place to check, or you can run a web search for how to use a particular feature.

And of course, if you get stuck or can't remember how to do something from this module, you can always come back and review.

Contributors and Attributions

Lumen Learning authored content

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

5.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





5.15: Assignment- Edit a Newsletter

For this assignment, you will be using what you have learned so far and format a newsletter draft. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Download the newsletter template to the Rowan folder on your desktop.
- 2. Open the template in Word by either double-clicking the downloaded template in File Explorer or opening it in Word by going to File>Open>Browse and then selecting the downloaded template.



- 3. Save the file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as **BA132_LastName_Newsletter.docx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Newsletter) If you opened the template through Word, remember to select Save As and change the file extension to .docx. It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 4. Change the "RowanGo App Lets Customers Shop Anywhere" and "Employee of the Month: Shanice Jones" articles to two columns.





| AutoSave 💽 | 回 5~ ひ - | Module 5 Assignment - Newsletter | 🔎 Sign in 🖻 – 🗆 X |
|--------------------|---|--|--|
| File Home | Insert Design Layout References M Size Columns b Page Setup rs | ailings Review View Help Spacing C T = Before 0 pt C C T = After 8 pt C Paragraph FS | |
| | Room Rowango App Lets Customer Anyuhar Want great savings on the go? The new for free and available on IOS and Android. First who download the app et a coupon for ao first purchase. I haddition, customers using Rowango app to shop get a a 2% discount on Rowango app to shop get a a 2% discount on Rowango app to shop get a a 2% discount on Rowango app to shop get a a 2% discount on Rowango app to shop get a a 2% discount on Rowango also offers a new long-asked-for mobile payment. <u>Rowango</u> digitizes and re- credit or debit magnetic stripe card transac credit cards, gift cards, loyalty cards, codes, as well as redeeming sales promotio smartphone. | vange app is -time users 92 92 92 92 92 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 90 91 92 93 94 95 95 96 97 98 99 90 91 92 93 94 94 95 96 96 97 98 98 99 90 90 91 92 93 94 <t< th=""><th>As a long history, o support such I: Shanice of the month, rking as a cashier at nths, her dedicated exceptional weing floor manager. working for Rowan, being floor manager. working for Rowan, exceptional seing floor manager. working for Rowan, being floor manager. working for Rowan, the consistent of the second second second second friend."</th></t<> | As a long history, o support such I: Shanice of the month, rking as a cashier at nths, her dedicated exceptional weing floor manager. working for Rowan, being floor manager. working for Rowan, exceptional seing floor manager. working for Rowan, being floor manager. working for Rowan, the consistent of the second second second second friend." |
| Page 1 of 2 389 wo | operated under financial regulation and per from or via a mobile device. Instead of payi cash, check, or credit cards, a consumer ca smartphone to pay for a wide range of serv ds ID ID ID | formed her." g with use a In her free time, Shanice enjoys ru marathons and countingly, reading ces and countingly, reading (D), Focus | nning (two g comic books, and an Shanio*: a III a a a - + 100% |

5. Use Find and Replace to change every "Rowango" to "RowanGo".



 \odot



6. Add a right tab stop to the sales in the "Splash into Summer with Sales!" text box and right-align the dates of the sales.

| AutoSave 💽 Off | 日 ら・ひ | ÷ | Module 5 Assignme | nt - Newsletter | م | Sign in | Ŧ | - 0 | × |
|----------------------|---|--|---|--|--|--|--|-----|-------|
| File Home | Insert Desi Size Columns | ign Layout Ref Breaks ~ I 1: Line Numbers ~ bc ² Hyphenation ~ | ierences Mailings Review Indent Spacing ΞΞ Left: 0° ℃ \$ ΞΞ Before 0 ΞΞ Right: 0° ℃ \$ ±Ξ After: 8 Paragraph | View Help pt pt F ₃ | Wrap Bring Send Fext Y Forward Y Backward Arrange | Selection | I Share P Align ~ 注i Group ~ Rotate ~ | Com | nents |
| α | debit term cards well a smar Mobi opera from cash, smar digita non-o | space of the second sec | transaction at credit card s to store debit cards, credit rds, and coupon codes, as omotions on their "ers to payment services gulation and performed E. Instead of paying with s, a consumer can use a dide range of services and ough the concept of using ystems has a long history, | Count every one of Shanice's supervise is an absolute asse surpasses target go person to be aroun her." In her free time, Sh marathons and cou spending time with personal motto is, done." Way to go, | The second secon | d friend." ed: "Shani stently e's a great e around wo books, and ice's sible until i | ice : it's | | |
| | | Splash into | Summer with Sales! | | | | | | |
| - | | Rowan Opening | g Sale | | June 1 | 2 | | | |
| | | Suit Up Sale | | | June 1- | -14 | | | |
| | | All-Night All-Sta | ars | Jui | ne 20–27, 5pm–12a | am | | | |
| | | Independence | Day Sale | | July 2 | -5 | | | |
| ຫ | | Simmering Sum | nmer Sale | | July 9– | -13 | | | |
| - | | Beach Bum Sale | e | | July 15- | -19 | | | |
| 10 | | Notebooks/Pla | nners Back to School Sale | | July 31–Sep | t 1 | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 389 word | Is Dx 10 | | | | (D) Focus | | | ++ | 100% |

7. Apply at least one text effect (out of Outline, Shadow, Reflection, or Glow) to the words "Rowan Retail" at the top of the newsletter. Be sure the words are still within the text box.



8. Add a citation of the Wikipedia page (https://en.Wikipedia.org/wiki/Mobile_payment) for mobile payment in the second paragraph after the words "mobile payment."





| AutoSave 💽 🗄 🥠 | , जू र | Module 5 Assignment | - Newsletter | P Sign in | æ | - 🗆 🗙 |
|------------------------|---|--|--|--|---------------|------------------|
| File Home Insert | Design Layout References | Mailings Review | View Help | | 🖻 Share | |
| Table of Contents Y | ab ¹ Tij Insert Endnote Insert Footnote Show Notes | Researcher Citation ~ | ☐ Manage Sources ↓ Style: APA → ↓ Bibliography → | Insert Table of Figures Update Table Caption | Mark Entry | Mark Citation |
| Table of Contents | Footnotes 🕟 Re: | earch Citation | s & Bibliography | Captions | Index | Table of Auth |
| - | | | NL IF | λIL | | A |
| | Rowan App Lets Customer Anywhere Want great savings on the go? The new free and available on iOS and Android. who download the app get a coupon for first purchase. In addition, customers u app to shop get a 2% discount on all fu purchases. Log in using your Rowan cre watch the savings pile up. Rowan also offers a new long-asked-fo paymen (Wikipedia, 2017) Rowan dig replaces the creation of each magnetic st transaction at credit card terminals by, store debit cards, credit cards, gift card and coupon codes, as well as redeemin promotions on their smartphone. Mobile wallet generally refers to paym operated under financial regulation an from or via a mobile device. Instead of cash, check, or credit cards, a consume smartphone to pay for a wide range of digital or hard goods. Although the cor non-coin-based currency systems has a | s Shop (Rowan app is First-time users r 20% off their sing the Rowan ture Rowan edentials and r feature: mobile tizes and ripe card allowing users to is, loyalty cards, g sales ent services d performed paying with r can use a services and services of using ulong history, | only recently has ti systems become w Employee of Jones Congratulations to Shanice Jones! Sha Rowan in May 2021 work ethic, cheeff leadership skills pr When asked what : Shanice's supervise is an absolute asse surpasses target go person to be aroun her." In her free time, Sh marathons and coo spending time with personal motto is, done." Way to go, | he technology to support such idely available. the Month: Shanice our employee of the month, anice started working as a cashier at 5. Within six months, her dedicated of attitude, and exceptional opelled her to being floor manager. she likes about working for Rowan, e all the great people I work with. I 'my coworkers as a good friend." or, Lorenzo <u>Ricet</u> , bragged: "Shanic t to the team. She consistently baals for her floor, and she's a great id. She inspires everyone around hanice enjoys running (two unting!), reading comic books, and her two children. Shanice's "It always seems impossible until it Shanice! | t re | |
| Page 1 of 1 391 words | Splash into Summe | er with Sales! | | (D) Focus 💷 🔳 🌆 | | ▼ ↓ 100% |

9. Finally, add a sideways DRAFT watermark across the newsletter.



10. Save your work again and submit your document in your course online.





Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Edit a Newsletter. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Paragraph on mobile wallet revision and adaptation. **Authored by**: Linda Williams and Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY-SA*: *Attribution-ShareAlike*

5.15: Assignment- Edit a Newsletter is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



5.16: Discussion- Advanced Shortcuts

We have previously covered some commonly known shortcuts that speed up a lot of basic functions, such as copying and pasting and doing some basic formatting. Watch the video below to see a sample of other shortcuts that are available, then answer the questions below. While the video shows an older version of Word (Microsoft Word 2016), the same shortcuts work in other versions of Word, including 2019 and 365.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Practical Word 2016 Shortcuts #2" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Do you find shortcuts to be helpful or overwhelming? Why?
- As you've worked through the projects in this class, is there anything you wish had a shortcut?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Advanced Shortcuts. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Practical Word 2016 Shortcuts #2. Authored by: Burn to Learn. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=3LeSQvo3M8g. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

5.16: Discussion- Advanced Shortcuts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

6: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

Learning Objectives

- Using Excel
- Basic Formatting and Layout
- Basic Formatting and Layout

6.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

- 6.2: Introduction to Using Excel
- 6.3: Creating a New Workbook
- 6.4: Entering Data
- 6.5: Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout
- 6.6: Table Styles
- 6.7: Cell Styles
- 6.8: Cell Format
- 6.9: Comma Styles
- 6.10: Rearranging Tables
- 6.11: Changing Width of Columns and Rows
- 6.12: Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets
- 6.13: Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets
- 6.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills
- 6.15: Assignment- Organize Sales Data
- 6.16: Discussion- Merging and Centering Cells

6: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




6.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

Why learn to complete basic skills in Microsoft Excel?

Imagine that you have a lot of business data. Perhaps you have names and addresses for a mailing list. Maybe you have inventory data or quarterly sales values. All this information could be kept in a Word document, but Microsoft Office actually has an extremely useful program for organizing, storing, and even manipulating data: Microsoft Excel.

In this module, you will learn the basics of using Excel, focused on rearranging information into tables and changing style elements. Before we begin, here is some key information about Excel to remember before we start using this program.

- 1. The entire Excel file is called a workbook. Each individual page of the workbook is called a worksheet. When you are actually working in Excel, the page in which you enter data is a worksheet. We will discuss worksheets in more detail later but just remember, a worksheet is like a page in Word.
- 2. Also just like in Word, Excel has a ribbon area at the top of the window with different tabs for different controls.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills. **Authored by**: Shelli Carter. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

6.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.2: Introduction to Using Excel

What you'll learn to do: create a worksheet and add data.

Learning to use Microsoft Excel is one of the most helpful and versatile workplace skills you can acquire, and creating a worksheet in a workbook is the first step. Many of the skills you learned for Microsoft Word can also be applied to Microsoft Excel, such as basic text formatting and file extensions. The file extension for a Microsoft Excel workbook is **.xlsx**, although pre-2003 versions of Excel might use **.xls**.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using Excel. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.2: Introduction to Using Excel is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.3: Creating a New Workbook

Learning Outcomes

• Create a new Excel workbook.

You can open Excel from the Start menu (or the Applications folder on a Mac) by clicking on the Excel icon. The Excel icon comes in a variety of forms depending on your OS and version of Excel, but it always features the color green and the letter X.



When you open Excel, some versions of Excel may take you straight to a new blank workbook. Newer versions such as Excel 2019 will take you to a menu called **backstage view** to choose to open a new blank workbook or open a new workbook from a template. If you already have a file open in Excel, you can create a new document by clicking File>New. You can also use the shortcut Ctrl+N (Cmnd+N for Mac).



Note that the backstage view on a Mac computer is a little different.



| | | | | Q Search All Templates | |
|----------|---|---|---|--|--|
| • New | A B C 1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 | Take a tour | NEW WILL WILL WILL WILL WILL WILL WILL WILL WILL <th col<="" th=""><th>Total a List Total S139.00 Imm Cent Imm 512.00 Imm 5130.00 Imm 5155.00</th></th> | <th>Total a List Total S139.00 Imm Cent Imm 512.00 Imm 5130.00 Imm 5155.00</th> | Total a List Total S139.00 Imm Cent Imm 512.00 Imm 5130.00 Imm 5155.00 |
| Recent | Blank Workbook | Welcome to Excel | Make a List | Total a list | |
| Open | | Sto finceme Spent Sto finceme Spent Store | | | |
| | Track My Tasks | Manage My Money | Personal Budget | Family Budget | |
| | Desirier Psycii Calculator 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2 | Anternational in antern | VECTORS | Cologe Companion Turcker Applications mediate and the second se | |
| | | | | Cancel Create | |

Practice question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18618

To open a blank workbook, double-click the blank workbook option.

| H | | | | | | | | | | | | | × |
|-----------------|-------------|----------------|---|--|-------------------------------|---|---|---|-----------|---|-------------------------------|--------------|-----|
| File | ŀ | lome | Insert F | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | 🛛 Tell me | | A Share | 2 |
| Paste Clipbo | → Pard G | Calibri B I | - 11 <u>U</u> - A [*] ^A - A - Font | A = = A = = A = = A = = A = = A ign | ≡ È ∓ È + ≫ + ment ⊊ | General \$ ▼ % €.00 .00 Number | Con Fig. Con Forr Con Con Con Fig. Con | ditional For mat as Table Styles * Styles | matting * | Insert • Delete • Format • Cells | ∑ • ∮ ↓ • ¢ • Editin | Az∓ - P - | ~ |
| A1 | | - | $\times \checkmark$ | f_{x} | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 1 | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н | I | J | К | L | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 15 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | • | She | et1 | + | | | | : 4 | | | | | |
| Ready | | | | | | | | Ħ | | — – | 1 | + 10 | 00% |

Before using a workbook, it is helpful to know a few key terms.





Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18619

| H | ې . رې | .⇒ - ∓ | | | | Book1 - | Excel | | | E E | - 6 | X |
|-------------|-----------|---------------|--|--------|------------------|---------------------------------------|--|--|-----------|----------------------------------|----------------------|---------|
| File | Ho | me In | isert Page | Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | ۶ | 2 Share |
| Paste | ്~ ™ - | Calibri B I L | - 11 - J - A [*] A [*] → A - | | ■ = ⇒ * | General \$ - % €.00 →.00 | Cor Fig Cor For For Cell | nditional For mat as Table Styles + | matting • | Insert ▼ Delete ▼ Format ▼ | ∑ - 21 ↓ - 2 < | r |
| Clipbo | ard 🗔 | Fo | ont 5 | Alignm | nent 🕞 | Number | Fa | Styles | | Cells | Editing | |
| A1 | | - | $\times \checkmark$ | 3 | | | | | | | | v |
| _T | | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | L |
| 1 2 3 | | 2 | | | Ь | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | -4 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | - | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | ŀ | Sheet | 4 | | 1 | 1 | 1 | | | i | | • |
| Ready | | | | | | | | III | E | 四 | - | + 100% |

1. Cell. This is the area where you will enter data.

- 2. **Row.** Rows are cells aligned horizontally.
- 3. Column. Columns are cells aligned vertically.
- 4. **Worksheet.** A worksheet is a single page within a workbook. Like the tabs in an internet browser, the tabs in an Excel workbook show different pages, or worksheets. A workbook may have many worksheets included in it. In this screenshot, the workbook only has one worksheet and one tab, which is labeled Sheet1. The selected tab shows the selected worksheet. Clicking the + button will add another worksheet. When you save a workbook in Excel, all of the worksheets in that workbook are saved.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating a New Workbook. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.3: Creating a New Workbook is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.4: Entering Data

Learning Outcomes

• Add data to a table.

Excel workbooks are used to organize data very clearly. Numerical data can be used in a variety of ways, some of which we will examine in later modules. The first step, however, is simply to enter data into a table.

First, open a blank workbook. Next, click on the first cell for your data: this will almost always be A1.

| ₽ 5- | ⊘ | | | Book1 - | Excel | | | | - 0 | × |
|-------------|-----------------------------|------------------|------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------|---|------------------|-------------|---|---------|
| File H | lome Inser | rt Page Layout | : Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | 🛛 Tell m | e 6 | A Share |
| Paste | Calibri B I U · E · D | | | General \$ ▼ % €.00 .00 | Con Forr Cell | ditional For nat as Table Styles * | matting • • • | This Insert | $\sum_{i} \cdot \sum_{j=1}^{A} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^$ | * |
| Clipboard 5 | Font | GI AI | ignment 🕞 | Number | Fai I | Styles | | Cells | Editing | ~ |
| A1 | - I X | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | ~ |
| A | В | C D | E | F | G | н | I | J | K | L 🔺 |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sheet1 | + | | | | : • | | | | |
| Ready | | | | | | | Ξ | ─ | - | + 100% |

If you wish to organize your data in a column, you will hit ENTER to move to the next cell down. In this case, A2.



| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | < |
|--------|----------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------|------------------|-------------------------|--|--|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------|---------------------|----|
| File | н | ome | Insert | Page | Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | 🔉 Tell me | | R₄ Share | |
| Paste | ж № - | Calibri B I | <u>ц</u> , Ф, - | 11 • A A A • | | ₩ ₩ * * | General \$ • % 50 | ■ C > ■ F ■ C | onditional Fo ormat as Tab ell Styles - | ormatting * -le * | Tinsert 🔹 🐨 Delete 🔹 | ∑ - ↓ - , - | 2 τ - ρ - | |
| Clipbo | ard 5 | | Font | 5 | Align | ment 🕫 | Number | rş. | Styles | | Cells | Editi | ing | ^ |
| A1 | | • | × | \checkmark | fx | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | | В | | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | ٠ |
| 1 | • | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | • | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | Ŧ |
| - | E. | She | et1 | \oplus | | | | | 1 | | | | Þ | |
| Ready | | | | | | | | | B | | 巴 - | 1 | + 10 | 0% |

If you wish to organize your data in a row, you will hit the Tab key to move to the next cell over. In this case, the next cell over is B1.

| 8 5- | | | | Book1 - | | | saelli isa | | - | ٥ | × |
|---|---------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------|--|------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------|-----|
| File H | iome Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | 🛛 Tell me | | ∕₽, Sh | are |
| Paste | Calibri B I U - E - 2 - Font | | = ₽ = ₽ * * * * * | General \$ • % \$ 00 \$ | Fig Con Forr Gr | iditional For mat as Table Styles * Styles | matting * | Insert • Delete • Format • | ∑ - ↓ - ¢ - Editi | Δ _Z Ψ - Ω - | ~ |
| A1 | * : × | √ f _x | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| A | в | C D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | 1 | L 🔺 |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 11 12 13 14 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 16 | Sheet1 | ٠ | | | | : | | | | | v |

Enter all of your data into each individual cell until you are ready to save your workbook.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18620

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18621





Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Enter Data into a Table. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.4: Entering Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.5: Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout

What you'll learn to do: change formatting, layout, and styles in Excel.

Like any Microsoft program, Excel will default to certain fonts, texts, and styles when you create a new worksheet. It is also very easy within Excel to format individual cells with cell styles or multiple cells with a table style. Not only can formatting help make your tables more attractive, but it can also help indicate information about the contents, such as whether the data in a cell reaches a target goal. In this section, we will address how to change several default styles within Excel.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout. Authored by: Shelli Carter. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.5: Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.6: Table Styles

Learning Outcomes

• Apply table styles.

One very common task in Excel is to format a table with a particular style. The controls for table styles are found in the Styles group of the ribbon under



the Home tab. Ready

There are many default table styles within Excel, as shown in the screenshot below. Among other uses, styles let you apply color schemes to tables that can make them more readable. In order to apply a particular table style:

- 1. Select all the cells that belong in your table.
- 2. Click on the "Format as Table" button.
- 3. Choose which table style to apply.



Select all the cells that belong in your table. Click on the "Format as Table" button. Choose which table style to apply.

In the screenshot example, each column is a particular type of information (Last name, First Name, Address). These are known as headers. When applying the table style, be sure to check the box if your table has headers that you have already entered.





Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18623

| l | ی رک 🗄 | ~ ÷ | | | Book1 | - Excel | | | er 🖪 | - 0 | \times |
|-----|-------------------|--|---------------------|--|--|---|---|---------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|----------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | Я, sł | nare |
| Pa | ste 💉 🛛 | - I <u>U</u> - - <u>♪</u> - A Font | | = = → → → → → → → → → → | General \$ - % €000 Number | ✓ ✓ | onditional rmat as T Il Styles - Styl | l Formatting * able * les | Insert • Delete • Format • Cells | ∑ · AZT· ↓ · P· ¢ · Editing | ~ |
| A | L Ŧ | | √ f _× La | ist Name | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I J | К | |
| 1 | Last Name | First Name | Address | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Smith | John | 123 North Stre | et | | | | | | | |
| 3 | Doe | Jane | 987 West Way | | | ୍ | 57 | ` | | | |
| 4 | | | | Format As T | able | R | 25 | | | | |
| 5 | | | | Where is th | e data for j | your table? | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | = SAS: | L:\$C\$3 | | Ť | | | | |
| / | | | | My | table has h | neaders | | | | | |
| 0 | | | | / | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | ОК | Ca | ncel | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < > | Sheet1 | + | | | | : • | | | | |
| Rea | ady | | | | | Cor | unt: 9 | | ─ - | + | 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18622

Your final table would look something like the table below using the options shown in the screenshots.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Styles within Excel. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.6: Table Styles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.7: Cell Styles

Learning Outcomes

• Apply cell styles.

You can also apply a style to a cell or series of cells. There are many default cell styles within Excel.

| E | - رې | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------|------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|--|-----------------------------|---|-------------------|--|--------|----------|----|
| Fil | e H | ome In | sert Pag | e Layout | Formulas | Data | Poviow | View | Fowit DDF | ♀ Tell me | | A₁ Share | |
| Past | e 💉 | Calibri B I U T + O Fo | • 11 • • A A • A • | . = = . = = | ≡ 🗗 • ≡ 🗄 • ≫ • ment 5 | General \$ ₹ % 500 →00 Number | ▼ E Con ▼ Forr ↓ Cell | iditional For nat as Table Styles • St | rmatting + e + | PInsert ▼ Delete ▼ Format ▼ Cells | ∑ - Âz | D - | ^ |
| A1 | | ▼ : | $\times \checkmark$ | $f_{\mathcal{K}}$ | | | | | | | | | ۷ |
| | Α | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \ | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 4 | • | Sheet | 1 (+) | | | | | • | | | _ | • | |
| Read | у | | | | | | | | | □ | - | -+ 100 | 1% |

In order to apply a particular cell style:

1. Select the cell(s) you wish to format.

2. Click on the appropriate style for your cell.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18624

In the screenshot below, two cells have a style applied.

- 1. "Good" cell indicates the data in that cell is good or correct.
- 2. "Check" cell indicates you may need to verify the information in that cell.



| ਜ਼ ਙਾ ੇ ਾ | | | | | ø × |
|---|------------------------------|--|--|---|---------|
| File Home Insert | Page Layout Formulas | Data Review | View Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | A Share |
| $ \begin{array}{c c} & & \\ & & \\ & & \\ Paste \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ $ | | General ▼ ₹< | Conditional Formatting + Format as Table + Cell Styles + Styles | Em Insert ▼ Delete ▼ Format ▼ Cells Edit | |
| | ✓ f _* 987 West Wa | ay and a second s | Jugita | | v |
| A B | C D | E A F | G H | I J | ĸ |
| 1 Last Name First Name 2 Smith John | Address 123 North Street | • | | | |
| 3 Doe Jane | 987 West | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | |
| 7 | 2 | 3 | | | |
| 9 | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | |
| 12 13 | | | | | |
| 14 15 | | | | | |
| 16 Sheet1 | (+) | | : (| | • • |
| Ready | | | | · · · · · | + 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18625

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Cell Styles. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.7: Cell Styles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.8: Cell Format

Learning Objectives

• Change cell format.

As mentioned previously, Excel will default to certain styles when you create a new worksheet. In particular, this includes the way that numbers are displayed and whether or not commas are automatically included. In this section, we will take a look at changing these defaults.

When you type numbers into an Excel workbook, it will often default to a specific format. For example, if you type "12/15/17," Excel will convert this to read "12/15/2017," assuming you were entering month, day, and abbreviated year. Similarly, "3/4" will display at "4-Mar," the fourth day of March. However, it is possible that you may have been entering fractions, so "3/4" was meant to indicate three-quarters instead.

If this is the case, you will need to format your cells to properly display the information you are entering. When possible, consider formatting your cells before you enter the data. Otherwise, Excel may convert some of the entries and you will need to re-enter that information.



Method 1

- 1. Begin by highlighting the cells you plan to use.
- 2. Select the Format dropdown from the Cells group of the ribbon.
- 3. Select the Format cells option at the bottom of the dropdown menu.

Practice question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18626

There are several available format options for cells in Excel. When you select one, Excel will provide you with a description and examples of how the information will display in the cells.





| Format Cells | | | | | | | ନ୍ତ | 23 |
|--|-----------|---------|-------------|-------------|---------------|-------------|-----|------|
| Number | Alignment | Font | Border | Fill | Protection | | | |
| <u>Category:</u> General Number Currency Accountir Date Time Percentag Fraction Scientific Text Special Custom | ng je | General | format cell | s have no s | ;pecific numi | ber format. | | |
| | | | | | | ОК | Ca | ncel |
| | | | | | | | | |

Practice question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18627

Method 2

You can perform the same actions using the "Number" group in the ribbon. In this case, you simply select the cell format you wish to apply using the dropdown menu.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Cell Format. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



6.8: Cell Format is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.9: Comma Styles

Learning Objectives

• Change comma style.

At times, you may also wish to use a specific comma style with numbers entered into an Excel worksheet. For example, you may wish "1234" to display as typed or with a comma like "1,234."

Comma styles are easy to change in Excel using a quick select option in the Number group in the ribbon.

Method 1

When using the Format cell dropdown option from this area, select the "Use 1000 Separator (,)" option to include a comma. You can also choose if you would like any decimal places to be displayed in this same window.

| Format Cells | | | | | | ନ | 23 |
|---|--|---|-------------------------|---------------|----------------|------------|------|
| Number Alignment | Font | Border | Fill | Protection | | | |
| Category: General Number Currency Accounting Date Time Percentage Fraction Scientific Text Special Custom | Sample Decimal 1 Section 1 Section 1 Section 1 Section 1 Decimal 1 Section 1 Decimal 1 Section 1 Section 2 | places: 2 000 Separa numbers: 0 0 0) 0) | ator (,) ers. Currer | ncy and Accou | unting offer s | pecialized | d |
| | | | | (| OK | Ca | ncel |

Method 2

The easiest option to include a comma is simply to click on the Comma Style button in the Number group.



| ਜ਼ 5-∂-∓ | | ⊡ – ⊡ × |
|--|--|--|
| File Home Insert Page Layout Formu | | xit PDF Q Tell me 🛛 🗛 Share |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | General Image: bit | tting v ﷺ Insert v ∑ v 2v v m Delete v ♥ v P v Format v V v Cells Editing ^ |
| A1 • : × ✓ fx | | ~ |
| A B C D E 1 | F G | I J K L A |
| 10 | | |
| Ready | | □ □ - + 100% |

When clicking the comma style button, the comma style default is to display numbers with a comma in the thousands place and include two decimal places (Ex: "1200" becomes "1,200.00). This will also change the visible cell styles in the Style" area of the ribbon so you can easily select different options for comma and display format.

Practice question https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18629

Below are three different options for comma and display format.

- 1. **Comma**: Comma with two decimal points
- 2. Comma [0]: Comma with no decimal points
- 3. Currency: Comma with two decimal points and a dollar sign



| | ∃ 5 • ੇ | | | | | | | | | | | 5 |
|-----|--|-----------------|------------------|----------|--|-------------------------|---|------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|----------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell n | ne | ₽ Share | 1 |
| Pa | ste vite and the second | I U + I Font | | int ⊊ | General \$ - % €.0 -00 Number | ▼ ■ C 1 ■ C 2 ■ F 5 □ C | onditional ormat as Ta ell Styles - Style | Formatting + Ible + | Ensert Cells | • ∑ • • ↓ • • ◆ • Ed | A _Z T → ,O → | ~ |
| DS |) - | : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | | ٣ |
| 1 | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | * |
| 1 | 123.00 | 123 | \$123.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | 1,234 | \$1,234.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | 12,345 | \$12,345.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | 123,456 | \$123,456.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 4 | 2 | 3 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | U | - | - | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | Sheet1 | + | | | | ÷ • | | | | | T |
| Rea | ıdy | | | | | | | | 巴 | - | + 100 | 0% |

Practice question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18628

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Comma Styles. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.9: Comma Styles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.10: Rearranging Tables

Learning Objectives

• Add, delete, and move columns and rows.

At times, you may find it necessary to change the number of rows or columns within your table, move columns or rows, or even alter the standard width of rows and columns. All these tasks are easy to accomplish within Excel, often with only a few clicks of your mouse.

Add Columns and Rows

Note for this section, the word *column* will be used throughout but the same steps can be used to add a row.

Method 1

After you have entered several columns of data into a worksheet, you may realize you need to add another column in the middle of what you have already typed. The easiest way to add a column within an existing set of columns involves only two clicks of your mouse.

- 1. Identify the area where you want to insert a new column.
- 2. Right-click on the column to the immediate right of the area where you wish to add a column.
- 3. From the menu select Insert.
- 4. A new column will appear to the left of the column that you right-clicked.



Method 2

The same result can be achieved using the Insert button in the Cells group of the ribbon. The new column will be inserted to the left of the column you clicked on. In this screenshot, a column has been inserted.





| ľ | ∃ • ਾ ੇ | | | | | | | | | | o × |
|------|-------------|--------|-------------|--------------|------------------------------|--|--|--------------------------------|----------|---------|----------|
| F | ile Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | | - | ₽ Share |
| Pa | te ≪ Ca | I U + | | | General \$ ▼ % €.0 .00 | ▼ E Cor > For ↓ Cel | nditional Fo mat as Tab I Styles * | ormatting [.] le ≁ | E Insert | × ↓ ↓ × | |
| City | | : v | Alig | nment G | Number | 19 | Styles | | Cells | Edi | |
| EI | 2 * | | | | _ | - | - | | | | * |
| - | A 122.00 | В | 122 | Ú | E | F | G | н | 1 | , | K A |
| 1 | 1 224 00 | | 1 224 | \$123.00 | | | | | | 1 | |
| 2 | 12 345 00 | -1- | 1,234 | \$12 345 00 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 123.456.00 | | 123,456 | \$123,456.00 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 110,100,000 | | 220,100 | ,, | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | • |
| | | Sheet1 | (+) | | | | • | _ | | | |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | E | | ── | - | + 100% |

Note that when you insert a new row, it will appear above the row you click on.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18630

Delete Columns and Rows

Note for this section, the word *column* will be used throughout, but the same steps can be used to delete a row.

Method 1

After you have entered several columns of data into a worksheet, you may realize you need to remove one column. The easiest way to delete a column uses two clicks of your mouse.

- 1. Right-click on the column you wish to delete.
- 2. From the menu select Delete.





| E | 5 • ∂ | | | | | Book1 | - Excel | | | Ē | | đ | × |
|------|--------------|--------|-------------------|--|-----------------------|-----------------------------|---|--|--|-----------------|--|----------------|-----|
| Fi | ile Home | 2 | Insert | Page Layout | Formula | is Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | Q Tel | ll me | R₁ sh | are |
| Pas | te ♥ | I I | <u>u</u> - 🎝 - | $\begin{array}{c} \bullet \\ 11 \\ A^{\bullet} \\ A^{\bullet} \\ \bullet \\$ | = ≣ ≫·• | Number \$ - % €.0 .00 | → 12000 2010 12000 1000000 | Conditional Format as Ta Cell Styles • | Formatting • able • | Ensert Delet | t - ∑ ae - ↓ aat - ◆ | • 2 <u>+</u> • | |
| Clip | board 🖼 | 1 | Cali | bri • 11 • A* | A \$ ₹ | % , 🗄 | <u>6</u> | Style | 25 | Cells | E | diting | ^ |
| B1 | - | | в | I = 💁 - 🗛 - | 00. ⁺ + 10 | .00 ••0 | | | | | | | ~ |
| 1 | Α | | | C 1 | D | E | F | G | Н | I | J | K | |
| 1 | 123.00 | | ofto Ena | Cu <u>r</u> | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | | | Copy Paste Ontions: | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | Paste <u>S</u> pecial | _ | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | Insert | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | Delete | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | Clear Contents | _ | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | <u>.</u> | Format Cells | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | Column Width | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | <u>H</u> ide | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | <u>U</u> nhide | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 15 | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | • • • | Shee | et1 | (+) | | | | | | | | | Þ |

Method 2

The same result can be achieved using the Delete button in the Cells group of the ribbon. The column currently selected will be the one deleted. In this screenshot the column has been deleted.

| 6 | ਜ਼ • • ∂ | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----|-----------------|--------------|-------------|----------------------|--------------------------------------|--------|---|------------------------|----------|--------------|-------|------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | v View | Foxit PDF | O Tell r | me | R₁ si | hare |
| Pa | ste oboard | Ilibri • | | E I II → gnment 5 | General \$ - % €0000 Number | • F | Conditional Format as T Cell Styles - Sty | Formatting • able • | E Insert | ▼ ▼ ▼ ■ ■ Ed | AZT ▼ | ~ |
| E9 | Ŧ | | √ Jx | | | | | | | | | × |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | | K | |
| 1 | 123.00 | \$123.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | \$1,234.00 | | | | | | | | , | | |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | \$12,345.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | \$123,456.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | < > | Sheet1 | + | | | | : • | | | | | • |
| Rea | ıdy | | - | | | | | | 巴 | - | + | 100% |

Move Columns and Rows

Note for this section, the word *column* will be used throughout, but the same steps can be used to move a row.





Method 1

After you have entered several columns of data into a worksheet, you may realize you need to move a column to a different location within the set. Once again, Excel makes it quite easy to move data around a worksheet.

- 1. Right-click on the column you wish to move.
- 2. From the pop-up window select Cut. The column you have selected should become outlined in a dashed border.

| 6 | ∃ 5 -∂ | | | | | | | | | | | × |
|-------------|-------------------|---|---------------------------|--|----------------------|------------------------------|---|-----------------------|------------|------------------------------|--------------|------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | © Tell ı | me | ₽ Sha | re |
| Pa: Clip | ste booard | Ilibri • 1 I U • 1 • Or • A Font | | = = = + = = = + = ≫ + nment ⊊ | Number \$ ▼ % | ▼ 1€ 0 * 1977 F 1970 C | Conditional format as Ta Cell Styles * Style | Formatting • ble • | Em Insert | v ∑v v √v tv ¢v Edi | AZT ▼ P ▼ | ~ |
| B1 | . . | : × | √ <i>f</i> _x 1 | .23 | | | | | | | | ٧ |
| 1 | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | |
| 1 | 123.00 | 123 | \$123.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | 1,234 | \$1,234.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | 12,345 | \$12,345.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | 123,456 | \$123,456.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 6 | | | - | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < ▶ | Sheet1 | (+) | | | | : 4 | | | | | |
| Sele | ect destination a | and press ENTER | t or choos | Average: 34,29 | 0 Count: | 4 Sum: 13 | 37,158 | ## E | — — | - | + | 100% |

- 3. Next, right-click on the column you wish to move your column to the LEFT of.
- 4. A new dialog window will appear. Select Insert Cut Cells. The column you selected to move should then appear in this new location.

Method 2



| E | ∃ 5 • ੇ | | | | Book1 | - Excel | | | Ē | | ٥ | \times |
|-----|---------------------------------------|--------------|------------------|------------|--|---|---|--|-----------------|---------------------------|--------------|----------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell r | ne | ∕₽, Sh | are |
| Pas | board s | I U + | | internet G | General \$ - % €.0 .00 Number | ▼ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Conditional Format as Ta Cell Styles * Style | Formatting + ible + | Ensert Cells | - ∑ - - ↓ ↓ - - < < | AZ∓ → P → | ~ |
| D7 | · · | : × | √ f _x | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | |
| 1 | 123.00 | \$123.00 | 123 | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | \$1,234.00 | 1,234 | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | \$12,345.00 | 12,345 | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 4 | 125,430.00 | \$125,430.00 | 125,450 | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | Sheet1 | + | | | | | | | | | |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | | | ─ - | - | + | 100% |

The same result can be achieved using a combination of keyboard shortcuts and dialog windows.

- 1. Right-click on the column you wish to move.
- 2. Press Ctrl+X. The column you have selected should become outlined in a dashed border.
- 3. Next, right-click on the column you wish to move your column to the LEFT of.
- 4. A dialog window will appear. From it select Insert Cut Cells. The column you wish to move should then appear in the new location.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18631

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Rearranging Tables. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.10: Rearranging Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.11: Changing Width of Columns and Rows

Learning Outcomes

• Change width of columns and rows.

After you have entered several columns of data into a worksheet, you may realize you cannot read all the information in every cell. In this case you may want to resize the column. Microsoft Excel allows you resize column width to **AutoFit** the text, meaning each column will be sized according to the longest string of text in the column. Alternatively, for visual appeal, you may want all the columns in your table to have the same length; you can easily change multiple columns at the same time to have the same width. As in previous pages, the steps below explain how to resize a column, but the same steps can be used to resize a row as well.

AutoFit Column Width to Text

First, we will discuss making a column width AutoFit to the length of text in that column. Note that when you AutoFit column widths, Excel will make the column length match that of the longest string of text in any cell in that column.

Method 1

- 1. Identify the column you wish to resize.
- 2. Hover your mouse on the right boundary of the topmost cell of that column so that you see a cross or *T* shape. (If you are resizing a row, you will hover over the bottom boundary)
- 3. Double-click on that right boundary.
- 4. The column will automatically resize to fit the longest string of text in that column.

Compare the three columns on the left with the three on the right to see the results.

| E | ∃ * <u>-</u> | ⊘ - ∓ | | | E | ∃ 5 - | ¢ - | Ŧ | | |
|-------------|--------------|----------------|---|-------------|-------------|------------------|------------|--------------------------------|--------------|--|
| Fi | ile H | lome I | nsert | Page Layout | F | ile Ho | ome | Insert | Page Lay | vout Fo |
| Pas Clip | te | Calibri B I | • 11 <u>U</u> • A [*] ⊘ • A • ont | | Pa: Clip | ste booard | Calib B | ri ▼ 1 I <u>U</u> ▼ Font | | E I III IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII |
| D7 | | • E | × v | fx | D7 | 1 | * | : × | $\sqrt{f_x}$ | |
| | А | в | С | D | | А | | В | С | D |
| 1 | 123.00 | \$123.00 | 123 | | 1 | 123. | 00 | \$123.00 | 123 | |
| 2 | ####### | ***** | 1,234 | | 2 | 1,234. | 00 | \$1,234.00 | 1,234 | |
| 3 | ####### | ***** | 12,345 | | 3 | 12,345. | 00 3 | \$12,345.00 | 12,345 | |
| 4 | ####### | ***** | 123,456 | | 4 | 123,456. | 00 \$: | 123,456.00 | 123,456 | |
| 5 | | | | | 5 | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | 6 | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | 7 | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | 8 | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | 9 | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | 10 | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | 11 | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | 12 | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | 13 | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | 14 | | | | | |

Method 2

You may also use the Format button in the Cells group of the ribbon to achieve the same results. From the dropdown menu, you will choose AutoFit Column Width or AutoFit Row Height. Note that if you wish to resize multiple columns, simply select them all before clicking on the Format button.





| E | <u></u> שיי∂ | | | | Book1 · | - Excel | | | | Ŧ | | ٥ | × |
|-------------|--------------|--|------------------|----------|-----------------------|---------------------|---|-----------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|----------------------------|------|
| Fi | le Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | Q | Tell me | | ∕₽ sr | are |
| Pas Clip | te 💉 🖂 | libri ▼ 1 <i>I</i> <u>U</u> ▼ 1 ▼ 30 ▼ 4 Font | | = = | General \$ - % | ✓ E Col > For G Cel | nditional F mat as Ta I Styles * Style | formatting • ble • | E Ir | ormat • | ∑ , ↓ , , | A _Z T + ,0 + | ^ |
| D7 | Ŧ | : × | √ f _x | | | | | | ‡⊏ | Row <u>H</u> | eight t Row H | eight | ~ |
| | А | В | C | E | F | G | | н | | Calum | - 14/: date | cigin | - |
| 1 | 123.00 | \$123.00 | 123 | | | | _ | | * * | Colum | | | |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | \$1,234.00 | 1,234 | | | | | | | AutoF | t Colum | n Width | |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | \$12,345.00 | 12,345 | | | | | | | <u>D</u> efault | Width. | | |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | \$123,456.00 | 123,456 | | | | | | Visi | bility | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | Hide & | <u>U</u> nhide | | F |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | Org | janize S | heets | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | _ | Renam | e Sheet | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | - | Mover | or Conv | Sheet | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | - | Tel Co | л сору | Jincetin | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | lor | | · |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | Pro | tection | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | Hê | Protect | Sheet | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | 6 | Lock C | ell | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | 82 | Format | C <u>e</u> lls | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | - | | | | |
| | L | Sheet1 | + | | | | : • | | | | | | • |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | | | 四 . | | - | + | 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18632

Set all columns to the same width

At other times, from visual reasons you may wish all columns (or rows) to have the same width (or height), regardless of the amount of text in them. Or you may want a single column to have a specified width.

Method 1

In this case, you will use the pixel information provided by Excel to manually resize the columns.

- 1. Identify the column width you wish to resize.
- 2. Hover your mouse on the right boundary of that column so that you see a cross or *T* shape. (If you are resizing a row, you will hover over the bottom boundary)
- 3. Hold down your mouse button and drag the right boundary until you reach the desired pixel width. The pixels will be displayed in the parentheses.
- 4. Release the mouse button.



| E | <u>-</u> | - - | | | Book1 | - Excel | | | ar 🗖 | 1 – | ٥ | х |
|-----|------------|--|-------------|----------|--|--|--|------------------------|------------------------------|------------------------------|---|------|
| F | ile Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PD | F Q T | ell me | R₁ Sha | ire |
| Pas | te 🖋 Ea | libri • 1 <i>I</i> <u>U</u> • • → Font | | ment s | General \$ - % €.0 -00 Number | ■ ■ Colored Colore | onditional ormat as Ta ell Styles * Style | Formatting • able • | Ense Dele Forr Cell | rt ▼ ∑ ete ▼ ↓ mat ▼ ◆ | × ^A Z▼ × × P × × diting | ^ |
| D7 | · - | Width: 10.86 (8 | 81 pixels) | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | с | E | | F (| ; | н | I | J | К | - |
| 1 | 123.00 | \$123.00 | 123 | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 2 | 1,234.00 | \$1,234.00 | 1,234 | _ | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 3 | 12,345.00 | \$12,345.00 | 12,345 | | _ | | | | | | | -11 |
| 4 | 123,456.00 | \$123,456.00 | 123,456 | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 0 | | | | _ | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | () · | Sheet1 | + | | | | - | | | | | • |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | | | | | + | 100% |

Method 2

You may also use the Format button in the Cells group of the ribbon to set a specific column width. From the dropdown menu, you will choose Column Width or Row Height and manually type in the size you wish each column (or row) to be. Again, if you wish to resize multiple columns, simply select them all before clicking on the Format button.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18633





Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Changing Width of Columns and Rows. **Authored by**: Shelli Carter. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

6.11: Changing Width of Columns and Rows is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



6.12: Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets

What you'll learn to do: create a new workbook with more than one worksheet.

When you open a new Excel file, there is automatically a single worksheet. However, there are a number of reasons why you may want more than one worksheet in a single workbook. For example, consider the following ways multiple worksheets in a workbook can help with keeping data organized:

- 1. A workbook with monthly sales figure with each year on a different worksheet
- 2. A workbook with mailing lists for weekly flyers on one worksheet and coupon mailings on another
- 3. A workbook with inventory data with each month on a different worksheet

In any of these cases, or others, it is very easy to add more worksheets to an Excel workbook.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

6.12: Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.13: Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets

Learning Objectives

• Create a new workbook with more than one worksheet.

Method 1

The easiest method to add additional worksheets to a workbook is by using the Insert Worksheet shortcut represented by the + button at the bottom of the workbook window. You can use this shortcut button multiple times to insert additional worksheets into your workbook.



Method 2

You can also use the menu option Insert>Insert Sheet from the Cells group of the ribbon.



| ⊟ 5-∂-∓ | Book1 - Excel | • 6 – <u>0</u> × |
|--|---|--|
| File Home Insert Page Li | ayout Formulas Data Review | View Foxit PDF Q Tell me 🞗 Share |
| $\begin{array}{c c} & & & \\ & & & \\ & & \\ Paste \\ & &$ | = = ■ General ▼ ♥ Cond = = ■ \$ • \$ ♥ ♥ ● ● ● • \$ • ♥ <td< td=""><td>itional Formatting ▼ Insert ▼</td></td<> | itional Formatting ▼ Insert ▼ |
| A1 • : × ✓ fs | r de la companya de la compa | Insert Sheet |
| A B C | D E F G | H JInsert Worksheet (Shift+F11) |
| 1 | | |
| 8 9 | | |
| 10 11 12 | | |
| 13 14 15 | | |
| 16 | | V |
| Ready Sheet1 (+) | : | Image: Image |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18634 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18635

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets. **Authored by**: Shelli Carter. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

6.13: Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills

Now that you understand the basics of Microsoft Excel, let us consider some ways to use this program to manage business information.

- 1. You could organize the coupon flyer mailing list into a table with names and addresses formatted the same.
- 2. You could collect annual sales data and AutoSum the monthly sales figures.
- 3. You could display inventory data including item, quantity, and store location.

This module focused on the basics of using Excel as an organizing tool for easy display. In our next module, we will expand our use of Excel to more advanced features.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

6.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.15: Assignment- Organize Sales Data

For this assignment, you will manipulate an Excel worksheet to organize and display data about sales totals throughout a year.

Download this Excel workbook. It already contains the data you need. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

1. Open the workbook. Save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop as **BA132_LastName_SalesData.xlsx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_SalesData) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.

2. Format the data as a table with the name of the months and sales total as headers. You may use any table style you like.

| E | <u>ה</u> ייים ו | ; | Mo | dule 6 worksheet. | xlsx - Excel | Stehroatten | Ē | - 0 | × |
|------|----------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|---|--|--------------|----------------|-----------------------------------|---------|
| Fil | e Home | Insert Page La | iyout Formula | s Data f | Review View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | 8 | L Share |
| Past | Calibri B I B I Calibri | | = = = ₽ = = = ₽ . Alignment | General ▼ \$ ▼ % > €.0 .00 .00 .00 | Conditional F Format as Ta Cell Styles * | Formatting • | Delete Format | ∑ · ^A Z▼ ↓ · ¢ · | * |
| D7 | - | $\times \checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | | н |
| 1 | Month 👻 | Sales Total 🚽 | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | 5000 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | 4876 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | 80,000 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$250 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | 45689 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | 34,245 | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | 76000 | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | 8,764 | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | - |
| 4 | > She | eet1 (+) | | : [| 4 | | | | Þ |
| Read | iy | | | | | | | | + 110% |

3. Change the cell format so that all the sales totals display as currency with a dollar sign and two decimal places.

| E | <u>، ې د ا</u> | | Mod | lule 6 worksheet | xlsx - Excel | | | |
|------|--------------------------|-------------------------|---|--|--|-----------------------------------|---|------------------------------|
| Fil | e Home | Insert Page La | yout Formulas | Data | Review View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | A Share |
| Past | Calibri B I Sooard | | = = = ₽ = = = = = + = = = → • = = → Alignment 5 | General ▼ \$ ▼ % * €.00 .000 Number 5 | ₹2 Conditional Format as Ta Cell Styles + Style | Formatting + ible + | Insert • Delete • Format • Cells E | · A₂⊤ · · ♪ · diting ^ |
| D6 | ~ : | $\times \checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | H 📤 |
| 1 | Month < | Sales Total 🝷 | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$ 5,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$ 500.00 | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$ 4,876.00 | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$ 250.00 | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$ 987.00 | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$ 8,764.00 | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | - |
| 4 | > She | eet1 (+) | | : [| • | | | • |
| Read | ly | | | | | | ─ | + 110% |



4. Indicate that the data for June and October needs to be verified by applying a different cell style to those cells.

| E | י ∂• | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------|---|---------------|------------------------------------|--|---|--|--|----------|
| Fil | e Home | Insert Page L | ayout Formula | is Data I | Review View | Foxit PDF | 🛛 Tell me | ۶R | hare |
| Past Clip | Calibri B I * * Deard | • 12 • <u>U</u> • A A <u>∆</u> • <u>A</u> • Font 5 | | General ▼ \$ ▼ % ≯ €.00 →.00 | Conditional R Format as Ta Cell Styles * | Formatting v ble v | Hinsert - Delete - Format - Cells | $\sum_{\tau} \cdot \frac{A}{2} \tau \cdot$ $\bigcup_{\tau} \cdot \rho \cdot$ Editing | |
| $E7 \rightarrow i \times \sqrt{f_x}$ | | | | | | | | | |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | | H 🔺 |
| 1 | Month 🔻 | Sales Total 👻 | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$ 5,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$ 500.00 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$ 4,876.00 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$ 80,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$ 250.00 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$ 987.00 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$ 8,764.00 | | | | | | | |
| 14 | CL | | | | | | | | v |
| Read | iv Sn | + | | : [| • | | ▥ – ─── | | 110% |

5. AutoFit the column width.

| File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View Foxit PDF Q Tell r | me 9 Share | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| A X Calibria 12 x = = Constant x R Conditional Formatting x | - Σ. · ^Α τ. | | | | | | | | | |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Editing | | | | | | | | | |
| $E7 \rightarrow i \times \sqrt{f_{\star}}$ | | | | | | | | | | |
| A B C D E F | G H 🔺 | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 Month 👻 Sales Total 💌 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 January \$ 5,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 February \$ 500.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 March \$ 50,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 April \$ 4,876.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 May \$ 80,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 June \$ 250.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 July \$ 45,689.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 August \$ 10,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 September \$ 34,245.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 October \$ 987.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 November \$ 76,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 December \$ 8,764.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | |
| (+) (+) | • | | | | | | | | | |

6. Save your work and submit the workbook in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Organize Sales Data. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

6.15: Assignment- Organize Sales Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





6.16: Discussion- Merging and Centering Cells

We have learned a variety of tips you can use to create visually appealing tables in Excel, including applying table and cell styles and changing the size of rows and columns.

Another helpful Excel tool is the ability to merge and center cells and to wrap text within a cell.

- 1. Select the cells you wish to merge into one larger cell.
- 2. Click "Merge & Center" from the "Alignment" group of the ribbon.



3. When you type in this merged cell, the text will automatically be centered left to right in the cell.

| | | ÷ | | | | | | | | | | | × |
|--|-------------------------------|--------|---------|------------|-------------------|--|--|--|-----------|----------------------|---------------------|---------|----|
| File | Home | Insert | Page La | yout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | | A Share | : |
| Paste | K Calibr È∎ - B I ≶ ⊡ - | i • | | | = ₽ = ₽ ≫~~ | General \$ - % : €.0 .00 Number | Con Con Forr Con | nditional Form mat as Table Styles * Styles | matting • | Insert • Delete • | ∑ • ∮ ↓ • ¢ • | 2 T - | ~ |
| ciporati | | T OTIC | | , ang init | | Trainib et | | Signer | | | Lunch | ·9 | |
| A1 \checkmark : $\times \checkmark f_x$ One big cell. \checkmark | | | | | | | | | | | ~ | | |
| | A B | | с | D | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | к | L | |
| 1 2 (| One big cell | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | Sh | eet1 | + | | | | | : • | | | | | |
| Enter | | | | | | | | | Ξ | 巴 | | + 10 | 0% |





Discussion Questions

- In what situations would this feature be useful?
- Would you ever use this feature? Why or why not?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion Forum: Merging and Centering Cells. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

6.16: Discussion- Merging and Centering Cells is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




CHAPTER OVERVIEW

7: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

Learning Objectives

- Analyze data with Excel
- Use Flash Fill and AutoSum
- Add and format graphics
- Create and modify charts

7.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

7.2: Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis

- 7.3: Sorting Data
- 7.4: Filtering Data
- 7.5: Functions

7.6: Introduction to Automating Data Entry

- 7.7: Flash Fill
- 7.8: SUM Data
- 7.9: Simple Math
- 7.10: Introduction to Graphics
- 7.11: Graphics
- 7.12: Modify Graphics
- 7.13: Format Graphics
- 7.14: Introduction to Charts
- 7.15: Charts
- 7.16: Clustered Column Charts
- 7.17: Chart Styles
- 7.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills
- 7.19: Assignment- Analyze Yearly Trends
- 7.20: Discussion- Hard Return within a Cell

7: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

Why learn to complete intermediate skills in Microsoft Excel?

In the last module, we focused on some basic functionality in Excel. But this program is capable of a lot more, including automatically organizing data (known as Sort), hiding data (Filter), and even more advanced functions that will automatically format cells visually if they meet certain conditions.

Before we move into the mechanics of each of these tools, let us consider for a moment the types of questions you may have when looking at data in an Excel worksheet.

- 1. You want to see which month had your highest sales volume.
- 2. You have a total clothing inventory but you want to know how many pants you have in stock.
- 3. You want to know how many months from last year you were under budget.
- 4. You want to see a graphic that represents your data instead of the actual numbers.

All of these questions can be answered with the valuable tools available in Excel and most importantly, without manually looking through all of your data!

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.2: Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis

What you'll learn to do: analyze data with Excel.

In this section, you will learn how to sort and filter data, as well as find other connections within data.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.2: Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.3: Sorting Data

Learning Objectives

• Sort data in a table.

After data has been entered into an Excel worksheet, and even after it has been organized into a table, it can still be manipulated and reorganized. One of the easiest options is to sort the data in a particular order. For example, you can sort the data alphabetically.

Method 1

- 1. Select (by clicking and dragging) the data you wish to sort.
- 2. From the Sort & Filter button in the Editing group in the ribbon, click the Sort button.
- 3. From the menu, choose how you would like to sort the data. For example, A to Z or Z to A. Note that A to Z is equivalent to Smallest to Largest and Z to A is equivalent to Largest to Smallest.



Method 2

- 1. Select (by clicking and dragging) the data you wish to sort.
- 2. From the Data tab in the ribbon, click the appropriate Sort button. For example A to Z or Z to A.



| ⊟ | • - ⇒ | | | | sorting data | - Excel | | Sign in | F | | đ | × | |
|------------------------|---|-----------------------------|----------|-------------|--------------|--------------------|----------------------------------|---------|-------------------------------------|------------------------|--------------|------|----------|
| File | Home In: | sert Page L | ayout | Formulas | Data | Review | View He | lp Ç | Tell me | | Я s | hare | |
| Ge Data Get & Ti | a T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T | Refresh All - Connection | A↓ Z↓ | Sort Fil | ter Clear | n oply anced | Text to Columns S Data Too | ∎•• | What-If Fo Analysis • Forecas | orecast Sheet st | Outline • | | ~ |
| A2 | · · · · | X 🗸 . | Jsc We | eeks, Jaque | line | | | | | | | | <u> </u> |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | | ĸ | |
| 1 Sa | lesperson | Sales Total | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 W | eeks, Jaqueline | \$15,650 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 Za | vala, Greta | \$14,995 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 Ric | chmond, Alonso | \$13,250 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 Fry | y, Meredith | \$12,975 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 Cla | ayton, Ayla | \$12,540 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 W | est, Ari | \$11,325 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 Va | ang, Laylah | \$10,400 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 De | elgado, Kaylyn | \$9,785 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 Pi | neda, Davian | \$9,560 | | | | | | | | | | | Н |
| 11 M | cGrath, Taryn | \$8,725 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | > Sheet | :1 (+) | | | | | | | | | | Þ | Ŧ |
| | | | Average | : 11920.5 | Count: 2 | 0 Sum: | 119205 | | 巴 | - | + | 100 | 96 |

A quick note about Custom Sort: the Custom Sort option allows you to define how your data will be sorted within a column. For example, perhaps you want to sort information by clothing size, rather than alphabetically. In this case, you must create a custom list for your sort order.

- 1. Select (by clicking and dragging) the data you wish to sort.
- 2. Click the Sort command followed by the Custom Sort option in the dropdown menu.
- 3. The Sort window will appear, allowing you to specify which column you will sort and how. You can use the default options (days of the week or months) or you can enter a new list. To create a new list, select Custom List from the Order column and then NEW LIST.
- 4. If you are making a custom list, type in order the way you would like the data sorted. In our example, we are sorting by size from small to large.
- 5. Click Add and your custom ordering list will appear in the original Order dropdown menu.
- 6. Select your custom list and then click OK.





| Sort | ? × |
|--|-------------------------------|
| *Add Level ▶ Delete Level □ Copy Level | Options V My data has headers |
| Column Sort On | Order |
| Sort by Size Values | 💌 A to Z |
| | A to Z |
| | Custom List |
| | |
| | OK Cancel |
| Custom Lists | 2 × |
| Custom Lists | |
| Custom lists: List entries: | |
| NEW LIST A Small | <u>A</u> dd |
| Sun, Mon, Tue, Wed, Thu, Fri, Medium | |
| Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, May, Jun, Ju | Delete |
| January, February, March, Apri | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | - |
| Deve Estado estado listanteiro | |
| Press Enter to separate list entries. | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18636 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18637 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18638

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Sort Data. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.3: Sorting Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.4: Filtering Data

Learning Objectives

• Filter data in a table.

After entering data in Excel, it is also possible to filter, or hide some parts of the data, based on user-indicated categories. When using the Filter option, no data is lost; it is just hidden from view.

Method 1

- 1. Select the column or row you wish to sort.
- 2. From the Sort & Filter button in the Editing group in the ribbon, click the Filter button.
- 3. When the Filter menu appears, you can choose which categories of data to hide and deselect the appropriate buttons. For example, you can deselect the button next to large and you will no longer see the large cells in your table.



Method 2

You can similarly access the Filter menu through the Data tab; the same menu will appear.



| E | <u>,</u> 6,- ∂ | | Мо | dule 6 worksheet. | xlsx - Excel | | b – | o x | |
|-------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------|---|-------------------|----------------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------|----|
| Fil | e Home | Insert Page Layou | ut Formula | s Data H | levie v View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | A Share | |
| Get E Da | ternal ta * Query * Get & Trans | Refresh All ~ Connections | ↓ <mark>2 2</mark> ↓ : ort Fil Sort 4 | ter Clear | Text to Columns S Data Too | What-If Analysis Is For | Forecast Outline Sheet * | | ^ |
| | Α | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н | |
| 1 | Item | Size 🔹 | | | | | | | |
| 2 | shirt | small | | | _ | | | | |
| 3 | pants | small | | | | | | | |
| 4 | socks | small | | | | | | | |
| 5 | shirt | small | | | | | | | |
| 0 | pants | small | | | | | | | |
| / 0 | shirt | medium | | | | | | | |
| 0 | nante | medium | | | | | | | |
| 10 | socks | large | | | | | | | |
| 11 | shirt | large | | | | | | | |
| 12 | pants | large | | | | | | | |
| 13 | pants | large | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | Ŧ |
| | > She | eet1 (+) | | : | • | | · · | | |
| Read | у | | | | | | · | + 110 | 1% |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18639

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Filter Data. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.4: Filtering Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.5: Functions

Learning Objectives

- Use the COUNTIF function.
- Use the IF function.

Excel can perform a variety of really nice data analysis features for you. We've already touched upon how you can filter data. But you can also look for other connections, or screen large numbers of cells to determine how often something occurs.

COUNTIF

COUNTIF is a way for you to ask Excel to count how many times a certain piece of information appears in your worksheet. For example, perhaps you want to know how often "shirt" appear in an inventory list. All you need to do is ask Excel to count the number of cells that contain the word "shirt."

- 1. Determine which cells you want Excel to look at. In our example, we will look at A2 though A13.
- 2. Click on the cell you wish your count to be displayed in.
- 3. Type the formula for a count

=COUNTIF(A2:A13, "shirt")



Here you are telling Excel which cells to examine—A2 through A13—and what to look for: "shirt." Note that your text must match exactly what is typed in the cells, and if you are looking for a specific word it needs to be enclosed in quotation marks (so "shirt" instead of shirt).

4. Hit enter and your results will appear.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18640

IF

Another commonly used function in Excel is the "IF" function. In this case, you are asking Excel to look for something and then tell you if that something occurred. For example, perhaps you want to compare whether your monthly expenses were under your



monthly budget. That is the scenario we will look at in our example.

In this case, let us just ask for a simple "yes" or "no" answer. Looking at the screenshot below, you can see how the worksheet has all the data at hand. We are looking for whether the information in the C column is less than the information in the B column. We would like the D column to display the answer (yes or no).

| I | ਜ਼ 5 -∂ | - - | | | B | ook1 - Exce | I | | | ħ | - 0 | × |
|------|----------------|---|------------------|-----------|----------------------|------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------|-----------------------|---|------|
| F | ile Hom | e Insert | Page Layo | out For | mulas [| Data Re | view Vi | iew Foxi | t PDF | ♀ Tell me | Яs | hare |
| Pa | | alibri • 3 I U • E • <mark>(</mark>) • | | | Gene Gene • \$ | eral ▼ • % • •.0 | Condition Format Cell Styl | onal Formatt as Table + es + | ing ▼ S | PInsert ▼ Delete ▼ | $\sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \frac{\mathbf{A}}{2} \mathbf{v} \cdot$ $\mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{p} \cdot$ | |
| Ciij | pboard 5 | Font | Fai I | Alignment | G NU | mber 🖓 | | Styles | | Cells | Editing | |
| 0 | 16 * | : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | Α | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | |
| 1 | Month | Budget | Expenses | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$12,000.00 | \$11,585.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$14,000.00 | \$15,478.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$13,000.00 | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$10,000.00 | \$14,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$12,000.00 | \$11,456.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$14,000.00 | \$14,023.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$13,000.00 | \$12,897.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$15,000.00 | \$14,856.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$10,000.00 | \$12,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$15,000.00 | \$17,562.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$10,000.00 | \$8,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$12,000.00 | \$11,250.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | • • • | Sheet1 | + | | | | | • | | | | Þ |
| Rea | ady | | | | | | | = | |] _ | + | 100% |

1. Click on D2 and enter the "IF" function for what you want Excel to compare and do. =IF(C2<B2, "Yes,""No")

| E | । চ • ∂• • | | М | odule 6 worksheet | | | | | × |
|-------|-------------------|---------------|--|--|---------------|-------------|--|---|-------|
| Fil | e Home | Insert Page l | ayout Formu | las Data | Review View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | ۶. R | Share |
| Past | | | | General ▼ \$ ▼ % * €.0 .00 .00 →.0 | Conditional F | ormatting - | ∰ Insert → ∰ Delete → ∰ Format → | $\sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{z} \in \mathbf{v}}^{\mathbf{A}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v} \in \mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{v} \in \mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{$ | |
| Clipt | board 🖓 | Font | Alignment | G Number G | Styles | 5 | Cells | Editing | · · · |
| SUI | ÷ N | X 🗸 🤉 | fx =IF(C2 <b2< td=""><td>"Yes", "No")</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>~</td></b2<> | "Yes", "No") | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | (| G | F 🛎 |
| 1 | Month | Budget | Expenses | Under Budg | et | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$12,000.00 | \$11,585.00 | =IF(C2 <b2,")< td=""><td>′es", "No")</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></b2,")<> | ′es", "No") | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$14,000.00 | \$15,478.00 | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$13,000.00 | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$10,000.00 | \$14,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$12,000.00 | \$11,456.00 | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$14,000.00 | \$14,023.00 | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$13,000.00 | \$12,897.00 | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$15,000.00 | \$14,856.00 | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$10,000.00 | \$12,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$15,000.00 | \$17,562.00 | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$10,000.00 | \$8,000.00 | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$12,000.00 | \$11,250.00 | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | - |
| 4 | > She | eet1 (+ | | | 4 | | | | Þ |
| Ente | r _ | | | | E | | □ | ++ | 110% |

2. You do not have to manually reenter the formula into the other cells in D. Instead you can copy and paste the formula from D2 into D3, D4, and so on. Each time you do this, the formula should automatically update with the correct cell number to



compare.

As you can see, the D cells begin to display "Yes" or "No." "Yes" means that the expenses in the C column were less than the monthly budget entered into the B column. "No" means that expenses were higher than the budget. Just as in the COUNTIF function, you need to enclose text in quotation marks.

| F | •5•∂ | : | | | м | odule | б workshee | et.xls | к - Еж | cel | Shell Car | | T | _ | ٥ | × | |
|------|---------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|------------------------------|---|----------------------|---|--------|---------------------------|--|--------------------------------|------|---------------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|-------|---|
| Fil | e Home | Insert | Page l | Layout | Formul | as | Data | Rev | iew | View | Foxit PDF | Q | Tell me | | ∕₽ Sh | are | |
| Past | Calibri B I Soard S | U ▼ ♪ ▼ Font | • 12 • A A A • | ≡ ≡ ≡ ≡ €≣ €≣ Align | ≡ È ≣ ⊡ ≫ • ment | G(\$ 50 13 | eneral • % • • .00 • .00 | | 🖥 Cor 📝 Forr 📝 Cell | nditional Fo mat as Tab Styles * Styles | ormatting * le * | E In | sert + elete + ormat + cells | ∑ - ↓ - ¢ - Editin | Â ▼ ▼ P ▼ | ~ | |
| D4 | • | \times | V j | fx = | F(C4 <b4,< td=""><td>"Yes'</td><td>', "No")</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>×</td><td>·</td></b4,<> | "Yes' | ', "No") | | | | | | | | | × | · |
| | А | | В | (| С | | D | | | E | F | | | G | | - E - | 1 |
| 1 | Month | Budg | get | Expen | ises | Und | ler Budg | get | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$12 | 2,000.00 | \$11,5 | 585.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$14 | ,000.00 | \$15,4 | 478.00 | No | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$13 | 3,000.00 | \$10,0 | 00.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$10 | ,000.00 | \$14,0 | 00.00 | No | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$12 | 2,000.00 | \$11,4 | 456.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$14 | ,000.00 | \$14,0 | 023.00 | No | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$13 | 3,000.00 | \$12,8 | 897.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$15 | 5,000.00 | \$14,8 | 856.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$10 | ,000.00 | \$12,0 | 00.00 | No | | | | | | | | | | | ſ |
| 11 | October | \$15 | 5,000.00 | \$17,5 | 562.00 | No | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$10 | ,000.00 | \$8,0 | 00.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$12 | 2,000.00 | \$11,2 | 250.00 | Yes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | - |
| 4 | She | eet1 | + | | | | | 4 | | | | | | | | Þ | |
| Read | y | | | | | | | | | E | | 四 - | | 1 | + | 110% | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18641

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Functions. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.5: Functions is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.6: Introduction to Automating Data Entry

What you'll learn to do: use Flash Fill and AutoSum.

The tools covered in this section will help you enter or generate data quickly.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Automating Data Entry. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.6: Introduction to Automating Data Entry is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.7: Flash Fill

Learning Outcomes

• Use Flash Fill.

Like many modern software programs, Excel is designed to recognize certain patterns. For example, perhaps you are creating a table that lists the last and first names of attendees at a company training session. After all the names have been entered into two separate columns, you realize you would like a single column to correctly display the full name. An easy way to achieve this without having to manually retype the entire list is to use Flash Fill.

- 1. Create a new column for the combined information you wish to display.
- 2. In the first cell, type the name as you wish it to display. In our screenshots, this would be "John Smith."
- 3. Begin typing the next piece of data in the next cell. Excel should automatically suggest a Flash Fill option.
- 4. If the Flash Fill suggestion matches how you would like the information displayed, simply hit the Enter key and the rest of your column should fill in automatically.

| E | ਜ਼ • • ੇ | | | | Boo | ok1 - Excel | | Shelli | nais <mark>t I</mark> | A - | - 0 | × |
|-----|-----------------|--------------------|------------------|---|---------------------------------|-------------|---------------------------------------|--|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|---|------|
| F | ile Home | e Insert | Page Layout | Formula | ıs Da | ita Revi | ew Viev | v Foxit P | DF ₽ | Tell me | ۶ A | hare |
| Pas | ste 💉 | I U - I - A - A | | = - - - ≡ -= - - - ≡ ≫ - | Numb \$ - 5.00 - 0 Num | er v | Condition Format as Cell Styles | al Formatting Table - • vies | y ▼ 🔛 In P D E F C | sert + elete + ormat + | $\sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \sum_{\mathbf{z}} \mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{v}$ $\mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{v}$ Editing | ~ |
| C5 | | | √ f _x | | | | | , | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | Е | F | G | н | Ι | J | к | |
| 1 | Last name | First name | Full name | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Smith | John | John Smith | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | doe | jane | Jane Doe | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | WILLIS | BRUCE | Bruce Willis | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | Stallone | SLY | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | robinson | sarah | Sarah Robins | son | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | Brown | Harry | Harry Brown | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | king | STEVEN | Steven King | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < → | Sheet1 | + | | | | E 4 | | | | | Þ |
| Rea | dy Flash Fill (| Changed Cells: | 3 | | | | | = | - 12 | | + | 100% |

Flash Fill is especially helpful if your data is initially in different forms but you want the final information to display in the same fashion. For example, in our attendee list, some of the names were capitalized, in all caps, or had no capitalization. Sometimes you may need to manually update more than one option but Excel will detect your pattern.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18642

Flash Fill should automatically be turned on in Excel but if it is not, you can turn it on using the File>Options>Advanced menus. You can also turn Flash Fill on or off using the shortcut Ctrl+E. Be aware that the Mac version of Excel does not have Flash Fill.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18643

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Flash Fill. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





7.7: Flash Fill is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.8: SUM Data

Learning Outcomes

• Use AutoSum button.

One of the main uses for Excel is to organize and manipulate numerical data. Often you may wish to add up all the numbers in a column or row. Excel has formulas and commands to automatically add your data, and the easiest way to use this feature is the AutoSum button.

- 1. Once your numbers are organized in either a row or column, click on the cell where you would like the total sum to display. In the screenshot below this was A13.
- 2. Click on the AutoSum button from the Editing group of the ribbon.
- 3. Excel will highlight the cells that it is adding up and will apply the SUM formula.
- 4. Hit Enter to accept the highlighted cells and see the total value of your data.



Note that it is possible to SUM several columns (or rows) at once. Select all the cells you wish to display a SUM and click AutoSum. Excel will individually add up the columns.



| E | ן א י פֿי | | | | Boo | ok1 - Excel | | | Ŧ | | o × |
|----------|------------------|--|-------------|---------------|--|-------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------|---------------------|-----------------|
| Fi | le Home | Insert | Page Layou | ıt Formı | ulas Da | ta Revi | ew View | v Foxit PDF | : Q Tell n | ne | P₄ Share |
| Pas | te 💉 🔛 | libri • 1 <i>I</i> <u>U</u> • • → Eant | | | Genera \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • | al v | Condition Format as Cell Styles | al Formatting + Table + + | Ensert Cells | ∑ - 4 ↓ - 4 ► ditin | |
| Cip | | | | sooo | | | 51 | yies | Cells | Editi | ig |
| AI | • | · | √ Jx | 5000 | | | | | | | · · · |
| | А | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | K 🔺 |
| 1 | 5000 | 500 | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 500 | 400 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 50000 | 5000 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 4876 | 4876 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 80000 | 800 | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | 250 | 250 | | | | | | | | | |
| ' | 45089 | 4008 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | 34245 | 34245 | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | 987 | 987 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 76000 | 76000 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | 8764 | 8764 | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | 316311 | 236390 | - | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | € | Sheet1 | (+) | | | | ÷ • | | | | |
| Rea | dy | | Ave | rage: 23029.2 | 20833 Cou | int: 25 Sur | n: 552701 | | ─ - | | - + 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18644

The AutoSum option can be found in two areas:

- It is contained in the Editing group of the ribbon, as shown in the first example above.
- It can also be found under the Formulas tab.

| Ŀ | ∮ • ∂ | | | | Book1 - E | xcel | | | - 0 × |
|--------------------|---|--|--|--|----------------------------------|---|--|---|--|
| Fil | e Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review 1 | View Foxit P | DF Q Tell me | ₽ Share |
| f: Inse Func | Autos ▲ Recer ert tion I Finan | Sum • 2 ntly Used • 2 cial • 2 Function Libra | Logical - Text - Date & Time - ary | Image: style sty | ╠□ Trace □옵 Trace - ╠ Remo | Precedents Dependents ve Arrows 👻 Formula Au | ₩ w w w w w w w w w w w w w | Calculation W Options * Calculation | ~ |
| A1 | + | : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | 5000 | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | DE | F | G | н | I J | K |
| 1 | 5000 | 500 | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 500 | 400 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 50000 | 5000 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 4876 | 4876 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 80000 | 800 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | 45699 | 250 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | 10000 | 100000 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | 34245 | 34245 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | 987 | 987 | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 76000 | 76000 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | 8764 | 8764 | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | 316311 | 236390 | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | ······································ |
| 4 | | Sheet1 | (+) | | | : | 4 | | |
| Read | ly | | Avera | ge: 23029.20833 | Count: 25 | Sum: 552701 | | <u> </u> | + 100% |







Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18645

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• SUM Data in Excel. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.8: SUM Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.9: Simple Math

Learning Objectives

Complete simple math functions in Excel

Excel spreadsheets are often used for calculating numbers with simple math. There are a few things to learn to set up using simple math calculations in Excel. You've already learned about the SUM function. This next section will teach other simple math steps to use in spreadsheets.

The basic math calculation steps in Excel are set up with the background of first quarter sales numbers for a department store. The example table includes the product type, sales price, number of items sold and the total for each item. Start by figuring out the total sales for each product type for the quarter.

Multiplication

- Total sales for each product requires the multiplication of sales price and number sold.
- Select the cell in Q1 total sales column and type in = Price Cell * Number Cell.
- Press the keyboard Enter key and the total is calculated.
- Type the same formula in for each cell or use the flash fill way by dragging the bottom right corner down the entire column and it will fill with the total sales for each product.

| A B C D 1 Product Price Number Q1 Total Sales 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 3 Waffle Iron \$ 25 39 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 39 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 \$ 1 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 6 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 8 6 Cake Pan \$ 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 15 63 \$ 10 100 \$ 1 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 10 10 <td< th=""><th></th></td<> | |
|---|------|
| A B C D A B C D 1 Product Price Number Q1 Total Sales 1 Product Price Number Q1 Total Sales 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 3 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 3 Waffle Iron \$ 25 39 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 39 \$ 1 3 Waffle Iron \$ 12 7 S 10 100 \$ 1 1 10 10 \$ 1 10 10 \$ <th></th> | |
| 1 Product Price Number Q1 Total Sales 1 Product Price Number Q1 Total Sales 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 \$ 1 3 Waffle Iron \$ 25 39 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 \$ 1 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 \$ 12 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 5 2 2 2 2 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 100 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 100 \$ 1 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 2 | |
| 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 =B2*C2 2 Coffee maker \$ 25 50 \$ 1 3 Waffle Iron \$ 25 39 3 Waffle Iron \$ 25 39 \$ 1 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 12 78 \$ 10 16 Knife Set \$ 55 45 \$ 20 10 100 \$ 1 10 \$ 12 10 \$ 1 10 \$ 1 10 8 \$ 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 </th <th>les</th> | les |
| 3 Waffle Iron \$25 39 4 Frying Pan \$12 78 4 Frying Pan \$12 78 5 Plate Set \$30 60 5 Plate Set \$30 60 \$12 78 6 Knife Set \$55 45 7 Plate Set \$30 60 \$1 6 Knife Set \$55 45 7 Cookie Sheet \$10 100 \$1 8 Cake Pan \$10 88 9 Hand Mixer \$25 33 \$10 9 Hand Mixer \$25 33 9 Hand Mixer \$25 33 \$10 10 Tea Kettle \$20 22 11 Glass Pitcher \$15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$32 15 13 Toaster \$35 48 1 | 250 |
| 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 4 Frying Pan \$ 12 78 \$ 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 \$ 1 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 2 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 9 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 5 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 10 100 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 1 | 75 |
| 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 5 Plate Set \$ 30 60 \$ 1 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 2 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ 10 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 13 | 936 |
| 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 6 Knife Set \$ 55 45 \$ 2 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ 10 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 88 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 8 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 100 \$ 10 10 10 10 10 | 300 |
| 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 7 Cookie Sheet \$ 10 100 \$ 1 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 \$ 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 9 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 35 48 1 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 1 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 1 | 175 |
| 8 Cake Pan \$ 10 88 \$ 10 88 \$ 9 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 9 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ 9 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 1 | 000 |
| 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ 9 Hand Mixer \$ 25 33 \$ Tea Kettle \$ 25 33 \$ 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 10 Tea Kettle \$ 20 22 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 \$ 1 | 380 |
| Image instant Image instant <thimage instant<="" th=""> Image ins</thimage> | \$25 |
| 10 Field Refine \$ 20 22 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 11 Glass Pitcher \$ 15 63 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ \$ \$ 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 \$ 1 \$ | 40 |
| III Grass Pitcher 3 13 05 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 \$ 12 Juicer \$ 32 15 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 1 | 945 |
| 12 Julicer \$ 32 15 13 Toaster \$ 35 48 \$ 1 | 180 |
| 13 Toaster S 35 48 | 580 |
| 14 Microwave S 100 39 S 3 | 900 |
| 14 Microwave \$ 100 39 15 Skillet \$ 30 51 \$ 1 | 30 |
| 15 Skillet \$ 30 51 16 | |
| 16 17 | 1 |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18646

Addition

- To find total sales for just small appliances, add their sales totals together by using the plus sign.
- Select the cell under total the Sm Appliances and type in = Q1 Total Sales Cell Reference for Product1 + Q1 Total Sales Cell Reference for Product2 + Q1 Total Sales Cell Reference for Product3 + Q1 Total Sales Cell Reference for Product4, etc. (for this example, the Microwave is not a small appliance).
- Press the keyboard Enter key.
- Total sales for all small appliance sales is displayed.
- Another way to write this addition formula is by using brackets =SUM(D2+D3+D9+D12+D13).



| IF | • | : | \times | $\checkmark f_x$ | Γ | =D2+D3+D9+ | D12+D13 | | | F. | 5 - | | \times | $\checkmark f_X$ | | | | | |
|----|---------------|--------|----------|------------------|-----|---------------|---------|---------------|------|----|---------------|-----|----------|------------------|-------------|------|---|-------|----------|
| | А | | в | с | | D | E | F | G | | А | | в | с | D | | Е | | F |
| 1 | Product | Pri | ce | Number | Q | 1 Total Sales | | Sm Appliances | | 1 | Product | Pri | ce | Number | Q1 Total Sa | iles | | Sm Ap | pliances |
| 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | =D2+D3+D9+D12 | +D13 | 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ 1,2 | 250 | | \$ | 5,210 |
| 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | |
| 4 | Frying Pan | Ś | 12 | 78 | ŝ | 936 | | | | 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | |
| 5 | Plate Set | Ś | 30 | 60 |) Ś | 1.800 | | | | 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ 1, | 300 | | | |
| 6 | Knife Set | Ś | 55 | 45 | i s | 2.475 | | | | 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ 2,4 | 475 | | | |
| 7 | Cookie Sheet | Ś | 10 | 100 | | 1.000 | | | | 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ 1,0 | 000 | | | |
| 8 | Cake Pan | Ś | 10 | 89 | i ç | 880 | | | | 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 380 | | | |
| 0 | Hand Mixer | ¢ | 25 | 20 | l c | 825 | | | | 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 325 | | | |
| 10 | Taa Kattla | ç ¢ | 20 | 22 | | 440 | | | | 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ 4 | 440 | | | |
| 10 | rea kettie | Ş | 20 | 22 | 4 3 | 440 | | | | 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ | 15 | 63 | \$ 9 | 945 | | | |
| 11 | Glass Pitcher | Ş | 15 | 63 | 5 | 945 | | | | 12 | Juicer | \$ | 32 | 15 | \$ 4 | 480 | | | |
| 12 | Juicer | Ş | 32 | 15 | Ş | 480 | | | | 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ 1, | 580 | | | |
| 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | | 14 | Microwave | \$ | 100 | 39 | \$ 3,5 | 900 | | | |
| 14 | Microwave | \$ | 100 | 39 | \$ | 3,900 | | | | 15 | Skillet | Ś | 30 | 51 | \$ 1. | 530 | | | |
| 15 | Skillet | \$ | 30 | 51 | \$ | 1,530 | | | | 16 | | | | | | | | | |

Subtraction

- For the total sales for all products, except small appliances, subtract the grand total from the small appliance total using the subtraction sign.
- Select the cell under total the **Non-Appliance** and type in **= Grand Totals Sales Cell Reference Sm Appliance total**.
- Press the keyboard Enter key.
- Total sales for all products minus small appliances are displayed.
- Another way to write this subtraction formula is =SUM(D16-F2).

| F2 | 2 | : | \times | $\checkmark f_x$ | | =D16-F2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----|---------------|----------|----------|------------------|----|---------------|---|-------|-----------|----|---------------|-------|-----|--------|----|-------------|---|-------|-----------|
| | А | | в | С | | D | Е | | F | F | 7 👻 | | × | √ Ĵ× | | | | | |
| 1 | Product | Prie | ce | Number | Q1 | 1 Total Sales | | Sm A | ppliances | | A | 1 | В | С | | D | E | | F |
| 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 | 1 | Product | Price | 2 | Number | Q1 | Total Sales | | Sm A | opliances |
| з | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 |
| 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | | 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | |
| 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non / | Appliance | 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | |
| 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | =D16- | F2 | 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non / | Appliance |
| 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | | 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | \$ | 13,906 |
| 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 880 | | | | 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | |
| 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 825 | | | | 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 880 | | | |
| 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ | 440 | | | | 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 825 | | | |
| 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ | 15 | 63 | \$ | 945 | | | | 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ | 440 | | | |
| 12 | Juicer | \$ | 32 | 15 | \$ | 480 | | | | 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ | 15 | 63 | \$ | 945 | | | |
| 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | | 12 | Juicer | \$ | 32 | 15 | \$ | 480 | | | |
| 14 | Microwave | Ś | 100 | 39 | Ś | 3,900 | | | | 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | |
| 15 | Skillet | Ś | 30 | 51 | Ś | 1.530 | | | | 14 | Microwave | \$ | 100 | 39 | \$ | 3,900 | | | |
| 16 | | <u> </u> | | | \$ | 19,116 | | | | 15 | Skillet | \$ | 30 | 51 | \$ | 1,530 | | | |
| 17 | | | | | - | -/ | | | | 16 | | | | | \$ | 19,116 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | - | | 47 | | | | | | | | | |

Division

- Maybe you need to know what the average unit sale would be across all products for the first quarter. In that case, divide the grand total sales by the number of units sold using the division sign
- Select the cell under **Average Unit Sales** title and type in **= Grand Totals Sales Cell Reference** / **Number**.
- Press the keyboard Enter key.
- You will now see what the average product sale was for Q1.
- Another way to write this division/average formula is =SUM(D16/C16).



| C | 16 - | | \times | $\checkmark f_x$ | - | =D16/C16 | | | | F1 | L0 - | | \times | $\sqrt{-f_x}$ | = | D16/C16 | | | | |
|----|---------------|------|----------|------------------|----|-------------|---|---------|------------|----|---------------|---------|----------|---------------|---------|-------------|---|--------|----------------|---|
| | A | | В | с | | D | Е | | F | | A | | в | с | | D | E | | F | |
| 1 | Product | Pric | e | Number | Q1 | Total Sales | | Sm Appl | iances | 1 | Product | Pric | e | Number | Q1 | Total Sales | | Sm App | oliances | Ī |
| 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 | 2 | Coffee maker | Ś | 25 | 50 | Ś | 1,250 | | Ś | 5,210 | |
| З | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | з | Waffle Iron | Ś | 25 | 39 | Ś | 975 | | | | |
| 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | | 4 | Frying Pan | Ś | 12 | 78 | Ś | 936 | | | | |
| 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non App | liance | 5 | Plate Set | Ś | 30 | 60 | Ś | 1.800 | | Non Ar | pliance | |
| 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | \$ | 13,906 | 6 | Knife Set | Ś | 55 | 45 | Ś | 2.475 | | Ś | 13,906 | |
| 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | | 7 | Cookie Sheet | Ś | 10 | 100 | Ś | 1.000 | | Ŷ | 10,000 | |
| 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 880 | | | | 8 | Cake Pan | Ś | 10 | 88 | Ś | 880 | | | | |
| 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 825 | | Average | Unit Sales | 0 | Hand Mixer | ¢ | 25 | 33 | Ś | 825 | | Averag | o I Init Salos | |
| 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ | 440 | | =D16/C1 | 6 | 10 | Tea Kettle | è | 20 | 22 | ć | 440 | | ر د | 26.15 | Ì |
| 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ | 15 | 63 | \$ | 945 | | | | 11 | Glass Bitchor | ć | 15 | 62 | ¢ | 945 | | Ŷ | 20.15 | t |
| 12 | Juicer | \$ | 32 | 15 | \$ | 480 | | | | 12 | Glass Fitcher | ç | 22 | 15 | ç | 490 | | | | |
| 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | | 12 | Juicer | \$ 6 | 32 | 15 | \$ ¢ | 480 | | | | |
| 14 | Microwave | \$ | 100 | 39 | \$ | 3,900 | | | | 13 | Toaster | > | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | | |
| 15 | Skillet | \$ | 30 | 51 | \$ | 1,530 | | | | 14 | Microwave | Ş | 100 | 39 | Ş | 3,900 | | | | |
| 16 | Grand Totals | | | 731 | \$ | 19,116 | | | | 15 | Skillet | Ş | 30 | 51 | Ş | 1,530 | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | 16 | Grand Totals | | | 731 | Ş | 19,116 | | | | |
| | - | | | | | | | | | 17 | | | | | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18647

Percentage

- To find what the percentage of sales for small appliances out of total sales was, divide the total small appliance sales by the grand total sales using the division sign.
- Select the cell under **Appliance Percentage** title and type in = **Sm Appliances / Grand Totals Sales Cell Reference**.
- Press the keyboard Enter key.
- The average product sale was for Q1 displays as a decimal point.
- Another way to write this percentage formula is =SUM(F2/D16).

| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----|---------------|------|----------|------------------|------|-------------|---|---------|-------------|-----|----|---------------|------|-----|--------|------|-------------|---|-------|---------------|-----|
| IF | . | | \times | $\checkmark f_X$ | = | F2/D16 | | | | | E1 | и т | : [| × | . fr | | | | | | |
| | А | | В | с | | D | Е | | F | e | | | | ~ | y ja | | | | | | |
| 1 | Product | Pric | e | Number | Q1 1 | Fotal Sales | | Sm App | liances | | | A | | В | C | | D | E | | F | G |
| 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 | | 1 | Product | Pric | e | Number | Q1] | Fotal Sales | | Sm Ap | opliances | |
| 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | | 2 | Coffee maker | \$ | 25 | 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 | |
| 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | | | 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ | 25 | 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | |
| 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non Ap | pliance | | 4 | Frying Pan | \$ | 12 | 78 | \$ | 936 | | | | |
| 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | \$ | 13,906 | | 5 | Plate Set | \$ | 30 | 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non A | ppliance | |
| 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | | | 6 | Knife Set | \$ | 55 | 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | \$ | 13,906 | |
| 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 880 | | | | | 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ | 10 | 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | | |
| 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 825 | | Average | Unit Sales | 5 | 8 | Cake Pan | \$ | 10 | 88 | \$ | 880 | | | | |
| 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ | 440 | | \$ | 26.15 | | 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ | 25 | 33 | \$ | 825 | | Avera | ge Unit Sales | |
| 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ | 15 | 63 | \$ | 945 | | | | | 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ | 20 | 22 | \$ | 440 | | \$ | 26.15 | |
| 12 | Juicer | \$ | 32 | 15 | \$ | 480 | | Applian | ce Percenta | age | 11 | Glass Pitcher | Ś | 15 | 63 | Ś | 945 | | | | |
| 13 | Toaster | \$ | 35 | 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | =F2/D16 | j | | 12 | Juicer | Ś | 32 | 15 | Ś | 480 | | Appli | ance Percent | age |
| 14 | Microwave | \$ | 100 | 39 | \$ | 3,900 | | | | | 13 | Toaster | Ś | 35 | 48 | Ś | 1.680 | | (| .272546558 | -0- |
| 15 | Skillet | \$ | 30 | 51 | \$ | 1,530 | | | | | 14 | Microwave | Ś | 100 | 39 | Ś | 3,900 | | | | |
| 16 | Grand Totals | | | 731 | \$ | 19,116 | | | | | 15 | Skillet | Ś | 30 | 51 | Ś | 1.530 | | _ | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | 16 | Grand Totals | 7 | | 731 | Ś | 19,116 | | - | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | 10 | Grand Fotals | | | 7.51 | ¥ | 13,110 | | | | |

To have the results display as a percentage, click the % button on the **Home** tab in the **Number** group.



| F | ile Home | Insert | Page La | yout | Formula | as Data | a Re | view V | iew De | eveloper | Help | Power P | Pivot | |
|----|---------------|--------------|------------------|------------|----------------|---------|---------------------|-------------|----------|------------|------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|
| P | | alibri | ~ 11 | ~ A | ^ A = | ≡≡ | ≫~ ~ | ab Wrap | Text | Gen | eral | ~ | Conditional | Form |
| | ~ 🗳 🛛 | s 1 <u>0</u> | * <u> </u> | <u>v</u> . | <u>A</u> ~ = | = = = | <u>+=</u> <u>+=</u> | 😫 Merge | 8 Center | ~ > | ~ % 7 | .0ŏ →ŏŏ | Formatting ~ | Tab |
| C | ipboard 🕞 | | Font | | r <u>s</u> | | Align | ment | | r <u>s</u> | Number | ٦. | | Styles |
| F1 | 3 * | : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | =F2 | /D16 | | | | | | Percen Format | t Style (Ct as a perce | trl+Shift+%) ent. | |
| | А | В | С | | D | Е | | F | G | н | | | IX. | _ |
| 1 | Product | Price | Number | Q1 To | tal Sales | | Sm App | oliances | | | | | | |
| 2 | Coffee maker | \$ 2 | 5 50 | \$ | 1,250 | | \$ | 5,210 | | | | | | |
| 3 | Waffle Iron | \$ 2 | 5 39 | \$ | 975 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | Frying Pan | \$ 1 | 2 78 | \$ | 936 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | Plate Set | \$ 3 |) 60 | \$ | 1,800 | | Non Ap | pliance | | | | | | |
| 6 | Knife Set | \$ 5 | 5 45 | \$ | 2,475 | | \$ | 13,906 | | | | | | |
| 7 | Cookie Sheet | \$ 10 |) 100 | \$ | 1,000 | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | Cake Pan | \$ 1 |) 88 | \$ | 880 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | Hand Mixer | \$ 2 | 5 33 | \$ | 825 | | Averag | e Unit Sale | 25 | | | | | |
| 10 | Tea Kettle | \$ 2 |) 22 | \$ | 440 | | \$ | 26.15 | | | | | | |
| 11 | Glass Pitcher | \$ 1 | 5 63 | \$ | 945 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | Juicer | \$ 3 | 2 15 | \$ | 480 | | Appliar | nce Percen | tage | | | | | |
| 13 | Toaster | \$ 3 | 5 48 | \$ | 1,680 | | | 27% | | | | | | |
| 14 | Microwave | \$ 10 | 39 | \$ | 3,900 | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | Skillet | \$ 3 | 51 | \$ | 1,530 | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | Grand Totals | | 731 | \$ | 19,116 | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Note

More than one calculation can be included in a single cell's formula. For example, you want to know the total sales of a few specific items for Q1; coffee maker, tea kettle and microwave.

If the Q1 totals hadn't been calculated yet, you'd need to multiply the number and sales price of each item then add up the total. This can be written in one formula by placing a comma between calculations. It is calculated like this =**SUM(B2*C2,B10*C10,B14*C14)**.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Simple Math. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.9: Simple Math is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.10: Introduction to Graphics

What you'll learn to do: Add and format graphics

Graphics can be very useful to help illustrate information in Microsoft Excel. Let's learn how to add and modify graphics!

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Graphics. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.10: Introduction to Graphics is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.11: Graphics

Learning Outcomes

• Add graphics

Excel is primarily used to manage and analyze numerical data. There are times when using graphics to visually represent data makes the numbers more memorable. Excel contains multiple types of graphics from which to choose. Here is how to add and format graphics for any type of graphic chosen in SmartArt. To begin, open an Excel spreadsheet in which the graphic should be added.

1. Select **Insert** on the bar menu, and in the **Illustrations** Group dropdown box select **SmartArt**. There are many different graphics from which to choose; Pictures, Shapes, Icons, etc. The Block Cycle graphic of SmartArt will be used as the example, but the actions are similar for the graphic as well.



- 2. A SmartArt Graphic dialog box will open with a variety of options for graphics from which to choose.
- 3. Select the type and layout of the graphic which fits the spreadsheet data best. The Cycle (1), Block Cycle (2) graphic is used for this illustration by clicking the **OK** button (3). The selected graphic is then inserted into the Excel workbook.



Here is the inserted graphic in the workbook.



| Auto | oSave Or | • F | 9 ~ (° | | | | | | Excel 1 | ntermediate | Skills - Sav | ing - | | | | | Sign in | lä 🖻 | | | |
|--------------------------------|--|---------------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------------------|---------|-------------------|---------------------------------------|---------|----------|-------------|--------------------------|------------------|-----|--------|-----------|---|---------|------|--------|--------|-----|
| File | Hom | e Ins | ert Pag | ge Layout | Formula | as Data | a Review | w View | Help | SmartA | rt Design | Format | , p | Search | | | | 년 S | hare 🖵 | Commen | ts |
| t Ad E Ad ⊡ Ter Diagr | d Shape d Bullet kt Pane am 1 | ← Pro → Der ← Rigl Create | mote note Sraphic | Move Up ↓ Move Dow Hayout ~ | vn | * ⁹ *9 | , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , | Layouts | | | | hange | | Smart/ | 7 | Reset Convert Graphic to Shapes Reset | | | | | |
| | ٨ | P | C | D | E | E | G | | т | | ĸ | 1 | м | N | 0 | D | 0 | P | c | т | |
| 1 | A | в | C | U | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | ĸ | L | м | N | 0 | P | Q | к | 5 | | ЧĤ |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | <u></u> | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | ` | 5* | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 0 | | | | | | | 9 | | | 9 | ó —- ♀ | | | 0 | | | | | | | -11 |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | o l'Te | extl 🗖 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | 2 | 7 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | 0 | 00 | Z | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | ext | | | _ [Te> | (t] | | | | | | | | - 1 |
| 15 | | | | | | | < | | | | | | | 0 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | ^ | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | K | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | Te | xt] | | ext] | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - 1 |
| 23 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | 0 | | | | | | | -11 |
| 24 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 25 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 28 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 29 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 30 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | • | Sheet1 | Sheet | 2 (+) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • |
| Ready | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | I | | 四 | - | + 10 | 0% |

Once a graphic is inserted into the workbook, the **SmartDesign** tools automatically are selected and the graphic can now be modified.

Practice questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18648

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18649

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Graphics. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.11: Graphics is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.12: Modify Graphics

Learning Objectives

• Modify graphics

Once a graphic has been inserted into a worksheet, text or data will need to be entered and edited. The graphic can also be modified to fit the scale and style desired for a worksheet. The following actions can be taken for any graphic selected in Excel:

- 1. Adding/editing text
- 2. Resizing graphic
- 3. Changing design style
- 4. Moving graphics
- 5. Rotating graphics



Adding/Editing Text

Type text into the graphic by either selecting the [Text] area in the graphic, or by selecting [Text] in the Type your text here dialog box to the left. If there is no text dialog box on the left, click on the graphic and the box will open. If there is data or text from within a worksheet such as labels, values, etc. you wish to add to the graphic, select the desired text and copy and paste into the



Type your text here Manufacturing (Text) (

graphic. Editing text in a graphic is the same process as adding a graphic's text.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18650

Resizing Graphic

Select a point on the outer edge of a graphic, hold down the left mouse button (or cursor) and drag the graphic to fit the size desired.



Changing Design Style

Roll the cursor over the layout or SmartArt style sections to see the various options that are available for the selected graphic. Select the style best suiting the purpose of the graphic.

| AutoSave 💽 🛱 🏷 Y V 👻 🗢 | Excel Intermed | ate Skills - Saving + | Sign in 🌈 🖬 – 🗆 🗙 |
|---|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------------------|
| File Home Insert Page Layout | Formulas Data Review View Help | SmartArt Design Format $ ho$ Search | 요 Share 모 Comments |
| $\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \end{array} \\ \end{array} $ | | | Reset Convert Graphic to Shapes |
| Create Graphic | Layouts | SmartArt Styles | Reset |
| Diagram 1 🔹 🗄 🗙 🧹 🗗 | 3 | | ~ |

Moving Graphics

To place a graphic next to an Excel table or other desired spot, hold down the cursor until the four-way arrow appears, while continuing to hold, drag the graphic within the worksheet to the desired location.







Rotating Graphics

To rotate a graphic in an Excel worksheet, place the cursor on the circular arrow and drag to rotate the graphic.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18651

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Modify Graphics. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.12: Modify Graphics is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.13: Format Graphics

Learning Objectives

• Format graphics

There are times when the format of a graphic needs to be changed and Excel provides tools to simplify those modifications. Formatting tools are located within the SmartArt Format ribbon bar. In order to see these tools, select a section within a graphic you wish to modify, then select Format in the ribbon. Like with the SmartArt Design area, the Format areas can be rolled over with a cursor to see the graphic change with the various possibilities.

| AutoSave 💿 🔹 🖟 | 9- (| Excel Intermediate Skills - Saving | | Sign in 🏿 🖉 🖻 | - 🗆 X |
|--------------------------|------------------------------------|--|---|---------------|--------------|
| File Home Insert | Page Layout Formulas Data Review V | ew Help SmartArt Design Format 🔎 | Search | 🖻 Share | e 🖓 Comments |
| Edit in 2-D K Smaller | Abc Abc Abc Abc Abc Abc | Abc Shape Citine ~ Shape Outline ~ Shape Effects ~ | A Text Fill ~ Text Outline ~ Text Effects ~ A Text Effects ~ | Arrange Size | |
| Shapes | Shape Styles | لاً Wor | rdArt Styles 🛛 Access | sibility | ^ |

There are three main areas for formatting a graphic.

- 1. Shapes
- 2. Shape Styles and Effects
- 3. WordArt Styles

Formatting Shapes

These options allow the shape of the graphic text boxes. A different shape may be used to highlight specific types of information or to make one stand apart from the areas of a graphic. First select the area you wish to change in the existing graphic. Select the **Change Shape** button in the Shapes group, select a shape from the dropdown menu options and click on the desired shape for the object in a graphic.





| AutoSave 💽 🕞 🏷 🤆 📼 | Excel Intermediate Skills - Saving + | Sign in 🌈 🖻 – 🗆 🗙 |
|---|---|--------------------|
| File Home Insert Page Layout | ormulas Data Review View Help SmartArt Design Format $ ho$ Search | ය Share 모 Comments |
| Edit in 2-D | Abc A | Arrange Size |
| Basic Shapes | Shape signes isi wordarit signes isi Accessio | |
| Diagra ○ △ △ □ △ ◇ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ | I J K L M N O P Q R S T | U V W X |
| 3 Block Arrows | | Q |
| * ⇒ | Obsign Manufacturing | 0 |
| 8 Equation Shapes 9 ↔ □ ☆ □ ☆ 등 월 | Distribution Purchasing End of Life | |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | Disposal | |
| 16 Stars and Banners 17 株森々☆☆☆@@@@@@@@ 18 最可愛愛冒口口口 19 | Block Cycle Use to represent a continuing sequence of stages, tasks, or events in a circular flow. Emphasizes the stages or steps rather than the connecting arrows or flow. | |
| 20 Callouts 21 マワクタロロロロロロロロ 22 につってのここでのであっていた。 23 24 | Learn more about SmartArt graphics | 0 |
| 25 26 27 28 | Image: Section of the section of t | |
| 30 | | |
| Sheet1 Sheet2 (+) | | |
| Ready | | ■ — + 100% |

Note: Change multiple objects simultaneously

Change more than one object at a time by holding down the CTRL key (Shift key on a Mac) and select all objects you wish to change to the same shape before selecting a new shape.

Formatting Shape Styles and Effects

Excel offers options to change the fill color, outline style color and weight, as well as adding effects to the shapes or objects in a graphic. These formatting tools allow you to customize your graphic to enhance the Excel worksheet. Select the dropdown arrow to open the dropdown menu illustrating the various options for the graphic. If a style has a gray checkered pattern this implies transparency. Roll over the options to display a preview of the objects selected in a graphic. Click an option to apply the new **Shape style** or **Shape effect**.

Shape Styles





Shape Effects





| AutoSave 🤇 | |)• (? - ₹ | | Excel Intermediate Skills - Saving 👻 | Sign in 🌈 🖬 – 🗆 🗙 | |
|---------------------|------------------------------|-------------|---|--|--|----------|
| File Hor | me Insert | Page Layout | Formulas Data Review View | Help SmartArt Design Format 🔎 Search | 년 Share 🖓 Comments | |
| Edit in 2-D 🔀 Sm | ange Shape ~ ger aller | Abc Abc | Abc Abc Abc Abc Abc | Shape Fill → Shape Outline → Shape Effects → | ▲ Text Fill ~ ▲ ▲ Text Outline ~ Alt ▲ Text Effects ~ Text | |
| Shaj | pes | | Shape Styles | Preset > No Presets | 🖾 Accessibility | ^ |
| Diagram 1 | • : × | Jx | | | | <u> </u> |
| E | F | G H | I J K L | M Shadow > | T U V W X | |
| 1 | | | | Presets | | |
| 3 | | | | <u>R</u> eflection > | | |
| 4 | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | Soft Edges / | | |
| 9 | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | 3-D Rotation > 4 3-D Options | | |
| 12 | | | Type your text here × | | | |
| 14 | | | Design | Z | | |
| 15 | | | Manufacturing | | | |
| 16 | | | Distribution | Diseased | | |
| 17 | | | Purchasing | Disposal | | |
| 10 | | | End of Life | | | |
| 20 | | | Disposal | | | |
| 21 | | | | ¢- | C, | |
| 22 | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| 23 | | | | | | |
| 24 | | | Block Cycle | End of Life | O Distribution O | |
| 25 | | | of stages, tasks, or events in a circular | | | |
| 27 | | | rather than the connecting arrows or | | | |
| 28 | | | flow. | Purchasing | | |
| 29 | | | | | | \Box |
| 30 | | | | | | Ţ |
| | Sheet1 | Sheet2 (+) | | | | |
| Ready | | | | | III III+ 100% | |

Formatting WordArt Styles

A different text style can make a graphic more memorable. Formatting options available include changing text outlines, effects, color and textures. Each style option is changed by the same method; open menu options, click on the option desired to change graphic word style.

There are two ways to display these menu options from which to choose the WordArt Style changes:

Method 1

Select the small down arrow next to the words and a drop-down menu will be displayed. Choose your desired WordArt effect style, click on option to select and change graphic.





| AutoSave 💽 🛱 🏷 - 연주 🔻 | Exc | el Intermediate Skills - Saving 👻 | | Sign in 🇳 🖻 – 🗆 🗙 |
|------------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|--|--------------------|
| File Home Insert Page Layout | Formulas Data Review View Help | SmartArt Design Format | ♀ Search | 암 Share 모 Comments |
| Edit in 2-D 🔀 Smaller | Abc Abc Abc Abc | [∆] Shape Fill × [✓] Shape Outline × [✓] Shape Effects × | A A A Text Fill ~ A Text Outline ~ A Text Effects ~ | Alt Arrange Size |
| Shapes | Shape Styles | Гъ | WordArt Styles Shadow | > No Shadow |
| Diagram 1 🔻 🗄 🗙 🗸 $f_{\mathbf{x}}$ | | | | - A |
| E F G H | I J K L M | N O P | Q R Reflection | > <u></u> x _ |
| 1 | | | A | Outer |
| 3 | | | A <u>G</u> low | |
| 4 | | | R Bevel | |
| 5 | | | | |
| 7 | | | A 3-D Rotatio | |
| 8 | | | 7 and the | |
| 10 | | | and <u>I</u> ransform | |
| 11 | | Disposal | Manufacturin | g |
| 12 | | | | |
| 14 | | 1 | | |
| 15 | | | | |
| 17 | | | | |
| 18 | | End of Life | Distribution | |
| 20 | | | | |
| 21 | | 7 | | |
| 22 | | | Purchasing | Perspective |
| 24 | | | | |
| 25 | | | | |
| 27 | | | | |
| 28 | | | | ~ ~ |
| 29 30 | | | | Shadow Options |
| | | | | |
| Ready | | | | III II - + 100% |

Method 2

Select the small arrow in the lower right area of the section and a **Text Effects** task pane will open to the right of the graphic. Highlight the text you wish to change, choose your desired WordArt effect style, and click on the desired option to select and change the graphic's text style.







Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18652

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18653

Note: Additional Menu Display Options

Many of the ribbon area groups (not just WordArt Styles group) have a small downward pointing arrow visible in the corner of a group. This can be clicked to open a menu displaying all options for a specific group to the right of a worksheet.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Format Graphics. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.13: Format Graphics is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.14: Introduction to Charts

What you'll learn to do: Create and modify charts

Excel is not just used for organizing and processing data and formulas. It also can be used to visually represent data in the form of charts and graphs.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Charts. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.14: Introduction to Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.15: Charts

Learning Outcomes

• Add charts

In Excel charts are a primary way to convey the analyzation of numerical data. If you've heard the adage "A picture is worth a thousand words" then you know it also holds true for pictures to interpret numbers. Charts make sales trends, marketing numbers and comparisons of all sorts of numerical data come to life.

Excel contains multiple types of charts to choose to make the data speak. Follow these steps to add a chart to a worksheet.

- 1. Open a worksheet with the numbers already entered or enter the data to be used in the chart. Make sure to organize the data into the order in which you wish it to be displayed in a chart. Select all the data making sure to include the headers and labels for the data. This should be at least two columns of data.
- 2. Select the **Insert** tab and find the **Charts** Group on the ribbon. Select the style of chart to use for that data. For this example, it is a Bar chart style, in the 2-D Column, Cluster column chart. If you are uncertain of what type of chart to use, select the **Recommend Charts** button and a dialog box with a few options will open.



- 3. The chart opens with the data information in it and can be moved, edited and resized like a graphic. Notice that when the chart is selected, the data associated with it is highlighted in different colors
- 4. There are two main ways to edit a chart:
 - 1. To the upper right of the chart area are three buttons that can be used to change Chart Elements, modify the style or color, and edit the valued or names.
 - 2. Modifying the chart style, color and design can also be accomplished by rolling the cursor over the options in the ribbon and selecting the style desired.





| AutoSa | ive 💽 | 9日9 | | | | | | Modul | e+7+assignn | nent Final 🤸 | | | | | S | Sign in | ä 🖻 | | |
|-------------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------|----------|----------------------|--|--------------|------------|---------------|---------------|-------------------|-----------|-----------|------------------------------|------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------|--------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Help C | Chart Desig | n Form | nat J | 🔉 Search | | | | | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Co | mments |
| Add Char Element Chart | t Quick Layout ~ Layouts | Change Colors ~ | × 5× 9 | | | נוגנון, ווון, ייידיאן, און | Chart Styles | , hililih) | | | Willdy | | | witch Row/ Column Data | Select Data C | Change hart Type Type | Move Chart Location | | ~ |
| | • | | | | | 6 | | | | K | | | N | 0 | D | 0 | D | | |
| 1 Mont 2 Januar | h Sa ary \$1 | B les Total L1,585.00 | |) E | _ | G | н | 1 | J | ĸ | L | M | N | 0 | P | Q | ĸ | 5 | |
| 3 Febro 4 Marc 5 April | Jary \$1 h \$1 \$1 | L5,478.00 L0,000.00 L4,000.00 | | | | 20.000.00 | | Sa | o | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 May 7 June 8 July | \$1 | 11,456.00 14,023.00 12,897.00 | | | S: S: S: S: | 18,000.00 | | Vertical (| Value) Axis N | 1ajor Gridlir | ies | | <u>/</u> | | | | | | |
| 9 Augu 10 Septe 11 Octo | st \$1 ember \$1 ber \$1 | 14,856.00 12,000.00 17,562.00 | | | s: os: | 12,000.00 | | | | | H | . 1 | 0 | | | | | | |
| 12 Nove 13 Dece 14 | mber \$ | \$8,000.00 L1,250.00 | | 4 | | 56,000.00 — 54,000.00 — \$2,000.00 — \$0.00 — | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 16 17 | | | | | | Januar | February Mar | I ADRIL AN | ist june hi | AUBUST SEPTER | per october Nover | December | | | | | | | |
| 18 19 20 | | | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | | | |
| 21 22 23 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 24 25 26 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 27 28 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 30 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| () | 2 | 2012 201 | .3 2014 | Trends (| ÷ | | | 1 | | | Average: 12 | 758.91667 | Count: 26 | Sum: 153107 | Ħ | |] | | + 100% |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18654

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18655

Learn More

There are many types and styles of charts and graphs from which to choose. The same process of adding a chart as it was done above is used to insert other types of charts. Here are three other examples of types of charts based on the same data as the first chart. See which one seems to represent the data the clearest.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Charts. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.15: Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.


7.16: Clustered Column Charts

Learning Outcomes

• Create a clustered column chart.

Excel is not just used for organizing and processing data and formulas. It also can be used to visually represent data in the form of charts and graphs. In this page, we will work on creating a basic chart, the clustered column chart, and then modifying a chart style.

A clustered column chart is sometimes called a bar graph, because it shows data organized in solid shapes like pillars. A clustered column chart organizes these pillars up and down, so they are "columns." On the other hand, a clustered bar graph organizes these pillars left to right, so they are "bars." Bar graphs are useful charts when looking at changes from month to month or across employees.

The first step to creating any chart is to organize your data. It is definitely a good idea to include headers in the first cell of each column. By default, a clustered column chart will cluster the data by the columns in your table, so try to keep that in mind when setting up the worksheet.

1. After organizing your data, select the cells you wish to include in the chart. This should be at least two columns.

2. Click on the Insert tab and find the Charts group of the ribbon.

| E | ৲ ে - | Ŧ | Mod | lule 6 workshee | t.xlsx - E | xcel | | ፹ − | o x | |
|-------|-------------------|-----------------------|--|-----------------|----------------------|------------|------------------|------------------------------------|---------|---|
| Fil | e Home | Inset Dave I | Formulas | ; Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | A Share | |
| Table | s Illustrations A | Add Recommence Charts | ded <mark>∅ * du * du</mark> ded <mark>∅ * du * ĝa</mark> orarts | PivotChart | 3D Map * Tours | Sparklines | Filters Links | A Ω Text Symbols * * | ~ | |
| A1 | · · | × 🗸 J | & Month | | | | | | ~ | |
| | А | В | с | D | | E | F | G | H 🖻 | - |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | 5000 | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500 | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000 | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | 4876 | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | 80,000 | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$250 | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | 45689 | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000 | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | 34,245 | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | 76000 | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | 8,764 | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | • |
| 4 | > Sh | eet1 (+ | | : | 4 | | | | Þ | |
| Read | у | | Average: 26359.25 | Count: 26 | Sum: 3 | 16311 | | | + 110% | 5 |

3. "Clustered column chart" is actually a recommended chart. Click on that chart.





4. When you select the chart, you will see colored boxes surrounding the data that connect to the different categories of the chart.

| E | י≶יפֿי | | | orksheet | | | | с | | | | | × |
|-------|---|--------------------|--------------|------------|--------|------------|-----------|------------------------------|----------------|------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------|-----|
| Fil | e Home In | sert Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | Design | Forma | nt ⊊Te | ll me | ₽ Shar | e |
| nl∎ Q | dd Chart Element Quick Layout ∽ Chart Layouts | Change Colors + | Ch | art Styles | | 8-81 VICA. | × ↓ | witch Row/ Column Data | Select Data | Change Chart Type Type | Move Chart Location | | ^ |
| Cha | art 1 🔻 | × √ f | r | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | Α | В | С | | D | | E | 1 | F | G | | Н | |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total |) | | | | 0 | | | | 1 | Q | |
| 2 | January | 5000 | | | | | Sales | lotal | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500 | 90000 | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000 | 80000 | | | | | | | | _ | _ | |
| 5 | April | 4876 | 70000 | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| 6 | May | 80,000 | 60000 | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| 7 | June | \$250 | 50000 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | 45689 | 40000 - | | | | | | | | | Ý | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000 | 30000 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | 34,245 | 10000 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | 0 | | | | | | | _ | | | |
| 12 | November | 76000 | - | 4 64 | 3. | -in | 134 . re | | 5° net | net - | e ^s _e ^s | | |
| 13 | December | 8,764 | BUNG | Lephine. | 410 | ber | 4. m. | BUA IC | orennu | octor wern | ecemb | | |
| 14 | | | | - | | | | | 50 | 4 | 0- | | - |
| 4 | > Sh | eet1 (+ | | | | E (4) | | | | | | | Þ |
| Read | y | | Average: 263 | 59.25 | Count: | 26 Su | m: 316311 | | I [] | - | 1 | + 1 | 10% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18656

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18657

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Clustered Charts. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





7.16: Clustered Column Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.17: Chart Styles Learning Outcomes

• Modify chart style.

Once you have created a chart, or if you are given a worksheet that contains a chart, it is very easy to change the chart style.

1. Click on the chart you wish to change. The Design tab should appear in the ribbon area.

2. Click on Change Chart Type button



3. Click on the type of chart you would like.

| Change | Chart Type | ? <mark>- × -</mark> |
|--------|----------------------------|----------------------|
| Recon | nmended Charts | All Charts |
| | Recent Templates | |
| | Line | Line |
| | Pie Bar | sales Total |
| | Area | |
| | Stock | |
| 國家 | Surface Radar | |
| | Treemap Sunburst | |
| | Histogram | |
| | Box & Whisker Waterfall | |
| laffar | Combo | |
| | | |
| | | OK Cancel |





From this same window, you can also switch the data that is being charted. For example, you can switch which data from a row to a column or change which data is arranged on the x- or y-axis.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18658

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18659

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Chart Styles. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

7.17: Chart Styles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills

Now that you know some of the more advanced tools available in Excel, let us take a look at our opening list of possible questions and match those with an Excel function we just covered.

- 1. You want to see which month had your highest sales volume. *You could see this by sorting your data Z to A (largest to smallest number).*
- 2. You have a total clothing inventory but you want to know how many pants you have in stock. *You could see this using the COUNTIF function*.
- 3. You want to know how many months from last year you were under budget. You could see this with the IF function, just like in our learning example.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

7.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





7.19: Assignment- Analyze Yearly Trends

In this assignment, we will pull together everything you have learned about Excel so far to analyze trends in sales data over several years.

To complete this assignment, you will need the assignment you completed last module that you saved as **BA132_LastName_SalesData.xlsx** (or you can download the original assignment here) and a new workbook you can download here. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

1. Open both workbooks. Save the new Module 7 file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as

BA132_LastName_YearlyTrends.xlsx, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.

2. First, we need to combine the information into a single workbook. Add a new worksheet to the Module 7 file and copy the table from the Module 6 assignment to that new tab. Name the new tab "2014." Be sure to set the number type to currency.



3. Add another new worksheet. Now we want to set up the spacing for the table we are about to make. Merge the 1 and 2 cells of column A, B, C, D, and E individually (so A1 and A2 merge, B1 and B2 merge, etc). Then name the cells as shown in the list below and center the text in those cells.

A = Month

B = 2012 Sales

C = 2013 Sales

D = 2014 Sales



E = Total by Month

| 4 | utoSave 🤇 | | ?~ ~~ | [≩, ⇒ м | odule+7+ass | ignment - E | e 🗾 🎾 |) Search | | | | Sig | ın in | E – | | |
|-----|-----------|------------------|------------------|------------|-------------|-----------------------------|-----------|------------------------------|-----------------|---|----------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|-------|----------|
| Fil | e Ho | me Insert | t Page Li | ayout Fo | ormulas | Data Re | view N | View De | veloper | Help | Power Pivot | : | Ľ | ි Share | Comme | nts |
| Pa | ≥∎ | Calibri B I U | ~ <u>+</u> ~ | 1 ~ A^ A` | == | ≡ [≫] • ≡ •≡ •≡ | ę₽ Œ ~ | General \$ ~ % €00 .00 | ✓ ■ C 9 ₩ F 0 0 | onditional Fo ormat as Tab ell Styles ~ | ormatting ~ ole ~ | 🔠 Inser 🔛 Dele 🛗 Forn | rt ∽ te ∽ nat∽ | ∑ ~ 2҈⊽~ ▼ ~ ,0~ �~ | Ideas | |
| Cli | pboard F | | Font | | ral A | Alignment | F⊒ | Number | F <u>a</u> | Styles | | Cell | s | Editing | Ideas | ^ |
| P1 | 5 | • : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | в | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | м | N | 0 | |
| 1 | | | | | Total by | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Month | 2012 Sales | 2013 Sales | 2014 Sales | Month | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | 4 K . | 2012 | 2012 201 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| - | | 2012 | 2013 201 | | | | | | | | | 1 1200 | m | | | E. |
| Eo | | | | | | | | | | | Ē | | 巴 - | | - + 1 | .00% |

4. Copy the following columns of data over in order: "2012 Sales Total," "2013 Sales Total," and "2014 Sales Total." Remember, you can just copy and paste each column in order, using the columns you have already labeled. When you AutoFit the column to the data width, your header cells will change.

| | AutoSave 🤇 | | 5 · C- | [≩ ≂ Moo | dule+7+assig | nment - Ex | 🔎 | Search | | | | Sign i | n 🗗 | | | |
|----|----------------|------------------|------------------|--|--------------|----------------|--------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|---|------------|----------|-------------------|-----------------|------------|------|
| F | ile Hor | ne Inser | t Page La | ayout Form | nulas D | lata Re | view V | iew Deve | loper | Help P | ower Pivot | | 년 Sł | are 🖓 |] Comme | ents |
| P | on X aste ✓ | Calibri B I U | ~ 11 ~ ⊞ ~ | Δ [*] Α [*] Α [*] | = = = | ● ≫ ~ E = = | 8₽ ₩ • | General ~ \$ ~ % 9 ₩ | E Co For Ce | nditional For mat as Table I Styles ~ | matting ~ | E Insert | × Σ • Ψ • ◊ | , 27 v , 0 v | 4 Ideas | |
| | ippoard 15 | 41 | Font | 151 | AI | ignment | 121 | Number | | Styles | | Cells | E | aiting | Ideas | |
| FI | 2 | • : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 1 | Α | в | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | м | N | 0 | |
| 1 | | | | | Total by | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Month | 2012 Sales | 2013 Sales | 2014 Sales | Month | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 3 | January | \$11,585.00 | \$5,865.00 | \$ 5,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 4 | February | \$15,478.00 | \$15,478.00 | \$ 500.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 5 | March | \$10,000.00 | \$10,000.00 | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 6 | April | \$14,000.00 | \$2,578.00 | \$ 4,876.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 1 | May | \$11,456.00 | \$11,456.00 | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 8 | June | \$14,023.00 | \$14,023.00 | \$ 250.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 10 | August | \$12,057.00 | \$00,342.00 | \$45,065.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | Sontombo | \$12,000,00 | \$12,000,00 | \$ 24, 245,00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 12 | October | \$17,562.00 | \$17,562.00 | \$ 987.00 | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | Novembe | \$8,000,00 | \$8,000.00 | \$76,000,00 | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | Decembe | \$11.250.00 | \$11.250.00 | \$ 8,764.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | Laura | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < | 2012 | 2013 201 | 4 + | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | Þ |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | Ħ | | J – | - | - + 1 | .00% |

5. Now apply Autosum to the sales data for both the total by month and by year. When you have the totals, apply bold to them to make them stand out more and type "Totals" in the cell under December.





| | AutoSave 💽 | er Er ら | • (° · 🖪 | ⇒ Module | +7+assignment | | 🔎 Sea | irch | | | | Sign in | œ | - 0 | |
|--------|------------|--------------------|----------------------|--------------|-------------------|----------------|----------------------------|------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|-------|----------------------------------|-----------------------|------------|------|
| Fi | le Home | e Insert | Page Layo | ut Formula | as Data | Review | View | Develo | per Help | Power | Pivot | | 년 Share | e 🖓 Comm | ents |
| Pa | iste ≪ | Calibri B I U ∽ | ~ 11 · ⊞ ~ ₫ | | | - €₽ -= 🖽 . | Genera \$ ~ €.00 →00 | % 9 | E Condition Format as | nal Formattin 5 Table ~ 5 ~ | ng ~ | Insert ~ Delete ~ Format ~ | ∑ × Z ↓ × / ♦ × | Q ~ Jdeas | |
| 0 | 31 × | : × | √ f _x | 141 | Angrinen | | | | | | | | . Luni | .9 . 10(0) | * |
| | А | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | м | N | 0 |
| 1 2 | Month | 2012 Sales | 2013 Sales | 2014 Sales | Total by Month | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | January | \$11,585.00 | \$5,865.00 | \$ 5,000.00 | \$22,450.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 4 | Hebruary | \$15,478.00 | \$15,478.00 | \$ 500.00 | \$31,456.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 6 | April | \$14,000.00 | \$2,578,00 | \$ 4,876,00 | \$21,454,00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | May | \$11,456.00 | \$11.456.00 | \$80,000.00 | \$102,912.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | June | \$14,023.00 | \$14,023.00 | \$ 250.00 | \$28,296.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | July | \$12,897.00 | \$68,542.00 | \$45,689.00 | \$127,128.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | August | \$14,856.00 | \$80,536.00 | \$10,000.00 | \$105,392.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | September | \$12,000.00 | \$12,000.00 | \$34,245.00 | \$58,245.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | October | \$17,562.00 | \$17,562.00 | \$ 987.00 | \$36,111.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | November | \$8,000.00 | \$8,000.00 | \$76,000.00 | \$92,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 14 | December | \$11,250.00 | \$11,250.00 | \$ 8,764.00 | \$31,264.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 15 | Totals | \$153,107.00 | \$257,290.00 | \$316,311.00 | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 23 | | 2012 20 | 13 2014 | | | | | | : AL | 1 | | | 1 | | |
| Per | dv 📼 | 2012 20 | 2014 | U | | | | | | | m | m m | - | | 100% |

6. Next to the 'Totals by Month' column, type 'Above \$50k' in the column title. In the first cell in the new column use an IF function to identify True or False if the totals by month are greater than \$50,000 or not. Remember, after you create the first IF functions in January, you can Flash fill the other cells by dragging the bottom right of the highlighted cell down the other cells.

| A | utoSave 💽 Off | 8 9 ~ C | _ 👌 ≂ Mod | ule+7+assignment | + Final - E 🔎 | Search | | | Sign in 🛛 🗄 | a – | | |
|--------|---------------|---------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------------------|---|----------------------|----------------------------------|---|-------|--------|------|
| File | e Home | Insert Page | Layout Form | ulas Data | Review View | Developer | Help Po | wer Pivot | ß | Share | 🖓 Comm | ents |
| Pas | te 🖋 B | ibri ↓ IU↓ ⊞↓ | 11 ~ A^ A` <u>A</u> ~ <u>A</u> ~ | = = = ab = = = ■ = = = ■ | General → \$ ~ % 9 | E Conditional F Format as Tal Cell Styles ~ | ormatting ~ ble ~ | 🔠 Insert 💓 Delete 🔛 Format | Σ < ²/₂ ζ ζ | | deas | |
| Clip | board 🗳 | Font | L7 | Alignment | Number 🕞 | Style | s | Cells | Editir | g I | deas | ^ |
| K21 | . . | $\times \checkmark$ | f _x | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | Ι | J | | K 📤 |
| 1 2 | Month | 2012 Sales | 2013 Sales | 2014 Sales | Total by Month | Above \$50k | | | | | | |
| 3 | January | \$11,585.00 | \$5,865.00 | \$ 5,000.00 | \$22,450.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 4 | February | \$15,478.00 | \$15,478.00 | \$ 500.00 | \$31,456.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 5 | March | \$10,000.00 | \$10,000.00 | \$50,000.00 | \$70,000.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 6 | April | \$14,000.00 | \$2,578.00 | \$ 4,876.00 | \$21,454.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 7 | May | \$11,456.00 | \$11,456.00 | \$80,000.00 | \$102,912.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 8 | June | \$14,023.00 | \$14,023.00 | \$ 250.00 | \$28,296.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 9 | July | \$12,897.00 | \$68,542.00 | \$45,689.00 | \$127,128.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 10 | August | \$14,856.00 | \$80,536.00 | \$10,000.00 | \$105,392.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 11 | September | \$12,000.00 | \$12,000.00 | \$34,245.00 | \$58,245.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 12 | October | \$17,562.00 | \$17,562.00 | \$ 987.00 | \$36,111.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 13 | November | \$8,000.00 | \$8,000.00 | \$76,000.00 | \$92,000.00 | TRUE | | | | | | |
| 14 | December | \$11,250.00 | \$11,250.00 | \$ 8,764.00 | \$31,264.00 | FALSE | | | | | | |
| 15 | Totals | \$153,107.00 | \$257,290.00 | \$316,311.00 | | | | | | | | _ |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | > 20 | 12 2013 20 | 014 Sheet4 | + | | | • | | | · | | Þ |
| Read | v Eo | | | | | | | | ─ | - | + | 120% |

7. Return to the individual tabs for each year. For each year of data, sort the sales total "Z to A" so that the month with the highest sales is at the top. When you chose the "Sort" option, be sure to "Expand the Selection." That will make sure that the months change as well. The screenshot below shows you only what 2012 should look like, but when you finish you should see October



as the highest in 2012, August for 2013, and May for 2014.

| | ਜ਼ • <u></u> ਾ ∂ | | | | le 7 assignment | | | | | | |
|-----|------------------|---------------------------------|----------------|-------------|-----------------------|--|------------------------------------|---------|-----------------------------------|--|------|
| F | ile Hom | e Insert | Page Layou | ıt Formulas | Data F | Review V | /iew Fox | iit PDF | ♀ Tell me | R, s | hare |
| Pa | | alibri • 3 I U • 3 • 20 • | | | General ▼ \$ ▼ % * | ₹ि Conditi अज्जि Format अजि Cell Sty | onal Format as Table * les * | ting ▼ | ■Insert ▼ Delete ▼ Format ▼ | $\sum_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \frac{\mathbf{A}}{2} \mathbf{v} \cdot \mathbf{v}$ $\bigcup_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \mathbf{p} \cdot \mathbf{v}$ $\bigotimes_{\mathbf{v}} \cdot \mathbf{v}$ | |
| CII | | Font | 4 161 A 161 | lignment is | Number 14 | | Styles | | Cells | Editing | |
| EI | .1 * | | √ Jx | | | 1 | | | | | |
| | A | В | С | D E | F | G | н | I | J | К | |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | October | \$17,562.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$15,478.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | August | \$14,856.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | June | \$14,023.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | April | \$12,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Sentember | \$12,037.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | lanuary | \$11 585 00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | May | \$11,456.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | December | \$11,250.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | March | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | November | \$8,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | < ► | 2012 20 | 013 2014 | Sheet4 | + | : | • | | 1 | | • |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | | | - | + + | 100% |

8. Finally, go back to Sheet4 and create a clustered column chart from the three year columns of your data.



9. Save your work and submit it in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Analyzing Yearly Trends. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*





7.19: Assignment- Analyze Yearly Trends is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



7.20: Discussion- Hard Return within a Cell

For visual reasons, there are times that you may wish to have multiple lines of text within an Excel cell rather than one long string. Do you know how to do this? Hint: you don't want to use the TAB or space bar button because this spacing will be incorrect if you resize your cells! Instead you want to place what is known as a "hard return" (or a new line of text) within the cell.

A hard return is very easy to insert in a cell. Simply type your first line of text. When you reach the end of that line, hold down the Alt button of your keyboard as you hit the Enter (or Return) button. A new line will be started inside the cell.



You can add as many lines of text as you would like this way. When you are finished with that cell, simply hit Enter or Tab as normal to proceed to the next cell. Your cell should automatically resize to accommodate the multiple hard returns you have created in the cell. Best of all, if you manually resize your cells, columns, or rows, the hard returns will remain in place and the separate lines of text will remain separate lines of text!



| ⊟ ৲৽ ৾৽ ∓ | | | Book1 - | Excel | | | Ē | — ć | J X |
|---|--|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|--------|--|----------------|------------------------------------|-----------------------|----------|
| File Home Ins | ert Page Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | | ₽ Share |
| Paste | $\begin{array}{c c} \bullet & 11 & \bullet \\ \bullet & A^* & A^* & \equiv \\ \bullet & A & \bullet \\ \bullet & A & \bullet \\ \end{array}$ | = ₽ = ₽ • ≫ • | General \$ - % * | Con | ditional Forr nat as Table Styles - | matting • • | E Insert ▼ Delete ▼ Format ▼ | ∑ - Â ↓ - ↓ ∢ - | Ψ. |
| Clipboard 🕞 For | nt 🗔 Align | ment 🕞 | Number | G. | Styles | | Cells | Editin | g ^ |
| D6 - : ; | $\times \checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | ~ |
| A | B C | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | K 🔺 |
| Line One Line Two 1 Line Three 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 12 13 Sheet1 | | | | | | | | | |
| Sheet | (+) | | | | : • | | m | | 100% |
| Reauy | | | | | | | | 1 | - + 100% |

Discussion Questions

- In what situations would a hard return be useful?
- Would you ever use this feature? Why or why not?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Hard Return within a Cell. **Authored by**: Shelli Carter. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

7.20: Discussion- Hard Return within a Cell is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

8: Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

Learning Objectives

- Sparklines
- More Formatting and Layout
- Pivot Tables
- Macros
- Functions and Formulas
- Add-Ins
- Internet and Excel

8.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

- 8.2: Introduction to Sparklines
- 8.3: Sparklines
- 8.4: Introduction to More Formatting and Layout
- 8.5: Conditional Formatting
- 8.6: Viewing a Worksheet
- 8.7: Introduction to Pivot Tables
- 8.8: Pivot Tables
- 8.9: Introduction to Macros
- 8.10: Macros
- 8.11: Recording a Macro
- 8.12: Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas
- 8.13: What is a Function?
- 8.14: Lookup Functions and Formulas
- 8.15: Logical Functions and Formulas
- 8.16: Financial Functions and Formulas
- 8.17: Introduction to Add-Ins
- 8.18: Add-Ins
- 8.19: Introduction to Internet and Excel
- 8.20: Internet and Excel
- 8.21: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills
- 8.22: Assignment- Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet
- 8.23: Discussion- Excel Worksheet as a Webpage

8: Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

Why learn to complete advanced skills in Microsoft Excel?

With a lot of data comes a lot of repetition. You may find yourself completing the same tasks over and over again, or you may find yourself re-creating tables, because they weren't organized the way you need them to be. Excel is a powerful tool, and you can automate a lot of these repetitive tasks.

If you ever find yourself doing the same thing over and over again, it's always a good idea to pause and look if there's a faster or easier way that you could be doing that task.

8.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.2: Introduction to Sparklines

What you'll learn to do: Create Sparklines

In using Excel, there are a variety of ways to display your data visually. One such method is a sparkline: a small graph that is created to offer simple visual clues about the data in your sheet.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Sparklines. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.2: Introduction to Sparklines is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.3: Sparklines

Learning Outcomes

• Create sparklines.

Now that you have seen the value of data visualization in charts, we can address a much simpler and compact visualization: a sparkline. Sparklines are small graphs that are created to offer simple visual clues about the data graphed. Basically, they are tiny charts inside a single cell.

There are three types of sparklines:

- 1. Line: visualizes the data in a line graph form
- 2. Column: visualizes the data in column form, similar to the clustered column chart
- 3. Win/Loss: visualizes the data as positive or negative based on color



The best use of a sparkline is to place it close to the data you are visualizing. You may be wonder what use a sparkline is since you know how to create a chart. Well, the great thing about sparklines is they automatically print when you print a worksheet. Charts do not print when you print a worksheet; they must be separately printed or moved to another program like Word or PowerPoint.

Sparklines are also great in that they automatically update if you change the data they display.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18660

To create your own sparklines, follow the steps below.

- 1. Click on the cell where you want your sparkline to appear.
- 2. Click on the Insert tab and find the Sparklines group. Select the type of sparkline you want to create.



| E | ਰ 5 • ੇ- | | | Modul | e 6 workshe | et.xlsx - E | Excel | | Ŧ | | o x |
|------|------------------|------------------|----------------|---------------------------------|-------------|------------------|--------------|--------------|------------------|-------------------|---------|
| F | ile Home | Insert P | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Foxit PDF | © Tell | me | A Share |
| Tabl | es Illustrations | Add- ins * Ch | mended arts | ∎ • 14 • ⊪ • ≧• • ⊡ • ☆ • | PivotChart | 3D Map Tou | Sparklines F | ters Link | 4 Text | Ω Symbols * | ^ |
| B1 | 4 - | : × 🗸 | f_{x} | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | с | D | | Е | 2 ⊧ | G | | н | 1 |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | | _ | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$5,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$4,876.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$250.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$8,764.00 | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | 4 | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | U | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | < > 1 | Sheet1 (| ÷ | | : | 4 | | | | | |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | === | | | | + 100% |

3. A new data box will appear. This is where you will enter the range of cells to be graphed by your sparkline.

| Create Sparklines | ? × |
|--|----------------------------------|
| Choose the data the <u>D</u> ata Range: B2 | at you want B13 |
| Choose where you | want the sparklines to be placed |
| Location range | OK Cancel |

4. Hit Enter.



| E | | | | | | | | | o × |
|------|----------------|-------------|---------------------------------------|-------------|----------|---------------------|--------|--------------|----------|
| Fi | ile Home | Insert Page | Layout Fo | rmulas Data | Review | View Foxit PDF | Design | ♀ Tell me | A Share |
| Ec | lit Line Co | blumn Win/ | High Point Low Point Negative P | i First Po | int s | $\land \land \land$ | | xis Clear | |
| Spar | kline | Type | | Show | | Style | | Group | * |
| B1 | 4 ~ | : × 🗸 | f _x | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | 1. |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$5,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500.00 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$4,876.00 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$250.00 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$8,764.00 | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 10 | () S | Sheet1 (| Ð | | : • | | | | |
| Rea | dv | | | | | | а ш. | | + 100% |

Note that like any other chart, you can change the display options of a sparkline, including colors and style, after you have created it. To change a sparkline, you will need to access the Design tab that appears under Sparkline Tools once you have created a sparkline. This tab will only appear if you have selected the cell with your sparkline in it.

| E | 5.6. | ÷ | Modi | ule 6 worksheet.x | lsx - Excel | | | T – | 0 X |
|-----------|-----------|--------------------|---|--|--------------------|----------------|--------|--------------|---------|
| Fi | le Home | Insert Page | Layout Fo | rmulas Data | Review | View Foxit PDF | Design | ♀ Tell me | A Share |
| Ed Dat | Line C | olumn Win/ Loss | ☐ High Point ☐ Low Point ☐ Negative P | First Pa Last Po oints Marke Show | pint pint rs | Style | | xis Group | |
| B14 | 4 - | : × √ | f _x | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | 1. |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$5,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | February | \$500.00 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$4,876.00 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | June | \$250.00 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | _ | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | Uctober | \$987.00 | | | | | | | |
| 12 | December | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | |
| 1/ | December | 38,704.00 | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | _ | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | |
| | () · | Sheet1 | | | : 4 | | | | Þ |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | ■ . | | + 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18661



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Sparklines. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.3: Sparklines is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.4: Introduction to More Formatting and Layout

What you'll learn to do: apply conditional formatting and change page layout.

In this section, you will learn how to automatically apply formatting when certain data is entered. You will also learn how to change the page layout and how the Excel workbook looks when it is printed.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to More Formatting and Layout. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.4: Introduction to More Formatting and Layout is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.5: Conditional Formatting

Learning Outcomes

• Create and apply conditional formatting.

As we have learned so far, Excel has a wide variety of easy to use tools for organizing, sorting, and otherwise marking information. Think back to when we applied styles to a cell to indicate good information or information that needs to be verified. Excel also has the ability to automatically apply such markings through conditional formatting.

With conditional formatting, you provide Excel with a rule, such as "less than 10," and the program will scan through your data and highlight all the cells that meet that rule. There are several rules already available, but you can also create and apply your own rules and visual clues.

- 1. Select the cells, rows, or columns you wish to have conditional formatting.
- 2. From the Styles group, click on the Conditional Formatting button
- 3. Select the style of formatting you would like. Here we have Highlight Cell Rules.
- 4. Select the specific type of rule you would like to use and then apply your target value. Here we have selected Less Than.



5. The formatting will appear automatically so you can see what it will look like. Note that Excel will automatically provide a value, but you can manually change it.

6. Hit OK if you wish to apply the formatting. Otherwise, when you leave the formatting menu, it will disappear.



| E | ָה י∂י | | | eet.xlsx - E | | | | o x | | |
|-----|---------------|--------------------------------------|------------------|---|--|--|---|-------------------|---|--------------------|
| F | ile Home | Insert Pag | e Layout | Formulas | Data | Re2 | View F | oxit PDF | Tell me | A Share |
| Pas | ste 💉 🔛 | - 12 - I <u>U</u> - A A - Bont | Align | = E ² = E → ≫ → mment 5 | Currency \$ • % •.0 •.00 Number | , , , , , , , , , , | Inditional Forma India as Fable Il Styles – Styles | atting • Pu | hsert • Pelete • ormat • Cells Edi | Å _Z ▼ • |
| B2 | Ť | | J _x 5 | 000 | | | | | | × . |
| | A 1 | R | С | D | | E | F | G | Н | ▲ |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | January | \$5,000.00 | (| Less Than | | | | | 9 S | 3 |
| 3 | February | \$500.00 | | Cess man | | | | | | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | Format cells | that are LES | S THAN: | | | | |
| 5 | April | \$4,876.00 | | \$1000.00 | | | ★ with U | ight Red Fill wit | h Dark Red Text | - |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | - | | |
| 7 | June | \$250.00 | | | | | | OK | Cancel | |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | L | | | | | _ | | |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | December | \$8,764.00 | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | < > _ | Sheet1 🕘 | | | : | • | | | | |
| Rea | dy | | Average: § | 26,359.25 C | ount: 12 | Sum: \$316,3: | 11.00 | | | + 100% |

One important tool to keep in mind is the ability to enter your own rules. This can include applying formatting to specific date ranges, to specific text (like names), or even cells that are blank. In this case, you also set the format, so instead of highlighting cells you can choose to strikethrough text or change the font, change the size, or bold the text.

| E | - הי בי | | | Mod | ule 6 worksł | neet.xls | x-Ex | cel | | | দ | | ٥ | |
|------|----------------------------|---|--------------------------|-------------------|-------------------------------|----------|--------|---------------------|---------------------------|----|--------------------------------------|-------------------|--------------|------|
| F | ile Home | Insert Pa | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Rev | view | View | Foxit PDF | | 🛛 Tell me | | ∕₽, si | hare |
| Pas | te ≪ Cali | bri • 12 <i>I</i> <u>U</u> • A [*] • $^{\circ}$ • <u>A</u> • | | = ₽ = ± ≫,. | Currency \$ - % €.0 →.0 | 9 | Cor | nditional Fo | rmatting • Cells Rules | | ■ Insert 🔹 S Delete 👻 Format 👻 | ∑ - ↓ - , - | AZT ▼ P ▼ | |
| Clip | board 🕞 | Font | G Alignr | nent 🖓 | Number | Es | 10 | Top/Botto | m Rules | × | Cells | Edit | ing | ^ |
| B2 | Ψ. | : × 🗸 | <i>f</i> _x 50 | 00 | | | | | | - | | | | Ý |
| 1 | Α | В | с | D | | E | | <u>D</u> ata Bars | | | | н | | 1 |
| 1 | Month | Sales Total | | | | _ | | Color Scal | | .[| | | | |
| 2 | January | \$5,000.00 | | | | _ | | Color <u>s</u> ca | es | 1 | | | | _ |
| 3 | February | \$500.00 | | | | _ | | Terra Cata | | | | | _ | |
| 4 | March | \$50,000.00 | | | | _ | | icon sets | | 1 | | | _ | |
| 5 | April | \$4,876.00 | | | | _ | | ew Rule | | | | | _ | |
| 6 | May | \$80,000.00 | | | | | | lear Rules | | | | | _ | _ |
| 7 | June | \$250.00 | | | | | - v⊽ ≥ | Assess Dul | | ÷. | | | | _ |
| 8 | July | \$45,689.00 | | | | _ | | //anage <u>K</u> ui | 25 | | | | _ | _ |
| 9 | August | \$10,000.00 | | , | | | | | | | | | _ | _ |
| 10 | September | \$34,245.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 11 | October | \$987.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | November | \$76,000.00 | | | | | | | | | | | _ | _ |
| 13 | December | \$8,764.00 | | | | | | | | | | | _ | _ |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | - |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| 1 | \leftarrow \rightarrow | Sheet1 (- | ÷ | | | : (| | | | | | |] | |
| Rea | dy | | Average: \$2 | 6,359.25 (| Count: 12 | Sum: \$ | 316,31 | 1.00 | | E | - | 1 | + | 100% |



| New Formatting Rule | ? × |
|--|--------|
| Select a Rule Type: | |
| Format all cells based on their values | |
| Format only cells that contain | |
| Format only top or bottom ranked values | |
| Format only values that are above or below average | |
| ► Format only unique or duplicate values | |
| Use a formula to determine which cells to format | |
| Edit the Rule Description: | |
| Format only cells with: | |
| Specific Text 💌 containing 💌 April | Ť |
| Preview: AaBbCcYyZz <u>Format</u> | |
| ОК | Cancel |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18662

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18663

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Formatting. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.5: Conditional Formatting is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.6: Viewing a Worksheet

Learning Objectives

- Change page layout orientation
- Change margins

Now that we've learned a variety of applications and tips for using Excel, this final section will focus on options for viewing and printing worksheets. There are two important considerations here: the way the page is oriented and the margins. Both can be adjusted with just a few clicks in Excel.

Page Layout Orientation



Just like in Word, by default Excel is set to a portrait orientation (which means it is taller than it is wide). Depending on how many columns your worksheet has though, this may not be the best orientation. The other option is the landscape orientation, where the page prints left to right along the long side of a page.

- 1. Click on the Page Layout tab
- 2. Within the Page Setup group you will find the Orientation dropdown.
- 3. Click the arrow to access the menu and then select the orientation you want. Again, by default Excel is set to portrait, so you will generally use this to switch to landscape.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18664

Margins

Sometimes your worksheet will not quite fit within the standard margins for a printed page. This can occur in portrait or landscape orientation, and the easiest fix could be to print closer to the physical edge of the paper. At other times, for visual reasons you may



want your margins to be a bit larger than normal. In this case your printed worksheet would be farther away from the edge of the paper. This can be helpful if you are making a binder and need to punch holes into the edge of the sheet.

In either case, to change margins in Excel:

- 1. Click on the Page Layout tab
- 2. Within the Page Setup group you will find the Margins dropdown.
- 3. Click the arrow to access the menu and then select the margins you want.
 - By default, the page is at Normal margins.
 - Wide margins will move the printed area away from the edge of the paper.
 - Narrow margins will move the printed area toward the edge of the paper.



You may also set custom margins if you need to.



| ন হ | • @- = | | Mod | ule 6 w | orkshee | t.xlsx - Ex | cel | | ħ | | ٥ | × |
|--------------|--------------|---|--------------------------------------|--|---------------------------|------------------------------|---|--|----------------------------------|-----|-------|------|
| File | Home Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | C | ata | Review | View | Foxit PDF | Q Tell | me | ∕£ Sh | are |
| Aa Themes | | ientation 🔹 💾 E re 🔹 🛛 🗱 E int Area 👻 🎼 F | reaks ≠ lackground rint Titles | С. М С. М С. С. С | dth: A ight: A ale: | utomatic utomatic 100% | F Gridl Gridl | ines Headir ∕iew ☑ Vie Print □ Pri | ngs <mark>100</mark> w Arrang | ge | | |
| Theme | No | ormal | Patta 0.75" | | Scale to | Fit | r⊒ Sh | eet Options | r <u>a</u> | | | ^ |
| B2 | Le | ft: 0.7" eader: 0.3" | Right: 0.7" Footer: 0.3" | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | A | | | | | E | F | | G | н | | |
| 1 Mort | h W | ide p: 1" | Bottom: 1" | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 Janua | iry Le | ft: 1" | Right: 1" | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 3 Febru | ary He | ader: 0.5" | Footer: 0.5" | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 Marc | h Na | arrow | | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 5 Apri | | p: 0.75" | Bottom: 0.75" | | | | | | | | | -11 |
| 7 June | He He | ader: 0.3" | Footer: 0.3" | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 July | | | | _ | | | | | | | | |
| 9 Aug | st Custom I | Margins | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 Septe | mber \$34,24 | 5.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 Octo | Jei \$30 | 7.00 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 Nove | mber \$76,00 | 0.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 13 Dece | mber \$8,76 | 4.00 | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | Sheet1 | + | | | : | 4 | | | | | | Þ |
| Ready | | Average: | \$26,359.25 | Count: | 12 Su | n: \$316,31 | 1.00 | | — – | - 1 | + | 100% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18665

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Viewing a Worksheet. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Portrait vs landscape. Authored by: Sam Beebe. Located at: https://www.flickr.com/photos/sbeebe/8113091175. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

8.6: Viewing a Worksheet is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.7: Introduction to Pivot Tables

What you'll learn to do: Pivot tables

The PivotTable tool allows you to easily reorganize the data in your spreadsheet with out a lot of manual work. Let's take a look at how and why you might use this tool.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Pivot Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.7: Introduction to Pivot Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.8: Pivot Tables

Learning Objectives

• Pivot tables

In Excel, the PivotTable tool creates ways to reorganize data in a spreadsheet. Reorganizing data in this way, brings about additional information and insights that foster better understanding of your data. PivotTables allow you to forgo creating many summary calculations by hand, because a PivotTable does the work for you.

The example below includes a multicolumn table of sales data containing just over a year's worth of information. Looking at the raw data in the table you may be able to pull out a few salient points, but with a pivot table, you can quickly answer questions like:

- What was the largest order by sales or by product quantity?
- What was the grand total sold of furniture for 2019 per region?
- Which sales region had the lowest sales figures?
- What sales representative had the highest total sales?

| , | AutoSave On 💿 | | ≻ (? | ≩ ⇒ № | lodule 8 Adv | anced Excel | Pivot Table | - Saved - | R | Search | | | | | s | ign in | Ŧ | | | |
|-----|---------------|------------------------|------------------|---------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------|--------|-----------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|--------|-----|
| Fi | le Home | Insert | Page La | yout Form | nulas D | ata Re | view Viev | v Help | | | | | | | | (| 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 | Commer | nts |
| Pa | Ste ≪ E | alibri 3 I <u>U</u> | ~ 11 ~ ⊞ ~ | ✓ A [^] A [×] | = = = | = ≫ × €⊒ ₹⊒ | ab C₩ Wrap Te ∰ Merge 8 | xt ℓ Center → | General \$ ~ \$ | % 9 🔝 | • •00. •€ | Conditional F Formatting ~ | ormat as C Table ~ Styl | ell es ~ E | Insert → Delete → Format → | ∑ ~ ↓ ~ � ~ | A Z Sort & Filter ~ 3 | Find & Select ~ | Geas | |
| Cli | pboard 🕠 | | Font | آ <u>م</u> | | Align | ment | 12 | A 12 | lumber | ۲ <u>م</u> | St | yles | | Cells | | Editing | | Ideas | ~ |
| 113 | 7 👻 | : × | $\checkmark f_X$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | с | D | Е | F | G | н | I | J | ŀ | ς L | м | N | 0 | Р | | 0 | R | |
| 1 | Order Date | Region | Rep | Item | Units | Unit Sales | Total | | | | | | | | | | | - | | 77 |
| 2 | 10/26/201 | 8 Central | Wang | Lamps | 21 | 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 11/9/201 | 8 Central | Wang | Binders | 96 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 12/14/201 | 8 East | Foster | Desk | 10 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 1/10/201 | 9 South | Park | Pens | 199 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | 1/11/201 | 9 South | Kim | Chairs | 7 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | 1/30/201 | 9 West | Garcia | Binders | 76 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | 2/22/201 | 9 Central | Wang | Staplers | 22 | 12.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | 3/6/201 | 9 Central | Wang | Paper Clips | 15 | 2.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | 3/11/201 | 9 West | Smith | Paper Clips | 28 | 2.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 3/25/201 | 9 East | Lee | Paper Clips | 59 | 2.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | 4/4/201 | 9 South | Kim | Binders | 3 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | 4/29/201 | 9 East | Jones | Staplers | 7 | 12.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | 5/1/201 | 9 Central | Brown | Pens | 322 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | 5/6/201 | 9 Central | Kahn | Chairs | 15 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | 5/22/201 | 9 Central | Wang | Paper Clips | 44 | 2.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | 5/31/201 | 9 West | Garcia | Binders | 17 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | 6/5/201 | 9 South | Park | Staplers | 36 | 12.99 | | | | Ī | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | 6/12/201 | 9 East | Lee | Pens | 19 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | 6/25/201 | 9 East | Lee | Lamps | 10 | 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | 6/25/201 | 9 Central | Kahn | Desk | 2 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | 7/6/201 | 9 East | Foster | Binders | 51 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | 7/29/201 | 9 South | Kim | Pens | 41 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 24 | 7/30/201 | 9 East | Foster | Lamps | 16 | 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 25 | 8/1/201 | 9 Central | Brown | Chairs | 23 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 26 | 8/13/201 | 9 West | Smith | Desk | 4 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 27 | 8/22/201 | 9 South | Kim | Binders | 33 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 28 | 9/18/201 | 9 Central | Kahn | Pens | 103 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 29 | 9/18/201 | 9 West | Anderson | Desk | 3 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 30 | 9/30/201 | 9 Central | Wang | Chairs | 7 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < > s | Sheet2 | Sheet1 | Sales Orders | (+) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | F |
| | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | # | Ē | _ | - | + 10 | 00% |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18666

Now that you understand that PivotTables can be a powerful assistant with your Excel data, let's look at a few examples and the two main ways to create a PivotTable; the Recommended PivotTable button, or by creating a PivotTable from scratch.

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$



Create by Recommend PivotTables Button

If you are unfamiliar with pivot tables, this process is the recommended option to use until you become more familiar with them. The dialog box displays various options for a given data set, giving you a range of choices so you can select the one best suited for your data analysis.

Follow these steps to use this tool:

- 1. Open an Excel spreadsheet with existing data, click on any cell within the data table and click the Insert tab.
- 2. Click the Recommended PivotTables button in the Tables group. The entire table has been selected, indicated by the dotted line around the border of the data table.
 - 1. Alternative short-cut for data selection if the data set is large: While holding down the Shift + Ctrl keys, tap the right arrow key on your keyboard. Then while still holding down the Shift + Ctrl keys, click the down arrow key on the keyboard. All the data should now be selected in the entire data table.
- 3. In the Recommended Pivot Tables window, a variety of Pivot Tables are available to be selected. Scroll through the options, select one and click OK. In this example, the Sum of Unit Sale by Region is selected.

| , | AutoSav | re On 💿 | F: |) ~ (° - ∶ | ~ | | | Module 8 Adva | nce | d Excel Pivot Ta | ble Data - Saved | • | | | | Si | gn in 💡 | ý 🖻 | - | | × |
|-----|---------|------------------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------|--|----------------------|----------------------------------|------------|------------------|------------------|---------|----------------------|--------------|-----------------------|----|---------|--------|------------------|-------------------|------|
| Fi | le | Home | Insert | Page La | yout Forr | nulas Data | a Review Vi | ew Help | | ♀ Search | | | | | | | | 🖻 Sha | re 🔽 | Comme | nts |
| Piv | otTable | Recomme PivotTa Tables | nded Tables | ble Illustr | ations | iet Add-ins Ny Add-ins 💙 Add-ins | Recommende Charts | | 4 ~ 2 ~ | Maps PivotC | hart 3D Map ~ | Line | Column Sparklines | Win/ Loss | Slicer Tim Filters | | Link Co | omment | A Text | Ω Symbols ~ | |
| A1 | L | • | × | $\sqrt{-f_x}$ | Order Dat | te | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | | А | В | С | D | E | F G | н | I | J | к | L | м | N | 0 | Р | Q | R | | s | TA |
| 1 | Order | Date | Region | Rep | Item | Units U | nit Sale Total | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 1 |)/26/2018 | Central | Wang | Lamps | 21 | 27 | | _ | | | _ | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | 1/9/2018 | Central | Wang | Binders | 96 | Recommended | PivotTables | | | | | 2 | × | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 1 | 2/14/2018 | East | Foster | Desk | 10 | Curr of Unit | Cala hu Danian | | Cum of Unit | Cala by Pagin | | | | 1 | | | | | | |
| 5 | | 1/10/2019 | South | Park | Pens | 199 | Sum or Unit | sale by Region | 'n. | sum or onit | Sale by Region | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | l/11/2019 | South | Kim | Chairs | 7 | Row Labels * | Sum of Unit Cost | | Row Labels | Sum of Unit | t Sale | | | | | | • | | | |
| 7 | | L/30/2019 | West | Garcia | Binders | 76 | East | 366.96 | | Central | 4 | 126.93 | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | 2/22/2019 | Central | Wang | Staplers | 22 | South | 84.93 | Ξ | East | 3 | 366.96 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | 3/6/2019 | Central | Wang | Paper Clips | 15 | West Grand Tatal | 532.97 | | South | | 84.93 | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | 3/11/2019 | West | Smith | Paper Clips | 28 | Grand Total | 1411.79 | | West | 5 | 532.97 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | 3/25/2019 | East | Lee | Paper Clips | 59 | Sum of Un | its by Region | | Grand Total | 14 | \$11.79 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | 4/4/2019 | South | Kim | Binders | 3 | Row Labels | Sum of Units | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | 4/29/2019 | East | Jones | Staplers | 7 | Central | 681 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | 5/1/2019 | Central | Brown | Pens | 322 | South | 465 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | 5/6/2019 | Central | Kahn | Chairs | 15 | West | 128 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | 5/22/2019 | Central | Wang | Paper Clips | 44 | Grand Total | 1448 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | 5/31/2019 | West | Garcia | Binders | 17 | Count of R | ep by Region | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | 6/5/2019 | South | Park | Staplers | 36 | Row Labels | Count of Rep | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | 5/12/2019 | East | Lee | Pens | 19 | Central | 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | 5/25/2019 | East | Lee | Lamps | 10 | East | 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | 5/25/2019 | Central | Kahn | Desk | 2 | West | 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | 7/6/2019 | East | Foster | Binders | 51 | Grand Total | 33 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | 7/29/2019 | South | Kim | Pens | 41 | Sum of Uni | t Sale by Ite | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 24 | | 7/30/2019 | East | Foster | Lamps | 16 | Row Labels | Sum of Unit Cost | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 25 | | 8/1/2019 | Central | Brown | Chairs | 23 | © Central | 426.93 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 26 | | 3/13/2019 | West | Smith | Desk | 4 | Blank PivotTa | ble <u>Change So</u> | urce | <u>: Data</u> | | OK | | ancel | | | | | | | |
| 27 | | 3/22/2019 | South | Kim | Binders | 33 | - | | _ | | | _ | _ | | | | | | | | |
| 28 | | 9/18/2019 | Central | Kahn | Pens | 103 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 29 | 1 | 9/18/2019 | West | Anderson | Desk | 3 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| 30 | | 9/30/2019 | Central | Wang | Chairs | 7 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | < | S | ales Orde | ers Pivot | Tables | (+) | | | | | | : • | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | I | | | | | | Average: 1456 | 57.1696 | Count: 20 | 05 Sum: | 1442149.79 | Ħ | e m | | - | - + 1 | .00% |

Note

If you decide at this point a blank PivotTable is preferable, select the Blank PivotTable button on the bottom left.

4. A new tab is opened containing the information of the selected PivotTable. Notice that the PivotTable will calculate the sum of unit sales per region in the table that was selected even without any of the total cost column filled out in the original data table.



| | AutoSave 🤇 | Dn 🌒 | ほら 、 | | [à ⊽ | Module | 8 Advanced | Excel Pivot T | able S | aved 🗸 | ,∕⊃ Se | arch | | | | | Sign i | | - 🗆 X |
|-----|-------------------|----------------|-------------|---------|--------------|-----------|------------|---------------|--------|-----------------------------|-------------|------------|-------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|-------------|-------------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|
| F | ile Hor | me | Insert | Page L | ayout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Help | PivotTable | Analyze | Design | | | | | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Comments |
| Pir | votTable Rec | comm ivotTa | ended Table | Illust | trations | 🕂 Get Ade | d-ins 🕨 | Recomm | ? | · □ ~ 八 • ▲ ~ ゐ • ⊡ ~ | ° ∰ Maps | PivotChart | 3D Map ~ | Line 1페 Column 1페 Win/Loss | हिए Slice हिए Tim | er eline | C Link | Comment | Λ Ω Text Symbols • • |
| | 1 | Tables | | | | Ad | d-ins | | | Charts | | F3 | Tours | Sparklines | Filte | rs | Links | omments | |
| A | 3 | - | : × • | /f_x | Rov | v Labels | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | | В | | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | м | - | | | |
| 1 | | | | - | - | | | | | | | | | | | | Pivot1 | able Fie | elds 🔻 🗙 |
| 2 | Row Labe | ls 🔻 | Sum of Uni | t Sales | | | | | | | | | | | | | Choose fie to add to | elds ∢⊗ ▼ | Drag fields between areas below: |
| 4 | Central | | | 426.93 | | | | | | | | | | | | | report: | | |
| 5 | East | | | 366.96 | | | | | | | | | | | | | Search | Q | T Filters |
| 6 | South | | | 84.93 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | |
| / | West Crand Tot | al | | 532.97 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | Regio | Date | |
| 9 | Grand Tot | aı | - | 1411.79 | | | | | | | | | | | | | Rep | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 🗌 Item | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Units | | Columns |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ✓ Unit S | ales | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L I otal | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | More Tab | es | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | |
| 1/ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Rows |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Region 🔻 |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 24 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | Σ Values |
| 25 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | Sum of Unit 🔻 |
| 26 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2/ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 30 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | h | | Color O | | | | | | 1 | | | | | ▼ | | | Def Update |
| Rei | ady | S | neét2 SI | leeti | Sales O | raers | (+) | | | | • | | | | | | |] | + 100% |

5. This new PivotTable, summing up the sales, is the first step in rearranging the original data to be able to take a more in-depth analysis of the data. You can stop here or repeat the process and create other recommended tables.

6. If an additional PivotTable is desired, such as sales per sales rep, or sum of unit sales per item and region, return to tab containing the original data, follow the same steps using the **Recommended PivotTables** button, scroll until you see the desired table, and select it. Here are two other examples of PivotTables created from the same data set.

| | A | В | | | | | | | |
|----|--------------|-------------------|----|-------------------|-----------------|--------|-------|--------|-------------|
| 1 | Order Date | (All) | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | Row Labels 🔻 | Sum of Unit Sales | | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
| 4 | Anderson | 255 | 1 | | | | | | |
| 5 | Brown | 36.99 | 2 | | | | | | |
| 6 | Foster | 291.99 | З | Sum of Unit Sales | Column Labels 💌 | | | | |
| 7 | Garcia | 19.98 | 4 | Row Labels 🛛 💌 | Central | East | South | West | Grand Total |
| 8 | Jones | 39.99 | 5 | Binders | 19.98 | 9.99 | 19.98 | 19.98 | 69.93 |
| 9 | Kahn | 291.99 | 6 | Chairs | 96 | | 32 | | 128 |
| 10 | Kim | 56.97 | 7 | Desk | 255 | 255 | | 510 | 1020 |
| 11 | Lee | 34.98 | 8 | Lamps | 27 | 81 | | | 108 |
| 12 | Park | 27.96 | 9 | Paper Clips | 5.98 | 2.99 | | 2.99 | 11.96 |
| 13 | Smith | 257.99 | 10 | Pens | 9.98 | 4.99 | 19.96 | | 34.93 |
| 14 | Wang | 97.95 | 11 | Staplers | 12.99 | 12.99 | 12.99 | | 38.97 |
| 15 | Grand Total | 1411.79 | 12 | Grand Total | 426.93 | 366.96 | 84.93 | 532.97 | 1411.79 |
| 16 | | | 13 | | | | | | |

Create by PivotTables Button

If you are more familiar with pivot tables, or simply wish to create one from the ground up, this button allows you select and reorganize the data however you want to see the data interpreted. Follow these steps to create a PivotTable from scratch.

1. Open an Excel worksheet containing data for the PivotTable tool and select a cell anywhere in the data set.





2. Click the **Insert** tab, and the **PivotTable** button on the ribbon. Excel will automatically select the data it identifies as the information for this table.

| | OTIM | mon | 101 11 | | -• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------|------------------|--------------------|------------------|--------------|-------------|---------------|-----------|----------------------|----------------|----------------|---------------------|---------------|-------------|------------|----------|-------|----------|----------|---------|----|
| | | 2 On • | | | | Module 8 Advi | | | | - 🦻 | O Search | | | | | Sig | n in 🖪 | | | |
| Fi | le | Home | Insert | Page La | ayout For | rmulas D | ata Re | eview Vi | ew Helj | p | | | | | | | ß S | ihare 🔽 | Comment | ts |
| L I | | | 1 1 | | | | | L2 | | ~ ~ ~ / | 6 III | | I II | Line | Slicer | | | | 0 | |
| | ∎ _€ 1 | | ? 8 | | | Get Add-ins | | 1 | | ~ ñà~ ` | ⊈ L | 11 (| | Column | Timeline | l © | · | 1 | 12 | |
| Piv | otTable | Recomme PivotTa | ended Ta bles | able Illustr | v ations | My Add-ins | r 🖪 🛛 🦷 | ecommended Charts | <u>ا</u> - (1) | ~ ~ ^ | Aaps PivotC | Chart | 3D lan Y | Win/Loss | | Link | Commen | Text | Symbols | |
| L | | Tables | 5105 | | | Add-ins | | Charls | Cha | rts | | 5 T | ours | Snarklines | Filters | Links | Comment | | | |
| | | Tables | | | | Add-III3 | | | chu | | | | ours | Sparkines | There | LINKS | connerte | | | |
| A1 | | Ψ. | × | $\sqrt{f_x}$ | Staplers | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | | A | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | L | L M | N | 0 | P | Q | R | |
| 1 | Order | Date | Region | Rep | Item | Units | Unit Sale | Total | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 10 | /26/2018 | 8 Central | Wang | Lamps | 21 | 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | 1 | 1/9/2018 | 8 Central | Wang | Binders | 96 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 12 | /14/2018 | 8 East | Foster | Desk | 10 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 1 | /10/2019 | South | Park | Pens | 199 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | 1 | /11/2019 | South | Kim | Chairs | 7 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | 1 | /30/2019 | West | Garcia | Binders | 76 | 9.99 | | | | | | _ | 9 | × 1 | | | | | |
| 8 | 2 | /22/2019 | 9 Central | Wang | Staplers | 22 | 12.99 | | Create P | ivotTable | | | | C B C | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| 9 | | 3/6/2019 | 9 Central | Wang | Paper Clips | 5 15 | 2.99 | | Choose | the data tha | at vou want t | o analyze | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | 3 | /11/2019 | West | Smith | Paper Clips | 5 28 | 2.99 | | O Se | lect a table o | or range | - | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 3 | /25/2019 | East | Lee | Paper Clips | 59 | 2.99 | | | Table/Rang | e' Salac O | rdarc'ISAS1 | 1.50534 | | • | | | | | |
| 12 | | 4/4/2019 | South | Kim | Binders | 3 | 9.99 | | O 116 | e an externa | I data source | iders (SAS) | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | 4 | /29/2019 | East | Jones | Staplers | 7 | 12.99 | | 0 2, | Charles | in data source | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | 5/1/2019 | entral | Brown | Pens | 322 | 4.99 | | | Choose C | onnection | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | 5/6/2019 | entral | Kahn | Chairs | 15 | 32 | | 0.14 | Connection | n name: | An dal | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | 5 | /22/2019 | entral | Wang | Paper Clips | ; 44 | 2.99 | | 0.02 | e this workb | OUK S Data N | louei | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | 5 | /31/2019 | West | Garcia | Binders | 17 | 9.99 | | Choose | where you v | want the Pivo | otTable rep | ort to be | placed | | | | | | |
| 18 | | 6/5/2019 | South | Park | Staplers | 36 | 12.99 | | <u>◎ N</u> e | w Workshee | et | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | 6 | /12/2019 | East | Lee | Pens | 19 | 4.99 | | © <u>E</u> xi | sting Works | heet | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | 6 | /25/2019 | East | Lee | Lamps | 10 | 27 | | | Location: | | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| 21 | 6 | /25/2019 | entral | Kahn | Desk | 2 | 255 | | Choose | whether yo | u want to an | alyze multi | ple table | 5 | _ | | | | | |
| 22 | | 7/6/2019 | East | Foster | Binders | 51 | 9.99 | | 🗖 Ad | d this data t | o the Data <u>N</u> | <u>l</u> odel | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | 7 | /29/2019 | South | Kim | Pens | 41 | 4.99 | | | | | 0 | OK | Cancel | | | | | | |
| 24 | 7 | /30/2019 | East | Foster | Lamps | 16 | 27 | | | | | | U. | | | | | | | |
| 25 | | 8/1/2019 | Central | Brown | Chairs | 23 | 32 | | <u> </u> | | _ | | | | | | | | | |
| 26 | 8 | /13/2019 | West | Smith | Desk | 4 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 27 | 8 | /22/2019 | South | Kim | Binders | 33 | 9.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 28 | 9 | /18/2019 | Central | Kahn | Pens | 103 | 4.99 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 29 | 9 | /18/2019 | West | Anderson | Desk | 3 | 255 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 30 | 9 | /30/2019 | entral | Wang | Chairs | 7 | 32 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | • • | S | heet2 | Sheet1 | Sheet3 S | ales Orders | + | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | | • |
| Poir | nt | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 巴 | + | - + 100 | 0% |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- 1. If the selected area missed data, start again by clicking on the beginning data table cell, drag the cursor over all the desired data to select. Once the area is selected, click the **PivotTable button** under the **Insert** tab, **Tables** Group.
- 2. Another option to select the correct table data: Click on the PivotTable button and open the **Create PivotTable dialog box**. In the box under the "Choose the data you want to analyze" area, type in the table/range area for the table; for example 'Sales Orders'!\$A\$1:\$G\$4, or drag the cursor over the data area for the table and the range will be added to the Table/Range field.
- 3. After making sure the data selected is correct, select New Worksheet option, and click the OK.
- 4. A new worksheet is created. On the right side of the worksheet, a **PivotTable Fields** task pane is open. In it are four areas (Filters, Columns, Rows, and Values) where various field names can be placed to create a PivotTable. The task pane also



| merud | AutoSave 💿 🗒 ヴィ 🖓 暮 マ Module 8 Advanced Excel Pivot Table Data - Saving・ Sign in 🦉 団 - ロ X | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|----------------------------|---------------------------|---|------------------------------------|---|-----------|-------------------------------|-----------------|---------|--|-----------|-----------|------------------------|---|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| AutoSav | ve On 🔍 | 躍 り · (| ~ [] → | | | | Module 8 Ad | vanced Ex | cel Pivot Tat | ole Data - S | aving · | • | | | Sig | nin 🖉 | Ē | - 0 × |
| File | Home | nsert P | age Layout | Formula | s Data | Review | View | Help | PivotTab | le Analyze | Des | sign 🔎 | Search | | | | 🖻 Share | Comments |
| PivotTable | Active Fie | d: Dri Settings Dov Active Fiel | vn Up ~ +≣ III Drill -≣ | → Grou 値 Ung ⑦ Grou | up Selection roup up Field iroup | ि Insert टि Insert सि Filter | Slicer Timeline Connections Filter | Refre | sh Change I Source Data |) Data Actio | ons | 浸 Fields, Items, え OLAP Tools ~ 畳 Relationships Calculation | 8. Sets ~ | PivotChar | t Reco Piv Tools | mmended otTables | Field | List Juttons Headers ow |
| A18 | • | $\times \checkmark$ | f_{x} | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | ~ |
| A 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 field 8 9 11 1 1 | PivotTal build a repo ds from the Field L | C ole30 ort, choose PivotTable ist | D | E | F | G | H | I | J | К | | M | N | 0 | | PivotT Choose fiel Search Order D Region Rep Item Units Units Sal Unit Sal | able Fi ds to add to late | elds |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | More Table Drag fields T Filters | between a | reas below: III Columns |
| 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Rows | | Σ Values |
| | She | et2 Shee | t3 Sheet4 | Sales O | Orders | (+) | | | • | | | | | Þ | | Defer L | ayout Upda | te Update |
| Ready | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | + 100% |

includes a checklist area of the fields from which to choose from the data.

- 5. Drag one field name into different areas to create a PivotTable. Alternatively, you can check the boxes for fields to be added to the table. Each of the areas operate in the following manner in a PivotTable:
 - 1. **Columns:** The filed used to measure and compare data.
 - 2. **Rows:** The field for data you want to analyze.
 - 3. Values: The field containing the values a table uses for comparisons.
 - 4. **Filter (optional):** A field used to sort table data. It is displayed in the upper left corner of a table and is an optional field for tables.



| | AutoSav | e On C | | 5 5 | · (' 🕻 | \$ - | Modu | ile 8 Advai | nced Excel Pivot | t Table Save | sd v | 🔎 Sear | ch | | | | | Sign in | æ | - 0 | |
|--------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|----------------------------|---|--|---|-----------------|---------------------------|--|-----|---|----------|------------|---|---------------------------|---|----------|
| | File | Home | In | sert | Page Layo | out F | ormula | s Da | ta Review | View H | elp | PivotTable A | nalyze Design | | | | | | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Comn | ments |
| Pi | votTable | Active Sum | e Field: of Uni ield Se | t Sales ttings Active | Drill Drill Down Up v |) += -= | → Gron @目 Ung ⑦ Gron | up Selectio proup up Field Group | on 💽 Inser 🕞 Inser | rt Slicer rt Timeline r Connections Filter | Refres | h Change Data Source ~ | Clear ~ Select ~ Move PivotTa Actions | ble | Fields, Items, Cr OLAP Tools ~ Relationships Calculation | & Sets ~ | PivotChart | Recommended PivotTables Tools | ≣ Fi ₽= +) ■ Fi | eld List 7- Buttons eld Headers Show | ^ |
| E P | 19 | - | | × | √ fr | 5.98 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | Sum of Row La Binder Chairs Desk Lamps | A f Unit S abels s | ales | Colum Centra | B I 19.98 96 255 27 5 98 | C East 3 9.99 5 255 7 81 | D South 19.98 32 | E West 19.98 510 | F Grand Total 69.93 128 1020 108 11.95 | G | | Н | I | | L | | K • | PivotTal Choose fields Search Order Dat Region Rep V Item | ole Fie to add to e | elds 🔻 | × ∲ ▼ |
| 9 | Paper (Pens | Clips | l | | 9.98 | 3 2.99 3 4.99 | 19.96 | 2.99 | 11.96 34.93 | | | | | | | | | Units | c. | | * |
| 12 | Grand | rs Total | | | 426.99 | 366.96 | 84.93 | 532 97 | 38.97 | | | | | | | | | Total | | | |
| 13 | | rotar | | | 420.55 | 500.50 | 04.55 | 552.57 | 1411.75 | | | | | | | | | Quarters | | | |
| 14 15 16 17 18 | 4 5 7 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Years More Tables. | | | |
| 19 |) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Drag fields b | etween are | as below: | |
| 20 21 |) L | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | T Filters | | Columns | |
| 22 | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 million | | Region | Ŧ |
| 23 24 25 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 26 | 7 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 28 | 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Rows | | Σ Values | |
| 29 |) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Item | Ŧ | Sum of Unit S | al 🔻 |
| 30 31 32 33 34 |) L 2 3 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 35 | < > | | Sheet | 2 S | heet1 S | heet3 | Sheet4 | She | et5 Sales C | Orders (4 | Ð | : 4 | | | | | • • | Defer Lay | out Updat | | Update |

6. The PivotTable in the screenshot above is created based on the sales data of these fields added to these areas:

- 1. Columns: Region
- 2. Rows: Item
- 3. Values: Sum of Unit Sales
- 7. Rearrange fields in a variety of ways by dragging them into a new area or clicking the option in the list of fields above the areas. Each action will affect the PivotTable. Move fields around into new areas until you have created a table giving you the best insight into your data. Congratulations! You have created a PivotTable from scratch.

Note

You may run into scenarios where a data field is dragged into an area that does not work well. Simply drag the field into another area and quickly see whether that field in the new area works better. Excel made the PivotTable tool flexible so you can easily change the structure of fields and areas if you make a misstep along the way.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18667

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Pivot Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.8: Pivot Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.9: Introduction to Macros

What you'll learn to do: Use macros to complete actions in Microsoft Excel

In the workplace, people often find themselves completing repetitive tasks: completing the same calculations on different numbers, counting wins versus losses, etc. In Excel, you can create macros, programs that can automate these repetitive tasks.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Macros. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.9: Introduction to Macros is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.10: Macros

Learning Objectives

• Use macros to complete actions in Microsoft Excel

Macros are programs used to automate frequently used processes or tasks in Excel. A macro records operations and re-uses the sequence of mouse actions or keystrokes of anything you can do in Excel with keystrokes or a mouse. Some of those actions include; cleaning up data, formatting cells, creating tables or organizing data in an Excel spreadsheet. If you have done repetitive tasks with a spreadsheet before, you may already have discovered macros. If you have not discovered them, learn this advanced Excel tool to speed up your efficiency and save time.

First, watch the following video which gives an overall example of how to program a macro in order to change the formatting on a sales report. After the video, we'll walk through a macro step by step and highlight a few of the commonly used actions to be program into a macro.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.



Macro Recording Locations

A macro has three main ways to be recorded. Two are from the ribbon area and one is not. Experiment and find your favorite way to record it.

How to record a macro:

1. From the **View** tab, click the **Macros** button, and then the **Record Macro** button.



2. The video demonstrates how to make the developer tab appear in the menu. Here are the steps to follow:




• Go to File, Options, Customize Ribbon, then check the Developer check box and click OK.

| el Options | | | | | |
|----------------------|--------------------------|----------|-------------------|----------------------------------|-----------|
| General | Customize the Ribbon. | | | | |
| Formulas | Chaose commands from (1) | | | Curtomize the Pibbon | |
| Data | Choose commands from: | | | Main Tabs | - |
| Proofing | Populai Commanus | | | Main Tabs | L |
| Save | Cut | | | Main Tabs | |
| anguage | A Decrease Font Size | | | ■ V Home | |
| | Delete Sheet Columns | | | E 🗸 Insert | |
| ase of Access | × Delete Sheet Rows | | | E Draw | |
| dvanced | Email | | | Page Lavout | |
| Contanaire Dibbar | Fill Color | 4 | | | |
| ustomize Kibbon | A Font Color | 1, V | | 🗄 🔽 Data | |
| Quick Access Toolbar | Font Size | Î | | E Review | |
| da tes | Format Cells | | | T View | |
| ada-ins | 💞 Format Painter | | | H Developer | |
| rust Center | Freeze Panes | | << bbA | | |
| | A Increase Font Size | | | | |
| | fx Insert Cells | | << <u>R</u> emove | E Hele | ~ |
| | Jac Insert Picture | | | E Community | |
| | Insert Sheet Columns | | | a community | |
| | Insert Sheet Rows | | | | |
| | Insert Table | | | | |
| | Macros | | | | |
| | Merge & Center | | | | |
| | Kini Name Manager | | | | |
| | C Open | | | | |
| | Page Setup | | | New Tab New Group Barry | - |
| | Paste | | | Nenaj | <u></u> e |
| | Paste | F | | Customizations: Reset = ③ | |
| | Paste Special | | | Import/Export V | |
| | II.J PivotTable | • | | import/export + | |
| | | | | 01 | |
| | | | | OK | Cancel |

• Going back to the main menu, the **Developer tab** is now visible. Click on it, and go to the **Code** group, and select the **Record Macro** button.



3. The last main recording area is for the Macros button is at bottom left of spreadsheet window. Click on the button and a Macro dialog box opens to be filled out to begin recording.





| Au | toSave 🤇 | | | l∳ ÷ | Book1 - Excel | ♀ Search | | | | | Sign in | Ŧ | - 🗆 | |
|----------------|----------|-------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|---|--|------------------------|----------|------------|--------------|---------|-----|--------|
| File | Но | me Inse | ert Page | Layout Formula | as Data Revie | w View Develope | er Help | | | | | 🖻 Share | Con | ments |
| Visua Basio | Macros | E Record Use Re Macro Code | l Macro lative Reference Security | es Add- Excel ins Add-ir Add-ir | COM Insert I s Add-ins | E Properties Cosign Niew Code Mode Run Dialog Controls | Map Properties Expansion Packs Refresh Data XML | कि Import कि Export | | | | | | ^ |
| K34 | | - : : | × | 630 | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | Δ | в | D | F | F | 6 | н | т | | К | | м | N | 0 |
| 1 | <u>^</u> | | 0 | L | | 0 | | • | | IX. | - | 141 | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| з | | Order ID | Order Date | Customer Name | Salesperson | Product Name | Category | Unit Price | Quantity | Revenue | Shipping Fee | | | |
| 49 | | 2047 | 03/01/20 | Company CC | Jeniffer Annista | Fruit Cocktail | Fruit & Veg | 39 | 26 | \$1,014.00 | \$106.47 | | | |
| 50 | | 2048 | 02/06/20 | Company F | Andrew Coulter | Dried Pears | Dried Fruit & Nuts | 30 | 96 | \$2,880.00 | \$296.64 | | | |
| 51 | | 2049 | 02/06/20 | Company F | Andrew Coulter | Dried Apples | Dried Fruit & Nuts | 53 | 16 | \$848.00 | \$88.19 | | | |
| 52 | | 2050 | 02/04/20 | Company D | Jose Sanchez | Gnocchi | Pasta | 38 | 96 | \$3,648.00 | \$346.56 | | | |
| 53 | | 2051 | 02/03/20 | Company C | Cassandra Jenkins | s Herbal Tea | Beverages | 2.99 | 75 | \$224.25 | \$23.10 | | | |
| 54 | | 2052 | 03/09/20 | Company I | Bob Zeponi | Spagetti | Pasta | 19.5 | 55 | \$1,072.50 | \$108.32 | | | |
| 55 | | 2053 | 03/09/20 | Company I | Bob Zeponi | Parmesan | Dairy Products | \$34.80 | 11 | \$382.80 | \$36.75 | | | |
| 56 | | 2054 | 03/06/20 | Company F | Andrew Coulter | Coffee | Beverages | \$14.00 | 53 | \$742.00 | \$71.97 | | | |
| 57 | | 2055 | 03/08/20 | Company H | Claudia Tadeo | Ketchup | Sauces | \$40.00 | 85 | \$3,400.00 | \$357.00 | | | |
| 58 | | 2056 | 03/08/20 | Company H | Claudia Tadeo | Buttermilk Biscuits Mix | Baked Goods & Mixes | \$9.20 | 97 | \$892.40 | \$91.02 | | | |
| 59 | | 2057 | 03/25/20 | Company Y | Xai Bing | Scones | Baked Goods & Mixes | \$10.00 | 46 | \$460.00 | \$46.46 | | | |
| 60 | | 2058 | 03/26/20 | Company Z | Bonnie Hipnal | Olive Oil | Oil | \$21.35 | 97 | \$2,070.95 | \$196.74 | | | |
| 61 | | 2059 | 03/26/20 | Company Z | Bonnie Hipnal | Tomato Soup | Soups | \$9.65 | 97 | \$936.05 | \$95.48 | | | |
| 62 | | 2060 | 03/26/20 | Company Z | Bonnie Hipnal | Lobster Meat | Canned Meat | \$18.40 | 65 | \$1,196.00 | \$123.19 | | | |
| 63 | | 2061 | 03/29/20 | Company CC | Jeniffer Annista | Coffee | Beverages | \$14.00 | 72 | \$1,008.00 | \$100.80 | | | |
| 64 | | 2062 | 03/06/20 | Company F | Andrew Coulter | Chocolate | Candy | \$12.75 | 16 | \$204.00 | \$20.20 | | | |
| 65 | | 2064 | 03/04/20 | Company D | Jose Sanchez | Apricot Jam | Jams, Preserves | \$81.00 | 77 | \$6,237.00 | \$642.41 | | | |
| 66 | | 2065 | 03/04/20 | Company D | Jose Sanchez | Long Grain Rice | Grains | 7 | 37 | \$259.00 | \$24.61 | | | |
| 67 | | 2067 | 03/08/20 | Company H | Claudia Tadeo | Parmesan | Dairy Products | 34.8 | 63 | \$2,192.40 | \$217.05 | | | |
| 68 | | 2070 | 03/03/20 | Company C | Cassandra Jenkins | s Maple Syrup | Condiments | 10 | 48 | \$480.00 | \$48.00 | | | |
| 69 | | 2071 | 03/03/20 | Company C | Cassandra Jenkins | s Ketchup | Sauces | 40 | 71 | \$2,840.00 | \$295.36 | | | |
| 70 | | 2075 | 03/10/20 | Company J | Xai Bing | Walnuts | Dried Fruit & Nuts | 10 | 55 | \$550.00 | \$55.00 | | | |
| 71 | | 2077 | 03/10/20 | Company J | Xai Bing | Dried Apricots | Dried Fruit & Nuts | 3.5 | 21 | \$73.50 | \$7.35 | | | |
| 72 | | 2078 | 03/11/20 | Company K | Bonnie Hipnal | Ketchup | Sauces | 40 | 67 | \$2,680.00 | \$270.68 | | | |
| 73 | | 2079 | 03/01/20 | Company A | Claudia Tadeo | Lobster Meat | Canned Meat | 18.4 | 75 | \$1,380.00 | \$138.00 | | | |
| 74 | | 2080 | 03/28/20 | Company BB | Bonnie Hipnal | Coffee | Beverages | 46 | 17 | \$782.00 | \$80.55 | | | - |
| 4 | - | Sheet1 | Sheet6 | (+) | | | | 1 | | | | | | Þ |
| Ready | E | | | | | | | | | E | | - | 1 | - 100% |
| | No m | acros are cu | rrently recordir | ng. Click to begin rec | ording a new macro. | | | | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18669

Macros are recorded in a program called Visual Basic. To edit a macro, the developer tab needed to access the Visual Basic program. We will not be diving into Visual Basic this time as an entire course all on its own. For now we will stay with the macro recording basics.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Macros. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Using Macros | Excel 2016. **Provided by**: Burn to Learn. **Located at**: https://youtu.be/W_PEdMArF0k. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

8.10: Macros is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.11: Recording a Macro

Learning Objectives

- Use a macro to add a filter to column headers
- Use a macro to remove duplicates
- Use a macro to select blank rows

In business, you may have spreadsheets filled with data from different departments, divisions or even other companies requiring updating, reformatting or cleaning up on a regular basis. There are a few macros examples that help make this repetitive work easier.

These next spreadsheet actions are created from the **View** > **Macros** > **Record** macro path.

Adding Filters to Column Headers

Each quarter you receive a spreadsheet filled with information. To make it easier to sort data you'd like to add filters to each new spreadsheet. Here are the steps to follow to make a macro for this:

- Open worksheet > View > Macros > Record Macro
- In **Record Macro** dialogue box;
 - Type in macro name with no spaces or by using _ to connect words (e.g. Filter_Macro).
 - Create a shortcut key (optional). If you do choose one, make sure it isn't Ctrl + C, Ctrl + V, or other already existing shortcut keys.
 - Decide where to store the macro recording.
 - Add a description (optional) to help identify the functions done by the macro and click **OK**. The macro is now recording.
- Highlight the entire row of column headers > **Data** tab > **Filter** button.
- Go back to View > Macros > Stop Recording. This macro is now available to use on the next set of data needing filters added.
- **Run macro:** To run the macro on the new set of data open the data, go to **View** > **Macros** > **View Macros**. A dialog box will open then select the macro for adding filters and click **Run**.

Watch this short video to see these tasks done in sequence and used on a fresh data set.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18670 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18671

Remove Duplicates

Spreadsheet data is often filled with duplicate information and needs to be sorted through in order to be useful. For this example, a single list of the salespeople is needed from the large data set. To start recording the macro, follow the order in the example for recording above, then follow these steps:

- Highlight the column containing the Salesperson names. Right click > copy OR use **Ctrl + C**
- Open a **new tab** > select a cell > right click and paste OR **Ctrl** + **V**
- Click **Data** tab > **Remove Duplicates** button
- Go back to View > Macros > Stop Recording. This macro is now available to use on the next set of data needing duplicates reduced.
- **Run macro:** To run the macro on the new set of data open the data then go to **View** > **Macros** > **View Macros**. A dialog box will open, select the macro for removing duplicates and click **Run**.

Watch the short video to see these tasks done sequence and used on a fresh data set.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.



Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18672

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18673

Selecting Blank Rows

Many times, a worksheet or data set is filled with blank rows that can stop a successful analysis of the data or cause errors in formulas. In order to clean up a data set with a macro, follow these steps.

Like with the other functions, open the spreadsheet and set up a macro for recording. An alternative way to quickly record is to select the record button at the bottom left corner of the Excel window to start.

- Create a **new column** > label it **Empty** (or another name). Make sure it has a filter added in the header.
- In the first cell, type in the function that counts how many values are in the list of arguments, that function is = **COUNTA(B4:G4)** your table range and press the **Enter** key.
- With the H4 cell highlighted, pull the corner down the entire column covering all the rows.
- Click filter arrow in "Empty" header and deselect "All" the select "0" and press OK.
- Select all the rows that are "0" > right click delete
- Click filter arrow in "Empty" header, then select Clear filter from "Empty" and data rows appear with no empty rows.
- Go back to **View, Macros** and **Stop Recording**. Alternatively, click the little square in the bottom left corner to stop the recording. This macro is now available to use on the next set of data needing duplicates reduced.
- **Run macro:** To run the macro on the new set of data open the data, go to **View** > **Macros** > **View Macros**. A dialog box will open, select the macro for selecting blank rows and click **Run**.

Watch the short video to see these tasks done in sequence and used on a fresh data set.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18674

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18675

Note

Unlike other actions, running a macro cannot be reversed with the Ctrl + Z (Cmnd+Z) short-cut or the Undo arrow so make sure you have a copy of the original data worksheet before running a macro for the first time.

Macros take a little practice to get used to, but once you use them more frequently, you will see the variety of things that a macro can accomplish. Remember, a macro allows you to record operations and re-use the sequence of mouse actions or keystrokes of anything you can do in Excel with keystrokes or a mouse. Start using them and see how far you can go.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Recording a Macro. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.11: Recording a Macro is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.12: Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas

What you'll learn to do: Use functions and formulas

We've already learned some basic functions and formulas in Excel; however, there are more powerful and complex functions that Excel can do. In this section, we'll take a look at some of these more complex functions.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY: Attribution*

8.12: Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.13: What is a Function?

Learning Outcomes

• Define functions in Microsoft Excel

A function is a preexisting formula in Excel that does calculations based on specific values. In previous modules, you learned a few Excel functions: COUNTIF, IF, and SUM. Excel offers hundreds of functions from broadly used to highly specialized. For now, we will focus on financial, logical and look-up functions and formulas.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18676

A few general tips to remember about functions and formulas:

- Functions begin with an equal sign. Excel will begin suggesting functions as soon as you begin typing the equal sign.
- Functions take one or more arguments, with cell references or numbers, enclosed in parentheses.
 - When a function needs more than one argument, enter a comma between the arguments without a space and close the formula inside of parentheses.
 - There are multiple ways to enter functions in Excel; type in the formula bar under the ribbon (1), clicking on the fx button by the formula bar (2), select a cell and type = (3), select the Formulas tab Insert Function button (4) or select a specific function based on a category in the Formulas tab (5).



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18677

These next functions and formulas build out your skills in Excel and assist you with business, science, statistics and many other types of data analysis. Let's get started.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• What is a Function?. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





8.13: What is a Function? is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.14: Lookup Functions and Formulas

Learning Objectives

• Use lookup functions and formulas

Lookup functions in Excel are used for looking through a single column or row to find a particular value from the same place in a second column or row. This often takes place when there are multiple worksheets within a workbook or a large amount of data in a worksheet. Lookup functions are very helpful with large sets of data to find specific information across many rows or columns.

VLOOKUP (Vertical Lookup)

Looks for a value in the leftmost column of a table and returns a value in the same row from the vertical column you define. The lookup value must always be in the leftmost column of the table.

The Excel formula is written =VLOOKUP(lookup_value,table_array,col_index_num,[range_lookup])

This table includes the sales totals for salespeople. In this case you want to find out what the sales were for certain salespeople. This is a small example but imagine a long list of names and numbers to search through. Using the VLOOKUP function quickly brings you the results you want. Be sure to use F4 to create the absolute references and keep the table array the same for each lookup. Also make sure and make the col_index_num use the second column in the table (column 2 in the table) with a return for the range_lookup as FALSE. By using FALSE in all cases, there is no need to sort your tables into ascending order. Here is what those results look like.

| IF | | | • | 2 | × | ~ | f_{x} | =VI | LOOKI | JP(A5,\$E | 5:\$F\$1 | L6,2,F/ | ALSE) | |
|----|---|--|------------------------------|----------|------------|--------|---|-------------------|----------|---|----------|--|--------------|-----------|
| | ۵ | | В | | C | 2 | D | | E | : | F | G | | н |
| 1 | VLOC | KUP | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | Value | 2 | | | Retu | rns | | | Name | e Sale | s | | | |
| 5 | Corta | ina | | | =VLO | OKUF | (A5, | SE\$5: | \$F\$16 | ,2,FALSE) | | | | |
| 6 | Drago | D | | | VLC | ооки | P(look | up_va | alue, ta | ble_array, o | ol_inde | x_num | , [range | _lookup]) |
| 7 | Sara | | | | | | | | Corta | na | 798 | | | |
| 8 | Evi | | | | | | | | Robir | 1 I | 541 | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | | | | Drage | D | 483 | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | Smar | ti | 661 | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | Voku | I | 178 | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | Tolt | | 275 | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | Evi | | 888 | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | Jeanr | nie | 321 | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | Sara | | 654 | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | Donn | a | 987 | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | CS | 5 | | Ŧ | | × | ~ | f_{x} | =VI | LOOKUP(| 45,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 | .6,2,FA | LSE) |
| | C5 | 5 | A | - | : : | × | √ c | f _x | =VI D | LOOKUP(| 45,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F | .6,2,FA G | LSE) |
| | C5 | VLO | A OKUP | • | B | × (| √ c | f _x | =VI D | LOOKUP(/ | 45,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F | .6,2,FA G | LSE) |
| | C5 | VLO | A OKUP | ▼ | B | × (| √ c | f _x | =VI D | LOOKUP() | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F | l6,2,FA G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 | vlo | A OKUP | • | B | × (| √ c | f _x | =VI D | EOOKUP(| A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F | l6,2,FA G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 | VLO Valu | A OKUP Ie | • | B | Retu | ✓ C | f _x | D | E Name | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 | VLO Valu Cort | A OKUP Ie ana | • | B | Retu | C rns 798 | f _x | D | E Name Siri | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 | VLO Valu Corta | A OKUP le ana ;o | • | B | Retu | rns 798 483 | f _x | D | E Name Siri Alexa | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 | VLO Valu Corta Drag Sara | A OKUP le ana ;o | • | B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 | f _x | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | VLO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP Ie ana Io | | B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | fx | D D | EOOKUP() E Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | VLO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP e ana ;o | | B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | <i>f</i> × | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 | G | LSE) |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | VLO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP ana ;o | | B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | fx | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 661 | G | |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 | VLOO Valu Cort: Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP e ana o | • | B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | <i>f</i> * | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti Vokul | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 661 178 | .6,2,FA G | |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 | VLO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP ana o | | : ;; B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | <i>fx</i> | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti Vokul Tolt | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 661 178 275 | .6,2,FA G | |
| | CS 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 | VLOO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP ee ana o | | : ; B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 8888 | <i>fx</i> | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti Vokul Tolt Evi | Sale: | 5:\$F\$1 933 362 798 541 483 661 178 275 888 | .6,2,FA G | |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11 12 13 14 | VLO Valu Corti Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP ee ana o | | : ;; | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | <i>f</i> . | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti Vokul Tolt Evi Jeannie | Sale: | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 661 178 275 888 321 | G.6,2,FA | |
| | C5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 | VLOO Valu Corta Drag Sara Evi | A OKUP ee ana to | | :: ;; B | Retu | rns 798 483 654 888 | f <i>x</i> | D | Name Siri Alexa Cortana Robin Drago Smarti Vokul Tolt Evi Jeannie Sara | A5,\$E\$ | 5:\$F\$1 F 933 362 798 541 483 661 178 275 888 321 654 | G G | |

For another VLOOKUP example, watch this video of how to use this function to find parts that are in stock and the supplier for particular parts.





A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

HLOOKUP (Horizontal Lookup)

Looks for a value in the topmost row of a table and returns a value in the same row from the horizontal column you define. The lookup value must always be in the leftmost column of the table.

The Excel formula is written =HLOOKUP(lookup_value,table_array,row_index_num,[range_lookup])

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

MATCH and INDEX Functions

Now we'll learn two additional lookup functions, Match and Index. Watch this video to learn how to use Match and Index lookup functions. Here are the descriptions and formulas for creating them in Excel.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

- MATCH Function that returns a position of a value in a range which can be a row, column or table. The Excel formula is written =**MATCH(lookup_value,lookup_array,[match_type])**
- INDEX Function that returns a position of a value in a range which looks at the intersection of a column and row position in a table. The Excel formula is written **=INDEX(reference,row_num,[column_num],[area_num])**

As you become more familiar with lookup functions, try out a few more by selecting the Formulas tab, Lookup & Reference button and see what others are available for you to try.



PRactice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18678

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18679



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Look-up Functions and Formulas. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.14: Lookup Functions and Formulas is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.15: Logical Functions and Formulas

Learning Objectives

• Use logical functions and formulas

Excel logic functions evaluate whether the statement and data are considered true or false according to how the formula is established. We will cover the top used Excel logical functions in this section. Exactly like the financial functions, you can use the Formulas tab as before to insert the function or you can begin by typing an equal sign in a cell.

Nested IF

Taking an IF function and adding more than one logic test inside the IF function. In other words, start with and IF function and add another IF function inside the original IF function. A Nested IF formula looks like this: **=IF(logical_test,[value_if_true], [value_if_false],IF(logical_test,[value_if_true], [value_if_false]))**

Previously, you learned how to use the IF function as a logical way to test your data. Let's consider that we want to see two variables run at once to create a logical outcome. We'll now look at Regional Sales for five salespeople over a year and see if they meet the requirements for an annual commission and what the commission amount would be.

Note

Two shortcuts for locking down a cell to make it absolute instead of relative. You'll need to know these to work faster through creating formulas.

- Short cut key F4 automatically adds in \$ to a cell location information to lock it down and make it absolute to stop it from changing as it is dragged into other cells or ranges (e.g. \$D\$3).
- Name Range locks down a cell like \$. To create a Name Range, highlight the cell, click on the Formulas tab, Define Name button. After the dialog box opens, name the location (no spaces) to make it unique for navigation or for formulas (e.g. Commission_Rate).

With a sales spreadsheet open, look at the tiered commission structure. There are two possibilities to earn commission. A Nested IF function is a perfect formula to calculate which salesperson receives how much commission.

Follow these steps to create a Nested IF function:

1. First let's define names for the two types of commissions as this will make it easier to distinguish in the formula. Select the 20% cell and click on the Formula tab, Define Name button and name it Commission_Rate_20. Follow the same steps to name the 10% commission cell too.



| | AutoSave 🤇 | on • 🕞 | 5.6 | ~ [≩ - | | Module 8_Sta | atistical Functio | ns E | amples - Sav | red 🝷 | Q |
|---|---|--|--|--|---|--|---|---------------------------|--|--|--|
| F | ile Ho | me Inse | ert Pag | ie Layout | Formula | s Data | Review | Vie | w Develo | oper He | lp |
| | for SA | utoSum ~ | ? Log | ical ~ | Q ~ | / | efine Name 👻 | | | Precedents | 1/x |
| | $\int x = \frac{1}{ \mathbf{x} _{\mathbf{R}}}$ | ecently User | I ~ A Text | ~ | 0 ~ | | Define Name | | | Dependents | <u>^</u> ~ |
| I | nsert 🔲 🗖 | increasing ober | | 0. T | | Name 🔍 | Define Name | • | | . Dependents | |
| Fu | nction 🗎 F | inanciai * | | e ol Time Y | | anager | Apply Names. | | ↓ × Kemo | ove Arrows | |
| | | Functi | on Library | | | Denr | ieu ivames | | | Formula A | uditing |
| J3 | | • : : | X 🗸 | <i>f</i> _x 109 | 6 | | | | | | |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commissio | n Rate |
| 2 | - | | | | | | | | \$2.000.00 | | 20% |
| 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | | 10% |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1.840.00 | | - | | | ė |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | | | | | |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | | | |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | | | |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | | | |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 44 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 6.0 | . n. – | | Madula 9 St | stictical Europtics | ne Er | complex Cou | | 0 |
| | A LIKE ALLE | | | · I - · | | IVIOOUIE o SL | alistical functio | | | /ea 🕈 | |
| | AutoSave | US US | | | | | | | umpies out | | |
| F | AutoSave ile Ho | me Inse | ert Pag | le Layout | Formula | s Data | Review | Vie | w Develo | oper He | lp |
| F | AutoSave | me Inse | ert Pag | le Layout | Formula | s Data | Review | Vie | w Develo | oper He | lp Æ |
| F | ile Ho $f_X \sum_{i=1}^{N} P_i$ | me Inse AutoSum ~ | ert Pag | ical ~ | Formula | s Data | Review efine Name 👻 | Vie | w Develo | oper He Precedents | lp Vfx |
| F | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \sum P$ nsert \square | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Used | ert Pag ② Log J ~ ▲ Text | te Layout ical ∽ | Formula | s Data | Review efine Name 💉 se in Formula 🛩 | Vie | w Develo 문 _의 Trace | oper He Precedents Dependents | lp Øx |
| F I Fu | AutoSave ile Ho $f_x \sum P$ nsert nction \square F | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Used | ert Pag ? Log I ~ A Text O Date | tæ ical ∽ t∽ e & Time ∽ | Formula Q ~ 0 ~ 1 M | sData | Review efine Name 👻 se in Formula Y reate from Selec | Vie tion | w Develo La Trace | oper He Precedents Dependents ove Arrows | lp √x |
| F I Fu | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \sum P$ nsert \square F | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Used inancial ~ Functi | ert Pag 2 Log d ~ A Text 0 Date on Library | L⊖ ical ~ t ~ e & Time ~ | Formula | s Data | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names | Vie | w Develo En Trace | oper He Precedents Dependents ove Arrows Formula A | lp √x ▲ ~ ~ (b) wuditing |
| F I Fu | AutoSave ile Ho $\int x \sum A$ nsert nction \Box F | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Used inancial ~ Functi | ert Pag 2 Log d ~ A Text O Date on Library | le Layout ical ~ t ~ e & Time ~ | Formula | s Data Data Data Data Data Data Defin | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names | Vie | w Develo E ₂ Trace Trace | oper He e Precedents e Dependents ove Arrows Formula A | lp f_{X} M ~ M ~ wulling |
| F I Fu | AutoSave (ile Ho $f_X \sum A$ nsert $\square R$ nction $\square F$ | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Usec inancial ~ Functi ~ : 2 | ert Pag Log A Text Date on Library | le Layout ical ~ : ~ & Time ~ f_~ 209 | Formula Q ~ D ~ M M M | s Data | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Seleco ned Names | Vie | w Develo Be Trace Trace | oper He Precedents Dependents ove Arrows Formula A | lp ∫ _x |
| F I Fu | AutoSave ($f_x \sum A$ $f_x \equiv R$ nction $\square R$ pommissi | me Inse autoSum ~ lecently Used inancial ~ Functi T : | ert Pag Log M Text Data on Library C | te Layout ical ∽ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ t ~ | Formula C ~ C ~ M M K E | s Data Data D D Canager C C Defir | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G | Vie tion | W Develo Bentrace Bentrace Remo | oper He Precedents Dependents ove Arrows Formula A | lp √x |
| F I Fu Cu | Autosave $f_{X} \sum A$ $f_{X} \sum A$ nsert $f_{X} = F$ nction f_{X} F nction f_{X} F A Region | me Inse AutoSum ~ Recently Used inancial ~ Functi T : 2 B B | ert Pag C Log C C | Je Layout ical ~ t ~ e & Time ~ f 209 | Formula © ~ © ~ M M % E | s Data Name anager 😨 C Defir | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G | Vie tion | w Develo Carrace Trace Fx Remo | oper He Precedents Dependents ove Arrows Formula A | lp $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ wuditing |
| F Fu Cu 1 | AutoSave $f_X \sum A$ ile Ho $f_X \sum A$ msert \square R pommissi A Regiona | me Inse autoSum ~ tecently Used inancial ~ Functi T : 2 B al Sales | ert Pag 2 Log J ~ A Ted 0 Date on Library C | ta ical ∽ : ∽ £ Time ∽ £ 209 | Formula P ~ P ~ M K K K | s Data Name anager 😨 C Defir | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G | Vie tion | W Develo La Trace Trace F Remo | oper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commission | lp 7 |
| F Fu Cu 1 2 3 | Autosave ile Ho fx ∑ ¢ nsert ☐ F nction ☐ F commissi A Regiona | me Inse AutoSum ~ tecently Usec inancial ~ Functi V : 2 B al Sales 1st Qtr | ert Pag 2 Log d ~ A Text 0 Date on Library C 2nd Qtr | Layout ical ~ : : : <t< td=""><td>Formula</td><td>s Data Data Data Data Defin F TOTALS</td><td>Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission</td><td>Vie tion</td><td>W Develo U Trace Trace V Remo</td><td>epper He Precedents 2 Dependents 2 Dependents 2 Dependents 3 Ove Arrows Formula A J Commission</td><td>Ip 7. </td></t<> | Formula | s Data Data Data Data Defin F TOTALS | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission | Vie tion | W Develo U Trace Trace V Remo | epper He Precedents 2 Dependents 2 Dependents 2 Dependents 3 Ove Arrows Formula A J Commission | Ip 7. |
| F I Fu C C C I I 2 3 4 | AutoSave ile Ho fx ∑ A nsert P nction P F ommissi A Regiona Henry | me Inse tutoSum v tecently Usec inancial v Functi inancial v is al Sales 1st Qtr \$415.00 | ert Pag 2 Log d ~ A Text 0 Date on Library C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 | tasi le Layout ical ∽ tr fx 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 | Eormula | s Data Data Data Data Defir F TOTALS \$1,840.00 | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission | Vie tion | W Develo B ₂₂ Trace Trace F ² Trace F ² Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 | e Precedents e Dependents sove Arrows Formula A J Commissio | Ip 7 |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho fx ∑ A nsert P nction P F ommissi A Regiona Henry Chan | me Inse tutoSum v tecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 1 ~ A Ted 0 Date on Library × • C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 | tasi le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ | Eormula | s Data Data Data Data Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G Commission | Vie ttion | W Develo B ₁₀ Trace Trace F [*] Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 | Piper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commissio | lip √⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄⁄ |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \Sigma \neq$ msert \blacksquare R nction \blacksquare F A Regiona Henry Chan Char Lyn | me Inse AutoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 0 Date 0 Date 0 Date 0 C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 \$635.00 | tasi le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ fr 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$640.00 \$390.00 | Formula | s Data Data Data Parager C C Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G Commission | Vie tion | W Develo Buntance Trace France France I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 | Piper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commission | Ip 7: • & ~ • & • & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & & \\ • & & \\ • & & & \\ • & & \\ • & & & \\ • & & \\ • & & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ • & & \\ |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \Sigma \neq$ nsert \square R nction \square F A Regiona Henry Chan Char Lyn Mathew | me Inse sutoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$780.00 | ert Pag 2 Log Date on Library C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$635.00 \$635.00 \$635.00 | Les le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ fr 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$640.00 \$390.00 \$390.00 | Formula | s Data Data Data Parae Period F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Name: | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G Commission | Vie tion H | W Develo Contractor Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 _20 | 2 Precedents 2 Dependents 2 Dependents 2 Ormula A 5 J Commissio | Ip 7: • (k) • |
| F I Fu C C C I I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \Sigma \neq$ msert \square R nction \square F A Regiona Henry Char Char Lyn Mathew Jessica | me Inse utoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$522.00 \$780.00 \$852.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 0 Date 0 Date | Les Je Layout ical ~ 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$640.00 \$390.00 \$500.00 \$750.00 | Formula | s Data Data Data C U anager C C Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name <u>Name</u> : <u>S</u> cope: | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Selec ned Names G Commission | Vie tion H | W Develo Contractor Trace Trace Trace Trace Tage Trace Tage Trace Tage Trac | oper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commission P | lp 7: 2 20% 10% |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \sum f$ insert \square R restriction \square F mmissi A Regiona Henry Char Char Lyn Mathew Total | me Inse utoSum v lecently Usec Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$852.00 \$852.00 \$852.00 \$852.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 0 Date 0 Date | Les le Layout ical ~ <i>f</i> * 209 <i>f</i> * 209 <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> <i>G</i> | Formula | s Data Data S Data Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Commission_ Workbook | Vie tion H | W Develo Contractor Trace T | eper He Precedents E Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commission P X | Ip 7: • (c) • |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \Sigma \neq$ insert \square R restrict \square R mmissi A Regiona Henry Chan Char Lyn Mathew Jessica Total | me Inse utoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi Ist Qtr \$415.00 \$2520.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$2,892.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 0 Date 0 Date | Les le Layout ical ∽ | Eormula | s Data Data S Data C Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Commission_ Workbook | Vie tion H | W Develo Buntrace Trace F Remo Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 \$1,600.00 \$1,600.00 | eper He Precedents E Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A J Commission P X A | Ip 7x 2x x x x x x x x x x x x x x |
| F I Fu 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 | AutoSave ile Ho $f_X \sum f$ insert $f_X \sum f$ nstrine f $f_X \sum f$ $f_X \sum f$ $f_X \sum f$ f_X | me Inse tutoSum v tecently Usec inancial v Functi Ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$52.000 \$52.000 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 1 - A Text 0 Date on Library - C - C - 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 \$405.00 \$475.00 \$150.00 \$2,315.00 | Les le Layout ical ~ f* 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$640.00 \$390.00 \$500.00 \$750.00 | Eormula | s Data S Data S Data C Data F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name: S cope: Comment | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Commission Commission | Vie tion H | W Develo U Deve | e Precedents e Precedents e Dependents sove Arrows Formula A Commission R | Ip 7x 2x x y m Rate 20% 10% |
| F I Fu C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho fx $\sum P$ insert \square R rection \square F commissi A Regiona Henry Chan Char Lyn Mathew Jessica Total | me Inse autoSum ~ tecently Usec inancial ~ Functi B al Sales 1st Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$780.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 2 Log 2 Dat- 0 Dat- | Les le Layout ical ~ t ~ 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$445.00 \$445.00 \$500.00 \$500.00 \$2,725.00 | Eormula | s Data Data Data C D S D Defir F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select and Names G Commission Commission Workbook | Vie ttion H | W Develo B ₂₃ Trace Trace F ² Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 U | e Precedents e Precedents e Dependents sove Arrows Formula A Commission P X A | Ip 7/2: |
| F F C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | AutoSave ile Ho fx $\sum P$ insert \square R rection \square F mmissi A Regiona Henry Chan Char Lyn Mathew Jessica Total | me Inse autoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi inancial v ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$2,892.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Page 2 Log 2 Log 2 Date 0 Date 0 Date 0 C 2 nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 \$475.00 \$475.00 \$150.00 | Les le Layout ical ∽ t ~ 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$640.00 \$390.00 \$500.00 \$2,725.00 | Eormula | s Data Data Panager C U Defir F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment | Review efine Name se in Formula reate from Select red Names G Commission Commission Workbook | Vie tion H | W Develo Ben Trace Trace Fx Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 \$1,600.00 V | Poper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows · Formula A Commission P Commission Com | Ip 7/2: 2 20% 10% |
| F I Fu C C C I I Z Z G I I I Z Z G I I I I I I I I I | AutoSave | me Inse autoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$2,892.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 2 Log 0 Date 0 Date 0 Date 0 C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 \$475.00 \$150.00 \$2,315.00 | Les le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ a & Time ∽ b a & Time ∽ a & Time ~ a | Eormula | s Data Data Data P Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment <u>R</u> efers to: | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Commission Workbook | Vie tion H Rate | W Develo Bun Trace Trace Fx Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 \$1,600.00 U | Poper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A Commission P Commission Commi | Ip 7: |
| F I Fu I I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 | AutoSave | me Inse utoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$325.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log 0 Dato 0 Dato 0 Dato 0 Dato 0 C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$805.00 \$635.00 \$475.00 \$150.00 \$2,315.00 | Les le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ | Eormula | s Data Data Data Parae Parae Performed F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment Refers to: | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Workbook : = Nested JF!5 | Vie ttion H Rate | W Develo Ben Trace Trace F Remo I Sales Goal \$2,000.00 \$1,600.00 \$1,600.00 U | Poper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A Commission P Commission Commi | Ip 7: 2: |
| F I Fu I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I | AutoSave | me Inse utoSum v lecently Usec inancial v Functi ist Qtr \$415.00 \$22.00 \$520.00 \$520.00 \$2,892.00 | ert Pag 2 Log Date on Library C 2nd Qtr \$250.00 \$633.00 \$475.00 \$150.00 \$2,315.00 | Les le Layout ical ∽ a & Time ∽ fr 209 D 3rd Qtr \$445.00 \$390.00 \$390.00 \$390.00 \$390.00 \$2,725.00 | Eormula | s Data Data Data P Defin F TOTALS \$1,840.00 New Name Scope: Comment Refers to: | Review efine Name ~ se in Formula ~ reate from Select ned Names G Commission Workbook Commission_ Workbook = - - - - - - - - - - - - - | Vie ttion H Rate | W Develo Comparison of the second se | oper He Precedents Dependents Sove Arrows Formula A Commission P Commission Commis | Ip 7: 2: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0 |

2. Select the first cell under the commission heading and begin typing =IF, then hit the Tab key and a bracket will automatically appear displaying the logic formula for an IF function.



| F | ile Hor | me Inse | ert Pag | e Layout | Formula | s Data | Review | Vie | w Devel | oper Helj | c |
|----------|--|------------|------------|-----------------------------|------------|-------------|--|---------------|---|--|------------------|
| II Fu | $\int x \sum_{\text{Insert}} \Delta \text{tucoSum} \sim \square \text{ Logi}$ Insert $\square \text{ Recently Used} \sim \square \text{ Text}$ Function $\square \text{ Financial} \sim \square \text{ Date}$ Function Library | | | ical ¥ : ¥ e & Time ¥ | | Name C | efine Name 👻 se in Formula 🛩 reate from Selec ned Names | tion | 문 ₂ Trace 다금 Trace F _X Reme | e Precedents e Dependents ove Arrows ~ Formula Au | Ør A ∼ G ∼ |
| _ | F T i X J fx = | | | | | | | | | | |
| IF | | - E 2 | × ✓ | <i>f</i> _∞ =IF | (| | | | | | |
| | Α | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commissior | n Rate |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | | 20% |
| 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | | 10% |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | =IF(| | | | |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | IF(logical_te | t , [v | alue_if_true], | [value_if_false | D |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | | | |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | | | |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | | | |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | |

3. Select the total sales for Henry (G4) and type in whether the total sales is less than or equal to the sales goal (G4>=I2). Be sure to hit the F4 button and the absolute \$ will fill I2 so it will not change in any way if the formula is moved (\$I\$2), then type a comma.

| 12 | | • : : | × | <i>f</i> _∞ =IF | (F4>=I2 | | | | | | |
|----|----------|------------|------------|---------------------------|------------|-------------|---------------|-------|-----------------|-------------------|------|
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commission | Rate |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | | 20% |
| 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | | 10% |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | =IF(F4>=I2 | | | | |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | IF(logical_te | st, [| /alue_if_true], | [value_if_false]) |] |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | | | |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | | | |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | | | |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | |

4. The next portion of the formula is for the percentage of commission to be paid if the goal has been reached. After the comma, choose the sales total again (F4) multiplied by the commission percentage by selecting the name you created earlier (F4*Commession_Rate_20), then a comma to separate the next part of the formula.

| J2 | | ▼ ÷] | × ✓ | <i>f</i> _∞ =IF | (F4>=\$I\$2,I | 4*Commiss | sion_Rate | | | |
|----|----------|------------|------------|---------------------------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|-----|------------|---------------------|
| | Α | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commission Rate |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | 20% |
| 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | 10% |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | =IF(F4>=\$I\$2, | F4* | Commissio | n_Rate |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | | | | |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | E Commissi | on_Rate (Workbook) |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | Commissi | on_Rate (Worksheet) |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | Commissi | on_Rate_10 |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | Commissi | on_Rate_20 |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | |

5. The next portion of the formula is for the other percentage of commission to be paid if that lower goal has been met. After the comma, type another IF and hit the Tab key. Create the same formula again but use the Commission_Rate_10 this time and at



the end a comma.

| J3 | J3 • : × ✓ f _x =IF(F4>=\$I\$2,F4*Commission_Rate,IF(F4>=\$I\$3,F4*Commission_Rate_10 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----|---|------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------|-----------------|-----|------------|----------------------------------|---------------|---------------|-------------|
| | Α | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | L | М |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commission Rate | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | 20% | | | |
| 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | 10% | | | |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | =IF(F4>=\$I\$2, | F4* | Commission | n_Rate ,IF(F4>=\$I\$3, | F4*Comm | ission_Rate | e_10 |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | | | | IF(logical_tes | t, [value_if_ | true], [value | _if_false]) |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | | | 📰 Cor | nmission_Rat | te_10 |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

6. The last portion of the formula is asking what to do if the logic comes back as a false answer. In this case, it will return a 0. Now finish with two end parentheses, one turns red indicating the second IF function, and then an additional end parenthesis to enclose the entire function begun with the first IF function.

| G | 4 | ▼ ÷ 3 | × ✓ | f _x =IF | (F4>=\$I\$2,I | F4*Commiss | sion_Rate, IF(F | 4>= | \$I\$3,F4*Co | mmission_Rate_10, | 0)) | | |
|----|----------|------------|------------|--------------------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|-----|--------------|-----------------------|----------|-------------|------------------|
| | А | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | к | L | м |
| 1 | Regiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commission Rate | | | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | 20% | | | |
| з | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | 10% | | | |
| 4 | Henry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | =IF(F4>=\$I\$2, | F4* | Commissio | n_Rate,IF(F4>=\$I\$3, | F4*Commi | ission_Rate | e_10 ,0)) |
| 5 | Chan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | Char Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | Mathew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | Jessica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | Total | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

7. Now copy the formula down the column all the way to the last salesperson's total. These are the commissions paid based on the Nested IF formulas created. A nice logical function to make a more difficult task easier in a spreadsheet.

| | G4 | | • | XV | <i>f</i> _∞ =IF | (F4>=\$I\$2,I | F4*Commis | sion_Rate,IF(F | 4>= | \$I\$3,F4*Co | mmission_Rate_10, | ,0)) |
|---|------|---------|------------|------------|---------------------------|---------------|-------------|----------------|------------|--------------|-------------------|------|
| | | А | В | С | D | Е | F | G | н | I | J | |
| 1 | R | egiona | al Sales | | | | | | | Sales Goal | Commission Rate | |
| 2 | 2 | | | | | | | | | \$2,000.00 | 20% | |
| 3 | 3 | | 1st Qtr | 2nd Qtr | 3rd Qtr | 4th Qtr | TOTALS | Commission | | \$1,600.00 | 10% | |
| 4 | He | enry | \$415.00 | \$250.00 | \$445.00 | \$730.00 | \$1,840.00 | \$184.00 | | | | |
| 5 | 5 Ch | nan | \$325.00 | \$805.00 | \$640.00 | \$720.00 | \$2,490.00 | \$498.00 | | | | |
| 6 | 5 Ch | nar Lyn | \$520.00 | \$635.00 | \$390.00 | \$460.00 | \$2,005.00 | \$401.00 | | | | |
| 7 | M | athew | \$780.00 | \$475.00 | \$500.00 | \$200.00 | \$1,955.00 | \$195.50 | | | | |
| 8 | Je | ssica | \$852.00 | \$150.00 | \$750.00 | \$545.00 | \$2,297.00 | \$459.40 | | | | |
| 9 |) To | tal | \$2,892.00 | \$2,315.00 | \$2,725.00 | \$2,655.00 | \$10,587.00 | | | | | |
| 1 | 0 | | | | | | | | <u>9</u> = | 1 | | |
| 1 | 1 | | | | | | | | | <u>'</u> | | |

AND

II.

This function returns TRUE if all the arguments in its formula are TRUE and returns FALSE if any of the conditions are false. The Excel formula for this is **=AND(logical1,[logical2],...)**.

In this example the AND function returns TRUE if the first score is greater than or equal to 60 and the second score is greater than or equal to 90, otherwise it returns FALSE.

| D | 2 | • : : | x 🗸 | f _x =Al | ND(B2>=60 | ,C2>=90) |
|---|-------|---------|---------|--------------------|-----------|----------|
| | А | В | с | D | Е | F |
| 1 | Name | Score 1 | Score 2 | Result | | |
| 2 | Karen | 66 | 55 | FALSE | | |
| 3 | Sasha | 80 | 91 | TRUE | | |
| 4 | Fred | 43 | 94 | FALSE | | |
| 5 | Nate | 72 | 96 | TRUE | | |
| 6 | Ivan | 58 | 99 | FALSE | | |



OR

The OR function returns TRUE if any of the arguments are TRUE. The Excel formula for this is **=OR(logical1,[logical2],...)**.

In this example the AND function returns TRUE if the first score is greater than or equal to 65 and the second score is greater than or equal to 100, otherwise it returns FALSE.

| D | 5 | ▼ ∃ 2 | × 🗸 | <i>f</i> _x =0 | R(B6>=65,C | 6>=100) |
|---|-------|---------|---------|--------------------------|------------|---------|
| | А | В | с | D | E | F |
| 1 | Name | Score 1 | Score 2 | Result | | |
| 2 | Karen | 66 | 55 | TRUE | | |
| 3 | Sasha | 80 | 91 | TRUE | | |
| 4 | Fred | 43 | 94 | TRUE | | |
| 5 | Nate | 72 | 96 | TRUE | | |
| 6 | Ivan | 58 | 99 | FALSE | | |
| _ | 1 | | | | | |

IFERROR

If your formula errors out, you can add in a value you specify how you would like it displayed. This logic function is beneficial to use if you occasionally run into errors and wish to have a cleaner looking spreadsheet to present.

The Excel formula for this is **=IFERROR(value,value_if_error)**.

In this example there is an error in the Profit Margin row that is displayed at #DIV/0!. By using the IFERROR function an error like this can be displayed as a zero or even as text like "Ouch" if so desired. Here is what it looks like:

| IF | | • : × | ✓ f: | =IFEF | ROR((C1 | 0-C11)/C1(| D,O) | с | 12 | • : × | ~ J | × =IFER | ROR((C1 | 0-C11)/C1 | 0,"Ouc |
|----|---|---------------|----------|---------------|--------------|------------|------|----|----|---------------|-----------|-------------|---------|-----------|--------|
| | Α | В | С | D | E | F | | | | | - | | | | |
| 1 | | Profi | t Margin | =(Sales - E | xpenses) | /Sales | | | A | В | С | D | E | F 1 | |
| 2 | | | | | | | | 1 | | Prof | it Margin | =(Sales - E | xpenses |)/Sales | |
| 3 | | Table 1 | Week 1 | Week 2 | Week 3 | Week 4 | | 2 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | Sales | 2500 | 950 | 0 | | 1200 | 3 | | Table 1 | Week 1 | Week 2 | Week 3 | Week 4 | |
| 5 | | Expenses | 400 | 500 | 350 | | 350 | 4 | | Sales | 2500 | 950 | 0 | | 1200 |
| 6 | | Profit Margin | 84% | 47% | #DIV/01 | | 71% | 5 | | Expenses | 400 | 500 | 350 | | 350 |
| 7 | | FIONEWAIght | 0470 | 4770 | #01070: | | /1/0 | 6 | | Profit Margin | 84% | 47% | #DIV/0! | | 71% |
| 8 | | | | | | | | 7 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | Table 1 | Week 1 | Week 2 | Week 3 | Week 4 | | 8 | | | | | | | |
| 0 | | Sales | 2500 | 950 | 0 | | 1200 | 9 | | Table 1 | Week 1 | Week 2 | Week 3 | Week 4 | |
| 1 | | Exnenses | 400 | 500 | 350 | | 350 | 10 | | Sales | 2500 | 950 | 0 | | 1200 |
| 12 | | Brofit Margin | | P//C10_C1 | 1)/(0) | | 550 | 11 | | Expenses | 400 | 500 | 350 | | 350 |
| 12 | | From Wargh | TEEPP | P(value va | Luc if orrow | 51 | _ | 12 | | Profit Margin | 84% | 47% | Ouch | | 71% |
| 15 | | I | IFEKK | Jrk(vaiue, va | iue_ii_erroi | | | 13 | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | |

Practice Question https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18680 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18681

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Logical Functions and Formulas. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.15: Logical Functions and Formulas is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.16: Financial Functions and Formulas

Learning Objectives

• Use financial functions and formulas

Excel provides specific formulas and functions to assist with financial calculations. We will cover the top five most often used financial functions. The following scenario will inform the next example of financial functions.

A person secured a loan from a bank to purchase an apartment at an annual interest rate of 6%, over 20 years, with monthly payments. The loan has a present value (PV) of \$100,000 (amount of new loan) and a future value (Fv) of 0 (because the goal of the loan is to have it completely paid off at the end of the time period). For the monthly payments use 6%/12 = 0.5% for Rate, and 20*12 = 240 for Nper (total number of payment periods). If only annual payments were made, then it we would use 6% for the Rate and 20 for Nper.

Payment (PMT)

Payment terms for a loan or investment. The Excel formula for it is **=PMT(rate,nper,pv,[fv],[type])**. This assumes that payments are made on a consistent basis.

Follow these steps to find the monthly payment amount for this loan:

- 1. Enter all the information into a table.
- 2. Using the Formulas tab, Financial button, scroll until you find PMT in the drop-down menu.

| | AutoSav | e Off | 8 | • C · | Ą | ÷ | Book | 1 - Excel | 2 |) Search |
|----------|-----------------------|----------|--------------------|----------------|----------|----------------|------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------|
| F | ile | Home | Insert | Page | Layout | Fo | ormulas | Data | Review | View |
| II Fu | fx nsert nction | AutoSum | Recently Used ~ | Financial v | Cogical | A Text ~ | Date & Time ~ | Q Lookup & Reference ~ | ⊖ Math & Trig ~ F | More unctions ~ |
| | | | | | DDEPRIC | | A | | | |
| B6 | 5 | - | × | 0 | DDFYIELD |) | | | | |
| 1 | A Anau | tment l | 030 | O | DDLPRIC | E | _ | F | G | Н |
| 2 | PV | \$100 | 0,000 | O | DDLYIELD |) | | | | |
| 3 | Rate | | 240 | PE | OURATIO | N | _ | | | |
| 5 | FV | | 240 | PN | ЛТ | | | | | |
| 6 | РМТ | | | PF | TM | PN | IT(rate,n | per,pv,fv,ty | /pe) | |
| / 8 | | | | PF | AICE | Ca | lculates t | he payment | for a loan | - |
| 9 | | | | PF | LICEDISC | co | nstant in | terest rate. | nents and a | |
| 10 | | | | PF | ICEMAT | ? | Tell me | e more | | |
| 12 | | | | P١ | / | | | | | |

3. A dialog window asking for the inputs opens. Click on the cells matching the correct information for that field and the data will be entered into the formula automatically. Using the cell location instead of typing in the straight data, means the formula will automatically update if new data is entered into those cells. For the last two areas (Fv,Type) for loans, Fv can be omitted (or





enter 0) and Type can also be left empty. Type left empty assumes that payments come due at the end of the period.

| | | re 💽 Off | | | | | | | | 🔎 Search | | | | | | |
|----|-------------|----------|----------|--------------|----------------|------------|--------------|---------------|------------|----------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|
| F | ile | Home | Insert | Pag | e Layou | ıt | Formulas | Data | Revie | w View | Develop | oer Hel | р | | | |
| 1 | fx nsert | AutoSum | Recently | Financia | 2 al Logica | A al Te | xt Date & | Q Lookup & | Hath & | More | Name | Ø Define I Ø _x Use in F | Name ~ | E _{ta} Tr Sa Tr | ace Precede ace Depend | ents Øx Ients 🔬 |
| Fu | | v | Used ~ | ~ | Fund | | l ime ~ | Reference ~ | l ng ~ | Functions ~ | Manager | EØ Create 1 | rom Selection | n ↓ ⁺ ×Ke | move Arrov | NS ~ (k) |
| | | | | | Funct | ION LID | rary | | | | | Defined Na | imes | | | Formula |
| BS | 5 | * | × | \checkmark | f _x | =PM1 | г(вз,в4,в2, | ,B5) | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | Α | | В | С | D | | E | F | G | н | I | J | K | L | м | N |
| 1 | Apa | rtment L | oan | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | PV | \$10 | 0,000 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | Rate | | 240 | | | - | (Sunation) | | | _ | | | _ | | 2 | x |
| 5 | FV | | 240 | | | | Function | arguments | | | | | | | _ | |
| 6 | PMT | 4,B2, | B5) | | | - 1 | PMT | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | | Rate | B3 | | <u>±</u> | = 0.005 | | | - 1 |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | Nper | B4 | | <u>±</u> | = 240 | | | - 18 |
| 9 | | | | | | - | | | PV | B2 | | <u> </u> | = 100000 | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | TUDO | RPI | | <u> </u> | = U | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | type | L | | | - 110111061 | | | - 1 |
| 13 | | | | | | _ | Calculate | s the payme | nt for a l | oan based on o | onstant pay | ments and a | = -/16.4310: constant inte | rest rate. | | |
| 14 | | | | | | - | | | | Fv is th | e future valu | e, or a cash | balance you w | /ant to attai | n after the li | ast |
| 15 | | | | | | - | | | | payn | nent is made, | , 0 (zero) if o | mitted. | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | -1 |
| 18 | | | | | | | Formula | result = (\$7 | 16.43) | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | _ | Help on t | his function | 1 | | | | C | ОК | Cance | el |
| 20 | | | | | | - | | | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | |

4. After the calculation, the monthly loan payment is \$716.43. The figure is red because it is a debt paid against the total loan. (If you wish to have it not show as a red/negative number, type in a minus sign before the B2 Rate (-B2) and the PMT will show as a black, positive number.) The second screenshot shows the PMT formula and the corresponding cells associated with the formula. To see the formula correspondence, double clicking on the cell. This correspondence association works with any formulas used.

| | AutoSav | e Off | |) ~ (~ | | √ Boo | k1 - Excel | | AutoSa | ve 💽 | G | | | | Воо | k1 - E |
|--------------|-----------------------|---------|--------------------|-----------------------|------------------|------------------|------------|---------|-----------------------|----------|--------------------|-----------------|----------------|---------------|--------------------|---------------|
| F | ile | Home | Insert | Page | e Layout | Formula | a Data | F | ile | Home | Insert | Page | e Layou | | Formulas | 5 0 |
| , I Fu | fx nsert nction | AutoSum | Recently Used ~ | Financial | ? Logical | Text Date 8 | Lookup & | I Fu | fx nsert nction | AutoSum | Recently Used ~ | Financia Ý | Cogica | A Tex ~ | t Date & Time ~ | Look Refer |
| | | | | | Function | n Library | | | | | | | Functi | on Libr | ary | |
| В | 5 | - | : × | . | f _x = | PMT(B3,B4,B | 2,B5) | PI | ИТ | Ŧ | : × | ~ | f _x | PMT | (B3,B4,B | 2,B5) |
| | A | | В | с | D | E | F | | A | | В | с | D | | Е | F |
| 1 | Apar | tment L | .oan | | | | | 1 | Apa | rtment l | .oan | | | | | |
| 2 | PV | \$10 | 0,000 | | | | | 2 | PV | \$10 | 0,000 | | | | | |
| 3 | Rate | | 0.50% | | | | | 3 | Rate | | 0.50% | | | | | |
| 4 | Nper | | 240 | | | | | 4 | Nper | | 240 | | | | | |
| 5 | FV | | 0 | | | | | 5 | FV | | 0 | | | | | |
| 6 | РМТ | (\$7 | 16.43) | | | | | 6 | PMT | =PM | T(B3,B4 | ,B2 ,B5) | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | 7 | | PN | IT(rate, n | per, pv, [fv |], [type] |) | | |

5. With the formula established, when you change the rate, present value or nper, you can see the change in monthly payment it will take to pay off the loan.

Number of Periods (NPER)

Number of periods per loan or investment. The Excel formula for this is **=NPER(rate,pmt,pv,[fv],[type])**.

Follow these steps to find the number of periods for this loan:

- 1. Enter all the information into a table.
- 2. Using the Formulas tab, Financial button, scroll until you find NPER in the drop-down menu.



3. A dialog window asking for the inputs opens. Enter the corresponding cell locations.

| AutoSave 💽 🗄 🆓 🍾 | ି~ି 📮 Book1 | - Excel | | |
|---|---|--|---|---|
| File Home Insert | Page Layout Formulas | Data Review | | |
| $f_X \mid \sum \Box $ | a (?) (A) (O) | Q B | | |
| Insert AutoSum Recently Fin | ncial Logical Text Date & L | ookup & Math & | | |
| Function - Used - | • • • Time • Re | ference v Trig v Fur | | |
| | IRR | | | |
| E2 🔻 : 🗙 | ISPMT | | | |
| A B | MDURATION | F G | | |
| 1 Apartment Loan | MIRR | | | |
| 2 PV \$100,000 | | | | |
| 3 Rate 0.50% | NPER | | | |
| 5 FV 0 | NDV | | | |
| 6 PMT (\$716.43) | NPER(rate,pmt, | pv,fv,type) | | |
| 7 | Returns the num | ber of periods for ased on periodic. | | |
| 9 | ODDFYIELL constant payme | nts and a constant | | |
| 10 | ODDLPRIC | | | |
| 11 | ODDLYIEL[| re | | |
| AutoSave 💽 🗍 🥍 - | ି ଓ ଲୋକ Sook1 ବି | - Excel | Search | |
| Eile Home Insert | Page Lavout Formulas | Data Review | View Developer | Help |
| | | | | |
| $Jx \geq \square$ | | Q U | | |
| Insert AutoSum Recently Fin Function Vised | incial Logical Text Date & L | ookup & Math & ference ~ Trig ~ Fun | More Name Name Manager | Create from Selection |
| | Function Library | | D | efined Names |
| B5 - : × • | f _x =NPER(B3,B6,B2,B | 35) | | |
| A B C | DE | F G | H I | J K L |
| 1 Apartment Loan | Loan Period | | | |
| 2 PV \$100,000 | Nper B6,B2,B5) | | | |
| 3 Rate 0.50% | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 5 FV 0 | Function Arguments | | | 2 X |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) | Function Arguments | | | 8 × |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate | 63 | <u> </u> = 0.005 | S |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 8 9 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt | B3 B6 | ↑ = 0.009 ↑ = -716. | 2 × |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 8 9 10 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv | B3 B6 B2 | <u>↑</u> = 0.003 <u>↑</u> = -716. <u>↑</u> = 1000 ↑ = 10000 ↑ = 100000 ↑ = 100000 ↑ = 10000 ↑ | 4310585 20 |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv | B3 B6 B2 B5 | <u>↑</u> = 0.005 <u>↑</u> = -716. <u>↑</u> = 1000 <u>↑</u> = 0 | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Fv Fv Type | B3 B6 B2 B5 | | P X 4310585 00 ber |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Fv Type Returns the number of per | B3 B6 B2 B5 Cods for an investment t | | 4310585 20 ber nt payments and a constant |
| 5 FV 0; 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv Type Returns the number of per interest rate. | B3 B6 B2 B5 Cods for an investment b | | 4310585 20 ber nt payments and a constant |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv Type Returns the number of per interest rate. | B3 B6 B2 B5 iods for an investment to FV is the futu payment i | | 4310585 20 ber nt payments and a constant ie you want to attain after the last used. |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv Type Returns the number of per interest rate. | B3 B6 B2 B5 iods for an investment t Fv is the futu payment i | | 4310585 20 ber nt payments and a constant e you want to attain after the last used. |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv Type Returns the number of per interest rate. Formula result = 24000.00 | B3 B6 B2 B5 iods for an investment t Fv is the futu payment i | $\begin{array}{c} \textcircled{1} \\ \textcircled{1} \\ \textcircled{1} \\ \hline \end{array} = 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ \textcircled{1} \\ \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ \hline \end{matrix} = 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ \hline \end{matrix} = 0 \\ \hline \textcircled{1} \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ $ | 4310585 00 ber nt payments and a constant e you want to attain after the last used. |
| 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Function Arguments NPER Rate Pmt Pv Fv Fv Type Returns the number of per interest rate. Formula result = 24000.00 Help on this function | B3 B6 B2 B5 iods for an investment t Fv is the futu payment i | | 4310585 20 ber nt payments and a constant re you want to attain after the last used. |

- 4. The Nper is 240 months (20 years of monthly payments). The second screenshot shows the NPER formula and the corresponding cells associated with the formula. Double click on the cell to see its corresponding cells.
- 5. With the formula established, changing the monthly payment amount shows the change in the number of periods needed to pay off the loan.



| AutoSa | ve 💽 🖁 | ?~ ?~ | Ę, ⇒ | Book1 | - Exe | | AutoSav | e 💽 | | | | ÷ | Book | 1 - Excel | R |
|--------------------------|----------------|--------------|-----------|----------------|----------------|---------|-----------------------|---------|----------------------|-------------|-------------------------|-----------|------------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------------------|
| File | Home Inser | t Page | Layout | Formulas | Da | F | ile | Home | Insert | Page | e Layout | F | ormulas | Data | Review |
| fx Insert Function | AutoSum Recent | ly Financial | Cogical · | Text Date & L | ooku eferer | I Fu | fx nsert nction | AutoSur | n Recently Used ~ | y Financial | 2 Logical | A Text | <mark>)</mark> Date & Time ∽ | Q Lookup & Reference ~ | ⊖ Math & Trig ∽ Fur |
| | | | Function | Library | | | | | | | Functio | n Libra | ry | | - |
| E2 | • : × | √ J | €x =N | PER(B3,B6,B2,B | B5) | N | PER | - | : × | ~ | <i>f</i> _x = | NPER | (B3,B6,B | 2,B5) | |
| A | В | С | D | E | F | | A | | в | с | D | | E | F | G |
| 1 Apa | rtment Loan | | Loan | Period | | 1 | Apa | rtment | Loan | | Loa | in Pe | riod | | |
| 2 PV | \$100,000 | | Nper | 240 | | 2 | DV | ¢1 | 00.000 | | Ninor | - | | | |
| 3 Rate | 0.50% | | | Ī | | 2 | PV | 31 | 00,000 | | мрег | | NPER(DS, | | 1.6 |
| 4 Nper | 240 | | | | | 3 | Rate | _ | 0.50% | | | | NPEK(rate | e, pmt, pv, [f | /J, [type]) |
| 5 FV | 0 | | | | | 4 | Nper | | 240 | | | | | | |
| 6 PMT | (\$716.43) | | | | | 5 | FV | | 0 | | | | | | |
| 7 | (\$710.45) | | | | | 6 | PMT | (\$ | 716.43) | | | | | | |

Rate (RATE)

The interest rate for a loan or a rate of return required to attain a specific amount on an investment over a period of time. The Excel formula for this is **=RATE(nper,pmt,pv,[fv],[type],[guess])**. The "guess" for our purposes can be left out for this scenario.

Follow these steps to find the interest rate for this loan:

- 1. Enter all the information into a table.
- 2. Using the Formulas tab > Financial button > Scroll until you find RATE in the drop-down menu.
- 3. Dialog window opens > Enter the corresponding cell locations.
- 4. The Rate is 0.50%. The second screenshot shows the Rate formula and the corresponding cells associated with the formula. Double click on the cell to see its corresponding cells.

| | | | AutoSa | ve 🤇 | Off | | 5- | | Ą | | Bo | ook1 | | |
|--|---|---|--|-------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|-------------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|---|---|
| | | Fi | le | Hor | ne | Inser | t P | age | Layout | t | Formul | as | | |
| | | Ir | fx sert | Aut | | | tly Finar | | ? | | A Date | 8 | | |
| | | Fu | nction | | ~ | Used | ~ ~ | i ci di | ~ | | r Time | ~ Re | | |
| | | | | | | | | | Functio | on Lil | brary | | | |
| | | G |) | | - : | > | < < | | fx | | | | | |
| | | | A | | в | | с | | D | | Е | | | |
| | | 1 | Ара | artm | ent Lo | an | | | Loan | Inte | erest Ra | te | | |
| | | 2 | PV | | \$100, | 000 | | | Rate | _ | 0.50 | 0% | | |
| | | 3 | Rate | | 0. | 50% | | | | | | | | |
| | | 4 | Nper | | | 240 | | | | | | | | |
| | | 5 | PMT | | (\$716 | 5.43) | | | | | | | | |
| | | 7 | | | (0, 10 | , | | | | | | - | | |
| | | 8 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | AutoSave | • | F) [= | | | | | | Boo | ok1 - | Excel | | Q | Searc |
| F | AutoSave ile Hi | ome | f) [= In | sert | Pag | ge La | la ≂ Iyout | F | Boo ormula | ok1 - s | Excel | Rev | ر view | Searc View |
| F | AutoSave ile Hi fra I | ome | ۳) آ In | sert | Pag | ge La | ואסטנ oyout | <u>F</u> | Boo ormula | s | Excel | Rev | , Р view | Searc Viev |
| F | AutoSave ile H fx | ome | In | isert | Pag | ge La | iyout | <u>F</u> | Boo ormula: | ok1 - s | Data | Rev Ø | , Р view | Searc Viev |
| F , I Fu | AutoSave ile Hi fx nsert A nction | ome | In In Im Rec Us | sert | Pag Pag Financi | ge La | iyout ? gical T | F A ext | Boo ormula: Date 8 Time \ | s s k La | Data | Rev Ø Math Trig | riew] & ~ Fui | Searc View More |
| F , I Fu | AutoSave ile He $\int x$ nsert A nction | ome utoSu | In In Im Rec Us | sert | Pag Pag Financi | ge La (ial Lo Fu | iyout ? gical T unction L | F A ext ` ibra | Boo ormula: Date 8 Time ~ | s k La r Ref | Data | Rev Ø Math Trig | ∕ riew 8 ~ Fur | Searc View More Actions |
| F , I Fu | AutoSave ile He f_X nsert A nction A | ome utoSu v | In In Im Rec Us | sert | Pag Financi | ge La (ial Lo FL | yout yout gical T unction L | Fo A ext ibra | Boo ormula: Date & Time > ny B4 B6 F | s k Lo r Ref | Data | Rev Ø Math Trig | yiew } & ∽ Fui | Searc View More nctions |
| F I Fu R/ | AutoSave ile He f_x nsert A nction A ATE | ome Dme utoSu | In In Im Rec Us | isert | Pag Pag Financi | ge La (ial Lo <i>f</i> x | yout gical T unction L =RA | Fe A ibra TE(| Boo ormula: Date 8 Time > ry B4, B6, E | s k Lo r Ref | Data Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) | Rev Ø Math Trig | y view & ≁ Fur | Searc View More nctions |
| F I Fu R/ | AutoSave ile Hi fx nsert A nction A ATE A | ome Dme utoSu v | In In Im Rec Us | sert | Pag Pag Financi V | ge La [ial Lo fx | yout gical T unction L RA | Fe A ibran TE(| Boo ormula: Date 8 Time > ry B4,B6,E | k Lo Ref | Excel Data Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) F | Rev Ø Math Trig | , /iew & ≪ Fur 5 | Searc View More nctions |
| F I Fu R/ | AutoSave ile Hi f_X nsert A nction A ATE A Apartr Dv | ome utoSu men | In In Im Rec Us I In In In In In In In In In In In In I | sert | Pag Financi V C | ge La | yout gical T unction L RA D D an Int | Fere ibrat TE(| Boo ormula: Date 8 Time \ ry B4, B6, E E st Rate | k Lo r Ref | Excel Data Data Dookup & ference ~ 5) F | Rev Ø Math Trig | y riew & ∽ Fu | Searc View More nctions |
| F I Fu R/ 1 2 3 | AutoSave ile Hi f_X nsert A ATE A Apartr PV Rate | ome vutoSu v | In In Im Rec Us Im Rec Us Im Rec Us In In In In In In In In In In In In In | sert | Pag Pag Financi V C | ge La | yout gical T unction L =RA D D D D D D D D D D D D | Fe A ibran TE(=R | Boo ormula: Date 8 Time > ny B4,B6,E E E E E E E E E E ATE(B4 RATE(ng | k Lo s 7 Ref 32,B e | Excel Data Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) F B2,B5) omt. pv. [f | Rev Math Trig | view & & Fui G pel. [a | Searc View More nctions H |
| F I Fu R/ 1 2 3 4 | AutoSave ile Hi fx nsert A ATE A Apartr PV Rate Nper | ome vutoSu vutoSu v | In In Im Rea Us Im E Loa 100,00 0.50 2 | ssert | Pag Pag Financi V C | ge La | nyout gical T unction L RA D D D D D D D D D D D | Fe A ibrat TE(=R | Boo ormula Date 8 Time \ Ty B4, B6, E E est Rate ATE(B4 RATE(np | k1 - s k Lo 32,B 32,B | Excel Data Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) F B2,B5) omt, pv, [f | Rev Θ Math Trig (| ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Fundamentary ✓ | Searce View More nctions H uess]) |
| F I Fu R/ 1 2 3 4 5 | AutoSave ile Hi fx nsert A ATE A Apartr PV Rate Nper FV | ome vutoSu vutoSu | ₩ E | ssert | Pag Financi C | ge La | nyout gical T unction L =RA D D D D D D D D D D | Fe ext ibrai TE(| Boc ormula: Date 8 Time ~ ry B4, B6, E E E st Rate ATE(B4 RATE(np | k Lo k Lo 32,B e | Excel Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) F B2,B5) omt, pv, [f | Rev Math Trig | <i>P P</i> | Searce View More notions H uess]) |
| F I Fu R/ 1 2 3 4 5 6 | AutoSave ile Hi fx nsert nction A ATE A A A A A A A A A A A A A | ome vutoSu | ₩ | ssert | Pag Financi C | ge La | yout gical T unction L =RA D D D D D D D D D D D D D | Fere ibraa TE(| Boc ormula: Date 8 Time > ry B4,B6,E E est Rate ATE(B4 RATE(np | k Lo s 32,B e ,B6, | Excel Data Dokup & ference ~ 5) F B2,B5) omt, pv, [f | Rev (Math Trig | / && × Fui 3 pe], [g | Searc View More nections H uuess]) |





Present Value (PV)

Present value of a loan or investment based on a constant interest rate (like a mortgage or loan). The Excel formula for this is =**PV(rate,nper,pmt,[fv],[type])**.

Let's change the scenario a little to find a PV for a different loan. If you know that the monthly payments are \$952.69, the interest rate is 6%, and the life of the loan is 20 years, what is the present value of that loan?

Follow the same steps to insert the formulas like before to find the present value for this loan.



After filling in the values for the above scenario the PV for this loan is \$120,999.66 or if rounded up \$121,000.

Future Value (FV)

Future value of an investment assuming constant, periodic payments with a constant interest rate. The Excel formula for this is **=FV(rate,nper,pmt,[pv],[type])**.

Let's change the scenario again and find FV for a different loan's time frame. If you know that the monthly payments are \$895.54, the interest rate is 5%, and the life of the loan is 20 years, is the future value of that loan payed down to 0 in that 20-year time frame?

Follow the same steps to insert the formulas like before only using the FV function to figure this out.

| | | 02 | 2 | • : × | V | fs: =FV(| L3,L4,L6,L2) | |
|----|------|------|-----------|------------|-----------------------|--------------|---------------|--------------|
| | | | к | L | м | N | 0 | |
| | | 1 | Apartm | ent Loan | | Future | Value | |
| | | 2 | PV | \$ 125,000 | | FV | (\$0.00) | |
| | | 3 | Rate | 0.50% | | | | |
| | | 4 | Nper | 240 | | | | |
| | | 5 | FV | 0 | | | | |
| | | 6 | PMT | (\$895.54) | | | | |
| | | 7 | | | | | | |
| | | | [| ~ / | £ 54 | | | |
| PI | VII | | | ^ | /x =FV | (L3,L4,L0,L2 |) | |
| | К | | L | М | N | 0 | Р | Q |
| 1 | Ара | artm | ent Loan | | Futur | e Value | | |
| 2 | PV | | \$ 125,00 | 0 | FV | =FV(L3,L4 | ,L6,L2) | |
| 3 | Rate | | 0.50 | % | | FV(rate, | nper, pmt, [p | ov], [type]) |
| 4 | Nper | | 24 | 40 | | | | |
| 5 | FV | | | 0 | | | | |
| 6 | PMT | | (\$895.5 | 4) | | | | |
| 7 | | | | | | | | |

The answer is that, yes, the future value of the loan comes to zero in the timeframe.





Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18682

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18683

Now you know how to use these five financial functions and formulas in Excel.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Financial Functions and Formulas. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

8.16: Financial Functions and Formulas is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.17: Introduction to Add-Ins

What you'll learn to do: Use add-ins

There are a variety of third-party programs that can be "added in" to Microsoft Excel. While it's important to be cautious about which programs you use, there are some powerful options out there that can help you with a variety of tasks.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Add-Ins. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.17: Introduction to Add-Ins is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.18: Add-Ins

Learning Objectives

• Use add-ins

Microsoft Office allows for a variety of additional programs to be added into Excel as well as the other Office programs. An add-in specifically adds optional features or commands into Excel either from Microsoft or from third-party companies. Excel's default is to not make add-ins immediately available, therefore, in order to access them, you must install and sometimes activate the add-ins.

Here are general pieces of information to know before we dive into Excel add-ins:

- Add-ins are available for both Windows and for MacOS.
- The Options window is the main way to access and manage Excel add-ins. Find them by going to **File**, **Options**, **Add-ins path**. **The Excel Options**, **Add-ins** options selected is displayed in the screenshot below. Notice how you can see which add-ins are **Active**, **Inactive** and **Disabled** as well as any **Documents** related to add-ins.

| AutoSave | | <u>り・ペート</u> | Module 8_Statistical Functions Exa Saved 👻 | | Sign in | — — | |
|----------|----------------------------|----------------------|---|---|----------------------------|-------------|----------|
| File H | lome Inse | Excel Options | state has been the be- | alare the | רא <mark>א</mark> | iare 🖓 Co | omments |
| fx ∑ | AutoSum ~ Recently Used | General Formulas | View and manage Microsoft Office | Add-ins. | | | |
| Function | Financial 🗸 | Data | Add-ins | | |)ptions ~ | |
| | _ | Proofing | Name 🔺 | Location | Туре | Calculation | ^ |
| G15 | • E | Save | Active Application Add-ins | | | | ~ |
| A | В | Language | | | | М | N 🔺 |
| 1 | | Ease of Access | Inactive Application Add-ins Analysis ToolPak | C:\ffice16\Library\Analysis\ANALYS32.XLL | Excel Add-in | | |
| 2 | | Advanced | Analysis ToolPak - VBA | C:\e16\Library\Analysis\ATPVBAEN.XLAM | Excel Add-in | | |
| 4 | Custome | Customize Ribbon | Euro Currency Tools | C:\ot\Office16\Library\EUROTOOL.XLAM | Excel Add-in | | |
| 5 | ALFKI | Quick Access Toolbar | Microsoft Actions Pane 3 Microsoft Data Streamer for Excel | C·\softDataStreamerforEvcel.vstolvstolocal | XML Expansion Pack | | |
| 6 | | Add-ins | Microsoft Power Map for Excel | C:\ Excel Add-in\EXCELPLUGINSHELL.DLL | COM Add-in | | |
| 8 | | Trust Center | Microsoft Power Pivot for Excel Solver Add-in | C:\Add-in\PowerPivotExcelClientAddIn.dll C:\ffice16\Library\SOLVER\SOLVER.XLAM | COM Add-in Excel Add-in | | |
| 9 | | | Desument Polated Add ins | | | | |
| 10 | Customer | | No Document Related Add-ins | | | | |
| 12 | | | Disabled Application Add-ins | | | | |
| 13 | | | No Disabled Application Add-ins | | • | | |
| 14 | | | Add-in: Analysis ToolPak Publisher: Microsoft Corporation | | | | |
| 16 | | | Compatibility: No compatibility informati | on available | | | |
| 17 | _ | | Location: C:\Program Files\Microsoft | t Office\root\Office16\Library\Analysis\ANALY | \$32.XLL | | |
| 18 | - | | Description: Provides data analysis tools | s for statistical and engineering analysis | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | Manage: Excel Add-ins 🔻 🧕 | io | | | |
| 22 | | | L | Г | OK Cancel | | |
| • | PMT | | | | Carlee | | |
| Ready 💽 | | | | | III II | | - + 100% |

• There are three main categories for the different types of add-ins: Excel add-ins, Custom add-ins, and Downloadable add-ins. We'll go over an example for each of the three types to give you a good idea how to find, add-in, activate and run an add-in in Excel.

Excel Add-ins

These add-ins include ones with the extensions .xlam (marco-enabled add-in), .xla (Excel 97-2003 add-ins), .xll (DLL add-in or an automation add-in. Examples include the Analysis ToolPak, Analysis ToolPak – VBA, or the Euro Currency Tools add-in. Microsoft add-ins are listed in the Options window.

Here is how to enable an included add-in from Microsoft. Let's say you wish to have the Analysis ToolPak available in Excel. Follow these steps:

1. After opening the Options window, Add-ins on the left-hand menu selected, search and click on Analysis ToolPak in the list to see that it is disabled.



- 2. At the bottom of the Options window, in the Manage drop-down menu, select Excel Add-ins, click Go.
- 3. The Options window closes, and a new small dialog box opens. See the ToolPak box isn't checked. Check that box and click the OK button.

| Add-ins | ? × | Ad | d-ins | | ? <mark>×</mark> |
|--|--------------------------------------|----|---|---------|--------------------------------------|
| Add-ins available: Analysis ToolPak - VBA Euro Currenç Tools Solver Add-in Analysis ToolPak Analysis ToolPak Provides data analysis tools for st engineering analysis | OK Cancel Browse Automation | | dd-ins available: Analysis ToolPak Analysis ToolPak - VBA Euro Currency Tools Solver Add-in Analysis ToolPak Provides data analysis tools engineering analysis | t for s | OK Cancel Erowse Automation |

4. Excel takes a few seconds loading up the add-in and then it will show up in your ribbon area usually. In this case, in the Data tab, on the far right a new group appears called Analysis, Data Analysis button.

| Module 8 | 3_Statistical Functions Exam | n Saved + 🔎 Search | | | Sign in | • • | σ× |
|----------|------------------------------|--|---|--------------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|----------|
| Formulas | Data Review | View Developer Help Po | ower Pivot | | | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 | Comments |
| ons s | Geography 👻 | $ \begin{array}{c c} \hline 2 & \hline X & \hline Z & A \\ \hline 2 & \hline X & \hline Z & \hline X & \hline Z & \hline X & \hline Z & \hline D $ | Generation Sector Columns Sector Co | What-If Forecast Analysis ~ Sheet | utline Ωutline | 🗄 Data Analysis | |
| | Data Types | Sort & Filter | Data Tools | Forecast | | Analysis | ^ |

This ToolPack adds-in many additional data analysis tools you can use. Scroll through the menu to see the options. Many are additional statistical analysis options.

| Data Analysis | ? <mark>X</mark> |
|---|------------------|
| Analysis Tools | |
| Anova: Single Factor Anova: Two-Factor With Replication Anova: Two-Factor Without Replication | Cancel |
| Covariance Descriptive Statistics Exponential Smoothing F-Test Two-Sample for Variances | <u>H</u> elp |
| Fourier Analysis Histogram | |

5. Now if you return to the Options window you will see that the Analysis ToolPack is activated. If you wish to deactivate this add-in, return to the Options, Add-ins, Manage, Excel Add-ins, and click Go to open the Add-ins dialog box again. Simply





uncheck the box and click OK to disable the Analysis ToolPack.

| Add-ins | | ? × |
|--|-------|---------------------|
| Add-ins available: | | |
| Analysis ToolPak | ^ | ОК |
| Euro Currency Tools Solver Add-in | | Cancel |
| | | <u>B</u> rowse |
| | | A <u>u</u> tomation |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | Ŧ | |
| Analysis ToolPak | | |
| Provides data analysis tools f engineering analysis | or st | atistical and |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

6. This same process is used for the included Microsoft Add-ins in Excel. COM Add-ins are also Microsoft's add-ins that are available in Excel as well and can be added or disabled by opening its dialog box and clicking on the available add-ins as well.

Downloadable Add-Ins

If you are surfing the internet looking for a good add-in for Excel, you will find many add-ins provided by a large variety of program providers, software developers and businesses. Let's walk through a scenario to see how to install a downloaded add-in into Excel.

Let's say you found the website <u>www.excelcampus.com</u> or some other website, and decided you would like to use the Excel Pivotpal add-in to make your pivot tables a bit more customized. Follow these steps to get the add-in into your Excel program.

- 1. After purchasing the add-in, download it into your download folder on your computer. (Double clicking does not add it automatically to Excel, you need to go through the Add-in in the Options menu.)
- 2. Open Excel, File, Options, Add-ins menu and the window displays the available add-ins.
- 3. At the bottom of the window, in the Manage, choose the Excel Add-in, and click Go.
- 4. The Add-ins window will open but you will not see the file you downloaded. You need to now go find that file. Click on the Browse... button and it will open a new window. It usually defaults to the Microsoft > AddIns folders. Navigate to where you saved the downloaded add-in file and select it, click OK.
- 5. It will now be added into the Add-ins menu in the small window. Now check the box and click OK to enable the downloaded add-in.



- 6. Once an add-in is enabled, there is no need to re-install, it loads and opens each time you open Excel.
- 7. To disable it follow the same path to open the Add-ins window and deselect the custom add-in.

Custom add-ins

A custom add-in is one you create yourself-this is useful when you must run a macro often for different workbooks—or created by solution providers or programmers based on the COM (Component Object Model). These custom add-ins often require Visual





Basic or other programming languages to build. As you become more proficient in Excel or Visual Basic, you may wish to create your own custom Excel add-in.

The flexibility of Excel allows for all kinds of custom add-ins. Many custom add-in files may be added into Excel just like with a downloaded add-in file process.

Additional access to Microsoft Add-ins

Excel, and the other Office 365 and 2019 programs, have an additional way to find other add-ins available from Microsoft. In the Insert tab, find the Add-ins button. Once you click on that button choose one of the options. Here is what this looks like:



After selecting the Get Add-ins option, a new window opens, and you can scroll through and select a variety of add-ins to use for Excel and the other Office products.

| AutoSave On O 😨 🖄 File Home Insert | Office Add-ins MY ADD-INS ADMIN MANAGED 회 Add-ins may access personal and docun Search 우 | TORE nent information. By using an add-in, you agree to its Permissions, License Terms ar Suggested | × nd Privacy Policy. for you ~ | Ξ – □ × Δ Share Comments Δ Text Symbols |
|--|---|--|--------------------------------------|--|
| PivotTables Tables H10 • : × A B | Category AII CRM Data Analytics | Jira Cloud for Excel (Early Access) Export Jira data to Excel - Combine the power of Jira with the flexibility of Excel May require additional purchase | Add | ments v |
| 2 PV \$100,000 3 Rate 0.50% 4 Nper 240 5 FV 0 6 PMT (\$716.43) 7 | Document Review Editor's Picks Education Financial Management Maps & Feeds | Stock Connector Link stocks, currency, & crypto prices to cells in Excel spreadsheets and update them in real time. May require additional purchase * * * * * | Add | |
| 8 9 10 11 12 13 | Productivity Project Management Sales & Marketing Training & Tutorial | Web Video Player Add YouTube videos to your PowerPoint presentations or Excel spreadsheets. May require additional purchase **** * * | Add | |
| 14 15 16 17 18 19 | Utilities Visualization | Geographic Heat Map This app will help you visualize data across geographic locations. It's simply formatting on a map. ***** | Add | |
| 20 21 22 23 • • · · · Rate NP | ٩ | Microsoft Dynamics Office Add-in The Microsoft Dynamics Office Add-in enables data connections to Microsoft Dynamics systems. | Add | |
| Ready 🐻 | W | Wikipedia Find and quote related information from Wikipedia. | Add | - <u>+</u> 100% |



PRactice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18684

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18685

Add-ins can be powerful tools to assist with Excel's already useful functions. Now that you know how to search, find, download and add in these tools, find the ones that fit your needs the best and enable them to make your work life more efficient.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Add-Ins. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.18: Add-Ins is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.19: Introduction to Internet and Excel

What you'll learn to do: Use internet tools to enhance Excel workbooks

There are several features that can help you take advantage of the internet and its capabilities in your Excel workbooks.

8.19: Introduction to Internet and Excel is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.20: Internet and Excel

Learning Objectives

• Use internet tools to enhance Excel workbooks.

Rowan Retail Store #2 is using Excel to plan their campaign for the Q3 sales campaign. The campaign for this store is to create a loyalty program and start with selling more dairy groceries. Like Word and PowerPoint, the same skills apply to copy, paste images and address from the internet. There is one other feature that is unique to Excel which we'll go over.

Maurice has opened his Q3 sales campaign Excel file and wants to insert pictures of each store in the table he has made. He searches the web for the photos by first clicking the Insert tab and Online Pictures button. After finding the second store's photo, he clicks the Insert button and then resizes the photo in the worksheet.



He finds and inserts the third store's photo and now his table is complete. He wants to keep a reference for a webpage next to the table. With a browser open to the website, Maurice copies the web address and goes back to his Excel workbook. He selects a cell and pastes the address directly into the workbook.





Bonus Advanced Integration

Maurice wants to conduct research on current dairy prices to help him decide on the sales percentage. Excel has a function to allow tables from websites to be imported into a worksheet. Maurice already knows the website he wants to follow (www.dairy.com/market-prices).

He takes the following steps to set up the table in a new workbook tab.

1. First, he clicks on the **Data** tab, then selects the **Get Data** > **From Other Sources** > **From Web**.

| ⊟ | 6-0- 1 | | | | | | RR Q3 Sal | es Campaign.xl | ax - Excel |) | | | | | Sign in | œ | - | ٥ | × |
|-------------|---|---|--------------------------|--|------------|-------------------|------------|------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|--------------|-----------|----------|-------|-------|
| File | | Page Layout Form | ulas Data | Review | | | | | | | | | | | | | | A s | Share |
| Get Data | From Text/CSV | Connections | Refresh All - | Queries & Co Properties Edit Links | innections | 2↓ ZAZ ZJ Sort | Filter | Clear Reapply Advanced | Text to Column | Flash Remo | Fill ve Duplicates /alidation * | E-ª Conse Conse Relation | lidate onships | What-If F Analysis * | orecast Grou | p Ungroup | Subtotal | th th | |
| | From <u>File</u> | → f _x | Querie | es & Connecti | ions | | Sort & Fil | ter | | | Data Tools | | | Foreca | st | Outlin | e | G | ~ |
| | From <u>D</u> atabase | C D | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | к | L | м | N | 0 | P | Q | R | s | т | - |
| | From Azure | Store 2 Store 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | From Online Services | Point-of- Purchase Loyalty Dicolour Drogram | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | From Other Sources | From Table/Ran | nge | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Ģ | Combine Queries | From Web | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ř |
| | Launch Query Editor Data Source Settings | From Micro From Micro Im | om Web port data from | n a web page. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 11 |
| | Query Ogtions | From QData Fee | ed | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | From ODBC | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 12 | | From OLEDB | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 14 | | Blank Query | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| (| Table | Chart Sheet3 | (+) | | | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | | | • |
| Ready | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | II (II) | ŋ | - | + | 100% |

2. He then types in his webpage address into the dialog box and clicks **OK**.

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | × |
|---------------|--------------------------------|--|--|----------------------------|-------------|-------------|---|---------------|-------------------|--------|------------------------------|--------------------|--|-------------------------------------|-----------|-------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|-------|---------|----------|-------------|-------|
| | | e Insi | ert Pag | | | Data | Review | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Share |
| Get Data * | C From Te From W From Ta | ext/CSV Veb able/Ran Set & Trar | Co Rec Co Rec Exis ge sform Data | ent Sources ting Connec | tions Refre | C Queries & | ries & Conn eerties Links Connection | ections 15 | 2↓ ZAZ Z↓ Sort | Filter | Clear Reapply Advanced | Text to Columns | 📴 Flash Fill - 🛛 Remove I 📸 Data Valic Di | Duplicates dation * ata Tools | Consolida | ate hips | What-If F Analysis * Foreca | orecast Sheet st | Group | Ungroup | Subtotal | 9 9 9 | ^ |
| A1 | × | | × v | fx | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | A | в | с | D | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | к | L | м | N | 0 | P | c | 1 | R | s | т | | U 🔺 |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | -11 |
| 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | \times | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | From | Web | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | | Basic | O Advan | ced | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | LIRI | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| / | | | | | | www.da | in com/ma | det-prices | 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | 1,100110110 | iner prices | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | H | | | | | | |
| 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | OK | Cancel | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | L, | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | | Table | Chart | Sheet3 | + | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | Þ |
| Ready | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | III 1 | n m | - | 1 | + | 100% |

3. This sends Excel out looking for the website and its data. It then displays a dialog box with the information it can read. Maurice selects Table 1 and clicks the **Load** button.



| E 5 · ∂ · ∓ | | | | | | | | n v | Sign in | | | |
|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|------|----------------------|------------|------------|------------|---------|--------|---------|--------------|----------|-----|
| e Home Insert Page Lay | Navigator | | | | | | | | | | | |
| From Text/CSV | | ٩ | Table View Web Vie | N | | | | | - | | | 8 |
| et a - The From Table/Range | Select multiple items | | Table 1 | | | | [| 3 | Group | Ungroup * | Subtotal | - |
| Get & Transform Data | Display Options * | Cð - | Contract | Month | Open | High | Low | | 1 | Outline | | rg. |
| * : × √ fe | www.dairy.com/market-prices [3] | | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | | | | | |
| | Document | | Butter Cash-Settled | Sep 17 | 268.000 | 268.000 | 266.500 | ^ | | | 1 - | |
| A B C | Table 0 | | Class III Milk (Pit) | Aug 17 | 0.00 | 16.30 | 16.30 | | R | S | т | |
| | | | Class III Milk | Aug 17 | 16.26 | 16.26 | 16.26 | | - | | | |
| | LLI Table 1 | | Nonfat Dry Milk | Sep 17 | 91.550 | 91.775 | 91.550 | | | | | |
| | | | Cheese Cash-Settled | Jul 17 | 1.5490 | 1.5500 | 1.5480 | | | | | |
| | | | Class IV Milk | Aug 17 | 16.88 | 16.89 | 16.88 | | | | | |
| | | | Dry Whey | Jul 17 | 45.2500 | 45.2500 | 45.2250 | | | | | |
| | | | CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | CURREN | | | | | |
| | | | British Pound | Sep 17 | 1.2999 | 1.2999 | 1.2976 | | | | | |
| | | | Canadian Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.79510 | 0.79515 | 0.79430 | | | | | |
| | | | Japanese Yen | Sep 17 | 0.896100 | 0.896600 | 0.89445 | | | | | |
| | | | Swiss Franc | Sep 17 | 1.05510 | 1.05530 | 1.05390 | | | | | |
| | | | Euro FX | Sep 17 | 1.16675 | 1.16700 | 1.16535 | | | | | |
| | | | Australian Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.79530 | 0.79530 | 0.79270 | | | | | |
| | | | Mexican Peso | Sep 17 | 0.056670 | 0.056670 | 0.05662 | | | | | |
| | | | New Zealand Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.73930 | 0.74000 | 0.73870 | | | | | |
| | | | South African Rand | Sep 17 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 | 0.07600 | | | | | |
| | | | Brazilian Real | Sep 17 | 0.31495 | 0.31755 | 0.31450 | | | | | |
| | | | Russian Ruble | Sep 17 | 0.016760 | 0.016795 | 0.01668 | | | | | |
| | | | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIE | \sim | | | | |
| | | | < | | | | > | | | | | |
| | | | - | | | | , | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| · · · Table Laboration | | | | | Load | * Edit | Cano | el | | | | |

4. The data table from the website is now pulled into his spreadsheet. Hooray!

| E | ∎ 5·∂·∓ | | | | | Te | ible Tools | | | | | | | | × |
|-------------|--|---|-------------------------|---------------|---|---------|---------------------------|----------|--|--------------------|-----|---|---|-------------------------|----------|
| F | ile Home Inse | ert Page Lay | yout Formu | las Data | Review N | liew | Design | Query | 🖓 Tell m | e what you want to | lo | | | | A. Share |
| Tabl Tab | e Name: 🔂 Sumr le_1 🕂 Remo Resize Table 🛱 Conv Properties | narize with Pivo ove Duplicates ert to Range Tools | tTable Insert Slicer | Export Refres | Properties Open in B Open in B OUNLINK nal Table Data | rowser | ✓ Header Total R ✓ Bandec | Row | First Column Last Column Banded Colur Ile Style Optio | Filter Buttor | | | | Table Styles | ^ |
| A1 | | < | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | ۵ | в | c | D | F | F | | G | н | 1 1 1 | 1.1 | ĸ | | | |
| 1 | Contract | Month | Open | High | Low | Last | T Ch | 1000 7 | Time | T Linke | | R | - | Oueries & Connections 🔹 | × |
| 2 | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | DA | IRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | | | | Queries & connections | |
| 3 | Butter Cash-Settled | Sep 17 | 268.000 | 268.000 | 266.500 | 266.975 | s -0. | 775 | 07/20/17 | 0/c/0 | | | | Queries Connections | |
| 4 | Class III Milk (Pit) | Aug 17 | 0.00 | 16.30 | 16.30 | 16.30s | -0, | 25 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | 1 query | |
| 5 | Class III Milk | Aug 17 | 16.26 | 16.26 | 16.26 | 16.26 | -0.0 | 04 | 19:29 | Q/C/O | | | | Table 1 | B |
| 6 | Nonfat Dry Milk | Sep 17 | 91.550 | 91.775 | 91.550 | 91.7255 | -0. | 775 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | 60 rowr loaded | Lo |
| 7 | Cheese Cash-Settled | Jul 17 | 1.5490 | 1.5500 | 1.5480 | 1.5480s | -0. | 0020 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | 09 TOWS IDaded. | |
| 8 | Class IV Milk | Aug 17 | 16.88 | 16.89 | 16.88 | 16.895 | -0. | 08 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 9 | Dry Whey | Jul 17 | 45.2500 | 45.2500 | 45.2250 | 45.2500 | s -0. | 5250 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 10 | CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | S CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | CURRENCIES | CURREN | CIES CU | RRENCIES | CURRENCIE | S CURRENCIES | | | | | |
| 11 | British Pound | Sep 17 | 1.2999 | 1.2999 | 1.2976 | 1.2980 | -0. | 0019 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 12 | Canadian Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.79510 | 0.79515 | 0.79430 | 0.79515 | -0. | 00015 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 13 | Japanese Yen | Sep 17 | 0.896100 | 0.896600 | 0.894450 | 0.89515 | 0 -0. | 000100 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 14 | Swiss Franc | Sep 17 | 1.05510 | 1.05530 | 1.05390 | 1.05470 | un | ch | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 15 | Euro FX | Sep 17 | 1.16675 | 1.16700 | 1.16535 | 1.16625 | +0. | 00035 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 16 | Australian Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.79530 | 0.79530 | 0.79270 | 0.79300 | -0. | 00250 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 17 | Mexican Peso | Sep 17 | 0.056670 | 0.056670 | 0.056620 | 0.05666 | 0 +0. | 000150 | 20:19 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 18 | New Zealand Dollar | Sep 17 | 0.73930 | 0.74000 | 0.73870 | 0.73940 | -0. | 00120 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 19 | South African Rand | Sep 17 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 | 0.07600 | 0 -0. | 000150 | 19:58 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 20 | Brazilian Real | Sep 17 | 0.31495 | 0.31755 | 0.31450 | 0.31670 | s +0. | 00170 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 21 | Russian Ruble | Sep 17 | 0.016760 | 0.016795 | 0.016680 | 0.01677 | 5s +0. | 000030 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | |
| 22 | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGI | ES EN | ERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | | | | | |
| 23 | Crude Oil WTI | Sep 17 | 46.91 | 47.07 | 46.87 | 47.01 | +0. | 09 | 20:23 | 0/0/0 | | | | v | |
| | C > Table | Chart St | heet1 Shee | 13 (+) | | | | 1 | | | | | Þ | | |
| Rea | dy | | | | | | | | | | | | | | + 100% |

5. Maurice wants to make sure he has the most up-to-date information. He clicks the **Data** tab > **Properties** button > **Query Properties** button.

| E | ∃ 5·∂·∓ | | RR Q3 Sales C | `ampaign.xlsx - | Excel | Tal | ble Tools | Query Tool | s | | | | | | S | ign in | Œ | - | a x | 1 |
|----------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|---|-----------------|-------------|------------|------------------------------|---------------------------|---|----------|---------------------|--------------|--|----------|----------------------|----------|----------|----|
| | ile Home Inse | | Page Lawout Form | ulas Data | Couries. | View [| Design | Query | Q Tell r | ne what you want t | o do | | | | | | | | Q Shar | |
| ۶ Gi Dat | From Text/CSV | Coll Coll e form D | Recent Sources Existing Connections ata | Refrest All + Color Queries | ueries & pe operties lit Links & Connections | ctions ĝ↓ ∡↓ | ZAZ Sort | Filter | Clear Reapply Advanced | Text to Columns 🐱 Data | h Fill nove Duplicates a Validation 👻 Data Tools | E-O Cons | olidate ionships | Wha Analy | t-If Forecast sis * Sheet Forecast | Group | Ungroup S Outline | Subtotal | | |
| A | | . v | fr Contract | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | A Contract | Mo | External Data Propert | ies | 1 | × | | hans | H Time | I ▼ Links ▼ | J | к | L | | Queries | & Co | onnect | ions | • × | |
| 2 | DAIRY | DAI | Query | | | | D | DAIRY | DAIRY | DAIRY | | | | | Queries Co | nnection | IS | | | |
| 3 | Class III Milk (Dit) | Auc | Name: Table 1 | | | | | 0.775 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | - 1 | 1 query | | | | | |
| 5 | Class III Milk | Auc | | | | | | 0.04 | 19:29 | 0/0/0 | | | | 11 | The Party of the | | | | D | |
| 6 | Nonfat Dry Milk | Ser | Data formatting and I | ayout | | | | 0.775 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | 11 | LUI Table 1 | | | | Lð | |
| 7 | Cheese Cash-Settled | Jul | Include row num | bers 🗹 Presen | /e column sort/f | ilter/layout | - | 0.0020 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | 1.1 | 69 rows | loaded. | | | | |
| 8 | Class IV Milk | Auc | M Adjust column w | idth M Presen | e cell formattin | 9 | - | 0.08 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | Dry Whey | Jul | If the number of rov | vs in the data rar | ige changes up | on refresh: | - | 0.5250 | 07/20/17 | 0/0/0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | CURRENCIES | CUF | Insert <u>cells</u> fo | r new data, delet | te unused cells | | CIES C | URRENCIES | CURRENCIE | ES CURRENCIES | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | British Pound | Sep | O Insert entire i | ows for new dat | a, clear unused | cells | -(| 0.0019 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | Canadian Dollar | Sep | | song ceis with h | ew data, clear u | nuseu cens | -(| 0.00015 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | Japanese Yen | Sep | | | OK | Cancel | -(| 0.000100 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | Swiss Franc | Sep | | Data | | | u | inch | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | Euro FX | Sep 1 | 1.16675 | 1.16700 | 1.16535 | 1.16625 | + | 0.00035 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | Australian Dollar | Sep 1 | 0.79530 | 0.79530 | 0.79270 | 0.79300 | -(| 0.00250 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | Mexican Peso | Sep 1 | 0.056670 | 0.056670 | 0.056620 | 0.056660 | + | 0.000150 | 20:19 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | New Zealand Dollar | Sep 1 | 0.73930 | 0.74000 | 0.73870 | 0.73940 | -(| 0.00120 | 20:23 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | South African Rand | Sep 1 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 | 0.076000 |) -(| 0.000150 | 19:58 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | Brazilian Real | Sep 1 | 0.31495 | 0.31755 | 0.31450 | 0.31670 | . + | 0.00170 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | Russian Ruble | Sep 1 | 0.016760 | 0.016795 | 0.016680 | 0.016775 | is + | 0.000030 | 07/20/17 | Q/C/O | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | ENERGIES | ENER | GIES ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIE | S E | NERGIES | ENERGIES | ENERGIES | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | Crude Oil WTI | Sen 1 | 7 46.91 | 47.07 | 46.87 | 47.01 | + | 0.09 | 20:23 | 0/0/0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Table | Char | t Dairy Prices | Sheet3 | (+) | | | 4 | | | | | | Þ | | | | | | |
| Des | du . | | | | | | | | | | | | | | HH R | n m | | | - + 1009 | č. |

6. A new dialog box opens and he checks the box to **Refresh** every 60 minutes. He can change this to whatever time frame he desires to make sure he always has updated data.





| . ⊟ 5·∂·∓ | | | | | Table Too | | | | | | | | | | | × |
|---|---|---|-------------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|--|---------------|---|------------------------|--------------------|----------|--------|-------|
| File Home | Insert Page L | ayout Formi | alas Data | Review | View Design | Query | Q Tell r | | o do | | | | | | | Share |
| Get Data * From Table/ Get & A1 * : | W B Recent Query Properties Query game: Description: | Sources Table 1 | | eries & Connect | ions 21 A 7 | Filter | Clear Reapply Advanced | Text to Columns Data | h Fill ove Duplicates Validation * Data Tools | ■ Consolidate | What-If Fore Analysis * Sh Forecast | ecast Group | Ungroup Outline | Subtotal | 6 0 | × |
| A 1 Contract 2 DAIRY 3 Butter Cash-Settl 4 Class III Milk (Pit) | Usage Defin Refresh control Last Refreshed | ition Used In | | | | G Tge RY 75 | H Time DAIRY 07/20/17 07/20/17 | Links DAIRY Q/C/O Q/C/O | J 1 | (L | Cue Queries | ries & Co Connectio | onnect | ions | Ť | × |
| 5 Class III Milk 6 Nonfat Dry Milk 7 Cheese Cash-Set 8 Class IV Milk | Refresh ev | ery DO De to when gpening one s connection on t Data Load | rtes the two ternal data rang | saving | the workbook | 4 75 020 8 | 07/20/17 07/20/17 07/20/17 07/20/17 | Q/C/O Q/C/O Q/C/O Q/C/O | | | Ta 69 | ble 1 rows loaded. | | | | B |
| 9 Dry Whey 10 CURRENCIES 11 British Pound 12 Canadian Dollar | OLAP Server For Retrieve the fo | matting ollowing formats formats format Fill Col Text Co | from the server of | when using this | connection | 250 NUNCIES 219 2015 | 07/20/17 5 CURRENCI 20:23 20:22 | Q/C/O ES CURRENCIES Q/C/O Q/C/O | | | | | | | | |
| 13 Japanese Yen 14 Swiss Franc 15 Euro FX 16 Australian Dollar | OLAP Drill Throu Maximum num Language | igh iber of records to | retrieve: | \$ | | 00100 1 0021 | 20:23 20:23 20:23 20:23 | Q/C/O Q/C/O Q/C/O | | | | | | | | |
| 17 Mexican Peso 18 New Zealand Dol 19 South African Rar | Retrieve da | ta and errors in t | he Office displa | y language wher | Cancel | 00150 0120 00150 | 20:19 20:23 19:58 | Q/C/O Q/C/O Q/C/O | | | | | | | | |
| 20 Brazilian Real 21 Russian Ruble | Sep 17 Sep 17 | 0.31495 | 0.31755 | 0.31450 | 0.316705 0.0167755 | +0.00170 | 07/20/17 07/20/17 | Q/C/O Q/C/O | | | | | | | | |
| 22 ENERGIES 23 Crude Oil WTI Tab | Sen 17 | 46.91 Dairy Prices | 47.07 Sheet3 | 46.87 (+) | 47.01 | +0.09 | 20:23 | O/C/O | | | 2 U | | | | | |

7. The data table now refreshes and Maurice can conduct his research on the market price of dairy commodities.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18686

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Internet and Excel. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

8.20: Internet and Excel is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.21: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills

Now that you've learned more about Microsoft Excel, let's revisit a few of the hypotheticals we talked about in the beginning of this module:

- *You may find yourself completing the same tasks over and over again.* This can often be automated, either with a function or with a macro.
- *You may find yourself re-creating tables, because they weren't organized the way you need them to be.* The PivotTable tool may be a good solution for this.

As with Word, there's more that Microsoft Excel can do. If you find yourself curious, Microsoft's website is a good place to check, or you can run a web search for how to use a particular feature.

8.21: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





8.22: Assignment- Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet

In this assignment, we will record a macro and run it to modify a spreadsheet of car loan data received on a weekly basis. After recording a macro for the first week, run the macro on a new set of data for week two.

To complete this assignment, download the car loan file here. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Open the workbook and save the new Module 8 assignment file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_CarLoans.xlsx, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 2. **Scenario:** Each week you receive a worksheet filled with car loan data. To make it easier to analyze on a weekly, record a macro and change the worksheet look, calculate the monthly loan payment amount and identify which loans are leases. (Hint: Read through all the instructions first and practice going through the steps before starting the macro recording.)

| A | utoSave 💽 Of | 089. | 9 · 🖪 | | Modu | ıle+8+assignm | ent v3 - Excel | | ,O Sign i | in 🖭 | - 0 | × |
|------|---------------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------|---------------|----------------------|--|---|--------------------|----------|------|
| File | Home | Insert | Page Layou | t Formula | as Data | Review | View De | eveloper | Help Power | Pivot | 🖻 Share | 9 |
| Norr | nal Page Break Preview | Page Layo | out | tuler ⊻Fo Gridlines ⊻H | ormula Bar eadings | Zoom 100% | Zoom to Selection | └── New Win ── Arrange A む Freeze Pa | dow ⊟ Split All ☑ Hide nes ∽ □ Unhide | D) Swite | h Macros | |
| | Workbo | ok Views | | Show | | Zoor | n | | Window | | Macros | ^ |
| N20 | * | : × • | / f _x | | | | | | | | | * |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | - |
| 1 | חו | PV | NPR | Interest Bate | Employ ment | Annual | Loan | Address | Total | Ownershi n Type | | |
| 2 | 2365921 | 18000 | 36 | 0.089 | 7 years | 70000 | Source Veri | TX | 20573.08126 | Lease | | |
| 3 | 2365924 | 2500 | 60 | 0.079 | 5 years | 80000 | Not Verified | KS | 3034.285455 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | 21000 | 36 | 0.0751 | 4 years | 50000 | Source Veri | тх | 23519.77316 | Own | | |
| 5 | 2365930 | 35000 | 36 | 0.1903 | 2 years | 35000 | Source Veri | СТ | 46205.69903 | Lease | | |
| 6 | 2365933 | 10000 | 36 | 0.079 | 1 year | 65000 | Source Veri | PA | 11264.49143 | Own | | |
| 7 | 2365936 | 7000 | 36 | 0.1758 | 5 years | 84000 | Not Verified | UT | 9057.397123 | Own | | |
| 8 | 2365939 | 24000 | 60 | 0.1242 | 3 years | 75000 | Source Veri | FL | 32338.46748 | Own | | |
| 9 | 2365942 | 10625 | 36 | 0.1629 | 20+ years | 35000 | Source Veri | NJ | 13502.3932 | Lease | | |
| 10 | 2365945 | 5000 | 36 | 0.0991 | 2 years | 40000 | Verified | тх | 5800.490859 | Own | | |
| 11 | 2365948 | 8050 | 36 | 0.1171 | 10+ years | 100000 | Not Verified | CA | 9585.416232 | Own | | |
| 12 | 2365951 | 5600 | 36 | 0.1349 | 20+ years | 40000 | Source Veri | CA | 6840.378871 | Own | | |
| 13 | 2365954 | 7500 | 60 | 0.0991 | 1 year | 52000 | Source Veri | AZ | 9541.254662 | Lease | | |
| 14 | 2365957 | 7000 | 36 | 0.1269 | 10+ years | 40000 | Verified | FL | 8453.297326 | Lease | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | 5400 | 36 | 0.0991 | 10+ years | 85000 | Not Verified | AZ | 6264.530128 | Lease | | |
| 16 | 2365963 | 16000 | 36 | 0.1825 | 5 years | 55000 | Verified | MA | 20896.0885 | Own | | _ |
| 17 | 2365966 | 35000 | 36 | 0.1727 | 3 years | 110000 | Not Verified | NJ | 45091.93122 | Lease | | _ |
| 18 | 2365969 | 6000 | 36 | 0.1825 | 10+ years | 100000 | Not Verified | со | 7836.033186 | Own | | _ |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| 4 | E. | Week 1 V | Veek 2 | + | | | | • | | | | Þ |
| 10 | | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | - + - : | 120% |

- 3. **Record Macro:** Open the spreadsheet and from the View tab or the Developer tab start a macro recording. Name the macro whatever you would like, add a short-cut key (optional), and write a description for it.
 - a. Once the recording is started walk through these steps, then stop the recording.

| Reco | ard Macro |
|------|---|
| Ma | cro name: |
| | CarLoans |
| Sho | ortcut <u>k</u> ey: |
| | Ctrl+Shift+ L |
| Sto | re macro <u>i</u> n: |
| | This Workbook |
| Des | cription: |
| | Weekly report of car loans to format and calculate monthly payment amount. |
| | OK Cancel |





b. Change the title row to any color, change the font color if needed, and bold the titles.

| А | utoSave 💽 Off | 9 🛛 9~ | ~ (? ~) | ⊽ Module | +8+assignmen | t v2 - E | 𝒫 Search | | | Sign in | F – | | × |
|------|---------------|---------------------------|---|---------------------|---|----------|-------------------|--|----------------|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|------------|------|
| File | e Home | Insert | Page Layou | t Formula | as Data | Review | View De | eveloper | Help Power | Pivot | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 | ⊐ Comme | nts |
| Pas | | Calibri B I <u>U</u> ∽ | 11 ↓ | A^ A | = = <u>=</u> ₩ = = = ⊡ = = ≫~ | Genera | ₩ % 9 ₩ ₩ | Conditional Format as Ta Cell Styles ~ | Formatting ~ E | Insert v Delete v Format v | ∑ ~ 2⁄7 ~ ↓ ~ ∕ ~ ♦ ~ | J Ideas | |
| Clip | board Ivi | | Font | K | Alignment | Numb | er ועי | Style | 5 | Cells | Editing | Ideas | ^ |
| K15 | - | : × | $\checkmark f_x$ | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н | I | J | K | L | |
| | | | | | Employ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Interest | ment | Annual | Loan | | Total | Ownershi | i | | |
| 1 | ID | PV | NPR | Rate | Length | Income | Status | Address | Payment | р Туре | | | |
| 2 | 2365921 | 18000 | 36 | 0.089 | 7 years | 70000 | Source Veri | TX | 20573.08126 | Lease | | | |
| 3 | 2365924 | 2500 | 60 | 0.079 | 5 years | 80000 | Not Verifie | c KS | 3034.285455 | Lease | | | _ |
| 4 | 2365927 | 21000 | 36 | 0.0751 | 4 years | 50000 | Source Veri | тх | 23519.77316 | 5 Own | | | _ |
| 5 | 2365930 | 35000 | 36 | 0.1903 | 2 years | 35000 | Source Veri | CT | 46205.69903 | Lease | | | _ |
| 6 | 2365933 | 10000 | 36 | 0.079 | 1 year | 65000 | Source Veri | i PA | 11264.49143 | 8 Own | | | |
| 7 | 2365936 | 7000 | 36 | 0.1758 | 5 years | 84000 | Not Verifie | ¢UT | 9057.397123 | 8 Own | | | |
| 8 | 2365939 | 24000 | 60 | 0.1242 | 3 years | 75000 | Source Veri | i FL | 32338.46748 | 8 Own | | | |
| 9 | 2365942 | 10625 | 36 | 0.1629 | 20+ years | 35000 | Source Veri | i NJ | 13502.3932 | Lease | | | |
| 10 | 2365945 | 5000 | 36 | 0.0991 | 2 years | 40000 | Verified | ТХ | 5800.490859 | Own | | | |
| 11 | 2365948 | 8050 | 36 | 0.1171 | 10+ years | 100000 | Not Verifie | αCA | 9585.416232 | 2 Own | | | |
| 12 | 2365951 | 5600 | 36 | 0.1349 | 20+ years | 40000 | Source Veri | i CA | 6840.378871 | Own | | | _ |
| 13 | 2365954 | 7500 | 60 | 0.0991 | 1 year | 52000 | Source Veri | i AZ | 9541.254662 | Lease | | | _ |
| 14 | 2365957 | 7000 | 36 | 0.1269 | 10+ years | 40000 | Verified | FL | 8453.297326 | i Lease | | | _ |
| 15 | 2365960 | 5400 | 36 | 0.0991 | 10+ years | 85000 | Not Verifie | c AZ | 6264.530128 | 8 Lease | , | | _ |
| 16 | 2365963 | 16000 | 36 | 0.1825 | 5 years | 55000 | Verified | MA | 20896.0885 | 5 Own | | | _ |
| 17 | 2365966 | 35000 | 36 | 0.1727 | 3 years | 110000 | Not Verifie | c NJ | 45091.93122 | Lease | | | _ |
| 18 | 2365969 | 6000 | 36 | 0.1825 | 10+ years | 100000 | Not Verifie | (CO | 7836.033186 | 5 Own | | | _ |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | | Week 1 V | Veek 2 | + | | | | | | | | | Þ |
| Read | ly EO | | | | | | | | = | | | - + 1 | .20% |





| c. | Change all the currence | v columns to a currenc | v format (| this includes the PV. Annual | Income. Total Payment). |
|----|-------------------------|------------------------|------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|
| | | J | | | |

| A | utoSave 💽 Off | D 🛛 9- | ୯੶ ฿ ◄ | Module+8 | +assignment v | 2 - E 🔎 | Search | , | Sig | n in 🖬 | | × | |
|---------------|---------------------|-------------------------------|--|---|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------|-------|--|
| File | e Home | Insert P | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review View | Develope | er Help | Power Pivot | 🖻 Sha | re 🖓 Comm | ients | |
| Pas Y | | Calibri B I <u>U</u> ∽ E | 11 11 1 2 4 4 | A^ A [×] ≡ <u>A</u> × ≡ <u>∓</u> | = <u>=</u> ₽₽ = = ፼ • = ≫•• | General → \$ ~ % 9 000 | Conditi | ional Formatt as Table ~ /les ~ | ing ~ 🔠 Inser 🖾 Delet 🖽 Form | t v ∑v te v ↓v natv ♦v | ŹŸ → , | | |
| Clip | board 🗔 | Fo | nt | A ki | lignment | Number f | 2 | Styles | Cells | s Edit | ing Ideas | ~ | |
| K7 ▼ : × ✓ fx | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | | |
| | | | | | Employ | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Interest | ment | Annual | Loan | | Total | Ownershi | | | |
| 1 | ID | PV | NPR | Rate | Length | Income | Status | Address | Payment | р Туре | | | |
| 2 | 2365921 | \$ 18,000.00 | 36 | 0.089 | 7 years | \$ 70,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 20,573.08 | Lease | | | |
| 3 | 2365924 | \$ 2,500.00 | 60 | 0.079 | 5 years | \$ 80,000.00 | Not Verified | KS | \$ 3,034.29 | Lease | | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 0.0751 | 4 years | \$ 50,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 23,519.77 | Own | | | |
| 5 | 2365930 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 0.1903 | 2 years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | СТ | \$ 46,205.70 | Lease | | | |
| 6 | 2365933 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 0.079 | 1 year | \$ 65,000.00 | Source Veri | PA | \$ 11,264.49 | Own | | | |
| 7 | 2365936 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 0.1758 | 5 years | \$ 84,000.00 | Not Verified | UT | \$ 9,057.40 | Own | | | |
| 8 | 2365939 | \$ 24,000.00 | 60 | 0.1242 | 3 years | \$ 75,000.00 | Source Veri | FL | \$ 32,338.47 | Own | | | |
| 9 | 2365942 | \$ 10,625.00 | 36 | 0.1629 | 20+ years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | NJ | \$ 13,502.39 | Lease | | | |
| 10 | 2365945 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 0.0991 | 2 years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | тх | \$ 5,800.49 | Own | | | |
| 11 | 2365948 | \$ 8,050.00 | 36 | 0.1171 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | CA | \$ 9,585.42 | Own | | | |
| 12 | 2365951 | \$ 5,600.00 | 36 | 0.1349 | 20+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Source Veri | CA | \$ 6,840.38 | Own | | | |
| 13 | 2365954 | \$ 7,500.00 | 60 | 0.0991 | 1 year | \$ 52,000.00 | Source Veri | AZ | \$ 9,541.25 | Lease | | | |
| 14 | 2365957 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 0.1269 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | FL | \$ 8,453.30 | Lease | | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | \$ 5,400.00 | 36 | 0.0991 | 10+ years | \$ 85,000.00 | Not Verified | AZ | \$ 6,264.53 | Lease | | | |
| 16 | 2365963 | \$ 16,000.00 | 36 | 0.1825 | 5 years | \$ 55,000.00 | Verified | MA | \$ 20,896.09 | Own | | | |
| 1/ | 2365966 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 0.1727 | 3 years | \$ 110,000.00 | Not Verified | NJ | \$ 45,091.93 | Lease | | | |
| 18 | 2365969 | \$ 6,000.00 | 36 | 0.1825 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | CO | \$ 7,836.03 | Own | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | ✓ Week1 Week2 ⊕ : ◀ | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Read | y Eo | | | | | | | | Ⅲ 🗉 | ─ | + | 120% | |


d. Change the Interest Rate column to a percentage (%).

| A | utoSave 💽 Off | | | Module+8 | +assignment v | /2 - E 🔎 | Search | | Sig | n in 🖻 | - 0 | × |
|-------------|---------------|------------------------------|------------------------------------|---|---------------|---|--------------|---|---|---|-----------------------|-------|
| File | e Home | Insert P | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review View | Develope | er Help | Power Pivot | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Comn | nents |
| Pas Clip | te do s | Calibri B I U ~ E Fo | - 11 - ↓ A - ↓ <u>A</u> ~ nt | A A → A → A → A → A → A → A | ≡ | General ~ \$ ~ % 9 €0 -00 Number | Condit | ional Formatt : as Table ~ /les ~ Styles | ing ~ I Inser I Delet I Form Cells | t v ∑ v te v ↓ v tat v ∲ v Editi | 2 V V V V Ideas | |
| L2 | · · | : × ✓ | fx | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | • | D | | D | F | E | G | | т | | V | |
| | A | D | C | U | Employ | Г | G | п | 1 | J | ĸ | |
| | | | | Interest | ment | Annual | Loan | | Total | Ownershi | | |
| 1 | ID | PV | NPR | Rate | Length | Income | Status | Address | Payment | р Туре | | |
| 2 | 2365921 | \$ 18,000.00 | 36 | 9% | 7 years | \$ 70,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 20,573.08 | Lease | | |
| 3 | 2365924 | \$ 2,500.00 | 60 | 8% | 5 years | \$ 80,000.00 | Not Verifie | KS | \$ 3,034.29 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 8% | 4 years | \$ 50,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 23,519.77 | Own | | |
| 5 | 2365930 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 19% | 2 years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | СТ | \$ 46,205.70 | Lease | | |
| 6 | 2365933 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 8% | 1 year | \$ 65,000.00 | Source Veri | PA | \$ 11,264.49 | Own | | |
| 7 | 2365936 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 18% | 5 years | \$ 84,000.00 | Not Verifie | ιUT | \$ 9,057.40 | Own | | |
| 8 | 2365939 | \$ 24,000.00 | 60 | 12% | 3 years | \$ 75,000.00 | Source Veri | FL | \$ 32,338.47 | Own | | |
| 9 | 2365942 | \$ 10,625.00 | 36 | 16% | 20+ years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | NJ | \$ 13,502.39 | Lease | | |
| 10 | 2365945 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 10% | 2 years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | ТХ | \$ 5,800.49 | Own | | |
| 11 | 2365948 | \$ 8,050.00 | 36 | 12% | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verifie | CA | \$ 9,585.42 | Own | | |
| 12 | 2365951 | \$ 5,600.00 | 36 | 13% | 20+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Source Veri | CA | \$ 6,840.38 | Own | | |
| 13 | 2365954 | \$ 7,500.00 | 60 | 10% | 1 year | \$ 52,000.00 | Source Veri | AZ | \$ 9,541.25 | Lease | | |
| 14 | 2365957 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 13% | 10+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | FL | \$ 8,453.30 | Lease | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | \$ 5,400.00 | 36 | 10% | 10+ years | \$ 85,000.00 | Not Verified | (AZ | \$ 6,264.53 | Lease | | |
| 10 | 2202202 | \$ 16,000.00 | 30 | 18% | 5 years | \$ 55,000.00 | Verified | | \$ 20,896.09 | Uwn | | |
| 18 | 2365969 | \$ 6,000,00 | 36 | 1770 | 10+ voars | \$ 100,000,00 | Not Verifie | (CO | \$ 7,836,03 | Own | | |
| 19 | 2303505 | ÷ 0,000.00 | 50 | 10/0 | 101 years | ÷ 100,000.00 | Not verifier | | φ 7,050.05 | C WII | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | Wash 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Edit | | Week 1 We | ек 2 (- | 9 | | | | • | | m | | 1209/ |
| Eait | EO | | | | | | | | | 8 | ++ | 120% |

e. Add in a new column to the right of the Interest Rate column and call it PMT.

f. **Financial Function:** In the new column use the PMT function and calculate the monthly payment amount for the first loan. (Remember the rate needs to be divided by 12 to get the monthly payment and place a minus sign before the PV cell (-B2) if you don't want the negative red numbers.)



g. Autofill the rest of the column with the formula to discover each loan's monthly payment amount.

| A | utoSave 💽 Off |) 日 り~ | ~ 🖪 ଟ | Module+8- | +assignment v | /2 - Ex | 𝒫 Search | | | Si | gn in 🗗 | - 0 | × |
|------|---------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------|----------------------------|-----------|--|---|------------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------|-------|
| File | e Home | Insert P | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review \ | /iew Develop | er Help | Power Piv | ot | 🖻 Sha | re 🖓 Comi | ments |
| Pas | | Calibri B I <u>U</u> → E | • 11 • / ⊟ • <u> </u> | | = <u>-</u> »~ = = = = = | eb €₽ | $\begin{array}{c c} General & \checkmark \\ \$ & \checkmark & \% & \$ \\ \hline & & & & & \\ \hline & & & & & \\ \hline & & & &$ | 🔛 Conditional 🞲 Format as T 🗊 Cell Styles v | Formatting ~ able ~ | Insert → The Delete → Format → | ∑ ~ 2⁄2 ↓ ~ ,0 ~ ♦ ~ | Ideas | |
| Clip | board 🗔 | Fo | nt | F3 | Alignment | F2 | Number 🖂 | Sty | les | Cells | Editing | Ideas | ^ |
| F20 | - | : × 🗸 | f_{x} | | | | | | | | | | ٣ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | Ι | J | К | L | N |
| | | | | | | Employ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Interest | | ment | Annual | Loan | | Total | Ownershi | | |
| 1 | ID | PV | NPR | Rate | PMT | Length | Income | Status | Address | Payment | р Туре | | |
| 2 | 2365921 | \$ 18,000.00 | 36 | 9% | \$571.56 | 7 years | \$ 70,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 20,573.08 | Lease | | |
| 3 | 2365924 | \$ 2,500.00 | 60 | 8% | \$50.57 | 5 years | \$ 80,000.00 | Not Verifie | KS | \$ 3,034.29 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$653.33 | 4 years | \$ 50,000.00 | Source Veri | ТХ | \$ 23,519.77 | Own | | |
| 5 | 2365930 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 19% | \$1,283.49 | 2 years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | СТ | \$ 46,205.70 | Lease | | |
| 6 | 2365933 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$312.90 | 1 year | \$ 65,000.00 | Source Veri | PA | \$ 11,264.49 | Own | | |
| 7 | 2365936 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$251.59 | 5 years | \$ 84,000.00 | Not Verifie | UT | \$ 9,057.40 | Own | | |
| 8 | 2365939 | \$ 24,000.00 | 60 | 12% | \$538.97 | 3 years | \$ 75,000.00 | Source Veri | FL | \$ 32,338.47 | Own | | |
| 9 | 2365942 | \$ 10,625.00 | 36 | 16% | \$375.07 | 20+ years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Veri | IJ | \$ 13,502.39 | Lease | | |
| 10 | 2365945 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$161.12 | 2 years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | тх | \$ 5,800.49 | Own | | |
| 11 | 2365948 | \$ 8,050.00 | 36 | 12% | \$266.26 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verifie | CA | \$ 9,585.42 | Own | | |
| 12 | 2365951 | \$ 5,600.00 | 36 | 13% | \$190.01 | 20+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Source Veri | CA | \$ 6,840.38 | Own | | |
| 13 | 2365954 | \$ 7,500.00 | 60 | 10% | \$159.02 | 1 year | \$ 52,000.00 | Source Veri | AZ | \$ 9,541.25 | Lease | | |
| 14 | 2365957 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 13% | \$234.81 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | FL | \$ 8,453.30 | Lease | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | \$ 5,400.00 | 36 | 10% | \$174.01 | 10+ years | \$ 85,000.00 | Not Verifie | AZ | \$ 6,264.53 | Lease | | |
| 16 | 2365963 | \$ 16,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$580.45 | 5 years | \$ 55,000.00 | Verified | MA | \$ 20,896.09 | Own | | |
| 17 | 2365966 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 17% | \$1,252.55 | 3 years | \$ 110,000.00 | Not Verifie | IJ | \$ 45,091.93 | Lease | | |
| 18 | 2365969 | \$ 6,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$217.67 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verifie | со | \$ 7,836.03 | Own | | |
| 19 | | | | | | . | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | • | Week 1 We | ek 2 🤅 🤆 | F) | | | | : • | 1 | | | | |
| Read | y 🐻 | | | | | | | | | | 巴 | + | 120% |



h. Add filters to column titles and sort the monthly payment amount from the highest to the lowest.

| A | utoSave 💽 Off |) 日 り~ (| C' ~ 🖪 | ≂ Mo | odule+8+assigi | nment v2 - E. | 🔎 Searc | :h | | Sign in | m – | | × |
|------|---------------|----------------------------|-----------------|---------|----------------|--------------------------------------|---------------|---|-----------|----------------------------------|---|--------|------|
| File | e Home | Insert P | age Layo | ut For | rmulas Da | ata Revie | w View [| Developer Help | Powe | r Pivot | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 | ⊐ Comm | ents |
| Pas | | alibri B I <u>U</u> → E | ~ 11 ⊡~ ⊘ | ~ A^ A~ | | ₽ ₽ ₽ ₽ ₽ ₽ ₽ ₽ | ercentage ~ | 🖁 Conditional Forma 🖥 Format as Table ~ 🖥 Cell Styles ~ | tting ~ { | Insert → Delete → Format → | ∑ ~ ² 7 ~ ↓ ~ ,○ ~ ♦ ~ | | |
| Clip | board 🕞 | For | nt | 5 | Alignme | nt 🗔 | Number 🗔 | Styles | | Cells | Editing | Ideas | ~ |
| E1 | - | : × 🗸 | f _x | PMT | | | | | | | | | ¥ |
| | А | В | C | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | К | | L 🔺 |
| | | | | | | Employ | | | | | | | |
| | | | l I | nterest | | ment | Annual | | | Total | Ownershi | ip | |
| 1 | ID 👻 | PV 🗸 | NP - F | late 🕞 | PMT 斗 | Length 👻 | Income 🚽 👻 | Loan Status 🗸 | Addres | Payment | Туре | - | |
| 2 | 2365930 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 19% | \$1,283.49 | 2 years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Verified | СТ | \$ 46,205.70 | Lease | | |
| 3 | 2365966 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 17% | \$1,252.55 | 3 years | \$ 110,000.00 | Not Verified | NJ | \$ 45,091.93 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$653.33 | 4 years | \$ 50,000.00 | Source Verified | ТХ | \$ 23,519.77 | Own | | |
| 5 | 2365963 | \$ 16,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$580.45 | 5 years | \$ 55,000.00 | Verified | MA | \$ 20,896.09 | Own | | |
| 6 | 2365921 | \$ 18,000.00 | 36 | 9% | \$571.56 | 7 years | \$ 70,000.00 | Source Verified | ТХ | \$ 20,573.08 | Lease | | |
| 7 | 2365939 | \$ 24,000.00 | 60 | 12% | \$538.97 | 3 years | \$ 75,000.00 | Source Verified | FL | \$ 32,338.47 | Own | | |
| 8 | 2365942 | \$ 10,625.00 | 36 | 16% | \$375.07 | 20+ years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Verified | NJ | \$ 13,502.39 | Lease | | |
| 9 | 2365933 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$312.90 | 1 year | \$ 65,000.00 | Source Verified | PA | \$ 11,264.49 | Own | | |
| 10 | 2365948 | \$ 8,050.00 | 36 | 12% | \$266.26 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | CA | \$ 9,585.42 | Own | | |
| 11 | 2365936 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$251.59 | 5 years | \$ 84,000.00 | Not Verified | UT | \$ 9,057.40 | Own | | |
| 12 | 2365957 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 13% | \$234.81 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | FL | \$ 8,453.30 | Lease | | |
| 13 | 2365969 | \$ 6,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$217.67 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | со | \$ 7,836.03 | Own | | |
| 14 | 2365951 | \$ 5,600.00 | 36 | 13% | \$190.01 | 20+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Source Verified | CA | \$ 6,840.38 | Own | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | \$ 5,400.00 | 36 | 10% | \$174.01 | 10+ years | \$ 85,000.00 | Not Verified | AZ | \$ 6,264.53 | Lease | | |
| 16 | 2365945 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$161.12 | 2 years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | ТХ | \$ 5,800.49 | Own | | |
| 17 | 2365954 | \$ 7,500.00 | 60 | 10% | \$159.02 | 1 year | \$ 52,000.00 | Source Verified | AZ | \$ 9,541.25 | Lease | | |
| 18 | 2365924 | \$ 2,500.00 | 60 | 8% | \$50.57 | 5 years | \$ 80,000.00 | Not Verified | KS | \$ 3,034.29 | Lease | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Þ | Week 1 Wee | ek 2 | (+) | | | | : • | | | | | |
| 50 | | | 1 | - | | | | <u> </u> | ⊞ | ■ — - | | + | 120% |



i. Use conditional formatting in the 'Ownership Type' column to highlight all car leases in red.

| A | utoSave Off |) 🛛 り <u>、</u> | 9 - E | È | odule+8+assig | nment v2 - E | 🔎 Sea | rch | | Sig | n in 🖬 | - 0 | × |
|------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------------------------------|---------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---------------|--|----------|---------|
| File | e Home | Insert P | age Lay | vout Fo | rmulas Da | ata Revie | w View [| Developer Help | p Power | Pivot | 암 Share | e 🖓 Comn | nents |
| Pas | | alibri BIU∽ E | → 11 E ~ : | - A^ A` <u>∕</u> • - <u>A</u> - | | : ≫~ ~ e | General \$ ~ % € 0 .00 0 → 0 | Condition Condition Format Cell Style | onal Formattin as Table ~ es ~ | ig 👻 🔠 Insert | $\begin{array}{c c} \vdots & \cdot & \sum & \cdot & z \\ e & \cdot & & \hline & & & \\ at & & & & \\ \end{array}$ | V Joers | |
| Clip | board Ivi | For | nt | | Alli Alli | gnment | Number | | Styles | Cells | Editin | g Ideas | |
| N19 | • • | : × 🗸 | $f_{\mathcal{K}}$ | | | | | | | | | | ٣ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н | Ι | J | К | L | |
| | | | | | | Employ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Interest | | ment | Annual | | | Total | Ownership | | |
| 1 | ID 👻 | PV 👻 | NP - | Rate 👻 | PMT 斗 | Length 👻 | Income 🚽 👻 | Loan Status - | Addre: - | Payment - | Туре 👻 | | |
| 2 | 2365930 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 19% | \$1,283.49 | 2 years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Verified | СТ | \$ 46,205.70 | Lease | | |
| 3 | 2365966 | \$ 35,000.00 | 36 | 17% | \$1,252.55 | 3 years | \$ 110,000.00 | Not Verified | NJ | \$ 45,091.93 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 2365927 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$653.33 | 4 years | \$ 50,000.00 | Source Verified | ТХ | \$ 23,519.77 | Own | | |
| 5 | 2365963 | \$ 16,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$580.45 | 5 years | \$ 55,000.00 | Verified | MA | \$ 20,896.09 | Own | | |
| 6 | 2365921 | \$ 18,000.00 | 36 | 9% | \$571.56 | 7 years | \$ 70,000.00 | Source Verified | ТХ | \$ 20,573.08 | Lease | | |
| 7 | 2365939 | \$ 24,000.00 | 60 | 12% | \$538.97 | 3 years | \$ 75,000.00 | Source Verified | FL | \$ 32,338.47 | Own | | |
| 8 | 2365942 | \$ 10,625.00 | 36 | 16% | \$375.07 | 20+ years | \$ 35,000.00 | Source Verified | NJ | \$ 13,502.39 | Lease | | |
| 9 | 2365933 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 8% | \$312.90 | 1 year | \$ 65,000.00 | Source Verified | PA | \$ 11,264.49 | Own | | |
| 10 | 2365948 | \$ 8,050.00 | 36 | 12% | \$266.26 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | CA | \$ 9,585.42 | Own | | |
| 11 | 2365936 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$251.59 | 5 years | \$ 84,000.00 | Not Verified | UT | \$ 9,057.40 | Own | | |
| 12 | 2365957 | \$ 7,000.00 | 36 | 13% | \$234.81 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | FL | \$ 8,453.30 | Lease | | |
| 13 | 2365969 | \$ 6,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$217.67 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000.00 | Not Verified | СО | \$ 7,836.03 | Own | | |
| 14 | 2365951 | \$ 5,600.00 | 36 | 13% | \$190.01 | 20+ years | \$ 40,000.00 | Source Verified | CA | \$ 6,840.38 | Own | | |
| 15 | 2365960 | \$ 5,400.00 | 36 | 10% | \$174.01 | 10+ years | \$ 85,000.00 | Not Verified | AZ | \$ 6,264.53 | Lease | | |
| 16 | 2365945 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$161.12 | 2 years | \$ 40,000.00 | Verified | ТХ | \$ 5,800.49 | Own | | |
| 17 | 2365954 | \$ 7,500.00 | 60 | 10% | \$159.02 | 1 year | \$ 52,000.00 | Source Verified | AZ | \$ 9,541.25 | Lease | | |
| 18 | 2365924 | \$ 2,500.00 | 60 | 8% | \$50.57 | 5 years | \$ 80,000.00 | Not Verified | KS | \$ 3,034.29 | Lease | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - 11 | Þ | Week 1 Wee | ek 2 | (+) | | | | | | | 1 | | |
| Read | v Eo | | | | | | | | | | 巴 | + | 120% |

j. Select the entire table and autofit the columns to be wide enough to fit all the data

k. Stop the macro recording.

4. Select 'Week 2' worksheet tab containing a new week of information. (Note: Make a copy of this tab first in case you need to redo the Macro. Remember once a Macro is run there is no going back with 'Undo Typing' option.)



5. Run the new macro and watch the new information change almost instantly.

| A | utoSave 💽 Off | 0 🛛 9- (| (- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - | ≂ Module+ | 8+assignmei | nt v3 - Ex | O Search | | | Sign in | a – | | × |
|------|---------------|-------------------------------|--|----------------------------|-------------|---|-----------------------------------|---|----------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------|------------|----------|
| File | Home | Insert P | age Layou | t Formulas | Data | Review Vie | w Develope | r Help Powe | r Pivot | | 🖻 Share | Comment | ts |
| Pas | | Calibri B I <u>U</u> ~ E | 11 □ - | - A^ A = - <u>A</u> - ≡ | = = * | ~ ĕ₽ ^{Ga} \$ = == Ē ~ €₀ | eneral ✓ ✓ % 9 8 ÷ % | Conditional Formatt Format as Table ~ Cell Styles ~ | ng ~ 🔠 Inser 😿 Dele 🖽 Form | t v ∑ v te v ↓ v s nat v ◊ v F | AZY Sort & Find & | 4 Ideas | |
| Clip | board 🖫 | For | nt | 2 | Alignme | ent 🗔 I | Number 🗔 | Styles | Cell | 5 | Editing | Ideas | ^ |
| 01 | * | ÷ × √ | f_{x} | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | I | J | K | L | |
| | | | 1 | Interest | | Employment | Annual | | | Total | Ownership | | ٦. |
| 1 | ID 👻 | PV 👻 | NPR 👻 | Rate 👻 | PMT 斗 | Length | - Income | 👻 Loan Status | - Address - | Payment 👻 | Туре | ~ | |
| 2 | 3365924 | \$ 10,000.00 | 12 | 13% | \$895.47 | 10+ years | \$ 100,000. | 00 Not Verified | MI | \$ 10,745.68 | Own | | |
| 3 | 3365981 | \$ 20,250.00 | 36 | 16% | \$714.83 | 10+ years | \$ 65,000. | 00 Not Verified | AZ | \$ 25,733.97 | Lease | | |
| 4 | 3365984 | \$ 21,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$676.72 | 3 years | \$ 84,000. | 00 Source Verified | MA | \$ 24,362.06 | Lease | | |
| 5 | 3365996 | \$ 15,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$483.37 | 3 years | \$ 85,000. | 00 Verified | NJ | \$ 17,401.47 | Lease | | |
| 6 | 3366002 | \$ 15,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$483.37 | 10+ years | \$ 55,000. | 00 Not Verified | со | \$ 17,401.47 | Own | | |
| 7 | 3365978 | \$ 9,200.00 | 24 | 12% | \$434.88 | 3 years | \$ 35,000. | 00 Verified | FL | \$ 10,437.18 | Own | | |
| 8 | 3365990 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 13% | \$339.30 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000. | 00 Verified | СО | \$ 12,214.96 | Own | | |
| 9 | 3365930 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 13% | \$335.45 | 5 years | \$ 52,000. | 00 Source Verified | CA | \$ 12,076.14 | Lease | | |
| 10 | 3365987 | \$ 10,000.00 | 36 | 12% | \$330.76 | 20+ years | \$ 100,000. | 00 Source Verified | NJ | \$ 11,907.35 | Own | | |
| 11 | 3365993 | \$ 6,000.00 | 24 | 13% | \$284.38 | 5 years | \$ 52,000. | 00 Not Verified | MA | \$ 6,825.07 | Own | | |
| 12 | 3365969 | \$ 8,500.00 | 36 | 10% | \$273.91 | 4 years | \$ 35,000. | 00 Not Verified | OR | \$ 9,860.83 | Lease | | |
| 13 | 3365936 | \$ 6,000.00 | 36 | 18% | \$217.67 | 6 years | \$ 84,000. | 00 Not Verified | AZ | \$ 7,836.03 | Own | | |
| 14 | 3366005 | \$ 5,000.00 | 36 | 12% | \$167.08 | 2 years | \$ 110,000. | 00 Verified | СТ | \$ 6,014.75 | Own | | |
| 15 | 3365966 | \$ 4,000.00 | 36 | 16% | \$141.20 | 10+ years | \$ 85,000. | 00 Not Verified | WA | \$ 5,083.25 | Own | | |
| 16 | 3365933 | \$ 3,600.00 | 36 | 10% | \$116.01 | 3 years | \$ 65,000. | 00 Verified | CA | \$ 4,176.35 | Own | | |
| 17 | 3365921 | \$ 3,000.00 | 36 | 12% | \$99.23 | 1 year | \$ 40,000. | 00 Verified | FL | \$ 3,572.20 | Own | | |
| 18 | 3365927 | \$ 1,000.00 | 36 | 10% | \$32.22 | 10+ years | \$ 40,000. | 00 Source Verified | OR | \$ 1,160.10 | Own | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 74 | | 1471-4 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Der | | Week 1 | ek 2 | (+) | | | | : 4 | | | | | P |
| кеас | V EO | | | | | | | | | ₩ 🗉 Ľ | | + 120 | J% |

6. Save your work by selecting Save As and choose Excel Macro-Enabled Workbook.

| Excel Macro-Enabled Workbook (*.xlsm) | | 🖓 Save |
|---------------------------------------|---|--------|
| Excel Workbook (*.xlsx) | 1 | |
| Excel Macro-Enabled Workbook (*.xlsm) | - | |
| Evcel Binany Workhook (* vlsh) | 1 | |

7. Submit the document in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY: Attribution*

8.22: Assignment- Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



8.23: Discussion- Excel Worksheet as a Webpage

There may be occasions in school or at work where more people need to have access to see what you have put together on an Excel spreadsheet. There is a way to make a worksheet more accessible and get it ready to put on the internet.

Watch this video showing how to take an Excel worksheet and publish it to be a web page. While the video shows an older version of Word (Microsoft Word 2016), the same steps work in other versions of Word, including 2019 and 365. After watching the video consider a few questions to discuss.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Publish Worksheet as Web Page" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Are there occasions when this would be a useful skill?
- What types of situations would facilitate using this tool?
- If you were to use this skill how would you use it?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Excel Worksheet as a Webpaget. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

All rights reserved content

 Microsoft Excel 2010: Publish Worksheet as Web Page. Authored by: Kirt Kershaw. Located at: https://youtu.be/WV2CzUI8-60. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

8.23: Discussion- Excel Worksheet as a Webpage is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

9: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

Learning Objectives

- Create and save a new presentation
- Edit and organize a presentation
- Add objects to a presentation

9.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

- 9.2: Introduction to Creating Presentations
- 9.3: New Presentations
- 9.4: Themes
- 9.5: Introduction to Using PowerPoint
- 9.6: Editing a Presentation
- 9.7: Organizing Slides
- 9.8: Views
- 9.9: Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint
- 9.10: Text Boxes
- 9.11: Images and Clip Art
- 9.12: SmartArt
- 9.13: Arranging Objects
- 9.14: Grouping Objects
- 9.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills
- 9.16: Assignment- Present Sales Information
- 9.17: Discussion- Infographics and Custom Shapes

9: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

Why learn to complete basic skills in Microsoft PowerPoint?

In previous modules you learned how to analyze data and create reports and graphs. Often after completing any of these steps, you may be asked to share your work with others. While it is possible to simply send along a copy of the report or graph, it is also quite common to be asked to present the data to a group of people in the form of a presentation.

Microsoft also has a powerful presentation application, known as PowerPoint. In this learning module, you will learn the basics of using PowerPoint, focused on editing a pre-existing presentation and changing style elements. Before we begin, here is a quick tutorial on some key information about PowerPoint and some handy tips to remember before we start using this program.

- 1. When you are actually working in PowerPoint you are working on a presentation. Individual pages within a presentation are called slides. You can think of slides similarly to a page in Word: each is a standalone piece in a presentation.
- 2. Just like in Word, PowerPoint has a ribbon area at the top of the window with different tabs. Refer to the first Microsoft Word module for a refresher on these terms if you need one.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.2: Introduction to Creating Presentations

What you'll learn to do: create and save a new presentation.

Creating a new presentation is important because you may not always be given a presentation to edit. Sometimes you may need to start from a blank slate. Creating a new presentation is much like creating a new document or new spreadsheet.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Creating Presentations. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.2: Introduction to Creating Presentations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.3: New Presentations

Learning Outcomes

• Create and save a new presentation.

You can open PowerPoint from the Start menu (or the Applications folder on a Mac) by clicking on the PowerPoint icon. The PowerPoint icon comes in a variety of forms depending on your OS and version of PowerPoint, but it always features the color orange and the letter P.



When you open PowerPoint, some versions of PowerPoint may take you straight to a new blank presentation. Newer versions such as PowerPoint 2019 and 365 will take you to a menu called the **backstage view** to choose to open a new blank presentation or open a new presentation from a template.



Note that the backstage view on a Macintosh computer is a little different.



| ••• | | Microsoft Power | rPoint | |
|----------|----------------------|-------------------------------------|---------------|------------------------|
| | | | | Q Search All Templates |
| € New | Blank Presentation | Madison Madison | Atlas | Gallery |
| Recent | PARCEL | WOOD TYPE | | Quotable |
| | Parcel Berlin Berlin | Wood Type CELESTIAL Celestial | Ion Boardroom | CROP |
| | | | | Cancel Create |

To open a blank presentation, double-click the blank presentation option. You can also choose to select a theme for a new presentation, but remember: themes can be changed at any time.

| 🖬 ୭୦୦ 👳 = | Presentation1 - PowerPoint | |
|-----------------------------|---|---------------------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Tra | nsitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mi | x Foxit PDF Q Tell me 🛛 🗛 Share |
| Paste ▼ | s abc AV | ge Quick Styles - Q |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides Fo | nt G Paragraph G Dra | wing G |
| 1 | Click to add tit | :le |
| Slide 1 of 1 | 🚔 Notes 📮 Comments 📳 🔡 | 토 |

If you already have a file open in PowerPoint, you can create a new presentation by clicking File>New. You can also use the shortcut Ctrl+N (Cmnd+N for Mac).

Once you have a new presentation open, you save it the same way you would a Word or an Excel file. Refer to the Word lesson if you need a refresher.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18688





https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18689

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• New Presentation. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.3: New Presentations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.4: Themes

Learning Outcomes

• Change the theme on a presentation.

A theme is the overall visual look and scheme to a presentation in PowerPoint. Like many other features, it is quite easy to change the theme after a presentation has been created.

- 1. Click on the Design tab.
- 2. Select a new theme from the available options.
- 3. Double-click on this theme.



The overall look and color scheme of your presentation will change. Compare the first screenshot to the one below.





| ন হাটন্ট ন | Module 8.pptx - PowerPoint | m – | o × |
|--------------------|--|---------------|----------|
| File Home Insert I | Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix Foxit | PDF Q Tell me | R₄ Share |
| Aa | Aa Variants Customize | | |
| | Themes | | * |
| | | | |
| 2 | | | |
| 3 | ROWAN RETAIL | | |
| | MONTHLY SALES DATA | | |
| | | | |
| | | et fell / / | × |
| Slide 1 of 3 | ≜ Notes 📮 Comments 📙 🔠 🕎 | | + 48% 🚑 |

You can also change the color scheme of a theme, before or after you apply it to a presentation. This is done from the Variants and Customize groups of the Design tab.



Below are just a few of the options available in the Variants menu.



| 🗄 🔊 ে ট্রু 🗄 | Module 8.pptx - PowerPoint 🖻 — 🗇 🗙 |
|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show Review View Mix Foxit PDF Q Tell me 🞗 Share |
| Aa Aa Aa | Aa Variants Customize |
| Themes | |
| | |
| | Colors + |
| 2 | A Fonts |
| | Effects |
| 3 | |
| | ROWAIN RETAIL |
| M | ONTHLY SALES DATA |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| 1861 F. 1. 19 | |
| and the second sec | ž |
| | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18690

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18691

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Themes. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.4: Themes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.5: Introduction to Using PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: edit and organize a presentation.

Learning to use Microsoft PowerPoint is one of the most helpful and versatile workplace skills you can acquire. Many of the skills you learned for Word and Excel can also be applied to PowerPoint. The file extension for PowerPoint is **.pptx**, with versions older than 2003 using **.ppt**.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using PowerPoint. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.5: Introduction to Using PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.6: Editing a Presentation

Learning Outcomes

• Edit an existing presentation.

To open an existing presentation, simply double-click on the presentation file, just the same as opening a Word document or Excel file that you have already been given.

You may also open a presentation using the Ctrl+O (Cmnd+O) shortcut or through the File menu if you already have a presentation open.

| $\left(\epsilon \right)$ | | Module 8.pptx - PowerPoint | ? | - 0 | × |
|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|---|--------------------------|----------|
| Info New Open | Info Module 8 Desktop » Compute | er Apps project | | | |
| Save Save As | Protect Presentation * | Protect Presentation Control what types of changes people can make to this presentation. | Properties * ^{Size} Slides | 36.7KB 3 | |
| | | presentation | Hidden slides Title | 0 Rowan Retail | |
| Print Share | Check for | Inspect Presentation Before publishing this file, be aware that it contains: | Tags Categories | Add a tag Add a categ | |
| Export | Issues * | Document properties and author's name Content that people with | Related Dates | Today, 2:12 P | |
| Close | | disabilities are unable to read | Created Last Printed | Today, 2:11 P | |
| Account Feedback | Manage | Manage Presentation There are no unsaved changes. | Related Peop | le Cho | |
| Options | Presentation * | | | Add an auth | v |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18692

Once you have opened an existing presentation, one of the first steps you may want to take is to edit content within that presentation. However, before we begin that step let us look at the default view when we have opened a presentation, and review a few terms.





- 1. **Slide thumbnail view**: this shows you smaller images of all the slides in a presentation. It has its own scroll bar if there are more slides than will fit in a single viewing window.
- 2. Active slide thumbnail: the active slide is highlighted in an orange box in the thumbnail view.
- 3. Active slide: this is the main view of the active slide you are currently viewing and can edit. You can see the scroll bar on the right that allows you to move quickly through the presentation.

You can move between slides in a presentation using either the slide thumbnail view of the slides or in the main window. The slide shown in the main window is the active slide for editing.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18693

In order to edit what a slide displays, click on the text or image you wish to edit. For example, the slide shown above says "Quarterly Sales Data." In the image below, the text box containing that phrase has been selected. The green arrow is pointing into the active text box, specifically at the location of the cursor.



| র ৬ ৫ জু হ | Module 8.pptx - PowerPoint | · 团 — | o x |
|--|---|-------------------|---------|
| File Home Insert D | esign Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix Foxit PDF Fo | ormat 🛛 🖓 Tell me | A Share |
| Paste V V V Clipboard V Slides | Calibri (Body) 24 Image: Calibri (Body) 24 Image: Calibri (Body) 24 Image: Calibri (Body) Image: Calibri (Body) | ick les • • • | ~ |
| 1 ••••• | | | |
| 2 Version from | | | |
| 3 Internet | Rowar Retail | 0 | |
| | Quarterly Sales Data | 0 | |
| | | | * |

In the next screenshot, "Quarterly" has been edited to read "Monthly."



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Editing a Presentation. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.6: Editing a Presentation is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.7: Organizing Slides

Learning Objectives

• Add, delete, and move slides.

Besides text edits on individual slides, you may also need to make more global changes, including adding, deleting, or moving slides within a presentation. Each of these tasks is easiest to accomplish using the slide thumbnail view. The steps for these are outlined below.

Add a Slide

- 1. To add a slide, simply click between two existing slides where you wish to insert a new blank slide.
- 2. Add a slide using the New Slide dropdown display in the Slides group of the ribbon.







| Гhe | Nev | v Sli | de | dropdown | displa | iy wil | l sh | ow | you | vari | ous | slide | layo | uts |
|---------|--|-----------------|-----------|--|-----------------|--------------|------------------|--------------------------|---------|-------------------|-------|-------|---------|-----|
| H | 5 - 0 | চ 👳 🕫 | | | Module | 8.pptx - Pov | verPoint | | | E | ₽ · | - 0 | | |
| File | Hom | ne Insert | Design | Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View | Mix | Foxit PDF | Q Tel | Ime 🎗 | A Share | |
| Paste | × • | New Slide - | B A | - 24 I <u>U</u> S ab∈ { Aa - A^A | | | · IIA · [*] · | Shapes / | Arrange | Quick Styles - | Edit | ing | | |
| Clipboa | ird 🗔 | Office The | eme | | | h | r <u>s</u> | | Drawin | g | G | | ^ | |
| 1 | Rouan Neo Internet | Title Sl | ide | Title and Conte | nt Section | Header | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | an Cake Sevan Laborator region community In Caren Dane | Two Cor | | Comparison | Title | Only | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | | | | | lon | an f | Ret ^{s Data} | ail | | | | | |
| | | Blan | k | Content with Caption | Picture Capi | tion | | | | | | | | |
| | | ta Duplic | ate Selec | ted Slides | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Slides | from Out | line | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 🛅 <u>R</u> euse | Slides | | | | | | | | | | Ŧ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | * | |
| Slide 1 | of 3 🗋 | 3 | | | ≜ Notes I | Comments | | | | 모 | | + | 48% +++ | |

The layout name gives you a basic idea of when to use what format. For example, you can use the Comparison slide if you wish to present two images side-by-side for direct comparison. There is space above each comparison box to provide a descriptive title, such as "Before editing" and "After editing."

you

may

want

to

use.

Don't worry; it is very easy to change the slide layout if you decide you want a different one later. Note that when you add a slide, the new slide becomes the active slide in the main window.

You can also add slides using the the New slide dropdown menu in the Insert tab.









Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18694

Delete a Slide

- 1. To delete a slide, click on the thumbnail image of the slide you wish to delete in the thumbnail view.
- 2. Then use either the Backspace or Delete button on your keyboard to remove that slide. Compare the two screenshots below. In the first there are four slides visible in the thumbnail. Slide 2 is selected and deleted, so you do not see it in the second screenshot.





Note that when you delete a slide, the next slide in the presentation becomes the active slide in the main window.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18695

Move a Slide

- 1. To move a slide, click on the slide you wish to move in the slide thumbnail view.
- 2. Drag that slide to a new position in the slide thumbnail view.

Compare the screenshots below. Slides #2 and #3 have been switched.





| - 및 이··· · · · · · · · | Module 8.pptx - Pov | werPoint | | 3 — | o x |
|---|---------------------|---|-------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Ani | mations Slide Show | Review View | Mix Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | ₽ Share |
| B I L S abc AV T D <thd< th=""> D D D<td></td><td>→ IIA → IA → IA → IA → Shapes Arr</td><td>range Quick Styles ~</td><td>Editing</td><td></td></thd<> | | → IIA → IA → IA → IA → Shapes Arr | range Quick Styles ~ | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides Font | G Paragraph | G 0 | rawing | 6 I | * |
| 1 | | | | | |
| L Rout Holi | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| 2014 Sala | s Data | | | | |
| 2 2014 Jaie | 5 Data | | | | |
| | lanuary | 5000 | | | |
| | February | \$500 | | | |
| 3 Lesterbury | March | \$50,000 | | | |
| "Batterparently or mentioner with data | April | 4876 | | | |
| | May | 80,000 | | | |
| | June | \$250 | | | |
| | July | 45689 | | | |
| | August | \$10,000 | | | |
| | September | 34,245 | | | |
| | October | \$987.00 | | | |
| | November | 76000 | | | |
| | December | 8,764 | | | v |
| | | | | | Ť |
| | | | | | |
| Slide 2 of 3 | lotes 🛡 Comments | | I | | + 48% +*+ |

Note that the slide you move remains the active slide in the main window.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Organizing Slides. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.7: Organizing Slides is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.8: Views

Learning Outcomes

• Use the Outline and Normal views

Another commonly used option in PowerPoint is the view you use to examine the slides. There are two major views: Normal and Outline.

By default, PowerPoint opens presentations in the Normal view. This is the view you have seen in screenshots throughout this module, with the slide thumbnails on the left, and as shown below.



But as you can see, it is difficult to see what the text on slides actually says from the Normal view. If you wish to still have an overall thumbnail view of the slides in the presentation, but want to be able to read the text on the slides, you can use the "Outline" view.





Note that you can read the text that has been typed on a slide, but you cannot see tables or a thumbnail view of any images. In the Normal view, the table in Slide 3 is visible, but in the Outline view all you can see of Slide 3 is the title.

You can still add, delete, and move slides from the Outline view. You can also directly edit text from the thumbnail slides in the Outline view, which you cannot do from the Normal view thumbnails. To do this, double-click on or near the text you would like to edit and type as normal.



 \odot



Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18696

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18697

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Views. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.8: Views is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.9: Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: add objects to a presentation.

You have previously learned to add text boxes, headers, and footers to Word documents. You can also add these objects and more to PowerPoint presentations.

PowerPoint is a helpful tool for organizing textual information in short, direct sentences or bullet points. It is also useful for displaying tables, as you saw in the previous module. Tables are not the only graphics that you can embed in a presentation however. You can also add images, clip art, and dynamic art to slides that help convey your message.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.9: Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.10: Text Boxes

Learning Outcomes

• Insert text boxes.

Another type of edit you may wish to perform on a presentation slide is to add a text box. Text boxes are used for emphasis or as supplements to the standard layout space. For example, perhaps you want to draw attention to a specific feature on an image or in data. An easy way to do this is with a text box.

- 1. Select the slide you wish to edit with a text box.
- 2. Click on the Insert Tab
- 3. Select Text Box from the menu in the Text group of the ribbon
- 4. Click on the slide to place your text box.
- 5. Enter your text.

| 8 | ა. დ | ঢ়ে ∓ | | | Module 8 | .pptx - Power | Point | | | | | 3 | — | ٥ | × |
|--------------------------|------------------------------------|----------|----------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|--|-----------------|---------------|---|--|-----------|-----|-------------|--------------------------|------|
| File | Home | Insert D | lesigr | Transitions | Animation | s Slide Show | Review | View | Mix Fo | xit PDF | ormat | | ell me | Яs | hare |
| New Slide + Slides | able 2 2 2 2 2 2 | Pictures | Onlii Pictu | a, Screen ≥ ፼ Photo s Images | shot ▼ Album ▼ | Shapes III CH | nartArt nart | Add- ins * | Links | Comment Comment | A Text | Syn | 2 pols M | ●) ledia ▼ | * |
| 2 3 | | | | 2014 | 1 Sale: | Data January February March April May June July August September October | ÐL | \$ | 5000 \$500 50,000 487 \$25 4568 10,00 34,245 | Contraction of the second seco | Ulume | | | | |
| | | | | | | Novembe Decembe | er F | | 76000 8,764 | | | | | | * |
| Slide 3 of | f3 []2 | | | | ≜ N | otes 🗭 Com | nments | | | I I | J | | | - + 4 | 8% 🚑 |

After placing your text box, you can move it by clicking on the text box and dragging it to a new location. On the screenshot below the text box has been moved to the left side of the table, from the right.



| H | 5 - 0 | - ভূয | | | Mo | dule 8.pptx - Pow | erPoint | | Shellitan | Đ | 3 — | ٥ | × |
|----------------|--------------------------|----------|----------|----------------|-------------------|-------------------|---------|--------|--------------|-----------|--------------|-------|---------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Transitions | Animati | ons Slide Show | Review | View | Mix Fox | it PDF | ♀ Tell m | e A | Share |
| New Slide • | Table | Pictures | Online [| 🙀 Screenshot 🕶 | , _₹ Sh | Des Chart | Add- | Links | ¢ Comment | A Text | Ω Symbols | Media | |
| Slides | Tables | | Ima | iges | | Illustrations | | | Comments | | | | ~ |
| 1 | Rosan Farah Sera sera | | | 2014 Sa | ales l | Data | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | January | | 5000 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | February | | \$500 | | | | | |
| 3 📟 | tain ten | | | | | March | \$ | 50,000 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | April | | 4876 | | | | | |
| | 10.00 | _ | | | | May | 4 | 80,000 | | | | | |
| | | | | Lowe | st volume | June | | \$250 | | | | | |
| | | | | - | | July | | 45689 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | August | \$ | 10,000 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | September | : | 34,245 | | | | | |
| | | | | / | | October | \$ | 987.00 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | November | | 76000 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | December | | 8,764 | | | | | * |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | Ŧ |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Slide 3 o | if3 []2 | | | | ≜ Note | Comments | | | ■ | | | + | 48% +++ |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18698

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18699

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Text Boxes. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.10: Text Boxes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.11: Images and Clip Art

Learning Objectives

• Add images and clip art

To add an image, insert a new slide. For our purposes, it is helpful to start with a Title and Content slide, but remember you can always change the format of your slide later.

Method 1

- 1. Click inside the content box so that it becomes the active portion of the slide.
- 2. If you hover your mouse over any of the icons shown in the green box below, you will see a description of what type of object you can insert.
- 3. Select Pictures, the bottom left icon.

| File Home Insett Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix Foxt PDF P tell me Share Parte New Image: Animation Shide Show Image: Animation Shide Shid | 🗄 🔊 ଓ 👰 ፣ | Presentation1 - PowerPoint | . | ø × |
|--|-----------------------|--|----------------------------------|---------|
| Image: Side Image: Side <th>File Home Insert Desi</th> <th>gn Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix</th> <th>Foxit PDF 🛛 Tell me</th> <th>A Share</th> | File Home Insert Desi | gn Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix | Foxit PDF 🛛 Tell me | A Share |
| Clipboard & Slides Font & Paragraph & Drawing & A | Paste V V V | I U S abc AV ← 任 ↓ | Je Quick Styles - Q - Editing | |
| Click to add title Click to add text | Clipboard 🕞 Slides | Font 🖙 Paragraph 🖙 Draw | ving 5 | ^ |
| | 1 | Click to add title • Click to add text | | |

- 4. By default, your computer's Pictures folder will pop up. If your images are stored elsewhere, navigate to the appropriate location to find your image.
- 5. Click on the picture or image you wish to insert.





6. Click Insert



Your image will be automatically sized by PowerPoint. You can then type in a title, add a text box, or even resize your image if you wish.



Method 2

Another way to add an image to a slide is to use the Pictures option in the Insert tab. Pictures embedded this way are automatically sized as well.





| ₿ | চ ত | দূ = | | | P | resent | ation1 - Powe | rPoint | | | Ē | = — | ٥ | × |
|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|----------|-----------------|---|-------|---------------|-----------------------------------|------------------|-------|----------------------|-----------|--------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|
| File | Hone | Insert | Design | Transitions | Anina | tions | Slide Show | Review | View | Mix Fo | xit PDF | ♀ Tell m | ne A | Share |
| New Slide + Slides | Table Tables | Pictures | Online Pictures | ↓ Screenshot ~ 彭 Photo Albun ges | n ¥ 3 | hapes IIIu | E SmartArt Chart ustrations | Add- ins ▼ | Links | Comments Comments | A Text | Ω Symbols | ا Media ب | * |
| 2 | Click to add title Click to add text | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | • | | | | | |
| Slide 2 d | of 2 []2 | | | | ≜ Not | es I | Comments | | | I T | - | | + | ★ ¥ 49% ⊡ |

Clicking the Pictures button uses images stored on your computer. Clicking the Online Pictures button allows you to use an embedded search engine to use images directly from the internet. Note that the term *pictures* is used to represent really any graphic: it can be a photograph, an icon, or a graphic file. Older versions of Microsoft Office included something called clip art. Clip art was basically a graphic icon, such as the image shown below. This type of image can still be used and searched for using the Online Pictures option.





| Insert Pictures | | × 20 29 |
|---|---------------------------------|------------|
| Bing Image Search Search the web | clip art 🔎 | |
| ConeDrive - Personal | Browse > | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Also insert from: | | |
| bing clip art | Q | × |
| Size Type Color Creative Co | ommons only Clear filters | |
| | | |
| | Love | Ŧ |
| These results are tagged with <u>Creative Commons lice</u> You are responsible for respecting others' rights, inclu copyright. <u>Learn more here</u> . | uding Select one or more items. | ancel |
| Practice Question | | |

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18700

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18701



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Adding Images. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.11: Images and Clip Art is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.12: SmartArt

Learning Outcomes

• Create and insert SmartArt.

SmartArt is a dynamic type of image that you will often see in PowerPoint slides. SmartArt can be used to group lists of information together, through bullet lists for example, or to show a process, through cycles. Fortunately, you do not need to be a graphic designer to create and insert simple and effective SmartArt into a PowerPoint presentation.

Before you actually insert SmartArt, you should determine what you are attempting to convey and the best way to convey it. One helpful item here is the descriptions provided for each basic SmartArt graphic shape. You can access these descriptions by selecting the Insert a SmartArt Graphic option on a new slide. When you do, you will see this window:



The graphic styles displayed immediately under All are the commonly used ones, but you can navigate to specific styles using the menu on the left. For this walkthrough, we will create a basic cycle SmartArt graphic. This type of graphic is useful when describing a process, such as what happens when a customer returns a defective item. This example will be used to describe how to create a SmartArt graphic.

| Choose a SmartArt Graphic | | ନ <mark>ନ</mark> |
|---|--|--|
| Image: Second system All Image: Second system Vercess Image: Second system Cycle Image: Second system Relationship Image: Second system Matrix Image: Second system Pyramid Image: Second system Picture Image: Office.com Office.com | | Basic Cycle Use to represent a continuing sequence of stages, tasks, or events in a circular flow. Emphasizes the stages or steps rather than the connecting arrows or flow. Works best with Level 1 text only. |
| | | OK Cancel |

Once you click OK, the graphic is automatically sized into your slide, just like inserting any image. Remember: at the end of the day, a SmartArt graphic is just an image. Therefore, you add them to slides using the same steps shown on the previous page. You have to insert a SmartArt graphic before you can actually create the graphic.

The graphic inserts into the slide with default options, but those are very easy to change, as we will soon see






Using the text box on the left, type in what should be displayed in each portion of the graphic. To move between portions of the graphic, in this case the circles, click on the next bullet in the text box or on the next shape in the graphic. Below, all text has been updated and a title has been added to the slide.



You can edit the text at any time by clicking on the "Type your text here" box or the circle you wish to edit. If you have left the slide or presentation and come back to edit it later, you will need to click on some part of the SmartArt graphic to bring the "Type your text here" box back onto the screen.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18703

If you want to change the color scheme, layout, number of shapes in the graphic, or any other option, you can do so using the Design tab and the options available in that ribbon. Note this Design tab is only available after you have clicked on the SmartArt graphic. This is not the standard Design tab that is always available in PowerPoint.



Once you have created your SmartArt graphic, you can use the Convert to Shapes option to make your SmartArt graphic a static image. Once you do this, you can still edit the text inside the shapes, but you cannot change other options such as color, layout, or number of shapes.







Practice question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18702

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• SmartArt. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.12: SmartArt is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.13: Arranging Objects

Learning Outcomes

• Arrange objects

At this point, we have learned how to add a variety of items to PowerPoint slides, including different types of images and videos. There are times when you may have multiple objects on a slide together and wish to position them in a certain way. Alternatively, you may wish to position a single item in a very specific fashion. This is called arranging objects on slides. Like many other tasks in PowerPoint, there are automated ways to do this.

- 1. The "Arrange" menu is found in the "Drawing" group of the Home tab.
- 2. You must select a specific object to arrange. For this example, the image of the flower on the left has been selected.



3. The dropdown Arrange menu provides you a variety of options. Align will specifically position the selected object somewhere on the slide.





When you have multiple overlapping objects, you can choose which one is in the background or forefront using the Order Objects selections. You should Bring to Front the image you wish to be in the forefront, but keep in mind it will then hide anything it overlaps. Consider the images below.







If you have multiple objects together on a slide, you can make them into a Group using the "Group Objects" menu. Grouping different objects together turns them into a single object. In this way, they can be moved, aligned, or resized as a unit instead of individually. Note that you can only group the same type of objects together. You can group multiple images together, but you cannot group an image and a video.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18704 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18705

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Arranging Objects. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.13: Arranging Objects is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.14: Grouping Objects

Learning Objectives

- Group objects
- Modify grouped objects

PowerPoint allows you to insert shapes or objects and position them in various ways in a slide. In the previous module you learned how to arrange objects. Now we'll walk through how to group objects. The main reasons to group objects are to make it easier to move, align or resize objects together. In this example we assume objects have already been arranged and now need to be grouped.

Group Objects

- 1. Open a slide in a PowerPoint presentation containing various shapes or objects arranged in the slide.
- 2. Start from a corner of the slide, hold the left-mouse button down and drag it to include all objects to be included in a group.



3. Release the mouse button and all the objects should be showing that they have been selected by each object showing its rotate arrow, resizing dots, etc.



4. On the **Home** tab, select the **Arrange** button, and in **Group Objects**, select **Group**.



5. Now all the selected objects will be in one group and can be moved, resized, rotated, copied, flipped or rearranged as one group.



Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18706 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18707

Modify Group Objects

Once objects are grouped, they can be modified in a variety of ways including ungrouping and regrouping. We'll walk through a few steps of how to modify within a group object.

Text

If a group object has resized by either enlarging or shrinking and there is text involved within the group, check to see if it now needs to be modified. When a group is resized, text retains its original font size. To resize it, triple click on the text and all text in an object is selected. A menu will appear to change the size to fit the object.





| AutoSave 💿 💿 🛱 🍤 | ~ 간 또 - Module 9 PowerP Save | ved 🔹 🔎 Search | | Sign in 🖬 | - 🗆 🗙 |
|---|---|-------------------|--|-----------------------------|-------------------|
| File Home Insert | Design Transitions Animations | Slide Show Review | View Help <mark>Shape</mark> | Format 🖻 Share | ☐ Comments |
| Paste ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V ♥ V | Trebuchet MS (Body) \sim 16 \sim A [*] A [*] A [*] A [*] B I U S ab A [*] \sim Aa \sim Aa \sim A | | E → IA → IA → IA → IA → Shapes Arrar | ige Quick Styles ~ Q ~ Č | g Design Ideas |
| Clipboard 🗔 Slides | Font | Fy Paragraph | r₃ Dra | wing 😼 | Designer |
| 1 Project Flow Care | | | | | |
| 2 | | Start | Trebuchet MS ~ 16 | × A^ A ⊂ = = t | |
| | | Parad | | Commer | ıt |
| | | Time | later than 10 | End | |
| | | | 4 10.5 | | |
| | | | Ye 11 | | |
| | | | 14 | | |
| | | | 16 | | |
| | | | 18 | | |
| | | | 20 | | |
| | | | 28 | | |
| | | | 32 | | |
| | | | 36 | | |
| | | | 40 | | |
| | | | 48 | | ± |
| | | | 54 | | ¥ |
| Slide 2 of 2 | | | Notes E E 66 | ₽ | |

Shapes

Within a group, an individual object can be moved around without affecting the other objects. To move a specific object in a group, select the object and drag it to a new position.







Ungroup/Regroup

If after repositioning or adjusting a group you no longer want the objects to act as one group, go back to the Home, Arrange, Group Objects, selecting Ungroup. If you decide that you'd rather have them as a group again, select all the objects and select the Regroup option.







Note

In Office 365 PowerPoint, grouping can be done with all kinds of objects; video, audio, pictures, shapes, etc. It was not possible in earlier PowerPoint versions to group video and pictures together.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18708

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18709

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Grouping Objects. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

9.14: Grouping Objects is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



9.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills

Now that you understand the basics of Microsoft PowerPoint, let us consider some ways to use this program to share information.

- 1. You could present quarterly sales data, copying graphs or sparklines from Excel.
- 2. You could provide a summary of the high points from a report, such as key metrics or conclusions about ways to improve business operations.
- 3. You could display inventory data previously collected in Excel, including item, quantity, and store location.

This module focused on the basics of using PowerPoint to edit an existing presentation and adding simple objects. In our next module, we will expand our use of PowerPoint by learning to add other features.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

9.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.16: Assignment- Present Sales Information

For this assignment, you will edit a short PowerPoint presentation that contains sales information.

Download the PowerPoint presentation you will use to start your assignment. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Open the presentation. Save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop as **BA132_LastName_SalesInformation.pptx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_SalesInformation) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 2. Edit the first slide to say "Annual Sales Data" under the Title "Rowan Retail"







3. Move the current slide 3 in front of the current slide 2

| ন কুটে ব | | Module 8 Assig | gnment.pptx · | - PowerPoin | ıt | Ē | 3 — | 0 X |
|--|-------------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|----------------|--------------|-------------------|-------------|-----------|
| File Home Insert | Design Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View Mix | Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | A Share |
| Paste | • B I U S abe | 24 ▼ Image: The state is a state | | | apes Arrange | Quick Styles - | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides | Font | G | Paragraph | G | Drawii | ng | GI I | ^ _ |
| 1 market 2 market 3 market 3 market 3 market 4 mark | Sales D • This pres for the N |)ata Rev entation pri orthwest re | ∕İ⊖₩ ovides an e ggional sto | overview re | of 3 year | s' worth o | f sales dat | a * |
| Slide 2 of 3 | | ≜ Notes | Comments | | 38 🗐 | 모 | + | + 48% +*+ |

4. Add a text box on slide 3 next to the month with the highest sales data that reads "Highest Month." Your text box should be to the left of the month.

| 🗄 🔊 ে ট্রু 🕫 | Module 8 Assignment.pptx - P | owerPoint | En la serie de la | — | o x |
|---|---|--|---|-----------|--|
| File Home Insert De | sign Transitions Animations Slide Show | Review View Mix Fo | xit PDF Format | ? Tell me | A Share |
| Paste V V V | Calibri (Body) \cdot 18 \vdots \cdot \vdots \cdot B I U \$ abc AV \cdot <td< td=""><td>\$≣ • A • • \$\$ ■ ₽ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$</td><td>Arrange Quick</td><td>Editing</td><td></td></td<> | \$≣ • A • • \$\$ ■ ₽ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ | Arrange Quick | Editing | |
| Clipboard 🗔 Slides | Font 🕞 Paragi | aph 🕞 | Drawing 5 | | ~ |
| 1 | | | | | |
| 2 Michaeline Theorem parameter with the second | 2014 Sales Data | | | | |
| | January | 5000 | | | |
| 3 201an lan | February | \$500 | | | |
| | March | \$50,000 | | | |
| | April | 4876 | | | |
| 4 | May | 80,000 | | | |
| | June | \$250 | | | |
| _ | ylut | 45689 | | | |
| 5 | August | \$10,000 | | | |
| | Cr Septembe | r 34,245 | | | |
| | October | \$987.00 | | | |
| 0 | Highest Month Novembe | 76000 | | | - |
| | December | 8,764 | | | * |
| | | | | | ¥ |
| T | | | | | |
| Slide 3 of 6 | 🚖 Notes 🛛 🗭 Com | ments 🕒 🗄 | 폐 로⊢ | | + 48% ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ |





5. Add three slides to the end of the presentation. The layout of these slides does not matter.

| 🕫 তু ত 🕫 🖫 | Module 8 Assignment.pptx - Po | owerPoint 📼 — | ð X |
|-------------------------|--|---|----------|
| File Home Insert Desig | n Transitions Animations Slide Show Re | eview View Mix Foxit PDF Q Tell me | ८२ Share |
| Paste Slide A | I U S abc AV I | A Shapes Arrange Quick Styles - Quick | |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides | Font 🕞 Paragraph | Drawing 5 | · · |
| 1 | | | |
| 2 Northerson Statements | Click to add title | | |
| 3 Second | Click to add text • Click to add text | Click to add text • Click to add text | |
| 4 | | | |
| 5 | | | |
| 6 | | | * |
| Slide 6 of 6 | 🚔 Notes 📮 Comments | | + 48% 🕂 |

6. Choose one of the new slides and add three to five objects or shapes. Make a group out of all of those objects or shapes and resize the group to be large and centered in the slide.



7. Save your work and submit it in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Present Sales Information. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*





9.16: Assignment- Present Sales Information is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





9.17: Discussion- Infographics and Custom Shapes

In this PowerPoint module, we discussed a variety of visual tricks and tips such as inserting images and creating SmartArt graphics. With these tools and a little cleverness, you can also create your very own infographics!

Watch the first video below:

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view the transcript for the video "How to Create Infographic Elements in PowerPoint" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- What applications might the techniques in this video have?
- How can you improve your presentations with this feature?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Learn More

If you are interested in learning more, here are some other videos that build upon the first video to finish creating the infographic:

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can view the transcript for "Step 2: Creating and Masking Effect for Your Graphics" here (opens in new window).

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can view the transcript for "Step 3: Creating the Percentages" here (opens in new window).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

- Discussion: Infographics and Custom Shapes. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- How to Create Infographic Elements in PowerPoint. Authored by: Articulate. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=rmuqp1HiPgM. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

CC licensed content, Shared previously

- Step 2: Creating the Masking Effect for Your Graphics. Authored by: Articulate. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=DMszS1xvHSs. License: *CC BY: Attribution*
- Step 3: Creating the Percentages. Authored by: Articulate. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YXnE5VtPaxg. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

9.17: Discussion- Infographics and Custom Shapes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

10: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

Learning Objectives

- Change slide transition effects
- Add header and footer to slides
- Put a video into a PowerPoint slide
- Use lists

10.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

10.2: Introduction to Transition Effects

10.3: Transition Effects

10.4: Introduction to Headers and Footers

10.5: Headers and Footers

10.6: Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint

- 10.7: Inserting Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.8: Embedding Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.9: Uploading Videos in PowerPoint
- 10.10: Introduction to Lists
- 10.11: Creating Lists
- 10.12: Modifying Lists

10.13: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

- 10.14: Assignment- Create a New Presentation
- 10.15: Discussion- Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video

10: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

Why learn to complete intermediate skills in Microsoft PowerPoint?

In the last module, we focused on some basic functionality in PowerPoint. But this program is capable of a lot more, including incorporating images and videos as well as allowing you to precisely position items.

Before we move into the mechanics of each of these, let us consider for a moment the types of information you may wish to convey in a presentation.

- 1. You want to show a clip from an advertising campaign.
- 2. You want to add information to every slide

All of these questions can be answered with the valuable tools available in PowerPoint.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

10.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.2: Introduction to Transition Effects

What you'll learn to do: change the theme and transitions of a presentation.

Adding some design effects such as an attractive theme or smooth transition between slides can help your presentation stand out.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Transition Effects. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.2: Introduction to Transition Effects is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.3: Transition Effects

Learning Outcomes

• Change slide transition effects.

Another major edit you may make to an existing presentation is to change the transition effects on a slide.

Transition effects are animation options within a presentation. You cannot see the transitions in action from the static presentation view of slides. But when you start the actual slideshow, transitions will dictate how the presentation progresses from one slide to the next. Transitions can be used to set specific time intervals before moving forward in the show, or can be used to make slides change with the click of a mouse button. Transitions also change the way a new slide enters or exits the screen.

To edit transition effects, you need to access the Transitions tab. From this area you can edit, delete, or add transitions to a slide.



If you hover your mouse over a transition option, you will see a brief description of that transition. Some effects have several options. For example the Wipe transition could start from the right, top, left, bottom, or other directions. The Effect Options dropdown menu is to the right of the transition options.





| | ა ი | - জু | | | Modu | le 8.pptx · | - Power | oint | | | | Ŧ | - | ٥ | \times |
|-----------|--|--------|------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------|-------------------|---------|--------------------------------|-----------------|---------------|--------------|-----------------------------------|--------|--------------------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Transitions | Animations | ; Slide S | ihow f | Review | View | Mix F | oxit PDF | Ωт | ell me | ∕₽ Sha | are |
| Preview | Non | e | Fade | Push | Wip | e = | Effect Options | ₽, - | Sound: Duration Apply To | No Sour 01.0 | nd] • 00 ‡ | Advar ✓ O | nce Slide n Mouse fter: 00: | Click | |
| Preview | | | Tr | ansition to Thi | s Slide | | ÷ | From | <u>R</u> ight | | Timing | | | | · · |
| 1 | Roman Retail | | c | Salos D | ata Ro | viow | I | From | <u>T</u> op | | | | | | |
| 2 | Table Taulone participanti del Alfred Instituti d'alco del | | | | ata ne | VIEW | • | From | <u>L</u> eft | | | | | | |
| * | | | • | This prese the North | entation p west regi | orovide: onal sto | | From | <u>B</u> ottom | | ı of sa | les da | ata for | | |
| 3 | in the second se | | | | | | Ľ | From | Top-R <u>i</u> gh | ıt | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | R | From | Bottom-F | Right | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 8 | From | Top-L <u>e</u> ft | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 7 | From . | Bottom-l | _e <u>f</u> t | | | | | * |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ¥ |
| | | | Click to a | add notes | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Slide 2 o | f3 []2 | | | | ≜ Notes | 🗭 Comn | nents | | | 1 F | J | 1 | | + 489 | 6 + [*] + |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18710

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18711

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Effects. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.3: Transition Effects is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.4: Introduction to Headers and Footers

What you'll learn to do: Add header and footer to slides

When creating a presentation, you may want to add the title of the deck to every slide. Or you may want to add slide numbers to the bottom of each slide. Either way, you'll want to add a header or a footer to put this information in your deck.

10.4: Introduction to Headers and Footers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.5: Headers and Footers

Learning Outcomes

• Add header and footer to slides.

Another common addition to slides is to include headers and footers. The options to add headers and footers are in the same dropdown menu of the Text group. Once there, you will see the menu below.

| 1 | leader a | and I | Footer | 8 23 |
|---|----------|-------------|-----------------------------------|---------------|
| | Slide | Not | tes and Handouts | |
| | Incl | lude | on slide | Preview |
| | | <u>D</u> at | te and time | |
| | | ۲ | Update automatically | |
| | | | 7/10/2017 | |
| | | | Language: <u>C</u> alendar type: | |
| | | | English (United States) Gregorian | |
| | | ۲ | Fixed | |
| | | | 7/10/2017 | |
| | | Slid | le <u>n</u> umber | |
| | | <u>F</u> oo | oter | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | J [] |
| | 🔳 D | on't | show on title <u>s</u> lide | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | <u>Apply</u> Apply | to All Cancel |

From this menu, you can choose a variety of options for your header and footer. Footers are often used for a running title or to identify a particular author.

| Slide | Notes and Handouts | | |
|----------|----------------------------------|------------------------|---|
| Inclu | ude on slide | | Preview |
| V | Date and time | | |
| | Update automatically | | |
| | 7/10/2017 👻 | | |
| | Language: | <u>C</u> alendar type: | · |
| | English (United States) | Gregorian | • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | Fixed | | |
| | 7/10/2017 | | |
| 1 | Slide <u>n</u> umber | | |
| V | <u>F</u> ooter | | |
| | Analytics Division | | |
| Do | on't show on title <u>s</u> lide | | |

You can see the results of adding

these options on the screenshot below. The final position of the boxes matches the Preview shown to the right of the header and footer box.



| | would o pput - Powe | rPoint | | | |
|---|---|-------------------|------------------|--------------|-------------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Anim | nations Slide Show | Review View | Mix Foxit PDF | ♀ Tell me | ₽ Share |
| New Table Pictures Online Photo Album * Slides Tables Images | SmartArt Shapes | Add- ins • • | Comment Comments | Symbols Me | (i) edia |
| 2 Sales Data 3 This presentat for the Northw | Review ion provides an o vest regional stor | verview of 3 e | ' years' worth c | of sales dat | a |
| 7/10/2017 | | nstytics Division | 62 | | 2 × |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18712

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18713

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Headers and Footers. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.5: Headers and Footers is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.6: Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Put a video into a PowerPoint slide

PowerPoint is a versatile presentation tool which often uses videos to add more in-depth information to a presentation. Video can be instructional and communicate more than simply words, tables or pictures alone. This section shows examples of how to integrate video into a PowerPoint presentation's slides.

Many, if not most of the videos used in PowerPoint are linked in from external sources and websites like YouTube or other web pages. We will follow along as she embeds, links, and uploads videos into slides for her presentation. After learning this material, your presentations can be more dynamic and interactive and hold the attention of your presentation audience.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

10.6: Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.7: Inserting Videos in PowerPoint

Learning Outcomes

• Insert an online video into a PowerPoint slide

Karen is creating a work presentation to introduce her team to a few different concepts. She begins by adding in her video slides first. Later she will fill in the rest of the presentation around them. The first video is about using creative commons licensed material. She has already opened a new presentation in PowerPoint and has a video she wishes to insert into her slide.

Placing the cursor on the small box with the six different choices, she selects the Insert Video icon.



The insert video window will appear and since Karen knows the video she wants is on YouTube so she searches in the YouTube box. She searches for **Creative Commons** and presses the Enter key. Her search results appear and she scrolls through to find the video she wants.







| 🔒 🗄 • ៥ 👼 ៖ | resentation1 - PowerPoint | Drawing Tools | | • • • × |
|--|--|---|---------------|---|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show Review View | Format 🛛 🖓 Tell me what you want to | | A Share 🖵 |
| X Cut Layout Calibri Paste Gopy - New Reset Side - Side - Image: Section - | (Body) · 28 · A* A* 参 日日 · 및 S · A · 27 · A · 日日 · | Image: state in the state | Alla & G | ape Fill - P Find ape Outine - Replace - ape Effects - D Select - |
| | EACK TO SITES YouTube 1000000 search results for creatil | creative commons | ρ (1) | |
| | | Attives and the second | | 0 |
| | Construction of the state of th | | Commons 12 | ° |
| | What is Creative Commons? WikimediaFoundation - | T item selected. | nsert Cancel | |
| | | 0 | | |
| Silde 1 of 2 DP | | | A Notes 🔝 😳 🗐 | |

Karen selects the video and clicks the **Insert** button (she can also double-click on the video to insert). Once the video is inserted, she has a variety of options. Let's take a look at what she can choose.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18714

- 1. Video Tools. This is a special tab that automatically appears when inserting a video.
- 2. Video Styles. Karen can select a variety of different styles to display the video in this slide.
- 3. **Resizing Tool.** Karen wants to make the video appear larger on the slide. She can click the **Height** and **Width** arrows to increase the size.
- 4. **Resizing by Dragging.** Alternatively Karen can resize the video by clicking on a corner or side and dragging the cursor to the desired size.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18715

Karen decides she doesn't like the hard edges on the video. She moves up to the video style ribbon and selects the **Visual Effects** button.



| - ਗੁੁੁਾਰਾ ⊟ | Presentation1 - PowerPoint | Video Tools | | ⊞ – ø × |
|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------|--|-------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show Review View | Format Playback | Q Tell me what you want to do | A Share 🖵 |
| Play Corrections Color Poster Reset | | | CO Video Shape * Bring Forward * Align * Z Video Border * Group * Group * Q Video Effects * Selection Pane ∴ Rotate * | Crop Width: 11.5" |
| Preview Adjust | Video Styles | | Arrange | Size G A |
| | Creative Com | mons | Shadow > Beflection > Glow > | |
| | | () | Soft Edges Brevel Br | |
| Silde 1 of 2 D2 | | | A Notes | * * * * * 72% 69. |

She selects the **Soft Edge** > **2.5 Point** option. To play the video, she double-clicks on it and waits until she sees the YouTube red icon.



Now when Karen clicks the red button, the video plays.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Inserting Videos in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.7: Inserting Videos in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



10.8: Embedding Videos in PowerPoint

Learning Outcomes

• Embed a video into a PowerPoint slide.

Karen has another video she wishes to embed in a new slide about collaboration. She opens a browser window to the YouTube website and finds her desired video. She then clicks the **Share** > **Embed** buttons and sees a text box with an address in it. She copies the text by making sure all is selected and then uses Ctrl+C to copy it (or right-click > copy).



Next, Karen toggles (Alt+Tab) back to her PowerPoint presentation window and opens a new blank slide. She clicks on the **Insert** tab, then the **Video** button on the ribbon, and selects the **Online Video** option. This brings up the same Insert Video window as before.

| File Next Design Transitions Solutions State Next Oracle Test method Next Table Pictures Table Pictures |
|---|
| New Fichers Image: Kons Smathat Chart Image: Kons Smathat |
| 2 Video en My <u>P</u> C |
| 2 |
| |
| |
| |
| |

Karen places her cursor in the **From a Video Embed Code** box, pastes the link from her YouTube video with Ctrl+V, and presses the small arrow (or presses the Enter key).





| ন ২০৫ ট = | Presentation1 - PowerPoint | |
|--|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animatio | s Slide Show Review View Q Tell me what you want to do | A Share 🖵 |
| New Table Pictures Online Screenshot Photo Shapes Icon Sides Tables Images | SmartArt Chart B My Add-ins - Zoom Link Action Comment Text Header Working Object Text Root Object | T Ω Ω Image Audio Screen Symbols Media |
| | Insert Video | |
| 2 | CheDrive - Personal Browse > sherripendleton@gmail.com | |
| | YouTube Search YouTube P | |
| | Form a Video Embed Code Pote the embed code to insert a video from a web """ allowfullscreen> x * | |
| | | |
| | Also insert from: | |
| | | |
| | | * 2 |
| Slide 2 of 2 D2 | ≜ Notes | 品 剛 東 |

Now the video is in her new slide and needs to be resized. Karen drags the video so it is almost as large as the slide. It is a little offcenter, so Karen clicks on the **Align** button in the **Format** ribbon area and selects the **Align Center** option.



Next, she decides she would like to have this video play automatically when she moves to this slide in the presentation. She clicks the **Playback** tab and navigates to the **Video Options** area on the ribbon. She then selects the **Start** button and the **Automatically** option.







Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18717

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Embedding Videos in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

10.8: Embedding Videos in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.9: Uploading Videos in PowerPoint

Learning Outcomes

• Upload a video into a PowerPoint slide.

Lastly, Karen has a video on her computer to add for the end of the presentation. She creates a new slide, titles it **The End**, and clicks on the **Insert Video** icon. Now the insert video window appears, and she selects the **From a file** option.

| 1 | From a file Browse files on your computer or local network | Browse Fi | |
|-------------|--|-----------------------|--|
| Â | OneDrive - Personal sherri.pendleton@gmail.com | Browse > | |
| You Tabe | YouTube The largest worldwide video-sharing community! | Search YouTube | |
| Q | From a Video Embed Code Paste the embed code to insert a video from a web site | Paste embed code here | |
| Also | p insert from: | | |

She finds her file in her computer's folders, selects it and clicks the Insert button (or double-clicks on the file).

| 😰 Insert Video | × | Tools | | - 0 × |
|--|---|--|--|---|
| ← → × ↑ 🦲 > Dropbox > Screenshots > | v ♂ Search Screenshots P | nat Q Tell me what you want to do | | A Share 🖵 |
| Organize 👻 New folder | s • 💷 💡 | | CONTRACTOR | P Find |
| Carrer Uploads Adoption cache Adoption cachee Adoption cacheee Adoption cacheeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee | | Canada use. Convert to Smathet asgraph | Arange Quick Subject Const. Drawing | lag negate e D Select → Editing A |
| File name: | ✓ Video Files ("ast/"ast/"ast/"ast/"ast/"ast/"ast/"ast/ | | | - # # |
| Slide 3 of 3 D | | | ≜ Notes 🔳 🔡 🕸 🐺 🖵 | + 72% |

The video is added to her slide.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18719

Note: Many people upload videos from their computers for presentations just in case the internet connection is slow when running their presentation. With a video on your computer, you can count on it working when the time is right.

Karen wants to modify the ending of the video. After dragging and resizing it, she clicks on the **Playback** tab and makes a few changes.





| ন জুত কোন | | 1 Video Tools 🛛 — 🗸 🗙 |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| File Home Insert | Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review | View Format Playback Zell me what you want to do 🖇 Share 💭 |
| | ade Duration | Deop until Stopped |
| Play Add Remove Bookmark Bookmark | Video Fade Out: 00.00 C Volume F Trim Video | 7 X |
| 1 Contra Comments | tating 1 Sunset.1 | Duration 0051322 |
| 2 * 3 * | | |
| | and the second sec | |
| | | |

- 1. Video Tools. This is the highlighted menu for editing video.
- 2. Playback Tab. This regulates playback for videos in the slide.
- 3. Start Button. Karen selects the option to play the video automatically.
- 4. Loop until Stopped. Karen wants this video to keep playing until she stops it.
- 5. **Trim Video Button.** This opens a trim video box for Karen to change her video.
- 6. **Start Time Toggle.** Karen moves the toggle to start the video a few seconds in from the original beginning of the video. She wants the seagulls to be further out of the way when the video starts.
- 7. End Time Toggle. Karen wants the dusky sunset video to end at this point before looping and playing again.
- 8. OK Button. To set these changes Karen clicks the button.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18716

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18718

To make sure the video is set exactly how Karen wants she clicks the **Preview Play Button** or the **Arrow Button** underneath the video.



Karen is all set with her video slides. We will now leave Karen to finish her presentation.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Uploading Videos in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



10.9: Uploading Videos in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



10.10: Introduction to Lists

What you'll learn to do: Use lists

You'll most likely want to include some form of list within your PowerPoint presentation. There is a wide array of types and formats that you can choose from.

10.10: Introduction to Lists is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




10.11: Creating Lists

Create a list

If you have experienced PowerPoint presentations, you've seen lists presented. There are standard bullet point and numbered lists, but there are additional ways to make lists in PowerPoint. Lists can be complex or as simple as you wish them to be.

Creating Lists

Many PowerPoint slides contain formatting in them with bulleted lists. If you see a slide with a bullet point stating "Click to add text" in the slide it, the slide is ready for a bullet point list already. If you do not see a bullet point already, it can be added by going to the **Home** tab, **Paragraph** group, and select either the **bullet list** or **numbers list** button.



With a new formatted slide follow these steps to create a list:

• Click in the frame and begin to type in your list.

| AutoSave 💿 • 문 '> '간 면 = Module10 Intermed Saved + 🖉 Search | Sign in | æ / | - | |
|---|--|------------------|--------|---------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Shape Format | | 🖻 Share | Commer | nts |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | ♀ Find ♀ Replace ♀ Select ~ Editing | Design Design | r | ^ |
| | | | | |
| Roven Retail | | | | |
| ² Creating Interesting Points | | c |) | |
| | | | | |
| Click to add text | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Slide 2 of 2 ∏3 | P - | | | ¢ |

- Press the Enter key on your keyboard when done and the cursor moves down to the next list line.
- Continue to type out points until you are finished with your list. This is how to create a basic list either with bullet points or numbered list. Creating a standard list is a straightforward process in PowerPoint.

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$







Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18720

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18721

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating Lists. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.11: Creating Lists is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.12: Modifying Lists

Learning Objectives

Modify a list

Now that you have a list, it might need to be modified to fit your communication goal better. Here are a few options enhancing a list in a PowerPoint presentation.

Adjusting Spacing

Lists need a bit of space to breath to make it easier for an audience to read. To add space between the points, you can walk through each line and add another line by pressing the Enter key, but a faster way is to use the line spacing button in the paragraph group on the Home tab.

Highlight the list, select the line spacing button, roll the cursor over the spacing parameters until you find what works best with your text, and select it.

Alternatively, select the Line Spacing Options on the bottom line of the line spacing dropdown menu and a dialog box appears where a more granular level of spacing options is offered.



Creating Sub-Points

Indenting list sub-points can highlight additional details. This is done by either pressing the Tab key or using the Indent button in the Home tab, Paragraph group.





| Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Shape Format | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comn |
|---|------------------|
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | Design Ideas |
| Font און Paragraph און Drawing און Editing | Designer |
| Creating Interesting Points | φ |
| | |
| Begin typing and a list is already formatted. | |
| • Hit the Enter key to move down to the next bullet point. | |
| • Continue to enter information to create lists in a slide. | 0 |
| Make sure that the list is not too long or wordy. | |
| 00 | 0 |

Modifying Sub-Point Style

Occasionally changing the style of a sub-point adds further emphasis to it to make it more memorable. To change the style, highlight the sub-points, right click the mouse and select the bullet or number list options in the pop-up menu.







Creating Interesting Points







Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18722

Modifying Style of List

To change a bullet list to a numbers list or change the style of any list follow these steps.

- Highlight the entire list and on the Home tab, Paragraph group, select the bullet or numbers list.
- Hover the cursor over the various choices and each style will appear in the highlighted list.
- Once you decide, **click on the choice** and the list will automatically be updated with the new type or style.







Modifying a List to use Symbols

- Highlight the entire list and on the Home tab, Paragraph group, select the bullet or numbers list.
- At the bottom of the drop-down menu, select the Bullets and Numbering option.
- On the bottom right of the dialog box, click the Customize button and a Symbol window will open with a selection of various symbols to choose. Decide which one you'd like, select it and click OK.
- It will be added into the options for the list menu which can now be selected for the list.





Modifying List to Use a Picture or Icons

- Highlight the entire list, go to the **Home** tab, **Paragraph** group, select the **bullet** or **numbers** list.
- At the bottom of the drop-down menu, select the Bullets and Numbering option.
- On the bottom right of the dialog box, click the **Picture** button and **Insert Pictures** window will open with three choices from which to choose; **From a File, Online Pictures, From Icons**.

| Creating I | nteresting Points | |
|-----------------------------------|--|---|
| • Begin typing • Hit the Enter | , Insert Pictures | ¢ |
| • Continue to • Make sure th | From a File Browse files on your computer or local network | |
| 0 | Online Pictures Search images from online sources like Bing, Flickr or OneDrive From Icons Search the icon collection | |
| 0 | 00 | |

• Decide which one you'd like to do. For this example, we'll enter an icon so click on the **Icon** option. A new window opens with a large variety of icons from which to choose.



- Select an icon to use and click the **Insert** button.
- The icon now replaces the bullet list with the chosen icon.

Modifying Colors of Bullets

There may be occasions when you wish to change the color of just the bullets or numbers in a list. Follow these steps to do so:

- Highlight the entire list, click the Home tab, Paragraph group, select the bullet or numbers list.
- At the bottom of the drop-down menu, select the **Bullets and Numbering** option.
- On the bottom left in the dialog box, click the dropdown menu for the Color button and select the color you wish to use.
- Once the color is selected, click OK. The bullets or numbers will change reflecting your selected color in the slide.





Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18723

Try It

The purpose of most PowerPoints is to get your points across as succinctly and clearly as possible. Here are a few key things to keep in mind when creating lists:

- Use a max of four to five points because more tends to be overwhelming to an audience.
- Changing fonts, colors, or styles in a list makes it difficult to read or look at for too long.
- Too many words can start audiences on the road to numbness. Keep it simple.
- Colors that are high contrast, clash or overwhelm each other are best avoided.
- Font size is very important. If your font is too small, and only you can read it, you lose audience attention.

Now that you know a few ways to create PowerPoint lists in PowerPoint. Start experimenting to see what works best for your presentations.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Modifying Lists. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

10.12: Modifying Lists is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



10.13: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills

Now that you know some of the more visual-based tricks in PowerPoint, let's take a look at our opening list of possible presentation goals and match those with the skills you just learned.

- 1. You want to show a clip from an advertising campaign. You can achieve this by inserting the video and even trim it to a shorter segment.
- 2. You want to provide a visual introduction of newly hired employees. *You can easily insert headshots of the new employees, and can even use the grouping and arranging options to make sure everyone gets equal billing in photo size and position.*

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

10.13: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.14: Assignment- Create a New Presentation

For this assignment, you will create a short PowerPoint presentation that includes several objects as well as slide transitions. In this assignment, imagine you have been asked to present at the next staff meeting. You know you will have lots of data tables and sales figures to discuss, but you also want to keep the mood light by having some humor in your presentation. So the first thing you will do is find some visuals to help break up the business discussion.

Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Open a new blank presentation. Save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop as **BA132_LastName_NewPresentation.pptx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_NewPresentation) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 2. On the first slide, title the presentation "Module 10 Presentation" with your name in the subtitle box.







3. Add three more slides with these layouts: "Title and Content," "Two Content," and "Title and Content."

| 🔒 🖘 ଓ 🗔 🕫 | Presentation1 - PowerPoint | • 🖻 – 🗇 X |
|------------------------|--|-----------------------------|
| File Home Insert Desig | n Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Mix | Foxit PDF Q Tell me 🞗 Share |
| Paste V Slide V C | $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | Quick Styles - Quick |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides | Font G Paragraph G Drawi | ng G |
| 2 | Click to add title | |
| 3 | | |
| 4 | | |
| | | |
| Slide 4 of 4 []2 | ≜ Notes 📮 Comments 📳 🔡 🕮 | |

4. Add an image of your choice to the second slide and align this image to the left.







5. Add clip art to the third slide. Align the left object to the top of the slide. Align the right object to the bottom of the slide.



6. Create a SmartArt graphic on slide 4. You may copy the example, which shows a basic process. Choose your own color scheme. Any color other than the default blue color is acceptable.





7. Add one new slide with the Title and Content layout. Insert an online video about Koala's and title the slide.



8. Lastly, go to each slide in the presentation and add any type of transition you would like for each slide.



9. Save your work and submit it in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Create a New Presentation. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

10.14: Assignment- Create a New Presentation is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





10.15: Discussion- Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video

This PowerPoint module included a variety of ways to use and insert videos into a presentation. But what if you need to record a presentation to be able to send it to absent colleges or be able to upload it to an internal website?

Watch this video below to see how to record your presentation as a video.



A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=440

Discussion Questions

- How could you use this new skill in school or business?
- What types of scenarios would call for being able to use or upload a recorded presentation?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video. Authored by: Shelli Carter. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

All rights reserved content

 You Can Make A Narrated PowerPoint Video!. Authored by: Microsoft Education. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Y5dgwwa5XRA. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

10.15: Discussion- Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

11: Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

Learning Objectives

- Use colors in PowerPoint
- Create tables in slides
- Use animations in PowerPoint
- Use charts in PowerPoint
- Modify PowerPoint custom template presentation
- Use internet tools to enhance PowerPoint presentations

11.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

- 11.2: Introduction to Colors
- 11.3: Color Themes
- 11.4: Custom Color Themes
- 11.5: Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint
- 11.6: Create Tables
- 11.7: Format Tables
- 11.8: Modify Tables
- 11.9: Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint
- 11.10: Animations in PowerPoint
- 11.11: Introduction to Charts in PowerPoint
- 11.12: Create Charts
- 11.13: Format Charts
- 11.14: Modify Charts
- 11.15: Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template
- 11.16: Customized PowerPoint Templates
- 11.17: Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint
- 11.18: Internet and PowerPoint
- 11.19: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills
- 11.20: Assignment- Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations
- 11.21: Discussion- Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint

11: Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



11.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

Why learn to complete advanced skills in Microsoft PowerPoint?

There's even more that you can do in Microsoft PowerPoint.

- You can create a cohesive color theme
- You can add tables and charts
- You can integrate your presentation with online resources

We'll look at these and other functions in this module.

11.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.2: Introduction to Colors

What you'll learn to do: Use colors in PowerPoint

Color is incredibly important to a well designed slide deck. Your colors should be consistent throughout your presentation—and if you're creating a presentation for a business meeting, your colors should be consistent with your company's branding.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Colors. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.2: Introduction to Colors is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.3: Color Themes

Learning Outcomes

• Use color themes

PowerPoint includes advanced features such as making a custom template. In addition, color themes can be selected to enliven a presentation or align the color scheme with a company's logo, marketing campaign or advertising colors. PowerPoint's flexible tools also include the ability to create custom color themes for your presentation and be able to use it over again if you are using Office 365.

At a team meeting this Friday Sharon is giving a presentation. She has selected a presentation theme which came with predefined colors and has begun to work on the content. After talking with Jeff in the marketing department, Sharon realizes it would be better to have the presentation align with the marketing campaign colors. Here is how Sharon changed the colors in her existing presentation and how you can as well.

After opening the PowerPoint presentation, click on the **Design** tab, and navigate to the **Variants** group.

- 1. Click the **down arrow** in the corner of the variant scrollbar and a new dropdown menu appears.
- 2. Select the Colors option, and another color bar menu opens to the right.



3. Scroll down or roll the cursor over each of the color options to see the current slide immediately change to fit the color themes being rolled over.



| AutoSave 💽 🛱 🏷 - 🕐 🖳 🗢 Presentation1 - PowerPoint 👂 Search | | Sign in 🖪 🔁 🗆 🗙 |
|--|---------------------|--|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review | View Help | 암 Share 🖓 Comments |
| | | Slide Format Design Size ~ Background Ideas |
| Themes | Colors > | Office |
| ✓ Default Section | A Fonts > | Office |
| | Effects > | Office 2007 - 2010 |
| | Background Styles > | Grayscale |
| G3 Sales Campaign | | Blue Warm |
| | | Blue |
| ⊿ List | | Blue Green |
| | | Green |
| | | Green Yellow |
| E | | Yellow |
| | | Yellow Orange |
| | | Orange |
| Region | | Orange Red |
| $\bigcirc 3 \\ \bigcirc 3 \\ \bigcirc 2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\$ | ampaian | Red |
| | Jumpuign | Red Violet |
| | REASING STORE SALES | Violet |
| | | Violet II |
| | | Median |
| | | Paper |
| Weydenessyn Jeduk | | Marquee 💌 |
| | | Customize Colors |
| | | <u>R</u> eset Slide Theme Colors |
| Slide 1 of 5 | 🔶 Notes 🔳 🔠 | ····· ······························· |

4. After deciding on a new color scheme, select it and the entire PowerPoint slide deck converts to the chosen color theme.



5. If a new color theme for a presentation needs to change even after the content is completed, follow the same steps and select a new color theme. This will automatically convert all the slides to match that color theme.





Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18724

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18725

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Color Themes. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.3: Color Themes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.4: Custom Color Themes

Learning Outcomes

• Create a custom color theme

If a company is associated with certain colors, or you want to create a distinctive color theme for your presentation, follow these next steps.

- 1. After opening a PowerPoint presentation, click on the **Design** tab, and navigate to the **Variants** group.
- 2. Click the **down arrow** in the corner of the variant scrollbar and a new dropdown menu appears.
- 3. Select the **Colors** option, and another the color bar menu opens to the right.
- 4. Scroll to the very bottom of the list and select the **Customize Colors** option.



5. A **Create New Theme Colors** dialog box opens. On the left are the various areas and their associated colors. On the right side is a visual layout sample of the colors associated with the different areas. Any of the areas can be changed to specific colors to



match the custom theme.

| AutoSave 💽 🗒 ツィ ひ 里 マ Presentation1 - | owerPoint 🔎 Search Sign in 🖻 🖉 🖓 🖬 | × |
|--|--|----|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Anir | ations Slide Show Review View Help 🖻 Share 🖵 Comments | 5 |
| Aa Aa Aa | Accession in the second | |
| Themes | Create New Theme Colors Customize Designer | ^ |
| A Default Section 1 1 1 1 | Theme colors Sample Text/Background - Dark 1 Image: Sample Text/Background - Light 1 Image: Sample Text/Background - Dark 2 Image: Sample Text/Background - Light 2 Image: Sample Accent 1 Image: Sample Accent 2 Image: Sample Accent 3 Image: Sample Accent 5 Image: Sample Hyperlink Image: Sample Barrer Sample Mame: Rowan Retail Same Same Cancel | * |
| Slide 2 of 5 D | | ô. |
| LV | | Ψ. |

6. Once new colors are selected, in the Name field, type in the name of your new custom color theme and click the Save button.

• If after working on the colors for while you wish to start over, click the Reset button on the bottom left and all the area colors return to the original starting colors.







7. Now return to the **Variants** group, select the **down arrow**, **colors**, and look at the top of the color menu. The newly created custom color theme is at the top. This is now saved and can be used over and over with new presentations.



8. If you are using Office 365, this new custom color scheme created in PowerPoint can be used throughout Microsoft 365 products (e.g. Word, Excel, etc.).

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18726

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18727

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Custom Color Themes. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.4: Custom Color Themes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



11.5: Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Create tables in Microsoft PowerPoint

Often you'll want to display data within your presentations. Tables are a great way to do so. Let's take a look at how to add and modify tables within PowerPoint.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

11.5: Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.6: Create Tables

Learning Objectives

Create tables in slides

Creating tables in PowerPoint supports conveying data, financials or information about products, sales, services, or almost anything. The most effective use of a table in PowerPoint is its ability to compare information at a glance. At the same time, creating large, hyper detailed tables in a presentation can backfire and generate frustration since most presentations move quickly or are projected at a distance making it harder to read quickly. The most effective use of a table in a presentation is as a summary of simple comparative information.

There are the four methods that PowerPoint provides to add tables into a presentation. Let's take a look at each method.

First Method

1. Open a new slide using the **Table and Content** slide. Enter the Title of the slide, then click on the **Insert** tab.





| AutoSave 💿 🕞 🏷 - 간 또 👻 Mod | ule 11 Advance Saved + 🔎 Search | Sign in 🖬 💻 | |
|--|---|---|----------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show Review View Help Shape Format | 🖻 Share | Comments |
| New Slide ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ | → SmartArt → Chart Chart Comment Box | Header WordArt Symbols Video Audio Screen & Footer | |
| Sildes Tables Images | Illustrations Links Comments | Text Media | |
| A List 2 Interregeneration Interregeneration Interregeneration Interregeneration Interregeneration | Southwest Sales Table | | |
| 3 | Click to add text | | |
| | | | |
| 5 Interface sector | | | |
| | | | * |
| Slide 6 of 6 | | Notes 🔲 🖽 🗐 ऱ | + 76% © |

- 2. Select the **Table** button and drag the cursor over the number of rows and columns you want to use in the slide. The table will now appear in the slide, colored in the presentation theme colors.
 - 1. Type the information into the table.
 - 2. If you wish to add an extra row, a short-cut way is to place the cursor in the bottom right, last cell and press the **tab** key. A new row is now created in the table.





Second Method

1. Another way to insert a table in a PowerPoint slide is to go to **Insert tab** and insert a **new slide**.

- 2. This time click on the **small table icon** in the center.
 - Alternatively, select Insert tab, Table button, Insert Table option and a dialogue box opens.

| AutoSave 💿 🕞 🏷 🖓 🐺 🗢 M | Iodule 11 Advance Saved - 🖉 Search | Sign in | ⊡ – ⊡ | × |
|--|--|----------------|-------------------------------------|------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitio | ns Animations Slide Show Review View Help | | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comm | ents |
| New Slide ~ Pictures Pictures Pictures Pictures Slide ~ Slide | Add- ins [™] Comment Comment Comment Comment Structure | nbols Video | (J)) Audio Screen ~ Recording | |
| Slides Insert Table | Illustrations Links Comments Text | | Media | ^ |
| 2 List | Southwest Sales Table | | | |
| 3 III Insert Table Caracterization of the second | Click to add text | | | |
| 4 5 S set to associate | | | | |
| ••••••••• •••••••• •••••••••• •••••••••• •••••••••• •••••••••• | | | | Ţ |
| Slide 6 of 6 | <u></u> en tes ■ BB ■ | II | | ÷ \$ |



3. Once the Insert Table dialog box opens, enter the number of columns and rows for the table, click OK.

| AutoSave 💿 🕞 🏷 🕐 👻 🗢 | Module 11 Advance Last Modified: Thu at 6:06 PM 🔸 🔗 Search | Sign in 🖻 🛑 🗖 | × |
|--|--|--|----------|
| File Home Insert Design Transit | ons Animations Slide Show Review View Help Shape Format | 🖻 Share 🔽 Comme | nts |
| New Table Image: Screenshot ~ Slide ~ Screenshot ~ Slides Tables Image: Screenshot ~ | Shapes Icons Image: Shapes Icons <td>Ω Symbols video Audio Screen × Recording Media</td> <td><u>_</u></td> | Ω Symbols video Audio Screen × Recording Media | <u>_</u> |
| C3 Sour Campage | | | |
| | Southwest Sales Table | | |
| 3 | Click to add text Number of columns: 5 Number of rows: 2 OK Cancel | 0 | |
| | | 0 | |
| 5 Arristanti and Arri | | | |
| 6 6 | ۵o | b | ₹ 1 |
| Slide 6 of 6 | Notes 🔟 🗄 | 김 때 핏 - ── ► → ── + 76% | Ô |

4. A new, empty table will open in the center of the slide ready for data input. Notice two new tabs opened in the menu above the ribbon as well; Table Design and Layout. Here styles can be changed, shading, SmartArt, and boarders, as well as a host of other table layout options to change a table to suite the presentation best.

| AutoSave 🚥 🖫 りー ひ 甲 | ✓ Module 11 Advance Saving • | Sign in 🔳 🔒 | - 0 | × |
|---|--|---------------|-------|------|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Design Layout | 🖻 Share | Comme | ents |
| Header Row First Column Total Row And Column Handed Rows Banded Columns | $ \begin{array}{c} & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & $ | Color ~ Table | er | |
| Table Style Options | Table Styles WordArt Styles | Draw Borders | | ^ |
| C3 Soles Comparign | | _ | | |
| ∡ List | | | | |
| | Southwest Sales Table | | | |
| 3 | | -0 | | |
| Lenne Region | | | | |
| 4 | | 0 | | |
| | | | | |
| 5 Bartis la later cantar | | -0 | | |
| | | | | |
| 6 | | | | |
| | | | | * |
| | | | | Ŧ |





Third Method

1. The third way to create a new table is go to Insert tab, Table button, select Draw Table option and the cursor becomes a pencil.

| AutoSave 💁 🕞 🏷 - 연 포 🍷 Module 11 Advance Saved + 🔗 Search | Sign in 🛛 🖬 | x |
|--|-------------|---------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help | 🖻 Sl | hare 🖓 Comments |
| New Screenshot* Side* Pictures Pictures Screenshot* Side* Comment Image: Screenshot* Screenshot* Side* Screenshot* Side* Screenshot* | Video Audio | Screen Recording |
| Slides Insert Table Illustrations Links Comments Text | Med | lia ^ |
| List 2 Southwest Sales Table | | |
| 2 Insert Table | | |
| 3 Draw Table | | |
| Excel Spreadsheet Draw Table D text Design your own table by drawing the cell, row and column borders | | |
| You can even draw diagonal lines and cells within cells. | | |
| | | |
| J Explorements Hereiner | | |
| 6 | | * \$ \$ |
| Slide 6 of 6 ① | 모 | → + 76% <Ĝ> |

2. Hold down the left mouse button and drag the pencil cursor to fit the size of table desired within the slide.



3. Once the table is created, PowerPoint opens the two additional tabs; Table Design and Layout.





4. The Table Design tab contains options to change the table style, effects, shading, boarders and WordArt styles.

| AutoSave 💿 💀 り~ 🕐 🖳 | → Module 11 Advance Saved - | Sign in 🖻 🖉 – Oli 🗆 🗙 |
|--|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Des | sign Layout 🖻 Share 🖓 Comments |
| Header Row First Column Total Row Banded Rows Banded Columns Table Style Options | Best Match for Document | 2 Shading ~ Borders ~ 2 Effects ~ WordArt Styles √s WordArt Styles √s Draw Borders |
| at Sourcegon | | |
| 2 The constant form The constant of the constant The constant of the constant of the constant The constant of the constant | Light | |
| 3 southwest Region | | î |
| 4 | Medium | |
| | | |
| Erry to the context subjects or the provide the subjects of the provided to | | |
| | | J |
| Slide 6 of 6 | Dark 🔻 | Notes 🔟 맘 珈 및+ + 76% ф |

- 5. The Layout tab allows you to work on the rows and columns, merge cells, change cell size, alignment, the table size and arranging the table position.
 - 1. Tables function the same in PowerPoint as they do in Word with creating, entering data, changing layout or colors or boarder styles.
 - 2. A table in PowerPoint can also be treated like an object or graphic and brought forward, back, or rearranged like a drawing through the Arrange group.





| AutoSave 💿 🕞 りくひ 田 🗧 | <u>م</u> | Search | | | Sig | in in 🗖 🗖 | - 🗆 🗙 | |
|---|--------------------------------------|---|---|-------------------|---|---|---------------------------------------|-------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show | Review View | Help Table Desig | n Layout | | 🖻 Share | Comments | |
| Select View Gridlines Table Table | ge Split Is Cells Merge Cell S | Distribute Rows Distribute Columns iize | E = = ↓↓↓ Text Direction ~ Alignment | Cell Margins ~ | eight: 3" 🗘 [/idth: 9.83" û [ock Aspect Ratio Table Size | Bring Forward Send Backward Selection Pane Arrange | ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● | ^ |
| 2 southwest segion | | | | | | | | |
| | Southwest S | ales Tc | able | | | | | |
| | States Ju | ly | August | September | Totals | 0 | | |
| 5 and to have very the | Arizona | | | | | | | |
| | Colorado | | | | | 0 | | |
| - Company and an an and a second and a secon | New Mexico | | | | | | | |
| 6 Januard Jone 1000 | Utah | | 0 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | 4 H 4 |
| Slide 6 of 7 | | | | Notes [| e :: @ F | · | + 76% ∢Ĝ> | , |

Fourth Method

1. The last way to create a table in PowerPoint is to select the Excel table option in the **Insert, Table, Excel Spreadsheet** in the dropdown menu.





2. Excel opens within PowerPoint giving access to the functions available in an Excel spreadsheet. This way calculations, formulas and functions can be used to create a table within PowerPoint without the need to import a table from Excel. Start typing information and data into the Excel table.



3. Along with entering information to be included in the table, you can create formulas, or use other Excel functions in a spreadsheet.

| Module 11 Advanced PP - PowerPoint | | T Enn . | | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---|---|--------------------|
| <u>File</u> <u>W</u> indow | | | | | | |
| AutoSave 💽 🕂 🏳 🍾 🖓 🗸 🖓 🏲 | ⇒ Cearc | h | | | | |
| Home Insert Page Layout Formula | s Data Review View | Developer Hel | lp Power Pivot | | ß : | Share 🛛 🖓 Comments |
| $ \begin{array}{c c} & & \\ & & \\ & \\ Paste \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ $ | E = = ≫ - 20 Gen E = = E = E = E - \$ | • % 9 €0 .00 F | Conditional Format as Formatting ~ Table ~ S | Cell tyles ~ | $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | Ideas |
| Clipboard 🕞 Font 🕠 | Alignment 🕞 | Number 🕞 | Styles | Cells | Editing | Ideas ^ |
| ▲ List 2 | | | | | | |
| | Southwest | Sales Tal | ble | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| accent Southwest Begion | A | B | C | D | E | |
| 4 | States | July Ar | ugust S | September | E Totals | |
| 4 | States 2 Arizona | July A \$25,362.00 \$ | ugust s 29,564.00 | 5eptember \$ 20,451.00 | Totals \$ 75,377.00 | |
| 3 4 5 methodeset 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | States 1 2 Arizona 3 Colorado | July A \$25,362.00 \$ \$35,264.00 \$ | ugust S 29,564.00 S 32,654.00 S | september \$ 20,451.00 \$ 33,564.00 | Totals \$ 75,377.00 \$ 101,482.00 | |
| 3 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 | States Arizona Colorado A New Mexico | July Au \$25,362.00 \$ \$35,264.00 \$ \$26,549.00 \$ | ugust S 29,564.00 \$ 32,654.00 \$ 22,659.00 \$ | eptember \$ 20,451.00 \$ 33,564.00 \$ 26,354.00 | Totals \$ 75,377.00 \$ 101,482.00 \$ 75,562.00 | |
| 3 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 | States Arizona Colorado Anew Mexico 5 Utah | July Au \$25,362.00 \$ \$35,264.00 \$ \$26,549.00 \$ \$20,598.00 \$ | ugust S 29,564.00 \$ 32,654.00 \$ 22,659.00 \$ 21,899.00 \$ | eptember \$ 20,451.00 \$ 33,564.00 \$ 26,354.00 \$ 27,564.00 | Totals \$ 75,377.00 \$ 101,482.00 \$ 75,562.00 \$ 70,061.00 | |
| 3 4 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | A States Arizona Colorado New Mexico 5 Utah Sheet1 | July Au \$25,362.00 \$ \$35,264.00 \$ \$26,549.00 \$ \$20,598.00 \$ | ugust S 29,564.00 3 32,654.00 5 22,659.00 5 21,899.00 5 | September \$ 20,451.00 \$ 33,564.00 \$ 26,354.00 \$ 27,564.00 1 | Totals \$ 75,377.00 \$ 101,482.00 \$ 75,562.00 \$ 70,061.00 | v * |
| 3 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | A States Arizona Colorado New Mexico 5 Utah Sheet1 | July A1 \$25,362.00 \$ \$35,264.00 \$ \$26,549.00 \$ \$20,598.00 \$ ⊕ | ugust S 29,564.00 3 32,654.00 5 22,659.00 5 21,899.00 5 | September \$ 20,451.00 \$ 33,564.00 \$ 26,354.00 \$ 27,564.00 \$ | Totals \$ 75,377.00 \$ 101,482.00 \$ 75,562.00 \$ 70,061.00 | ₹ ₹ |



4. When the table is complete, click outside of the table area onto the slide and the table will be converted back into a PowerPoint table view.

| AutoSave 💿 🕞 ႒ - 🕐 후 🛛 Module 11 Advance Saved + | ♀ Search | | | Sign in | E – | |
|--|---------------------|---------------------|------------------|-----------|----------------------|----------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Slide | e Show Review Vie | w Help Shape Format | | | 🖻 Share 🛛 🕅 | Comments |
| New Table Pictures Difference Control | Add- ins * | Action Comment Tex | t Header WordArt | Ω Video | (↓)) Audio Screen | a |
| Slides Tables Images Illustrations | Link | s Comments | Text | | Media | |
| List 2 List 3 List 4 List 4 List 5 Southwest 5 States | est Sales 1 July | Table August | September | Totals | | |
| Arizona | \$ 25,362.00 | \$ 29,564.00 | \$ 20,451.00 | \$ 75,37 | 77.00 👵 | |
| 5 Colorado | \$ 35,264.00 | \$ 32,654.00 | \$ 33,564.00 | \$ 101,48 | 32.00 | |
| New Mexico | \$ 26,549.00 | \$ 22,659.00 | \$ 26,354.00 | \$ 75,56 | 62.00 | |
| Utah | \$ 20,598.00 | \$ 21,899.00 | \$ 27,564.00 | \$ 70,06 | 61.00 | |
| D Justice Total To | | Ŭ | | | 5 | |
| | | | | ~ | | |

- 5. If data in the Excel table needs editing, double click on the table and it will open Excel again allowing editing.
- 6. This table, or any of the tables, can be moved or resized like other objects in an Office program to match the scale needed for the presentation.

| Practice Questions |
|--|
| https://assessments.lumenlearning.coessments/18728 |
| https://assessments.lumenlearning.coessments/18729 |

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Create Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.6: Create Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



11.7: Format Tables

Learning Objectives

• Format tables in slides

Once a table is created in a PowerPoint slide it needs formatting to match a presentation or emphasize an aspect of its information. Here is how to format various areas of a table.

In a slide with a table inserted, click on the table and two new menu tabs appear; Table Design and Layout.



Table Design tab offers a variety of formatting and style options for a PowerPoint table. Here's how to use some of those options.

| AutoSave 💿 🕞 🍤 🕐 🖤 | ➡ Module 11 Advance Saving + | Sign in 🖻 🗕 🗆 🗙 |
|--|--|---|
| File Home Insert Desig | n Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Design Layo | out 🖻 Share 🖓 Comments |
| Header Row First Column Total Row Last Column Banded Rows Banded Columns | → Shading × · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Quick A v Styles A v E Pen Color v Table |
| Table Style Options | Table Styles | WordArt Styles 🗔 Draw Borders 🧄 |

Table Style

Change a table's style by hovering over the colored tables or clicking the down arrow to see table style options. The options are organized into Light, Medium, and Dark table colors. Select the style format by click on it and the table is automatically changed to the new style in the slide.


| AutoSave 💿 🕞 '9 ' 🕐 🖞 | | Sign in 🖻 🔔 🔍 🗙 |
|--|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Design | Layout 🖻 Share 🖓 Comments |
| 🗌 Header Row 🗌 First Column | 🚽 🖉 Sha | |
| Total Row Last Column | Best Match for Document | ders v Ouick A v 1 pt V Draw Eraser |
| Banded Rows Banded Columns | | cts * Styles * 🗛 * 💆 Pen Color * Table |
| Table Style Options | | WordArt Styles 🕞 Draw Borders 🥎 |
| Q3 Soles Compolign | | |
| | | |
| . 154 | | |
| 2 | Light | |
| Ealer variagement fear | | |
| and the second s | | |
| | | |
| 3 | | |
| Southwest Region | | î |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| 4 | | |
| I | Medium | |
| | | |
| | | Ĭ |
| 5 Berts Da. Neur Analiza | | |
| and a second sec | | |
| | | |
| 6 | | |
| South- art John Tobin | | - - |
| | | * |
| | | * |
| Slide 6 of 6 | Dark 💌 | - Anotes 🔲 🗄 🗐 🖵 + 76% Ф |

Best Match for Document

If you are unsure what style works best with the presentation, use the Best Match for Document option in the drop-down menu on the top right.

| AutoSave 💿 💿 🔓 🎐 🕖 🗜 | J ≂ Module 11 Advanc Last Modified: Sun at 4:51 PM → 🔎 Search | Sign in | • | - 🗆 | |
|--|---|----------------------------|----------|--------|----------|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help <mark>Table Design Layout</mark> | | 🖻 Share | 🖓 Com | ments |
| Header Row First Column Total Row Last Column Banded Rows Banded Columns Table Style Options | Best Match for Document | 1 pt 2 Pen Color Dra | Table | Eraser | <u>^</u> |
| Practice Question https://assessments.lumer | nlearning.coessments/18730 | | | | |

Style Options

Other format and style options available for tables include shading, borders and effects. If a table needs to be formatted with different borders, click the down arrow on the **Borders** button and select the border style for the table.



| AutoSave 💿 💿 🖫 りゃ ひ 🗜 | J マ Module 11 Advanc Last Modified: Sun at 4:51 PM マ 🔎 Search Sign |
|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Design Layout |
| ✓ Header Row | $\begin{array}{c c} & & & & & \\ \hline & & & & \\ \hline & & & & \\ \hline & & & \\ \hline & & & \\ \hline \\ \hline$ |
| Table Style Options | Table Styles 🗄 All Borders |
| | 🔛 Out <u>s</u> ide Borders |
| | H Inside Borders |
| | Top Border |
| | Southwest Sales Table 🗄 Bottom Border |
| 4 | |
| | Right Border |
| | Inside <u>H</u> orizontal Border |
| 5 Aarta Fia Vian ruselas | Inside Vertical Border |
| i quagangan i quagangan i manganaman i manganaman | States July August Se Diagonal Down Border |
| | Arizona Diagonal Up Border |

Text

To change text format in a table use the **WordArt** button in the **Table Design** tab.

| AutoSave 💁 🕞 🏷 🕐 👻 🗢 | Module 11 Advance Save | ed 👻 🔎 Search | | | | Sign | in 🖬 | - 0 | × |
|--|------------------------|-----------------|--------------|---|------------------------------|---|---------------|-------------|--------|
| File Home Insert Design Transit | ons Animations Sli | ide Show Review | View Help Ta | ble Design | Layout | | 🖻 Share | Co | mments |
| ✓ Header Row □ First Column □ Total Row □ Last Column ✓ Banded Rows □ Banded Columns | | | | ▲ ↓ /ul> | A Quick Styles ∽ A | ↓ 1 pt- ↓ Pe | n Color ~ Tab | A Eraser le | |
| Table Style Options | | Table Styles | | N | Α | A | | Α | |
| 3 | | | | | А | A / | A A | Α | |
| 4 | Southwes | t Sales To | able | | Α | A | A A | A | |
| | | | | | A | A | A A | A | |
| | | | | | A _⊘ <u>C</u> lear | WordArt | | | |
| - Serverge and Address - Segregation and Address - Segregation and Address | States | July | August | Septemb | ber | Totals | | | |
| 6 | Arizona | | | | | | | | |
| | Colorado | | | | | | | | |
| | New Mexico | | | | | | | | |
| | Utah | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | | | | | | | • • |
| Slide 6 of 8 | | | | ≙ Notes [| | <u>미</u> 모 | | + | 74% ¢ |

Border

Change a table's border thickness, color, or pattern by selecting those options in the **Draw Borders** group under the **Table Design** tab.



| AutoSave 💿 🛛 🖓 - ひ 🗄 | f | d 🗸 🔎 Search | | | Sign in | ⊡ – ⊡ × |
|--|----------------------------|----------------|---------------|-------------------|---|----------------------|
| File Home Insert Design | Transitions Animations Sli | de Show Review | View Help Tab | ble Design Layout | | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comments |
| Header Row First Column Total Row Last Column Sanded Rows Banded Columns | | | | | A ~ 1 pt | Draw Eraser |
| Table Style Options | | Table Styles | | WordArt Sty | ies 🖬 🖓 pt | ders ^ |
| 3 4 * | Southwes | t Sales To | able | | ¾ pt 1 pt 1½ pt 2¼ pt 3 pt 4½ pt 6 pt | |
| S Were the case Were the case Wer | States | July | August | September | Totals | |
| 6 Jactive Jack Tale | Arizona | | | | | |
| | o Colorado New Mexico | | | | | 0 |
| 7 Jacobian Statistics Co | Utah | | 0 | | | |
| 8 | C | | J | | | \$ |
| Slide 6 of 8 | | | | ≙Notes 🔳 🔠 | M T - | + 74% ¢ |

Now you have learned new formatting skills for a PowerPoint table the next is to lean how to modify a table.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18731

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Format Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.7: Format Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



11.8: Modify Tables

Learning Objectives

• Modify tables in slides

There are times when a PowerPoint table needs modification after information or data is entered. Here is how to modify various parts of a PowerPoint table.

Open a slide with a table, click on the table and the **Layout** tab appears. After selecting the **Layout** tab there are options available to modify rows, columns, merge cells, change cell size, modify the alignment, the table size and arrange the table position. Here is how to modify a table with those various options.

| AutoSave On • | 隠り~ひ里 ≂ | | ✓ Search | | | Sign in 🖻 — 🗆 X |
|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|--|---|---|--|
| File Home | Insert Design Transiti | ons Animations Slide Show | / Review View | Help Table Design Layo | out | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comments |
| Select View Gridlines | Delete v Above II Insert Right | Merge Split Cells Cells | Distribute Rows Distribute Columns | $ \begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \\ \hline \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline$ | ↓ Height: 3" ↓ ↓ Width: 9.83" ↓ ↓ Lock Aspect Ratio | Bring Forward ► Ford Backward The send Backward |
| Table | Rows & Columns | Merge | Cell Size | Alignment | Table Size | Arrange |

Note

Many of the actions that can be done using the buttons in the ribbon can also be found if a table is selected and the right mouse button clicked.

Rows & Columns

A table might need an additional row or column or to eliminate rows or columns.

1. **Delete:** Highlight the row/column to be eliminated, select the **Delete** button down arrow in the **Rows & Columns** group and select the correct delete option (column or row).





2. Insert: Highlight a row or column, select either the Insert Above, Insert below, Insert Left, or Insert Right button to add in a new row or column

| AutoSave 💁 🖫 🏷 - 🕐 🖳 🗢 Modu | ıle 11 Advance Saved 🝷 | ♀ Search | | | | Sign in 🛛 🖻 | - 🗆 × |
|--|-----------------------------------|-----------------|-------------------|---------------------|---|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Sho | w Review View | Help Table De | sign Layou | t | 🖻 Sha | re 🖓 Comments |
| Select View Gridlines Delete Table Rows & Columns | erge Split ells Cells Merge | Distribute Rows | Text Direction | Cell ~ Margins ~ | Height: 2.42" Width: 9.65" Lock Aspect Rati Table Size | Bring F Bring F </td <td>orward マ ╠- マ ackward マ 顶 マ on Pane ⊘ マ Arrange</td> | orward マ ╠- マ ackward マ 顶 マ on Pane ⊘ マ Arrange |
| | | | | | | | |
| | outhwest | Sales Tal | ble | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| S Landa file, New collector | 0 | | 0 | | | 0 | |
| - Senser and an article and a sense and a sens | States J | uly A | August | Septembe | er Totals | | |
| 6 Interesting | Colorado | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | New Mexico | | | | | | |
| 7 Southward Strine bio Register - 03 | Utah | | 0 | | | | |
| | 0 | | 0 | | | 0 | |
| 8 | | | | | | | • • |
| Slide 6 of 8 | | | | ≙ Notes [| | 모 | + 76% ¢ |

Merge



Highlight the cell, row, or column to be modified and select either the Merge Cells or Split Cells button to merge or split cells.

| AutoSave 💿 • 명 ૾ 가 간 또 = Modu | ile 11 Advance Saved - 🔎 Search | | Sign in | |
|---|---------------------------------|----------------------------|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide Show Review | View Help Table Design Lay | yout | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comments |
| ↓ ↓ </td <td>erge Split cells Cells</td> <td>ows</td> <td>↓ Height: 2.42" ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓<!--</td--><td>Bring Forward ✓ ↓ Send Backward ✓ ↓ Selection Pane △ ✓</td></td> | erge Split cells Cells | ows | ↓ Height: 2.42" ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ </td <td>Bring Forward ✓ ↓ Send Backward ✓ ↓ Selection Pane △ ✓</td> | Bring Forward ✓ ↓ Send Backward ✓ ↓ Selection Pane △ ✓ |
| Table Rows & Columns | Merge Cell Size | Alignment | Table Size | Arrange A |
| 3 * * | outhwest Sales | Table | | |
| 5 Compared and a second and a | States July | August Septem | ber Totals | |
| | Colorado | | | - |
| 7 | New Mexico Utah | 0 | | |
| 8 | | | | * * |
| Slide 6 of 8 | | 🚔 Notes | 므 맘 텍 두 - | + 76% «Ĝ» |

Distribute Rows/Columns

Select the rows or columns and select either the **Distribute Rows** or **Distribute Columns** button to modify the spacing of the rows/columns for a table.





| AutoSave 💁 🖟 ∽ 간 🖳 ≂ Moo | lule 11 Advance Savi | ng 🔎 Search | | Sign i | n 🖻 🗕 🗖 | × |
|--|---|---|---|---|---|----|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations SI | ide Show Review View | Help Table Design | Layout | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Commen | ts |
| Select View Delete Insert & Above Trinsert Right | Merge Split Cells Cells | Distribute Rows Distribute Columns | $ = = = \qquad $ | ↓ Height: 3.5" ↓ ↓ Width: 9.65" ↓ s ∨ ↓ Lock Aspect Ratio | Bring Forward V PV Send Backward V V Selection Pane | |
| Table Rows & Columns | Merge | Cell Size | Alignment | Table Size | Arrange | _ |
| 3 Interception int | | | | | | |
| | Southwe | est Sales Ta | ble | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 5 * * * * * * * * * * | States | July A | August Septe | mber Totals | | |
| 5 * * * * * * * * * * | States Arizona Colorado | July A | August Septe | mber Totals | | |
| 5 ** | States Arizona Colorado New Mexico | July A | August Septer | mber Totals | | |
| 5 ** | States Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah | A yluty A | August Septer | mber Totals | | * |
| 5 Image: Second seco | States Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah | July A Image: | August Septer | mber Totals | | × |

Text Alignment

Highlight a cell, row or column with the desired text for alignment and select the desired type of alignment using one of the alignment options. In this example, column titles are now left aligned and centered in the column cells



| File Home Inset Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Table Design Layout Image: State Show | AutoSave 💁 🕞 ジィ ひ 里 マ Mo | odule 11 Advance Saving | - 🔎 Search | | | Sign in | E / | - 0 | |
|---|--|---|---|---------------------------|---------------------------|---|---------------------------|----------------------------------|--------|
| Selet Image Selet Image Image Spit Image Spit <t< td=""><td>File Home Insert Design Transition</td><td>s Animations Slide</td><td>Show Review View</td><td>Help Table De</td><td>sign Layout</td><td></td><td>🖻 Share</td><td>Comm</td><td>nents</td></t<> | File Home Insert Design Transition | s Animations Slide | Show Review View | Help Table De | sign Layout | | 🖻 Share | Comm | nents |
| Table Rows & Columns Merge Cell Size Alignment Table Size Arrange 3 Image Image Image Image Image Image 4 Image Image Image Image Image 5 Image Image Image Image 6 Image Image Image Image 7 Image Image Image Image 8 Image Image Image Image | Select View Gridlines | Merge Split Cells Cells | Distribute Rows Distribute Columns | ≡≡≡↓ Text Direction | Cell Cell Margins ~ | Height: 3.5" ↓ Width: 9.65" ↓ Lock Aspect Ratio 1 | Bring Forw C Send Back | vard 👻 岸 ward 🍝 庄 Pane 🛛 🖄 | • • |
| 3 4 5 1 <td>Table Rows & Columns</td> <td>Merge</td> <td>Cell Size</td> <td>Alignmer</td> <td>it</td> <td>Table Size</td> <td>Arra</td> <td>ange</td> <td></td> | Table Rows & Columns | Merge | Cell Size | Alignmer | it | Table Size | Arra | ange | |
| States July August September Totals 6 Image: State | 3 Image: segion 4 Image: segion | Southwes | t Sales Ta | ble | | | | | |
| States July August September Totals Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah | | | | | | | | | |
| Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah | × status | | | - | | | | | |
| Colorado New Mexico Utah Utah | Compared to state and the stat | o States | July 4 | August | September | Totals | 0 | | |
| 7 New Mexico 8 Image: State Sta | C Contraction Con | States Arizona | July A | August | September | Totals | ~ | | |
| 8 Utah | C C C C C C C C C C | States Arizona Colorado | July A | August | September | Totals | | | |
| | Comparing the state stat | States Arizona Colorado New Mexico | A viul | August | September | Totals | 0 | | |
| | 7 Image: state in the state | States Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah | July A | August | September | Totals | 0 | | |

Arrange

Tables act like objects in PowerPoint like a picture or drawn shape. Because of this a table can be brought forward, backward or aligned within a slide. To do this, used the options in the Arrange group in **Layout** tab to modify the table alignment in a slide.





| AutoSave 💿 🛛 🏷 - 🕐 🖳 - Module | 11 Advance Saving | - 🔎 Search | | | Sign in | ⊡ – □ × |
|--|--------------------|-----------------------|-----------------|---------------------|-------------------|------------------------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions | Animations Slide S | how Review Vie | w Help Table D | esign <u>Layout</u> | ∏ Llaimhte [2,5"] | Share Comments |
| Schott Mary Dolote Level Insert Left | | Distribute Rows | | | Width: 9.65" 0 | E Align Left |
| | s Cells | 🔅 🔠 Distribute Column | is E E Directio | n 🗸 Margins 🖌 🗌 | Lock Aspect Ratio | 串 Align <u>C</u> enter |
| Table Rows & Columns | Merge | Cell Size | Alignme | ent | Table Size | 릐 Align <u>R</u> ight |
| ▲ Default Section | | | | | | ↑ Align <u>T</u> op |
| 1 | | | | | | -만· Align <u>M</u> iddle |
| Q3 Soles Compaign | | | | | | <u>∎</u> ↓ Align <u>B</u> ottom |
| | | | | | | 마에 Distribute <u>H</u> orizontally |
| ∠ List 50 | Duthwest | sales I | able | | | 룹 Distribute <u>V</u> ertically |
| southwest | | | | | | ✓ <u>A</u> lign to Slide |
| Region | | | | | | Align Selected Objects |
| 3 | | | | | | |
| Spectromogener flam | ۹ | | • | | | P |
| (ii) (iii) - maintenaity iiii) (iiii) - maintenaity | States | July | August | September | Totals | |
| 4 | Arizona | | | | | |
| | Colorado | | | | | 0 |
| 5 Serte fig to an ended | New Mexico | | | | | |
| Compared and a second and | Utah | | | | | |
| 6 Editoria tax | 0 | | 0 | | | |
| | | | | | | * |
| | | | | | | ÷ |
| 7 Slide 6 of 8 | | | | _ Notes | 8 9 9 - | |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18732

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18733

Note: Excel Tables

Excel tables in PowerPoint act differently than PowerPoint created tables in a slide.

- If an Excel table is clicked on once the Shape Format tab appears and its options can be modified as an object or shape.
- To modify an Excel table's data, format, etc., double click on the table and it will open Excel within PowerPoint. At this point the format, data or any other modifications can be accomplished through Excel program options.

PowerPoint is very flexible with its ability to modify tables in many ways. These new skills to modify a PowerPoint table will help elevate your PowerPoint presentation style.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Modify Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.8: Modify Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.9: Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Use animations in PowerPoint

While it's important to be judicious about how many animations you use in a presentation, their careful usage can add visual interest. Let's learn more about adding animations to your slide deck.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

11.9: Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.10: Animations in PowerPoint

Learning Objectives

• Use animations in PowerPoint

In a previous module you learned about transitions in PowerPoint, in other words, how a slide enters or exits the presentation stage. PowerPoint also uses a tool to include animations on objects within slides. Take for an example, a slide with list in it where you would like each of the bullet points to appear one at a time and in a different way. How do you make this happen? Animation.

PowerPoint Animation

In PowerPoint stock animations can be used or modified to fit a custom timeframe or pathway. For the most part, stock animations are used in presentations, but if you have time and inclination you can create your own custom animations.

Returning to the Q3 Sales Campaign presentation, it contains a list slide that could benefit from animation. Here are some of the ways to add animation into a presentation.

Adding Animations

- 1. Open a PowerPoint presentation and select the slide where the animation will be added.
- 2. Highlight the first section you wish to animate. In this case the first point in the list.



- 3. Select the Animation tab and options in the ribbon appear.
- 4. Scroll through and choose one of the animation stars, in this case the 'rise up' star is selected.

| | 0 | | | | | | | | ^ | | | | |
|----------|-----------|-----------|-------------|------------|--------------|------------|------|------------------|---------------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|---|----|
| AutoSave | ••• 🗟 4 | רי יΩ די | → Module: | 11 Advance | Saved 🗸 📃 | 🔎 Search | | | | | Sign in | b – b | |
| File | Home Inse | rt Design | Transitions | Animation | s Slide Show | Review | Viev | v Help S | Shape Format | | | 🖻 Share 🛛 🖓 Comment | is |
| Preview | None | | Fade | Elv In | Float In S | A r | Wine | ↑ ↓ Effect | Add | 『클 Animation Pane 梦 Trigger ~ | Start: On Click | Reorder Animation Move Earlier | |
| Preview | None | Appear | Tuuc | Animation | Tioucar 5 | piic | mpe | Options ~ | Animation ~ Advi | Animation Painter | Delay: | C V Move Later | ~ |

5. An alternative way to add an animation is to click the down arrow in the **Animation** area and a **drop-down** menu displaying all the options appears. (Select the **Animation Pane** button to open the animation menu on the right side for easier navigation for



the selected effects.)



- 6. Once a few of the effects have been added to a slide, click the **Preview** button to watch the speed and effects on the slide. Notice that the speed of the animations runs quick. You might need more time between effects to speak in your presentation.
- 7. To change the speed and duration, select a section, and navigate to the **Timing** group in the ribbon. Adjust the start time, duration and delay time for each effect.





- 8. Notice that each of the text lines that are animated have numbers to the left of them. This is a visual way for you to easily recognize what has animation already attached to it. Be sure to run the **Preview** again to test out your new timing and adjust where needed.
- 9. If you find that the sequence needs adjustment, drag and drop the effects in the Animation Pane until the order matches what you want or use the Reorder Animation buttons to move an effect to earlier or later in the slide.





10. Another option is to select how each of the animations will be triggered and started. Select the **Trigger** button, and choose how each animation is begun, for example, when you click on the title of the slide.



- 11. Now you have animated a slide. Be sure to run through the **Preview** as many times as necessary to get the animations and timing correct for that slide before moving to the next slide. Continue to choose from animations for entrances, emphasis, exits and motion paths as various animations are added to slides.
- 12. If you decide later to get rid of the animations, return to the **Animation** tab, and select the **None** option. This will remove the previously added animation for that selected element.

| AutoSave | • 🚥 🖪 9* | ~ ♡ ፵ ⇒ | Module 11 | Advance | - Saved 👻 | 𝒫 Search | h | | | | Sign in | æ | - 0 | × |
|----------|--------------|------------|-------------|-----------|------------|-----------|-----------|-------------------------------|---------------|---|--|--------|--|------|
| File | Home Insert | Design | Transitions | Animation | s Slide Sh | 10w Revie | w Viev | v Help S | Shape Forma | t | | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Comm | ents |
| Preview | None | Appear | Fade | Fly In | Float In | Split | X Wipe | ∼ ► Effect Options ~ | Add Animation | 티큐 Animation Pane ダ Trigger ~ ~ ☆ Animation Painter | Start: On Click Unration: 01.00 Delay: 01.00 | ~ F | Reorder Animatio Move Earlier Move Later | 'n |
| Preview | | | | Animation | | | | Γı | Adv | anced Animation | | Timing | | ~ |
| Prac | tice Questi | ions | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| http | s://assessme | ents.lumen | learning | .coess | ments/1 | 8734 | | | | | | | | |
| http | s://assessme | ents.lumen | learning | .coess | ments/1 | 8735 | | | | | | | | |

Watch this video to get another example of how a PowerPoint can use animation to benefit a presentation.







A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=462

As with most things in PowerPoint, a little will go along way with animation. Be aware of the number of animations used in a presentation. Think from the audience's perspective when adding animations. Ask yourself if it is a benefit or a distraction in a slide before settling on an animation. You want the effect to enhance your presentation, not pull attention away from what the presentation is aiming at communicating.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Animations in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

• PowerPoint: Animating Text and Objects. Authored by: GCFLearnFree.org. Located at: https://youtu.be/kw_udjD2xwo. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

11.10: Animations in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.11: Introduction to Charts in PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Use charts in PowerPoint

Charts can have a great impact within a presentation. Let's learn how to add and modify them in your slide deck.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Charts in PowerPoint. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.11: Introduction to Charts in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.12: Create Charts

Learning Outcomes

Create a chart

Charts are a great way to visually present data or information in a presentation. While tables may be the best way to communicate information sometimes, often taking that data and making an understandable chart is even more effective in getting your point across.

Here is how to use charts in a PowerPoint presentation.

- 1. Open a new slide in a PowerPoint deck and select a slide containing the area with the different options in it; table, chart, SmartArt graphics, picture from file or movie from file. Alternatively, choose the **Insert** tab, **Chart** button and select a **Chart Option**.
 - 1. Alternatively, click on the small chart icon in the content area of the slide



- 2. The drop-down menu appears and gives a good variety of charts from which to select for your slide.
- 3. Pick the slide that works best for the presentation and select it, click **OK**.



4. An Excel spreadsheet for the chart will open waiting for your data input to create the chart. Input the chart information or copy and paste the information from another data source into the small spreadsheet window.







5. On the right of the chart are three vertical buttons; chart elements, chart styles, and chart filters. Select the elements to use for the chart. For example, changing the chart style to be a 3-D titled style. The chart style can also be chanted in the **Chart Design** tab, **Chart Style** group in the ribbon.



6. If there is a mistake or extra element needing to be deleted from the chart table, from the **Chart Design** tab, select the **Edit Data** button and the spreadsheet window opens. Another way to edit the data is by clicking on the chart, right click with the





mouse, and a menu opens where Edit Data can also be selected.

7. There is an extra row in the table to highlight and delete. This cleans up the chart data and eliminates the extra, unlabeled blue dot on the chart. To change any of the elements in a chart use the **Add Chart Element** button under the **Chart Design** tab. The



legend, data labels, title, lines, trendlines, and up and down bars can all be adjusted. Module 11 Advanced PP - Save we 🐽 🖫 🔊 Searce File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Help Chart Design Format < > I> Select Edit Refresh Data Data Data Change Chart Type i. 3 **M** € Add Chart Element ~ Change Quick ayout v 🔓 Chart Title Chart Styles 🗓 <u>D</u>ata Labels լյ<mark>։ L</mark>egend Idh None <u>|__</u>⊡ <u>R</u>ight []^A <u>U</u>p/Down In Iop +En Left Q3 Totals Bottom 7 More Legend Optic Sales for Q3 , \$70,062 Arizona Colorado New Mexico Utah

8. Like with other Office products, chart formats, shape styles, WordArt styles and colors, object arrangements, and sizes can all be used to adjust a chart in PowerPoint.

| AutoSave 💿 💿 🕞 | 9~ 신 또 = | Module 11 Advance | - Saved - | ✓ Search | | | | | | | Sign in | Æ | | | × |
|--|------------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------|--|----------------|------|--------------|--------|---------------------------------|--------------|---------------|-------|---------|----------------|----|
| File Home Inser | rt Design Transiti | ons Animations | Slide Show | Review | View | Help | Chart E | Design | Format | | | 🖻 Sha | re 🖓 C | ommen | ts |
| Series "Q3 Totals" Point ~ Series "Q3 Totals" Point ~ Format Selection Reset to Match Style | A \ ^ DOO ♥ All ♥ Shape ♥ | Abc Abc | | Shape Fill ~ Shape Outline ` Shape Effects ~ | | Ą | A | | <u>A</u> ~ <u>A</u> ~ A ~ | Alt Text | Bring Forward | | ‡[]] 0" | | |
| Current Selection | Insert Shapes | S | hape Styles | | ۲ _N | V | VordArt Styl | les | rs A | ccessibility | Arrange | | Size | ۲ ₂ | ~ |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18736

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18737

Charts assist people in gaining a visual perspective of a concept or data that a presenter tries to communicate. PowerPoint supplies many types of charts to use in presentations and it is to your benefit to learn a few more types. Here is a video walking through a few of the different types of charts and how to use them in a PowerPoint presentation.







A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=466

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Create Charts. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.12: Create Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.13: Format Charts

Learning Outcomes

• Format a chart

Here are formatting options to use on charts in PowerPoint.

1. Open a PowerPoint chart slide and click on the chart. This opens the **Chart Design** and **Format** tabs. Make sure the **Format** tab is selected for the next steps.

| AutoSave 💿 🔹 🕞 | ୬੶୯里੶ | Nodule 11 Advance | Saved 🚽 🛛 🖇 | O Search | | | | Sign in | ħ | | |
|--|---|-------------------|-------------------------------|---|---------|----------------|---------------------|-----------------|--------|-----------|--------|
| File Home Inse | ert Design Transitio | ons Animations | Slide Show | Review Vie | ew Help | Chart Design | Format | | 🖻 Shai | re 🖓 Con | nments |
| Series "Q3 Totals" Point ~ Format Selection Reset to Match Style | □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ | Abc Abc | Abc ▼ ↓ Sh ▼ ↓ Sh | nape Fill ~ nape Outline ~ nape Effects ~ | А | AA | A · Alt A · Text | Bring Forward ~ | | 0" ↓0" | |
| Current Selection | Insert Shapes | Shi | ape Styles | L ²¹ | V | VordArt Styles | 🗟 Accessibility | Arrange | | Size | 5 ~ |

- 2. Current Selection: On the far left of the Format tab ribbon is the Current Selection group.
 - 1. The drop-down area indicated what in the chart is currently selected. To select a different area, either click on that area or select it from the drop-down menu in this group.
 - 2. **Format Selection** button opens a **Format Chart Area** (or another menu depending on what is selected in the chart) to the right of the slide. Options to change the format of the chart are available; changing the fill, border, shadow effects, 3-D effects, rotation, etc. are available to format a chart.



- 3. **Reset to Match Style:** This option returns the chart elements to their original visual style before customization. If after working on changing the style of a chart it doesn't work, (for example, colors clash) this button allows the chart to clear chart elements and return to their starting place.
- 3. **Insert Shapes:** If an additional shape or object needs to be added to a chart this is the group to use. For example, there are call out shapes where additional notes can be made to highlight specific information about a chart. Select the shape, insert it into the





slide and move it onto the best position for the slide.



4. **Shape Styles**: This group changes a shapes style, fill, outline or effects. For example, if one of the shapes in the pie chart needs to stand apart and be a different color, select it, use the drop-down menu of Shape Fill and select a new color.







5. **WordArt Styles:** To format the chart title or any of the text in a chart, select the text, WordArt Styles group, then choose the style, fill, outline or text effects for the text. In this example, the chart title has been formatted with a new color and shadow



effect.



- 6. Accessibility: Used to input a text description of the slide and chart to use those who are visually impaired.
- 7. **Arrange:** Multiple charts to be treated as objects and arranged (sent forward or back) with other slide objects. These options are restricted if only a portion of a chart is selected and not the entire chart.
- 8. **Size**: If a chart is selected and the size group arrow clicked, the **Format Data Point** menu opens to the right. From this menu a section of a chart can be called out in this pie chart by increasing the **Pie Explosion** percentage or a chart is rotated by changing the **Angle of first slice** option.







Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18738 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18739

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Format Charts. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.13: Format Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.14: Modify Charts

Learning Objectives

• Modify a chart

PowerPoint provides tools to modify charts in several ways. Most of these options are found in the Change Design tab after selecting a chart or in the buttons that appear to the right of a selected chart. Some of these same options are also available when the chart is selected, and the mouse right clicked. We'll now go over ways to modify an existing chart in PowerPoint.

Chart Buttons

The three vertical buttons to the right of a chart include chart elements, chart styles, and chart filters. The Chart styles button offers the same modification options as the Chart Styles group in the ribbon and will be described with that group, but the other two offer unique modification opportunities.



Chart Elements

Here you modify what elements are displayed in a chart. The options are **Chart Title**, **Data Labels** and **Legend**. Uncheck an element to remove it from the chart or select the arrow that appears to reposition a given element in the chart.

For example, to modify the chart legend position on the slide, click the + button, move the cursor to **Legend** and click the black right arrow that appears. Now move the cursor over each option and select the legend modification desired.





Chart Filters

This element allows modifications of chart sections or how it is labeled. Hovering the cursor over each section brings it forward highlighting which section of the chart is associated with which value. To change the data associated with the chart click the Select Data on the bottom right of the filter dialog box and the table will be opened for data modifications.



Modification Tools

Chart Design tab offers tools for chart modification: chart layouts, chart styles, data, and change chart type. Here is how to modify a chart using these tools.

| AutoSave 💿 🌒 [| る ちょう 田 哲 | | 11 Advance Saved - | ∠ Sear | ch | | | | | Sigr | in 🖪 🍐 | - 🗆 🗙 |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|--------|------|------|--------------|--------|-------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------|-------|
| File Home | Insert Design | Transitions A | nimations Slide Show | Review | View | Help | Chart Design | Format | | | 🖻 Share | |
| Add Chart Quick Element ~ Layout ~ | Change Colors • | Fit | | | | | | | Switch Row/ | Select Edit Refree Data Data V Dat | change Chart Type | |
| Chart Lavouts | | | Chart | Styles | | | | | | Data | Type | ~ |

Chart Layouts

This group is like the chart elements button but offers additional options for a chart's labels, title, and legend. Hover the cursor over each option to see how it changes a chart and select the best one.



- 1. Add Chart Element: Modify the chart layout of labels, title, and legend.
- 2. Quick Layout: Predetermined chart layouts are available for changing a chart.



Chart Style

group in the ribbon is where **Change Colors** or **Chart Style** can be found to modify a PowerPoint chart. Hover over the various options and select which one to use. In the chart styles option, be sure to click the down arrow to open a window and see all the chart style modification options.



Data

Modifying chart information is one of the most important skills to know. Here are the tools to use to modify a chart's data.

1. **Switch Row/Column:** This tool is used with a chart plotted on an X and Y axis, but not a pie chart. If chart information needs to be swapped to modify the chart, select this button otherwise it remains grayed out until the data table is open for



modification.



2. **Select Data:** If there is a mistake or extra element needing to be deleted from the chart table, use this button to open the data table for a chart. An option to switch rows/columns in the select data source window is also available. Make any changes and





they are reflected in the chart automatically.

| AutoSave On 🌖 | 間 り· C 日 | | Module 11 Advance | | Q | Search | | | | Sign in | | - 0 | |
|---|---------------------------|--------------|--|---|----------------|------------------|------------------------------|------------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------------------|-----------------|
| File Home | Insert Design | Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View | Help | Chart Design | Format | | 🖻 Shar | e 🖓 Com | ments |
| Add Chart Quick Element ~ Layout ~ | Change Colors V | 2 | рания и на | | | | | - | Switch Row Column | Select Data | Refresh Data | Change Chart Type | |
| Chart Layouts | Select Data Source | | | Course States | | | ? × | - | | Data | | Туре | <u>^</u> |
| Region | Chart <u>d</u> ata range: | =Sheet1!SAS1 | :SBS5 | | | | <u>↑</u> | | | | | | |
| 3 | Legend Entries (Seri | es) | emove | w/Column Horizontal (<u>C</u> atego | ory) Axis Labe | ls | | | | | T | Г | |
| 4 * | Q3 Totals | | | Arizona Colorado New Mexico | 0 | | | 6 | o Q3 Totals | | (| 1 | |
| 5 | | | | Vtah Utah | | | | | | | | S | |
| Construction Construction | Hidden and Empty | Cells | | | 0 | к | Cancel | \$70,0 |)62 | \$75,377 | | \mathbb{Y} | |
| 6 | | Sale | es per State | | | c |) \$7. | 5,562 | | | • • | > | |
| 7 100 ⁻⁰ -0 ⁻¹ Jack to Bayler - 02 100 <u>-0</u> - 040-0000 100 <u>-0</u> | | | | | | | ∃ '9~ (A | Char | t in Microsoft Po | werPoint D E | F | × | |
| 8 | | | | | | 1 2 3 | State Arizona Colorado | Q3 Totals \$75,377 \$101,482 | | | | | |
| 9 | | | | | | 4 5 6 7 | New Mexic Utah | co \$75,562 \$70,062 | | | | | |
| lo de ta l | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | • | * |
| Slide 8 of 9 | | | | | | | | Notes | | 표 모 - | | + 7 | 4% < ŷ > |

3. Edit Data: Opens a data table window to use to modify or delete data. A chart is automatically updated once data is edited. The table can be opened as a regular table or as an Excel table allowing access to the tools in Excel. Another way to edit the data is by selecting the chart, right click with a mouse, and select Edit Data in the menu.











Change Chart Type

After walking through a presentation you may want to change the type of chart on an existing slide, so here is how. Select the chart and click the **Change Chart Type** button in the Type group. A window opens with a variety of options from which to select. Decide on the new chart type, select and click **OK**. The new type of chart automatically replaces the previous chart.



https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18741

Knowing how to change and modify a chart in PowerPoint allows you to update, edit and eliminate elements in order to make better charts for a presentation. The better you can make charts, the better the presentation information is communication.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Modify Charts. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.14: Modify Charts is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



11.15: Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template

What you'll learn to do: Modify PowerPoint custom template presentation

PowerPoint templates allow for consistency across multiple presentations. Let's take a look at how to customize and use templates.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

11.15: Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.16: Customized PowerPoint Templates

Learning Objectives

• Modify PowerPoint custom template presentation.

As a first step, Cameron first opens the PowerPoint application and creates a new presentation using the company sales campaign presentation template—RR Sales Campaign. He finds the exact template he wants and selects it by clicking on it.



This is the template for the sales report and the first change Cameron needs to make is to change the title and subtitle.



| 🔒 ঠ · ଓ 👳 ፣ | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - PowerPoint | Drawing Tools | Signin 🖭 — 🗗 🗙 |
|---|--|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design Tran | | | 只 Share 口 |
| Kut Paste ✓ Format Painter Clipboard rs Slide - Slides | Century Gothic (Head + 54 → A* A* 4* 4* A* 4* 4* E + 1Ξ + B I U S abc 2* - Δ + IIII = 1 Font rs rs rs rs IIIII = 1 | Image: spin set Image: spin set Image: spin set Image: spin set Paragraph Image: spin set | Carlos Control C |
| 1 Line Consider | | | |
| 2 | Sales Co RETAIL PROMOTION FOR | | |
| Slide 1 of 2 [] | | ≜ Notes | 🔳 88 M 🐺 - 🕂 + 72% 🖸 |

Cameron clicks on the title and subtitle areas and changes them. He titles the slide Q3 (for third quarter) Sales Campaign. He misspelled one of the words, so he right-clicks and selects the correct spelling for promotions.



Now that the first slide's content is done, Cameron wants to change the presentation theme and customize this report more.

Customize Presentation Template

The first change Cameron makes is to change the theme of the template. He changes the theme by clicking on the Design Tab and selects the Theme changing the slides to a green color instead of purple.




New Slide

Next, Cameron adds in a new slide between the first and second slide. First, he places the cursor between the two slides. Next, he clicks on the **Home** tab and the **New Slide** button. This drops down a visual menu of the types of slides to choose from. He selects the 3 Picture Column slide.



With the new slide open, Cameron now begins to edit the title. He will then click on the image and text boxes to add content.









Cameron inserts pictures of the three stores.

| Disert Picture | 🗙 tools Sign in 🖽 — 🔿 🗙 |
|--|---|
| ← → × ↑ 📴 > Dropbox > Screenshots > 🗸 ♂ Search Screenshots 🖇 | 🛛 🔹 🗘 Tell me what you want to do |
| Cripanize v New folder v v c | Image: The Direction* Image: The Direction* |
| Apps Apps Apps Apps Audos Used Used New Slide.png Store 1,pg Rore 2,jpg Rore 2,jpg | 2 1 |
| Store]jpg > ∰ This PC > ∰ Network File name All Pictures ("emf,"amf,"jpg ' Tools ~ ∰Open ~ Cancel | con to add picture |
| Click to add text Click to add text Click to add text | ck to add text to add text click to add text |
| | - - |

- 1. Select Picture Icon. Cameron clicks in a picture box and a file window appears.
- 2. Select Picture File. He navigates to the folder with the pictures for the presentation and selects one by clicking once.
- 3. **Open/Insert Picture.** He then selects the **Open** button to insert the picture into the presentation slide (he can also double-click on the picture and it is imported into the slide).

Now with two of the store pictures in place, Cameron needs to grab a photo of the third store from a Word document. These are the steps he takes to accomplish that action:



- 1. **Open Word.** Cameron opens the Word document next to the PowerPoint presentation window.
- 2. Find Picture. He scrolls through the document and finds the picture he needs and right-clicks on it.
- 3. **Copy Picture.** He selects the **Copy** option in the pop-up menu and now navigates back to the PowerPoint presentation slide (he can also use the toggle keys **Alt+Tab** to get back to the PowerPoint window). Cameron could also use the **Ctrl+C** keys to copy the picture as well.





| 📮 🕤 🕫 😗 🤹 Rowan Retail Sales Report Complete.docx - W Sign in 📧 - 🗆 🗙 | 🔒 🕤 • 🕐 क्रि = Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - PowerPoint Sign in 🖽 — 🗆 🗙 |
|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review View Format Q Tell me 🕼 🖵 | e Home Insert Design Transitions Animation: Slide Show Review View Fo |
| Pages Table Illustrations Add- tins Comment Vadeo Pages Tots Symbols | Image: Solution Image: So |
| In bits Media Comment Comment In the quarter. With further research, the suggestion from the sales figures is that running multiple smaller campaigns in this shoppers more frequently and boots the sale of additional products in addition to sales products. Comment Example a subscription of the sales pr | 1 see 2 sed to Bag 3 Cools 3 Cools 3 Cools 3 Cools 5 Sed to Bag 1 See a Potter. 1 See and Postion. 1 See and Postion. 1 See and Postion. 1 See and Postion. 1 See and Postion. |
| | Cick to add tert Cick t |
| Page 2 of 2 291 words []2 []0 []0 []0 []0 []0 | Slide 2 of 3 😥 🏚 Notes 🔟 😚 🕸 🐺 – 🕂 + 42% 🔀 |

- 1. Select PowerPoint. Cameron is back in the slide presentation and moves his cursor to the last picture box.
- 2. Select Picture Location. Cameron navigates to the final picture area, then right-clicks on it. A menu appears.
- 3. Paste Picture. He selects the Paste option and the picture is inserted into the presentation slide. Cameron could also use the Ctrl+V keys to paste the picture. The image will automatically be sized to fit the image box size.

Now Cameron clicks in the text boxes and types in the appropriate titles and goals for each store.







Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18810

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18811

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Customized PowerPoint Templates. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

11.16: Customized PowerPoint Templates is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.17: Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Use internet tools to enhance PowerPoint presentations

The internet is an integral part of business, whether you are searching for information, images, competitor's websites, or comparative product prices or communicating through video chats, online meetings, or email.

This section will walk through an example scenario and show how you can incorporate information from the internet into your presentations for work.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

11.17: Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.18: Internet and PowerPoint

Learning Outcomes

• Use internet tools to enhance PowerPoint presentations.

Rowan Retail Store #3 is using PowerPoint to present their campaign plan for the Q3 sales campaign. The campaign for this store is to use point-of-purchase displays to sell more gift cards for the company. Luke is creating the Q3 Plan PowerPoint presentation. He has settled on a presentation template and added the title slide.



He has now added a number of slides and is ready to enter text and more.







Luke selects two images and inserts them in the slide. He decides on the image on the right and selects a slide design with that image. He also changes the name of the slide.









Now he searches for and adds more images that show ideas for displaying the gift cards.



Luke opens a browser and searches for gift card display ideas. He finds a link to a webpage and is brought to a Pinterest page. He likes the ideas and snaps a screenshot by pressing the PrtScn button on his keyboard. This copies the screen and he can now paste (Ctrl+V) the screenshot into a slide.







He now wants to add in the hyperlink to the webpage under the screen shot. He clicks on the Text Box button in the Home tab and creates a text box under the picture. Next, Luke toggles back to the browser window (Alt+Tab), selects the website address, and copies it with Ctrl+C.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18744



He pastes the hyperlinked address in the text box. He will now continue to add in text, tables, and charts associated with his pointof-purchase plan.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18745

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Internet and PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

11.18: Internet and PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.19: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills

Now that you've learned more about Microsoft PowerPoint, you're prepared to create professional presentations.

As with Word and Excel, there's more that Microsoft PowerPoint can do. If you find yourself curious, Microsoft's website is a good place to check, or you can run a web search for how to use a particular feature.

11.19: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.20: Assignment- Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations

Sometimes when there are monthly presentations within a group, organization or business, instead of creating a new presentation you simply modify an existing one to make it fresh and relevant now. In this assignment, you will work with an existing presentation and modify it to meet a different objective from its original use, like the next quarter sales department meeting.

To complete this assignment, download the PowerPoint presentation here. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

1. Open the presentation and save the new Module 11 assignment file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as

BA132_LastName_QuarterSales.ppxt, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.

2. Open the existing sales PowerPoint presentation from the Southwest region office.



3. **New Design:** Choose a new style for this presentation and select it. The entire set of slides should change to this new design style.





4. **Modify Color Theme:** Select a different color theme for the presentation. Keep in mind this is for a professional setting. Keep the colors in the range where reading a slide is easy for the audience.



| AutoSave | Off | <u>日</u> ら、 | U P | | Module 11 | May | Q | Search | | | Sign in | E _ | - 0 | × |
|------------|-----------------------|---|--------|-------------|-------------|------------|--------|----------|-----------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-------|
| File | Home | Insert | Design | Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View | Recording | Help | | 🖻 Share | e 🖓 Comm | ients |
| Aa | | Aa | Aa | Aa | ~ ▼ ▼ | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Slide Size ~ E | Format Background | Design Ideas | |
| | | | Themes | | | | , | Variants | | | Cus | tomize | Designer | ~ |
| ∡ List | SOUT RE | HWEST GION | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | | andor Malana magan Malana magan Malana magan | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 * | | | | | | | S | 0 | UT | H \ | NI | LS | Г | |
| 4 * | 1.071.71.717.00 20 | | | | | | | ł | RE(| GI(| OI | N | | |
| 5 | 3 1 1 | | | | | | | NEW | AREA F | JKCOM | PAINY S | ALLES | | |
| 6 | - 1 | | | 11/ | | | | | | | | | | * * |
| Slide 1 of | 6 D) | | | | | | | Ê | Notes 🔳 | | 모 - | | | % © |



5. Modify Title Slide: Select the 'Design Idea' button and choose a design that incorporates a place for a picture.

| AutoSave 💽 🕅 | ッ ひ E | <u>}:</u> | lodule 11 May | 🔎 Search | | | Sign in | æ, | | × |
|-----------------|---------------|-----------------|--------------------|----------------|------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|---------------------|-----------------|------|
| File Home | Insert Design | Transitions Ani | mations Slide Show | Review View | Recording | Help | | 🖻 Share | e 🖓 Comm | ents |
| Aa Aa | Aa | Aa | ~ ~ | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Slide Size ~ B | Format ackground | Design Ideas | |
| | Themes | | | Variants | | | Cust | omize | Designer | |
| ▲ List | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | / | | | | | |
| * | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | SOU | THWEST | REGIO | ON | | | | |
| | | | NE | W AREA FOR COM | PANY SALES | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | * |
| click that c DD | | | | ~ | | DD 59 | 1-1 | | | |

6. **Add Internet Picture:** Modify the picture by searching the internet for a picture of a meeting and insert it into the slide. Select the best design to highlight the picture.



| AutoSave Off | 日 り ⁻ | U 🗄 🛛 | | Module 11 M | May | Q | Search | | | Sign in | E / | | × |
|---|--------------------|---|---|----------------------|------------|-----------|-------------|--|------------------------|---------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|-----|
| File Home | Insert | Design | Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View R | lecording | Help | | 🖻 Share | Commer | nts |
| Paste S | New Slide ~ 🗍 ~ | в <i>I</i> <u>U</u> | S ab AV ~ | 19 - A^ A` Aa - A | | ∃ - | | Shapes | Arrange Quic Styles | | P Find ↓ Replace ↓ Select ~ | * Design Ideas | |
| Clipboard 🕞 | Slides | | Font | | E. | Paragraph | E | E. | Drawing | F3 | Editing | Designer | ~ |
| I List I Image: Comparison of the compariso | | Provide a construction of the construction of | A DECEMBER OF THE STATE OF THE | | | | Protectiver | ing in the second secon | | | | | |
| Slide 1 of 6 | | | | | | | Note | es 🗉 | | 모 - | · | + 67% | ¢ |





7. Modify Text: Change the title and subtitle to read 'Northwest Region, Quarter 2 Sales' and move to the next slide.

| AutoSave Off | 日 り [、] | ₩ ₽ 1 | Module 11 May | R | Search | | Sign in | দি 🏑 | | x I |
|--|------------------|--|--|--------------------------|--|----------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|------------|
| File Home | Insert | Design Transitions | Animations Slide | Show Review | View Recordin | g Help | Picture For | mat | 🖻 Share | e 🖓 |
| Paste V | New Slide ~ | B I <u>U</u> S ab AV | 44 → A[^] A[×] A_◊ × Aa[×] 2 × A • | E - E - ∈ Ξ E = E = | ↓↓↓ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | es Arrange Qui | 2 2 × 2 2 × ck s × 2 × | P Find ↓ Replace ↓ Select | e V Des V Ide | ign eas |
| Clipboard Is | Slides | For | t 🖂 | Paragraph | F <u>⊿</u> | Drawing | Γ <u>ν</u> | Editin | g Desig | gner 🔨 |
| List 1 2 2 3 | | MULLIANS & D July 23, and Multi 24, and Multi 24 | And the second s | THOMESO | PERSONAL AND A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPT | k ori | | | | |
| * | | S. Janute Tarde Can. S. Tanita: PostWirt Heart Date and Heart Date and | NORTH | - C | REGIO | | | | | N. C. |
| 6 | | | | | QUARTER 2 S | ALES | | | | |
| Slide 1 of 6 | | | | -11-1 | | • 55 6 | Ţ | tip by Unknown Asth | | €7% Ô |

8. **Update Team:** Change the team members to all new names and modify the bullet-point list to highlight other things about the team.



| AutoSave 💽 🗍 🏷 🗸 | 간 말 핱 ᆕ Module 11 May | | Sign in 🗖 🗕 🗆 🗙 |
|-------------------------------------|--|--------------------------|--|
| File Home Insert | Design Transitions Animations Slide Sl | how Review View Recordin | g Help 🖻 Share 🖓 Comments |
| Paste v Slide v T | $\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | | es Arrange Quick * Styles * Ø * * Styles * Ø * |
| Clipboard 🕞 Slides | Font 🕞 | Paragraph 🕞 | Drawing 🖾 Editing Designer |
| List 1 | | | |
| | R | ETAIL SALES TEA | м |
| * | Dev Patel | • New tea | n member – Adam Chauffeur |
| | Robbie Marotte | • Lowest q | uarter in three years |
| | Frederik Estaire Adam Chauffeur | Emma Rock · Competi | tive analysis |
| 6 | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Slide 2 of 6 | | Notes [| ■ 品 印 모 |

9. **Modify Chart Data:** On the next slide, update the states and chart table data to reflect the Northeast regional sales. Move the text boxes and resize the chart to fit better on the slide with the additional states.

| 1 | Northeast | Region | information | for the | chart | table for | O2 Sales |
|----|-----------|--------|-------------|---------|-------|-----------|--------------|
| т. | ronneast | region | mormation | ioi uic | chart | lable ioi | Q_2 Sales. |

| State | Product A | Product B |
|---------------|-----------|-----------|
| Connecticut | 4.3 | 2.4 |
| Maine | 2.5 | 4.4 |
| Massachusetts | 3.5 | 1.8 |
| New Hampshire | 4.5 | 2.8 |
| Rhode Island | 3.2 | 1.2 |
| Vermont | 2.2 | 3.1 |



| AutoSave 💽 Off |) 🛛 り_ | U 9 | £. - | Module 11 May | / | Q | Search | | | Sign in | E 🔏 | - | | × |
|-----------------------|----------------|--------|-----------------------------|------------------------------------|------------|-------------------------------------|----------------|----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------|---|-----|-----------------|--------|
| File Hom | e Insert | Design | Transitions | Animations | Slide Show | Review | View | Recordin | g Help | <u>^</u> | P Find | e Ç | Commer | nts |
| Paste | New Slide Y | BI | <u>∪</u> S ab AV | ~ Aa~ <u> </u> | | ≡≡ ≕ | ↓= ° ℃ ~ | Shap | es Arrange Qu Styl | ick es ~ 🖉 ~ | Gerein Contract Contr | e × | Design Ideas | |
| Clipboard ⊑ ∡ List | Slides | | Fon | t | r <u>s</u> | Paragraph | | L7 | Drawing | Γ ₂ | Editin | g | Designer | ^ _ |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | l |
| 2 | | | NO | RTHEAST SA | LES | 5 4.5 | | - | Q2 Sales | | | | | |
| 3 | <u>,</u> | | Conn Main | ecticut e | | 4 — 3.5 — 3 — 2.5 — 2 — | | | | | _ | | | |
| 4 ** United States | 510.5 | | Mass New Rhod | achusetts Hampshire e Island | | 1.5 — 1 — 0.5 — 0 — | | | | | Ε | | | |
| | | | Verm | ont | | COMPECIÓ | sr 4 | Nassacti Nassacti | New Harden | Anote Water | Vento | * | | I |
| 6 | Ī | 1// | | | 111 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | * * |
| Slide 3 of 6 | | | | | | | - | Notes [| | I | | | - + 67% | Ô |

10. **Delete Slide:** Delete the next slide about Santa Fe, New Mexico.

- 11. **New Slide:** Add a new slide with the Title and Content layout.
 - 1. Download this image to your computer. Then, insert a picture from a file and put in the background.
 - 2. Add a table, resize to fit, make font large enough size to easily read, change the table and font color to something that matches with the picture background.

| Product | April | May | June |
|---------|-------|------|------|
| Soda | 1500 | 2000 | 2350 |
| Chips | 625 | 954 | 1025 |
| Gum | 2654 | 1546 | 1751 |
| Candy | 465 | 498 | 321 |





- 12. **Delete Slides:** Delete the last two slides.
- 13. New Slide with Video: Add a new slide with the 'Title and Content' layout. Type in the title 'Redesigning Store Ideas' and insert the YouTube video https://youtu.be/O2vtw6TAbQ4.





- 14. Animations: Lastly, add in a variety of animations to a few slides in the presentation and save your work again.
- 15. Run Presentation: Run through the Slide Show to adjust any animations or other things.
- 16. Submit the presentation file in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

11.20: Assignment- Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





11.21: Discussion- Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint

You have learned many powerful tools about PowerPoint in this course. Here are ten more ways to create a presentation and a few quick tips that will help speed up and round out your presentation skills.

Watch this video and learn more PowerPoint skills. After watching the video consider a few questions to discuss.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can view the transcript for "10 Powerful PowerPoint Tips" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Of these extra tips, which one would you use right away for your presentations and why?
- Have you already used one or more of these tips? How did it enhance your presentation?
- Were there any tips you wouldn't use?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

All rights reserved content

• 10 Powerful PowerPoint Tips. Authored by: Teacher's Tech. Located at: https://youtu.be/jgvlzAbcJ6A. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

11.21: Discussion- Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills

Learning Objectives

- Create database tables
- Work with fields
- Set table primary key
- Create indexes
- 12.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Basic Skills
- 12.2: Introduction to Creating Database Tables
- 12.3: Creating a Database
- 12.4: Naming Databases
- 12.5: Creating an Access Table
- 12.6: Introduction to Fields in Access
- 12.7: Field Properties
- 12.8: Field Names and Data Types
- 12.9: Introduction to Table Primary Key
- 12.10: Primary Key
- 12.11: Set a Primary Key
- 12.12: Introduction to Indexes
- 12.13: What is an Index?
- 12.14: To Index or Not to Index?
- 12.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Basic Skills
- 12.16: Assignment- Create New Access Database
- 12.17: Discussion- Selecting Primary Key Tips

12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Basic Skills

Why learn to perform basic tasks in Microsoft Access?

In the prior two modules, we learned about the benefits of using Excel to manage spreadsheets. When it comes to quick data entry by users, manipulating numerical data for fast analysis, having rich formatting features and mathematical functions, spreadsheets are hard to beat. As the volume of data increases, databases become a viable option. Databases are geared for long-term data storage of large data sets, maintaining multiple relationships between data values, and the ability to update forms, queries, and reports automatically when values are updated.

Think of spreadsheets as ledgers: you have a list of customers and may wish to know who are your top five most important based on annual revenue. Think of databases as intelligent file cabinets: you may wish to know who are your top five most important customers, what was the date of their last purchase, and what products did they purchase. It is this ability to handle the relationships within the data, in addition to the amount of data, that makes databases a powerful business tool.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Access Basic Skills. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

12.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.2: Introduction to Creating Database Tables

What you'll learn to do: create database tables

The building blocks of relational databases are the tables that organize and store information within the database. In this section, you will learn how to create a blank database, assign a name to it, and specify a location. Next, we will explore the different types of tables based on the purpose they serve. Finally, we will create a database table using the appropriate commands in Access.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Creating Database Tables. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

12.2: Introduction to Creating Database Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.3: Creating a Database

Learning Objectives

• Create a blank database

You can open Access from the Start menu (or the Applications folder on a Mac) by clicking on the Access icon. The Access icon comes in a variety of forms depending on your OS and version of Access, but it always features the color red or maroon and the letter A.



New Database

There are two easy ways to create a blank database in Access. One way is to click the **Blank Database** option in the welcome screen (Figure 1).



Figure 1.

The second way to create a new database is to use the **File New** option from the menu bar (Figure 2).



| Search. Tables * | Northwind Tr | raders | | | | |
|--|---|---|---|--|--------------------------|--|
| Customers | I on: Molly Dem | psey v See Co | | 3 | | |
| Employee Privileges Employees | Active Orders | Customer + | Inventory to Reorder Product Northwind Traders Boyse | Qty Availa Description | ble - Reord - | Quick Links View (nventory |
| Inventory Transaction Types | 88 Shipped 5/28/2015 Ta 87 Shipped 5/28/2015 Ta | ailspin Toys ailspin Toys | Northwind Traders Dried | Pears | 0 | View Orders |
| Inventory Transactions | 86 Shipped 5/5/2015 Ta | ailspin Toys | Northwind Traders Fruit C | Cocktail | 0 | View Purchase Orders |
| Invoices | | | Northwind Traders Scone | 3 | 0 | View Suppliers |
| Corder Details | | | Northwind Traders Clam Northwind Traders Choco | Chowder | 0 | View Shippers |
| Circler Details Status | | | 4 | 4. I | *** * | Sales Beports |
| Coders | | | | | | |
| Corders Status | | | | | | |
| Contern Tax Status | | | | | | Full |
| | | | | | | Screen |
| Privileges | | | | | | |
| Developes 00:16 / 02:16 | Northwind DB 2016 : Detabese- C:\U | lsers\mollyd\Documents | \Northwind D& 2016.accdb (Ac | Gess 2007 - 2015 file forms | et) - Acciess | ·· 4» Z |
| 00:16 / 02:16 | Northwind DB 2016 : Detabase- C/U | Jsers\mollyd\Documents | \\Northwind D8 2016.accdb (Ac | Ges 2007 - 2016 file forms | et) - Access | . ⊲» ∠ ⊘ , , |
| New | Northwind DB 2016 : Database: C\U | Ssers\mollyd\Documents | Northwind DB 2016.accdb (Ac | des 1007 - 2016 file forma (■) | et) - Acciess | ·· (3) 2 (2) 2 - |
| O0:16 / 02:16 New Search for online temp Suggested searcher: Da | Northwind DB 2016 : Database- C/U lates tabase Business Logs Small Bus | sers\mollyd\Documents | Worthwind DB 2016.accdb (Ac DB 2016.accdb (Ac | des 2007-2016 file forma | R) - Accèss | ·· (3) 2 (2) ? - |
| O0:16 / 02:16 O2:16 Search for online temp Suggested cearches: Da FEATURED PERSONAL | Northwind DB 2016 : Database- C/U lates tabase Business Logs Small Bus | iness Industry Lists | úNorthwind D8 2016.accdb (Ac i Personal | (ℝ) (ℝ) | et) - Access | ·· (0) 2 2 2 |
| OO:16 / 02:16 Oc:16 / 02:16 New Search for online temp Suggested searcher: Da FLATURED PERSONAL Ocean | Northwind DB 2016 : Database- C/U Lates tabase Business Logs Small Bus | sers\mollyd\Documents siness Industry Liets | Whorthwind D& 2016.accdb (Ac Personal | ies 2007-2016 file forma () C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C | | |
| O0:16 / 02:16 O2:16 New Search for online temp Suggested cearches: Do FEATURED PERSONAL DEBUG | Northwind DB 2016 : Database- C/U lates tabase Business Logs Small Bus During Custom web app | skers'unollyd\Documents siness Industry Lists | 6)Northwind DB 2016.accdb (Ac Personal | Gen 2007-2016 file forms | th Actess Updated: Ev | ζ) ζ ζ /ul> |
| O0:15 / 02:15 O0:15 / 02:15 New Search for online temp Suggested searcher: Dr FLATURED PERSONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL DESCONAL | Northwind DB 2016 : Database- C/W lates tabase Business Logs Small Bus Custom web app U | Asers'umoilydi,Documents ainess Industry Lists pdated: Asset trac | AMorthwind D8 2016.accdb (Ac Personal Updated: Contacts | € Ges 1007-2016 file form Construction Cons | t) Accèss Updated: Ev | |

- 1. On the File tab, click New, and then click Blank Database.
- 2. Type a file name in the File Namebox. To change the location of the file from the default, click Browse for a location to put

your database (next to the **File Name** box), browse to the new location, and then click **OK**.

3. Click Create.

Access creates the database with an empty table named Table1, and then opens Table1 in Datasheet view. The cursor is placed in the first empty cell in the **Click to Add** column.

4. Begin typing to add data, or you can paste data from another source, as described in the section.

Entering data in Datasheet view is designed to be very similar to working in an Excel worksheet. The table structure is created while you enter data. When you add a new column to the datasheet, a new field is defined in the table. Access automatically sets each field's data type, based on the data that you enter.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18746



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating a Database. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.3: Creating a Database is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.4: Naming Databases

Learning Objectives

- Name the database and location
- Discuss the role of tables in access
- Differentiate among types of tables

| File Name | |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Database1.accdb | - |
| C:\Users\Mike Alexander\Documents\ | _ |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Create | |

Enter the name of your database in the "File Name" field. The database location can be changed by selecting the box to the right of the "File Name" field and browsing to the location of your choice.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18747

Understanding Tables

Tables are one of the key objects in Access. Access uses tables to store data. To store data, you create one table for each type of information that you track. Types of information might include customer information, products, or order details.

The example below is taken from the Microsoft Access "Northwind Traders" sample database. It is a table containing a list of orders for the fictitious company with reference to Order Number, Order Date, Order Status, etc.

| UP) | Order | List | | | | | | | | |
|-------|----------------------------|----------|---------------------|------------|-------------|------------|---------|------------|--|--|
| Add N | Add New Order View Invoice | | | | | | | | | |
| / # • | Order Date • | Status - | Salesperson • | Customer - | Ship Date 🔹 | Shipping • | Taxes • | Total • | | |
| 81 | 4/25/2006 | New | Andrew Cencini | Company C | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | | |
| 80 | 4/25/2006 | New | Andrew Cencini | Company D | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$380.00 | | |
| 79 | 6/23/2006 | Closed | Andrew Cencini | Company F | 6/23/2006 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$2,490.00 | | |
| 78 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | Nancy Freehafer | Company CC | 6/5/2006 | \$200.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,760.00 | | |
| 77 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company Z | 6/5/2006 | \$60.00 | \$0.00 | \$2,310.00 | | |
| 76 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company Y | 6/5/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$665.00 | | |
| 75 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company H | 6/5/2006 | \$50.00 | \$0.00 | \$560.00 | | |
| 74 | 6/8/2006 | Closed | Michael Neipper | Company F | 6/8/2006 | \$300.00 | \$0.00 | \$810.00 | | |
| 73 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | Robert Zare | Company I | 6/5/2006 | \$100.00 | \$0.00 | \$196.50 | | |
| 72 | 6/7/2006 | Closed | Nancy Freehafer | Company BB | 6/7/2006 | \$40.00 | \$0.00 | \$270.00 | | |
| 71 | 5/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company A | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$736.00 | | |
| 70 | 5/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company K | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$800.00 | | |
| 69 | 5/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company J | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$52.50 | | |
| 68 | 5/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company G | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | | | |

Types of Tables

There are three types of tables in Access: an object table, a transaction table, and a join table. Object tables contain data relating to a real-world object, like a company or a customer or a product. Transaction tables store information pertaining to events, like when an order is placed for a product or an invoice is sent to a customer. Finally, join tables are used to establish a relationship between two tables, like a product table and a customer table.

We will focus on object tables in this section.





Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18748

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18749

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Naming Databases. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.4: Naming Databases is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.5: Creating an Access Table

Learning Outcomes

• Create a new table

You can add new tables to an existing database by using the commands in the **Tables** group on the **Create** tab. Access will automatically create a new table with a table structure built in. Access will also set the field types based on the data entered. The new table will be automatically displayed in Datasheet view, allowing you to take immediate action, i.e., enter change field names, set properties, and enter data directly in to the table.

An alternate way to create a new table is to select **Table Design** in the Tables group. Access will create a new table and display it in Design View. This approach provides a more traditional albeit manual method of setting the details of the table.

| a 51 | C ⁹ | 0 | | |
|------------------------|----------------|-----|-----------------|-----------------------|
| File Ho | me | Cr | reate | External D |
| | | | | |
| Application Parts * | Tat | ole | Table Design | SharePoint Lists + |
| Templates | | | Table | s |

Learn More

.

For detailed, step-by-step instructions Microsoft Access Help is an excellent resource and can be found by following this link: Creating Tables Access Help

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18750

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Creating an Access Table. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.5: Creating an Access Table is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.6: Introduction to Fields in Access

What you'll learn to do: Work with fields

If tables are the building blocks of databases, fields are the key component of tables. We will explore field properties which tells Access what type of data will be entered into a specific field. Then we will discuss the importance of assigning names to each field and the rules for ensuring a valid field name. Finally we will get into more detail regarding data types and field properties.

12.6: Introduction to Fields in Access is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.7: Field Properties

Learning Outcomes

• Differentiate among field properties

Regardless of how you created your table, it is a good idea to examine and set field properties. While some properties are available in Datasheet view, some properties can only be set in **Design view**. To switch to Design view, right-click the table in the Navigation Pane and then click Design View. To see a field's properties, click the field in the design grid. The properties are displayed below the design grid, under **Field Properties**.

To see a description of each field property, click the property and read the description in the box next to the property list under **Field Properties**. You can get more detailed information by clicking the Help button.

Field Properties sets boundaries on what/how data is entered into table fields. There are five types of field properties:

- Field Size: sets the maximum number of characters that can be entered into a text field.
- **Format:** sets how the data is to be displayed in the table field.
- Input Mask: sets the rules as to how data can be entered so that data is entered correctly.
- **Default Value:** sets the default value that will appear in the table field each time a new record is entered.
- Required: sets whether a value is required to be entered into this table field.

Learn More

For more detailed information, Microsoft Access Help is an excellent resource and can be found by following this link: Field Properties Access Help

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18751

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18752

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Field Properties. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.7: Field Properties is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



12.8: Field Names and Data Types

Learning Objectives

- Discuss field name requirements
- Discuss types of data used in Microsoft Access

Field Names

A field name should be descriptive enough to identify the purpose of the field, without being overly long to prevent excessive typing. Enter the field name by placing the pointer in the first row of the Table Design window under the Field Name column. In order to ensure a valid field name, a field name:

- Cannot exceed 64 characters,
- Cannot include periods (.), exclamation points (!), accent grave (`), or brackets ([]),
- Cannot include spaces,
- Cannot include low-order ASCII characters,
- Cannot start with a blank space.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18753

Data Types

The data type must be consistent with the data to be stored in the field. The "text" type is the most commonly used data type, including numbers that will not be added like social security or street address numbers. Here is a partial list of Access data types:

| Data Type | Description |
|---------------|---|
| Short text | Alphanumeric characters |
| Long text | Alphanumeric characters |
| Number | Numeric values |
| Large Number | Numeric values |
| Date/Time | Date and time data |
| Currency | Monetary data |
| AutoNumber | Automatic number increments |
| Yes/No | Logical values: Yes/No, True/False, etc. |
| OLE Objects | Pictures, graphs, sound, video |
| Hyperlink | Line to an Internet resource |
| Attachment | External files |
| Calculated | Stores calculations based on other fields |
| Lookup Wizard | Displays data from another table |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18754



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Field Names. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.8: Field Names and Data Types is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.9: Introduction to Table Primary Key

What you'll learn to do: Set the table primary key

The primary key is crucial to the operation of a relational database—without it, the database would not be able to perform operations on the data contained in the table. We will explore the uniqueness of the primary key, how to choose a strong primary key, and how to set the primary key for a table.

12.9: Introduction to Table Primary Key is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.10: Primary Key

Learning Objectives

- Discuss the importance of primary key uniqueness
- Choose a primary key

Every table must have a primary key—a field with a unique value for each record. Otherwise there would be no way to distinguish between records. A primary key consists of one or more fields that uniquely identify each record that you store in the table. Often, there is a unique identification number, such as an ID number, a serial number, or a code, that serves as a primary key.

For example, you might have a Customers table where each customer has a unique customer ID number. The customer ID field is the primary key of the Customers table. When a primary key contains more than one field, it is usually composed of pre-existing fields that, taken together, provide unique values. For example, you might use a combination of last name, first name, and birth date as the primary key for a table about people.

Choosing a Primary Key

Without the ProductID field, another field would be needed to uniquely identify each product in the database. Without a strong primary key, the database engine would be at a loss to perform basic operations on the table properly.

Good primary keys must:

- Uniquely identify each record,
- Not be null,
- Exist when the record is created,
- Must remain stable,
- Be simple and contain as few attributes as possible.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18755

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18756

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Primary Key. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.10: Primary Key is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




12.11: Set a Primary Key

Learning Outcomes

• Set the primary key

A primary key can be set for a table in one of three ways. Open a table in Design view and:

- With the field to be used as the primary key selected, click the Primary Key button key in the Tools group.
- Right-click the appropriate field and choose Primary Key from the shortcut menu.
- Allow Access to automatically create the primary key by simply saving the table.

In this example, Field One was highlighted and **Primary Key** was selected in the Menu bar to designate it as the Primary Key.



Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18757

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Set a Primary Key. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.11: Set a Primary Key is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.12: Introduction to Indexes

What you'll learn to do: Create indexes

Indexes are another key concept in relational database technology. We will explore how indexes relate to the operation and performance of databases. Then, we will learn that indexes have properties too, and they can help handle some inconvenient situations. Finally, we will have a discussion of the advantages of indexing versus the disadvantages in certain cases.

12.12: Introduction to Indexes is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.13: What is an Index?

Learning Objectives

- Define indexes
- Set the properties of indexes

Imagine that you collect business cards in order to keep track of your professional contacts. Over time your collection of cards becomes quite large. You want to know which of your contacts work for Company Z, so you must read each and every card in order to develop your list. This could take quite a bit of time. But what if you had dog-eared the cards from Company Z beforehand? Would that have reduced the time it took you to find that select group of contacts?

Indexing a table enables Access to establish a sort order on the data in the indexed field. Without an index, Access would have to search each and every field—much in the same way you would have to look through each and every business card.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18758

Index Properties

Indexes in Access have properties too.

- **Primary.** This property, when set to Yes, tells Access to use it as the table's primary key.
- Unique. This property requires that the index is unique within the table.
- **Ignore Nulls.** If the index field of a record contains a null value, Access does not know how to handle the record. This property tells Access to ignore such records.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18759

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• What is an Index?. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.13: What is an Index? is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



12.14: To Index or Not to Index?

Learning Outcomes

• Determine when to use an index

Despite the stated advantages of indexing, there are some drawbacks as well. Indexes add metadata to the database, which increases its size and disk space requirements. In addition, when a new record is added to an indexed table, there is a slight performance hit —for 20 indexes on a table, Access will make 20 adjustments when a new record is added or subtracted. So, you will want to avoid indexing on smaller tables or tables that are not frequently involved in queries.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18760

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• To Index or Not to Index?. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

12.14: To Index or Not to Index? is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Basic Skills

Learning about Microsoft Access teaches us much about relational databases in general. Databases are made up of tables containing information organized into columns and rows. The rows are records and the columns are fields that have specific formats. Information is divided into multiple tables based on category—for example, a table for Customers, one for Orders, one for Products, etc. These tables are linked through the use of primary keys.

In this section we have learned how to use Access to create a database. Some of the important basics covered are: naming the database and designating its location; creating a new table; working with table fields; understanding data types; understanding field properties; setting table primary keys; and, understanding and creating indexes.

12.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Basic Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





12.16: Assignment- Create New Access Database

In this assignment, you'll create a new database and set it up for data to be entered. This year you decided to keep new business cards (physical and electronic) you receive organized with by creating an Access database to store all their information for quick access.

To complete this assignment, follow the directions then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

1. Open Microsoft Access to the Home page

| | | Access | | Sign in 🙂 🙁 | ? | × |
|-----------|---|----------|----------------|----------------|---|---|
| Access | Good afternoon | | | and the second | | |
| ₩ Home | | | | | | |
| New | Blank database d | Contacts | Asset tracking | | Students \rightarrow More templates \rightarrow | |
| | Search Recent Pinned | | | | | |
| Open | 🗋 Name | | | Date modified | | |
| | Database1 My Documents | | | December 31 | | |
| Account | Rowen Retail Customer Contact My Documents | | | December 31 | | |
| Feedback | Contact List My Documents | | | December 31 | | |
| Options | Rowan+Retail+Customer+Contact | S | | December 31 | | Ŧ |





2. Chose New Database: Choose from one of the ways to create a new database and select the New database option.

| | Access Sign in 🙂 🙁 ? – 🗆 🗙 |
|-----------|---|
| Access | New |
| G Home | |
| New | |
| | Blank database Contacts |
| | |
| Open | Search for online templates |
| | Suggested searches: Database Business Logs Industry Lists Personal Contacts |
| | |
| Account | |
| Feedback | |
| Options | |

3. Name Database: Decide on a file name for the new database and its location on your computer where you'll save it. Remember this is to be created for collecting business card information so name accordingly. Save the new Module 12 assignment file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_BCDatabase.accdb, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.

| Access | Access Good afternoon | |
|-----------|---|---|
| G Home | | Blank database |
| New | | 2020_BusinessCards C:\Users\Pendleton\Documents\ plates → Create |
| Open | | |
| Account | | |
| Feedback | INIT DOCUMENTS | |
| Options | Rowan+Retail+Customer+Contacts Downloads | December 31 |



| Create Database: A new data table is | Create Database: A new data table is now open and ready for data input. | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 🕞 🤝 🗧 🤝 2020_BusinessCards : Database- 0 | C:\Users\Pendleton\Do | Table Tools | | Sign in 📃 🗆 🗆 | | | | | | | | |
| File Home Create External Data Da | tabase Tools Help | Fields Table 🔎 T | ell me what you want to do | | | | | | | | | |
| AB 12 Image: Date & Time View Short Number Currency Text More Fields * Views Add & Delete | Later Field Size | on 國 Modify Lookups fx Modify Expression 副 Memo Settings ~ Properties | Data Type: ✓ Format: Formatting ✓ \$ % * * 00 000 000 Formatting ✓ ✓ | Required Unique Indexed Field Validation | | | | | | | | |
| All Access Obje 👁 « 💷 Table1 🗙 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Search Tables ☆ Table1 | | Sarch | | | | | | | | | | |
| Datasheet View | | | | Num Lock 🛅 🔛 | | | | | | | | |

4.

5. Open Design View: Open the design view of the current table and name the table 2020_BusinessCards.

| 🔚 🥤 - 🗢 🗢 2020_BusinessCa | ards : Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\Do | Table Tools | | Sign in 📃 🗆 | |
|--|--|---|--|--|---|
| File Home Create Externa | al Data Database Tools Help | Fields Table 🔎 Te | ell me what you want to do | | |
| View Views AB 12 ♀ ♥ ✓ ✓ AB 12 ♀ ♥ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Add & Delete | Ate & Time Ves/No Are Fields * e | n 😥 Modify Lookups fx Modify Expression b Memo Settings * Properties | Data Type: AutoNumber Formatt Formatting \$ % * €.00 →.00 Formatting | Required ✓ Unique ✓ Indexed ✓ Field Validation | ~ |
| All Access Obje • « | Table1 × ID - Click to A Save As Table Name: 2020_Business 2020_Business Table Name: 2020_Business Table Name: 2020_Business | SCards | | | |
| Datasheet View | | | | Num Lock 📰 | 2 |

6. Set the Primary Key: In the 'Field Name' with the little key to the left side create a primary key name to use for this table. (Refer to the module about the various options of creating a key.) Make sure to keep the Data Type to AutoNumber and add in a



 $^{\sim}$



text description.

| 🖬 5 ° ∂ ° ⊽ 2020_Bus | inessCards : Database- C:\Use | rs\Pendleton\Do | Table Tools | | Sign in | - 0 | × |
|--------------------------------------|--|---------------------------|--|-------------------------------|------------------------|------------------|----------|
| File Home Create | External Data Databas | e Tools Help | Design 🔎 | > Tell me what you want to do | | | |
| View View Key | dation es linsert Rows ⇒ Delete Rows Modify Lookups | Property Indexes Sheet | Create Data Renar Macros * Delete M | me/ Macro Dependence | cies | | |
| Views | ools | Show/Hide | Field, Record & Table | Events Relationships | | | ~ |
| All Access Obje 오 < | 2020_BusinessCards | × | Data Truca | Deer | nistis (Ostiss - I) | | |
| Search 🖌 | Pield Nam | AutoN | Data Type | Desc | cription (Optional) | | ^ |
| Tables * | | Autor | unber | | | | |
| 2020_BusinessCards | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | Field Properties | | | |
| | General Lookup | | | | | | |
| | Field Size | Long Integer | | | | | |
| | New Values | Increment | | | _ | | |
| | Format | | | | - | | |
| | Indexed | Yes (No Duplicates) | | | - | | |
| | Text Align | General | | | A field name can be up | to 64 characters | long, |
| | | | | | including spaces. Pres | s F1 for help on | field |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Design view. F6 = Switch panes. F1 = | = Help. | | | | Nu | m Lock 📰 | |

7. Indexed: In the new table with the new key make sure the filed for Indexed is set to Yes (No Duplicates).

| 8 | ⊽ לי ⊽ | 2020_Busine | ssCards1 : Database- C:\Us | ers\Pendleto | n∖D | Table Tools | | | | | Sign in | - | | × |
|------------|--------------------|-----------------------|---|---------------------|----------|-------------------------|---------------------|----------------|-------------|------------------------|---|---|-------------------------|-------|
| File | Home Cre | ate Ext | ernal Data Database | e Tools | Help | Design | Q | Tell me v | vhat you wa | ant to do | | | | |
| View | Primary Key | Test Validat Rules | ई≕ Insert Rows ३★ Delete Rows स्त्रि Modify Lookups | Property I Sheet | indexes | Create Data Macros * | Rename Delete Ma | e/ Rel acro | ationships | Object Dependencies | 5 | | | |
| Views | 011 | Tool | S 2020 Buringer Carde | Show/F | Hide | Field, Record | & Table Ev | vents | Relation | nships | | | | ~ |
| All Ac | ccess Obje | 🐨 « | Field Nam | ie | | Data Type | | | | Descrit | otion (Optional) | | | - |
| Search | | ₽ | Biz_Card | | AutoN | umber | C | Collected | business c | ards for 202 | 20 | | | |
| Tables | | * | - | | | | - | 7 | | | · | | | |
| 202 | 20_BusinessCards | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | 1 | Field Prope | rties | | | | | Ľ |
| | | | General Lookup | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Field Size | Long Intege | r | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | New Values | Increment | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Format | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Indexed | Yes (No Dup | licates) | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Text Align | General | | | | | | | The field description | is optional | I. It helps | you |
| | | | | | | | | | | | status bar when you s Press F1 for hel | e is also di! elect this fi Ip on descr | ield on a i iptions. | form. |
| Design vie | ew. F6 = Switch pa | anes. F1 = H | elp. | | | | | | | | N | um Lock | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

8. Save File: Save all of your work again.

9. Submit the database file in your course online.



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Create New Access Database. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

12.16: Assignment- Create New Access Database is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



12.17: Discussion- Selecting Primary Key Tips

There are many ways to make a primary key or have one automatically generated in Microsoft Access. For additional information about selecting or creating a primary key watch this video which walks through a few examples and discusses various ways to create a custom key for your Access table.

After watching the video ask yourself a few questions and discuss your answers to them.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can view the transcript for "How to Select and Make PRIMARY KEYS in Microsoft Access" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Why is it important to choose a memorable primary key?
- Is adding a description important for a primary key? Why or why not?
- In what types of scenarios would you use this information?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Selecting Primary Key Tips. **Authored by**: Sherri Pendleton. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

All rights reserved content

• How To Select and Make PRIMARY KEYS in Microsoft Access. Authored by: Leon Marsden. Located at: https://youtu.be/jpARwLelAek. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

12.17: Discussion- Selecting Primary Key Tips is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

Learning Objectives

- Discuss table relationships
- Work with tables
- Work with datasheets
- Sort and filter data

13.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

- 13.2: Introduction to Table Relationships
- 13.3: Database Principles
- 13.4: Flat File vs Normalized Data
- 13.5: Types of Table Relationships
- 13.6: Introduction to Working with Tables
- 13.7: Datasheets
- 13.8: Entering Data
- 13.9: Changing Values
- 13.10: Introduction to Working with Datasheets
- 13.11: Adding Values and Records in Datasheets
- 13.12: Deleting Records in Datasheets
- 13.13: Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data
- 13.14: Displaying Records in Datasheets
- 13.15: Sorting Data
- 13.16: Aggregating Data
- 13.17: Printing Records
- 13.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills
- 13.19: Assignment- Modify Access Database
- 13.20: Discussion- Moving Columns and Fields

13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



13.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

Why learn intermediate Microsoft Access skills?

In this section, we discuss additional database principles of both MS Access and relational database technology in general. In addition, we see how these can be applied to create database applications for commercial use.

One of the most important relational database concepts we will discuss is the difference between data organized in "flat files" and data that is "normalized." Also important, we will explore the relationships between tables. Moving to Access specifically, we will learn about datasheets and how to view and manipulate data.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

13.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.2: Introduction to Table Relationships

What you'll learn to do: Discuss table relationships

To understand table relationships it is important to have an understanding of some basic database principles. We will explore the underlying properties of relational databases, how they are organized, and how they add value to commercial enterprises. Then we will discuss the important concept of normalized data versus flat file data organization, which is crucial to understand what makes a relational database work. Finally we will learn about the three types of relationships between tables in relational databases like Access.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Table Relationships. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

13.2: Introduction to Table Relationships is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.3: Database Principles

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss database principles

A database is a shared collection of related data used to support the activities of a particular organization. A database can be viewed as a repository of data that is defined once and then accessed by various users.

A database has the following properties:

- It is a representation of some aspect of the real world or a collection of data elements (facts) representing real-world information.
- A database is logical, coherent and internally consistent.
- A database is designed, built and populated with data for a specific purpose.
- Each data item is stored in a field.
- A combination of fields makes up a table. For example, each field in an employee table contains data about an individual employee. A database can contain many tables. For example, a membership system may contain an address table and an individual member table.

Managing information means taking care of it so that it works for us and is useful for the tasks we perform. By using a DBMS, the information we collect and add to its database is no longer subject to accidental disorganization. It becomes more accessible and integrated with the rest of our work.

Managing information using a database allows us to become strategic users of the data we have. We often need to access and resort data for various uses. These may include:

- Creating mailing lists
- Writing management reports
- Generating lists of selected news stories
- Identifying various client needs.

The processing power of a database allows it to manipulate the data it houses, so it can:

- Sort
- Match
- Link
- Aggregate
- Skip fields
- Calculate
- Arrange

Because of the versatility of databases, we find them powering all sorts of projects. A database can be linked to:

- A website that is capturing registered users
- A client-tracking application for social service organizations
- A medical record system for a health care facility
- Your personal address book in your email client
- A collection of word-processed documents
- A system that issues airline reservations

There are a number of characteristics that distinguish the database approach from the file-based system or approach. A database system is referred to as self-describing because it not only contains the database itself, but also metadata which defines and describes the data and relationships between tables in the database. This information is used by the DBMS software or database users if needed. This separation of data and information about the data makes a database system totally different from the traditional file-based system in which the data definition is part of the application programs.

In the file-based system, the structure of the data files is defined in the application programs so if a user wants to change the structure of a file, all the programs that access that file might need to be changed as well. On the other hand, in the database



approach, the data structure is stored in the system catalogue and not in the programs. Therefore, one change is all that is needed to change the structure of a file. This insulation between the programs and data is also called program-data independence.

A database supports multiple views of data. A view is a subset of the database, which is defined and dedicated for particular users of the system. Multiple users in the system might have different views of the system. Each view might contain only the data of interest to a user or group of users. By its very nature, a DBMS permits many users to have access to its database either individually or simultaneously. It is not important for users to be aware of how and where the data they access is stored.

Current database systems are designed for multiple users. That is, they allow many users to access the same database at the same time. This access is achieved through features called concurrency control strategies. These strategies ensure that the data accessed are always correct and that data integrity is maintained. The design of modern multiuser database systems is a great improvement from those in the past which restricted usage to one person at a time. Control of data redundancy In the database approach, ideally, each data item is stored in only one place in the database. In some cases, data redundancy still exists to improve system performance, but such redundancy is controlled by application programming and kept to minimum by introducing as little redundancy as possible when designing the database.

The integration of all the data, for an organization, within a database system has many advantages. First, it allows for data sharing among employees and others who have access to the system. Second, it gives users the ability to generate more information from a given amount of data than would be possible without the integration. Enforcement of integrity constraints Database management systems must provide the ability to define and enforce certain constraints to ensure that users enter valid information and maintain data integrity. A database constraint is a restriction or rule that dictates what can be entered or edited in a table such as a postal code using a certain format or adding a valid city in the City field. There are many types of database constraints. Data type, for example, determines the sort of data permitted in a field, for example numbers only. Data uniqueness such as the primary key ensures that no duplicates are entered. Constraints can be simple (field based) or complex (programming).

Not all users of a database system will have the same accessing privileges. For example, one user might have read-only access (i.e., the ability to read a file but not make changes), while another might have read and write privileges, which is the ability to both read and modify a file. For this reason, a database management system should provide a security subsystem to create and control different types of user accounts and restrict unauthorized access.

Another advantage of a database management system is how it allows for data independence. In other words, the system data descriptions or data describing data (metadata) are separated from the application programs. This is possible because changes to the data structure are handled by the database management system and are not embedded in the program itself.

A database management system must include concurrency control subsystems. This feature ensures that data remains consistent and valid during transaction processing even if several users update the same information.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18761

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Database Design. Authored by: Adrienne Watt. Located at: https://opentextbc.ca/dbdesign01/. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.3: Database Principles is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.4: Flat File vs Normalized Data

Learning Outcomes

• Differentiate between a flat file and a normalized data

In database terminology, the terms "flat file" and "normalized" data refer to how data is stored electronically. A flat file arrangement refers to how data is stored in a spreadsheet—a two-dimensional structure using rows and columns. A normalized scheme brings database capability, adding the use of another table(s) to store related data.

The difference between flat file and normalized schemes go back to the introduction of this discussion. Flat files (spreadsheets) are great for quick data entry by users, manipulating numerical data for fast analysis, having rich formatting features and mathematical functions for small to moderate data sets. When large quantities of data needs to be shared with multiple users using multiple views, be independent from the application, and protected from unauthorized users, we see the need for normalized data provided by database technology.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18762

There is much more to normalization in database science. There are strict guidelines regarding normalization and how tables need to be constructed in databases, i.e., first normal form, second normal form, third normal form, etc. These principles are essential to building error-free database designs and will be discussed in a later session.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Flat File vs Normalized Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.4: Flat File vs Normalized Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.5: Types of Table Relationships

Learning Objectives

- Define one-to-one relationships
- Define one-to-many relationships
- Define many-to-many relationships

There are three types of relationships in Access between tables:

- One-to-one
- One-to-many
- Many-to-many



One-to-One Relationships

A one-to-one relationship means that a record in the first table can have one and only one record related to it in a second table. For example, a product listed in a products table would have only one country of origin record in a operations table.



One-to-Many Relationships

One of the most common relationships between tables is the one-to-many relationship. In a one-to-many relationship, a record in the first table is related to multiple records in the second table. For example, an employee table could have relationships with a payroll table that contains multiple records of paychecks.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18764



Many-to-Many Relationships

Many-to-many relationships are defined as a record in the first table having multiple relationships in the second table and those records in the second table also having multiple relationships within the first table. For example, a streaming service would have TV series that are selected to view by multiple customers while each customer of the service would watch multiple TV series.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18765

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Types of Table Relationships. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.5: Types of Table Relationships is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.6: Introduction to Working with Tables

What you'll learn to do: Work with tables

Access makes it easy to work with tables using an object called a datasheet. We will learn about datasheets and how to view information, enter data, and change values already entered.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Working with Tables. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

13.6: Introduction to Working with Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.7: Datasheets

Learning Objectives

- Define datasheets
- Discuss datasheet windows within Microsoft Access

A datasheet is a useful way of viewing data in Access. Most importantly, datasheet view allows a user to view many table records at the same time. In datasheet view, information is displayed in rows and columns—similar to a spreadsheet. Records are displayed as rows, so each row is an individual record. Within each row, columns represent fields within the record.

| ם לי פי ⊽ | | Table Tools Danielson_Database | e_Basic : Database- C:\User | s\bdani\Documents\Danielson_Data |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| File Home Create External Data | Database Tools Help Fie | Ids Table \wp Tell me wh | hat you want to do | |
| View Paste Format Painter | 2↓ Ascending ✓ Selection - ✓ Descending ✓ Advanced - 2 Remove Sort ✓ Toggle Filter | Image: New Source ∑ Totals Refresh All + ∑ Delete → ∑ Spellin | g Find A^{b}_{ac} Replace \Rightarrow Go To $*$ \bigcirc Select $*$ | Calibri (Detail) \checkmark 11 B I \blacksquare \land |
| Views Clipboard 🖂 | Sort & Filter | Records | Find | Text Formattin |
| UPDATES AVAILABLE Updates for Office are | e ready to be installed, but first we ne | eed to close some apps. Update | e now | |
| | | | | |
| All Access 🖲 « | Customer ID Customer Na | Customer Zip Customer Sta | Customer Cit - Annua | Order - Do Not Call - Click to Add |
| Search | 1 1 Nebraska U | 56789 NE | Omaha \$345 | 5,234.00 |
| Tables 🏦 | 2 2 Ohio State | 87654 OH | Buckeye \$453 | 3,987.00 |
| Customers | 3 3 Northeastern | 98716 IL | Chicago \$897 | 7,654.00 |
| MyTable | 4 4 MIT | 54321 MA | Boston \$345 | ,231.00 |
| Table1 | 5 5 Georgia Tech | 89765 GA | Atlanta \$789 | 0,098.00 |
| | 6 6 Baylor | 76543 TX | College Station \$212 | 2,345.00 |
| | 7 7 USC | 67890 CA | Los Angeles \$999 | ,999.00 |
| | 8 8 Bucknell | 89765 PA | Lewistown \$67 | 7,890.00 |
| | 9 9 San Diego St | 89432 CA | San Diego \$876 | 5,543.00 |
| 1 | .0 10 UNR | 58134 NV | Reno \$98 | 3,765.00 |
| 1 | .1 11 Kansas State | 98765 KS | Manhattan \$98 | 3,454.00 |
| 1 | .2 12 Wash St | 89098 WA | Spokane \$67 | 7,543.00 |
| 1 | .3 13 Oregon | 45678 OR | Corvallis \$459 | 9,087.00 |
| 8 | .4 14 Texas | 45345 TX | Austin \$87 | 7,654.00 |
| * (Nev | v) 0 | 0 | | \$0.00 |

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18766

Datasheet Windows

At the top of the datasheet window are the title bar, the Quick Access toolbar, and the Ribbon. The bottom of the window has a status bar and on the right side of the window a scroll bar as you would expect.

Many of the features that are common to spreadsheets are present in Access datasheet windows. A user can modify row height, column width, font size to change the amount of data that fits without scrolling. A user can also change the order of the rows or columns displayed in the window.

Datasheet views are a common display tool for tables, queries, and forms in Access. There are some irregularities in the functionality of the datasheet windows for these depending on the underlying data sources.





| /iew iews | Paste | Cut Copy Format Painter Clipboard | Filter 2↓ Aso ↓ Des 2. Ren | ending 🏹 Sel cending 🛄 Ad nove Sort 🍸 Tog Sort & Filter | ection - vanced - ggle Filter All - Celete - Records | ∑ Totals A [®] Spelling Im More → Find Find Find | Replace Calibri Go To * B I U i | |
|--------------|---------------------------|---|--|--|---|--|---|------|
| | Home | X is Inventory Lis Supplier Collect Data Company | tt × 💽 Order List via E-mail Add F First Name • | rom Qutfook En | stomer List × age Relationships : | Business Phone | X Supplier List X S Employee Li | st × |
| | | 1 Supplier 1 | Marcia | Chapman | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service | |
| | | 8 Supplier 8 | John | Goodenow | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director | |
| | 7 Supplier7 David Rittler | | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager | | | |
| | | 6 Supplier 6 | Maria | Chan | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistant | |
| | | 5 Supplier 5 | Amanda | Lee | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager | |
| | | 3 Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representative | |
| | | 9 Supplier 9 | Demitri | Koenig | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager | |
| <u>ه</u> | | 4 Supplier 4 | Pasha | Khan | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | Marketing Manager | |
| | 1 | 0 Supplier 10 | Luis | Jones | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales | |
| 2 | | 2 Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager | |
| 5 | 1 | 1 Supplier 11 | Stan | Bellis | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manager | |
| * | (New | 2 | | | | | | |
| SIAPNI | lota | | 11 | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Rei | cord: I4 | 4 11 of 11 → +i += | 🖏 No Filter | Search | | | | |

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18767

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Datasheets. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.7: Datasheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.8: Entering Data

Learning Outcomes

• Enter data in datasheets

An empty datasheet will have an asterisk (*) in the first row indicating data can be entered as a new record. When the datasheet is already populated, the New row will appear at the bottom of the datasheet. There are three ways to prepare the datasheet for new record entry:

- 1. Click the "New" command in the Record group of the ribbon
- 2. Move the cursor to the New row by clicking "New Record" at the bottom of the datasheet
- 3. Click the last row containing the asterisk.

| File View | Home Create External Data Database AB 12 Solution Date & Time Short Number Currency Yex/No Text More Fields | Name & Caption fields Table Tell me what you w Default Value Modify Modify Modify Memo Field Size Lookups Expression Settings - Lookups Interview Memo Lookups - | AutoNumber Format: \$ % 3 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 4 | Required Unique Indexed Validation |
|--------------|---|--|---|---|
| Views | Add & Delete | Properties | Formatting | Field Validation |
| » • | 🔄 Order List 🗙 🔚 Customer List 🗙 📽 Rela | dionships X 📰 Purchase Order List X 🔝 Supplier List X | Employee List X Shipper I | List × E Return List × |
| | ID Customer Fir: Customer La: | Date Request Approved? Click to Add | | |
| * | (New) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18768

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Entering Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.8: Entering Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.9: Changing Values

Learning Outcomes

• Change values in datasheets

Changing values in datasheets is very straightforward. In this example, the phone number of Supplier 11 is being changed. The pencil icon appears to the far left of the record being edited.

There is an "Undo" in the toolbar that will roll back changes made to a record. However, after a second record is modified, Access will not allow changes to be undone to the prior saved record.

| | :0 | Supplier | List | | | | | | | | | | |
|----|---|-------------|--------------|-------------|-------------------------|------------------------------------|---|----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | New Supplier Collect Data via E-mail Add From Outlook E-mail Liet | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ID • | Company • | First Name 🔹 | Last Name | E-mail Address | Business Phone | * | Job Title 🗸 | | | | | |
| | 1 | Supplier 1 | Marcia | Chapman | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | | Customer Service | | | | | |
| | 8 | Supplier 8 | John | Goodenow | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | | Marketing Director | | | | | |
| | 7 | Supplier7 | David | Rittler | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | | Marketing Manager | | | | | |
| | 6 | Supplier 6 | Maria | Chan | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | | Marketing Assistant | | | | | |
| | 5 | Supplier 5 | Amanda | Lee | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | | Sales Manager | | | | | |
| | 3 | Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | | Sales Representative | | | | | |
| | 9 | Supplier 9 | Demitri | Koenig | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | | Sales Manager | | | | | |
| | 4 | Supplier 4 | Pasha | Khan | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | | Marketing Manager | | | | | |
| | 10 | Supplier 10 | Luis | Jones | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | | Inside Sales | | | | | |
| | 2 | Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | | Sales Manager | | | | | |
| \$ | 11 | Supplier 11 | Stan | Bellis | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866 | | Marketing Manager | | | | | |
| * | (New |) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Tota | | 11 | | | | | | | | | | |

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18769

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Changing Values. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.9: Changing Values is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.10: Introduction to Working with Datasheets

What you'll learn to do: Work with datasheets

In this section we will go into more detail regarding the functionality of datasheets in Access. We will learn how adding and deleting table records is easily accomplished in datasheet mode. We will also begin to see how the functionality of Access is similar to that of other Office applications which reduces the learning curve of using the application.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Working with Datasheets. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

13.10: Introduction to Working with Datasheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.11: Adding Values and Records in Datasheets

Learning Objectives

- Add values in datasheets
- Add records in datasheets

Adding Values in Datasheets

Adding and replacing values in Access is very straightforward.

| - | 2 | Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager |
|---|-------|------------|---------|-------------|------------------------|--------------|---------------------|
| | 7 | Supplier7 | David | Rittler | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager |
| | 3 | Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representativ |
| 9 | 12 | Sup | | | | | |
| * | (New) | | | | | | |
| | Total | | 11 | | | | |

In this example, a new record is being added to the Supplier table. The asterisk and "New" designation are automatically moved down one row as soon as a value has begun to be entered. The "pencil" icon appears in the far left field to indicate that data is being entered in to that record.

| | 9 | Supplier 9 | Demitri | Koenig | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager |
|---|----------|-------------|---------|-------------|-------------------------|--------------|----------------------|
| | 5 | Supplier 5 | Amanda | Lee | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager |
| | 2 | Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager |
| | 7 | Supplier7 | David | Rittler | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager |
| | 3 | Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representative |
| 3 | 12 | Supplier 12 | Caitlin | Andrews | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Manag |
| * | (New) | | | | | | |
| | Total 12 | | 12 | | | | |

In this example, the value entered of job title in the Supplier table is being modified. Clicking on the field causes the "pencil" icon to appear and the prior entry can be deleted and the new data entered and saved.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18770

Adding Records in Datasheets

As we see in the above example, adding new data into an empty field is as simple as positioning your cursor in the field and beginning typing. Adding data into a field already containing data is not much more difficult. If using the keyboard, tabbing to the field will highlight the entire field and the prior data will be replaced upon entering the first character of new data. If using the mouse, clicking on the field will place the cursor where the prior data can be deleted one character at a time or left-click and hold down the mouse to highlight the original data so it can be replaced.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18771

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Adding Values and Records in Datasheets. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

13.11: Adding Values and Records in Datasheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$



13.12: Deleting Records in Datasheets

Learning Outcomes

• Delete records in datasheets

Deleting a record is as easy as selecting the far left field of the row and selecting "Delete." Deleting multiple contiguous records is also simple: start by selecting the first record in the list and hold down the "Shift" key while you click on the last record in the group to highlight multiple records, then hit "Delete."

Here is an example of a multi-record selection.

| | :0 | Su | oplier | List | | | | | | |
|---|-----|--------------------------|-------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------|---|----------------|---|---------------------|
| | New | Supplier | Collect Dat | a via E-mail Add | From Outlook E-m | ail List | | | | |
| | ID | Corr | pany | First Name | Last Name | E-mail Address | v | Business Phone | ¥ | Job Title 🔹 |
| | | 11 Supplie | r 11 | Stan | Bellis | sbellis@supplier 11.com | | 866-111-6789 | | Marketing Manager |
| | | 6 Supplie | r 6 | Maria | Chan | mchan@supplier6.com | | 800-999-0987 | | Marketing Assistant |
| | | 1 Supplie | r 1 | Marcia | Chapman | mchapman@supplier1.com | | 800-123-4567 | | Customer Service |
| | | 8 Supplie | r 8 | John | Goodenow | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | | 866-321-8765 | | Marketing Director |
| | | 10 Supplie | r 10 | Luis | Jones | ljones@supplier10.com | | 866-800-9999 | | Inside Sales |
| | | 4 Supplie | r 4 | Pasha | Khan | khanpash@supplier4.com | | 800-765-9900 | | Marketing Manager |
| | | 9 Supplie | r 9 | Demitri | Koenig | dkoenig@supplier9.com | | 800-413-7878 | | Sales Manager |
| | | 5 Supplie | r 5 | Amanda | Lee | leeamand@supplier5.com | | 866-542-3388 | | Sales Manager |
| | | 2 Supplie | r 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | | 800-222-5566 | | Sales Manager |
| | | 7 Supplie | r7 | David | Rittler | ritdavid@supplier7.com | | 800-444-7654 | | Marketing Manager |
| | | 3 Supplie | r 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | | 800-900-6543 | | Sales Representativ |
| | | 12 Supplie | r 12 | Caitlin | Andrews | candrews@supplier12.com | | 866-222-7890 | | Sales Director |
| * | (Ne | w) | | | | | | | | |
| | То | tal | | 1 | 12 | | | | | |

If the records to be deleted are connected to other tables and records through a parent/child relationship, etc. then Access will prevent the deletion with the following error message.

| | Supplier List | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|-------------------|---------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| | New | Supplier Collect Da | ta <u>v</u> ia E-mail Add F | rom <u>O</u> utlook | <u>E</u> -ma | il List | | | | | | | |
| 1 | ID | - Company | • First Name • | Last Nan | ne 👻 | E-mail Address | Business Phone | Job Title 🔹 | | | | | |
| | | 11 Supplier 11 | Stan | Bellis | | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manager | | | | | |
| | | 6 Supplier 6 | Maria | Chan | | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistant | | | | | |
| | | 1 Supplier 1 | Marcia | Chapman | | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service | | | | | |
| | 8 Supplier 8 John | | John | Goodenow | | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director | | | | | |
| | | 10 Supplier 10 Luis | | Jones | | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales | | | | | |
| | | 4 Supplier 4 | Pasha | Khan | | | 000 7CF 0000 | | | | | | |
| | | 9 Supplier 9 | Demitri | Koenig | Micro | soft Access | | | × | | | | |
| | | 5 Supplier 5 | Amanda | Lee | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 2 Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriweth | | The record cannot be deleted or cha | nged because table 'Purchase | Orders' includes related re | cords. | | | | |
| | | 7 Supplier7 | David | Rittler | - | | | | | | | | |
| | | 3 Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | | 0 | K <u>H</u> elp | | | | | | |
| | | 12 Supplier 12 | Caitlin | Andrews | | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Sales Director | | | | | |
| * | (N | ew) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Т | otal | 12 | 2 | | | | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18772

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Deleting Records in Datasheets. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.12: Deleting Records in Datasheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.13: Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data

What you'll learn to do: Sort and filter data

We will continue to exploit datasheet mode to learn techniques to view—and change the view—of information in Access. You will learn how to change the order of columns displayed in a datasheet for ease of analysis. Also, Access provides multiple methods for sorting and filtering data, as well as aggregating data for better analysis.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

13.13: Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.14: Displaying Records in Datasheets

Learning Outcomes

• Display records in datasheets

There are many ways to display data—and change the way data is displayed—in Access to be more productive. Among these are changing the order in which columns are displayed.

Here is a database table displaying a list of purchase order records.

| 1 | # • | Status + | Supplier + | Total 🔹 | Submitted By 📼 | Submitted • | Approved By 🔹 | Approved - | Date Paid 👻 |
|---|-----|----------|------------|-------------|--------------------|-------------|----------------|------------|-------------|
| | 101 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$400.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 90 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$5,370.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 96 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$1,000.00 | Steven Thorpe | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 99 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | Jan Kotas | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 102 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | Nancy Freehafer | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 107 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$3,000.00 | Michael Neipper | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 110 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$8,500.00 | Jan Kotas | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 111 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$500.00 | Andrew Cencini | 3/31/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 98 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,400.00 | Mariya Sergienko | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 92 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$14,020.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 100 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,000.00 | Anne Hellung-Larse | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |

To better visualize the information, we may wish to see the submitter adjacent to the record number. To move a column, first highlight it by selecting the column heading.

| # • | Status - | Supplier + | Total - | Submitted By 📼 | Submitted - | Approved By - | Approved • | Date Paid | * |
|-----|----------|------------|-------------|--------------------|-------------|----------------|------------|-----------|---|
| 101 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$400.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 90 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$5,370.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 96 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$1,000.00 | Steven Thorpe | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 99 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | Jan Kotas | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 102 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | Nancy Freehafer | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | | |
| 107 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$3,000.00 | Michael Neipper | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | | |
| 110 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$8,500.00 | Jan Kotas | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | | |
| 111 | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$500.00 | Andrew Cencini | 3/31/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | | |
| 98 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,400.00 | Mariya Sergienko | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 92 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$14,020.00 | Andrew Cencini | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |
| 100 | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,000.00 | Anne Hellung-Larse | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | | |

Then, left-click on the column header until you see a black line appear along the left side of the column indicating that it is ready to be moved. Then drag column to the desired location in the table view.

| 2 | # • | Submitted By 📼 | Status 🔹 | Supplier + | Total 🔹 | Submitted + | Approved By 👻 | Approved - | Date Paid 🔹 |
|---|-----|--------------------|----------|------------|-------------|-------------|----------------|------------|-------------|
| | 101 | Andrew Cencini | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$400.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 90 | Andrew Cencini | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$5,370.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 96 | Steven Thorpe | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$1,000.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 99 | Jan Kotas | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 102 | Nancy Freehafer | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$10,200.00 | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 107 | Michael Neipper | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$3,000.00 | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 110 | Jan Kotas | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$8,500.00 | 3/24/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 111 | Andrew Cencini | Approved | Supplier 1 | \$500.00 | 3/31/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 4/4/2006 | |
| | 98 | Mariya Sergienko | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,400.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 92 | Andrew Cencini | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$14,020.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |
| | 100 | Anne Hellung-Larse | Approved | Supplier 2 | \$1,000.00 | 1/14/2006 | Andrew Cencini | 1/22/2006 | |

Another display function of Access is the ability to change font size, row (record) height, and column (field) width.





The easiest way to make basic changes to font size, color, positioning, etc. is to highlight the record to be changed and use the tool bar in the example above. Adjusting row height or column width involves a bit more. In the example below, the Job Title field is slightly too small for one of the titles.

| :6 |) | Supplier | List | | | | |
|----|-------|--------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------|----------------------|
| Ne | w Sup | plier Collect Data | a via E-mail Add Fro | m <u>O</u> utlook <u>E</u> -ma | ail List | | |
| |) - | Company | - Last Name - | First Name 👻 | E-mail Address | Business Phone | • Job Title • |
| | 11 | Supplier 11 | Bellis | Stan | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manager |
| | 6 | Supplier 6 | Chan | Maria | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistant |
| | 1 | Supplier 1 | Chapman | Marcia | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service |
| | 8 | Supplier 8 | Goodenow | John | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director |
| | 10 | Supplier 10 | Jones | Luis | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales |
| | 4 | Supplier 4 | Khan | Pasha | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | Marketing Manager |
| | 9 | Supplier 9 | Koenig | Demitri | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager |
| | 5 | Supplier 5 | Lee | Amanda | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager |
| | 2 | Supplier 2 | Merriwether | Leticia | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager |
| | 7 | Supplier7 | Rittler | David | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager |
| | 3 | Supplier 3 | Smith | Mandy | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representative |
| | 12 | Supplier 12 | Andrews | Caitlin | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Sales Director |

To accommodate the longer title in that field, right-click the column header to open the dialog box in the example below.

| :0 | Supplier List | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------|----------------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------|----------------------|-----|---------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Now S | upplier Collect Data | yia E-mail Add Fro | om <u>Q</u> utlook <u>E</u> -ma | if List | | | | Home | | | | | |
| Z ID | Company | Last Name 🔹 | First Name | E-mail Address | Business Phone | Job Title 🔹 | A | 6 | | | | | |
| | 11 Supplier 11 | Bellis | Stan | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manager | Z1 | Sort A to Z | | | | | |
| | 6 Supplier 6 | Chan | Maria | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistant | Z↓ | Sort Z to A | | | | | |
| | 1 Supplier 1 | Chapman | Marcia | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service | Ba | Copy | | | | | |
| | 8 Supplier 8 | Goodenow | John | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director | | 2009 | | | | | |
| | 10 Supplier 10 | Jones | Luis | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales | 0 | Paste | | | | | |
| | 4 Supplier 4 | Khan | Pasha | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | Marketing Manager | | Eield Width | | | | | |
| | 9 Supplier 9 | Koenig | Demitri | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager | × | Delete | | | | | |
| | 5 Supplier 5 | Lee | Amanda | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager | | Delete | | | | | |
| | 2 Supplier 2 | Merriwether | Leticia | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager | | Hide <u>Fields</u> | | | | | |
| | 7 Supplier7 | Rittler | David | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager | | Unhide Fields | | | | | |
| | 3 Supplier 3 | Smith | Mandy | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representative | | Freeze Fields | | | | | |
| | 12 Supplier 12 | Andrews | Caitlin | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Sales Director | | Unfreeze All Fields | | | | | |
| * <u>(Ne</u> | <u>w)</u> | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| To | al | | 12 | 2 | | | 101 | Add Existing Fields | | | | | |

Select "Field Width" and set the value to the desired width to accommodate the longer title as shown in the example below.

| | Supplier List | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---------------|------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------|------------------|----------------------|--|--|--|--|
| | New | Supplier Collect | Data via E-mail Add F | rom Outlook E-ma | il List | | | | | | |
| | ID | Company | Last Name | First Name | E-mail Address | Business Phone • | Job Title 👻 | | | | |
| | | 11 Supplier 11 | Bellis | Stan | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manager | | | | |
| | | 6 Supplier 6 | Chan | Maria | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistant | | | | |
| | | 1 Supplier 1 | Chapman | Marcia | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service | | | | |
| | | 8 Supplier 8 | Goodenow | John | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director | | | | |
| | | 10 Supplier 10 | Jones | Luis | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales | | | | |
| | | 4 Supplier 4 | Khan | Pasha | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | Marketing Manager | | | | |
| | | 9 Supplier 9 | Koenig | Demitri | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager | | | | |
| | | 5 Supplier 5 | Lee | Amanda | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager | | | | |
| | | 2 Supplier 2 | Merriwether | Leticia | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager | | | | |
| | | 7 Supplier7 | Rittler | David | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manager | | | | |
| | | 3 Supplier 3 | Smith | Mandy | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representative | | | | |
| | | 12 Supplier 12 | Andrews | Caitlin | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Sales Director | | | | |
| ж | <u>(N</u> | ew) | | | | | | | | | |
| | Т | otal | | 12 | 2 | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18773





Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Displaying Records in Datasheets. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

13.14: Displaying Records in Datasheets is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



13.15: Sorting Data

Learning Outcomes

• Sort and filter records

There are multiple ways to sort data in Access. The first option is to use the toolbar shown in the example below. The tools function as you would expect from any MS Office tool bar.

| $\mathbf{\nabla}$ | Ascending | 🏹 Selection - |
|-------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------|
| ∐ Filter | \overrightarrow{A} Descending | 🛄 Advanced - |
| The | A Remove Sort | Toggle Filter |
| | Sort & Filte | er |

Another way to quickly sort data in a table is to use the sorting capability built-in to the column headers, as shown in the example below. Clicking on the arrow in each header will sort the records in ascending or descending order (alternating).

 # • Order Date •
 Status
 •
 Salesperson
 •
 Customer
 •
 Ship Date •
 Shipping •
 Taxes •
 Total •

Filtering your view of the data set can be accomplished in several ways. Perhaps the quickest is to right-click on the value you wish to filter by to open the dialog in the example below.

| 2 | # - | Order Date 🔹 | Sta | itus | * | Salesperson | * | Customer | | |
|---|-----|--------------|--------|--------|----------------------------------|---------------------|-----------|------------|-----------|--|
| | 81 | 4/25/2006 | New | | | Andrew Cencini | | Company C | | |
| | 80 | 4/25/2006 | New | | | Andrew Cencini | | Company D | | |
| | 79 | 6/23/2006 | Closed | | | Andrew Cencini | | Company F | | |
| | 78 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | | | Nancy Freehafer | | Company CC | | |
| | 77 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | _ | | Anne Hellung-Larsen | | Company Z | | |
| | 76 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | X | Cut | | | Company Y | | |
| | 75 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | | Copy | | | | Company H | |
| | 74 | 6/8/2006 | Closed | | | | Company F | | | |
| | 73 | 6/5/2006 | Closed | | Al Sort A to Z Al Sort Z to A | | - | Company I | | |
| | 72 | 6/7/2006 | Closed | Ź↓ | | | | Company BB | | |
| | 71 | 5/24/2006 | New | Z↓ | | | | Company A | | |
| | 70 | 5/24/2006 | New | | Clear | filter from Status | | Company K | | |
| | 69 | 5/24/2006 | New | | Cical | inter nom status | | Company J | | |
| | 68 | 5/24/2006 | New | | Text F | ilters | | Company G | | |
| | 67 | 5/24/2006 | Closed | | Equals | "Closed" | | Company J | | |
| | 66 | 5/24/2006 | New | | Does | Not Equal "Closed" | | Company H | | |
| | 65 | 5/11/2006 | New | | Conto | ins "Closed" | | Company BB | | |
| | 64 | 5/9/2006 | New | | Conta | ins closed | | Company F | | |
| | 63 | 4/25/2006 | Closed | Does N | Not Contain "Closed" | | Company C | | | |
| | 62 | 4/12/2006 | New | | E Form Pr | Properties | | Company CC | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

In this case, if we wish to filter by the value "Closed" and can choose one of four filtering elements: "Equals," "Does Not Equal," Contains," or "Does Not Contain."

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18774

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Sorting Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution



13.15: Sorting Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.16: Aggregating Data

Learning Outcomes

• Aggregate data

To aggregate data in Access, start by selecting the "Totals" button in the tool bar to create a "Total" row at the bottom of the datasheet table view.

| | 47 | 4/8/2006 | Closed | Michael Neipper | Company F | 4/8/2006 | \$300.00 | \$0.00 | \$4,500.00 |
|-----|----|-----------|---------|---------------------|------------|-----------|----------|--------|-------------|
| | 46 | 4/5/2006 | Closed | Robert Zare | Company I | 4/5/2006 | \$100.00 | \$0.00 | \$3,790.00 |
| | 45 | 4/7/2006 | Closed | Nancy Freehafer | Company BB | 4/7/2006 | \$40.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,442.50 |
| | 44 | 3/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company A | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,674.75 |
| | 43 | 3/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company K | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$219.50 |
| | 42 | 3/24/2006 | Shipped | Nancy Freehafer | Company J | 4/7/2006 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$562.00 |
| | 41 | 3/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company G | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$13,800.00 |
| | 40 | 3/24/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company J | 3/24/2006 | \$9.00 | \$0.00 | \$607.00 |
| | 39 | 3/22/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company H | 3/24/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,280.00 |
| | 38 | 3/10/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company BB | 3/11/2006 | \$10.00 | \$0.00 | \$13,810.00 |
| | 37 | 3/6/2006 | Closed | Laura Giussani | Company F | 3/9/2006 | \$12.00 | \$0.00 | \$692.00 |
| | 36 | 2/23/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company C | 2/25/2006 | \$7.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,937.00 |
| | 35 | 2/10/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company CC | 2/12/2006 | \$7.00 | \$0.00 | \$134.50 |
| | 34 | 2/6/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company D | 2/7/2006 | \$4.00 | \$0.00 | \$188.00 |
| | 33 | 1/30/2006 | Closed | Michael Neipper | Company H | 1/31/2006 | \$50.00 | \$0.00 | \$326.00 |
| : | 32 | 1/22/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko 🗠 | Company L | 1/22/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,195.00 |
| | 31 | 1/20/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company D | 1/22/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$870.00 |
| | 30 | 1/15/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company AA | 1/22/2006 | \$200.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,705.00 |
| Tot | al | | | | | | | | |

Then move the cursor to the field you wish to aggregate and right-click to expose the options.

| 42 | 3/24/2006 | Shipped | Nancy Freehafer | Company J | 4/7/2006 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$562.00 |
|-------|-----------|---------|---------------------|------------|--------------------|------------------|--------|-------------|
| 41 | 3/24/2006 | New | Nancy Freehafer | Company G | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$13,800.00 |
| 40 | 3/24/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company J | 3/24/2006 | \$9.00 | \$0.00 | \$607.00 |
| 39 | 3/22/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company H | 3/24/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,280.00 |
| 38 | 3/10/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company BB | 3/11/2006 | \$10.00 | \$0.00 | \$13,810.00 |
| 37 | 3/6/2006 | Closed | Laura Giussani | Company F | 3/9/2006 | \$12.00 | \$0.00 | \$692.00 |
| 36 | 2/23/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company C | 2/25/2006 | \$7.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,937.00 |
| 35 | 2/10/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company CC | 2/12/2006 | \$7.00 | \$0.00 | \$134.50 |
| 34 | 2/6/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company D | 2/7/2006 | \$4.00 | \$0.00 | \$188.00 |
| 33 | 1/30/2006 | Closed | Michael Neipper | Company H | 1/31/2006 | \$50.00 | \$0.00 | \$326.00 |
| 32 | 1/22/2006 | Closed | Mariya Sergienko | Company L | 1/22/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,195.00 |
| 31 | 1/20/2006 | Closed | Jan Kotas | Company D | 1/22/2006 | \$5.00 | \$0.00 | \$870.00 |
| 30 | 1/15/2006 | Closed | Anne Hellung-Larsen | Company AA | 1/22/2006 | \$200.00 | \$0.00 | \$1,705.00 |
| Total | | | | | | ~ | | |
| | | | | | None | | | |
| | | | | | Sum | | | |
| | | | | | Average | | | |
| | | | | | Count | Count Maximum | | |
| | | | | | Maximur | | | |
| | | | | | Minimun | Minimum | | |
| | | Si | | Standard | Standard Deviation | | | |
| | | | | | Variance | | | |

From this approach, Access offers a Sum, Average, Count, Maximum, Minimum, Standard Deviation, and Variance aggregation option.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18775

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Aggregating Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.16: Aggregating Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.17: Printing Records

Learning Outcomes

• Preview and print records

Previewing and printing objects in Access follows the same paradigm as most Office applications. Selecting "File" – "Print" opens a dialog box as shown in the example below.

| \odot | Prir | nt |
|----------|----------|---|
| 斺 Home | | |
| 🗋 New | F | Quick Print Send the object directly to the default printer without making changes. |
| [27 Open | _ | Print Select a printer number of copies and other printing |
| Info | | options before printing. |
| Save | à | Print Preview Preview and make changes to pages before printing. |
| Save As | | |
| Print | | |
| Close | | |

"Quick Print" sends the print request directly to the printer without any other options presented. "Print Preview" displays the print as it will be rendered and printed. "Print" offers all of the usual options from the Office suite such as: Print Range, Copies, Collate, Printer, Properties, Margins, etc.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18776

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Printing Records. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

13.17: Printing Records is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



13.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills

In this section we spent a great deal of time learning how to work with Access datasheets: adding and deleting data, displaying data, sorting and filtering data, aggregating data, and previewing and printing records. This is important as an MS Access user will spend a good deal of time taking advantage of the ease-of-use of this view to get work done.

More broadly, we dove in to some important database principles and how database technology can be applied to create useful commercial applications. The fact that multiple users can consume information—even utilize different views at the same time—from a database application is of tremendous value. Database applications as simple as generating mailing lists to as complex as airline reservations rely on the database principles we discussed.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting It Together: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

13.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




13.19: Assignment- Modify Access Database

In the previous module's assignment, you created the beginning of a database. In this assignment you'll work with an existing database with business card information and use the skills you have learned in this module.

To complete this assignment, download the Access file here. Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Open the database and save the new Module 13 assignment file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_BusinessCardDB.accdb, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 2. In the open Access database file open the 2020_BusinessCards table. The contact table entrees are now visible and can be modified.

| 🗔 🕤 r ♂ r 🗢 2020_Business | Cards : Database- C:\Users\Pendle | ton\De Tal | ble Tools | | | Sign in | - 🗆 🗙 |
|------------------------------|---|--|---|-----------------|--------------------------------|--|-----------------|
| File Home Create Exte | rnal Data Database Tools | Help Fields | ; Table 🔎 Tel | l me what you v | vant to do | | |
| View View View View | Ž↓ Ascending ▼ Sel Filter Ž↓ Descending □ Ad Ž₂ Remove Sort ▼ Top | ection • Construction • Refree aggle Filter All • | h New ∑ Totals Save Spelling > ∑ Delete ▼ 🔜 More▼ | g Find ≳ | Calibri (Det BIU A * all | iail) ∨ 11 == == >= - - ▲ - == = = | |
| Views Clipboard 🖂 | Sort & Filter | | Records | Find | | Text Formatting | |
| All Access Obje 오 « 📙 | 2020_BusinessCards × | | 0 | | 147 L 1 | | |
| Search 🔎 | ContactiD - FirstName | LastName - | CompanyName - | Phone - | website - | Notes - | Email - Click |
| Tables | 2 Gary | Dotes | Cardaso | 2085405400 | krazyco.co | cardio equipment | dnoor is@bnd |
| 2020_BusinessCards | 4 Kate | Bush | Instalsples | 202555010 | instalsples.con | call for a quote | 9zohir.barca11 |
| | 5 H.P. | Long | Brandhand | 202-555-010 | brandhand.org | control a quote | 2whgp2013n@ |
| | 6 Anna | Picore | Footagesaces | | 0 | met at conference | 51 C |
| | 7 Martin | Luther | marketprofit | 6015550131 | marketprofit2. | | |
| | 8 Joe | Jones | permitskits | 3175550197 | permitskits.co | | zosvaldir@fixc |
| | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 | pokerhandfory | poker lessons | omahmoud.ab |
| | 10 | Коуа | global redial | 2025550122 | globalredial.or | | |
| | 11 Nipsey | Russell | galls calls | 6035550170 | gallscalls.com | Spam call prevent | jmoaied.a@cat |
| | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | subbies keys | 6015550143 | subbieskeys.cc | | 4newky2011z@ |
| | 13 Jacques | Attali | people social | | | | rfiras.kara@cry |
| | 14 Emile | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 | legalcap.biz | talked about her p | hdavid.viglo1@ |
| | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 | creditbooth.nz | he asked how to g | |
| | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 | identitydeck.b | | cmahamad.d@ |
| | 17 | | swipe sure | 5015550149 | swipesure.org | | |
| | 18 Hayley | Jensen | | 5125550105 | | Check in three mc | 8good.m@cryp |
| | 19 Michael | Gibran | generator services | 3175550150 | genservices.co | | oazizb@cleana |
| | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | | 5185550155 | | Best cheeses in to | 9mano4738u@ |
| ÷ | (New) | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | Record: Id 1 of 19 b bl b* | No Filter | ch 4 | | | | Þ |
| Datasheet View | | Schornice Seal | | | | Num | Lock 🛅 🕍 |

3. Add Information: There are database cells missing data. Use the information in the table to fill in the missing information in the right places.

| Contact ID | FirstName | LastName | CompanyName | Phone | Website | Email |
|------------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| 3 | | | | | Cardaso.com | |
| 6 | | | | 8015556987 | Footagesaces.inf o | k.bush@footage. com |
| 7 | | | | | | Martin.l@marke tp.co |
| 10 | Jenna | | | | | jennak@globalre dial.com |
| 13 | | | | 2025557895 | Peoplesocial.net | |





| Contact ID | FirstName | LastName | CompanyName | Phone | Website | Email |
|------------|-----------|-----------|-------------|-------|---------------|-----------------------------|
| 15 | | | | | | cyyoung@credit booth.nz |
| 17 | Hamilton | Jefferson | | | | hammyjeff@swi pesure.org |
| 18 | | | CarpetEZ | | Carpetez.com | |
| 20 | | | Cheesezy | | Cheesezy.info | |

| | CardsFinal : Database- C:\Users\Pe | ndleto Ta | ble Tools | | Sign in | | × |
|------------------------|--|-------------------|--|--|---|-----------------|-----------|
| File Home Create Exter | rnal Data Database Tools | Help Field | s Table 🔎 | Tell me what you want to do | | | |
| Views Clipboard 5 | Ascending ▼ Sele Filter ↓ Descending ↓ Adv Adv ↓ Descending ↓ Adv Adv ↓ Descending ↓ Adv Sort & Filter ↓ Tog | vanced • Refre | ian New ∑ Toi sh Bave spa ≻ Delete マ ⊞ Mc Records | tals elling ore * Find Find Find | i (Detail) U → = ← → = → Δ → = = Text Formatting | | |
| All Access Obje 오 « 📮 | 2020_BusinessCards × | | | | | - | |
| Search | ContactID - FirstName - | LastName - | CompanyName 🔻 | Phone - Website - | Notes 🔹 | Email - C | lick to A |
| Tables | 2 Gary | Jones | Krazy company | 2085465466 krazyco.co | | Oouss@ircdriv | |
| 2020_BusinessCards | 3 Lettie | Peterson | Cardaso | 8085551212 Cardaso.com | cardio equipment | dnoor.ja@bndi | |
| | 4 Kate | Bush | Brandhand | 202555010 Instaispies.com | r can for a quote | 2wbgp2012p@ | |
| - | 5 Anna | Picore | Eootagesaces | 202-555-010. Dranunanu.org | i met at conference | k bush@footar | |
| | 7 Martin | Luther | marketprofit | 6015550131 marketprofit2 | i met at comerence | Martin l@mark | |
| - | 8 Joe | | permitskits | 3175550197 permitskits.co | • | zosvaldir@fixc | |
| | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 pokerhandfor | poker lessons | omahmoud.ab | |
| | 10 Jenna | Коуа | global redial | 2025550122 globalredial.o | r | jennak@global | |
| | 11 Nipsey | Russell | galls calls | 6035550170 gallscalls.com | Spam call prevent | jmoaied.a@cat | |
| | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | subbies keys | 6015550143 subbieskeys.c | c | 4newky2011z@ | |
| | 13 Jacques | Attali | people social | 2025557895 Peoplesocial. | n | rfiras.kara@cry | |
| | 14 Emile | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 legalcap.biz | talked about her p | hdavid.viglo1@ | |
| | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 creditbooth.n | z he asked how to g | cyyoung@cred | |
| | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 identitydeck. |) | cmahamad.d@ | |
| | 17 Hamilton | Jefferson | swipe sure | 5015550149 swipesure.org | | hammyjeff@s\ | |
| | 18 Hayley | Jensen | CarpetEZ | 5125550105 Carpetez.com | Check in three mc | 8good.m@cryp | |
| | 19 Michael | Gibran | generator services | 3175550150 genservices.co |) | oazizb@cleana | |
| | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | Cheesezy Co. | 5185550155 Cheesezy.info | Best cheeses in to | 9mano4738u@ | |
| * | (New) | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| R | ecord: I4 4 17 of 19 🕨 🖬 🜬 | 🕵 No Filter 🛛 Sea | rch 🔹 | | | | Þ |
| Datasheet View | | | | | Ν | lum Lock 📰 | 2 |

4. Edit Information: There is a misspelling in one of the contacts. Emile Zola should be spelled Emily Zola. Correct her name in the database.



| | sCardsFinal : Database- C:\Users\Pe | ndleto Tal | ble Tools | | | Sign in | | × |
|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|---|--|---|------------|
| File Home Create Exte | ernal Data Database Tools | Help Fields | Table 🔎 | Tell me what you w | ant to do | | | |
| Views | Filter | vanced • Refree ggle Filter All • | h → New ∑ Tot Save → X Delete → H Mo Records | tals elling ore ▼ Find Eind | Calibri (I • B I • A • ab | Detail) ∨ 1 <u>U</u> → = ← = → π → Z → <u>D</u> → = = Text Formatting | | |
| | 2020 BusinessCards X | | Records | | | Text Formatting | , | .a |
| Search | ContactID - FirstName - 2 Gary | LastName - Jones | CompanyName 🔹 Krazy company | Phone - W 2085465466 kraz | ebsite 👻 | Notes - | Email - Oouss@ircdriv | Click to A |
| 2020_BusinessCards | 3 Lettie 4 Kate | Peterson Bush | Cardaso Instalsples | 8085551212 Card 202555010 insta | laso.com o alsples.con o | cardio equipment call for a quote | dnoor.ja@bnda 9zohir.barca11 | |
| | 6 Anna 7 Martin | Picore | Footagesaces | 202-555-010. bran 8015556987 Foot | idhand.org tagesaces.i i kotorofit2 | met at conference | 2whgp2013n@ k.bush@footag Martin I@mark | |
| - | 8 Joe | Jones | permitskits | 3175550197 perr | nitskits.co | | zosvaldir@fixc | |
| | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 pok | erhandfory p | poker lessons | omahmoud.ab | |
| - | 10 Jenna | Koya | global redial | 2025550122 glob | alredial.or | | jennak@global | |
| - | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | galls calls subbies keys | 6015550170 gails | calls.com s | spam call prevent | Jmoaled.a@cat 4newkv2011z@ | |
| | 13 Jacques | Attali | people social | 2025557895 Peo | plesocial.n | | rfiras.kara@cry | |
| | 2 14 Emily | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 lega | lcap.biz t | talked about her p | hdavid.viglo1@ | |
| _ | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 cred | itbooth.nz l | he asked how to g | cyyoung@cred | |
| _ | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 iden | titydeck.b | | cmahamad.d@ | |
| - | 17 Hamilton | Jefferson | swipe sure | 5015550149 swip | esure.org | Charle in these sures | hammyjett@s\ | |
| - | 18 Hayley | Gibran | carpetez | 3175550150 gen | elez.com (| check in three mc | agoou.m@cryp | |
| - | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | Cheesezy Co. | 5185550155 Che | esezv.info | Best cheeses in to | 9mano4738u@ | |
| Э | * (New) | Girdadoux | onceseey oor | | cocquine . | | smane in soule | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | Record: I4 4 13 of 19 🕨 🖬 🜬 | 🕵 No Filter 🛛 Sear | ch 🔹 | | _ | | | Þ |
| Datasheet View | | | | | | N | um Lock 🛅 | <u></u> |

5. **Delete Contact Info:** One of the contacts is no longer at the company and needs to be removed from the database. Locate Joe Jones and delete the record.

| ☐ 5 · 2020_Business | sCardsFinal : Database- C:\Users\Per | ndleto Tal | ole Tools | | Sign in | – – × |
|---------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--|--|--|--------------------|
| File Home Create Exte | ernal Data Database Tools | Help Fields | Table 🔎 | Tell me what you want | to do | |
| View Paste Format Painter | Pilter 2↓ Ascending ▼ Sele Filter 2↓ Descending □ Adv 2↓ Remove Sort ▼ Tog | anced • Refree gle Filter All • | i New ∑ Tot B Save Asc Spa > Delete → I Mo | tals P ab elling P Find P ac ore τ P ac | Calibri (Detail) B I \blacksquare $\models \equiv$ $\models =$ \triangle \star $\bullet \ge$ $\bullet \ge$ $\models =$ $\models =$ | |
| Views Clipboard | Sort & Filter | | Records | Find | Text Formattir | ng GLA |
| All Access Obje 오 « 📙 | 2020_BusinessCards × | 1 | 0 | Dhana Maha | the Minter | En all Olish ta d |
| Search | ContactID - FirstName - | LastName - | CompanyName - | Phone - Webs | ite 🔻 Notes 🔻 | Email - Click to A |
| Tables | 2 Gary | Jones | Krazy company | 2085465466 Krazyco | .co | t dagar is@bad |
| 2020_BusinessCards | 5 Lettle | Bush | Instalsplas | 202555010 instals | les con call for a quote | 970hir barca11 |
| - | 5 H P | Long | Brandhand | 202-555-010" hrandha | and org | 2whgn2013n@ |
| - | 6 Anna | Picore | Footagesaces | 8015556987 Footage | saces, i met at conferenc | e k.bush@footae |
| - | 7 Martin | Luther | marketprofit | 6015550131 market | profit2. | Martin.l@mark |
| - | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 pokerha | andfory poker lessons | omahmoud.ab |
| | 10 Jenna | Коуа | global redial | 2025550122 globalre | edial.or | jennak@global |
| | 11 Nipsey | Russell | galls calls | 6035550170 gallscal | s.com Spam call preven | t jmoaied.a@cat |
| | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | subbies keys | 6015550143 subbies | keys.cc | 4newky2011z@ |
| | 13 Jacques | Attali | people social | 2025557895 Peoples | ocial.n | rfiras.kara@cry |
| | 14 Emily | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 legalca | biz talked about her | ۶ hdavid.viglo1@ |
| | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 creditbo | ooth.nz he asked how to | g cyyoung@cred |
| | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 identity | deck.b | cmahamad.d@ |
| | 17 Hamilton | Jefferson | swipe sure | 5015550149 swipesu | ire.org | hammyjeff@s\ |
| | 18 Hayley | Jensen | CarpetEZ | 5125550105 Carpete | z.com Check in three m | c 8good.m@cryp |
| | 19 Michael | Gibran | generator services | 3175550150 genserv | ices.co | oazizb@cleana |
| | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | Cheesezy Co. | 5185550155 Cheese | zy.info Best cheeses in t | c 9mano4738u@ |
| • | * (New) | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | No Filter | ch 1 | | | |
| Datasheet View | Vectorer of a la of ta by by | X NO FILLER Sear | | | | Num Lock |



- 6. Add New Contact: Enter a new contact with the following information into the existing table.
 - 1. Heath Karrick, Spry Life, LLC, 2025551423, sprylife.com, heathkck@sprylife.com

| 🖬 🗲 マ 🖓 マ 2020_Business | :CardsFinal : Database- C:\Users\Pen | dleto Tai | ple Tools | | | Sign in | | × |
|---|--|------------------------------------|---|------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--|-----------------|------------|
| File Home Create Exte | rnal Data Database Tools | Help Fields | Table 🔎 | Tell me what y | ou want to do | | | |
| کی View Views Views Clipboard | Pilter 2↓ Ascending Ty Selev Filter A↓ Descending Adva 2↓ Remove Sort T Togg Sort & Filter Sort & Filter | anced • Refree gle Filter All • | time New ∑ Tor Bave Save Spectrum Control Control Con | tals elling pre * Find | ab *ac → ▼ B I k ▼ A ▼ find | (Detail) ↓1 <u>U</u> → Ξ ← → ↓ = = Text Formatting | | |
| All Access Obie 💿 « 🛽 | 2020_BusinessCards $	imes$ | | | | | | | |
| Search | ContactID - FirstName - | LastName 👻 | CompanyName 👻 | Phone 🔻 | Website 👻 | Notes 👻 | Email 👻 | Click to A |
| Tables | 2 Gary | Jones | Krazy company | 2085465466 | krazyco.co | | Oouss@ircdriv | |
| 2020 BusinessCards | 3 Lettie | Peterson | Cardaso | 8085551212 | Cardaso.com | cardio equipment | dnoor.ja@bnda | |
| | 4 Kate | Bush | Instalsples | 202555010 | instalsples.con | call for a quote | 9zohir.barca11 | |
| - | 5 H.P. | Long | Brandhand | 202-555-010 | brandhand.org | | 2whgp2013n@ | |
| | 6 Anna | Picore | Footagesaces | 8015556987 | Footagesaces.i | met at conference | k.bush@footag | |
| | 7 Martin | Luther | marketprofit | 6015550131 | marketprofit2. | | Martin.I@mark | |
| - | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 | pokerhandfory | poker lessons | omahmoud.ab | |
| | 10 Jenna | Коуа | global redial | 2025550122 | globalredial.or | | jennak@global | |
| | 11 Nipsey | Russell | galls calls | 6035550170 | gallscalls.com | Spam call prevent | jmoaied.a@cat | |
| | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | subbies keys | 6015550143 | subbieskeys.cc | | 4newky2011z@ | |
| | 13 Jacques | Attali | people social | 2025557895 | Peoplesocial.n | | rfiras.kara@cry | |
| | 14 Emily | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 | legalcap.biz | talked about her p | hdavid.viglo1@ | |
| | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 | creditbooth.nz | he asked how to g | cyyoung@cred | |
| - | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 | identitydeck.b | | cmahamad.d@ | |
| | 17 Hamilton | Jetterson | swipe sure | 5015550149 | swipesure.org | | nammyjeff@s\ | |
| - | 18 Hayley | Jensen | CarpetEZ | 5125550105 | Carpetez.com | Check in three mc | sgood.m@cryp | |
| - | 19 Michael | Gibran | generator services | 31/5550150 | genservices.co | De et als a ser la ta | oazizb@cieana | |
| | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | Cheesezy Co. | 5185550155 | Cheesezy.Into | Best cheeses in to | 9mano4/38u@ | |
| i | 21 Heath | Karrick | Spry Life, LLC | 2025551423 | sprylife.net | | neatnkck@spŋ | |
| | | No Filter | rh 1 | | | | | k |
| Datasheet View | | Scino Linter Seal | | | | Λ | lum Lock 🛅 | M |



7. Filter: Sort the contact table by last name A–Z.

| 🗜 5 • ♂ - ≂ 2020_Business | CardsFinal : Database- C:\Users\Per | dleto Tal | ble Tools | | | Sign in | | × |
|---------------------------|--|--|---|-----------------------------|---|--|----------------|------------|
| File Home Create Exter | rnal Data Database Tools | Help Fields | ; Table 🔎 | Tell me what | you want to do | | | |
| Views Clipboard IS | Filter ↓ Ascending ↓ Sele ↓ Descending ↓ Adv ↓ Remove Sort ▼ Tog Sort & Filter | ction • anced • gle Filter All • | Hew ∑ T Here Save Control Control | Totals pelling Nore ▼ | $\begin{array}{c c} ab \\ \bullet ac \\ \bullet $ | $(Detail) \qquad \bigvee \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ \underline{U} \end{bmatrix} \stackrel{\text{det}}{=} \stackrel{\text{det}}{=} \begin{bmatrix} w \\ w \end{bmatrix} \stackrel{\text{det}}{=} \begin{bmatrix} w \\ w \end{bmatrix} \stackrel{\text{det}}{=} $ | | |
| All Access Obje 오 « 🖡 | 2020_BusinessCards × | | N | DI. | 111 L 11 | | F 1 | 01:11 |
| Search 🔎 🖉 | ContactiD - FirstName - | Lastiname 🚽 | CompanyName | Phone | website - | Notes 👻 | Email - | CIICK TO A |
| Tables | 12 Baruch | Ashlag | subbles keys | 0015550143 | Subbleskeys.co | | 4newky20112@ | |
| 2020_BusinessCards | 15 Jacques | Rush | Instalsplas | 202555010 | instalsplas con | call for a quote | 970bir barca11 | |
| | 19 Michael | Gibran | generator service | 5 3175550150 | genservices.co | can for a quote | oazizb@cleana | |
| | 20 Eric | Giraudoux | Cheesezy Co. | 5185550155 | Cheesezy.info | Best cheeses in to | 9mano4738u@ | |
| | 17 Hamilton | Jefferson | swipe sure | 5015550149 | swipesure.org | | hammyjeff@sv | |
| | 18 Hayley | Jensen | CarpetEZ | 5125550105 | Carpetez.com | Check in three mc | 8good.m@cryp | |
| | 2 Gary | Jones | Krazy company | 2085465466 | krazyco.co | | Oouss@ircdriv | |
| | 21 Heath | Karrick | Spry Life, LLC | 2025551423 | sprylife.net | | heathkck@spr | |
| | 10 Jenna | Коуа | global redial | 2025550122 | globalredial.or | | jennak@globa | |
| | 5 H.P. | Long | Brandhand | 202-555-010 | brandhand.org | | 2whgp2013n@ | |
| | 7 Martin | Luther | marketprofit | 6015550131 | marketprofit2. | | Martin.l@mark | |
| | 3 Lettie | Peterson | Cardaso | 8085551212 | Cardaso.com | cardio equipment | dnoor.ja@bnd | |
| | 6 Anna | Picore | Footagesaces | 8015556987 | Footagesaces.i | met at conference | k.bush@footag | |
| | 9 Jalal al-Din | Rumi | poker hand | 9165550132 | pokerhandfory | poker lessons | omahmoud.ab | |
| | 11 Nipsey | Russell | galls calls | 6035550170 | gallscalls.com | Spam call prevent | jmoaied.a@cat | |
| - | 15 Cy | Young | credit booth | 9165550133 | creditbooth.nz | he asked how to g | cyyoung@cred | |
| - | 16 Lin | Yutang | identity deck | 2025550140 | identitydeck.b | | cmahamad.d@ | |
| | 14 Emily | Zola | legal capital | 9075550188 | legalcap.biz | talked about her p | hdavid.viglo1@ | |
| * | (New) | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | |
| R | lecord: I4 4 20 of 20 > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > | 🖕 No Filter 🛛 Sear | rch 🔹 | | | | | Þ |
| Datasheet View | | | | | | N | lum Lock 🔳 | 2 |

8. **Save:** Save the file.

9. Submit the presentation file in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Modify Access Database. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

13.19: Assignment- Modify Access Database is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





13.20: Discussion- Moving Columns and Fields

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page. You can view the transcript for "Access 2016 Field Order and Size" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- If there are a few different ways to rearrange fields, which way do you prefer and why?
- What are some common mistakes made to move fields or records in an Access table?
- What do you consider the best view (Design View, Datasheet View) for rearranging fields? Why?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Moving Columns and Fields. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

All rights reserved content

• Access 2016 - Field Order and Size - How To Move the Column and Rearrange Fields Name in MS Database. Authored by: Professor Adam Morgan. Located at: https://youtu.be/VyZ234TaxcI. License: *All Rights Reserved*. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

13.20: Discussion- Moving Columns and Fields is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

Learning Objectives

- Import and export data
- Create and modify queries
- Use forms and reports
- Analyze data

14.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

14.2: Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data

14.3: External Data

- 14.4: Import and Export Options
- 14.5: Introduction to Queries
- 14.6: What Are Queries?
- 14.7: Adding Criteria to a Query
- 14.8: Saving Queries
- 14.9: Introduction to Forms and Reports
- 14.10: Understanding Forms
- 14.11: Creating Basic Forms
- 14.12: Form Controls and Views
- 14.13: Presenting Data on Reports
- 14.14: Introduction to Analyzing Data
- 14.15: Transforming Data
- 14.16: Understanding Calculations
- 14.17: Using Conditional Analysis
- 14.18: Using Subqueries
- 14.19: Understanding Domain Aggregation
- 14.20: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills
- 14.21: Assignment- Create Queries for Access Database
- 14.22: Discussion- Ways to Manage Access Tables

14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

Why learn advanced Microsoft Access skills?

How does database technology matter today? For one thing, there would be no eCommerce without underlying database technology to support it. What about healthcare? How would we keep track of patients, appointments, and treatment history without the use of database applications? Then you have online television streaming. Streaming services need database applications to generate a list of shows to watch and track individuals' viewing history. Very powerful database applications are needed to not only track viewing but to analyze and recommend new viewing for each and every individual customer.

In this final section, we will get into some of the advanced capabilities of MS Access. Dealing with external data—data outside of the current Access database—is a real-world situation that needs to be covered here. The concept of queries—how we interact with databases to leverage the information stored within—is another important topic to be addressed in this section. Finally, forms and reports are key to how we get data in and out of databases.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY: Attribution*

14.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.2: Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data

What you'll learn to do: Importing and exporting data

"Data, data everywhere!" With the mountain of data available today, the trick is how to leverage it for your business. Access has multiple tools and methods to support importing and exporting data into your database. We will review the all of the options Access provides to aid in the import of data. Also, we will cover how easy it is to export data from Access in a variety of formats.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

14.2: Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.3: External Data

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss the value of external data

Not all information necessary for business purposes may be stored in the same place. Even if the data resides in locations within the firewalls of the business, it may be in different applications or formats. In the example below from an Oracle administrator's manual, data stored in different, distributed repositories can be a good thing, but there are many variables to consider.



This is an ideal example of a well-architected database system where users are getting maximum value from three separate systems that seamlessly working together as one. In most cases, external data—or data not residing in the current database—is much trickier to utilize. External data is usually stored in differing applications in differing formats. Access can use data in the following formats: Oracle, SQL Server and other ODBC compliant databases, Excel, XML, HTML, Word documents and text files.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18777

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• External Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.3: External Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.4: Import and Export Options

Learning Objectives

- Differentiate among import and export options
- Import external data
- Export data

Access provides several options that support exchanging data with external sources.

- **Linking.** Using this option entails creating a permanent connection to the external source. The data stays in the source location. The location cannot be moved without modifying the link or else Access will not be able to find it.
- **Importing.** This method physically moves data from the outside source into the current Access database. The data is then converted to an Access data type, stored in an Access table, and remains in Access from that point on.
- **Exporting.** Exporting copies data from an Access table into either a text file or some other format that is readable by the destination application.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18778

Importing External Data

Remember that importing external data makes a copy of the data within Access and does not affect the data in the external source. After the import, no connection remains between the current database and the external source.

One of the keys to a viable business system is the ease in which it can work with other applications and data sources. In this regard, Access is unmatched.

Access provides two groups of data sources as seen in the example below: "Import & Link" and "Export." Within "Import & Link" we have "New Data Source," "Saved Imports," and "Linked Table Manager."

| File | Home | Create | External Data | | Database Tools | | Help | Q | Tell me what y | |
|----------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|---------------|------------------|----------------|--------------|-------------|---------------|----------------|----------------------|
| New Data Source - | 🖳 Save R Linke | d Imports d Table Man | ager | Saved Exports | Excel | Text File | XML File | PDF or XPS | Email | Access Word Merge |
| | Import & | & Link | | | | | Ex | port | | |

Selecting "New Data Source" opens a drop-down which exposes 4 options: "From File," "From Database," "From Online Services," and "From Other Sources," as seen below.



| File | Home | Create | Ext | xternal Data | | Database Tools | | Help | 9 | Tell n | ne w | hat ye | |
|----------------------|---------------------|--------------------------|--------------|--------------|-----------------|----------------|---------------|-------------|---------------|------------------|----------|---------------------------------|-------------|
| New Data Source + | 🖳 Savec 🔞 Linkec | l Imports d Table Man | ager | Sa | aved I ports | X Excel | Text File | XML File | PDF or XPS | Email | Call Acc | ess rd Me re - | erge |
| | | | | | | | | E | xport | | | | |
| | From <u>F</u> ile | | > | Home | × | Invent | ory List | × | -= Order | r List 🛛 🖂 | | Custo | mer Lis |
| | From <u>D</u> ata | abase | > | | Su | ppl | ier l | _ist | A.44 F | | | | |
| | | | | tew Sup | plier | Collec | Data <u>v</u> | a E-mail | Add F | rom <u>O</u> uti | ook | _ mai | LIST |
| | From <u>O</u> nli | ne Services | > | ID 👻 | Cor | npany | | First N | lame 👻 | Last | Name | * | |
| | | | | 12 | Supplie | er 12 | | Caitlin | | Andre | ws | | cand |
| P. | | | \mathbf{x} | 11 | Supplie | er 11 | | Stan | | Bellis | | | sbelli |
| • | From Other Sources | 1 | 6 | Supplie | er 6 | | Maria | | Chan | | | mcha | |
| | | 1 | _ | 4 | C | | | | | Channe | | | and a large |

Choosing "From File" reveals "Excel," "HTML Document," "XML File," and "Text File" as data formats. "From Database" reveals 4 database formats "Access," "From SQL Server," "From Azure Database," "dBase File." "From Online Services" represents "SharePoint List" and "Data Services" and "From Other Sources" yields "ODBC Database" and "Outlook Folder."

| File | Home | Create | Exte | rnal Data | ools | Help | Q | Tell me | e wł | nat yo | | |
|----------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|------|------------------|--------|--------------|-------------|---------------|----------------|----------------|----------|-----------------|
| New Data Source - | 🖳 Saved | d Imports d Table Man | ager | Saved Exports | Excel | Text File | XML File | PDF or XPS | 0 Email | Constant Acces | ss Me | rge |
| | From <u>F</u> ile | | > | | el | | Ex < | port Order | · List > | < 🗐 Cu | istor | ner List |
| | From <u>D</u> ata | abase | > | нті | ML Doc | ument | st | A 44 E | | | | |
| | From <u>O</u> nli | ne <mark>Services</mark> | > | | L File | | st Na | ame 🔹 | Last | t Name | - | candr |
| • | From Oth | er Sources | > | Tex | t File | | n ria | | Bellis Chan | | | sbellis mcha |

It is obvious that Access has rich capabilities by virtue of its many options in which to process external data.



Exporting Data

Exporting data from Access is a fairly straightforward operation. The "External Data" export group is shown below. As an example, to export the contents of the Supplier table in the current database as a .PDF file, select "PDF or XPS."



| nal Data | Data | base To | ools | Help | 9 | Tell me what you |
|------------------|-------|--------------|-------------|---------------|------------|--------------------------------------|
| Saved Exports | Excel | Text File | XML File | PDF or XPS | U Email | TACcess Sale Word Merge More - |
| | | | E | cport | | |

Access then asks for a destination for the .PDF file.

| Publish as PDF or | XPS | | | | | | | | | \times |
|--|-------------------|----------|---------------------|----------|---|--|-------------------|---------------------------------|-------|----------|
| $\leftarrow \rightarrow \land \uparrow$ |) > Th | is PC | Acer (C:) > Users > | bdani → | Documents | ~ | Ü | Search Documents | | P |
| Organize - Ne | w folde | er | | | | | | | | ? |
| Downloads Documents Pictures Lumen Acces Music Videos Microsoft Acces OneDrive This PC | * ^ * w ess | Na: | me | | D 11 12 | ate modified 1/8/2019 3:4 1/8/2019 3:4 | d 8 PM 2 PM | Type File folder PDF File | Size | 87 KB |
| File name: | Supp | lier Lis | t | | | | | | | ~ |
| Save as type: | PDF | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | C Op | en file | after publishing | Optimize | for: Stand online Minin (publi | lard (publish e and printin num size ishing online tions | ing g) :) | | | |
| ∧ Hide Folders | | | | | | Tools | - | Publish | Cance | el |

Since most devices have an application that displays .PDF files, the exported data is populated in .PDF format as the example below.

| | | | | Supplier List | | 11/ |
|-------|-------------|------------|-------------|-------------------------|----------------|-------------------------|
| ID | Company | First Name | Last Name | E-mail Address | Business Phone | Job Title |
| 12 | Supplier 12 | Caitlin | Andrews | candrews@supplier12.com | 866-222-7890 | Sales Director |
| 11 | Supplier 11 | Stan | Bellis | sbellis@supplier 11.com | 866-111-6789 | Marketing Manage |
| 6 | Supplier 6 | Maria | Chan | mchan@supplier6.com | 800-999-0987 | Marketing Assistan |
| 1 | Supplier 1 | Marcia | Chapman | mchapman@supplier1.com | 800-123-4567 | Customer Service |
| 8 | Supplier 8 | John | Goodenow | jgoodenow@supplier8.com | 866-321-8765 | Marketing Director |
| 10 | Supplier 10 | Luis | Jones | ljones@supplier10.com | 866-800-9999 | Inside Sales |
| 4 | Supplier 4 | Pasha | Khan | khanpash@supplier4.com | 800-765-9900 | Marketing Manage |
| 9 | Supplier 9 | Demitri | Koenig | dkoenig@supplier9.com | 800-413-7878 | Sales Manager |
| 5 | Supplier 5 | Amanda | Lee | leeamand@supplier5.com | 866-542-3388 | Sales Manager |
| 2 | Supplier 2 | Leticia | Merriwether | Imerri@supplier2.com | 800-222-5566 | Sales Manager |
| 7 | Supplier7 | David | Rittler | ritdavid@supplier7.com | 800-444-7654 | Marketing Manage |
| 3 | Supplier 3 | Mandy | Smith | msmith@supplier3.com | 800-900-6543 | Sales Representativ |
| Total | | 1 | .2 | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18780



Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Import and Export Options. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.4: Import and Export Options is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.5: Introduction to Queries

What you'll learn to do: Create and modify queries

Queries represent the most useful way we interact with a relational database. In this section, we will learn how to create basic and advanced queries in order to "ask questions" of the information stored in Access. Database queries can be as simple as "show me the top product line in XYZ territory this month" to as complex as "show me the lowest revenue stores in these five product lines in the top producing territories". In either case, without queries relational databases would not be very helpful in running the business.

14.5: Introduction to Queries is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.6: What Are Queries?

Learning Objectives

- Define queries in Microsoft Access
- Create a query

Having a database full of information is great, but it does not do the business any good if it cannot be used to make decisions. The ability to extract information from a database so that it is useful for decision-making starts with the "query." Simply speaking, a query is a question being asked of the data to inform the business.

A query of a database like Access gives you the ability to bring data together in a coherent manner, whether it resides in one or multiple tables. The query is the heart of "Business Intelligence" (BI) and the foundation of the Search. For example, a business may wish to know where the sales of its new product are occurring by zip code; or, who the top 5 suppliers to the business are.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18781

Create a Query

Access provides query capability in the form of wizards to help create the query. To create a query, select "Create" from the tool bar and then "Query Wizard." This will open the "New Query" window where you can choose among 4 wizards.



In our example, choose "Simple Query Wizard." This wizard gives the option of choosing the table and the field for the query.



| Simple Query Wizard | | | | |
|---|--------------------|--|--|----------------|
| | Which You c | n fields do you wa an choose from m | nt in your query? Nore than one table o | or query. |
| Tables/Queries | | × | | |
| <u>A</u> vailable Fields: | | Selected Fields | : | _ |
| ID Company Last Name First Name E-mail Address Job Title | ^ > > | | | |
| Business Phone Home Phone | ~ | | | |
| | Cancel | < <u>B</u> ack | <u>N</u> ext > | <u>F</u> inish |

Let's say that we are interested in knowing the status of Purchase Orders. Since this data is distributed across 2 tables, a query is the ideal way to gather this information. For this query we will need to select the "Purchase Order" table and several fields contained there as the example below.

| Simple Query Wizard | | | | |
|--|--------------------|--|--------------------------------------|-----------|
| | Which f You can | ields do you want 1 choose from mor | in your query? e than one table (| or query. |
| Tables/Queries | | | | |
| Table: Purchase Orders | | \checkmark | | |
| <u>Available Fields:</u> | | Selected Fields: | | |
| Shipping Fee Taxes Payment Date Payment Amount Payment Method Notes Approved By Approved Date | ^ >> < < | Purchase Order I Supplier ID Status ID Submitted By | D | |
| | Cancel | < <u>B</u> ack | <u>N</u> ext > | Einish |

We then need to add data from the "Purchase Orders Status" table, so we select that and the "Status" field as in the example below.



| Simple Query Wizard | |
|------------------------------|--|
| | Which fields do you want in your query? You can choose from more than one table or query. |
| Tables/Queries | |
| Table: Purchase Order Status | ~ |
| <u>A</u> vailable Fields: | Selected Fields: |
| Status ID | Purchase Order ID Supplier ID Status ID Submitted By Status |
| Car | ncel < Back Next > Finish |

The completed query brings together the information we requested in datasheet format and from here can be sorted, edited, resized or otherwise revised.

| Purchase Order ID 🔹 | Supplier ID - | Status ID 🔫 | Submitted By - | Status | - |
|---------------------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|-----------|---|
| 146 | Supplier 2 | Submitted | Andrew Cencini | Submitted | |
| 147 | Supplier7 | Submitted | Andrew Cencini | Submitted | |
| 148 | Supplier 5 | Submitted | Andrew Cencini | Submitted | |
| 90 | Supplier 1 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 91 | Supplier 3 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 92 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 93 | Supplier 5 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 94 | Supplier 6 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 95 | Supplier 4 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 96 | Supplier 1 | Approved | Steven Thorpe | Approved | |
| 97 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Robert Zare | Approved | |
| 98 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Mariya Sergienk | Approved | |
| 99 | Supplier 1 | Approved | Jan Kotas | Approved | |
| 100 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Anne Hellung-La | Approved | |
| 101 | Supplier 1 | Approved | Andrew Cencini | Approved | |
| 102 | Supplier 1 | Approved | Nancy Freehafe | Approved | |
| 103 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Nancy Freehafe | Approved | |
| 104 | Supplier 2 | Approved | Nancy Freehafe | Approved | |
| | | | | | |

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18782

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• What Are Queries?. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.6: What Are Queries? is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.7: Adding Criteria to a Query

Learning Outcomes

• Add criteria to a query

More complex queries can be created in Access by using the "Database Designer." Database Designer allows criteria to be added to a query to include or exclude data elements to make queries more meaningful. Let's say we want to develop a list of employees but limit the list to employees who are Sales Representatives.

Select "Database Designer" from the tool bar and choose the "Employees" table from the list.

Go to the "Criteria" field and enter "= Sales Representatives." Access automatically adds the parenthesis to your entry.

| | * | <u> </u> | | | | |
|-------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------|-----------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------------|
| | TID. | | | | | |
| | Company | | | | | |
| | Last Name | | | | | |
| | First Name | | | | | |
| | E-mail Address | v | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Field: | Job Title | Last Name | First Name | Rusiness Phone | City | State/Province |
| Field: | Job Title | Last Name | First Name | Business Phone | City | State/Province |
| Field: . | Job Title | Last Name | First Name | Business Phone | City | State/Province |
| Field: , Table: { Sort: | Job Title Employees | Last Name Employees | First Name | Business Phone Employees | City Employees | State/Province Employees |

Run the query and Access returns only the list of employees who have that title.

| Job Title | • | Last Name 📼 | First Name 👻 | Business Pho - | City | - State/Provinc - |
|----------------------|---|----------------|--------------|----------------|----------|-------------------|
| Sales Representative | е | Freehafer | Nancy | (123)555-0100 | Seattle | WA |
| Sales Representative | е | Kotas | Jan | (123)555-0100 | Redmond | WA |
| Sales Representative | е | Sergienko | Mariya | (123)555-0100 | Kirkland | WA |
| Sales Representative | е | Neipper | Michael | (123)555-0100 | Redmond | WA |
| Sales Representative | е | Zare | Robert | (123)555-0100 | Seattle | WA |
| Sales Representative | e | Hellung-Larsen | Anne | (123)555-0100 | Seattle | WA |
| | | | | | | |

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18783

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Adding Criteria to a Query. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.7: Adding Criteria to a Query is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.8: Saving Queries

Learning Outcomes

Save queries

To save a query, go to the toolbar and select "File" – Save As" and enter a name for the query to be saved.

| Image: Construction of the second | lovee Li |
|---|----------|
| Employees Employee Sales Reps | |
| * • ID • Company • Last Name • First Name • E-mail Address • | |
| | |
| Field: Job Title Last Name First Name Business Phone City State/Province | |
| Table: Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees | |
| Sort: Image: Control of the second | |

Once the query has been saved, the query itself has been saved—not just the results. The query can now always be refreshed with updated data in the future.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18784

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Saving Queries. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.8: Saving Queries is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.9: Introduction to Forms and Reports

What you'll learn to do: Forms and Reports

Forms and reports are the primary method most business users use to interact with a relational database—forms for getting data in and reports for presenting data out. In this section, you will learn how to create basic forms using built-in Access tools. We will then learn how to create reports using Access wizards for users to consume data.

14.9: Introduction to Forms and Reports is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.10: Understanding Forms

Learning Outcomes

• Define forms in Microsoft Access

Access gives us a window into our database data through an object called a form. Forms can be used to create user interfaces to either enter data or to manipulate data. A " bound" form is a form that is tied directly to a table or query and can serve as a user interface into that data source. An "unbound" form does not directly connect to a data source, but gives the user controls that can be used to run the database application.

Forms are important tools for usability of a database application. Users do not have to be familiar with the internal structure of the database but instead can take advantage of a form to ensure usability—even that they are entering information correctly.

| | 5 లి ⊽ | | Form Layout Tools | Database2 : Database- C:\Users\bo | lani\Documents\Databa | e2.acc Bob Dani |
|-------|------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| File | Home Create | External Data Database Tools Help | Design Arrange Format | ho Tell me what you want | to do | |
| Viev | Themes A Fonts - | 🔓 ab) Aa 🚥 🗋 🌐 | | Insert | Logo Title Cote and Time | Add Existing Property Fields Sheet |
| View | s Themes | | Controls | | Header / Footer | Tools |
| ** | Home X Purch | iase Orders 🗙 🧱 Table1 🗙 🛄 Table2 | X Supplier List X Supplier | er List1 × | | |
| | 📃 📃 Suppl | ier List | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | U | 12 | | | | |
| | Company | Supplier 12 | | | | |
| | Last Name | Andrews | | | | |
| e | First Name | Caitlin | | | | |
| n Par | E-mail Address | candrews@supplier12.com | | | | |
| atio | Job Title | Sales Director | | | | |
| avig | Business Phone | 866-222-7890 | | | | |
| Z | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18785

Learn More

For detailed, step-by-step instructions Microsoft Access Help is an excellent resource and can be found by following this link: MS Access Help: Understanding Forms

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Understanding Forms. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.10: Understanding Forms is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.11: Creating Basic Forms

Learning Outcomes

Create basic forms

Access makes it relatively easy to create a basic form.

- 1. Select the table or query containing the data you are interested in seeing on your form in the Navigation pane.
- 2. Go to the **Create** tab, and the **Forms** group and select **Form**.

Access will create a basic form and open it in Layout view. You should be able to see the data you selected. In Layout view, you have some limited capabilities to make design changes to the form.

In addition to creating a basic form, Access will check to see if there are one-to-many relationships existing between the table you selected to create the form and any other tables in the database. If so, it will add a datasheet based on the related table or query to your basic form. For example, if you create a basic form based on the Customers table, and there is a one-to-many relationship with the Orders table, Access will display all of the records in the Orders table that relate to the Customers table in Datasheet view.

| ₽ 5.6. Δ | Form Design Tools | Database2 : Database- C:\Users\bdani\Documents\Database2.acc |
|--|--|---|
| File Home Create External Data Database Tools Help | Design Arrange Forma | ρ Tell me what you want to do |
| Image: Auto_Header0 Image: Calibri Light (Header) Image: Im | Formatting Second Secon | Dund Alternate e → Row Color |
| Selection Font | Number | Background Control Formatting |
| » 📑 Home 🗙 🏢 Purchase Orders 🗙 🏢 Table2 🗙 📑 Supplier Li | ist 🗙 🚍 Supplier List1 🗙 | |
| ······································ | 4 * * * 1 * * * 5 * * * 1 * * | . 6 |
| Form Header | | |
| Supplier List | | |
| ✓ Detail | | |
| - - - - - - | | |
| | | |
| - Company Company | na kompa kompa kompa kompa kompa | |
| 1 1 ast Name I ast Name | | |
| Edit Vanie | | |
| og - E-mail Address E-mail Address | | |
| 2 | | ···· |
| Job Title Job Title | | |
| - Business Phone Business Phone | | |
| - Form Footer | | |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18786

Learn More

For detailed, step-by-step instructions Microsoft Access Help is an excellent resource and can be found by following this link: MS Access Help: Creating Forms

14.11: Creating Basic Forms is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.12: Form Controls and Views

Learning Objectives

Compare different form controls and views

There are two views in Access that can be used to modify forms and controls: Layout view and Design view.

Layout View

Using Layout view is the most comprehensive way to make changes to your form. Since the form is actually live in Layout view, you can see the data as it will look when the form is being used. When you make changes that will affect the appearance or usability of the form, you will see those design changes reflected on the data.

Although Layout view supports most design changes, there are a few outside its purview.

Design View

Access will inform you when you need to go to Design view to make certain changes. Design view is better for detailed aspects of the structure of the form. In Design view, you see the Header, Detail, and Footer areas of the form. Unlike Layout view, the form is not live in Design view, so you cannot see how the data is affected by your changes. But there are tasks that can be better performed in Design view such as:

- Adding the bound object frame, page break, and chart controls.
- Editing text box control sources.
- Resizing form sections.
- Changing certain form properties.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18787

Try It

For detailed, step-by-step instructions Microsoft Access Help is an excellent resource and can be found by following this link: MS Access Help: Form Controls

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Form Controls and Views. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.12: Form Controls and Views is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.13: Presenting Data on Reports

Learning Outcomes

• Present data on reports

The best way to think of forms and reports is this: forms are for input and reports for output. Reports are the primary way that users consume information. Luckily, Access wizards guide us through the process of designing reports.

In the example below, we are creating a report on inventory.

Report Wizard Which fields do you want on your report? You can choose from more than one table or query. Tables/Queries Query: Inventory \sim Available Fields: Selected Fields: Product ID > Product Name Product Code >> Qty Purchased Qty Sold < Qty On Hold Qty On Hand << Qty Available . 0- 0-d-Cancel Next > Finish

Select the fields that need to be in the report

| | Which You ca | fields do you want on your | r report? one table or qu | ery. |
|--|-----------------|--|------------------------------|---------------|
| Tables/Queries Query: Inventory | | ~ | | |
| <u>A</u> vailable Fields: | | Selected Fields: | | |
| Product Name Product Code Qty Sold Qty On Hold Qty On Back Order Target Level | >>> | Qty Purchased Qty On Hand Qty Available Qty On Order Reorder Level Qty Below Target Level | ^ | |
| | << | Current Level Qty To Reorder | ~ | |
| | Cancel | < <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> e | ext > | <u>F</u> inis |

The wizard provides several options for the display of the information, such as sorting.





| - | You can sort reco ascending or des | ords by up to four fields, cending order. | , in either |
|---|---------------------------------------|--|-------------|
| | 1 Product ID | \sim | Ascending |
| | 2 | ~ | Ascending |
| | 3 | ~ | Ascending |
| - | 4 | ~ | Ascending |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Here is the quick Inventory report for sake of example. The report has been sorted according to Product ID as was specified in the wizard.

| Inventory | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|-------|-----------|-------------|------------|------------|-------------------|-----------------|----------------|
| oduct ID Qty Purc | hased | On Hand v | vailable Qt | y On Order | er Level 3 | elow Target Level | Current Level 3 | Qty To Reorder |
| 1 | 40 | 25 | 0 | 41 | 10 | -1 | 41 | 0 |
| 3 | 100 | 50 | 50 | 50 | 25 | 0 | 100 | 0 |
| 4 | 40 | 0 | 0 | 40 | 10 | 0 | 40 | 0 |
| 5 | 40 | 15 | 15 | 0 | 10 | 25 | 15 | 25 |
| 6 | 100 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 25 | 90 | 10 | 90 |
| 7 | 40 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 40 | 0 | 40 |
| 8 | 65 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 40 | 0 | 40 |
| 14 | 40 | 40 | 40 | 0 | 10 | 0 | 40 | 0 |
| 17 | 40 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 40 | 0 | 40 |

There is a rich set of formatting options for reports. There is also a robust "Print Preview" capability where professional-looking touches can be added to the appearance of the report.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18788

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Presenting Data on Reports. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.13: Presenting Data on Reports is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.14: Introduction to Analyzing Data

What you'll learn to do: Analyze data

In this section we will explore a variety of topics that support data analysis. First, data must be "cleaned" in order to be useful. This process is known as data transformation and Access has several features that aid in preparing data for analysis purposes. Next, we will explore the rich set of calculations built-in to Access to be used for data analysis. Finally, we will touch on some more complex topics: conditional analysis and subqueries—very powerful tools of relational databases to get the most of data analysis.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Analyzing Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.14: Introduction to Analyzing Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.15: Transforming Data

Learning Outcomes

• Transform data

Transforming data is the process by which data is prepared for use in a database. One of the banes of a database administrator's existence is the need to "clean" data. Often, new data is available to be imported into a database but it is flawed in ways that make it unusable. One example would be a dataset that includes duplicate data. Other examples of data that requires cleaning or transformation are datasets with blank fields and concatenated strings.

Access provides some automated means of handling data transformation for duplicate records. If a dataset is suspected of containing duplicates, select the "Create" command from the toolbar and click "Query Wizard" and select "Find Duplicates Query Wizard," identify the dataset in question and follow the instructions. A datasheet view will be created that shows records that appear to be duplicates.



PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18789

Dealing with impurities in datasets is a job not just for one application like MS Access. IT professionals in all disciplines are confronted with the need for some sort of data "scrubbing" or another, and it is safe to say that there are no bullet-proof, automated means of doing so. Using Access queries, views, and its programming language, does provide a means of identifying and correcting faulty datasets.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Transforming Data. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.15: Transforming Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.16: Understanding Calculations

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss the use of calculations in Microsoft Access

Access has a rich set of calculations, functions, and expressions to assist in data analysis.

| Expression Builder | | | | |
|---|---|--|---|--|
| calculated query field: [field1] + [field2] and [fiel | d1] < | < 5) | | |
| | | | OK Cancel | |
| | | | << Less | |
| Arrays Conversion Database Date/Time Domain Aggregate Error Handling Financial General Inspection | ^ | AccessError Asc AscW Atn Avg BuildCriteria CBool CByte CCur CDate | | |
| | calculated query field: [field1] + [field2] and [field] Expression Categories CALL> Arrays Conversion Database Date/Time Domain Aggregate Error Handling Financial General Inspection Math | calculated query field: [field1] + [field2] and [field1] < Expression Categories | calculated query field: [field1] + [field2] and [field1] < 5) | |

Abs(number)

Returns a value of the same type that is passed to it specifying the absolute value of a number.

This library of calculations is easily opened and is fairly intuitive to use. In the example below, if the user is interested in using the DateDiff function, Access lists the necessary arguments for that function in the top window.







>, <<date1>>, <<date2>>, <<firstdayofweek>>, <<firstweekofyear>>)" width="695" height="620">

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18790

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Understanding Calculations. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.16: Understanding Calculations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.17: Using Conditional Analysis

Learning Outcomes

• Use conditional analysis

In our discussion so far, getting information from Access databases has been a matter of creating queries, adding criteria and calculations, saving the queries, and then formatting the data into reports that can be run over and over as needed. Conditional Analysis comes into play when the basis of the analysis is in a state of flux or may otherwise need to change. Using parameter queries in Access is a solid approach to deal with this condition.

In the example below, a query is being prepared to display data regarding Purchase Order shipped and invoice dates. A hard-coded date is a criteria for the query.



But what if users from different departments need the flexibility to fetch this information from different time periods? Notice how this draft query has been changed to a conditional query by bracketing user instructions in the example below.







Now when the query is run, this dialog box would open and display the bracketed text to give the user the opportunity to enter the desired date of the analysis.

| Enter Parameter Value | 8 X |
|-----------------------|--------|
| Enter System Period | |
| | |
| ОК | Cancel |

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18791

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Using Conditional Analysis. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.17: Using Conditional Analysis is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.18: Using Subqueries

Learning Outcomes

• Use subqueries

A subquery is a query that is contained or nested within another query. The idea is to use the outcome of one query within the execution of another query. It is analogous to asking a question of the results you have after answering another question, i.e., a multi-part question. A plain English example of a subquery would be "show me all employees who have been with the company more than ten years and then show me those who live in the state of Michigan."

The actual use of a subquery requires a basic knowledge of SQL (Structured Query Language). In essence, SQL is programming code and quite technical. *Structured Query Language* (SQL) is a database language designed for managing data held in a relational database management system. SQL was initially developed by IBM in the early 1970s (Date 1986). The initial version, called *SEQUEL* (Structured English Query Language), was designed to manipulate and retrieve data stored in IBM's quasi-relational database management system, System R. Then in the late 1970s, Relational Software Inc., which is now Oracle Corporation, introduced the first commercially available implementation of SQL, Oracle V2 for VAX computers.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18792

Many of the currently available relational DBMSs, such as Oracle Database, Microsoft SQL Server, MySQL, IBM DB2, IBM Informix and Microsoft Access, use SQL. Here is an example of the SQL language being used to create a database table:

| USE SW | |
|-----------------|---|
| CREATE TABLE PR | DJECT |
| (| |
| ProjectID | Int NOT NULL IDENTITY (1000,100), |
| ProjectName | Char(50) NOT NULL, |
| Department | Char(35) NOT NULL, |
| MaxHours | Numeric(8,2) NOT NULL DEFAULT 100, |
| StartDate | DateTime NULL, |
| EndDate | DateTime NULL, |
| CONSTRAINT | ASSIGNMENT_PK PRIMARY KEY(ProjectID) |
|); | |
| | USE SW CREATE TABLE PRO (ProjectID ProjectName Department MaxHours StartDate EndDate CONSTRAINT); |

Here's an example of a subquery In Access using the Query Wizard in Design View (the subquery is written in SQL at the bottom of the third column):

| | Dim_Transac | tions | |
|-----------------|---|------------------|---|
| | * Y TransactionID PONumber CustomerID OrderDate ShipDate ProductID OrderQty UnitFriceDisco LineTotal | iunt v | |
| Field: | CustomerID | LineTotal | CustomerID |
| Table: | Dim_Transactions | Dim_Transactions | Dim_Transactions |
| Total: Sort: | Group By | Sum | Where |
| Show: | | | |
| Criteria: | | | In (SELECT [CustomerID] FROM [Dim_Customers] WHERE [State] = "CA" |

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Practice Question. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





CC licensed content, Shared previously

• SQL Structured Query Language. **Authored by**: Adrienne Watt and Nelson Eng. **Provided by**: BCcampus. **Located at**: https://opentextbc.ca/dbdesign01/chapter/sql-structured-query-language/. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

14.18: Using Subqueries is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



14.19: Understanding Domain Aggregation

Learning Outcomes

• Discuss domain aggregation

There are twelve aggregate functions that extract and group data from a larger data set.

- DSum
- DAvg
- DCount
- DLookup
- DMin and DMax
- DFirst and DLast
- DStDev
- DStDevP
- DVar
- DvarP

These functions all have the same structure:

FunctionName(" [Field Name] "," [Dataset Name] ", "[Criteria] ")

FunctionName is the name of the domain aggregation function being invoked; **Field Name** refers to the field containing the data in question; **DataSet Name** refers to the table in play; and, **Criteria** limits the inclusion of data per the scope necessary.

These functions can provide everything from a total of the values listed to an average of those values to the standard deviation of the values listed. The Help menu has detailed information about the functions.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18793

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Understanding Domain Aggregation. Authored by: Robert Danielson. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

14.19: Understanding Domain Aggregation is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.20: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills

In this section we explored some of the advanced features of MS Access. First, we learned about external data and several methods with which we could use the capabilities of Access to utilize it. We discovered multiple methods to both import and export data from the Access database.

Then we explored the all-important concept of the query—how to create, modify, save, and print using Access's tools and wizards. Following the discussion of the query, we moved on to forms and reports. We saw the robust capabilities of Access to create forms using multiple views and tools. Just as important, we explored Access's capabilities to create reports using wizards to present data in the most effective fashion. Finally, we discussed how Access could assist in the analyzing of data using powerful, built-in functions and calculations.

Databases are the backbone of technology applications today. From social media, banking, cloud storage solutions, fantasy sport apps, and online gaming, databases are indispensable. Even if we are not dealing with high-profile applications, most businesses today could not run without a database system keeping track of inventory, sales, employees or other mission-critical information.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Putting it Together: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills. **Authored by**: Robert Danielson. **Provided by**: Lumen Learning. **License**: *CC BY*: *Attribution*

14.20: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.




14.21: Assignment- Create Queries for Access Database

In this assignment you'll import and existing database of past orders from a bakery and use the skills you have learned in this module to create a query in the data table.

To complete this assignment, download the Excel file here.^[1] Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

- 1. Open a new Access database and save the new Module 14 assignment file to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_QueryDB.accdb, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 2. **Import External Data:** With the Access new database open import the Excel data file into Access.



3. **Import Wizard:** Set up the imported data into a new table, make sure the box with first row with column heading is checked and let Access add the primary key, and name the table.





| 📮 🕤 · ♂ · ⊽ QueryDB : Da | atabase- C:\Users\Pendleton\Desktop\Lu | um Table Too | | | Sign in | | × |
|--------------------------|--|---------------------|----------------------|--------------------|---------|-----|----------|
| File Home Create Ext | ernal Data Database Tools | Help Fields T | able 🔎 Tell me wi | hat you want to do | | | |
| Saved Imports | Saved Excel Text XML PDF Exports File File or XPS | Email S More * | erge | | | | |
| Import & Link | Export | | | | | | ~ |
| All Access Obje ⊙ « | OrdersMenuItems × | Droducts Tak - Sak | os UnitBr – Quantity | - Click to Add - | | | |
| Search | | Products fat + Sale | Dozon 1 | | | | Ĥ |
| Tables * | Pastries | Character Chir Cire | e Dozen I | | | | |
| OrdersMenuItems | 2 Cookies | Chocolate Chip Sin | gie Z | | | | |
| | 3 Cupcakes | Caramer Woon: Sing | gie I | | | | |
| - | 4 Cakes | Cheesecake Sing | gie Z | | | | |
| - | 5 COOKIES | Butterscotch Sin | gie 3 | | | | |
| - | 6 COOKIES | Chocolate Chip Hai | r-Dozen 1 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 7 Pastries | Mango Mousse Sing | gie 1 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 8 COOKIES | Fudge Brownie Sing | gie 1 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 9 Cookies | Ginger Shortbr Hal | f-Dozen 1 | | | | _ |
| - | 10 Pastries | Almond Croiss: One | e Dozen 2 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 11 Pastries | Chocolate Stray One | e Dozen 4 | | | | _ |
| - | 12 Pastries | Rasberry Chocc One | e Dozen 2 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 13 Cupcakes | Caramel Mocha One | e Dozen 2 | | | | _ |
| - | 14 Pastries | Key Lime Tartle One | e Dozen 2 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 15 Pastries | Fruit Tartlette One | e Dozen 2 | | | | _ |
| - | 16 Cakes | Cheesecake Sin | gle 3 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 17 Cupcakes | Pineapple Cocc One | e Dozen 2 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 18 Cakes | German Choco Sin | gle 1 | | | | - 1 |
| - | 19 Cakes | Cheesecake Sin | gle 1 | | | | - 1 |
| | 20 Cakes | Black Walnut Sing | gle 1 | | | | _ |
| | 21 Cookies | Fudge Brownie One | e Dozen 1 | | | | _ |
| | 22 Cookies | Butter Pecan One | e Dozen 1 | | | | |
| | 23 Cookies | Oatmeal Raisin One | e Dozen 1 | | | | |
| | 24 Cakes | Cookies n' Crea Sin | gle 1 | | | | |
| | 25 Pastries | Almond Croiss: Sin | gle 1 | | | | |
| | 26 Pastries | Crème Brulee Sin | gle 1 | | | | T |
| Datasheet View | Kecola: 14 4 1 01 33 5 51 5% | No Filter Search | | | Num I | ock | 2 |

4. **Create a Query:** Use the Query Wizard and created a query that is a simple query and uses the 'Product TableProduct Name' and the 'Quantity' sections of the table.



| ਜ਼ 5ਾ ∂ਾ ⊽ (| QueryDB : Database- C:\Us | sers\Pendleton\Desktop\Lum | Table Tools | | | Sign in | - 🗆 | × |
|-----------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|--|-------------|-----------------------------|---------------|----------------|-----|
| File Home Crea | te External Data | Database Tools Hel | o Fields Table | ,О Tell | me what you war | nt to do | | |
| Application Parts * Desi | le SharePoint gn Lists v Wizard | Query Form Form E Design Design | Blank More Forms • | Report Repo | ort Blank 🗐 Lab | oort Wizard | Macro 😤 | |
| Templates Ta | bles Que | eries | Forms | | Reports | IM | acros & Code | ~ |
| All Access Obje. Search Tables | | Product Types Pastries | Products TableProd Brownies | uct Name 🕞 | Sales UnitPr 🝷 One Dozen | Quantity 1 | - Click to Add | ¥ A |
| OrdersMenuItems | Simple Ouery Wizard | | | | Single | 2 | | |
| | | 1 Capitalitati | Caracter States of the | | Single | 1 | | |
| | | Which fields do you | want in your query? | | Single | 2 | | |
| | | You can choose from | | Half-Dozen | 1 | | | |
| | | | | | Single | 1 | | - 1 |
| | Tables/Queries | | | | Single | 1 | | |
| | Table: OrdersMenuItems | - | | | Half-Dozen | 1 | | |
| | Available Eielder | Solocted Field | dei | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | Available Fields: | Selected Field | us: | | One Dozen | 4 | | |
| | ID Product Types | Products Ta Ouantity | bleProduct Name | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | Sales UnitProduct Name | >> | | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | | | | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | | < | | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | | << | | | Single | 3 | | |
| | | | | | One Dozen | 2 | | |
| | | | | | Single | 1 | | |
| | | Cancel < Back | <u>N</u> ext > <u>F</u> i | nish | Single | 1 | | |
| | | | | | Single | 1 | | |
| | | 21 Cookies | Fudge Brownie | _ | One Dozen | 1 | | |
| | | 22 Cookies | Butter Pecan | | One Dozen | 1 | | |
| | | 23 Cookies | Oatmeal Raisin | | One Dozen | 1 | | |
| | Record: 14 4 | 6 of 99 🕨 🖬 🜬 🍢 No | Filter Search | | | | | |
| Simple Query Wizard | | | | | | | Num Lock | |

5. Resize Columns of Query: Resize the first column to be able to read the names of all the products.

| File Home Create External Data Database Tools Help Tell me what you want to do Application Parts Table Tables | 🖬 S⊤ 🗟 ⊤ ⊽ QueryDB: | Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\Desktop\Lumen 2019\ | Assignments & Discussions\Module 14\QueryDB.ac | Sign in 🚽 🗆 🗙 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|----------------|---|---------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------------|--|---|----------|----------------------------|------------------------------|--|---|--------|----------|---|--|---|--|----------------|---|--|
| Application Table Table Table Tables Concerts Concert | File Home Create E | external Data Database Tools Help | \wp Tell me what you want to do | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Templates Tables Queries Forms Reports Macros & Code All Access Obje O « OrdersMenuttems Query × Products TableProduct Name Quantity - Tables a I Chocolate Chip 2 OrdersMenuttems Queries Chocolate Chip 2 OrdersMenuttems Query Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 1 Chocolate Chip 3 1 OrdersMenuttems Query Chocolate Chip 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 All Mond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fruid ge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 All Mond Chocolate Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Orders Menuteel Raisin 1 Racker H 1 of 99 * H * | Application Parts * Design List | Point Query Query Wizard Design Form € | Form Wizard Image: Constraint of the second secon | t Wizard Macro | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| All Access Obje © < <tr> OrdersMenuItems × © ordersMenuItems v V Brownes 1 0 Tables 1 0 OrdersMenuItems Query Chocolate Chip 2 OrdersMenuItems Query Chocolate Chip 1 OrdersMenuItems Query 0 1 OrdersMenuItems Query 1 0 OrdersMenuItems Query 1 0 OrdersMenuItems Query 1 0 Products Table 1 0 OrdersMenuItems Query 1 0 Products MenuItems Query 1 0 Almond Croissant 2 0 Chocolate Tartlette 2 0 Chocolate Tartlette 2 0 Chocolate Chip 1 0 Almond Croissant 2 0 0 Chocolate Tartlette 2 0 0 Chocolate Chip 1 0 0 Pineapple Coconut 2 0 0 German Chocolate <t< td=""><td>Templates Tables</td><td>Queries Forms</td><td>Reports</td><td>Macros & Code</td></t<></tr> <tr><td>Beach Tables Chocolate Chip Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Chocolate Chip Chocolate Chip Cheesecake Butterscotch Ginger Shortbread Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotlet Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Volate Starter Starter Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan <td>All Access Obie 👁 «</td><td>🔠 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 📑 OrdersMenuItems</td><td>s Query $imes$</td><td></td></td></tr> <tr><td>Chocolate Chip 2 Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * Butterscotch 3 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Pineapple Coconut 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 <t< td=""><td>Search 0</td><td>Products TableProduct Name</td><td> Quantity </td><td></td></t<></td></tr> <tr><td>Tables A Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Cheesecake 2 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1<td>Tables</td><td>Brownies</td><td>1</td><td></td></td></tr> <tr><td>Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * OrdersMenultems Query * Butterscotch 3 Ginger Shortbread 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rabberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 + H + No Filter</td></tr> | Templates Tables | Queries Forms | Reports | Macros & Code | Beach Tables Chocolate Chip Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Chocolate Chip Chocolate Chip Cheesecake Butterscotch Ginger Shortbread Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotlet Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Volate Starter Starter Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan <td>All Access Obie 👁 «</td> <td>🔠 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 📑 OrdersMenuItems</td> <td>s Query $imes$</td> <td></td> | All Access Obie 👁 « | 🔠 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 📑 OrdersMenuItems | s Query $	imes$ | | Chocolate Chip 2 Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * Butterscotch 3 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Pineapple Coconut 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 <t< td=""><td>Search 0</td><td>Products TableProduct Name</td><td> Quantity </td><td></td></t<> | Search 0 | Products TableProduct Name | Quantity | | Tables A Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Cheesecake 2 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 <td>Tables</td> <td>Brownies</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> | Tables | Brownies | 1 | | Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * OrdersMenultems Query * Butterscotch 3 Ginger Shortbread 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rabberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 + H + No Filter | | Chocolate Chip | 2 | |
| Templates Tables | Queries Forms | Reports | Macros & Code | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Beach Tables Chocolate Chip Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Chocolate Chip Chocolate Chip Cheesecake Butterscotch Ginger Shortbread Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotch Almond Croissant Caramel Mocha Latte Caramel Mocha Latte Chocolate Tartlette Caramel Mocha Latte Cheesecake Butterscotlet Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butterscotlet Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Volate Starter Starter Cheesecake Butter Pecan Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan Cheesecake Butter Pecan <td>All Access Obie 👁 «</td> <td>🔠 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 📑 OrdersMenuItems</td> <td>s Query $imes$</td> <td></td> | All Access Obie 👁 « | 🔠 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 📑 OrdersMenuItems | s Query $	imes$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Chocolate Chip 2 Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * Butterscotch 3 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Pineapple Coconut 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 <t< td=""><td>Search 0</td><td>Products TableProduct Name</td><td> Quantity </td><td></td></t<> | Search 0 | Products TableProduct Name | Quantity | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tables A Chocolate Chip 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Cheesecake 2 Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 Butter Pecan 1 <td>Tables</td> <td>Brownies</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> | Tables | Brownies | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Caramel Mocha Latte 1 Queries * OrdersMenultems Query * Butterscotch 3 Ginger Shortbread 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rabberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Chesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 + H + No Filter | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Queres × Cheesecake 2 Butterscotch 3 Checolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Almond Croissant 2 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 8asberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Euge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Othereal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 ▶ H № Ken Filter Search | | Caramel Mocha Latte | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Butterscotch 3 Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Cramel Mocha Latte 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: M 4 1 of 99 P M PR K No Filter | Queries * | Cheesecake | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Chocolate Chip 1 Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> Ken Filter | Galactic Contension of Contens | Butterscotch | 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Mango Mousse Cup 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> Ken Filter | | Chocolate Chip | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Fudge Brownie 1 Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + M + M K No Filter | | Mango Mousse Cup | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Ginger Shortbread 1 Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> Ken Filter | | Fudge Brownie | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Almond Croissant 2 Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 + H +> Ken Filter Search | | Ginger Shortbread | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Chocolate Strawberries 4 Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> K No Filter | | Almond Croissant | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette 2 Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> K No Filter | | Chocolate Strawberries | 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Caramel Mocha Latte 2 Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 + H +> Kerch | | Rasberry Chocolate Tartlette | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Key Lime Tartlette 2 Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H IN Search 1 | | Caramel Mocha Latte | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Fruit Tartlette 2 Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H IN | | Key Lime Tartlette | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cheesecake 3 Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H H H M Konstitute | | Fruit Tartlette | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Pineapple Coconut 2 German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H H M K Search | | Cheesecake | 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| German Chocolate 1 Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H < 1 of 99 + H ++ To Filter | | Pineapple Coconut | 2 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cheesecake 1 Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 1 of 99 H 1 of 99 | | German Chocolate | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Black Walnut 1 Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 1 of 99 H No Filter | | Cheesecake | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Fudge Brownie 1 Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 1 of 99 H No Filter | | Black Walnut | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Butter Pecan 1 Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H H K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K | | Fudge Brownie | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Oatmeal Raisin 1 Record: H 4 1 of 99 H H M K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K K | | Butter Pecan | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Record: 14 4 1 of 99 + H H A K No Filter Search | | Oatmeal Raisin | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Record: 14 4 1 of 99 🕨 🕨 🐆 No Filter | Search | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$



6. Query Design: Now create a second query, but this time from when you run the wizard button choose to 'Modify the query



7. Add New Criteria: Now you wish just to see the number of orders that were chocolate chip cookies. Enter that in the criteria field.





| 🖬 🕤 - ♂ - ⊽ QueryDB: | Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\Des | ktop\Lum Query T | ools | | Sign in 🛛 — | o x |
|---|---|---------------------------------|--------------------|--|-------------|-----------|
| File Home Create E | xternal Data Database Tool | s Help <mark>Desig</mark> | n 🔎 Tell m | ne what you want to | o do | |
| View Run Results | ppend ↓ Update ① Union ☐ Crosstab ⊕ Pass-Throu ↓ Delete ☆ Data Defin Query Type | ugh Add Tables № B | uilder Query Setup | rt Columns te Columns ırn: All 🗸 | Totals | ers Sheet |
| All Access Obje ⊙ « | 🔲 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 🗊 | OrdersMenuItems Quer | y 🗙 📑 OrdersMer | nuItems Query 1 $	imes$ | | |
| Search P Tables * OrdersMenultems Queries * OrdersMenultems Query OrdersMenultems Query1 | OrdersMenuitems * ■ Product Types Products TableProu Sales UnitProduct Quantity | dı. Ni | | | | |
| | • | | | | | Þ |
| | Field: [Products TableProd Table: OrdersMenuItems Sort: Show: Criteria: or: 4 | u [Quantity] OrdersMenuItems | | | | |



8. Run Query: Run the query, resize the first column and see how many orders there were for chocolate chip cookies.

| File Home Create External Data Database Tools Help Tell me what you want to do View Parte 21 Ascending 1 21 Ascending 1 View Clipboard Sort & File Sove 2 Article Sove 2 All Access Obje Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Search. Image: Sove Tables Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove Image: Sove | 🖬 ਿੱਟੇ ਵਾ Query[| DB : Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\Desktop\Lum | nen 2019\Assignments & Discussions\Module 14\Qu | Sign in 🦳 🗆 🗙 |
|---|-----------------------|---|--|---------------|
| View Pate I Ascending I as | File Home Create | External Data Database Tools He | Ip $ \rho $ Tell me what you want to do | |
| Views Cityboard Sort & Filter Records Find Text Formatting C C All Access Obje © OrdersMenultems X © OrdersMenultems Query © OrdersMenultems Query © OrdersMenultems Query © OrdersMenultems Query Image: Control of | View View | 2↓ Ascending ♥ - ↓ Descending ♥ - 2 Remove Sort ♥ Refresh All ▼ X Delete | $\begin{array}{c c} \Sigma \\ \downarrow \\$ | |
| All Access Obje © « Search. Tables * Products TableProduct Name • Quantity • Products TableProduct Name • Quantity * Produc | Views Clipboard 🗔 | Sort & Filter Records | Find Text Formattin | ng 🗔 🔨 |
| Search. Products TableProduct Name • Quantity • Tables 2 OrdersMenultems 1 Queries * OrdersMenultems Query - OrdersMenultems Query1 - OrdersMenultems Query1 - Image: Character Chip - | All Access Obje 오 | « 🖽 OrdersMenuItems 🗙 🗊 OrdersM | enultems Query 🗙 📑 OrdersMenultems Query1 🗙 | , |
| Tables A OrdersMenultems Chocolate Chip 1 Queries A OrdersMenultems Query - - OrdersMenultems Query - - OrdersMenultems Query - - - Image: Chip - - - - Image: Chip - - - - - Image: Chip - - - - - - Image: Chip - | Search | Products TableProduct Name | Quantity - | |
| OrdersMenultems Image: Chip in the second secon | Tables | Chocolate Chip | 2 | |
| Queries A Image: OrdersMenuItems Query Image: OrdersMenuItems Query1 Image: OrdersMenuItems Query1 Image: OrdersMenuItems Query1 | OrdersMenuItems | * | 1 | |
| OrdersMenuItems Query1 | Queries | * | | |
| OrdersMenuitems Query1 Image: Control of the second of | OrdersMenuItems Query | | | |
| Record: II 4 1 of 2 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I | | Record: 14 < 1 of 2 + H + N To No. | Filter | |

9. **Run Third Query:** Now, run another query but this time for "pecan" and when the results are displayed, add in an Autosum total at the bottom and see how many pecan orders have been placed. Save this query.





| | | QueryD | B : Dai | tabase- C:\Users\P | endleton\Desktop\L | umen 2019 | Assignments & D | iscussions\Module 14\Qu | Sign in | - 0 | × |
|-----------------------------------|------------------------------------|-----------------|----------------------------|--|--|-------------|-----------------|--|------------|----------|-----|
| File | Home C | reate | Exte | ernal Data Da | tabase Tools | Help | | at you want to do | | | |
| View | Paste | Filter | 2↓As Z↓De Av Z Re | scending Ty - scending Ty - move Sort T | Refresh All • X Delet | ABC V | Find B | Calibri B I U $\rightarrow \equiv e \equiv \rightarrow u$ A $\rightarrow \equiv a^{2} \times \Delta \times \equiv a^{2}$ | | | |
| Views | Clipboard 🗔 | | Sort | & Filter | Record | s | Find | Text Formatt | ing | 5 | ~ |
| All Ad | ccess Obj | e ⊙ | « | OrdersMenuIte | ms 🗙 📑 Orde | sMenuItems | Query X | OrdersMenuItems Query1 > | < 🗗 Query1 | \times | |
| Search Tables Or Queries | dersMenuItems (dersMenuItems (| guery Query1 | | Products Tal - Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan | Quantity - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | | | | | | |
| | | | F | Record: 14 4 Total | s > PI +* | 🔭 No Filter | Search | | | | |
| Ready | | | | | | | | | Num Lock | SQI | . 🛃 |

10. Rename Queries: Rename the queries to match what is queried to better remember for what they are searching.

| 🖬 与⊤ ♂⊤ マ QueryDB:[| Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\Desktop\Lum | en 2019\Assignments & Discussions\Module 14\Qu | Sign in 🛛 — 🗆 🗙 |
|---|---|---|------------------|
| File Home Create Ex | ternal Data Database Tools Hel | p 🔎 Tell me what you want to do | |
| View Paste | Ascending Ty Image: Save Descending Image: Save Remove Sort Image: Save | $\begin{array}{ c c c c c } \hline & & & & & & & \\ \hline & & & & & \\ \hline & & & &$ | |
| Views Clipboard 🗔 So | rt & Filter Records | Find Text Formatt | ing 🗔 🔨 |
| All Access Obje © « Search Tables OrdersMenuItems Queries ChocolateChip | PecanOrders × Products TableProduct Name • Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan | Quantity • 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | |
| PecanOrders | Pecan | 1 | |
| iypesOrdered | Pecan Pecan Pecan Pecan Recan Pecan Recan | 1 1 1 1 1 10 | |
| | | | |
| Datasheet View | Record: I4 4 1 of 10 + H +* No | Filter Search | Num Lock 🔲 SOL M |
| Datasticet view | | | Hum LOCK |

 $\textcircled{\bullet}$





11. Save: Save the file as an Access database and make sure all the queries have been saved as well.

12. Submit the presentation file in your course online.

1. Data source: GCFLearnFree.org. Access – Designing a Simple Query. Database sample+

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Create Queries for Access Database. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

14.21: Assignment- Create Queries for Access Database is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





14.22: Discussion- Ways to Manage Access Tables

Now you have some experience with what you can do in Access. If you have seen an Access file that contained several tables and many saved queries it may seem a bit overwhelming. What are a few ways to help manage the queries and tables as they begin to accumulate?

While the video shows an older version of Access (MicrosoftAccess 2016), the same solutions work in other versions ofAccess, including 2019 and 365.

Watch the video about tips for managing Access tables and ask yourself a few questions and discuss your answers to them.



A YouTube element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: pb.libretexts.org/cafm/?p=608

You can view the transcript for "Tips for Managing Tables" here (opens in new window).

Discussion Questions

- Do you think you will use the hide a table tool to keep the view manageable? If so, when and why?
- Which of the different ways to rearrange tables and queries do you prefer? Why?
- Would you use these tips if you had only a few tables or not? Why?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Ways to Manage Access Tables. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

• Access 2016: Tips For Managing Tables. Authored by: Kirt Kershaw. Located at: https://youtu.be/SFxyPFxe6ko. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

14.22: Discussion- Ways to Manage Access Tables is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





CHAPTER OVERVIEW

15: Integration

Learning Objectives

- Create a Word document with Excel and PowerPoint elements
- Use Excel elements in PowerPoint
- Use Access elements in other Microsoft Office products
- 15.1: Why It Matters- Integration
- 15.2: Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint
- 15.3: Customized Word Templates
- 15.4: Excel Table in Word Document
- 15.5: Excel Chart in Word Document
- 15.6: PowerPoint in Word Document
- 15.7: Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel
- 15.8: Excel Table in PowerPoint
- 15.9: Excel Chart in PowerPoint
- 15.10: Introduction to Integrating Access
- 15.11: Access and Mail Merge
- 15.12: Excel Table from Access Data
- 15.13: Access Data from Excel Table
- 15.14: Putting It Together- Integration
- 15.15: Assignment- Create Mail Merge Letters
- 15.16: Discussion- Audio Integration

15: Integration is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.1: Why It Matters- Integration

Business needs drive collaboration, information sharing and business analysis. What that really means is that more ideas, data, and information needs to be used in combination to bring about better interpretation and understanding of those ideas, data, and information by people. The Microsoft suite of apps allows people to work together to move a business forward, communicate effectively, and become increasingly more successful.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Modern Applications: The People Story for Business" here (opens in new window).

As this video mentions, the purpose of using these applications is to make business work easier between people. The purpose of this course is to give you the skills necessary to be more comfortable with the various tools and applications in order to do your job with ease.

At work, your to-do-list might include tasks such as ordering new products, completing purchase orders, creating sales charts, and producing proposals and presentations. This module will draw on the lessons you have learned in those previous modules and show you how to integrate various features from one application into another in order to finish these types of tasks.

Here is what you will be learning how to accomplish with this module:

- Create a Word document with integrated Excel utilizing skills from the previous modules
- Create a PowerPoint supporting presentation utilizing skills from the previous modules
- Integrate a video into a PowerPoint slide
- Integrate Excel and Access

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Why It Matters: Integration. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

CC licensed content, Shared previously

• Modern Applications - The People Story for Business. Authored by: EPC Group.net. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N_ZlMNCl9UQ. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

15.1: Why It Matters- Integration is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.2: Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint

What you'll learn to do: Create a Word document with Excel and PowerPoint elements

Up to this point in the course, each of the computer applications has been treated as separate, standalone apps. In the world of business however, each application can be integrated, in various ways, into the others to enhance the reporting, presenting, and communication tasks of business on a daily basis. Integrating Word, Excel, and PowerPoint makes business communication more effective by organizing separated information into one place for easy access and analysis.

These skills from this course to this point will now be used to see how these computer applications can be integrated to accomplish business tasks. To accomplish this, let's look at an example scenario.

The Rowan Retail store is about to have their annual review of their sales figures and Rosamine Ruiz has been asked to write up a one-page report explaining the sales trends for the past three years for the store's General Manager (GM). Rosamine has collected all of the information she needs and is now ready to begin her report in Word. Follow her progress through the pages in this section.

There are many ways in which integration can take place in a Word document. At times new content must be created. Other times content from other sources and documents need to be incorporated and integrated into the Word document. As Rosamine will discover, each document can be a mix of both new and existing content. As you work more over time with Word, you will discover additional ways to integrate many elements into one document.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

15.2: Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.3: Customized Word Templates

Learning Objectives

• Create a Word document with customized template.

As Rosamine creates the sales report, the first step she takes is to open the Word application and create a new document using company templates—Rowan Retail Sales Report. She searches for the exact template and selects it by clicking on the image in the Word window.



This is what the template for the sales report looks like. It is in newsletter form with two columns because that is the way the GM prefers the report to be formatted.





| ⊟ 5 • া ≖ | Rowan Retail Sales Report.docx - Word | Sign in 🗉 — 🗇 🗙 |
|---|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Ma | ings Review View 🗴 Tell me what you want to do | 년 Share 🖵 |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | - : □ - : □ - : □ : □ : ① : ① : ① : ① : □ : □ : □ : □ | CCE AoBbCcDd AoBbCcDd - de Subtle Em Emphasis = D Select - |
| Clipboard rs Font rs | Paragraph rs Styles | ra Editing A |
| Navigation • × | | |
| Search document 🔎 - | | |
| Headings Pages Results | Rowan Retail Sales Report | |
| Create an interactive outline of your document. | | |
| It's a great way to keep track of where you are or quickly move your content around. | Quarterly Sales News Annual Sales Chart | |
| To get started, go to the Home tab and apply Heading styles to the headings in your document. | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Page 1 of 1 10 words | | 00 00 05 - + 80% |

Rosamine wants to customize this report, so she starts to tweak it before she starts composing.

Customize Template

The first thing Rosamine decides is to change the look and feel of the template. She changes the theme by clicking on the Design Tab then the Themes button on the far upper left. Rosamine picked the Retrospect theme, which changes the text and colors from the golden yellow color to a red/orange theme.



Next, Rosamine removes the DRAFT watermark from the report.





| E +5 + © = | Rowan Retail Sales Report.docx - Word | Signin 100 — 01 🗙 |
|--|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings | Review View Q Tell me what you want to do | 2 tic Share 🖵 |
| Title Title <th< td=""><td>Tries Take Take TriLE TriLE Tries TriLE</td><td>Colors Forts Colors Forts Colors Forts Colors Forts Colors Forts Colors Forts Colors Forts Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders</td></th<> | Tries Take Take TriLE TriLE Tries TriLE | Colors Forts Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders Color Borders |
| Navigation × Search document • Heading: Page: Results Gradement: • | Document Formatting Rowan Retail Sales R Quarterly Sales News | Confidential CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL DO NOT COPY Confidentiat Confidenti |
| | | Bernove Watermark Baye Selection to Watermark Gallery |
| | 3 | |
| Page 1 of 1 10 words [] | | 10 115 - + 80% |

Still in the Design tab, she moves to the upper right buttons and selects the Watermark button.

- 1. Design Tab. Variety of possible changes for a document.
- 2. Watermark Button. This button inserts or removes a variety of watermarks.
- 3. **Remove Watermark Button.** Rosamine selects this and the DRAFT watermark is removed from her report.

Practice Questions https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18812 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18813

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Customized Word Templates. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.3: Customized Word Templates is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.4: Excel Table in Word Document

Learning Objectives

Create a Word document with integrated Excel table.

There are a couple of ways to integrate an Excel table into a Word document.

Option 1 for Table Integration

Rosamine starts to type in her report. Along the way she decides to change the theme colors again to more of a brown color and repeats the theme change process like she did previously. She continues writing her text and now needs to add an Excel table to her report highlighting the three different store Q2 sales numbers.

She has the second quarter sales information from another report, but doesn't have the Excel file itself to copy into her Word document. Because she has no existing Excel file, she creates her own table through the following steps:



- 1. Cursor Placement. Rosamine makes sure her cursor is placed in the area of her Word document where she wants to create the table.
- 2. Insert Tab. She clicks on the Insert tab to display the insert button possibilities and selects the Table button.
- 3. Excel Spreadsheet Option. This button creates a little Excel spreadsheet table within Rosamine's Word document.

The Excel table is now in her Word document and ready for data to be entered. Notice how the color of the upper toolbar is displaying the Excel green and that the Home tab is selected. This is an indicator to Rosamine to know she is now working with an Excel table. She can now begin to type in the data for the table.



Note: If at any time Rosamine clicks outside the table it will revert back to the Word document and she can double-click back on the table to open it up for data entry again.



Cell Style. AutoSum. Center. Color in Cells. Borders. Bold.





Rosamine has entered the sales figures from the three different stores, and wants to make additional changes to the table. This is how she changes the table.

- 1. Cell Style. Rosamine selects and formats the column of numbers to be currency cells and to display the dollars generated from sales for the second quarter of the year.
- 2. AutoSum. With the bottom cell selected, Rosamine clicks the AutoSum button, which totals the three sales figures for all stores for the GM to easily see what total sales were generated from the second quarter.
- 3. Center. Next, Rosamine centers the Quarter numbers by selecting the three quarter cells and clicking on the centering button.
- 4. Color in Cells. The table needs a contrasting color to make the titles and totals stand out. Rosamine selects the top and bottom rows, clicks on the paint bucket button, and chooses a green color for the table.
- 5. **Borders.** To make the table look more defined in the document, Rosamine selects the entire table, then the Border button, then selects the "thick box border" to be placed around the outside of the table.
- 6. Bold. The last table change Rosamine uses is to select the titles and totals rows and bold each of them to contrast with the other data.

Now the table is complete, but it still shows too many unused cells. Rosamine resizes the table by holding down the left mouse button and dragging the sides of the table to the



correct size for the report. Popel of 1

Her work complete, she clicks off to the right. Her Word document is ready for more text and additional data.

Option 2 for Table Integration

What if Rosamine has access to the store sales information Excel file directly? With this scenario, she can place it directly into her Word document with no need to make her own table. Here is how Rosamine can insert an existing Excel file:



- 1. Word Document Open. Rosamine has the Sales Report Word document open on her computer.
- 2. Excel Application Open. Rosamine opens the Excel app.
- 3. Excel Document Open. Next, Rosamine opens the Rowan Retail_Q2_Sales_Totals file.
- 4. Sales Table. This is the sales table to be copied into the Word document. The next step is to copy and paste the table.



1. Select Table. With the file open, Rosamine selects the entire table (all rows and columns).





2. Copy Table. Rosamine right-clicks with her mouse and selects the Copy function. She can also accomplish this by using the Ctrl+C keys to copy the table.

Next is getting back to the Word document. There are three ways to accomplish this:

- 1. One way is to simply click on the Word window and it will move forward in front of the Excel window.
- 2. A second way is to toggle back and forth with the keyboard by holding down the Alt key and tapping on the Tab key (Alt+Tab). This opens a small window displaying all the apps currently running on the computer. She can continue to hold down the Alt key and click the Tab key to scroll through the options.



3. The third option is to place the two documents side-by-side on the computer screen. This typically requires resizing of the document windows.

Now that the Word document is selected, Rosamine now places the cursor where the table should be and right-clicks with her mouse. The menu appears again. She selects the Paste Option small clipboard icon, and the table is copied into the Word document.





This is how the document looks with the Excel table pasted into the document.



Here is an illustration of copy and pasting using the keyboard shortcut keys (Ctrl+C, Ctrl+V) where Rosamine would first select the Excel table, copy the table, then paste it



into the Word document. https://

Once the copied Excel table is in the Word document, it can be modified by double-clicking in the desired cell and then it can be changed however desired. It does not open a small Excel spreadsheet as the table created within Word in Option 1 did.

The table is now set and Rosamine is ready for more text and an additional data chart.

PRactice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18814

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18815

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Excel Table in Word Document. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.4: Excel Table in Word Document is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.5: Excel Chart in Word Document

Learning Objectives

• Create a Word document with integrated Excel chart.

There are a couple of ways to integrate an Excel chart into a Word document.

Option 1 for Chart Integration

The next piece of information needed in the report is the annual sales chart. To enter this data, Rosamine makes sure her cursor is at the place in the report she wants the chart to go. She clicks back to the Insert tab and selects the Chart button.



The next step is to select the type of chart to use for her report. In this instance, Rosamine chooses a line chart.

| Note Dest Day of References Malory New Yea 1 faint exact you work to do I faint exact you work to do Cover regarting Image: Store Torong torong Image: Torong torong | El 5-0 = | | Sign in 📧 — 🗇 🗙 |
|---|---|--|--|
| Conception Concepti | File Home Insert Design Layo | ut References Mailings Review View Q Tell me what you want to do | 🖒 Share 🖵 |
| To get tablet, so to the Home Home and pays? Hading affy to the Medings in your document. Subject to the Medings in your document. Subject to the Medings in your Home Subject to the Medings | File Home Insert Design Layo © core Page- © Blank Page Page Brak Table File File | A federec: Mailing: Review Image: Telescond and the second and the sec | LC Share Quick Parts · 2' Spruture Line · π Factation · A Wondsta · ⊡ Date & Time Drag Cap · Object · Sprubol · Sprubol · Text Sprubol · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| No. 10 March 10 | To get tatefd, go to the Home tab and apply Heading styles to the headings in your document. | smaller sk. Radar quarter (1) Treenap promot be sag sundar Hitsgram Hit Boo & Whiterer shoppe Treinal Hitsgram Hit Boo & Whiterer shoppe Treinal Hitsgram Hit Boo & Whiterer Standart Combo | |

1. Chart Button/Line Chart. Rosamine selects the chart button and then selects a Line chart to use in her report.

- 2. Chart Options. There are seven different variations for displaying a Line chart. Rosamine selects the first option.
- 3. OK Button. With the desired chart selected, Rosamine clicks the OK button and the chart is placed in her report.

Next, Rosamine selects the style of line chart to use and begins to enter information to create the chart itself.



| 🖶 🛧 🖑 🔹 Rowan Retail Sales Report Complete.docx - Word | Chart Tools Sign in 🔟 — 🗇 | × |
|--|---|-----|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review | w View Dezign Format Q Tell me what you want to do | : 🖵 |
| Add Chart Quick Charty Element + Layout - Color Chart Street - Cha | Intrin Intrin< | ^ |
| Navigation × Search document • Headings Page Results Create an interactive outline of Charact Stackers Create an interactive outline of Charact Stackers It's a great way to keep tack of where you are or guickly more your content around. To get started, go to the Home tab and apply | Provide the state of the quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At it the provide quarket state are stated for 2017. At its data are sta | |
| document. | Campup In to foly the tow of the | |
| | The quarter the four server gave and many more than the details for these senseption, please note to and also cognitized term. Since 1 and controllows the extention for these senseptions, please note to the extention of the sense of the plane to the sense of quarter which concord there are the gave. In presentation, there is and a non-en-main sale promotion to be quarter. With them research. | |

The chart will contain the total sales numbers from the last three years for each of the three retail stores. She puts the years in **Column A** (purple color), the name of the stores across **row 1** (pink color), and the sales figures in the **rest of the cells** (blue color). Here is what her chart now looks like in the report.



Rosamine clicks on the chart title box and changes the name of the chart to Annual Total Sales. Rosamine notices that the numbers are difficult to see, so she resizes the chart to make it easier to read.

Rosamine resizes the chart by clicking on the mid-points in the chart and dragging them to a larger size that still fits within the document column width.





| 🖬 🖘 🗇 र Rowan Retail Sa | ies Report Complete.docx - Word | Chart Tools | | s | gn in 133 | - 0 | × |
|--|---|---|--|--------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------|------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings Review View | Design Format | | | | 년 Share | |
| Cut Calibri (Body) 10 A Paste of Format Painter Clibbeard Format Painter | · ▲ Aa - ◆ □ - □ - □ - □ = □ □ | 2↓ ¶ AaBbCcDd + ⊞ + INormal | AaBbCcDd AaBbD AaBbCc A 1 No Spac Heading 1 Heading 2 Title Styles | AaBbCc 408bCc e Subtitle Subtle E | Dd AaBbCcDd n Emphasis | P Find | _ |
| | Quarterly Sales New | ws | Annual Sales Chart | | | | |
| | This is the second installment of the quasies news for 2017. As in the provious: this year, aske figures maintain an upwas the economic outlook in the country positive. Rowan Retails stores have increased in in for new associates and additional training the demands for sales. Each of the store advertisements and running the summa campaign to boost back-to-schools alses. The following sales by store table reflect the three <i>Rowen</i> Retail store's sales that the three <i>Rowen</i> Retail store's sales this Rowan Retails Store Sales . | arterly or address and trend so the address so the so the so the source of the source | Annual Total Sales | | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 184 words []8 | | | | 80 8 | | + + | 100% |

The General Manager will now see the rise and fall of sales over the last three years in Rosamine's report.

To finish the report, Rosamine types in the rest of the text. Next she needs to link a PowerPoint presentation file for a reference mentioned in the report.

Option 2 for Chart Integration

What if Rosamine already had access to the Annual Total Sales chart file? She could copy and paste the chart into her document. First she opens the Excel file with the chart in it. Since she has learned to copy and paste from the previous table, she puts the Word and Excel windows side-by-side on her screen, then takes the following steps:



- 1. Select chart. Rosamine selects the chart in the Excel file by clicking once on the chart.
- Right-click mouse. Rosamine clicks the right mouse button. She sees a menu appear and selects the Copy choice. She can also use the Ctrl+C keys to copy the chart.



| 🔒 🕤 - 🗷 = Rowan Retail Sales Report Complete_Op2.docx Sign in 🖽 - 🗆 🗙 | 🖶 🍤 - 🗧 Rowan Retail_Q2_Sales_Totals.xkx - Excel Sign in 💷 - 🗆 🗙 |
|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review View 🛛 Tell me 🖻 🏳 | File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View Design Format Q Tell me Q. |
| Mail Calibrit (Body) 14 II II II Mail Mail | All Add Chan Biement* |
| | Chart 5 v I X v fr |
| Quarterly Sales News | |
| This is the second installment of the guarterly B I U 2 · A · E · Styles | 1 Annual Total Sales |
| sales news for 2017. As in the previous quarter | 2 Year Store 1 Store 2 Store 3 |
| this year, sales figures maintain an upward trend X Cut | 3 2014 \$345,367 \$428,754 \$409,276 |
| positive. Par Sopy | 4 2015 \$250,384 \$234,098 \$349,865 |
| Rowan Retails stores have increased in their need | 5 2016 \$310,873 \$498,376 \$485,763 |
| for new associates and additional training to meet | 7 |
| the demands for sales. Each of the stores have | |
| advertisaments and running the summer sales | Annual Total Sales |
| campaign to boost back-to-school sales figures. | 10 \$600,000 |
| The following sales by store table reflects each of | 11 5500.000 |
| the three Rowen Retail store's sales this quarter. Synonyms | 12 |
| Rowen Retail Store Sales | 13 \$400,000 |
| taux Cautar tala | 14 5300,000 |
| Store 1 2 \$45,589 Dev Comment | 5200,000 |
| Store 2 2 548,293 | 17 5100.000 |
| Store 3 2 \$53,948 | 18 |
| Total \$147,830 This quarter the top sales fearers are from Store 3 | 19 50 |
| and we congratulate them. Store 3 ran continuous | 20 Store 1 Store 2 Store 3 |
| smaller sales promotions throughout the second | 21 2014 2015 2016 |
| quarter which boosted their sales tigures. In comparison, Store 1 and 2 ran one main sale | 22 0 0 0 |
| promotion in the quarter. With further research, | Table Chart (A) |
| Page 1 of 2 108 words D2 D0 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 | Ready III III - + 100% |

- 3. **Paste chart in Word document.** With the desired chart copied, Rosamine moves over to her Word document and places the curser in the correct spot and right-clicks again to bring up the menu. In the menu she selects the **Paste** option and the chart is placed in the document. She can also use the **Ctrl+V** keys to paste the chart.
- 4. Resize chart. Rosamine now grabs one of the chart border area spots and moves it to the desired size in the document.



5. **Change chart.** If Rosamine needed to change something about the chart like the type of chart, the data in the chart, the labels, and so on, she can right-click on the chart itself, and a menu will appear that allows her to change aspects of that chart. Any changes made will not affect the original Excel file chart.



| 🔒 숙 - 🖑 후 Rowan Retail Sales Report Complete_Op2.docx Sign in 📧 - | - 0 × | 🗄 🔊 ে | | | | | | | | 1 × |
|--|----------|--------------|--------------------------------|--------------|------------|-------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|------------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review View Q Tel | llme 🖻 🖵 | File Hom | e Insert Page | Layout Formu | las Data R | eview View | Design | Format | 🖓 Tell n | ne Ap |
| A Called (Body) • 14 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ~ | Add Chart Ei | ement * t * Chang Colors | Chart | Styles | swi | itch Row/ Se Column D Data | lect Char ata Char J | inge M tType Ci pe Loo | ove sart ation ^ |
| | | Chart 5 | • : × · | / fx | | | | | | ~ |
| | | A | В | с | D | E | F | G | н | 1 |
| Quarterly Sales News | | 1 | Annual To | otal Sales | | | | | | |
| | | 2 Year | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | | | |
| This is the second installment of the quarterly | O | 3 2014 | \$345,367 | \$428,754 | \$409,276 | | | | | |
| this year, sales figures maintain an upward trend Annual Table Color | | 4 2015 | \$250,384 | \$234,098 | \$349,865 | | | | | |
| as the economic outlook in the country remains 5600,000 | | 5 2016 | \$310,873 | \$498,376 | \$485,763 | | | | | |
| positive. \$500,000 Series " | 2015" - | 0 | | | | | | | | |
| Rowan Retails stores have increased in their need | | 7 | · · · · · | | | o | | | | |
| for new associates and additional training to meet | | 8 | _ | | Annual 1 | otal Sales | | | | |
| the demands for sales. Each of the stores have \$20 Delete | | 9 | \$600,000 | | | | | | | |
| been tasked with creating more in-store | le l | 10 | | | | | | | | |
| campaign to boost back-to-school sales figures. | | 11 | \$500,000 | | | | | | | |
| Change Series Char | rt Type | 12 | 5400.000 | | | | | | | |
| The following sales by store table reflects er off | | 13 | _ | - | | | | | | |
| 3-D Botation | | 14 | | | | | | | 0 | |
| Rowen Retail Store Sales Add Data Labels | | 16 | \$200,000 | _ | | | | | | |
| Store Quarter Sales | | 17 | | | | | | | | |
| Store 1 2 \$45,589 | | 10 | \$100,000 | | | | | | | |
| Store 2 2 \$48,293 | - | 10 | 50 | | | | | | | |
| Store 3 2 \$53,948 | | 20 | - | Store 1 | | Store 2 | | Store 3 | | |
| Total \$147,830 | | 21 | - | | 2014 | 2015 = 2016 | | | | |
| This quarter the top sales figures are from Store 3 and we congratulate them. Store 3 ran continuous | | 22 | 6 | | | 0 | | | | |
| smaller sales promotions throughout the second | | 22 | | | | | | | | |
| an and an order of the feature of the state of an entry of the state o | | < > | Table Ch | art (+) | | | 4 | | | Þ |
| Page 1 of 2 308 words []? [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] | + 80% | Ready | _ | | | = | | - | | ► 100% |

If Rosamine wanted to use the copy and paste keyboard shortcut it would be exactly like the copy and paste from the table example and look like this:

| 🔚 🦘 - 🗇 🔹 Rowan Retail Sales Report Complete_Op2 | | × | • ∙ ∂ | | | | | Sign in | | | × |
|---|-------------------------------------|-----------|---|------------------------|---------------|------------|-------------|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------|
| File Home Insert Design Layout Referer Mailing Revie | w View Design Format 🛛 Tell me 🖻 | File File | Home | Insert Page | Layout Formul | las Data R | eview View | Design | Format | 🖓 Tell me | ନ |
| Add Chart Element * Charge Quick Layout * Charge Quick Colors * Styles * Chard Element | Edit Refresh Data - Data | alt Ad | ld Chart Elen iick Layout = Chart Layout: | nent * Chang Colors | Chart | Styles | i v s | witch Row/ S Column Data | ielect Char Data Char J | ange Mov t Type Cha pe Locat | ve it ion A |
| Charceyvers Charceyvers Data | ighe | Char | t5 - |] : [× - | 1 fr | | | | | | ~ |
| b | | | A | в | c | D | E | F | G | н | 1 |
| ● | • | 1 | | Annual To | tal Sales | | | | | | |
| Quarterly Sales News | Annual Sales Chart | 2 | Year | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | | | |
| This is the second installment of the guarterly | _ | 3 | 2014 | \$345.367 | \$428,754 | \$409.276 | | | | | |
| sales news for 2017. As in the previous quarter | Q | 4 | 2015 | \$250,384 | \$234,098 | \$349,865 | | | | | |
| this year, sales figures maintain an upward trend | Annual Total Sales | 5 | 2016 | \$210,872 | \$498.376 | \$485 762 | | | | | |
| as the economic outlook in the country remains \$600,0 | | 6 | 2010 | 2320,013 | JA10,310 | Q400,100 | | | | | |
| positive. S500,0 | | 7 | | | | | | | | | |
| Rowan Retails stores have increased in their need | | 1 | | 9 | | | 0 | | | | |
| for new associates and additional training to meet S200,0 | 🛲 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | 8 | | - | | Annual T | otal Sale | S | | | |
| the demands for sales. Each of the stores have \$100,0 | | 9 | | \$600.000 | | | | | | _ | |
| been tasked with creating more in-store | 50 - 3 | 10 | | 5000,000 | ~ | | | | | | |
| advertisements and running the summer sales | NOAT NOAT NOAT | 11 | | \$500,000 | (CI T | ET CS | | | _ | | |
| campagn to opost back-to-school sales rigures. | 2014 2015 2016 | 12 | | | | | | | | | |
| The following sales by store table reflects each of | | 13 | | 5400,000 | | | | | | | |
| the three Rowen Retail store's sales this quarter. | 21-lav | 14 | | \$300,000 | | | | _ | | | |
| Rowen Retail Store Sales | | 15 | | Ĭ | | | | | | Y . | |
| | | 16 | | \$200,000 | | | | | | | |
| Store Quarter Sales | | 17 | | \$100,000 | | | | _ | | | |
| Store 1 2 \$45,589 | | 18 | | | | | | | | | |
| Store 2 2 548,293 | | 19 | | SO | | | | | | | |
| Store 3 2 553,948 | | 20 | | - | Store 1 | | store z | | Store 3 | | |
| This quarter the top spins figures are from Store 2 | | 21 | | 1 | | 2014 = | 2015 = 2016 | 5 | | | |
| and we congratulate them, Store 3 ran continuous | | 22 | | Ó | | | 0 | | | 0 | |
| smaller sales promotions throughout the second | | 22 | | | | | | | | | |
| III and a state of the second distance of the second state of the | | | | Table Ch | art (+) | | | 4 | | | Þ |
| Page 1 of 2 308 words | 10 10 | 80% Ready | | | | | = | | - | + | 100% |

To finish the report, Rosamine types in the rest of the text. Next, she needs to link a PowerPoint presentation file for a reference mentioned in the report.

| Practice Questions |
|--|
| https://assessments.lumenlearning.coessments/18816 |
| https://assessments.lumenlearning.coessments/18817 |

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Excel Chart in Word Document. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.5: Excel Chart in Word Document is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.6: PowerPoint in Word Document

Learning Outcomes

• Create a Word document with inserted PowerPoint hyperlink.

You can link to a PowerPoint document with a hyperlink in a Word document. The example with Rosamine's document continues on this page.

Once again Rosamine returns to the **Insert** tab and selects the link button. Towards the bottom of the dropdown menu, she selects **Insert Link** and then finds the correct PowerPoint file location and adds that to the window.



Now when the GM hovers over the hyperlinked file, the location and file name will be displayed and can be clicked on to open that third-quarter sales promotions presentation for more information.

| E 5·″ = | Rowan Retail Sales Rep | iart Complete.docx - Word | Sign in 🖽 — 🗗 🗙 |
|---|--|---|--|
| File Home Insert Design Layou | References Mailings Review View Q Tell me v | | 🖻 Share 🖵 |
| Cover Page * | Construct torss ↓ Chart ↓ Store ↓ Chart ↓ Store ↓ Chart ↓ Store ↓ Chart ↓ Store ↓ My Add-ins Add-ins | ark eference Comments Header Footer Page Number Bax MondArt - Test MondArt - Bax Comments Header & Footer Number Test MondArt - Test MondArt | Signature Line π Equation Spate & Time Ω Symbol Object • d Symbols |
| | The following sales by store table reflects each of the three Rowen Retail store's sales this quarter. Conven Retail Store Sales $\frac{1}{1000} = \frac{1}{1000} + \frac{1}{10000} + \frac{1}{10000} + \frac{1}{10000} + \frac{1}{100000} + \frac{1}{10000000000000000000000000000000000$ | | |
| c/users/spenster/documents/o3 sales promotions only | | | DE EE ES |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18612

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18613

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• PowerPoint in Word Document. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution





15.6: PowerPoint in Word Document is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



15.7: Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel

What you'll learn to do: Use Excel elements in PowerPoint

PowerPoint is the primary computer application used for business presentations. Knowing how to integrate a variety of charts, images, clip art, and so on is important to fill out a presentation and have it efficiently communicate to your desired audience. Elsewhere in this module, a Word document was modified and integrated with other computer applications. This section focuses on integration within PowerPoint.

PowerPoint integration skills will assist you to powerfully communicate whatever business information you are trying to get across. To accomplish this, let's look at an example scenario in which PowerPoint integration is helpful.

Rowan Retail is planning to increase store sales in all three of its branches in the third quarter of this year. In order to coordinate the sales campaign, Cameron is creating the sales campaign presentation for the company's next regional meeting. He has all the information he needs and is ready to create his sales presentation.

As Cameron will discover, each presentation can be a mix of both new and existing content. There are many ways to incorporate a variety of things into PowerPoint. Frequently creating and editing a presentation is a back-and-forth process. Presentations must not only be filled with appropriate information, but also must be visually dynamic for an audience.

Over time, your experience with PowerPoint with increase and you will discover other ways to integrate things into your presentations. They can be live, recorded, timed, and easily emailed to interested parties, so good PowerPoint skills is essential to business.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

15.7: Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.8: Excel Table in PowerPoint

Learning Objectives

• Create PowerPoint slide with integrated Excel table.

Cameron has an Excel file with a pertinent table for the sales presentation. He selects slide 3, types in a slide title, and then follows these steps to insert the Excel table into PowerPoint.

Option 1 for Table Integration

In the text box, Cameron hovers over the icons in the middle and clicks on the Insert Table icon.



He doesn't have an Excel table in a file to copy into his PowerPoint presentation, so he creates one through the following steps:



- 1. Insert Table Box. This box appears where Cameron decides the size of his table.
- 2. Number of Columns. Clicks the down arrow until the number is 4 columns.
- 3. Number of Rows. Clicks the up arrow until the number is 6 rows.
- 4. OK Button. This button creates a little Excel table within Cameron's PowerPoint presentation slide.

The Excel table is now in his PowerPoint presentation and ready for data to be entered. Cameron now enters his information into the table.





| ন হাত ব্ৰ | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptz - PowerPoint Table Tools | Sign in | æ | - 0 | × |
|--|--|---------|---|--------|-------|
| File Home Insert Design | n Transitions Animations Slide Show Review View Design Layout 🖓 Tell me what you want to do | | | A. Sha | • 🖓 |
| ✓ Header Row First Column Total Row Last Column ✓ Banded Rows Banded Columns | 2 Stading- 2 Borden - 2 Borden | Eraser | | | |
| Table Style Options | Table Styles WordArt Styles 12 Draw Borders | | | | ^ |
| 2 Exercise 2000 | Sales Campaign Details | | | | • |
| | | | | | * * * |
| Slide 3 of 3 EP | ≜ Notes 🔲 👷 | : | | + | 72% 🕅 |

Note: If at any time Cameron wants to change the color of the table he can click on the Table styles in the bar above.

| | ণ্ড জু | | | Q3 Sale | s Campaign.pptx | | | | | | | | | a × |
|---------|---|------------|--------|---------|--------------------|-------------|------------|---------------|--|--|---|--------------|-----------------------------------|------------------|
| File | Home | | | | | | | Design | | | | | A, sh | are 🖵 |
| Paste | X Cut E Copy ▼ ✓ Format Pair Clipboard | nter Slide | Cayout | Calibri | 보 S abs 산, Forg | 11 • A° A' | | - | a ↓ A Text a Aligr Conv graph | Direction * Text * ert to SmartArt | Arrange Qu なつへく)☆ Arrange Qu なつへく)☆ Drawing | Shape Fill • | ← Find ← Select ← ← Editing | ^ |
| 1 | Q3 Sales Cam | paign | | | şa | les C | 4 Camp | aign | De | tails |] | | | * |
| 2 | | | | | / | | ل ا | | Calibri B I U | • 11 • 1 = 8 • • 9 10 , 10.5 | A* A* 50 70 • ▲ • ★ | ſ | | |
| 3 | Salas Campaign Datala | | | | Тур | | Social M | edia Campaign | Poin | 11 -of-Pu 12 | Loyalty Program | | | |
| | 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1 | - | | | Len | t th | 4 Weeks | | 10 V | eeks 14 | 12 Weeks | | | |
| | | | | | Pro | duct Target | Sporting | Goods | Gift | ards 18 | Dairy Groceries | | | |
| Slide 3 | of 3 D2 | | | 3 | Disc | ount | | | 10% | 20 24 28 32 36 40 44 48 54 60 66 72 80 | 5% 50 2 | | 1 | * * * * |

Cameron types in the sales figures from the three different stores, and wants to make additional changes. He has already bolded the title rows (using the **Bold** button in the Home Tab), but the type is difficult to read from a distance.

- 1. He selects the table title.
- 2. He right-clicks to bring up the font size and selects size 40.
- 3. He selects the remaining rows and uses the upper font bar to change the font size to 20pt.
- 4. He decides to change the title by clicking within the title box, then typing in a new title.

Cameron steps back and looks at the table. He notices the table is not centered on the slide, so he clicks on the table and moves his cursor to the edge of the table until he sees the four arrow symbol. He drags the whole table to the center of the slide.



| 🗄 ৯-৫ জুন | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - PowerPoint | Table Tools | | Sign in 🔳 | - 0 | × |
|---|--|---------------------------------------|---|-----------|--|---------|
| File Home Insert Design Transit | ions Animations Slide Show Review View | Design Layout | Q Tell me what you want to do | | R₊ Share | P |
| Active Copy - Paste Format Painter Clipboard r Slides | Calibri • 11 • A* A* & 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 • 日 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | rection * fat * rt to SmartArt - Fat * | | Find Replace * Select * Editing | ^ |
| 03 Sales Compoign | Campa | ign Detc | ails by Store | | | * |
| 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 | | Sales Cam | paign | | | |
| 3 Conneger Developing and | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | |
| | Social Med | dia Campaign Point-o | d-Purchase Displays Loyalty Program | | | |
| | Longth 4 Weeks | 10 Wee | uks 12 Weeks | | | |
| | Product Target Sporting G | icods Gift Car | nts Dainy Groceries | | | |
| | MoveEn | 11 in Table | | | | 46 39 4 |
| Slide 3 of 3 | | | 🏥 Notes 🗐 | 8 0 9 | + | 72% 🛐 |

He now makes a note under the table by clicking on the Insert tab and the **Text Box** button.

| 🖬 🔊 ে 💯 🗉 | | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - Po | | | | | | × | | | |
|---|-------------------|-----------------------------|--|--|-----------------------|-------|-------------------------------------|-------|--|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Ania | | | | | | | A, Share | Þ | | | |
| New Table Pictures Online Screenshot Photo Shapes Stide * Jables Images | Illustrations Add | dd-ins Zoom Link Actio | Comment Text He Bax & F | ader WordArt Footer Text | πΩ Equation Symbol | Video | Audio Screen • Recordin Media | 19 | | | |
| 1 03 Sove Campage | Cam | paign De | tails been addressed at the second se | ext Box st box anywhere. yreat way to get the exact ize you want, especially sing text to shapes and | | | | * | | | |
| | Sales Campaign | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | | | | | |
| 3 Company formits to them | Туре | Social Media Campaign | Point-of-Purchase Displays | e Loyalty Program | | | | | | | |
| the fact for first | Length | 4 Weeks | 10 Weeks | 12 Weeks | | | | | | | |
| | Product Target | Sporting Goods | Gift Cards | Dairy Groceries | | | | | | | |
| | Discount | 10% | 5% | 10% | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | 4 B 4 | | | |

He puts his cursor under the table and begins to type his note into the slide. This step is now complete.

| 🖬 চি-ত জু ፣ | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - PowerPoint | | | | | | × | | | | | |
|---|---|---|-------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------|---|------|--|--|--|--|--|
| File Home Insert Design Tran | sitions Animations Slide Show Review | View Format | Tell me what you want to do | | | R₁ Sha | re 🖵 | | | | | |
| → Cut Paste ✓ Format Painter Clipboard // Slides | Century Gothic (Body = 18 = A* A* Ø III III IIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII |] Ξ • Ξ Ξ = Ξ • Ι Ξ Ξ = Ξ • Ξ Paragraph | Test Direction * | → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → | PF He* ‱R s* ₿S G E | ind Replace * Relect * Editing | A | | | | | |
| CL3 Sales Compaign | Camp | aign De | etails by S | tore | | | | | | | | |
| | Sales Campaign | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | | | | | | |
| 3 Consequence Danale Are Dava Main Consequence Text Consequence | Туре | Social Media Campaign | Point-of-Purchase Displays | Loyalty Program | | | | | | | | |
| a mathematical and the second | Length | 4 Weeks | 10 Weeks | 12 Weeks | | | | | | | | |
| | Product Target | Sporting Goods | Gift Cards | Dairy Groceries | | | | | | | | |
| | Discount | 10% | 5% | 10% | | | | | | | | |
| | Note: These car | mpaigns begin th | e first Wednesday of | the quarter. | | | * * | | | | | |

Cameron reads through the slide to make sure it is clear and decides to change the table title. He clicks in the table title and retypes the words to say "Q3 Campaign." Now the slide is complete, and he is ready for another slide.





| • রু ७ • ৫ ਜ਼ | | Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - | PowerPoint | | Sign in 🔳 | - | a x |
|--|--|---|---|--|--|--|-------------|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animatic | ns Slide Show Review | | | | | Яs | hare 🖵 |
| As Cut Depart Pate As Format Painter Cippeed rs | • 40 • A A A & a A¥ - Aa - ★Z - A - Font 5 | E - E - E - E = E = E = E = E = E = E = | Text Direction - Align Text - Convert to SmartArt - | Arrange Quick → ↔ ↔ Styles → Drawing | △ Shape Fill * ✓ Shape Outline * ✓ Shape Effects * | P Find Replace → Select → Editing | |
| 1 Add a slide (Ctrl-M) Add a slide to your presentation. O3 Sales Compation Tell me more | Cam | ipaign De | etails by S | tore | | | |
| | | O3 C | ampaign | | | | |
| | | Store 1 | Store 2 | Store 3 | | | |
| 3 Exercises Sectors | Туре | Social Media Campaign | Point-of-Purchase Displays | Loyalty Program | | | |
| a and a set of the set | Length | 4 Weeks | 10 Weeks | 12 Weeks | | | |
| | Product Target | Sporting Goods | Gift Cards | Dairy Groceries | | | |
| | Discount | 10% | 5% | 10% | | | |
| | Note: These | campaigns begin Ił | ne first Wednesday of | the quarter. | | | * £ ¥ |

Option 2 for Table Integration

What if Cameron has an existing sales campaign Excel table he can use? With this scenario, he copies it directly into his PowerPoint presentation so there's no need to make his own table. Here is how Cameron inserts an existing Excel file table:



- 1. **Open Excel application.** Cameron has the RR Sales Campaign Excel file open on his computer.
- 2. Select the table. Cameron selects the entire table and clicks with the right mouse button.
- 3. **Copy the Excel table.** Next, Cameron opens the selects the **Copy** function. Cameron can also use the **Ctrl+C** keys to copy the table.



| | the second s |
|--|--|
| 0 | 💾 ာ・တိ ဖြစ္ ေ ပြ3 Sales Campaign.pptx - PowerPoint Sign in ထြ — LI X |
| 🖶 😙 - ờ - 🔹 RR Q3 Sales Campaignutsx - Excel Sign in 💷 — 🗆 | File Home Insert Design Transitions Animation: Slide Show Review View Format 🛛 Tell me 🔗 🖵 |
| File Home Insert PageLayout Formulas Data Review View Q Tell me | 🞗 😒 🛖 🐰 🔚 📴 Century Gothic (Headir = 20 📼 🗄 = 🗮 = 🏥 = 🛗 = 😱 |
| $ \begin{array}{c c} & & \\ & & \\ & & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ & \\ $ | P New B I U S atc H III IIII Drawing Edding Generation Stolet Tot A.a. A'.A' Tot Drawing Edding Glaboard Stolet Tot G.a. A.a. A'.A' Tot Drawing Edding |
| Clipboard 5 Font 5 Alignment 5 Styles | |
| D6 * : × √ fr 10% | Campaign Datails by St |
| A B C D E F G H I | |
| 1 Sales Campaign | |
| 2 Store 1 Store 2 Store 3 | |
| 3 Type Social Media Purchase Loyalty Campaign Displays Program | X Cut Ra Copy |
| 4 Length 4 Weeks 10 Weeks 12 Weeks | 2 Paste Options: |
| Product Sporting Dairy | Likt Edg Tegt |
| 3 larget Goods Gift Cards Grocenes | A Eont |
| 6 Discount 10% 5% 10% | 🔐 Baragraph |
| 7 | 3 Ellets |
| 9 | I Numbering |
| 10 | Convertion Smartart > |
| ←→ Sheet1 Sheet2 Sheet3 (+) · · · · | Link V |
| Ready Average: 8% Count: 20 Sum: 25% 🏢 🔟 – 📕 | • 100 Sman goldup |
| | A Barrier Contraction of the second s |
| | alide a or 5 Lpd + 66% 2 |
| | Fgrmat Shape |

- 1. **Select PowerPoint**. Cameron clicks on the PowerPoint window to bring it forward (he could also toggle **Alt+Tab** if the window is behind the Excel window).
- 2. Select table area. Cameron clicks with the right mouse button in the Table box.
- 3. **Paste Excel table.** Cameron selects the **Paste** function in the menu and the table is placed in the slide (He can also use the **Ctrl+V** keys to paste in the table).

He can now resize, move, center, bold, add the text note, and change the font of the table like in the Option 1 example to optimally display the table on the slide. The table slide is now set, and Cameron is ready for an additional slide with a chart indicating the campaign funding divisions between stores.

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18818 https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18819

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Excel Table in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.8: Excel Table in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



15.9: Excel Chart in PowerPoint

Learning Objectives

• Create PowerPoint slide with integrated Excel chart.

Option 1 for Chart Integration

The next slide in the presentation is the budget distribution chart. Cameron will create a chart from scratch in a new slide. He opens the **New Slide** options and selects Content with Caption, then types in the title in the box. He moves the cursor over the large box and clicks on the **Insert Chart** icon and decides on the type of chart.



For this slide, he selects a 3-D Pie chart. A small Excel spreadsheet pops up above the pie chart for Cameron to enter the data for the chart.







Cameron begins to type in the data by double-clicking on a cell and replacing the text or numbers in it. He changes the numbers cells to percentages. There is an extra row he doesn't need, so he selects it, right-clicks, and selects the **Delete Row** from the menu. Cameron now clicks the **X** in the small window and closes it.



 \odot



| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations Silde Show Review View Q Tell me what you want to do | |
|--|--|
| | A, Share 🖓 |
| Cut is Alcroach PoesePort Cut is Alcroach Cut is Alcr | R State d d datace - p - m X |

Cameron decides to show the budget present age on the chart and needs to modify a few other aspects about the chart to make it easier to see.



He takes the following steps:

- 1. Chart Elements Button. This + button allows Cameron to change aspects of the chart.
- 2. Elements List. Cameron clicks the Data Labels box to change the labels.
- 3. Arrow Button. Cameron clicks the small right arrow, and a new menu appears.
- 4. Data Label List. Cameron moves the chart numbers to the center of their respective areas.

Next, Cameron changes the area numbers to percentages and increases the font size of the chart text and the Store label sizes.



| 🔒 🖘 - 🕑 👿 = 🛛 Q3 Sales Campaign.pp | tx - PowerPoint | Chart Tools | | Sign in 🖽 — 🗗 🗙 |
|--|---|---------------------------------------|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design Transitions Animations | Slide Show Review View | Design Format | | A Share 🖵 |
| Matheway ★ Cut Image: Second | 12 A A A 8 9 A A F E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E | ↔ ↔ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ | Direction * a Test * vert to SmartArt - 5 Drawing | Shape Fill * Shape Outline * Shape Outline * Shape Effects * Select * E diting ∧ |
| O3 Saler Compolign | 10.5 11 12 14 16 18 | | | Slide: 1 of 5 C3 Sales Campaign |
| 2 as from | 20 24 28 [³² 36 (40 paign Budget | Font | Sales Budget | + |
| | 44 C 48 add text 54 60 66 | | 45% 27% | |
| | 72 00 88 96 | | 20% | |
| S Energe Mary | | | ⊇Store I ■Store 2 ■Store 3 | - |
| Slide 4 of 5 DR | | | ≜ Notes 🗐 80 | M = + 725 F3 |

The chart is now too close to the store labels. Cameron clicks on the chart and hovers over the border until the four-arrow cursor appears. He drags the chart up, closer to the title. This centers the chart and makes it easier to read the labels.



Option 2 for Chart Integration

What if Cameron had an existing sales budget chart? He could copy and paste the chart into his presentation. First he opens the Excel file with the chart in it. Since he has learned to copy and paste from the previous table, he puts the PowerPoint and Excel windows side by side then takes the following steps:


| ⊟ 5 •ੇ ਾ | | iales Carr | ipaign.xlsx | | | n 123 | | | × | | - | _ | | | | | | | | | - | |
|------------------------------|------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--------|----------------------|----------|-----|--------------|----------|--------------------|-----------|------------|-------|----------|----------|-----------|------------|--------|-----|--------------|
| File Home Insert Pi | age Layout | Formul | as Data | Review 1 | View Desig | n For | mat 🖓 | Tell me | 8 | ي . در 🖻 | <u>_</u> | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Add Chart Element x | | | | | | _ | | | | | Insert | Design | | | | | Review \ | iew For | | | | P |
| Mu Chart Element | ange | | 2 | | Switch Row/ | Select | Change Chart Turn | Move | 4 | | Images | \bigtriangledown | Sp] | SmartAr | rt 🎝 | So Links | ţ | A Text | Ω | - | | |
| Chart Layouts | 015 - | Chart 5 | ityles | | Data | Data | Type | Location | | der r | * | * | ICUITS | Chart | ins* | * | Comme | * | * | * | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | des Tables | | | Illustrat | ions | | | Comment | IS She | de: 1 of 5 | | | ^ |
| Chart1 * : × | √ Ja | ¢ | | | | | | | Ť | | | | | | | | | Q3 | Sales Can | npaign | | _ <u> </u> ^ |
| A B | с | n | - | F | G | н | 1 | J | - | and the | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 % of Campain Budget | | | · 🗠 | Chart Area | - | | | | - 1 | English 1 | | | | | æ | | | | | | | |
| 2 Store 1 2/ 2 Store 2 29 | | Fill | Outline | | | | | | - 1 | 100 | | | | | Ť. | | | | | | | |
| 4 Store 3 45 | | _ | | | | _ | _ | _ | • • | - | | | - | | • | | • r | | | | | |
| 5 | | * | Cut | | in Bu | daat | | ` | | - | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | | ⊆ору | | | uget | 2 | 3 | | - | | | Dist | ributio | n of | | • | | | | | |
| 7 | | 6 | Paste Opti | sions: | | | | | | - | | | Car | nnaia | n Ruz | tent | | | | | | |
| 8 | | | Ê. | | | 27% | | | | | | | Cui | npuig | | Jyci | | | | | | |
| 10 | | 1 | Reset to M | latch Style | | | | | | | | | Click | o add text | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 4576 | A | Font | | | | | Store 1 | | | | | | | | | | | 1 10 01 | | 4 | |
| 12 | | | Change Cl | hart Type | | | | Store 2 | 11 | | | | | | | | | | k io at | IC IEX | i R | |
| 13 | | | Save at Te | molate | | | | Store 3 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - W |
| 14 | | | Salact Date | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | 1 | Maur Cha | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | 0 | 3 D Bototi | | | 28% | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | - D Doracie | 211 | | | - 20 | | 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 20 | | 1 | Bring to Fr | ont | · | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | * * |
| 21 | | 100 | Send to Ba | ic <u>k</u> | • | | | | -14 | | 1 | | | | | | | | | _ | | P |
| 22 | | | Assign Ma | cro | | | | | | de 5 of 5 [] | | | | ≜ No | otes | e 80 | 00 | v | 1.1 | + | 66% | E |
| () Table | Chart | Shi 🔐 | Eormat Ch | iart Area | 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Ready | | 15 | PivotChart | | (11) (1 | n | | + 10 | m | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- 1. Select Excel. Cameron makes sure Excel is the current window and opens the chart file.
- 2. Select Chart. Cameron selects the chart in the Excel file by right-clicking on the chart.
- 3. **Select Copy.** Cameron sees a menu appear and selects the **Copy** choice. He can also use **Ctrl+C** to copy the chart.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18742



- 4. **PowerPoint Presentation Paste Chart.** With the desired chart copied, Cameron moves over to his PowerPoint presentation and places the curser in the correct spot and right-clicks again to bring up the menu. In the menu he selects the **Paste** option and the chart is placed in the presentation. He can also use the **Ctrl+V** keys to paste the chart.
- 5. **Resize Chart.** Cameron now grabs one of the chart border area spots and moves it to the desired size in the presentation.



| File Hone Issee Page Layout Formadie Out / Review View Design Formadie Other O Tailman C Formadie Outer Out and the constraints Out | ⊟ち∘∂∘∓ | | | | | B 5 | | = Q3 Sales Campaign.pptx - Powe | erPoint Sign | | |
|---|--|-----------------------------------|------------------------|---|--|----------------------------|---|--|-------------------|---------------------------|---|
| Bl Add Chart Blement* B) Calck Lipuxt* B) Calck Lipuxt* Chart Styles Chart Styles Chart Styles Chart Styles B) C D E F G H 1 S G G S G S G G S G G S G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G | File Home Inser | t Page Layout Form | nulas Data Review View | v Design Format | | | Home Insert | Design Transitio Animatic Slide Shc Re | eview View Design | Format 🛛 🖓 Tell me | |
| Chart 1 * / K · K · K · K · K · K · K · K · K · K | Add Chart Element * | Change Colors • | t Styles | witch Row/ Select C Column Data Ch Data | Change Move nart Type Location | New Slide * Slides 1 | Table Images | Shapes kons il Chart Bustrations | Links Comments | A Text ymbols Media | ~ |
| a B C D E F G H I J 1 % of Campain Budget 2 2 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 | Chart 1 * | × v fr | | | | 1 | | | | Slide: 1 of 5 | |
| Table Chart Sheet3 (| A B 1 % of Campain Bud 2 store 1 3 store 2 4 store 3 6 7 7 1 10 11 11 12 12 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21 22 | C D get 27 28 5 0 45% | E F % of Campa | G H | 1 J = Store 1 O = Store 2 = Store 2 | 2 5 1 | e I I I I I I I I | % of Campo | ain Budget | | |
| | Table | e Chart Sheet | 3 (+) | [4] | | | e | | | | • |

6. **Change Chart.** If Cameron needs to change something about the chart, such as the type of chart, the data in the chart, the labels, and so on, he can right-click on the chart itself. A menu will appear that allows him to change aspects of that chart. Any changes made will not affect the original Excel file chart.

Practice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18743

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Excel Chart in PowerPoint. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.9: Excel Chart in PowerPoint is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.10: Introduction to Integrating Access

What you'll learn to do: Use Access elements in other Microsoft Office products

Now that we've seen how Word, Excel, and PowerPoint integrate with one another, let's take a look at how Access can be used with other Microsoft Office products.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Introduction to Integrating Access. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: *CC BY: Attribution*

15.10: Introduction to Integrating Access is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.11: Access and Mail Merge

Learning Outcomes

• Create Word mail merge file from Access Data

Microsoft makes it easy to use data from one program and integrate it into another. One of the best ways to use Access with Word is in a mail merge. Here is how to have Access and Word work together to create mail merged letters to go out to customers.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18794

1. The first step is to open the customer contact database in Access you wish to use in the mail merger.

2. Open Access, and you will see the list of available sources in the navigation pane on the left, if not press F11 and the left navigation pane opens showing the contact table. Double click to open it.

| 🕞 🗇 - 🗢 Rowan+Reta | ail+Customer+Contac | cts : Database- C:\ | User Tabl | e Tools | | | Sign in | | | × |
|-----------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|----------------|---------|--------|---|-----|
| File Home Create Ext | ternal Data Data | abase Tools | Help Fields | Table | | you want to do | | | | |
| Saved Imports | 🥃 🐺 🤘 | - - | | ess rd Merge | | | | | | |
| New Data Source - | Exports F | ext XML PDI File File orXI | - Email 🔤 Mo | re * | | | | | | |
| Import & Link | . | Export | | | | | | | | ~ |
| All Access Obie 💿 « | Customer Conta | ict Data $	imes$ | | | | | | | | |
| Search | 🚄 🛛 First 🕞 | Last 👻 | Address 🗸 | City 🗸 | State 👻 | Zip Code 🛛 👻 | | | | |
| Tables * | Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gu | New Orleans | LA | 70116 | | | | |
| Customer Contact Data | Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge | Brighton | MI | 48116 | | | | |
| | Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Av | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | | | | |
| | Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | | | | |
| | Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | OH | 45011 | | | | |
| | Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | OH | 44805 | | | | |
| | Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | | | | |
| | Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blv | San Jose | CA | 95111 | | | | |
| | Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave # | SIOUX Falls | SD | 57105 | | | | |
| | weagnan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck | Baltimore | MD | 21224 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Record: I4 4 3 of 10 |) > > >> T ₂ | No Filter Search | 1 | | | | | - | h.4 |
| Datasheet View | | | | | | | Nu | m Lock | | |

3. Look through the table or query to identify the addresses to use in the mail merge for Word.

- 1. If the addresses are saved in various tables, first create a simple select query with the fields needed, then select the query for the mail merge.
- 2. Make sure to check the data for errors or missing cells and correct it before starting the mail merge.

4. Select the **External Data** tab, and in the **Export** group select the **Word Merge** button.

| H 5 | | ≂ Rowan- | - Reta | ail+Custom | er+Co | er | Table Tools | | | | |
|----------------------|---------------------|--------------------------|--------|------------------|-------------------|--------------|-------------|---------------|-------|---------|---------------|
| File | Home | Create | Ext | ernal Data | a | Databas | e Tool | 5 H | elp | Fields | Table |
| New Data Source • | 🚟 Saved 🖅 Linked | Imports d Table Manag | ler | Saved Exports | X Excel | Text File | XML File | PDF or XPS | Email | Ka Acce | ss d Merge |
| | Export | | | | | | | | | | |



5. A Word Mail Merge Wizard window then opens.

| 🔚 🤝 - 🗢 - 🗢 Rowan+Reta | il+Customer+Contacts : Database- C:\User Table Tools | Sign in 🛛 🗖 🗙 |
|---|---|---|
| File Home Create Ext Saved Imports New Data Source * Import & Link All Access Obje © « | ernal Data Database Tools Help Fields Table $>$ Tell me what you v Saved Excel Text XML PDF Email Exports File File or XPS More * Export Customer Contact Data × | want to do |
| Search | First Last Address City State Zip Walker Adkins 6649 N Blue Gu New Orleans LA D Microsoft Word Mail Merge Wizard Image: Concentration of the second document, so that you can print form letters or address OK IL This wizard links your data to a Microsoft Word document, so that you can print form letters or address OK B Image: Concelee of the second document OR Cancelee of the second document. Image: Provide of the second document and the second document. Image: Concelee of the second document. Image: Concelee of the second document and the second the second document. Image: Provide of the second document and the second document and the second the second document. Image: Concelee of the second document and the second document. Image: Provide of the second document and the second document and the second document. Image: Concelee of the second document and the second document. Image: Provide of the second document and the second d | oCode • 70116 - 48116 - 99501 - 45011 - 44805 - 60632 - 95111 - 57105 - 21224 - |
| Mail Merge Wizard | | Num Lock |

6. Decide if the wizard should like the address data into a new blank Word document or into an existing document. Select the option and click **OK**. For this example, we'll create a new document.



7. A Word documents opens, and the **Mailings** tab and **Mail Merge** pane are now open.

| AutoSave (| •••• 🛛 🖓 | ~ [™] - | Document1 | - Word | 𝒫 Search | | | | | Sig | n in | Ħ | - 0 | × |
|-------------------------|----------------------------|---|-------------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------|---|--|-------------------|
| File Ho | ome Insert | Design | Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View H | lelp | | | | 🖻 Share | 🖓 Comn | nents |
| Envelopes Lal Create | bels Start Mail Merge ~ | Select Recipients ~ Start Mail Me | Edit Recipient List rge | Highligh Merge Fiel | t Address Gr ds Block Wr | eeting Insert Me Line Field | Provide a construction of the second | → h Fields ite Labels | ≪≫ ABC Preview Results | Fin Che Preview | d Reci eck fo Resul | ipient r Errors Its | Finish & Merge ¥ Finish | ~ |
| ••• | 1 | | 2 · · · I · · | . 3 | 4 | 5 . | | 6 · · · △ | 7 . | | | Mail M | ordo 🔻 | × |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | erge | |
| : | | | | | | | | | | | | Select docu What type | ment type of document | are |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | you workir | ig on? | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | Lett | ers | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | E-mi | all messages elopes | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | O Labe | els | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | 🔿 Dire | ctory | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | Letters | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | Send letter people. You the letter the receives. | s to a group u can persona hat each pers | of Ilize on |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | Click Next t | o continue. | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| un . | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| : | | | | | | | | | | | | Step 1 of 6 | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | North C | tarting docu | nent |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | Wext: 5 | carcing uocui | nem |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Page 1 of 1 | 0 words 🔝 | | | | | | | [면] Focu | s 🗊 | | 6 | | + | 100% |

8. In the mail merge pane at the bottom are the wizard steps to walk through using the Next or Previous links. In Step 2 you can choose to compose your own letter or to pick from various templates. We'll choose a template and then update it. Click the link to move to the next step.





9. In Step 3, select the Access contact file. Select the **Browse** link under **Use an existing list** area and select the Access file.



10. If you need to edit the list select the **Edit recipient list** and sort, apply filters, find duplicates, remove contacts, etc. in the open dialog box. In this case we'll use all the contacts for the merge.

| | | | | | | | - | |
|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------|--------------------------------|---|--|----------------------------------|----------------|---|
| Mail Merg | ge Recipients | | | | | | 2 | x |
| This is th Use the o | e list of recipi checkboxes to | ients f add | that will be u or remove re | ised in your merge. Use the cipients from the merge. V | e options below to Vhen your list is re | o add to or ch ady, click OK. | ange your list | |
| Data So | urce | $\overline{}$ | Last 🚽 | Address 👻 | City 🗸 | State 🚽 | Zip Code | ^ |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | $\overline{}$ | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gum St | New Orleans | LA | 70116 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ~ | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge Blvd | Brighton | MI | 48116 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | v | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Ave #54 | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | E |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ~ | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ~ | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | OH | 45011 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ✓ | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | OH | 44805 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ~ | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | |
| Rowen | Retail Cust | ~ | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | CA | 95111 | - |
| 1 | | | | | | | , | |
| Data Sou | irce | | Ref | ine recipient list | | | | |
| Rower | n Retail Custo | mer C | iont 🔺 🧍 | Sort | | | | |
| | | | T- | Filter | | | | |
| | | | | Eind dunlicates | | | | |
| | | | | The development of the last | | | | |
| | | | - · | - | | | | |
| Edi | it | Refres | h | Validate addresses | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | ОК | |
| | | | | | | | | |

11. Now is the time to in the Word document to edit the letter, select the area for the address data to appear and select the Address block, Greeting line, etc. in the right side Mail Merge wizard menu and it inserts the Access data into the document.

| AutoSave 💽 🗰 🏷 - 🕐 - 🔍 - Document1 - Word 🛛 🔎 Search | Sig | gn in 📼 🗕 🗆 🗙 | AutoSave 🚥 🛱 9 - 🕐 = Mail Merge Example | A Signin 🖬 – 🗖 🗙 |
|---|--|---|---|---|
| File Home Insert Design Lavout References Mailings Review View | Help | 요 Share 모 Comments | File Home Insert Design Layout References Mailings Review View | Help 🔄 Share 🖓 Comments |
| Envelopes Labels Start Mail Sect Envelope Start Envelope | ules ~ Attch Fields Ipdate Labels Results C Ch | 1 D D Finish & Finish & Merce ~ | Envelopes Labels Envelopes Labels Cruster Cruster Cruster | s~ ABC IS IN A Recipient Finish & Preview Results Finish & Merger Preview Results Finish & Preview Results Finish |
| Create Start Mail Merge Write & Insert Fields | Preview | v Results Finish | | Mail Merge * × |
| L (Sempany) [Sempany] [Sempany] (Sempany) [Final) [Final) [Final) [Website] | replace with | Mail Merge * * Write your letter By our have not already done so, write your letter now. To add receiver information to your effect, sick al vocation of the normal field field Address block Creating pinc | Reveal Read | CONTRACT Contract of the contra |
| CLICK HERE TO SELECT A DATE [Recipient Name] [Recipient Street Address. City. ST ZIP Code] | | More items. More tems. When you have finished writing your letter, cick Next. Then you can preview and pretter. Step 4 of 6 → Next. Preview your letters € Previous: Select receptents | First-start AddressTindo MartensTindo Ma | toola free a Step 4 of 6 - 3 free freese and too free freese strength and too |
| Page 1 of 1 6 of 163 words []] 🔞 | (D) Focus 🖽 🗮 | 100% | Pagel of 1 156 words 🗊 🐻 | (D) Focus III II III + 107% |

a. Besides using the Wizard, you can format each merging area from the Mailings tab, Write & Insert Fields group in the ribbon.



b. Select the style of greeting, the formality or informality or other options in the dialog boxes for each merge field.

| Autosave 00 | | Contraction Sign i | | |
|------------------|--|--|--|--|
| File Home | Insert Design Layout References Mailings | Review View Help | 🖆 Share 🛛 🖓 Comments | |
| Envelopes Labels | Insert Address Block | 2 D B Rules - 🛛 👟 🖂 🗸 | ent Finish & | Incert Greating Line |
| | Specify address elements | Preview | Errors Merge ~ | |
| Create | Chart projects : name in this tomat Ms. jointo d. Rondoll Jr. The Ancad Family Northan and Coffman Sendoll Armony Annual Armony Sendoll | Here Is a preview from your recipient Int: | Pinith A | Greeting line format: Dear Ioshua Randall Jr. ▼ Greeting line for J ^M / ₁ Randall Mr. Randall Jr. ▼ Dear Sir or Mi, Mr. Joshua Randall Jr. F F Preview Mr. Joshua Randall Jr. ₩ Here is a preview Josh Randall Jr. Joshua Randall Jr. Joshua Randall Jr. ↓ Joshua Cynthia Randall v. ↓ |
| DECEMBER | 1 | OK Cancel | When you have finished writing your letter, dick Next. | Dear Teo Tadeo, |
| . [Recipient] | Name] | | personalize each recipient's | Correct Problems |
| [Recipient S | itreet Address, City, ST ZIP Code] | | ietter. | If items in your greeting line are missing or out of order, use Match Fields to identify the correct address elements from your mailing list. |
| Dear [Recipi | ient]. | | Step 4 of 6 | Match Fields |
| If you're rea | ady to write, just click here and go to it! | 201- 00 PB 0 | rexi: preview your letters Frevious: Select recipients | OK Cancel |
| Pagerof1 7 of 18 | on motas Th E® | Li, Focus Lill 📷 🔅 | B - + 100% | |

- 12. The wizard's step 5 allows you to preview the merged data in the document before you print it. Even in this stage you may have forgotten to add a space between the first and last name, too much space in the address field, or other errors. Now is the time to correct them.
 - a. Use the **Preview your letters** area to arrow through the recipients and double check for errors.
 - b. If you decide at this point to exclude one or a few of the recipients click the Exclude this recipient button or click the Edit recipient list link.

| ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | Mail Merge 👻 🗙 |
|---|---|
| Rowan Retail 2360 McCulloch Blvd N Bullhead City, AZ 86442 928-453-3456 curretail com | Preview your letters One of the merged letters is previewed here. To preview another letter, click one of the following: << Recipient: 1 >> \$\overline{Find}\$ a recipient |
| www.rretail.co | Make changes |
| MARCH 15, 2020 Walker Adkins 6649 N Blue Gum St New Orleans, LA 70116 | You can also change your recipient list: Edit recipient list Exclude this recipient When you have finished previewing your letters, click Next. Then you can print the merged letters or edit individual letters to add personal comments. |
| | |
| Dear Walker Adkins, If you're ready to write, just click here and go to it! | |
| Or, if you want to customize the look of your letter, you can do that in almost no time | Step 5 of 6 |
| On the Design tab of the ribbon, check out the Themes, Colors, and Fonts galleries to preview different looks from a variety of choices. Then just click to apply one you like. | → Next: Complete the merge ← Previous: Write your letter |

13. Step 5 completes the merge and Step 6 of the wizard is where you Pint the merged document. There is an option at this step to change individual letters by selecting the Edit individual letters link which generates all the letters in one Word file so you can



edit.

| Print | | | Į | ? X | Mail Merge 👗 👗 |
|---|--|--|----------------------|---|--|
| Printer <u>N</u> ame: Status: Type: | HP OfficeJet 6950 (Netw Idle HP OfficeJet 6950 | ork) | perties Printer | Complete the merge Mail Merge is ready to produce your letters. To personalize your letters, | |
| Where: Comment: | TH7BP26044 | Copies | Print | document with your merged letters. To make changes to all the letters switch back to | |
| All Current Pages: Type pa separat the star section. p1s1, p1 | page Selection ge numbers and/or page ranges ed by commas counting from t of the document or the For example, type 1, 3, 5–12 or 1s2, p1s3–p8s3 Document | Number of <u>copies</u> : | I 🗢 | | Merge |
| P <u>r</u> int: | All pages in range | Pages per s <u>h</u> eet: Scale to paper si <u>z</u> e: | 1 page No Scaling OK | Cancel | |
| ck here and p e look of you | go to it! r letter, you can do that in alm | ost no time | | | |
| ı, check out t ck to apply c | the Themes, Colors, and Fonts one you like. | galleries to preview di | fferent looks from a | | Step 6 of 6 Previous: Preview your letter |

14. The last step is to save the new mail merged document for later printing or to send to someone else to print and send these letters.

PRactice Question

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18795

Now that you have walked through the steps of merging and Access table into a Word mail merge letters here is a six minute video to watch and see the entire process to reinforce the steps.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Mail Merge Microsoft Access Data into Microsoft Word Documents" here (opens in new window).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Access and Mail Merge. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

Mail Merge Access to Microsoft Word. Authored by: PC Learning Zone.com. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?
 v=Knk03inA0k4. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

15.11: Access and Mail Merge is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.12: Excel Table from Access Data

Learning Objectives

• Create Excel table from Access Data

There are times when Access contains data you want to analyze in an Excel spreadsheet. This export may take place once or more frequently depending on the situation. For example, let's say at work you have a monthly report for your department head which pulls monthly customer contact data from Access into an Excel table. Although Access can create reports, your department manager is more comfortable with Excel and wants the data reported in that program. We'll walk through setting this scenario up and show you the integration capabilities of Access.

Exporting Data to Excel

Open the Access file to be exported and follow these steps to export the customer contact information into Excel.

Step 1

Before exporting data from Access look through the data to identify any errors (e.g. #Error, #Num!, #Name?, etc.). Fix any errors —otherwise errors might multiply as incorrect information may be placed in incorrect Excel cells in a worksheet. Now that the data is ready go to the next step.

Step 2

Select the **External Data** tab, **Excel** button and an **Export – Excel Spreadsheet** command window opens.

| | ail Customer Contact : | Database- C:\Users | ∖P Table | e Tools | | | Sign in | - 0 | × |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|---|------------------|------------------------------------|----------------|------------------|------------|----------|-----|
| File Home Create Ex | ternal Data Data Saved Exports | abase Tools H ext XML PDF ile File or XPS Export | Help Fields | Table) ess rd Merge re * | ⊃ Tell me what | : you want to do | | | ~ |
| All Access Obio 🔍 « | 🛄 Rowen Retail Cu | stomer Contact 🛛 🗡 | < | | | | | | |
| All Access Obje O " | Z ID 🔻 | First 👻 | Last 👻 | Address 👻 | City - | State 👻 | Zip Code , | | |
| Search | 1 | Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gu | New Orleans | LA | 70116 | | |
| Tables 🌣 | 2 | Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge | Brighton | MI | 48116 | | |
| Rowen Retail Customer Cont | 3 | Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Av | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | | |
| | 4 | Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | | |
| | 5 | Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | OH | 45011 | | |
| | 6 | Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | OH | 44805 | | |
| | 7 | Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | | |
| | 8 | Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blv | San Jose | CA | 95111 | | |
| | 9 | Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave # | Sioux Falls | SD | 57105 | | |
| | 10 | Meaghan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck | Baltimore | MD | 21224 | | |
| | * (New) | | | | | | 0 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | Record: Id 1 of 10 | b b b * | No Filter Search | | | | | | |
| Datasheet View | | | Search | | | | Nu | m Lock 🔲 | ₽.∕ |

Step 3

Fill out the information asked for in the window:

- a. **File name:** name for the exported excel file.
- b. File format: older Excel versions are available as well as the current *.xlsx extension default.
- c. Specify export options: Decide whether to export the data format and layout or not.





- i. If exporting the format, the next box/choice becomes available whether to open the destination file after the export is complete or not.
- d. Click the **OK** button.

| Export - Excel Spread | sheet ? | <u> </u> |
|---------------------------------------|---|----------|
| Select the de | stination for the data you want to export | |
| Specify the destin | nation file name and format. | |
| <u>F</u> ile name: | C:\Users\Pendleton\Documents\Rowen Retail Customer Contact.xlsx Browse Browse | |
| File forma <u>t</u> : | Excel Workbook (*.xlsx) | |
| Specify export op We will not impo | tions. t table relationships, calculated columns, validation rules, default values, and columns of certain legacy data types | |
| Search for "Impor | t" in Microsoft Access Help for more information. | |
| Export d | ata <u>w</u> ith formatting and layout. | |
| Select th | is option to preserve most formatting and layout information when exporting a table, query, form, or report. | |
| Open the | e destination file after the export operation is complete. | |
| Select th | is option to view the results of the export operation. This option is available only when you export formatted data. | |
| Export o | nly the selected records. | |
| Select th have rec | is option to export only the selected records. This option is only available when you export formatted data and ords selected. | |
| | OK Cancel | |

Note: To Format or Not To Format?

How should you determine whether to export data with or without formatting?

- With Formatting: Exporting a table or query with formatting allows the export wizard to use the format property settings, have hyperlink fields exported as hyperlinks and have it use the format settings. With rich text fields text is exported without formatting.
- Without Formatting: Exporting a table or query without format means all records and fields are exported with formatting ignored. Only lookup ID values are exported, and hyperlinks are exported as regular text.

Step 4

One more window opens indicating the export is successful and asks if these same export steps should be saved. This option is used if you are frequently exporting this same data often. In this case we leave the box unchecked.



| Export - Excel Spreadsheet | ? × |
|--|-------|
| Save Export Steps | |
| Finished exporting 'Rowen Retail Customer Contact' to file 'C:\Users\Pendleton\Documents\Rowen Retail Customer Contact. successfully. | xlsx' |
| Do you want to save these export steps? This will allow you to quickly repeat the operation without using the wizard. | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | ose |

Step 5

Choose the Excel workbook and file format. If you selected the open the file when done exporting an Excel worksheet will open with the exported Access data. Now you can use the data to do anything in Excel you wish to do.

| 1 | AutoSave Off | | | Rowen Retail Custome | er Contact - Ex | 🔎 Sear | ch | | S | ign in | • | - 0 | × |
|-----------------------------------|--------------|------------------------------|--|--------------------------|--|------------|-------------|----------------|---------------------------------|--------------------|---------------------|-------|------|
| Fi | e Home | Insert Pa | age Layout F | ormulas Data | Review V | iew Develo | oper Help P | ower Pivot | | Ľ | 중 Share | Comm | ents |
| Pa | ste 🗳 | alibri 3 I <u>U</u> ~ 🗄 | - 11 - A^ A - <u>◇</u> - <u>A</u> | · = = = ∞ = = = = = | $ \begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare & \circledast & & & & & \\ \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare & & & & & \\ \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare$ | | | natting ~ ~ | 🔚 Insert 🔛 Delete 🖽 Forma | • Σ • ↓ t• ♦ | ~ 2₽~ ~ ∕Ω~ ~ | Ideas | |
| Cli | pboard 🗔 | For | nt | Alignme | nt 🗔 | Number 🕞 | Styles | | Cells | 1 | diting | Ideas | ^ |
| C5 • : $\times \checkmark f_x$ Ng | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ | |
| | А | В | С | D | E | F | G | н | 1 | J | к | L | |
| 1 | ID | First | Last | Address | City | State | Zip Code | | | | | | |
| 2 | : | 1 Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gum St | New Orleans | LA | 70116 | | | | | | |
| 3 | : | 2 Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge Blvd | Brighton | MI | 48116 | | | | | | |
| 4 | : | 3 Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Ave #54 | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | | | | | | |
| 5 | 4 | 4 Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | | | | | | |
| 6 | 3 | 5 Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | OH | 45011 | | | | | | |
| 7 | | 5 Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | ОН | 44805 | | | | | | |
| 8 | - | 7 Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | | | | | | |
| 9 | : | 8 Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | CA | 95111 | | | | | | |
| 10 | 9 | 9 Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave #88 | Sioux Falls | SD | 57105 | | | | | | |
| 11 | 10 | 0 Meaghan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck Pl #2808 | Baltimore | MD | 21224 | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |
| | ⊂ → F | Rowen Retail C | ustomer Contac | t (+) | | | E | | | | | | • |
| Ē | | | | | | | | | | ─ - | | + | 100% |



PRactice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18796

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18797

This example was using contact information data in Access, but all kinds of data can be exported from Access to Excel. If an error slipped through, you can either fix it in Excel or return to Access and fix the error there and re-export the data into an Excel worksheet.

Note: Export Possibilities

What is and isn't possible to export to Excel:

- There are a few types that can be exported to Excel; forms, tables, reports, queries or even a few selected records from a datasheet.
- Things that cannot be exported to Excel are modules or macros and if there are subreports, subdatasheet or subforum in the data they are not exported and must repeat the export for each of them if you want them exported to Excel.
- Only one database object can be exported in a single export, but multiple worksheets can be merged in Excel to cobble together one table or report from the individual exports.

Now that you have walked through exporting a table from Access to Excel, watch this short video to see additional ways to export tables, queries and reports from Access to Excel.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "Exporting Tables, Queries and Reports" here (opens in new window).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Excel Table from Access Data. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

 Exporting Tables, Queries and Reports from Access to Excel in Access 2016. Authored by: Sali Kaceli. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Mn4zwUMi7yc. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

15.12: Excel Table from Access Data is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.13: Access Data from Excel Table

Learning Outcomes

• Create Access data table from Excel data

There are scenarios where data has been created or stored in Excel and now needs to be added into an Access database. As an example, say that the original company accountant only knew how to create Excel spreadsheets. Now, however all company accounting information needs to be in an Access database. How would you do this?

We'll walk through importing data from Excel into Access so follow these steps.

- 1. Open the Excel workbook and look through the data to:
 - a. Clean up the data if there are errors or gaps in the data fields.
 - b. Use the **Data Tools** group, **Remove Duplicates** button to eliminate any potential make duplicate information that may being exported.
 - c. Check to see that columns have headings and are consistent data types (e.g. all currency, percentage, etc.) and correct if necessary.

| Au | toSave 💽 Off |) 🗄 🏷 🤆 | v [≜ ⊽ Ro | wen Retail Custom | er Contact - E | ix 🔎 : | Search | | | | | | | . I | Sign in | Ŧ | - 0 | × |
|-------------|--------------|---|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|---|------------------|-----------------------------|------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|---------|------|--------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|------------|--------|
| File | Home | Insert Pa | ge Layout For | rmulas Data | Review | View De | veloper Help i | ower Pivot | | | | | | | | 🖻 Share | Com | ments |
| Get Data | From Te | ext/CSV [🔂 Re leb [ြ Exi able/Range | cent Sources sting Connections | Refresh All ~ 🕞 Ed | ieries & Conne operties it Links | ections | ocks Geography 😨 | 2↓ ZA Z↓ Sort | Filter Filter | lear eapply dvanced | Text to Columns | | What | -If Forecast | 현日 Gro 현日 Un 들田 Su | oup ~ group ~ btotal | +4 | |
| | G | iet & Transform Dat | а | Queries | & Connections | | Data Types | | Sort & Filter | | Data | a Tools | F | orecast | c | utline | r <u>s</u> | ^ |
| A2 | Ŧ | : × 🗸 | <i>f</i> _x 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| | А | В | C | D | F | F | G | н | | 1 | к | L I | м | N | 0 | Р | 0 | E A |
| 1 | ID | First | Last | Address | City | Stat | e Zip Code | | | - | | - | | | - | | | |
| 2 | | 1 Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gum St | New Orlear | ns LA | 70116 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | | 2 Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge Blvd | Brighton | мі | 48116 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | 3 Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Ave #54 | Bridgeport | IJ | 8014 | L . | | | | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | 4 Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 6 | | 5 Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | | | _ | 2 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | | 6 Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | Remove Duplicat | tes | | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | |
| 8 | | 7 Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | To delete duplic | ate values, select one or m | ore columns f | that contain dup | licates. | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | | 8 Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | Select Al | I] I≣ <u>U</u> nselect All | [| ✓ <u>M</u> y data has h | headers | | | | | | | | |
| 10 | | 9 Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave #88 | Sioux Fal | Columns | | | | - | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | 1 | 0 Meaghan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck PI #2808 | Baltimore | ✓ ID ✓ First | | | | E | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | | | | | | Last | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 | | | | | | City | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | | | | | | State | | | | - | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | | | | |
| 16 | | | | | | | | | OK | Cancel | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L |
| 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | • | Rowen Retail Cu | stomer Contact | + | | | | | | 4 | | | | | | | | Þ |
| 50 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Ľ | | + | - 100% |

2. Save and close the Excel worksheet and open Access.



3. In the External Data tab, click the New Data Source button, From File, Excel option.

| 🖬 🕤 · ♂ - ⊽ Customer | r Contact Info : Database- C:\Users\Pendleton\ | Table Tools | Sign in 📃 🗆 🔿 | × |
|--------------------------------|--|--------------|---------------|---|
| File Home Create E | ixternal Data Database Tools Help | Fields Table | | |
| New Data Source * | Saved Excel Text XML PDF Ema Exports File File or XPS Export | il 😽 More 🔹 | | ~ |
| From <u>F</u> ile | Excel | | | |
| From Database | HTML Document | | | |
| From <u>O</u> nline Services > | XML File | | | |
| From Other Sources | Iext File | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | Record: H 4 1 of 1 + H +* T No Filt | er Search | | |
| Datasheet View | | | Num Lock 🛅 🔛 | |

- 4. The Get External Data Excel Spreadsheet window opens. Find the excel file you wish to import into Access using the Browse button.
- 5. Next is deciding where to store the imported data. The three options are:
 - a. A new table in current database,
 - b. Appending a copy of the records in an existing table, or
 - c. Linking to the data source by creating a linked table.
 - d. For this example choose to create a new table.

| et External Data - E | xcel Spreadsheet |
|---|--|
| Select the so | urce and destination of the data |
| Specify the sour | ce of the definition of the objects. |
| <u>F</u> ile name: | C:\Users\Pendleton\Documents\ Browse |
| Specify how and We will not imp such as OLE Obj | i where you want to store the data in the current database. ort table relationships, calculated columns, validation rules, default values, and columns of certain legacy data types ect. |
| Search for "Impo Import If the sp content | rt" in Microsoft Access Help for more information. the source data into a new table in the current database. becified table does not exist, Access will create it. If the specified table already exists, Access might overwrite its is with the imported data. Changes made to the source data will not be reflected in the database. |
| Append If the sp Change | I a copy of the records to the table: Table1 vecified table exists, Access will add the records to the table. If the table does not exist, Access will create it. rs made to the source data will not be reflected in the database. |
| Link to Access be refle | the data source by creating a linked table. will create a table that will maintain a link to the source data in Excel. Changes made to the source data in Excel will cted in the linked table. However, the source data cannot be changed from within Access. |
| | OK Cancel |



6. The Import Spreadsheet Wizard is now opened, and the Excel table is displayed. Make sure the checkbox for First Row Contains Column Headings if that is the case. Click the Next button.

| -= 1 | mpo | rt Spreadshe | et Wizard | and Table 1988 Martin | | | | x | | | | | | |
|------|---|----------------|---------------|-----------------------|-------------|----------------|---------------|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Microsoft Access can use your column headings as field names for your table. Does the first row specified contain column headings? | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | row | specified cont | ain column ne | adings? | | | | | | | | | | |
| | V F | rst Row Cont | ains Column H | leadings | | | | | | | | | | |
| • | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | |
| | ID | First | Last | Address | City | State | Zip Code | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 1 | Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gum St | New Orleans | LA | 70116 | ~ | | | | | | |
| 2 | 2 | Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge Blvd | Brighton | мі | 48116 | | | | | | | |
| 3 | з | Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Ave #54 | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 4 | Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | | | | | | | |
| 5 | 5 | Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | он | 45011 | | | | | | | |
| 6 | 6 | Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | он | 44805 | | | | | | | |
| 7 | 7 | Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | | | | | | | |
| 8 | 8 | Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | CA | 95111 | | | | | | | |
| 9 | 9 | Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave #88 | Sioux Falls | SD | 57105 | | | | | | | |
| 10 | 10 | Meaghan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck P1 #2808 | Baltimore | MD | 21224 | | | | | | | |
| | | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | + | | | | | | |
| - | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Cancel | < <u>B</u> ack | Next > Einish | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

7. The next wizard window allows you to be specific about the field information being imported by modifying the field information in the **Field Options** area. For our purposes the defaults work.

| You can specify information abo information in the Field Options | out each of the fields you are impor ' area. | ting. Select fields in the ar | ea below. Yo | u can then modify field | |
|---|---|--|--|--|-------------|
| Field Options Field Name: ID Indexed: Yes (Duplicates | Data Type: Do CK) Do not imy Do not imy Int | ible v s/No te eger ng Integer | | | |
| ID First Last 1 Walker Adkins 2 Dave Alston 3 Naomi Patel 4 Judy Ng 5 Luis Sanchez 6 Feo Tadeo 7 Britney Spears 8 Foster Jenkins 9 Richard Castle 1010 Meaghan Garufi | Address Sin 6649 N Bl e Gum St D 4 B Blue lidge Blv.Sh 8 W Cerri os Ave #Lor 639 Main t Hy 34 Center St 3 Mcauley Dr 7 Eads St 7 W Jackson Blvd 5 Boston Ave #88 228 Runamuck Pl #2808 | Je up of the second sec | te Zip 7011 4811 8014 9950 4501 4480 6063 9511 5710 2122 | Code 6 1 1 5 2 1 5 4 | |
| | | Cancel < B | ack | <u>N</u> ext > | ► Einish |

8. The next wizard window allows you to define a primary key for the new table. Primary keys uniquely identify every record in a table to be able to return data quickly. For this example, we'll let Access add the primary key.

| a import spre | adsheet Wiza | ird | | | | a para ser a se |
|-----------------------|---|--------------------------------|---|--|--------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| | s XXX XXXX X XXXX X XXXX X XXXX X XXXX | Microsoft Acc uniquely iden | ess recommends that you define a p tify each record in your table. It allo ss add primary key. my own primary key. rry key. | rimary key for your r ws you to retrieve da | new table. ata more q | A primary key is used to uickly. |
| |) First | Last | Address | City | State | Zip Code |
| 1 1 1 | Walker | Adkins | 6649 N Blue Gum St | New Orleans | LA | 70116 |
| 2 2 2 | Dave | Alston | 4 B Blue Ridge Blvd | Brighton | мі | 48116 |
| 3 8 3 | Naomi | Patel | 8 W Cerritos Ave #54 | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 |
| 4 4 4 | Judy | Ng | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 |
| 5 5 5 | Luis | Sanchez | 34 Center St | Hamilton | он | 45011 |
| 6 6 6 | Teo | Tadeo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | он | 44805 |
| 7777 | Britney | Spears | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 |
| 8 8 8 | Foster | Jenkins | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | CA | 95111 |
| 9 9 9 | Richard | Castle | 5 Boston Ave #88 | Sioux Falls | SD | 57105 |
| 10 <mark>10</mark> 10 | Meaghan | Garufi | 228 Runamuck Pl #2808 | Baltimore | MD | 21224 |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

9. Access is now ready to import the Excel file. There is a checkbox to select if you would like the table to be analyzed after the data is imported. It will remain unchecked for this example. Now click the **Finish** button.

| Import Spreadsheet V | Vizard | X |
|----------------------|---|----|
| 100 | That's all the information the wizard needs to import your data. | |
| | Import to Table: Rowen Retail Customer Contact | |
| , | | |
| | I would like a wizard to analyze my table after importing the data. | |
| | | |
| | Cancel < Back Mext > Enis | :h |

10. Access now asks if you would like so save these import steps just walked through. If so, click the Save import steps checkbox. We'll leave it unchecked for now.





11. The Excel information is now imported into Access and can now be use in Access or even added to as more Excel information is discovered.

| 🔚 🕤 - 🗟 - 🗢 Customer C | Cont | act Info : Database- C:\ | Users\Pendlet | ton\ Tabl | e Tools | | | | Sign in | - 0 | × |
|----------------------------|--------|---------------------------------|-----------------------|------------------|-------------------------|---|-----------------|----------------|---------|------------|----------|
| File Home Create Ext | terr | ial Data Databas | e Tools | Help Fields | Table | , | | you want to do | | | |
| Saved Imports | e E | Saved Excel Text xports File | XML PDF File or XP | Email S Mo | ess rd Merge re ▼ | | | | | | ~ |
| All Access Obio 9 # | | Table1 🗙 🎞 Ro | wen Retail Cus | stomer Contact | | | | | | | |
| Search | 2 | ID1 V | ID • | First - | Last | Ŧ | Address + | City - | State - | Zip Code 👻 | Click to |
| Tables 🏾 🕆 | | 2 | 2 | Dave | Alston | | 4 B Blue Ridge | Brighton | MI | 48116 | |
| Rowen Retail Customer Cont | | 3 | 3 | Naomi | Patel | | 8 W Cerritos Av | Bridgeport | NJ | 8014 | |
| Table1 | | 4 | 4 | Judy | Ng | | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 99501 | |
| | | 5 | 5 | Luis | Sanchez | | 34 Center St | Hamilton | ОН | 45011 | |
| | | 6 | 6 | Teo | Tadeo | | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | OH | 44805 | |
| | | 7 | 7 | Britney | Spears | | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 60632 | |
| | | 8 | 8 | Foster | Jenkins | | 7 W Jackson Bly | San Jose | CA | 95111 | |
| | | 9 | 9 | Richard | Castle | | 5 Boston Ave # | Sioux Falls | SD | 57105 | |
| | | 10 | 10 | Meaghan | Garufi | | 228 Runamuck | Baltimore | MD | 21224 | |
| | * | (New) | | | | | | | | | |
| | Re | cord: 14 < 1 of 10 | ► N ►* ₹ | No Filter Search | | 4 | | | | | Þ |
| Datasheet View | | | | | | | | | N | um Lock 🔳 | 2 |

Practice Questions

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18798

https://assessments.lumenlearning.co...essments/18799





Now that you've seen how to import Excel data into a new Access table, watch this video that walks through the steps and demonstrates how to add Excel data to an existing Access table. While the video shows an older version of Word (Microsoft Word 2016), the same steps work in other versions of Word, including 2019 and 365.

A link to an interactive elements can be found at the bottom of this page.

You can also view a transcript for the video "How to Import Excel Data into Access" here (opens in new window).

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Access Data from Excel Table. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

All rights reserved content

 How to Import Excel Data into Access 2016. Authored by: Professor Adam Morgan. Located at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RelLvfilOnQ. License: All Rights Reserved. License Terms: Standard YouTube License

15.13: Access Data from Excel Table is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.14: Putting It Together- Integration

With a few skills and tools learned from this module, you can now create and insert multiple types of charts, tables, hyperlinks, videos, pictures, and icons into whatever Microsoft computer application you use. At the beginning of this module, the video talked about the real goal of learning all of this information, working with what you and other people create to accomplish your tasks and goals.

The variety of scenarios used throughout this module illustrated how you can use these integration skills at work. You can now utilize these skills for school or personal projects as well. Communication with coworkers, management, and others, will now be more easily accomplished through application integration skills. Here are a few instances that can call on those skills.

- 1. You want to break up the long presentation to your work team—add in a video.
- 2. Your boss asks for the latest financial information tables in your report—integrate an Excel table into your Word document.
- 3. You want to record a few types of resources in your Excel spreadsheet for future reference—add in hyperlinks to websites.
- 4. You want to send letters to a large amount of people—use your Access database to do a mail merge in Word.

Contributors and Attributions

- CC licensed content, Original
- Putting It Together: Integration. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.14: Putting It Together- Integration is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





15.15: Assignment- Create Mail Merge Letters

For this assignment, you will create a Word document that is mail merged with an Access customer contact table. Mail Merge can be used to create bulk labels, letters, envelopes, and emails. You will be creating letters to send with the newsletter you previously edited. Follow the directions below, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review this module and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

You have been tasked with mailing the newsletter you previously created to customers of Rowan Retail. In order to accomplish this task, you need to merge the customer contact information in the Access file with a Word document in order to make mailing labels. Follow these steps to accomplish the task.

- 1. The first step is to download the customer contact Access file and save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop.
- 2. Open Word and create a new document by clicking on the Blank document option in the window.
- 3. Save the document by using Save As and rename the document to **BA132_LastName_MailMerge.docx**, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_MailMerge)
- 4. Begin Mail Merge: Select the Mailings tab and use the Step-by-Step Mail Merge Wizard for this mail merge letter.



5. Wizard: Walk through the wizard and click the Next: Starting document link leaving the selection of document type to 'Letters'.





6. Create letter: Leave the document type to 'Use the current document' and click the Next: Select recipients link.

| File Home Inset Design Layout References Mailings Review View Itel interwhat you want to do Provide intermediation i | | 5 · J | ÷ | | | | BA | 132_LastNa | ame_Mail | merge.docx | - Word | | | 5 | ign in | Ð | - | | × |
|---|-----------------|----------|-----------------------|---|-----------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------|---|------------------|-----------------------------|----------------|------------|--------------------------|---|---|---|--|
| Envelopes Labet: Sart Mail Select: Edit Highlight: Address Greeting Insert Merge Match Fields Preview Finds Address Greeting Insert Merge Create Start Mail Select: Mail Marge Fields Biock Line Fields Preview Freedew Fields Marge Fields Select starting document Marge Fields Select starting document Marge Fields Select starting document Select starting document Select starting document Marge Fields< | File | Home | Insert | t Design | Layout | References | Mailing | s Revi | iew V | /iew ♀ | | | | | | | | Share | \Box |
| Page 1 of 1 Overidit | Envelope Cre | s Labels | Start Mail Merge * | Select Recipients * R Start Mail Merg | Edit ecipient List | Highlight Merge Fields | Address G Block | reeting Insi Line rite & Inser | ert Merge Field ~ | Rules - Ratch Ratch Ratch Ratch | Fields Labels | <क्षि Preview Results | Find Recipient | ▶ № | Finish Mergi Finis | 8. e | | | ~ |
| | Page 1 of | 1 Owo | l I | | | | | | | | | | 38 | | 4 | Mail Select : → Us → Start f shown Mergr recipion Step 2 → N ← P | Merg tarting d to you way the current trom the d there and current trom the d there and wizard to there and wizard to there and there are and there and there are and the are are are and the are are are and the are are are are are are are are a the are are are are are are are are are ar | e coument nt to set u endocument coument isting doc document coument add add ation. | × p eent ument đail ment ty 100% |

7. Contact List: You already have a file with a contact list. Leave the selection 'Use an existing list' selected and click on the Browse link.



8. Insert File: Find where you saved the Rowan Retail Customer Contact Info.accdb file and use this for the mail merge contacts file.



| | | | | | 9 | Search | | | | Sign in | | | × |
|-----------|-------------|--------------|----------|-----------------|------------------|-------------|-------------|--------|------------------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|-----------|
| File | Home | Insert | Desig | n Layout | References | Mailings | Review | View | Help | | 🖻 Share | 🖓 Com | ments |
| 🖾 Env | Select [| Data Source | | 2 | 10 | 0.8 | 2 | 2.4 | · 1 | 2 2 4 | | X | |
| 📴 Lab | \bigcirc | 🗢 🚺 🕨 Lu | men 201 | 9 🕨 Assignment | ts & Discussions | ▶ Module 15 | - | | + + 9 | Search Mod | ule 15 | ٩ | 2 |
| Cre | Organiz | e 🔻 Ne | w folder | | | | | | | | 811 - | | ^ |
| L · · · · | 🚾 Mic | rosoft Word | ^ | Name | ^ | | Date modif | ied | Туре | Size | | | × |
| : | 🔶 Eav | orites | | 🚯 Rowan Reta | il Customer Cor | itact Info | 1/13/2020 4 | :04 PM | Microsoft Access | 5 452 | КВ | | |
| 1 | D | esktop | | | | | | | | | | | |
| : | 📃 R | ecent Places | | | | | | | | | | | ontacts |
| | _ 0 | neDrive | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 📕 D | ownloads | = | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 🚞 Libi | aries | | | | | | | | | | | s are |
| 1 | 📄 D | ocuments | | | | | | | | | | | Contact] |
| - | J N | lusic | | | | | | | | | | | list |
| 1 | 📔 Pi | ictures | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 😸 Vi | ideos | | | | | | | | | | | |
| : | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Cor | nputer | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 🔛 Li 😥 D | VD PW Drive | (D Ŧ | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | io nii onie | | New Sourc | e | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| m | | | File nar | ne: Rowan Retai | Customer Cont | act Info | | | - | All Data Sour | ces | • | |
| : | | | | | | | | | Tools 💌 | Open | - Ca | incel | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | al | J |
| | | | | | | | | | | | _ | _ | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | See. 2 - 66 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | A Nerth | Write your In | Har |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | Previo | wite your le | tocument |
| | | | | | | | | | | | Flevic | rus. starting t | a content |
| Page 1 d | of 1 0 word | is []] [| :0 | | | | | | 🕒 Focus 💷 | | | + | 100% |

9. Prepare contact file: Find Richard Castle and Britney Spears and uncheck their boxes. Go to the Next: Write your letter link step.

| 日 り~ C |) = | | | ې م | Search | | | | Sign in | | | |
|----------------|--------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|----------------|-------------------------------------|---|---------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------|---------------------|--------|
| File Hom | e Insert | Design | Layout | Reference | s Mailin | igs Review | View Help | | | 🖻 Share 🛛 | 🖓 Commen | its |
| Envelopes | Start Mail Merge ~ Re | Select | Edit Ecipient List | Highlight Merge Fields | Address Gr | eeting Insert Merge Line Field ~ | ▷ Rules ~ 문급 Match Fields ⓒ Update Labels | ≪≫ ABC Preview Results | 이 이 [이 Find R Check | ecipient | Finish & Merge ~ | |
| Create | St | معملا اندادا ا رج | | | Mei | ita 9: Incart Eialde | | | Depuiour Do | sults | Finish | |
| | | Mail Merge | Recipients | | | | | 2 | × | | | |
| - | | This is the | list of recipier | nts that will be | used in your | merge. Use the opti | ons below to add to | or change you | ur list. | Mail Mer | ge 🍷 | × |
| | | Data Sour | eckboxes to a | Last - | First | Address | City | State | - Z - | elect recipien | ts | |
| - | | Rowan R | atail Curt | V Datel | Naomi | 8 W Cerritos Ave # | 54 Bridgeport | NI | - 8 | Use an exist | ting list | |
| 1 | | Rowan R | etail Cust | ✓ Na | Judy | 639 Main St | Anchorage | AK | 9 | Select from | Outlook con | tacts |
| | | Rowan Re | etail Cust | ✓ Sanchez | Luis | 34 Center St | Hamilton | OH | 4 | O Type a new | list | |
| | | Rowan Re | etail Cust | ✓ Tadeo | Teo | 3 Mcauley Dr | Ashland | он | 4 | | P-4 | |
| | | Rowan Re | etail Cust [| Spears | Britney | 7 Eads St | Chicago | IL | 6 ≡ | se an existing | list | - |
| - | | Rowan Re | etail Cust [| Jenkins | Foster | 7 W Jackson Blvd | San Jose | CA | 9. | selected from: | recipients ai | c |
| 1 | | Rowan R | etail Cust | Castle | Richard | 5 Boston Ave #88 | Sioux Falls | SD | 5 | Rowen Retail | Customer Co | ntact] |
| - | | Rowan Re | etail Cust 🛽 | Garufi | Meaghan | 228 Runamuck PI | #2808 Baltimore | MD | 2 🕌 | Select a | a different lis | t |
| | | • | | | | | | | + | | | |
| 1 | | Data Sour | ce | Re | fine recipient | list | | | | E Colt re | cipient list | |
| - | | Rowan | Retail Custom | er Con | ↓ <u>Sort</u> | | | | | | | |
| | | | | 1 | Filter | | | | | | | |
| 2 . | | | | 9 | Find dupl | icates | | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | - C | Find recip | ient | | | | | | |
| - | | | | | 🕽 Validate a | ddresses | | | | | | |
| - | | <u>E</u> dit. | Re | fres <u>h</u> | | | | | | | | |
| - m | | | | | | | | | OK | | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | UK | | | |
| | | | | _ | _ | | | | _ | | | |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| : | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | c | | |
| - 1 | | | | | | | | | | Step 3 of 0 | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | → Next: Writ | e your letter | |
| • | | | | | | | | | | Previous: S | tarting docu | ment |
| Page1 of 1 0 v | vords 💽 | | | | | | [b] Focus | | | | + 10 | 00% |

10. Compose the letter: Decide where to place your cursor in the document for adding in an address and use the Address Block option from the wizard or the ribbon button, to select the naming style.



| File Home Insert Design | Layout Referen | es Mailings Review | View Q Tell me what you | | |
|--|---|---|--|---|---|
| | | | | i want to do | 년 Share 🖵 |
| Envelopes Labels Start Mail Select Create Start Mail Merge * Recipients * | Edit Highlig Recipient List Merge Fi | ht Address Greeting Insert N eld Block Line Field Write & Insert Field | Rules * Preview * Dupdate Labels ds | Image: Check for Errors Preview Results | b sh & rge ≠ hish ∧ |
| inse Spec V V | t Address Block fy address elements inset[gedjient's name in Josh (forh Randall Jr. Josha) andall Jr. Inset[company name inset[posta] gddress: Never include the cou Anways include the cou United Stars | his format: try/region in the address nty/region in the address ny/region if different than: | Preview Here is a preview from your r I 4 0 Meapan Garufi 228 Runamuck Pl # 200 Baltimore, MD 21224 Correct Problems I Heres in your address. block Match Fields to identify the is directed the | ? × ecipient list: | Mail Merge ▼ × Write your letter To your to your letter now. To your toyour letter now. To your terter now. Address block. Creating Inne. Creating Inne. Creating Inne. Creating Inne. More terms When you have finished |
| | (vinieu addes) Format address according | to the gestination country/regi | your making list. | Mitch Builds Committee Thing | Step 4 of 6 Step 4 of 6 Step 4 of 6 |

11. Decide Greeting: Decide where you would like the greeting to be in the letter. Select the **Greeting line** from the wizard or the ribbon button and decide the style of greeting.

| 🗄 5-0 ፣ | | |
|----------------------------------|--|---|
| File Home Insert Design Layout | References Mailings Review View Q Tell me what you want to do | 🖻 Share 🖵 |
| Envelopes Labels Create | H € 10 → H Highlight Addre Greeting vært Merge Merge Fields Blod Line Fields Write & Timer Fields | Finish & Merge * Finish |
| «AddressBlock» «GreetingLine» | Insert Greeting Line ? X Greeting line format: | <section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header> |
| Page Lot 1 2 Words LB | | + 100% |

12. Paste the following text to serve as the body of your letter. Enclosed is the quarterly newsletter for Rowan Retail. Please enjoy the information therein and pay special attention to the dates for the special sales this summer. If you have any questions or concerns, please contact us as soon as possible.



13. Finish Letter: Close the letter with 'Sincerely' and then your name. Save your work and click Next: Preview your letters.

| 8 2.0 | | | BA132 | LastName_Mail | merge.docx - Word | | | Sign in | | | |
|----------------------------|--|--|---------------------------------------|--|-------------------------|----------------------------|------------------|------------------------------|--|--|--------------------------------|
| File Home | Insert Design | Layout References | Mailings | Review V | iew ♀Tellme | | | | | ය Share | P |
| Envelopes Labels Create | Start Mail Select Merge - Recipients - R Start Mail Mer | Edit tecipient List ge | Address Greet s Block Lin Write | ting Insert Merge ne Field * & Insert Fields | Rules - Match Fields | Preview Results | Check for Errors | Finish & Merger Finish | k T | | , |
| | «AddressBlock» «GreetingLine» | | | | | | | | Mail Men Write your lett If you have not so, write your To add recipier to your letter, in the docume click one of the Address | er t already di letter now. nt informat click a local nt, and the e items bel s block | X one tion en low. |
| | Enclosed is the qua special attention to please contact us a Sincerely, Your Name (Examp | rterly newsletter for Ro the dates for the speci s soon as possible. le: Sheri Prendergast) | wan Retail. Ple | ease enjoy the i mmer. If you hi | nformation there | in and pay or concerns, |] | | Greetin Greetin Electro More il When you have writing your le Then you can p personalize ea letter. | ng line nic postag tems e finished tter, click h oreview ani ch recipien | Pt NextL d tT's |
| | | | | | | | | | Step 4 of 6 Next: Previous: 5 | ew your le ielect recip | fters pients |

14. Check Letters: Scroll through the letters by clicking on the arrows. Britney Spears and Richard Castle should be missing in the recipients.



15. Complete the Merge: Once the merge is completed, click on **Edit individual letters...** if you need to make any changes to just a few letters.

| ⊟ 5 · 0 € · · | Document6 | Word | Sign in 🖽 – 🗗 🗙 |
|--|---|---|--|
| File Home Insert Draw De | gn Layout References Mailings Review View 🖓 Tell me what you want to do | | |
| File Home Baset Draw De Image: Start Mail Image: Start Mail Select Merge Recipients - Re Create Create Start Mail Select Merge Recipients - Re | Look References Making Boow Yee Q Information work used to be Book References Making Boow Yee Processing References Book References Making Book Processing References Highlight Andress Greenficht Processing Processing References Was & there Fields Was & there Fields | ► N Mett Frank A. Frank Mage - Seator Seator | A Share A |
| | Meaghan Gandi 228 Runaroux PH 2208 Baltimore, MO 21224 Dear Meaghan Garuff, Enclosed is the quarterly neoreletter for Rowan Retail. Please enjoy the in special attention to the deates for the special ales this summer. If you han please contact us as soon as possible. Sincerely, Your Name [Example: Sheri Prendergast] | formation therein and pay e any guestions or concerns, | The permending prove levels, deal from a set and deciment of the prov- mends of the set of the set of the set matching of the and the set of the set matching of the set of the |
| Pagetaf1 38 words ⊑2 | | | Step 6 of 6 Freeloss: Preview your letters 10 10 15 - + 100% |





- 16. For this assignment don't make any edits to individual letters and continue to the final step.
- 17. Optional Task: To double check the letters you can print them out. Make sure 'All' records are selected to make sure all print or select specific ones if you want to print a few.



18. Your merge mail file is now complete! Save your file once more, this time as a PDF (use the .pdf file extension), and submit the PDF in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Use Mail Merge. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.15: Assignment- Create Mail Merge Letters is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



15.16: Discussion- Audio Integration

In this module, we discussed integrating charts, tables, hyperlinks, and videos into Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint and importing external data into Access. These objects were found in both external (internet) and internal (within existing files) sources. PowerPoint has audio options that can be integrated into slides. Like videos, audio can be uploaded from external sources, trimmed, and edited.

Audio options can be integrated into PowerPoint from the **Insert** tab by uploading an audio file from your computer.



There are a variety of options available for audio, which you can see in the Audio Tools>Playback tab ribbon. Like video, audio can be timed or started with a mouse click. You can play the audio across all slides, run it on a loop until stopped, or fade it in or out.





Discussion Questions

- In what situations would this feature be useful?
- Could you see yourself using this in PowerPoint? Word? Excel? Access? Why or why not?
- What should you be aware of with audio?

Share your opinions below and respond to two of your classmates' thoughts.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Discussion: Audio Integration. Authored by: Sherri Pendleton. Provided by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

15.16: Discussion- Audio Integration is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



CHAPTER OVERVIEW

16: Resources- Capstone Assignment

16.1: Assignment- Create Capstone Presentation

16: Resources- Capstone Assignment is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



16.1: Assignment- Create Capstone Presentation

You are now ready for your final capstone assignment. For this assignment you will need to download four files: one each for Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Access. In this scenario, you have been asked to give a presentation on the new RowanGo app. You will create the presentation and a document, integrating Excel and Access in each and using tools covered throughout the course.

Follow the directions, then submit your assignment. If you get stuck on a step, review the modules in this course and ask your classmates for help in the discussion forum.

Part 1: PowerPoint presentation

- 1. Download the PowerPoint presentation and Word document as well as the Access database and Excel table that you will integrate into both documents. Save all four files to the Rowan folder on your desktop.
- Open the PowerPoint presentation. Save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_Capstone.pptx, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Capstone) It is a good idea to save your work periodically.
- 3. Here is what the final presentation should contain:
 - Five total slides
 - New theme from original one
 - Excel chart from file (the formatting may or may not change between Excel and PowerPoint and it is completely fine, just make it legible in the slide.)
 - Access abbreviated contact table from file.
 - Word document file first paragraph on left side, and any image of a hand holding a smartphone from internet on right side in slide.
 - Embed video from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N_ZIMNCl9UQ
 - Add transitions to slides
- 4. Here is an example of what the final version may look like. Use your own theme, style, colors and make sure to remember to make it readable from a distance for a presentation. This is an example of what yours may look like:





5. Once you are done save your work. Congratulations, you are now done with Part 1!

Part 2: Word document

 Open the Word document you downloaded in Part 1. Save it to the Rowan folder on your desktop as BA132_LastName_Capstone.docx, replacing "LastName" with your own last name. (Example: BA132_Hywater_Memo) It is

a good idea to save your work periodically.

- 2. Here is what the final presentation should contain:
 - No watermark.
 - Easy to tell document has a new theme.
 - Excel table and chart centered.
 - Below the chart the words: You can review the presentation here and contact information examples here. Each 'here' links to the PowerPoint presentation file and the Access customer contact file respectively.
- 3. Here is an example of what the final version may look like. Use your own theme, style, colors and make sure to remember to make it readable. This is an example of what yours may look like:





- 4. Once you are done save your work. Congratulations, you are now done with Part 2!
- 5. Save your work and submit both your PowerPoint presentation and Word document in your course online.

Contributors and Attributions

CC licensed content, Original

• Assignment: Create Capstone Presentation. Authored by: Lumen Learning. License: CC BY: Attribution

16.1: Assignment- Create Capstone Presentation is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



CHAPTER OVERVIEW

17: Ancillary Materials

17.1: PowerPoint Presentations

17: Ancillary Materials is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.





17.1: PowerPoint Presentations

Template:HideTOC

Attachments

| File | Description | Last Modified |
|--|-------------|----------------|
| [] ComputerApps_01_IntroToComputers.ppt x | | March 07, 2021 |
| ComputerApps_02_InternetResearch.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_03_MicrosoftWordBasic.p ptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_04_MicrosoftWordInterme diate.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_05_MicrosoftWordAdvanc ed.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_06_MicrosoftExcelBasic.p ptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_07_MicrosoftExcelInterme diate.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_08_MicrosoftExcelAdvanc ed.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_09_MicrosoftPowerPointB asic.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_10_MicrosoftPowerPointI ntermediate.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_11_MicrosoftPowerPointA dvanced.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_12_MicrosoftAccessBasic. pptx | | March 07, 2021 |
| [] ComputerApps_13_MicrosoftAccessInter mediate.pptx | | March 07, 2021 |



| [] ComputerApps_14_MicrosoftAccessAdva nced.pptx | March 07, 2021 |
|--|----------------|
| ComputerApps_15_Integration.pptx | March 07, 2021 |

17.1: PowerPoint Presentations is shared under a CC BY license and was authored, remixed, and/or curated by LibreTexts.



| Index | | | |
|-------|--|--|--|
| D | | | |
| dire | | | |


Glossary

Sample Word 1 | Sample Definition 1



Detailed Licensing

Overview

Title: Book: Computer Applications for Managers (Lumen)

Webpages: 322

All licenses found:

- CC BY 4.0: 99.1% (319 pages)
- Undeclared: 0.9% (3 pages)

By Page

- Book: Computer Applications for Managers (Lumen) *CC BY* 4.0
 - Front Matter *CC BY 4.0*
 - TitlePage CC BY 4.0
 - InfoPage CC BY 4.0
 - Table of Contents Undeclared
 - 2.1: About This Course *CC BY 4.0*
 - Licensing Undeclared
 - 2.2: Course Contents at a Glance *CC BY 4.0*
 - 3: Faculty Resources *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.1: Faculty Resources Overview CC BY 4.0
 - 1.2: Pacing *CC BY* 4.0
 - 1.3: Offline Content Access *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.5: Assignments *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1: Introduction to Computers *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.1: Why It Matters- Introduction to Computers *CC BY* 4.0
 - 1.2: Introduction to Computer Concepts CC BY 4.0
 - 1.3: Hardware *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.4: Software *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.5: Security *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.6: Privacy *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.7: Introduction to Operating Systems *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.8: Identifying Your Operating System (OS) *CC BY* 4.0
 - 1.9: Introduction to Navigate Programs *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.10: Managing Windows *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.11: Keyboard Shortcuts *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.12: Introduction to Finding Programs and Files *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.13: Start Menu *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.14: Creating Files and Folders *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.15: Organizing Files and Folders *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.16: Deleting Files and Folders *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.17: Introduction to File Management *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.18: Local Files *CC BY 4.0*
 - 1.19: Network Files *CC BY* 4.0
 - 1.20: Online Files *CC BY 4.0*

- 1.21: Introduction to Snips and Screenshots CC BY
 4.0
- 1.22: Snips and Screenshots *CC BY* 4.0
- 1.23: Putting It Together- Intro to Computers CC BY
 4.0
- 1.24: Assignment- Download Files *CC BY 4.0*
- 1.25: Assignment- Identify Your OS *CC BY* 4.0
- 1.26: Assignment- Empty the Recycle Bin *CC BY* 4.0
- 1.27: Discussion- Computers vs. Smartphones *CC BY 4.0*
- 2: Internet Research *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.1: Why It Matters- Internet Research *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.2: Introduction to Using and Searching the Internet
 CC BY 4.0
 - 2.3: Internet Browsers *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.4: Basic Browser Tools *CC BY* 4.0
 - 2.5: Introduction to Ethical Business Research *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.6: Ethical Research *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.7: Data and Customer Rights *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.8: Introduction to Basic Searches *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.9: Web Searching *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.10: Identifying Search Results CC BY 4.0
 - 2.11: Opening Search Results CC BY 4.0
 - 2.12: Introduction to Advanced Searches *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.13: Adjusting Search Parameters CC BY 4.0
 - 2.14: Image Searches *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.15: Putting It Together- Internet Research *CC BY* 4.0
 - 2.16: Assignment- Search the Internet *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.17: Discussion- Search Results *CC BY 4.0*
 - 2.18: Discussion- Personal Data and Ethical Business Use *CC BY 4.0*
- 3: Microsoft Word Basic Skills *CC BY* 4.0
 - 3.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Basic Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 3.2: Introduction to Using Word *CC BY 4.0*



- 3.3: Creating a New Blank Document and Finding Your Way Around *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.4: Saving Files *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.5: File Extensions *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.6: Introduction to Basic Text Formatting *CC BY* 4.0
- 3.7: Selecting and Moving Text *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.8: Bold, Italics, Underline *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.9: Fonts *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.10: Alignment, Justification, and Indentation *CC BY* 4.0
- 3.11: Line and Paragraph Spacing *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.12: Introduction to Workspace Tools *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.13: Spell Check and Dictionaries *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.14: Find and Replace *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.15: Introduction to Lists *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.16: Lists *CC BY 4.0*
- 3.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Basic Skills - CC BY 4.0
- 3.18: Assignment- Create Basic Document *CC BY* 4.0
- 3.19: Discussion- Paragraph Styles CC BY 4.0
- 4: Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.2: Introduction to Page Layout *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.3: Tab Stops *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.4: Columns *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.5: Headers and Footers *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.6: Introduction to Text Boxes *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.7: Text Boxes *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.8: Introduction to Tables *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.9: Creating Tables *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.10: Converting Text to a Table *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.11: Formatting Tables *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.12: Introduction to Images *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.13: Adding Images *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.14: Text Wrap *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.15: Introduction to Hyperlinks *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.16: Hyperlinks *CC BY* 4.0
 - 4.17: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Intermediate Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.18: Assignment- Create Document with Tables and Images *CC BY 4.0*
 - 4.19: Discussion- Cover Pages *CC BY 4.0*
- 5: Microsoft Word Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 5.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 5.2: Introduction to Advanced File Creation and Text Formatting *CC BY 4.0*
 - 5.3: Creating a New Document from a Template *CC BY* 4.0

- 5.4: Text Effects *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.5: Introduction to Watermarks and Icons *CC BY*4.0
- 5.6: Watermarks *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.7: Icons in Word *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.8: Introduction to Citations *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.9: Citations *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.10: Introduction to Mail Merge *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.11: Mail Merge *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.12: Introduction to Internet and Word *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.13: Internet and Word *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Word Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.15: Assignment- Edit a Newsletter *CC BY 4.0*
- 5.16: Discussion- Advanced Shortcuts *CC BY 4.0*
- 6: Microsoft Excel Basic Skills *CC BY* 4.0
 - 6.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.2: Introduction to Using Excel *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.3: Creating a New Workbook *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.4: Entering Data *CC BY* 4.0
 - 6.5: Introduction to Basic Formatting and Layout *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.6: Table Styles *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.7: Cell Styles *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.8: Cell Format *CC BY* 4.0
 - 6.9: Comma Styles *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.10: Rearranging Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.11: Changing Width of Columns and Rows *CC BY* 4.0
 - 6.12: Introduction to Using Multiple Worksheets *CC BY* 4.0
 - 6.13: Creating a Workbook with Multiple Worksheets • *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.14: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Basic Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.15: Assignment- Organize Sales Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 6.16: Discussion- Merging and Centering Cells *CC BY* 4.0
- 7: Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills CC BY 4.0
 - 7.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 7.2: Introduction to Using Excel for Data Analysis *CC BY 4.0*
 - 7.3: Sorting Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 7.4: Filtering Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 7.5: Functions *CC BY 4.0*
 - 7.6: Introduction to Automating Data Entry *CC BY* 4.0
 - 7.7: Flash Fill *CC BY* 4.0
 - 7.8: SUM Data CC BY 4.0
 - 7.9: Simple Math *CC BY 4.0*



- 7.10: Introduction to Graphics *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.11: Graphics *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.12: Modify Graphics *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.13: Format Graphics *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.14: Introduction to Charts *CC BY* 4.0
- 7.15: Charts *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.16: Clustered Column Charts CC BY 4.0
- 7.17: Chart Styles *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Intermediate Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
- 7.19: Assignment- Analyze Yearly Trends *CC BY* 4.0
- 7.20: Discussion- Hard Return within a Cell *CC BY* 4.0
- 8: Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills - CC BY 4.0
 - 8.2: Introduction to Sparklines *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.3: Sparklines *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.4: Introduction to More Formatting and Layout *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.5: Conditional Formatting *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.6: Viewing a Worksheet *CC BY* 4.0
 - 8.7: Introduction to Pivot Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.8: Pivot Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.9: Introduction to Macros *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.10: Macros *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.11: Recording a Macro *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.12: Introduction to Statistical Functions and Formulas *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.13: What is a Function? *CC BY* 4.0
 - 8.14: Lookup Functions and Formulas *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.15: Logical Functions and Formulas *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.16: Financial Functions and Formulas *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.17: Introduction to Add-Ins *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.18: Add-Ins *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.19: Introduction to Internet and Excel *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.20: Internet and Excel *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.21: Putting It Together- Microsoft Excel Advanced Skills - CC BY 4.0
 - 8.22: Assignment- Create Macro for Car Loan Spreadsheet - *CC BY 4.0*
 - 8.23: Discussion- Excel Worksheet as a Webpage -CC BY 4.0
- 9: Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills CC BY 4.0
 - 9.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills - CC BY 4.0
 - 9.2: Introduction to Creating Presentations *CC BY*4.0
 - 9.3: New Presentations *CC BY 4.0*
 - 9.4: Themes *CC BY* 4.0
 - 9.5: Introduction to Using PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*

- 9.6: Editing a Presentation *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.7: Organizing Slides *CC BY* 4.0
- 9.8: Views *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.9: Introduction to Objects in PowerPoint *CC BY* 4.0
- 9.10: Text Boxes *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.11: Images and Clip Art *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.12: SmartArt *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.13: Arranging Objects *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.14: Grouping Objects *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Basic Skills *CC BY 4.0*
- 9.16: Assignment- Present Sales Information CC BY
 4.0
- 9.17: Discussion- Infographics and Custom Shapes *CC BY 4.0*
- 10: Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills *CC BY* 4.0
 - 10.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.2: Introduction to Transition Effects *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.3: Transition Effects *CC BY* 4.0
 - 10.4: Introduction to Headers and Footers *CC BY* 4.0
 - 10.5: Headers and Footers *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.6: Introduction to Videos in PowerPoint *CC BY* 4.0
 - 10.7: Inserting Videos in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.8: Embedding Videos in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.9: Uploading Videos in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.10: Introduction to Lists *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.11: Creating Lists *CC BY* 4.0
 - 10.12: Modifying Lists *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.13: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Intermediate Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.14: Assignment- Create a New Presentation *CC BY 4.0*
 - 10.15: Discussion- Making a PowerPoint Presentation into a Video *CC BY 4.0*
- 11: Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills - CC BY 4.0
 - 11.2: Introduction to Colors *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.3: Color Themes *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.4: Custom Color Themes *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.5: Introduction to Tables in PowerPoint *CC BY* 4.0
 - 11.6: Create Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.7: Format Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.8: Modify Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 11.9: Introduction to Animations in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*



- 11.10: Animations in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.11: Introduction to Charts in PowerPoint *CC BY* 4.0
- 11.12: Create Charts *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.13: Format Charts *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.14: Modify Charts *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.15: Introduction to Customized PowerPoint Template - *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.16: Customized PowerPoint Templates *CC BY* 4.0
- 11.17: Introduction to Internet and PowerPoint CC BY 4.0
- 11.18: Internet and PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.19: Putting It Together- Microsoft PowerPoint Advanced Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.20: Assignment- Modify Existing PowerPoint Presentations - *CC BY 4.0*
- 11.21: Discussion- Ten Extra Tips for PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
- 12: Microsoft Access Basic Skills CC BY 4.0
 - 12.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Basic Skills -CC BY 4.0
 - 12.2: Introduction to Creating Database Tables *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.3: Creating a Database *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.4: Naming Databases *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.5: Creating an Access Table *CC BY* 4.0
 - 12.6: Introduction to Fields in Access *CC BY* 4.0
 - 12.7: Field Properties *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.8: Field Names and Data Types *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.9: Introduction to Table Primary Key *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.10: Primary Key *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.11: Set a Primary Key *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.12: Introduction to Indexes *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.13: What is an Index? *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.14: To Index or Not to Index? *CC BY 4.0*
 - 12.15: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Basic Skills - CC BY 4.0
 - 12.16: Assignment- Create New Access Database -CC BY 4.0
 - 12.17: Discussion- Selecting Primary Key Tips *CC BY* 4.0
- 13: Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills CC BY 4.0
 - 13.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 13.2: Introduction to Table Relationships CC BY 4.0
 - 13.3: Database Principles *CC BY 4.0*
 - 13.4: Flat File vs Normalized Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 13.5: Types of Table Relationships *CC BY 4.0*
 - 13.6: Introduction to Working with Tables *CC BY* 4.0
 - 13.7: Datasheets *CC BY 4.0*

- 13.8: Entering Data *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.9: Changing Values *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.10: Introduction to Working with Datasheets *CC BY* 4.0
- 13.11: Adding Values and Records in Datasheets *CC BY* 4.0
- 13.12: Deleting Records in Datasheets *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.13: Introduction to Sorting and Filtering Data *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.14: Displaying Records in Datasheets *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.15: Sorting Data *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.16: Aggregating Data *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.17: Printing Records *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.18: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Intermediate Skills - *CC BY 4.0*
- 13.19: Assignment- Modify Access Database *CC BY* 4.0
- 13.20: Discussion- Moving Columns and Fields *CC BY* 4.0
- 14: Microsoft Access Advanced Skills CC BY 4.0
 - 14.1: Why It Matters- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.2: Introduction to Importing and Exporting Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.3: External Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.4: Import and Export Options *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.5: Introduction to Queries *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.6: What Are Queries? *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.7: Adding Criteria to a Query *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.8: Saving Queries CC BY 4.0
 - 14.9: Introduction to Forms and Reports *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.10: Understanding Forms *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.11: Creating Basic Forms *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.12: Form Controls and Views *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.13: Presenting Data on Reports *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.14: Introduction to Analyzing Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.15: Transforming Data *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.16: Understanding Calculations *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.17: Using Conditional Analysis *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.18: Using Subqueries *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.19: Understanding Domain Aggregation *CC BY* 4.0
 - 14.20: Putting It Together- Microsoft Access Advanced Skills *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.21: Assignment- Create Queries for Access Database *CC BY 4.0*
 - 14.22: Discussion- Ways to Manage Access Tables *CC BY 4.0*
- 15: Integration *CC BY 4.0*
 - 15.1: Why It Matters- Integration *CC BY* 4.0
 - 15.2: Introduction to Using Word with Excel and PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*



- 15.3: Customized Word Templates *CC BY* 4.0
- 15.4: Excel Table in Word Document *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.5: Excel Chart in Word Document *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.6: PowerPoint in Word Document *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.7: Introduction to Using PowerPoint with Excel *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.8: Excel Table in PowerPoint *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.9: Excel Chart in PowerPoint *CC BY* 4.0
- 15.10: Introduction to Integrating Access *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.11: Access and Mail Merge *CC BY* 4.0
- 15.12: Excel Table from Access Data *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.13: Access Data from Excel Table *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.14: Putting It Together- Integration *CC BY 4.0*

- 15.15: Assignment- Create Mail Merge Letters *CC BY 4.0*
- 15.16: Discussion- Audio Integration *CC BY 4.0*
- 16: Resources- Capstone Assignment *CC BY 4.0*
 - 16.1: Assignment- Create Capstone Presentation *CC BY 4.0*
- 17: Ancillary Materials *CC BY 4.0*
 - 17.1: PowerPoint Presentations *CC BY 4.0*
- Back Matter *CC BY 4.0*
 - Index *CC BY 4.0*
 - Glossary CC BY 4.0
 - Detailed Licensing Undeclared